
Board Agenda, May 19, 2022 
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Jacqueline Zhang, Student Member 
 

Thursday, May 19, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2021/22-35 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Three Potential Cases) 

b)  Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case 2022020346) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 
 

 
 



Board Agenda, May 19, 2022 
 

2 

6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement  
 
4.3 Stellar Students – the following students from the School of Engineering and 

Sciences will be introduced by Board Member Woo:  Senior Lailoni Street, 8th 
Grader Megdelaweet “Maggie” Kemper, and 8th Grader Christobal Trujillo 
Montiel. 

 
7:05 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

7:10 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
 

7:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            15 minutes 
 

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  

 
 

7:30 p.m. 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 

 
 8.1 Resolution No. 3273:  Recognition of Asian American and 

Pacific Islander Heritage Month (Mark Carnero, 
Jacqueline Zhang, and the Student Advisory Council) 

 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote) 

 
 

 8.2 Resolution No. 3275:  Recognition of Sex-Ed for All Month 
(Mark Carnero, Jacqueline Zhang, and the Student 
Advisory Council) 

 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote) 

 
 

 8.3 Safety Update (Ray Lozada) 
 

Information 
20 minute presentation 

20 minute discussion 
 

 
8:30 p.m. 9.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 9.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  

Information 
 15 minutes  

 



Board Agenda, May 19, 2022 
 

3 

 
 

 10.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

8:45 p.m. 

 

10.1 Third Interim Financial Report, 2021-22 (Rose Ramos) 
 

Action 
10 minute presentation 

20 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote) 

 
9:15 p.m. 

 

10.2 Proposed Plan to Implement Assembly Bill 130:  Universal 
Pre-Kindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten 
(Christine Baeta and Tu Moua) 

 

Information 
20 minute presentation 

20 minute discussion 
 

 
9:55 p.m. 

 

10.3 Resolution No. 3272:  To Adopt Professional Experience 
Qualifications to Teach Transitional Kindergarten for the 
2022-2023 School Year (Cancy McArn) 

 

Action 
10 minute presentation 

15 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote) 

 
 

10:20 p.m. 

 

10.4 Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
(Steven Ramirez-Fong) 

 

Information 
15 minute presentation 

15 minute discussion 
 

 
 

10:50 p.m. 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 
2 minutes 

 (Roll Call Vote) 
 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
11.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
  

11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
11.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
 

11.1c Approve Donations to the District for the Period of April 1 - 30, 2022 (Rose 
Ramos) 
 

11.1d Approve Business and Financial Report:  Warrants, Checks and Electronic 
Transfers Issued for the Period of April 1 – 30, 2022 (Rose Ramos) 

 
11.1e Approve Resolution No. 3269:  Delegating Duty to Accept Bids and Award 

Construction Contracts (Rose Ramos) 
 



Board Agenda, May 19, 2022 
 

4 

11.1f Approve Resolution No. 3274:  Naming District Representatives for School 
Facilities Program and Division of the State Architect (Rose Ramos) 
 

11.1g Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C. and New York, 
New York from June 17 to June 22, 2022 (Christine Baeta and Chad Sweitzer) 

 
11.1h Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C., Gettysburg, 

Pennsylvania, and Williamsburg, Virginia from June 18 to June 23, 2022 
(Christine Baeta and Chad Sweitzer) 

 
11.1i Approve C. K. McClatchy High School Field Trip to Washington, D.C. from May 

27 to May 30, 2022 (Christine Baeta and Chad Sweitzer) 
 
11.1j Approve Minutes of the April 21, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

11.1k Approve Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan (Manpreet Kaur) 
 
 

 
10:52 p.m. 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

 12.1 Business and Financial Information: 
• Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of March 15, 2022, through  

April 14, 2022 (Rose Ramos) 
 

 
 

10:55 p.m. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 June 9, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 June 23, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 

11:00 p.m. 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 8.1 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3273:  Recognition of Asian American and 

Pacific Islander Heritage Month 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Youth Development 
 
Recommendation:  Approve proposed resolution. 
 
Background/Rationale:  May 2022 has been designated as Asian American and 
Pacific Islander Heritage Month.  The month of May was initially chosen to 
commemorate the immigration of the first Japanese to the United States on May 7, 
1843, and to mark the anniversary of the completion of the transcontinental railroad on 
May 10, 1869. The majority of the workers who laid the tracks were Chinese 
immigrants. The Resolution recognizes the importance of the continued contributions of 
Asian and Pacific Americans within our community, state and nation. 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3273 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Mark Carnero, Youth Development Specialist II and 

Jacqueline Zhang, Student Board Member 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 3273  

Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month 

WHEREAS, One of the earliest records of Asian and Pacific Islander Americans in the United 
States dates back to 1763 in New Orleans, Louisiana, where Filipino sailors who worked the 
Manila-Acapulco trade route settled; and 

WHEREAS, Asian and Pacific Islander Americans have made indelible contributions to the 
history of California and the United States that include, but are not limited to, building the 
Transcontinental Railroad, serving honorably in the Armed Forces, fighting for the United States 
in foreign wars, co-organizing the Delano Grape Strike, and advocating for civil rights; and 

WHEREAS, Asian and Pacific Islander Americans have endured hardships, including unjust 
working conditions, prejudice, and discrimination in some of the darkest times in our state’s and 
nation’s history, including the Chinese Exclusion Act, naturalized citizenship ineligibility, the 
Alien Land Law, anti-miscegenation laws, and Japanese internment; and 

WHEREAS, Asian and Pacific Islander Americans continue to cultivate, advance, and lead in 
the fields of art, fashion, business, technology, education, science, government, law, humanities, 
medicine, sports, and entertainment; and 

WHEREAS, California is home to over 6.3 million Asian and Pacific Islander Americans, more 
than any other state, and Asian and Pacific Islander Americans are one of the fastest growing 
ethnic populations in the state and nation; and 

WHEREAS, Asian and Pacific Islander Americans constitute 16 percent of California’s 
population and represent diverse ancestries that include, but are not limited to, Asian Indian, 
Bangladeshi, Bhutanese, Burmese, Cambodian, Chamorro, Chinese, Taiwanese, Filipino, 
Hmong, Indonesian, Iu-Mien, Iwo Jiman, Guamanian, Japanese, Korean, Laotian, Malaysian, 
Maldivian, Mongolian, Nepalese, Native Hawaiian, Vietnamese, Okinawan, Pakistani, Samoan, 
Singaporean, Sri Lankan, Thai, Tongan, and other Pacific Islander; and 

WHEREAS, California’s Asian and Pacific Islander American entrepreneurs are innovative and 
lead many successful businesses to the pinnacle of their respective industries nationally and 
globally, and 31.5 percent of the nation’s Asian-owned businesses are in California; and 

WHEREAS, Sacramento City Unified School District has more than 9000 students who identify 
as Asian American Pacific Islander 

WHEREAS, Federal law designates May as “Asian/Pacific American Heritage Month” in 
Section 102 of Title 36 of the United States Code; and 

WHEREAS, Celebrating Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month provides Californians with 
an opportunity to recognize the achievements, contributions, and history of Asian and Pacific 
Islander Americans; now, therefore, be it 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the month of May 2022 and every May 
thereafter be recognized as Asian American Pacific Islander heritage month in SCUSD. 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education 
on this 19th day of May, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Christina Pritchett 
President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar 
Secretary of the Board of Education 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 8.2 
 

Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 3275:  Recognition of Sex Ed for All Month 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Youth Development 
 
Recommendation:  Approve proposed resolution. 
 
Background/Rationale:  May 2022 has been designated as Sex Ed for All Month.  In 
2021,U.S. Representative Pramila Jayapal introduced May as Sex Ed for All Month 
Resolution while also encouraging state and local governments to recognize May as 
Sex Ed for All Month. The Resolution calls attention to the need to provide young 
people with complete, accurate, and inclusive sexual health information and access to 
sexual and reproductive health care services, empowering them to make healthy 
decisions for themselves and promoting healthy lifelong attitudes toward sex, health, 
and reproductive rights. 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3275 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Mark Carnero, Youth Development Specialist II and 

Jacqueline Zhang, Student Board Member 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3275 

 
Sex-Ed for All Month, May 2022 

 
Whereas Sex Ed For All Month is a nationwide observance that calls on people to take action to 
invest so as to ensure all young people have access to inclusive and honest sex education; 
 
Whereas young people face vast systemic inequities and structural barriers to ensuring their 
lifelong health; 
 
Whereas racial disparities persist in young people’s sexual health, highlighting ongoing social 
inequities in access to sex education as well as sexual health services; 
 
Whereas access to quality information and education about young people’s sexual health is a 
critical step toward addressing disparities caused by structural barriers; 
 
Whereas despite historic declines, the United States has the highest rate of unintended teen 
pregnancy among comparable countries and limited resources available for 
young parents; 
 
Whereas young people aged 15 through 25 contract half of the 19 million sexually transmitted 
infections each year, despite making up only a quarter of the sexually active 
population; 
 
Whereas young people under the age of 25 accounted for 1 in 5 new HIV transmissions; 
 
Whereas three-quarters of LGBT students report harassment, 56 percent report feeling unsafe, 
and nearly a third skipped at least one day of school in the month prior to reporting due to 
concerns for their safety; 
 
Whereas approximately 1 in 3 young women in the United States experiences physical, 
emotional, or verbal abuse from a dating partner; 
 
Whereas sex education that includes information beyond abstinence has been found to delay 
sexual intercourse, increase condom or contraceptive use, reduce the number of partners 
among young people, and decrease physical aggression with intimate partners; 
 
Whereas young people who received sex education are 50 percent less likely to experience an 
unintended pregnancy, 31 percent less likely to contract a sexually transmitted infection, and 
more likely to delay sexual activity and use contraception upon becoming sexually active; 
 



Whereas sex education provides information about the prevention, treatment, and care of 
pregnancy, sexually transmitted infections, and interpersonal violence; the importance of 
consent as a basis for healthy relationships and for autonomy in health care; sexual orientation, 
gender roles, and gender discrimination; the historical and current conditions in which 
education and health systems, policies, programs, services, and practices have uniquely 
adversely impacted Black, indigenous, Latinx, Asian, Asian American and Pacific Islander, and 
other people of color; 
 
Whereas sex education promotes gender equity, and is inclusive of young people with varying 
gender identities, gender expressions, and sexual orientations; safe and healthy relationships; 
and racial equity ensuring responsiveness to the needs of young people who are Black, 
indigenous, and other people of color; 
 
Whereas sex education promotes and upholds the rights of young people to information that 
empowers them to make decisions about their bodies, health, sexuality, families, and 
communities in all areas of life; and 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that the SCUSD Board of Education does hereby recognize May of 
each year is now recognized as Sex Ed For All Month and supports the important work and 
services provided by campus staff, managers, administrators, and teachers throughout the 
district and across the nation; 
 
Be it further resolved, commends implementation of sex education in schools and continued 
professional development for educators and administrative staff that work with young people;  
 
Resolved Further, discourages health education programs that withhold health-promoting or 
life-saving information about sexuality-related topics, including HIV; are medically inaccurate or 
incomplete; promote gender or racial stereotypes or are unresponsive to gender or racial 
inequities; fail to address the needs of sexually active young people, pregnant or parenting 
young people, survivors of interpersonal violence, or youth of all physical, developmental, or 
mental abilities; fail to be inclusive of individuals with varying gender identities, gender 
expressions, and sexual orientations; or are inconsistent with the ethical imperatives of 
medicine and public health; 
 
Further resolved, calls for all youth-serving professionals, educators, and decisionmakers who 
impact the lives of youth to take action to ensure access to inclusive and honest sex education 
for all young people. 
 
Finally resolved, SCUSD prioritizes sex education programs that are evidence-informed, 
comprehensive in scope, confidential, equitable, accessible, medically accurate and complete, 
age and developmentally appropriate, culturally responsive, trauma-informed, and resilience 
oriented. 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 19th day of May, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Christina Pritchett 
President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar 
Secretary of the Board of Education 
 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 8.3  

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Safety Update 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Office of Safe Schools 
 
Recommendation:  Move forward with the endorsement of Phase II. 
 
Background/Rationale:  This is an update on the status of “Re Imagine” school safety 
outcome from Board Resolution.  To provide a summary of next steps. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Sixteen positions have been approved. ESSER will fund 
one Safety Intervention and Response Coordinator and ten Lead Campus Supervisors 
with one-time monies. Five Safety Officers will be funded from the General funds that 
previously supported the Safety Resource Officers. Total annual cost will be 
approximately $1,497,818. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students, Family and 
Community Empowerment and Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  20 minutes 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
  Raymond Lozada, Director of Safe Schools 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1   

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Third Interim Financial Report, 2021-22 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the 2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to 
prepare Interim Financial Reports each year. The intent of these reports is to provide an 
“early warning” system to indicate whether a district can meet its current or future year 
financial obligations. This is the third of three interim financial reports presented to the 
Board of Education for the 2021-22 fiscal year. The report provides actual financial 
information as of April 30, 2022, projections for the remaining 2021-22 fiscal year and 
multi-year projections for 2022-23 and 2023-24 fiscal years. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The 2021-22 Third Interim report projects deficit spending 
in the current year, 2022-23 and 2023-24 but will meet the 2% Reserve for Economic 
Uncertainty. Additionally, projections show a positive but declining cash balance through 
2023-24.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; College, Career and Life Ready 
Graduates; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Executive Summary 
2.  2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report 
 
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 

Business Services                                1 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY 
 
Interim financial reports provide information on district’s financial condition for the fiscal year 
and two subsequent years.  The Governing Board of a school district certifies the district’s 
financial condition to the county office of education through these reports. The Third Interim 
Report reflects actual financial activity for the period of July 1st through April 30, 2022 and 
projects financial activity through June 30th, 2022.  The Third Interim Report contains 
summarized and detailed budget information, multi-year projections, and estimated cash flow 
reports. The State budget and budget guidelines provided by the California Department of 
Education, Department of Finance, county offices of education, School Services of California, 
and other professional organizations provide the guidance for districts to develop and modify 
their budgets. This is the third of the interim financial reports presented to the Governing Board 
for the 2021-22 fiscal year. 
 
II. Driving Governance 

 
• Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to prepare interim financial 

reports each fiscal year.  The requirement includes filing two interim financial reports.  
The First Interim Report, as of October 31st, requires Board approval by December 15th. 
The Second Interim Report, as of January 31st, requires Board approval by March 15th. 
If the District is in qualified or negative status, a third financial report is required as of 
April 30, and requires Board approval by June 1st. All reports required shall be in a 
format or on forms prescribed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
 

• Education Code section 42131 requires the Board of Education to certify, in writing, 
whether the district is able to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal 
year and, based on current projections, for the subsequent two fiscal years. Certifications 
shall be based on the Board’s assessment of the district budget.  The certifications provided 
with the first and second interim reports are classified as positive, qualified, or negative.  
A “positive” certification indicates that the district will meet its financial obligations for 
the current fiscal year as well as the two subsequent fiscal years. A “qualified” certification 
means that the district may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or 
two subsequent fiscal years. A “negative” certification means that the district is unable to 
meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or the future fiscal 
year.  This education code section also outlines the role of the County Office of Education. 

 
• The SCUSD Board of Trustees has revised Board Policy 3100 to establish and maintain a 

general reserve for economic uncertainty that meets or exceeds the requirements of CCR 
15443. The reserve for economic uncertainty for the District will be established at no less 
than 5% of total general fund expenditures. Under BP 3100 it is acknowledged that one-



 

Business Services                                2 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 time funding should be used for one-time expenditures and shall only be used for an on-

going expenditure as a last resort. As part of the approval of the annual budget, the Board 
shall consider any proposed use of one-time funding and shall take separate action to 
approve such uses 

III. Goals, Objectives and Measures 
 
Follow the timeline and take action on all necessary budget adjustments. It will be important to 
reduce the reliance on one-time funds used to balance the budget. 
 
IV. Major Initiatives 

 
• Use the Third Interim Financial Report information to guide budget development for FY 

2022-23 and 2023-24. 
• Continue to work with the Fiscal Advisor and staff to implement FCMAT’s 

recommendations. 
 

V. Results 
 
Budget development for 2022-23 will follow the calendar and timeline approved by the Board.  
Required Board actions will take place in a timely manner to ensure progress is made towards 
achieving a balanced Adopted Budget is in place on or before July 1, 2022. 
 
VI. Lessons Learned/Next Steps 
 

• Follow the approved calendar with adjustments made as necessary. 
• Continue to monitor the state budget and its impact on the district finances. 
• Continue to monitor the District and state fiscal health. 
• Continue to engage stakeholders in the budget development process through community 

budget meetings. 
• Meet and communicate with bargaining unit partners. 
• Ensure compliance with all LCFF and LCAP requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Business Services                                3 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Sacramento County Letter Regarding the 2021-22 Second Interim Report: 
 
On April 18, 2022, the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) issued a letter to the 
District in response to the 2021-22 Second Interim Report and the SCTA and SEIU tentative 
bargaining agreements, which were subsequently ratified at the April 21, 2022 District Board 
Meeting. SCOE’s letter noted that the following items will significantly impact the multi-year 
projections: 

• The cost of the agreements with SCTA and SEIU. 
• The fiscal penalties related to the eight days of school closures as a result of the strike by 

SCTA and SEIU.  
• The district’s updated enrollment projections which reflect a significant decline from 

38,198 students in 2021-2022 to 36,513 students in 2023-2024 
 
The agreements, penalties and enrollment decline result in a projected $16.1M structural deficit 
and an unrestricted general fund balance of $27.8M in 2023-24 which represents a decrease of 
$95.6M from the 2021-2022 Second Interim.  Therefore, SCOE changed the District’s Second 
Interim certification from Qualified to Negative.  
 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report 
 
School district budgets are not static, but instead are constantly revised to respond to decisions at 
the State and Federal levels, as well as to the expenditure needs of the district.  District staff 
closely monitor enrollment, average daily attendance, State and Federal revenue and other areas 
that could influence the budget in the current or outlying years.  
 
The Third Interim Financial Report includes assumptions and projections made with the best 
information available for the reporting period, and the documents attached are primarily State-
required reports but also include District documents that provide additional related financial 
details. Key information includes the budget assumptions, multi-year projections, and cash flow 
reports. 
 
Changes Since Second Interim Report: The primary changes for the 2021-22 Third Interim 
Report consist of the following: 
 
Revenues  

• A significant decline in 2021-22 LCFF funding due to a projected $47M fiscal penalty as 
a result of the 8 strike days and school closures.  

Expenditures 
• The district projects an increase of $42M in current year salaries and benefits costs as a 

result of bargaining unit agreements.   
 



 

Business Services                                4 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Pages 9 and 10 below provide additional detail and a side-by-side comparison of the 2021-22 Third 
Interim compared to the 2021-22 Second Interim Report. 
 
2021-22 Sacramento City Unified School District Primary Budget Components 
 
District CBEDS enrollment is 38,045.  P-2 Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is 32,462.52 or 
85.88% of enrollment, a significant decrease from the historical average of 94.5%. However due 
to the hold harmless provision the funded ADA for this year is based on the 2019-20 ADA and 
current year ADA for non-public and community day school programs totaling 38,242.76.  The 
District’s unduplicated pupil percentage (UPP) for supplemental and concentration funding has 
declined by 4% to 68% from the prior year 72%.  The UPP for supplemental and concentration 
funding is based on a three year rolling average and this decline reduces the average to 70.9% 
from 72.25%.   
 

 
General Fund Revenue Components 
 
The District receives funding for its general operations from various sources. A summary of the major 
funding sources is illustrated below: 
 

 

DESCRIPTION UNRESTRICTED
COMBINED 

AMOUNT
General Purpose (LCFF) Revenue $387,962,223 $390,202,597
Federal $156,000 $181,608,450
State Revenue $7,370,623 $91,713,050
Local Revenue $5,996,912 $8,839,772
TOTAL $401,485,758 $672,363,869



 

Business Services                                5 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
  

 
 

Education Protection Account 
 
As approved by the voters on November 6, 2012, The Schools and Local Public Safety Protection 
Act of 2012 (Proposition 30) temporarily increased the State’s sales tax rate and the personal 
income tax rates for taxpayers in high tax brackets.   
 
Proposition 30 provides that a portion of K-14 general purpose funds must be utilized for 
instructional purposes.  Revenues generated from Proposition 30 are deposited into an account 
called the Education Protection Account (EPA).  The District receives funds from the EPA based 
on its proportionate share of statewide general purpose funds.  A corresponding reduction is made 
to its state aid funds. 
Subsequently, on November 8, 2016, the voters approved the California Children’s Education and 
Health Care Protection Act (Proposition 55) that maintains increased personal income tax rates for 
taxpayers in high tax brackets through 2030.  Proposition 55 did not extend the sales tax increase; 
therefore, the temporary sales tax increase expired at the end of calendar year 2016. 
 
K-14 local agencies have the sole authority to determine how the funds received from the EPA are 
spent, but with these provisions:  
 

• The spending plan must be approved by the governing board during a public meeting 
• EPA funds cannot be used for the salaries or benefits of administrators or any other 

administrative costs (as determined through the account code structure) 



 

Business Services                                6 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 • Each year, the local agency must publish on its website an accounting of how much money 

was received from the EPA and how the funds were expended 
 
Further, the annual financial audit includes verification that the EPA funds were used as specified 
by Proposition 30.  If EPA funds are not expended in accordance with the requirements of 
Proposition 30, civil or criminal penalties could be incurred. 
 
Illustrated below is how the District’s EPA funds are appropriated for 2021-22.  The amounts will 
be revised throughout the year based on information received from the State. 
 

Education Protection Account (EPA)  
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

    
Estimated EPA Revenues:   
     Estimated EPA Funds  $98,717,169 
    
Budgeted EPA Expenditures:   
     Certificated Instructional Salaries  $98,717,169  
    
Balance  $               -    

 
General Fund Operating Expenditure Components 
 
The General Fund is used for the majority of the functions within the District.  As illustrated 
below, salaries and benefits comprise approximately 91% of the District’s unrestricted budget, 
and approximately 71% of the total General Fund budget. 
 

 
 
 

DESCRIPTION UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED COMBINED

Certificated Salaries 171,937,340 80,117,806 $252,055,146
Classified Salaries 52,273,178 28,692,170 $80,965,348
Benefits 120,485,944 76,314,835 $196,800,779
Books and Supplies 11,568,398 61,044,538 $72,612,935
Other Services & Oper. 22,771,581 109,872,005 $132,643,586
Capital Outlay 537,591 14,519,103 $15,056,694
Other Outgo/Transfer 1,605,155 0 $1,605,155
Transfers Out (1,783,175) 0 (1,783,175)

TOTAL 379,396,011 370,560,457 $749,956,468



 

Business Services                                7 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Graphical representation of unrestricted general fund expenditures by percentage: 
 

 
 
Graphical representation of total general fund expenditures by percentage: 
 

 



 

Business Services                                8 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 General Fund Contributions to Restricted Programs 
 
The following contributions of unrestricted resources to restricted programs are necessary to 
cover restricted program expenditures in excess of revenue: 
 

 
 
Transfers to Other Programs and Other Funds: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Program 2021-22 Adopted Budget 2021-22 Second Interim 
Budget

2021-22 Third Interim 
Budget

Special Education $81,112,763 $77,863,460 $75,243,656
Routine Restricted Maintenance Account $17,081,000 $17,081,000 $17,081,000

Total $98,193,763 $94,944,460 $92,324,656

Charter School 2021-22 Adopted Budget 2021-22 Second Interim 
Budget

2021-22 Third Interim 
Budget

George Washington Carver $266,000 $266,000 $266,000
Projected Contribution for Negotiations $0 $0 $165,000
Totals $266,000 $266,000 $431,000

Other Funds 2021-22 Adopted Budget 2021-22 Second Interim 
Budget

2021-22 Third Interim 
Budget

Adult Ed -                                    -                                    $49,139
Child Development -                                    -                                    $28,440
Totals -                                   -                                   $77,579



 

Business Services                                9 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Comparison of the 2021-22 Second Interim to the Third Interim Report: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined
   Revenue
General Purpose 434,484,520      2,240,374       436,724,894   387,962,223   2,240,374        390,202,597   (46,522,297)    -                  (46,522,297)   1
Federal Revenue 156,000             181,210,094   181,366,094   156,000          181,452,450    181,608,450   -                  242,356           242,356         2
State Revenue 7,370,623          83,087,731     90,458,354     7,370,623       84,342,427      91,713,050     -                  1,254,696        1,254,696      3
Local Revenue 5,943,214          2,812,860       8,756,074       5,996,912       2,842,860        8,839,772       53,698            30,000             83,698           4
Total Revenue   447,954,357      269,351,059   717,305,416   401,485,758   270,878,111    672,363,869   (46,468,599)    1,527,052        (44,941,547)   

   Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 163,470,967.29 68,244,978     231,715,945   171,937,340   80,117,806      252,055,146   8,466,372       11,872,828      20,339,200    5
Classified Salaries 36,265,770.52   30,125,734     66,391,505     52,273,178     28,692,170      80,965,348     16,007,407     (1,433,564)      14,573,844    6
Benefits 113,246,587.77 76,338,642     189,585,230   120,485,944   76,314,835      196,800,779   7,239,356       (23,807)           7,215,549      7
Books and Supplies 11,365,824.40   67,283,546     78,649,370     11,568,398     61,044,538      72,612,935     202,574          (6,239,008)      (6,036,435)     8
Other Services & Oper. Expenses 22,461,336.69   112,406,822   134,868,159   22,771,581     109,872,005    132,643,586   310,244          (2,534,817)      (2,224,573)     9
Capital Outlay 374,340.40        13,473,853     13,848,193     537,591          14,519,103      15,056,694     163,251          1,045,250        1,208,501      10
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,150,000.00     -                  1,150,000       1,605,155       -                   1,605,155       455,155          -                  455,155         11
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (10,544,448.56)  9,388,310       (1,156,139)      (10,716,679)    9,342,533        (1,374,146)      (172,231)         (45,777)           (218,008)        12
Total Expenditures   337,790,379      377,261,885   715,052,264   370,462,507   379,902,990    750,365,497   32,672,129     2,641,105        35,313,234    

Deficit/Surplus   110,163,978      (107,910,826)  2,253,152       31,023,250     (109,024,879)   (78,001,628)    (79,140,728)    (1,114,052.91) (80,254,781)   

Other Sources/(uses) -                     -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                 
Transfers in/(out) 2,025,754          -                  2,025,754       1,783,175       -                   1,783,175       (242,579)         -                  (242,579)        13
Contributions to Restricted (92,324,656)       92,324,656     -                  (92,324,656)    92,324,656      -                  -                  -                  -                 

Net increase (decrease) in Fund 
Balance   19,865,076        (15,586,170)    4,278,906       (59,518,231)    (16,700,223)     (76,218,453)    (79,383,307)    (1,114,053)      (80,497,360)   

Beginning Balance   103,708,114      22,198,603     125,906,717   103,708,114   22,198,603      125,906,717   -                  -                  -                 

Ending Balance   123,573,191      6,612,433       130,185,624   44,189,884     5,498,380.44   49,688,264     (79,383,307)    (1,114,053)      (80,497,360)   

Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 329,082             329,082          328,869          328,869          (213)                -                  (213)               

Reserve for Econ Uncertainty (2%)
14,273,929        14,273,929     14,971,646     14,971,646     697,717          -                  697,717         

Restricted Programs -                     6,907,233       6,907,233       -                  5,498,380        5,498,380       -                  (1,408,853)      (1,408,853)     
-                  -                  

-                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                 
Other Assignments -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                 
Unappropriated Fund Balance 108,970,180      (294,800)         108,675,380   28,889,368     -                   28,889,368     (80,080,812)    294,800           (79,786,012)   

Unappropriated Percent 0                     0                     (0)                  

N
ot

e

2021-22
 Changes since 2021-22 Second Interim 

Budget 
Third Interim BudgetSecond Interim Budget

2021-22



 

Business Services                                10 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Notes: Explanation of Changes 
1. The change in LCFF is due to using updated ADA from the P2 report for non-public schools 
and community day school which are paid on current year with no hold harmless and offset by 
the projected $47M penalty for 8 strike days 
2. The increase in restricted federal revenues is due to budgeting additional carryover of $242K 
for after school programs (Title IV) 
3. The increase in restricted state revenues is due to budgeting carryover $1.16M for state funded 
after school programs and $91K for CTE programs.. 
4. The increase of $54K in unrestricted local revenues is for donations and the restricted local 
revenues increase of $30k is related to grant carryover. 
5. The increase of $8.5M in unrestricted certificated salaries is due to the settlement of 
negotiations with SCTA and is offset by $310k in budget adjustments for vacancies, substitute 
and extra duty budgets. Restricted certificated salaries increased $11.9M due to the settlement of 
negotiations with SCTA and also increased by $2.5M for other budget adjustments made 
primarily for special education programs. 
6. The increase of $16M in unrestricted classified salaries is due to settlement of negotiations 
with SEIU of $15.5M and budget adjustments of $490k for substitue and extra duty budgets.  
Restricted classified salaries decreased overall by $1.4M due to budget adjustmetns of $1.6M in 
restricted programs offset by $142k due to settlement of negotiations with SEIU. 
7. Unrestricted benefits decreased for budget adjustments made for pension costs for $335k, 
health/welfare benefits of $833k and OPEB of $1.3M, restricted benefits decreased by $1.1M  
due to budget adjustments made in special education programs related to pension costs, 
health/welfare and OPEB costs. 
8.Unrestricted books & supplies increased due to budget adjustments made for computer 
equipment by $202k,  restricted books & supplies decreased by $6.2M due to projected budget 
adjustments needed to cover the SCTA and SEIU settlement agreements for $6M and additional 
$200k in budget adjustments across other restricted programs. 
9. Unrestricted contracted services & other operating expenses increased for budget adjustments 
of $310K primarily for contracted services.  Restricted contracted services decreased by $2.5M 
due to projected budget adjustments of $6M needed to cover the SCTA and SEIU settlement 
agreements and offset by an increase of $3.5M of budget adjustments made primarily within the 
special education program of $1.1M and and $2.7M in IPI funds the remaining difference of 
$300k is due to other adjustments made across other restricted programs. 
10. Unrestricted capital outlay primarily increased due to budget adjustments made for capital 
improvements, restricted capital outlay increased due budget adjustments made in the Routine, 
Repair & Maintenance programs for capital improvements for $1M. 
11. Other outgo increased due to increased excess costs related to County administered programs.  
12. Indirect charges increased due to the adjustments made for increased restricted revenues 
budgeted afer the second interim report. 
13. The increase in Transfers Out is due to the projected contributions needed by other programs 
to cover the settlement negotiations with SCTA and SEIU. 



 

Business Services                                11 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 General Fund Summary: 
 
The District’s 2021-22 General Fund projects a total operating deficit of $76M resulting in an 
estimated ending fund balance of $49.6M. The below table illustrates the components of ending 
fund balance.  
 

2021-22 Third Interim Fund Balance Component Summary 
 

 
 

The Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) recommends a prudent reserve of 17%, 
representing two months’ average payroll – for the District two months’ average payroll is 
approximately $82M.  The District’s reserves above the statutory reserves for economic 
uncertainty are projected below the GFOA recommendations. 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined

NONSPENDABLE
  Revolving Cash/Prepaids $328,869 $328,869

TOTAL - NONSPENDABLE $328,869 $0 $328,869

RESTRICTED
  Restricted Categorical Balances $5,498,380 $5,498,380
TOTAL - RESTRICTED $0 $5,498,380 $5,498,380

ASSIGNED
  2022-23 Projected Deficit $1,881,433 $1,881,433
  2023-24 Projected Deficit $14,752,914 $14,752,914

Unrestricted Site Programs $383,845 $383,845
MAA $1,121,885 $1,121,885
Unsettled Negotiations $9,349,809 $9,349,809

TOTAL - ASSIGNED $27,489,886 $0 $27,489,886

UNASSIGNED
  Economic Uncertainty (REU-2%) $14,971,646 $14,971,646
  Board Economic Uncertainty (REU-3%) $0 $0
  Amount Above REU $1,399,482 $1,399,482

TOTAL - UNASSIGNED $16,371,128 $0 $16,371,128

TOTAL - FUND BALANCE $44,189,884 $5,498,380 $49,688,264

2021-22 Third Interim Budget
Description



 

Business Services                                12 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Multi-Year Revenue and Expenditure Projections 
 
As a reminder, the Governor’s 2022-23 January Budget Proposal includes $1.2 billion to amend 
the LCFF calculation beginning with 2022-23, which will allow districts to be funded based on 
the greater of current year average daily attendance (ADA), prior year ADA, or the average of 
three prior years’ ADA. Currently, the budget does not propose providing the declining ADA 
formula adjustment for charter schools or county offices of education. 
 
Unrestricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections 
 

 
 

 
 
Restricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections 
 

 
 

General Purpose 

 Slight increase in LCFF COLA to 6.56%, up from 5.33% offset by a decrease 
in funded ADA of 571, down to 36,420 from 36,991. Funded ADA projection 
reflects the use of the 3 year average proposal using actual 2019-20, actual 
2020-21 and 2021-22 projected ADA. 

Federal, State & 
Local

Federal, State and Local revenue projected to remain constant

Contributions Increase by approximately $4.6M for increased Special Education expenditures 

2022-23 Unrestricted Revenue Projections

General Purpose 
 LCFF COLA 3.61% with a funded ADA of  35,227, down from 35,771. 
Funded ADA projection reflects the use of the 3 year average proposal using 
actual 2020-21, projected 2021-22 and projected 2022-23 ADA.

Federal, State & 
Local

Federal, State and Local revenue projected to remain constant

Contributions Increase by approximately $6.6M for increased Special Education expenditures 

2023-24 Unrestricted Revenue Projections

Category Description Adjustment

Federal Revenue
Decreased to remove Title I, II, II, IV and other federal programs carryover of 
$10.7M and remove one-time ESSER, ESSER II, GEER I, ELO-G funds of $77.6M ($88.5M)

State Revenue
Decrease to remove state programs carryover of $6.9M, $3.7M for Learning Recovery 
funds and $4.8M to remove one-time ELO-G and IPI funds, offset by $4.2M for 
increased AB602 special education funding

($12.5M)

Local Revenue Reduced by $2.6M to remove local grant sources ($2.6M)

2022-23 Restricted Revenue Projections



 

Business Services                                13 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
Unrestricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Category Description Adjustment
Federal Revenue Increase due to budgeting remaining ESSER III Funds $641K
State Projected to remain constant -             
Local Projected to remain constant -             

2023-24 Restricted Revenue Projections

Category Description Adjustment

Certificated Salaries

Net decrease includes adjustments for step and column increases of $2.4M, adding back savings from 2021-22 for 
$3.47M, Fiscal Recovery plan reductions of $103K and projected $6.4M savings from reductions due to 
enrollment decline from the 2021-22 Adopted Budget projections of 39,703 to the 22-23 enrollment projections 
of 36,543 a loss of 3,160 students. Also includes removal of $8.8M in one-time stipend costs, and adding back 
strike savings of $5.9M, and addition of 1 PD day

($2.5M)

Classified Salaries
Classified salaries net decrease after adjusting for step and column increase of $365K, removal of $15.3M in one 
time stipend costs offset by adding back $935K in strike savings, offset by Fiscal Recovery plan reductions of 
$51k and classified reductions of $366K, and adding longevity increase cost and 1x stipend

($14.3M)

Benefits STRS & PERS increases of $4.8M, adding back 2021-22 one-time benefit savings of $4.2M, an 8% increase for 
health benefits for $4.3M offset by the salary adjustments mentioned above.

$5.2M

Book & Supplies
Net decrease for the Fiscal Recovery plan reduction of $5.0M offset by add back of one-time 2021-22 savings of 
$1.4M and $189K LCAP adjustment ($3.4M)

Services Increase due to adding back 2021-22  savings of $2.6M and budgeting for increased LCAP supplemental and 
concentration funds of $190K

$2.8M

Capital Outlay Reduced by $465K from 2021-22 one-time expenses ($465K)
Indirect 
Costs/Other Outgo

Adjusted per program adjustments described above. ($4.1M)

2022-23 Unrestricted Expenditure Projections

Category Description Adjustment

Certificated Salaries Net increase due to step and column of $2.37M offset by FTE adjustments for enrollment decline at $500K and 
removal of 3 PD days of $3.1M

($1.2M)

Classified Salaries Adjusted by $265K for step and column offset by removal of 1x SEIU stipend $205K

Benefits Increase reflects the salary changes above, applicable rates for PERS & STRS, Unemployment Insurance and 8% 
increase for health benefits

$3.6M

Book & Supplies
Net increase for the add back of $5M related to the Fiscal Recover Plan reductions and offset by LCAP 
supplemental concentration adjustment of $650K $4.4M

Services Decrease due to LCAP supplemental concentration adjustments ($650K)
Capital Outlay Remains constant -
Indirect Costs Remains constant -

2023-24 Unrestricted Expenditure Projections



 

Business Services                                14 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Restricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Category Description Adjustment

Certificated Salaries
Net decrease due to salary adjustments including removing one-time COVID funding sources of $13.57M, 
removal of one time COVID funded stipends of $9.37M, removal of $1.1M Learning Recovery funds, adjustments 
in special education staffing offset by step and column costs, and adding back $2.46M in strike savings

($18.5M)

Classified Salaries
Net decrease due to removing one-time COVID funding sources of $4.7M, 336K Learning Recovery funds and 
$273K local resources, adding back $777K strike savings and adding $178K longevity increase, adding back 
special education staffing costs offset by step costs of $126K.

($3.3M)

Benefits
Net decrease includes increase due to above salary adjustments, Special Ed adjustments related to increased 
staffing offset by the removal of one time COVID funding of $7.3M and COVID funded stipends of $2M, 539K 
Learning Recovery funds and removal of  $171K in local resources.

($5.6M)

Book & Supplies
Decreased to remove one-time expenditures including COVID relief of $23M, carryover of $8.5M (Title I, Title 
IV, CTEIG, etc.), adding back adjustment related to COVID stipends, $556K for Learning Recovery funds and 
local resources carryover of $1.1M 

($29.9M)

Services
Reduced to remove one-time expenditures including one-time COVID funding of $41.2M, $1M for Learning 
Recovery funds, adjustment related to COVID stipends, removal of Federal and State carryover of $8.5M, 
$900K in local resources and offset by additional special education services.

($46.4M)

Capital Outlay Reduced by $6.5M to remove one-time COVID expenditures and one time RMA capital outlay ($6.5M)
Indirect Costs Projected decrease due to program adjustments ($2.8M)
Budget Reduction Adjustments of $2.65M required for self-sustaining programs due to statutory and health care benefits increases ($2.65M)

2022-23 Restricted Expenditure Projections

Category Description Adjustment
Certificated Salaries Increase includes step and column costs of $344K and additional special education staffing of $2.2M $2.57M
Classified Salaries Adjusted for step and column costs of $112K and additional special education staffing of $606K $718K

Benefits Adjustments reflect effects of salary changes noted above, applicable rates for PERS & STRS, Unemployment 
Insurance and the increase for health benefits

$2.56M

Book & Supplies Increased for budgeting remaining ESSER III funds and $25K increase in special education costs $361K
Services Adjusted to budget remaining ESSER III funds and $1.9M for additional special education services $2.23M
Capital Outlay Remains constant -
Indirect Costs Remains constant -
Budget Reduction Adjustments of $3.7M required for self-sustaining programs due to statutory and health care benefits increases ($3.85M)

2023-24 Restricted Expenditure Projections



 

Business Services                                15 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Estimated Ending Fund Balances 
 
The District estimates that the General Fund will have projected deficits of ($76.2M) in 2021-22, 
($1.88M) in 2022-23 and ($14.75M) in 2023-24, resulting in an unrestricted ending fund balance 
of $27.5M in 2023-24. The below table is a combined summary of the multi-year projections as 
of the Third Interim report.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description
2021-22 Third 
Interim Budget

Projected         
2022-23

Projected         
2023-24

Total Revenues 672,363,869 621,404,490 622,137,994
Total Expenditures 750,365,497 625,069,098 638,674,082
Excess/(Deficiency) (78,001,628) (3,664,608) (16,536,089)
Other Sources/Uses 1,783,175 1,783,175 1,783,175
Net Increase/(Decrease) (76,218,453) (1,881,433) (14,752,914)
Add: Beginning Fund Balance 125,906,717 49,688,264 47,806,831
Ending Fund Balance 49,688,264 47,806,831 33,053,917



 

Business Services                                16 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 2021-22 Third Interim Multi-Year Projections 

 

 
 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined
   Revenue
General Purpose 387,962,223  2,240,374 390,202,597 440,697,336 2,240,374 442,937,710 440,759,756    2,240,374      443,000,130    
Federal Revenue 156,000 181,452,450 181,608,450 156,000        92,877,889 93,033,889 156,000           93,548,973    93,704,973      
State Revenue 7,370,623 84,342,427 91,713,050 7,370,623     71,845,608 79,216,231 7,370,623        71,845,608    79,216,231      
Local Revenue 5,996,912 2,842,860 8,839,772 5,996,912     219,748 6,216,660 5,996,912        219,748         6,216,660        
Total Revenue   401,485,758 270,878,111 672,363,869 454,220,871 167,183,619 621,404,490 454,283,291 167,854,703 622,137,994

   Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 171,937,340 80,117,806 252,055,146 169,383,456 61,558,233 230,941,689 168,144,139 64,131,959 232,276,098
Classified Salaries 52,273,178 28,692,170 80,965,348 37,973,326 25,405,409 63,378,735 38,178,344 26,123,447 64,301,791
Benefits 120,485,944 76,314,835 196,800,779 125,702,295 70,649,836 196,352,131 129,338,165 73,210,384 202,548,549
Books and Supplies 11,568,398 61,044,538 72,612,935 8,137,338 31,131,981 39,269,319 12,541,003 31,492,523 44,033,527
Other Services & Oper. 
Expenses

22,771,581 109,872,005 132,643,586 25,612,244 63,447,569 89,059,813 24,961,910 65,685,111 90,647,021

Capital Outlay 537,591 14,519,103 15,056,694 72,200 8,017,135 8,089,336 72,200 8,017,135 8,089,336
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,605,155 0 1,605,155 1,150,000 0 1,150,000 1,150,000 0 1,150,000
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (10,716,679) 9,342,533 (1,374,146) (7,067,841) 6,547,348 (520,493) (7,067,841) 6,547,348 (520,493)
Budget Reductions 0 0 0 0 (2,651,432) (2,651,432) 0 (3,851,745) (3,851,745)
Total Expenditures   370,462,507 379,902,990 750,365,497 360,963,019 264,106,079 625,069,098 367,317,921 271,356,162 638,674,082

Deficit/Surplus   31,023,250 (109,024,879) (78,001,628) 93,257,852 (96,922,460) (3,664,608) 86,965,370 (103,501,459) (16,536,089)
Transfers in/(out) 1,783,175 0 1,783,175 1,783,175 0 1,783,175 1,783,175 0 1,783,175

0
Contributions to Restricted (92,324,656) 92,324,656 0 (96,922,460) 96,922,460 0 (103,501,459) 103,501,459 0
Net increase (decrease) in 
Fund Balance   

(59,518,231) (16,700,223) (76,218,453) (1,881,433) (0) (1,881,433) (14,752,914) 0 (14,752,914)

Beginning Balance   103,708,114 22,198,603 125,906,717 44,189,884 5,498,380 49,688,264 42,308,451      5,498,380      47,806,831      

Ending Balance   44,189,884 5,498,380 49,688,264 42,308,451 5,498,380 47,806,831 27,555,537      5,498,380      33,053,917      
Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 328,869 328,869 328,869 328,869 328,869           328,869           
Reserve for Econ 
Uncertainty (2%)

14,971,646 14,971,646 12,465,718 12,465,718 12,737,818      12,737,818      

Board Reserve for Econ 
Uncertainty (additional 
3%)

0 0 0 0 -                  -                   

Restricted Programs 0 5,498,380 5,498,380 0 5,498,380 5,498,380 -                  5,498,380      5,498,380        
Other Assignments 27,489,886 27,489,886 53,656,345 53,656,345 49,548,219      49,548,219      
Unappropriated Fund 
Balance

1,399,482 0 1,399,482 (24,142,482) 0 (24,142,482) (35,059,370)    -                 (35,059,370)     

Unappropriated Percent 0.2% -3.9% -5.5%

Description
Third Interim Budget

2021-22 2022-23
Projection
2023-24

Projection



 

Business Services                                17 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Cash Flow 
 
The 2021-22 Third Interim report and multi-year projections show the District having a positive 
cash balance through June 2024. However, cash balances experienced a substantial decline since 
the Second Interim report related to bargaining agreements and fiscal penalties and the District 
projects very low cash balances in the 2023-24 year. Cash flow will have to be closely monitored 
in order to ensure the District has sufficient cash reserves to satisfy its obligations. 
 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
The District is projecting to satisfy the 2% required reserve for economic uncertainties but will 
not satisfy the additional reserve of 3% to align to Board Policy 3100 minimum reserve of 5%.  
In addition, the unrestricted General Fund balance projects deficits of ($59.5M) in 21-22, 
($1.88M) in 22-23 and ($14.7M) in 23-24 and positive but declining cash flow through the 2023-
24 year.  
 
However, the District is still facing declining enrollment and has unsettled negotiations for some 
bargaining units over multiple fiscal years. These fiscal issues must be resolved in order for the 
District to achieve a balanced budget. 
 
Risks: 
 
Uncertainty regarding on-going State funding for K12 Districts, additional unfunded COVID-19 
related expenses such as health benefits, unemployment insurance and a significant decline in 
enrollment. 
 



 

Business Services                                18 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report   
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 Opportunities:  
 
Improved State Budget and funding for K12 Districts, increased enrollment and a Fiscal 
Recovery Plan sufficient to achieve a balanced budget.   
 
Continuation of County Oversight 
 
County superintendents are required by statute to continually monitor districts for fiscal distress. 
If the district has a negative certification, a disapproved budget, or the county superintendent 
determines that the district may be unable to meet its financial obligations, the county 
superintendent can: 

• Stay or rescind any action that is determined to be inconsistent with the ability of the 
district to meet its obligations for the current or subsequent fiscal year, and 

• Assist in developing a budget for the subsequent fiscal year. 
 
The District’s budget has been disapproved for three years (2018-2019, 2019-2020 and 2020-
2021) by the Sacramento County Office of Education.   
 
The Sacramento County superintendent continues to work with the district until the budget for 
the subsequent year is approved and may stay or rescind any actions up to that point. The county 
superintendent can only approve the budget if it is consistent with a financial plan that will 
enable the district to satisfy its multiyear financial commitments and resolves problems identified 
in the evaluations and audits, which determined that the school district is in fiscal distress. 
 
SCOE must continue its current level of oversight and support of the district through the end of 
this fiscal year and into the next until the district determines all its potential expenditures going 
forward and adopts a budget that eliminates its structural deficit and allows it to meet its 
multiyear financial commitments. 



                                                                                   

 
 
 
 

2021-2022 
Third Interim Financial Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Guiding Principle 
 

All students graduate with the greatest number  
of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options. 

 
 

Board of Education 
May 19, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Education 
 

Christina Pritchett, President, Area 3 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President, Area 2 

Chinua Rhodes, 2nd Vice President, Area 5 
Lisa Murawski, Area 1 

Jamee Villa, Area 4 
Darrel Woo, Area 6 

Lavinia Grace Phillips, Area 7 
Jacqueline Zhang, Student Board Member 

 
 

Cabinet 
 

Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D., Superintendent 
Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 

Vacant, Chief Communications Officer 
Vacant, Chief Continuous Improvement and Accountability Officer 

Bob Lyons, Chief Information Officer 
Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resource Officer 

Rose F. Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MULTIYEAR PROJECTIONS............................................................................................................. 1 

GENERAL FUND 
GENERAL FUND DEFINITION..............................................................................................................   2 
GENERAL FUND - BUDGET SUMMARY................................................................................................................3 

CASH FLOW WORKSHEET................................................................................................................4 



Sacramento City Unified School District
 2021‐22 Third Interim Budget and Multi‐Year Projection

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined
   Revenue
General Purpose 387,962,223   2,240,374 390,202,597 440,697,336  2,240,374 442,937,710 440,759,756     2,240,374       443,000,130      
Federal Revenue 156,000 181,452,450 181,608,450 156,000         92,877,889 93,033,889 156,000            93,548,973     93,704,973        
State Revenue 7,370,623 84,342,427 91,713,050 7,370,623      71,845,608 79,216,231 7,370,623         71,845,608     79,216,231        
Local Revenue 5,996,912 2,842,860 8,839,772 5,996,912      219,748 6,216,660 5,996,912         219,748          6,216,660          
Total Revenue   401,485,758 270,878,111 672,363,869 454,220,871 167,183,619 621,404,490 454,283,291 167,854,703 622,137,994

   Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 171,937,340 80,117,806 252,055,146 169,383,456 61,558,233 230,941,689 168,144,139 64,131,959 232,276,098
Classified Salaries 52,273,178 28,692,170 80,965,348 37,973,326 25,405,409 63,378,735 38,178,344 26,123,447 64,301,791
Benefits 120,485,944 76,314,835 196,800,779 125,702,295 70,649,836 196,352,131 129,338,165 73,210,384 202,548,549
Books and Supplies 11,568,398 61,044,538 72,612,935 8,137,338 31,131,981 39,269,319 12,541,003 31,492,523 44,033,527
Other Services & Oper. 
Expenses 22,771,581 109,872,005 132,643,586 25,612,244 63,447,569 89,059,813 24,961,910 65,685,111 90,647,021

Capital Outlay 537,591 14,519,103 15,056,694 72,200 8,017,135 8,089,336 72,200 8,017,135 8,089,336
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,605,155 0 1,605,155 1,150,000 0 1,150,000 1,150,000 0 1,150,000
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (10,716,679) 9,342,533 (1,374,146) (7,067,841) 6,547,348 (520,493) (7,067,841) 6,547,348 (520,493)
Budget Reductions 0 0 0 0 (2,651,432) (2,651,432) 0 (3,851,745) (3,851,745)
Total Expenditures   370,462,507 379,902,990 750,365,497 360,963,019 264,106,079 625,069,098 367,317,921 271,356,162 638,674,082

Deficit/Surplus   31,023,250 (109,024,879) (78,001,628) 93,257,852 (96,922,460) (3,664,608) 86,965,370 (103,501,459) (16,536,089)
Transfers in/(out) 1,783,175 0 1,783,175 1,783,175 0 1,783,175 1,783,175 0 1,783,175

0
Contributions to Restricted (92,324,656) 92,324,656 0 (96,922,460) 96,922,460 0 (103,501,459) 103,501,459 0
Net increase (decrease) in 
Fund Balance   (59,518,231) (16,700,223) (76,218,453) (1,881,433) (0) (1,881,433) (14,752,914) 0 (14,752,914)

Beginning Balance   103,708,114 22,198,603 125,906,717 44,189,884 5,498,380 49,688,264 42,308,451       5,498,380       47,806,831        

Ending Balance   44,189,884 5,498,380 49,688,264 42,308,451 5,498,380 47,806,831 27,555,537       5,498,380       33,053,917        
Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 328,869 328,869 328,869 328,869 328,869            328,869             
Reserve for Econ 
Uncertainty (2%) 14,971,646 14,971,646 12,465,718 12,465,718 12,737,818       12,737,818        

Board Reserve for Econ 
Uncertainty (additional 
3%)

0 0 0 0 - - 

Restricted Programs 0 5,498,380 5,498,380 0 5,498,380 5,498,380 - 5,498,380 5,498,380          
Other Assignments 27,489,886 27,489,886 53,656,345 53,656,345 49,548,219       49,548,219        
Unappropriated Fund 
Balance 1,399,482 0 1,399,482 (24,142,482) 0 (24,142,482) (35,059,370)     - (35,059,370) 

Unappropriated Percent 0.2% -3.9% -5.5%

Description
Third Interim Budget

2021-22 2022-23
Projection

2023-24
Projection

5/13/2022Page 1



 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 

 
General Fund Definition  
 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all revenues and 
expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds.  All general tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this 
fund.  General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other 
funds are paid from the General Fund.  The General Fund also contains categorical programs such as  
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), Title I, After School Education and Safety (ASES), and others. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUES

General Purpose (LCFF) Revenues:
  State Aid & EPA 283,395,030  2,240,374        285,635,404  
  Property Taxes & Misc. Local 104,567,193  - 104,567,193
Total General Purpose 387,962,223  2,240,374        390,202,597  
Federal Revenues 156,000 181,452,450    181,608,450  
Other State Revenues 7,370,623      84,342,427      91,713,050    
Other Local Revenues 5,996,912      2,842,860        8,839,772      

TOTAL - REVENUES 401,485,758  270,878,111    672,363,869  

EXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries 171,937,340  80,117,806      252,055,146  
Classified Salaries 52,273,178    28,692,170      80,965,348    
Employee Benefits (All) 120,485,944  76,314,835      196,800,779  
Books & Supplies 11,568,398    61,044,538      72,612,935    
Other Operating Expenses (Services) 22,771,581    109,872,005    132,643,586  
Capital Outlay 537,591 14,519,103      15,056,694    
Other Outgo 1,605,155      - 1,605,155 
Direct Support/Indirect Costs (10,716,679)   9,342,533        (1,374,146) 

TOTAL - EXPENDITURES 370,462,507  379,902,990    750,365,497  

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 31,023,250    (109,024,879)  (78,001,628)   

OTHER SOURCES/USES

Transfers In 2,291,754      - 2,291,754 
Transfers (Out) (508,579)        - (508,579) 
Net Other Sources (Uses) - -
Contributions (to Restricted Programs) (92,324,656)   92,324,656      - 

TOTAL - OTHER SOURCES/USES (90,541,481)   92,324,656      1,783,175      

(59,518,231)   (16,700,223)    (76,218,453)   

FUND BALANCE

Beginning Fund Balance 103,708,114  22,198,603      125,906,717  

Ending Balance, June 30 44,189,884    5,498,380        49,688,264    

Revolving Cash/Stores 328,869 - 328,869 
Restricted 5,498,380        5,498,380 
Assigned 27,489,886    27,489,886 
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 16,371,128    - 16,371,128 

FUND BALANCE INCREASE (DECREASE)

Sacramento City Unified School District
2021-22 Third Interim Budget

General Fund

General Fund

Description

5/13/2022
Page 3



2021‐22 Object
 2021‐22 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2021   August 2021   September 2021   October 2021   November 2021   December 2021   January 2022   February 2022   March 2022   April 2022   May 2022   June 2022 

 Accrual
Projected 

Adjustments
 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 112,074,750            112,074,750             94,563,595               123,575,159             149,839,025             126,661,176             111,636,148             144,312,483             183,061,356             159,486,402             161,314,951             191,224,690             151,707,248             ‐$                       ‐$                        
B. RECEIPTS
     LCFF Revenue Sources
        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 4,471,954                 21,451,758               45,878,299               22,147,205               22,114,593               45,878,298               22,133,675               19,242,155               42,012,524               19,242,155               19,027,557               46,329,612               (47,008,294)          ‐                         282,921,491$      282,921,491$         
        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             529,432                     62,773,620               1,171,725                 7,657,809                 41,167,107               14,023,954               (6,676,393)                ‐                         ‐                         120,647,254$      120,647,254$         
        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 ‐                             ‐                             (2,553,380)                (1,042,280)                (785,406)                   (2,356,218)                9,207                         ‐                             (1,636)                       15,405                       266,574                     (2,121,847)                (4,796,567)            ‐                         (13,366,148)$       (13,366,148)$         
     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 4,844,640                 12,233,497               2,458,155                 (1,434,304)                2,045,423                 19,376,868               3,802,935                 949,043                     651,303                     16,904,138               21,677,144               65,163,421               32,936,187            ‐                         181,608,450$      181,608,450$         
     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 10,910,981               4,288,409                 9,643,866                 (3,807,631)                8,388,031                 22,268,761               4,716,858                 4,170,443                 6,803,567                 3,796,766                 (1,925,594)                (2,091,445)                2,338,314              22,211,723           91,713,050$          91,713,050$           
     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 1,774,757                 52,556                       338,141                     60,156                       294,141                     267,970                     763,664                     267,090                     507,043                     593,508                     221,409                     376,406                     3,322,931              ‐                         8,839,772$            8,839,772$             
     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             785,446                     785,446                     720,862                 ‐                         2,291,754$            2,291,754$             
     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
TOTAL RECEIPTS 22,002,332               38,026,221               55,765,081               15,923,146               32,056,781               85,965,112               94,199,960               25,800,457               57,630,610               81,719,078               54,076,490               101,765,199             (12,486,567)          22,211,723           674,655,623        674,655,623           
C. DISBURSEMENTS
     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,595,556                 5,616,467                 20,210,250               20,388,469               20,916,713               21,085,420               20,723,964               20,870,698               21,616,064               21,221,477               35,946,612               36,343,711               5,519,745              ‐$                       252,055,146$      252,055,146$         
     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,645,690                 3,975,343                 5,052,382                 5,270,103                 5,095,463                 5,460,292                 5,391,777                 5,247,397                 7,196,264                 5,260,579                 14,287,549               13,414,213               2,668,298              ‐$                       80,965,348$          80,965,348$           
     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 2,642,341                 4,379,857                 14,843,525               14,907,030               14,917,301               14,902,418               15,014,192               14,963,450               15,242,778               15,030,874               16,603,228               17,073,338               14,068,723            22,211,723$        196,800,779$      196,800,779$         
     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 186,892                     275,303                     1,869,217                 1,421,353                 754,808                     838,324                     4,788,169                 1,643,889                 1,292,586                 2,493,697                 9,572,009                 11,304,956               36,171,732            ‐$                       72,612,935$          72,612,935$           
     Services 5000‐5999 1,004,445                 5,060,341                 5,794,883                 5,560,839                 6,055,903                 10,599,698               6,800,639                 7,339,980                 9,433,008                 6,868,604                 14,541,449               20,956,927               32,626,870            ‐$                       132,643,586$      132,643,586$         
     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 265,419                     666,766                     95,348                       193,727                     249,338                     615,390                     533,353                     533,880                     1,245,322                 411,817                     2,067,220                 2,315,681                 5,863,433              ‐$                       15,056,694$          15,056,694$           
     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 322,564                     62,168                       112,669                     113,095                     112,667                     114,675                     147,415                     91,379                       120,317                     118,175                     (79,212)                     (321,283)                   (683,621)                ‐$                       231,009$               231,009$                
     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             2,193                         452,775                     53,611                   ‐$                       508,579$               508,579$                
     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        
CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,662,909                 20,036,244               47,978,274               47,854,616               48,102,193               53,616,218               53,399,508               50,690,673               56,146,338               51,405,222               92,941,047               101,540,318             96,288,792           22,211,723           750,874,076        750,874,076           
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            
     Assets and Deferred Outflows
        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 270,522                   (4,711)                       (23,409)                     (46,373)                     (18,765)                     (163,883)                   (35,478)                     (14,467)                     (10,288)                     301,467                     (9,744)                       8,889                         287,284                     ‐                         270,522$              
        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 63,526,856              2,447,471                 15,512,143               19,230,560               12,297,424               1,014,344                 475,420                     (232,186)                   (217,480)                   111,401                     (362,700)                   907,605                     12,342,855               ‐                         63,526,856$         
        Due From Other Funds 9310 5,121,125                838,550                     (633)                           (507)                           4,283,714                 ‐                             ‐                             (1,612,546)                1,612,546                 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         5,121,125$           
        Stores 9320 104,480                   ‐                             71                              35                              64                              228                            ‐                             149                            64                              ‐                             21                              ‐                             103,848                     ‐                         104,480$              
        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL ASSETS 69,022,983              3,281,310                 15,488,172               19,183,715               16,562,437               850,690                    439,942                    (1,859,050)                1,384,842                 412,868                    (372,423)                   916,494                    12,733,988               ‐                         ‐                         69,022,983          
     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (36,901,179)             (23,548,682)              (4,466,586)                (706,655)                   (102,185)                   169,693                     (112,500)                   (192,529)                   (69,579)                     (68,590)                     (31,695)                     (1,569,378)                (6,202,493)                ‐                         (36,901,179)$      
        Due To Other Funds 9610 (7,706,631)               ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             (7,706,631)                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         (7,706,631)$         
        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Unearned Revenues 9650 (10,583,206)             (10,583,206)              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         (10,583,206)$      
        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (55,191,016)            (34,131,888)              (4,466,586)                (706,655)                   (7,808,815)                169,693                    (112,500)                   (192,529)                   (69,579)                     (68,590)                     (31,695)                     (1,569,378)                (6,202,493)                ‐                         ‐                         (55,191,016)         
     Nonoperating
        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 13,831,967              (30,850,579)              11,021,586               18,477,060               8,753,621                 1,020,383                 327,442                    (2,051,579)                1,315,263                 344,278                    (404,118)                   (652,885)                   6,531,495                 ‐                         ‐                         13,831,967          

            13,831,967              (17,511,155)               29,011,564                26,263,867              (23,177,849)             (15,025,028)               32,676,335                38,748,873              (23,574,954)                 1,828,549                29,909,739              (39,517,442)                 6,756,376        (108,775,359)                           ‐            (62,386,486) (76,218,453)$         
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 94,563,595            123,575,159          149,839,025          126,661,176       111,636,148       144,312,483       183,061,356       159,486,402       161,314,951          191,224,690       151,707,248       158,463,623      

‐                             49,688,264$       

Sacramento City Unified School District 2021‐22 Third Interim Cash Flow Projections

2021‐22 Cash Flow Projection

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

Page 4



Sacramento City Unified School District 2021‐22 Third Interim Cash Flow Projections

2022‐23 Object
 2022‐23 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2022   August 2022   September 2022   October 2022   November 2022   December 2022   January 2023   February 2023   March 2023   April 2023   May 2023   June 2023 

 Accrual
Projected 

Adjustments
 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 158,463,623            158,463,623             115,854,448             101,727,989             114,418,086             94,917,741               71,978,349               94,355,776               130,170,406             94,112,467               85,140,320               79,571,942               57,007,813               ‐$                       ‐$                        
B. RECEIPTS
     LCFF Revenue Sources
        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 12,354,956               12,354,956               44,496,677               22,238,920               22,238,920               44,496,677               22,238,920               22,238,920               44,496,677               22,238,920               22,238,920               44,496,677               ‐                         ‐$                       336,130,143$      336,130,143$         
        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 359                            ‐                             306                            ‐                             400,370                     18,666,244               48,084,281               2,282,958                 8,184                         28,812,120               14,023,954               8,368,478                 ‐                         ‐$                       120,647,254$      120,647,254$         
        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 787                            1,486                         (919,474)                   (2,504,054)                (988,008)                   210                            (1,010,301)                854                            (2,277,048)                (595,109)                   276,019                     (2,197,020)                (3,628,029)            ‐$                       (13,839,687)$       (13,839,687)$         
     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 439,868                     1,185,081                 9,681,550                 2,468,969                 3,564,855                 6,934,766                 12,546,753               440,606                     10,019,167               4,915,736                 843,522                     23,120,555               16,872,461            ‐$                       93,033,889$          93,033,889$           
     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 1,414,152                 1,690,488                 3,493,370                 2,042,209                 3,926,997                 5,153,653                 4,625,650                 1,417,705                 3,497,748                 3,607,242                 7,066,874                 4,971,086                 14,097,333            22,211,723$        79,216,231$          79,216,231$           
     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 403,077                     125,192                     111,650                     218,219                     112,014                     152,353                     376,747                     229,265                     242,488                     1,039,702                 380,033                     489,036                     2,336,885              ‐$                       6,216,660$            6,216,660$             
     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             675,376                     ‐                             855,077                     40,439                       ‐                             ‐                             720,862                 ‐$                       2,291,754$            2,291,754$             
     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        
     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
TOTAL RECEIPTS 14,613,198               15,357,203               56,864,079               24,464,264               29,255,149               75,403,903               87,537,428               26,610,309               56,842,293               60,059,049               44,829,322               79,248,812               30,399,512           22,211,723           623,696,244        623,696,244           
C. DISBURSEMENTS
     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,726,854                 4,230,011                 20,725,496               21,821,056               23,870,585               21,810,450               21,526,688               21,325,855               21,930,477               21,702,174               21,987,284               22,349,707               5,486,392              ‐$                       230,493,029$      230,493,029$         
     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,753,216                 3,887,286                 5,106,447                 5,343,946                 5,314,792                 5,372,928                 5,323,652                 5,146,368                 5,329,344                 5,270,914                 6,438,655                 5,757,748                 2,206,905              ‐$                       63,252,203$          63,252,203$           
     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 2,793,863                 4,209,948                 16,221,927               16,339,990               16,688,372               16,181,754               16,184,898               16,284,357               16,429,477               16,329,153               16,277,606               16,738,496               1,858,204              22,211,723$        194,749,769$      194,749,769$         
     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 233,316                     2,360,070                 2,478,313                 1,024,861                 1,689,278                 988,128                     1,446,758                 1,162,901                 878,637                     1,934,382                 2,173,594                 3,099,468                 19,325,735            ‐$                       38,795,441$          38,795,441$           
     Services 5000‐5999 868,336                     2,481,694                 3,519,334                 7,079,111                 4,568,543                 7,513,426                 6,432,296                 4,793,520                 7,878,723                 5,758,862                 5,976,040                 10,283,532               21,906,396            ‐$                       89,059,813$          89,059,813$           
     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 171,929                     698,369                     471,647                     280,312                     193,999                     398,935                     504,962                     294,115                     400,214                     311,806                     539,691                     673,179                     3,150,179              ‐$                       8,089,336$            8,089,336$             
     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 269,530                     136,266                     379,116                     222,897                     311,032                     491,936                     29,482                       197,284                     (256,834)                   720,462                     325,438                     (334,213)                   (1,862,888)            ‐$                       629,507$               629,507$                
     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             4,386                         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             450,582                     53,611                   ‐$                       508,579$               508,579$                
     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        
CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,817,045                 18,008,030               48,902,281               52,112,173               52,636,601               52,757,556               51,448,736               49,204,400               52,590,037               52,027,753               53,718,309               59,018,500               52,124,533           22,211,723           625,577,677        625,577,677           
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            
     Assets and Deferred Outflows
        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 (12,486,567)             3,181,258                 2,418,766                 5,044,995                 8,367,284                 936,455                     (112,027)                   50,704                       (9,428,517)                (9,393,465)                (9,259,910)                (9,580,054)                (5,296,137)                10,584,081            (12,486,567)$      
        Due From Other Funds 9310 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Stores 9320 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL ASSETS (12,486,567)            3,181,258                 2,418,766                 5,044,995                 8,367,284                 936,455                    (112,027)                   50,704                       (9,428,517)                (9,393,465)                (9,259,910)                (9,580,054)                (5,296,137)                10,584,081           ‐                         (12,486,567)         
     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (96,288,792)             (51,586,587)              (13,894,398)              (316,695)                   (219,720)                   (494,395)                   (156,893)                   (324,765)                   (4,035,331)                (3,830,938)                (4,339,764)                (4,095,088)                (12,994,217)              ‐                         (96,288,792)$      
        Due To Other Funds 9610 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Unearned Revenues 9650 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (96,288,792)            (51,586,587)              (13,894,398)              (316,695)                   (219,720)                   (494,395)                   (156,893)                   (324,765)                   (4,035,331)                (3,830,938)                (4,339,764)                (4,095,088)                (12,994,217)              ‐                         ‐                         (96,288,792)         
     Nonoperating
        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (108,775,359)          (48,405,329)              (11,475,633)              4,728,300                 8,147,564                 442,059                    (268,920)                   (274,061)                   (13,463,848)              (13,224,403)              (13,599,674)              (13,675,141)              (18,290,355)              10,584,081           ‐                         (108,775,359)      

         (108,775,359)             (42,609,175)             (14,126,459)               12,690,098              (19,500,345)             (22,939,392)               22,377,427                35,814,631              (36,057,940)               (8,972,146)               (5,568,378)             (22,564,129)                 1,939,958          (11,140,939)                           ‐          (110,656,792) (1,881,433)$           
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 115,854,448          101,727,989          114,418,086          94,917,741         71,978,349         94,355,776         130,170,406       94,112,467         85,140,320            79,571,942         57,007,813         58,947,771        

‐                             47,806,831$         

2022‐23 Cash Flow Projection

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

Page 5



Sacramento City Unified School District 2021‐22 Third Interim Cash Flow Projections

2023‐24 Object
 2023‐24 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2023   August 2023   September 2023   October 2023   November 2023   December 2023   January 2024   February 2024   March 2024   April 2024   May 2024   June 2024 

 Accrual
Projected 

Adjustments
 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 58,947,771              58,947,771               40,755,764               33,264,703               45,143,592               27,045,319               4,193,388                 24,803,232               60,549,666               35,610,859               35,966,971               40,850,408               29,916,282               ‐$                       ‐$                        
B. RECEIPTS
     LCF Revenue Sources
        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 12,675,291               12,675,291               43,487,210               22,815,524               22,815,524               43,487,210               22,815,524               22,815,524               43,487,210               22,815,524               22,815,524               43,487,210               ‐                         ‐                         336,192,563$      336,192,563$         
        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 359                            ‐                             306                            ‐                             400,370                     18,666,244               48,084,281               2,282,958                 8,184                         28,812,120               14,023,954               8,368,478                 ‐                         ‐                         120,647,254$      120,647,254$         
        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 787                            1,486                         (919,474)                   (2,504,054)                (988,008)                   210                            (1,010,301)                854                            (2,277,048)                (595,109)                   276,019                     (2,197,020)                (3,628,029)            ‐                         (13,839,687)$       (13,839,687)$         
     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 443,041                     1,193,630                 9,751,386                 2,486,779                 3,590,570                 6,984,789                 12,637,257               443,784                     10,091,439               4,951,194                 849,606                     23,287,331               16,994,168            ‐                         93,704,973$          93,704,973$           
     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 1,414,152                 1,690,488                 3,493,370                 2,042,209                 3,926,997                 5,153,653                 4,625,650                 1,417,705                 3,497,748                 3,607,242                 7,066,874                 4,971,086                 14,097,333            22,211,723           79,216,231$          79,216,231$           
     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 403,077                     125,192                     111,650                     218,219                     112,014                     152,353                     376,747                     229,265                     242,488                     1,039,702                 380,033                     489,036                     2,336,885              ‐                         6,216,660$            6,216,660$             
     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             675,376                     ‐                             855,077                     40,439                       ‐                             ‐                             720,862                 ‐                         2,291,754$            2,291,754$             
     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
TOTAL RECEIPTS 14,936,707               15,686,087               55,924,448               25,058,676               29,857,467               74,444,458               88,204,535               27,190,090               55,905,097               60,671,111               45,412,010               78,406,121               30,521,219           22,211,723           624,429,748        624,429,748           
C. DISBURSEMENTS
     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,737,651                 4,256,459                 20,855,081               21,957,491               24,019,835               21,946,819               21,661,283               21,459,194               22,067,596               21,837,866               22,124,759               22,489,448               5,069,230              ‐                         231,482,712$      231,482,712$         
     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,794,107                 3,945,021                 5,182,288                 5,423,315                 5,393,728                 5,452,727                 5,402,720                 5,222,803                 5,408,496                 5,349,198                 6,534,283                 5,843,263                 2,111,271              ‐                         64,063,221$          64,063,221$           
     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 2,860,804                 4,310,818                 16,610,603               16,731,494               17,088,224               16,569,468               16,572,687               16,674,529               16,823,126               16,720,398               16,667,616               17,139,549               3,221,599              22,211,723           200,202,639$      200,202,639$         
     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 261,968                     2,649,894                 2,782,659                 1,150,717                 1,896,727                 1,109,474                 1,624,425                 1,305,709                 986,536                     2,171,930                 2,440,519                 3,480,093                 21,698,998            ‐                         43,559,649$          43,559,649$           
     Services 5000‐5999 883,812                     2,525,922                 3,582,055                 7,205,273                 4,649,963                 7,647,329                 6,546,931                 4,878,949                 8,019,136                 5,861,496                 6,082,544                 10,466,804               22,296,808            ‐                         90,647,021$          90,647,021$           
     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 171,929                     698,369                     471,647                     280,312                     193,999                     398,935                     504,962                     294,115                     400,214                     311,806                     539,691                     673,179                     3,150,179              ‐                         8,089,336$            8,089,336$             
     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 269,530                     136,266                     379,116                     222,897                     311,032                     491,936                     29,482                       197,284                     (256,834)                   720,463                     325,438                     (334,213)                   (1,862,889)            ‐                         629,507$               629,507$                
     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             4,386                         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             450,582                     53,611                   ‐                         508,579$               508,579$                
     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        
CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,979,801                 18,527,135               49,863,450               52,971,501               53,553,507               53,616,686               52,342,489               50,032,583               53,448,270               52,973,156               54,714,850               60,208,704               55,738,807           22,211,723           639,182,663        639,182,663           
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            
     Assets and Deferred Outflows
        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 40,983,594              3,776,734                 2,871,516                 5,989,330                 9,933,494                 1,111,743                 (132,996)                   60,195                       88,153                       (26,893)                     (465,249)                   585,531                     (13,475,203)              30,667,240            40,983,594$         
        Due From Other Funds 9310 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Stores 9320 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL ASSETS 40,983,594              3,776,734                 2,871,516                 5,989,330                 9,933,494                 1,111,743                 (132,996)                   60,195                       88,153                       (26,893)                     (465,249)                   585,531                    (13,475,203)              30,667,240           ‐                         40,983,594           ‐$                        
     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (52,124,533)             (27,925,647)              (7,521,530)                (171,438)                   (118,942)                   (267,634)                   (84,932)                     (175,807)                   (2,184,468)                (2,073,822)                (2,349,268)                (2,216,816)                (7,034,230)                ‐                         (52,124,533)$      
        Due To Other Funds 9610 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Unearned Revenues 9650 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      
     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (52,124,533)            (27,925,647)              (7,521,530)                (171,438)                   (118,942)                   (267,634)                   (84,932)                     (175,807)                   (2,184,468)                (2,073,822)                (2,349,268)                (2,216,816)                (7,034,230)                ‐                         ‐                         (52,124,533)          ‐$                        
     Nonoperating
        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (11,140,939)            (24,148,912)              (4,650,013)                5,817,892                 9,814,552                 844,109                    (217,928)                   (115,612)                   (2,096,315)                (2,100,715)                (2,814,518)                (1,631,285)                (20,509,434)              30,667,240           ‐                         (11,140,939)         

           (11,140,939)             (18,192,007)               (7,491,062)               11,878,889              (18,098,273)             (22,851,931)               20,609,844                35,746,434              (24,938,807)                    356,112                  4,883,437              (10,934,126)               (2,312,017)             5,449,651                            ‐            (25,893,854) (14,752,915)$         
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 40,755,764            33,264,703            45,143,592            27,045,319         4,193,388           24,803,232         60,549,666         35,610,859         35,966,971            40,850,408         29,916,282         27,604,265        

‐                             33,053,917$         

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

2023‐24 Cash Flow Projection

Page 6



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.2 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Plan to Implement Assembly Bill 130:  Universal Pre-

Kindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
Background/Rationale:  In 2021, legislation enacted AB 130, which provides the 
language for phasing in Transitional Kindergarten )TK) starting in 2022-23 school year 
through 2025-26 school year by expanding eligibility by 2 months each year. By 2025-
26, all children who turn 4 years old,  by September 1st can enroll in TK.   It also 
establishes TK adult child ratios of 12:1 for the 2022-23 school year, and ratios of 10:1 
starting in the 2023-24 school year, contingent on funds appropriated. It does require 
average classroom sizes of 24 children per school site.   Additionally, the bill maintains 
a parent’s ability to choose which Early Learning and Care program best serves their 4-
year-old, including child care, Pre-Kindergarten, and Head Start. The bill also expands 
the use of the Full-Day Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program to include TK and 
California State Preschool Program (CSPP).   Additionally, it delayed the deadline for a 
credentialed teacher first assigned to a TK classroom after July 1, 2015, to meet Early 
Childhood Education unit requirements until August 1, 2023.  The bill also authorizes 
CSPP contracting agencies to offer wraparound child care services for eligible children 
enrolled in an education program serving Transitional Kindergarten, Kindergarten, or 
any of grades 1 to 12, if their families meet the eligibility requirements.  
 
Financial Considerations:  SCUSD received a base allotment of $634,954 to support 
the implementation of AB 130 as it pertains to Universal Transitional Kindergarten.  
Additionally, SCUSD received Expanded Learning Opportunities Program funds to 



Page 2 of 2 
 

provide extended before and after school care for our Transitional Kindergarten 
students.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1:  Increase the percent of students who are on-track to graduate 
college and career ready. 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 20 minutes presentation,  
Submitted by:  Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name:  Academic Office 
Agenda Title:  Proposed Plan to Implement Assembly Bill 130 - 
Universal PreKindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Board Meeting:  May 19, 2022 

 

  
 

 
Department Name 1 

 
I.   OVERVIEW / HISTORY  

In 2021, legislation enacted AB 130, which provides the language for phasing in 
Transitional Kindergarten )TK) starting in 2022-23 school year through 2025-26 
school year by expanding eligibility by 2 months each year. By 2025-26, all 
children who turn 4 years old,  by September 1st can enroll in TK.   It also 
establishes TK adult child ratios of 12:1 for the 2022-23 school year, and ratios of 
10:1 starting in the 2023-24 school year, contingent on funds appropriated. It 
does require average classroom sizes of 24 children per school site.   
Additionally, the bill maintains a parent’s ability to choose which Early Learning 
and Care program best serves their 4-year-old, including child care, Pre-
Kindergarten, and Head Start. The bill also expands the use of the Full-Day 
Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program to include TK and California State 
Preschool Program (CSPP).   Additionally, it delayed the deadline for a 
credentialed teacher first assigned to a TK classroom after July 1, 2015, to meet 
Early Childhood Education unit requirements until August 1, 2023.  The bill also 
authorizes CSPP contracting agencies to offer wraparound child care services for 
eligible children enrolled in an education program serving Transitional 
Kindergarten, Kindergarten, or any of grades 1 to 12, if their families meet the 
eligibility requirements. 

 
II.   DRIVING GOVERNANCE 

Assembly Bill 130 calls for all local educational agencies to phase in Transitional 
Kindergarten over the next four years, through 2025-2026, by expanding 
eligibility by 2 months each year.  By 2025-26, all children who turn 4 years old,  
by September 1st can enroll in TK.    

 
III.   BUDGET  

SCUSD received a base allotment of $634,954 to support the implementation of AB 130 
as it pertains to Universal Transitional Kindergarten.  Additionally, SCUSD received 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program funds to provide extended before and after 
school care for our Transitional Kindergarten students. 

 
IV.   GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND MEASURES  
 SCUSD will submit its plan to implement Universal PreKindergarten, as per AB 130.   
 
V.   MAJOR INITIATIVES  
 N/A 
 
VI.   RESULTS  
 N/A 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name:  Academic Office 
Agenda Title:  Proposed Plan to Implement Assembly Bill 130 - 
Universal PreKindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Board Meeting:  May 19, 2022 

 

  
 

 
Department Name 2 

VII.   LESSONS LEARNED / NEXT STEPS  
Implement and operationalize the phased in approach of expanding Universal 
PreKindergarten opportunities to students and families of SCUSD. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 10.3 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 

                Subject:  Resolution No. 3272:  To Adopt Professional Experience Qualifications 
to Teach Transitional Kindergarten for the 2022-2023 School Year 

  
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resource Services 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 3272: To Adopt Professional Experience 
Qualifications to Teach Transitional Kindergarten for the 2022-2023 School Year 

 
 
Background/Rationale:  Effective August 1, 2021, Education Code section 48000, 
subdivision (g)(4), provides that credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a 
transitional kindergarten classroom after July 1, 2015 must satisfy one of the following 
requirements by August 1, 2023: (A) have at least 24 units in early childhood education, 
or childhood development, or both; (B) as determined by the employing school district, 
have professional experience in a classroom setting with preschool age children that is 
comparable to 24 units of education in early childhood education, or childhood 
development, or both; or (C) possess a child development teacher permit issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 
 
In order to increase opportunities for certificated teachers to serve in transitional 
kindergarten classrooms, the District proposes adopting professional experience 
qualifications pursuant to Education Code section 48000, subdivision (g)(4)(B), of one 
year of experience as a transitional kindergarten teacher, in order to serve in such 
capacity beginning the 2022-2023 school year.  
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal 2:   Safe, Clean, and Healthy Schools 
Documents Attached:   



Page 2 of 2 
 

1. Resolution No. 3272 
2. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by: Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3272 

 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE QUALIFICAITONS TO 
TEACH TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR 

  
 WHEREAS, effective August 1, 2021, Education Code section 48000, subdivision (g)(4),  
authorizes the Governing Board to assign a certificated employee to teach in a transitional kindergarten 
setting if the employee has one of the following by August 1, 2023: (A) at least 24 units in early 
childhood education, or childhood development, or both; (B) as determined by the employing school 
district, professional experience in a classroom setting with preschool age children that is comparable 
to 24 units of education in early childhood education, or childhood development, or both; or (C) a child 
development teacher permit issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) has a need for 
transitional kindergarten teachers for the 2022-2023 school year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has an interest in making transitional kindergarten positions available 
to applicants with comparable preschool teaching experience pursuant to Education Code section 
48000(g)(4)(B); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District recognizes and understands that 24 units of education generally 
equates to one year of undergraduate full-time coursework1; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District recognizes that serving as the credentialed teacher of record in a 
transitional kindergarten classroom for the equivalent of one complete school year provides valuable 
and comparable experience to 24 units in early childhood education and/or childhood development 
under Education Code section 48000(g)(4)(B); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Board desires maximum flexibility in the assignment of 
certificated employees to best meet the needs of the students and programs of the District.  
 
 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board determines that in order to be eligible to 
teach in a transitional kindergarten setting under Education Code section 48000(g)(4)(B) for the 2022-
2023 school year, a credentialed teacher must have completed one complete school year as the teacher 
of record in a transitional kindergarten class by August 1, 2023;   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that for purposes of this resolution only, one complete school 
year means that the employee “served for at least 75 percent of the number of days the regular schools 
of the district in which [they are] employed” as described in Education Code section 44908;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent of the District, or his designee, shall 
be authorized to take all steps necessary to carry out the provisions of this resolution. 
 
  
 

                                                           
1 A local example is Sacramento State University, which designates undergraduate students enrolled in 12 or more units as 
“full-time.” (https://catalog.csus.edu/financial-registration-information/registration/.) 



 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 19th day of May, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 

___________________________________ 
Christina Pritchett 
President of the Board of Education 

ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar 
Secretary of the Board of Education 

 
 

 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Human Resource Services 
Adopt Resolution No. 3272: To Adopt Professional Experience 
Qualifications to Teach Transitional Kindergarten for the 2022-2023 
School Year May 19, 2022  

  
 

 
Human Resource Services 1 

 
I.  Overview/History of Expansion of Transitional Kindergarten Programs and 
Qualification Requirements 

 
Consistent with legislation to expand educational opportunities for younger learners, 
the District has grown its transitional kindergarten program. Given the unique learning 
and developmental needs of these children, the Legislature recognized the need for 
credentialed teachers in these classrooms to have specialized knowledge in the areas 
of early childhood education or development, or to possess a child development 
teaching permit issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing. Given the 
expansion of these programs in school districts throughout the state, including 
SCUSD, the Legislature recognized a need to give local school district’s the ability to 
establish comparable experience qualifications to serve in such classrooms.  
 
The resulting law is Education Code section 48000, subdivision (g)(4), which provides 
that credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a transitional kindergarten 
classroom after July 1, 2015 must possess one of the following by August 1, 2023: 
 

(A) At least 24 units in early childhood education, or childhood development, 
or both. 

(B) As determined by the local educational agency employing the teacher, 
professional experience in a classroom setting with preschool age children 
that is comparable to the 24 units of education described in subparagraph 
(A). 

(C) A child development teacher permit issued by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing. 

 
The resolution being presented to the Board is for the District to exercise its discretion 
under subdivision (B), above. 
 
II.  Driving Governance: 
 
For the 2022-2023 school year, the District has an interest in providing additional 
opportunities for credentialed teachers to serve in a transitional kindergarten 
classroom. To this end, the District proposes that the Board adopt an additional 
professional experience pathway that would enable more teachers to serve in such 
classes. 
 
With passage of this resolution, there will be three (instead of two) options for teachers 
to satisfy in order to be qualified and eligible to teach in a transitional kindergarten 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Human Resource Services 
Adopt Resolution No. 3272: To Adopt Professional Experience 
Qualifications to Teach Transitional Kindergarten for the 2022-2023 
School Year May 19, 2022  

  
 

 
Human Resource Services 2 

class for the 2022-2023 school year under Education Code section 48000, subdivision 
(g)(4)(B). Specifically, the District would deem that one year of experience in a 
transitional kindergarten classroom would be equivalent to 24 units in early childhood 
education or childhood development. This length of experience is based on the 
understanding that 24 units is equivalent to two semesters (one year) as a full-time 
student.  
 
III. Budget: 
 
By this action, the Board will expand opportunities for teachers to serve in positions 
that are already contemplated in the District’s budget for the 2022-2023 school year. In 
addition, ensuring that teachers are properly qualified to teach in a transitional 
kindergarten setting allows the District to claim apportionment for those classes as 
described in the Education Code.  
 
IV. Goals, Objective and Measures: 
 
Hands on experience is often one of the best ways to learn, particularly for teachers. 
By providing teachers with this additional opportunity to serve as a transitional 
kindergarten teacher, the District will be taking additional steps to ensure that these 
positions are filled for next year, while also maintaining high quality education and 
learning opportunities for these students. 
 
V.  Major Initiatives: 
 
This action will further support the District’s dedication to and ongoing efforts to ensure 
that all students are provided with high quality education from the very start. 
 
VI. Results:  
 
With the adoption of Resolution No. 3272, the Chief Human Resources Officer and 
staff will ensure that District teachers are notified of this additional opportunity for the 
upcoming school year and that vacancy postings are updated accordingly.  
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.4  
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Continuous Improvement and Accountability Office 
 
Recommendation: None 
 
Background/Rationale: Annually, districts must develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP).  The LCAP provides details of goals, actions, and 
expenditures to support identified student outcomes and overall performance.  
Significant and purposeful engagement of educational partners is critical to the 
development of the LCAP and the budget process.  This item provides a 
summary of key themes that have emerged during the engagement process for 
the 2022-23 LCAP. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goals: Goal 5: Engagement and Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 15 minutes 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
  Steven Fong, Director of Special Initiatives 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program 
 
In July 2013, the state Legislature approved a new funding system for all California public schools. This new 
funding system, the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), requires that every Local Education Agency write 
a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).  
 
Significant and purposeful engagement of educational partners is critical to the development of the LCAP 
and the budget process.  Educational partner engagement is an ongoing, annual process and should support 
comprehensive planning, accountability, and improvement across the state and local priority areas. 
 
II. Driving Governance: 
 
According to Ed Code 52060, on or before July 1, annually, the Governing Board of each school district shall 
adopt a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using a template adopted by the State Board of 
Education (SBE), effective for three years with annual updates. It will include the district’s annual goals for all 
students and for each significant subgroup in regard to the eight state priorities and any local priorities, as 
well as the plans for implementing actions to achieve those goals. Education Code §52063 (a) (1) requires 
the establishment of a parent advisory committee, that shall include parents or legal guardians of 
unduplicated students (low income, English learner, foster youth and homeless).  
 
III. Budget: 
 
Educational partner recommendations include actions that, if actualized, would result in additional costs. 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures: 
 
The Educational Partner Engagement section within the LCAP requires districts to provide descriptions in 
three key areas: 
1. A summary of the engagement process  
2. A summary of the input provided by specific educational partner groups 
3. A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific educational partner input. 
 
The annual and ongoing engagement of educational partners is a key part of SCUSD’s LCAP development 
process.  It is important that the goals, actions, expenditures, metrics, and targets within the LCAP are 
informed by the voices of students, families, staff, and community members. The educational partner 
engagement process for the 2022-23 LCAP built upon the 2021-22 process as well as the fall 2021 
engagement process for the district’s ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 
 
SCUSD’s current LCAP includes a goal specific to the engagement and empowerment of parents, families, 
community partners, and students as partners in teaching and learning: 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Parents, families, community partners, and students will be engaged and empowered as partners in teaching 
and learning through effective communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-making. 
 
This goal continues the district’s long-standing commitment to educational partner engagement.  
Educational partner input has continued to reaffirm the importance of engaging and empowering 
community members as partners in teaching and learning.  In the previous year, the goal statement was 
expanded to include communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-making as specific areas 
that can support increased engagement and empowerment.  While these priorities existed prior to the 
pandemic, the experience of educational partners during school closures further highlighted their 
importance.  The importance of regular and clear communication (including translation and interpretation 
where needed), structured opportunities for educational partners to build capacity, and authentic 
opportunities to provide input and engage in the decision-making process was more evident as the district 
faced disconnection and increased needs for support. 
 
Goal 5 in the current SCUSD LCAP also includes details of the specific actions and measurable outcomes 
associated with improving engagement and empowerment. 
 
V. Major Initiatives: 
 
The educational partner engagement process for the 2022-23 LCAP has built upon the foundation 
established by the input informing the 2021-22 to 2023-24 LCAP and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan from fall 
2021.  A range of educational partner engagement activities occurred throughout 2021-22 including listening 
sessions, meetings with district committees/groups, district surveys, drop-in hours for staff and students, 
public comment on the posted draft, and public comment at the public hearing and related board 
presentations.  The input received from these activities helped to further articulate the SCUSD community’s 
priorities for the district and to inform the annual development of the LCAP.   
 
During the summer and fall of 2021, educational partner engagement efforts focused on development of the 
ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  These efforts are described in detail in the district’s ESSER III Expenditure Plan 
adopted by the board on October 21, 2021. Following approval of the ESSER III Expenditure Plan, efforts 
shifted to the development of the LCAP Mid-Year Report (including the one-time supplement to the LCAP 
Annual Update) and development of the 2022-23 LCAP.   
 
The district’s key educational partner groups play a critical role in representing different parts of the SCUSD 
community.  Key groups include: 
• Black/African American Advisory Board (B/AAAB): The B/AAAB meets monthly to advise the board, 

superintendent, and relevant district staff regarding accountability of services, programs, policies, and 
resources that directly impact the district/school culture and climate of classrooms and the academic, 
social/emotional, and personal outcomes for Black/African American students.  The AAAB also reviews, 
monitors and evaluates the continuous improvement of the district’s implementation of the board-



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

adopted Black/African American Task Force recommendations.  LCAP staff supported B/AAAB 
membership in their alignment of recommendations to the LCAP through direct meetings with the 
B/AAAB facilitator and an Advisory Board learning session specific to the LCAP on 1.11.22.  The B/AAAB 
presented their work to-date including their recommendations implementation framework, alignment, 
and refinement to the Board of Education on 2.17.22.     

• American Indian Education Program Parent Committee (AIEPPC): The AIEPPC meets monthly to advise, 
advocate for, and approve programs allocated for American Indian and Alaska Native students and 
families.  The committee is supported by a Youth Services Specialist from the Youth Development and 
Support Services (YDSS) department and a brief update document summarizing the key outcomes of 
each meeting is provided to the district. 

• Community Advisory Committee (CAC): The CAC meets monthly and acts in an advisory capacity to the 
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) and supports individuals with exceptional needs and their 
families.  LCAP-specific sessions were held with the CAC on 1.18.22 and 3.8.22, with the latter focused on 
providing input towards the development of the new goal specific to Students with Disabilities (Goal 9).  
The CAC also provided input during their September meeting to support the ESSER III development 
process. 

• District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC): The DELAC meets regularly to advise district 
officials on English Learner programs and services with the overall goal of helping English Learners attain 
English proficiency and achieve academic success.  LCAP-specific agenda items were included at 
meetings of the DELAC on 11.10.21, 2.16.22, and 5.18.22.  Additional input was provided by the DELAC to 
support the ESSER III development process in the fall.   

• LCAP Parent Advisory Committee (PAC): The LCAP PAC meets monthly to provide input and feedback on 
LCAP actions, services, and expenditures to support LCAP development.  This includes review and 
analysis of district data and other educational partner input to gain a deeper understanding of student 
needs and how those needs can be addressed to improve outcomes for all students.  The LCAP PAC met 
monthly throughout the 2021-22 school year.  The LCAP also held ‘small group meetings’ between each 
full meeting to debrief the previous meeting and plan for the following meeting.  There were 1-2 of these 
small group meetings held between each full meeting.  Additional meetings were held to prepare for 
board presentations and during the summer to on-board new members.  The LCAP PAC presented their 
initial recommendations for the 2022-23 LCAP and district strategic planning to the board during the 
March 3, 2022 board meeting. These recommendations are discussed further in the following section. 

• Student Advisory Council (SAC): SAC meets weekly to develop policy initiatives, meet with district staff 
and committees, and work to ensure that all student voices are represented.  During the current year the 
SAC have worked to implement surveys to gauge student experiences with sexual health education and 
college access. 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Presentations to the board that provided opportunities for board member input and public comment 
included: 
• ESSER III Expenditure Plan Development Update (10.7.21) 
• ESSER III Expenditure Plan Adoption (10.21.21) 
• LCAP Quarterly Report (10.21.21) 
• LCAP Quarterly Report (1.13.22) 
• LCAP Mid-Year Report and One-Time Supplement to the Annual Update (2.17.22) 
• LCAP Parent Advisory Committee Recommendations (3.3.22) 
• Presentation of LCAP Draft (5.5.22) 
• Summary of Educational Partner Input (5.19.22) 
• LCAP Public Hearing (6.9.22) Forthcoming 

A series of five listening sessions were held in March and April 2022 and were open to all students, staff, 
parents/caregivers, and community members.  These included a brief overview of the LCAP and provided 
attendees the opportunity to share their input on how to best support students with the highest needs.  
Participants were invited to share what they thought was working and should be continued/expanded, what 
was missing, and where improvements were needed.  Simultaneous interpretation was provided in Spanish, 
Hmong, Chinese, and Vietnamese.  All sessions were held via zoom and were open to the public. 
 
Key surveys informing LCAP development included: 

• Spring 2022 School Climate Survey in February-March 2022 (Students, Staff, and Families) 
• LCAP Annual Survey in March-April 2022 (Students, Staff, Families, and Community Members).  

Surveys were available in Spanish, Hmong, Chinese, and Vietnamese.  Participants were able to 
complete the survey online (google forms) or via a hard copy picked up from their school site or the 
district office. 

New to the 2021-22 engagement process were ‘drop-in’ sessions for staff and students respectively.  These 
sessions included a brief introduction to the LCAP, with the majority of time reserved for open sharing of 
input by all attendees.  Three staff sessions were offered in April and were open to all staff including 
members of all bargaining groups, non-represented, or temporary staff.  Two student sessions were offered 
in April and were open to all students. 
 
An additional and important source of engagement with educational partners is the ongoing collaboration 
with the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), Sacramento County Office of Education 
(SCOE), and additional partners through the Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) and Differentiated 
Assistance (DA) processes. In 2021-22, this collaboration involved regular monthly meetings with additional 
planning meetings to co-develop agendas.  During meetings SCUSD shares progress made towards specific 
SIR actions and reflects on ongoing district efforts such as the implementation of a Multi-Tiered System of 
Supports (MTSS).  CCEE and SCOE leadership serve both as reviewers of the district’s SIR and DA work and 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

also as critical friends, posing questions and making observations to prompt further SCUSD reflection and 
analysis.  All parties share the mutual goal of supporting SCUSD to engage in positive systems change and 
improve student outcomes – and especially those student groups who have underperformed over time.  The 
DA and SIR processes were specifically catalyzed by outcomes of Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and 
Students with Disabilities. 
 
VI. Results: 

 
Overall, the feedback provided by educational partners reaffirmed and built upon many of the key priorities 
communicated in past input and the fall ESSER III Expenditure Plan process.  The following summary outlines 
the themes that emerged across various input strands, specific recommendations and priorities that 
emerged from educational partner groups, and provides links to additional and more detailed educational 
partner feedback documents. 
 
The themes that emerged across the various input strands included multiple topics that have surfaced in 
past engagement processes with the addition of new aspects: 
 
A more personalized educational experience with individual supports and options for students 
The educational experience needs to be individualized to each student’s needs.  Assessments and progress 
monitoring need to provide the necessary student-level information on which to base personalized supports 
such as differentiated instruction (including Universal Design for Learning (UDL) practices) and targeted 
intervention.  Students need to be made aware of and encouraged to pursue all options.  This includes 
building an awareness of career options and pathways in addition to 4-year college.  
 
Recruitment, retention, and development of talent 
There is a critical need to recruit and retain excellent staff, particularly in the face of staffing shortages.  We 
need to be innovative in how we recruit and retain and maximize opportunities to be competitive in the 
hiring landscape and minimize classroom and other vacancies.  Staff need to be supported with appropriate 
professional learning so that they can effectively implement identified programs and initiatives.  
Recruitment and retention need to focus on staff that match the demographics of the student population. 
 
Equitable access to programs and resources 
All students need to have full access to a breadth of programs and opportunities inside and outside the 
classroom.  This should not involve a ‘pay to play’ requirement and includes, but is not limited to, sports, 
arts, music, clubs, libraries, vocational programs, college trips, and other field trips.  Engaging in a range of 
activities that build skills and foster positive relationships is a powerful contributor to mental health and can 
improve various student outcomes. 
 
Early Education to build a strong foundation 
A strong academic and social-emotional foundation in the early years is a key lever for improving the 
outcomes for our highest-need students.  Preschool and Transitional Kindergarten should be offered to all 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

6 | P a g e  
 

students/families.  Bringing all K-3 students to grade level in Reading and Math is a critical need for 
addressing inequitable outcomes. 
 
Representation/diversity and anti-racism 
Curriculum needs to reflect the experience and perspectives of student groups (e.g. Black/African American).  
Staff should reflect the linguistic, racial, cultural, and other diversity of the student population. Systems that 
result in disproportionate impacts on specific student groups (e.g. suspension disproportionality) need to be 
dismantled and progress monitored.  Further anti-racism training is needed.  The planned school renaming 
process needs to be addressed. 
 
Community Partnerships 
The district needs to increase its collaboration with community partners to provide additional supports that 
are not possible internally due to capacity limits or expertise.  In addition to provided direct services, such 
partnerships can break down walls between school and community and build the capacity of schools to 
serve a broader range of needs. 
 
The Annual Survey asked respondents to share their level of agreement for how highlight various strategic 
actions should be prioritized.  These strategic actions were organized by LCAP goal.  While most of the 
strategic actions listed received relatively high levels of agreement, the following were the most highly 
prioritized as indicated by the percentage of all respondents who selected ‘Strongly Agree’ or ‘Agree’: 
• A safe, welcoming, and connected climate is present in all schools, classrooms, and learning spaces 

(85%) 
• Support all students and families to effectively navigate the path to college and career (82%) 
• Maintain, foster, and strengthen community partnerships (82%) 
• Empower students to take charge of their own learning and ensure that student voice is heard (82%) 

 
The following were the actions that received the highest percentage of ‘Strongly Disagree’ or ‘Disagree’ from 
all respondents: 
• Ensure that all students are enrolled in and complete an academic program that makes them 4-year 

college-eligible (18%) 
• All levels of the district system are engaged in cycles of continuous improvement (17%) 
• Effectively use data to identify needs, monitor progress, and make equity-based decisions (17%) 
• Recruit and retain staff who are representative of the district’s student population (17%) 
• Building toward a future that is fiscally and logistically sustainable (17%) 

 
Students had overall levels of agreement and disagreement lower than the other two groups.  This was due 
to a higher frequency of ‘don’t know’ responses. 
 
Each of the survey sections associated with a key LCAP goal area included the option to provide additional 
comments.  Within the feedback received for each section, some recurring comments emerged.  



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

7 | P a g e  
 

Additionally, some overarching themes arose across multiple/all sections. Following is a brief summary of 
key input: 
 
College and Career Readiness 
• The district should not focus exclusively on college as the sole or best option for students 
• Increased awareness and access to vocational training and career and technical education (CTE). 
• Expanded range and equitable access to extra and co-curricular opportunities 
• More course and enrichment options in the Arts 
• Curriculum focused on life skills (e.g. financial literacy) 
• Early Education (Preschool and early elementary) as a key lever for college and career readiness 
• Dual Immersion programs as key college readiness programs 
• Maintaining and increasing robust college preparatory offerings 

 
Foundational Education Program (Tier 1) 
• Early Education as a foundational part of the district’s core program 
• Assessment of student needs early and ongoing – especially screening for dyslexia 
• Differentiated program options that serve the individual needs of students 
• Lack of agreement or clarity on the definition of ‘equity’ 

 
Integrated Supports (Tiers 2 and 3) 
• Importance of regular assessments with caution to not over-assess and emphasis that assessment does 

not only mean standardized assessments 
• Needs for increased mental health supports, with some concern about how this can be done 

effectively.  Advocacy for more student support centers across the district 
• Supports and processes for Students with Disabilities, particularly the provision of IEP-defined services 

 
Culture and Climate 
• Addressing inappropriate behavior through a consistent disciplinary process and the impact of behavior 

on instruction 
• Both support for and concerns about the implementation of restorative practices/justice.  Emphasis 

that training is needed for successful implementation. 
• Emphasis on safety including need for more security on campus, addressing campus violence, and more 

specific articulation of the new safety plan. 
 
Engagement and Empowerment 
• Need for more communication and partnership as well as authentic engagement to truly hear the voice 

of educational partners 
• Engagement in the form of capacity building and community building need to be provided including 

workshops/training for parents, encouraging volunteering, empowering those who don’t feel they have 
a place, and providing more funding for school sites to implement engagement opportunities.  



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

8 | P a g e  
 

• Concern that parents/caregivers should not be positioned as ‘equal partners’ given that the district 
provides a professional, trained team. 

 
Overarching Themes 
• Frustration with the strikes – impacts on students and the overall need for more positive relationships 

between district and labor groups. 
• Smaller class sizes as a supporting factor for implementing the range of strategic actions. 
• Several related factors associated with staffing including: 
• More staff - respondents noted the impacts of the staffing shortages and need to bring in more 

teachers, instructional aids, counselors, etc. to provide services to students 
• More support for staff in the form of time to engage in the necessary work to support students and 

professional learning/training to effectively implement the desired programs 
• Appropriate compensation for staff as a means of recruiting/retaining 
• Improved hiring processes to ensure that staff can be recruited and brought into the district 
• Need for more positive labor relationships 

 
The section of the survey specific to the Graduate Profile indicates relatively low awareness (23%), 
experience with the district’s Grad Profile (15%), and overall knowledge of Graduate Profile as a concept 
(25%).  In general, staff demonstrated the highest levels of awareness in all three areas.  
 
The section of the survey specific to parents/caregivers asked respondents to share their level of agreement 
with statements describing the parent/caregiver experience at schools. 
• The percentage of parents/caregivers answering a combined ‘Agree’ and ‘Strongly Agree’ ranged from 

a low of 35% to a high of 61% across the individual statements. 
• Two items had only 35% of respondents indicate agreement.  These items also had the highest levels of 

disagreement: 
• The items with the highest levels of agreement were: 

o I am able to meet with staff at my child’s school to discuss their academic progress (61%) 
o My child’s school helps me understand what areas my student needs to improve in. (55%) 

• There is someone I can reach out to at my school to help me understand policies, procedures, and my 
rights as a parent. (55%) 

• Overall, the rates of agreement were similar to the prior year, in which they ranged from 44% to 62%. 
 
The listening and drop-in sessions provided an opportunity to engage in more depth with individual voices 
and obtain their input for how to improve student outcomes.  Key discussion topics and some of the ideas 
that emerged within those topics are summarized below. 
 
 
 
  



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

9 | P a g e  
 

Staffing and Related Supports 
• The highest needs students need more adult support for their individualized needs. This includes 

keeping students with disabilities in the classroom and making sure they are only pulled out for the 
appropriate reasons. 

 
Representation, Anti-racism, and Equity 
• Need to recruit and retain more black and indigenous teachers of color and nurture them in our 

system. 
• Need to take stock of our curriculum to ensure diverse representation. 
• No matter who a student or their family is, they should feel loved, safe and connected.   
• Supports systems for BIPOC and LGBTQ+ students are important 

 
Early Childhood Education 
• Key lever for improving outcomes for students with the highest needs. 
• Regular needs assessments and partnership with families. 
• Identify ways to increase the number of students served, both at low income and middle income 

ranges. 
 
Equitable Access to Programs 
• Libraries, music, and arts in schools are critical. 
• Ensuring the students who are GATE identified have equitable access to appropriate class/course 

placements. 
 
Supports for English Learners 
• Ensure that targeted funds are being used specifically to serve ELs and increase the quality of their 

learning. 
• Expand the focus to ELs in the early elementary grades to achieve success as early as possible. 
• Recognize that ELs have different needs than the general population and often different access to 

resources at home. 
• Improve communication with families regarding programs and services. 
• Focus on measurement of English language acquisition. 

 
Improved Data Use 
• Look beyond the ‘average students’ in the data.  Examine the outliers – those who are beyond the 

standard deviation. 
• Need to reevaluate data and feedback – use survey and other collected data. 
• Provide more technical support to school sites to think through questions of fiscal analysis, 

demographic, and equity. 
 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

10 | P a g e  
 

Resource Allocation, including Targeted Use and Community Partnerships 
• Provide school sites sufficient funds for core program – targeted funds can then be used for 

supplemental activities. 
• Utilize good, better, best plans which allow for easy pivoting when circumstances dictate.  Leverage 

community based organization to provide services. 
• Target funding to specific student populations where they are most needed.  

 
Engagement and Empowerment 
• Build capacity of parents and allow them to bring that expertise as a resource on campus 
• Expand support for PTAs and use PTAs and SSC to engage site leadership. 
• Hold annual workshop to bring together key educational partner groups/advisory councils to learn from 

each other and about the overall process. Bring in PTA leaders and other leaders to learn about 
LCFF/LCAP and how to engage at the site level. 

• Provide additional scaffolding for the most marginalized groups. 
• District needs to go into spaces that already exist instead of just holding space and expecting people to 

come. 
• Has to start with making parents feel welcome at the school site first. 
• Clearly show community where they are able to provide input within each LCAP goal area. 
• Break down the LCAP into understandable components to help community understand. 

 
Communication 
• Communication needs to clarify the alphabet soup of acronyms in education.  Make things more 

digestible. 
• Help parents understand what is important and how it impacts their child’s specific education. 

 
Mental Health 
• Need to address Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). 
• Increase Student Support Center presence and the overall approachability of staff on campus. 
• Utilize arts education as a tool to help student mental health. 

 
Improvements to the System 
• Determine how we can effectively implement across the system while also attending to the 

individualized student experience. 
• Need to be innovative – reimagine what schools do, how they function, and how they support 

students. 
• Need to support staff – our educators are amazing but also exhausted.  They can’t be at their best for 

students when they don’t have what they need. 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

11 | P a g e  
 

The LCAP Parent Advisory Committee presented a summary of their recommendations at the 3.3.22 Board 
Meeting.  These were organized into five key categories and provided short and mid-term recommendations 
within each category.  The key categories and examples of recommendations from each included: 
Systems for accurately and regularly evaluating student performance and progress 
• Short Term: Provide data on existing assessments and identify gaps – prioritize those students that 

have received zero assessments and administer accordingly 
• Mid-Term: Create a cross-sectional educational partner group to analyze existing assessments being 

used across the district – develop a set of recommended best practices 
 
Address learning loss and close gaps (academic and social) 
• Short Term: Bring all K-3 students to grade level standard in Reading and Math 
• Mid-Term: Effective implementation of strategies for differentiation, including Universal Design for 

Learning (UDL) 
 
Strategic partnerships to build capacity, leverage expertise, and break down walls between school and 
community 
• Short Term: Engage a cross-sectional group to identify strategic community partners and resources, 

inventory existing partnerships, and develop a vetting process 
• Mid-Term: Expand community schools model 

 
Increased adult support in classrooms and elimination of vacancies 
• Short Term: Increase the number of adult support staff on campus, including the number of 

instructional aides in classrooms 
• Mid-Term: Employee pipelines focused on increasing alignment/representation reflective of the district 

student population 
 
Provide mental health and social-emotional supports 
• Short Term: Increased and equitable extracurricular opportunities: Sports (interscholastic and 

intramural), art, music, clubs, vocational, college trips and field trips, and other adult-led, social 
activities 

• Mid-Term: Increase staffing and capacity to provide mental health supports (Student Support Centers) 
 
The recommendations can be viewed in full at: https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/8.3-1_2021-22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf  
 
The Black/African American Advisory Board presented input and recommendations as part of their 
presentation to the board on 2.17.22.  This included a reiteration of their existing recommendations as well 
as an overview of a revised framework for organizing their recommendations.  This framework includes four 
key areas and some highlighted priorities within: 
• Organizational and Infrastructure Development 

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3-1_2021-22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3-1_2021-22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf


Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

12 | P a g e  
 

• Improve Academic Achievement 
o Immediately identify, assess, monitor, and provide research-based, tiered intervention 

(remediation to acceleration) strategies to address the persistent learning gaps for its 
Black/African American student body. 

o Immediately address learning loss pre/during/after COVID-19 with all available resources for 
B/AA students 

Monitor Discipline and Suspension Rates 
• Monitor the established plans and provide quarterly progress updates on the school sites with over 5% 

variance on suspension rate disproportionality 
 
Mandatory Culturally Relevant Professional Development 
• B/AAAB will identify and recommend a list of vetted and qualified vendors able to provide professional 

development opportunities addressing inequitable disciplinary practices, pre-college and career 
planning, and curricular and programmatic resources reflecting Black/African experiences.  The list will 
be presented to SCUSD leadership to act and integrate into the professional learning calendar. 

 
The presentation can be viewed in full at: https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf  
 
The American Indian Education Program Parent Committee (AIEPPC), over the course of their engagement 
throughout the year, highlighted several key issues. These included: 
• Support for the creation of the position supporting the programs and expansion of services to include 

students who self-identify. 
• Desire to see the new position and expanded services result in increased graduation rates and reduced 

suspension rates. 
• Interest in developing and implementing a process for an official land acknowledgement for the district. 
• Concern about the lack of progress on the planned renaming of specified school sites. 
• Increased focus on recruitment for 9-12th grade students at the school sites. 
• Reduce turnaround time to providing students tutoring services by the contracted tutoring agency. 
• Develop partnership agreements with California Community Colleges. 

 
The Student Advisory Council (SAC) focused efforts in the areas of sexual health education and college 
access.  Key recommendations that emerged from their work included: 
• More uniformity and standardization in sex ed curriculum across the district 
• Improve instruction that addresses gender identify and sexual orientation 
• Encourage the hosting of speaker from Planned Parenthood about specific topics 
• Raise awareness about sex ed (including a resolution about National Sex Ed for All Month) 

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf


Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

13 | P a g e  
 

• Develop a structure for student representatives to serve as sexual health peer supports in addition to 
the existing staff resources 

• SCUSD should offer support for or cover completely the payment of one college application to a 
California State University (CSU) and/or a University of California (UC) campus for all seniors who are 
eligible to apply 

 
Key input provided during the spring 2022 Expanded Learning Opportunities Plan (ELOP) engagement 
process included: 
• Focus on arts-based programming including visual, music, theatre, and dance programming 
• Provide students access to the necessary materials to participate (e.g. musical instruments) 
• More professional development opportunities for all staff, including front-line staff such as 

instructional aids and team leaders 
• More technology-based programming (that is compatible for chromebooks) such as coding, gaming, 

and Math/Language. 
• Field trip opportunities for students 
• Address transportation needs for students 
• Dedicated facilities to implement expanded learning programs 

 
Feedback provided by educational partners during the ESSER III Fall 2021 engagement process served as 
foundational input for the year.  Key themes from this process included: 
• Increased mental health and general health staff/supports at each school site (e.g. social workers, 

counselors, nurses, health aides) 
• Maintain access to nutrition resources for students/families including free school meals 
• Increased access to enrichment and extra/co-curricular opportunities (e.g. gardening, sports, VAPA, 

field trips) 
• Maintain and expand access to before and after school programs 
• Provide more individualized supports (e.g. individual learning plans, individual tutoring/intervention 

supports, and more instructional aides/specialists) 
• Increase efforts to recruit, retain, and support staff – including compensation for efforts 
• Partner with Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) and other community groups to expand offerings 

to students that the district cannot provide alone 
• Expand Social Emotional Learning (SEL) programs and resources 
• Provide instructional supports for teachers including planning time, resources to purchase supplies, 

access to software programs, and a reimagined vision of instruction that fits our new educational 
context. 

 
Additionally, community members emphasized the following for consideration in the ESSER III planning 
process: 
• We should be funding/supporting actions that might ordinarily present obstacles to fully funding but 

can now be supported because we have these one-time funds (e.g. elementary sports expansion) 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

14 | P a g e  
 

• Invest in actions that build long-term capacity beyond the life of the funds (e.g. develop in-house 
trainers to maintain/expand specific professional learning) 

• Provide seed money/invest in Community Based Organizations (CBOs) that can implement actions 
more effectively than we can.  (e.g. A $100,000 dollar investment into a CBO could yield far greater 
impact than a single employee for a single year) 

• Provide funding that allows student/families to access community resources that may not be available 
in-district or cannot be provided due to lack of staffing (e.g. YM/WCA activities, CSUS opportunities) 

• Use the existing priorities voiced by the community as a guide for planning 
 
Educational partner input influenced the development of the LCAP in several important ways.  This included 
the development of new LCAP goals, revision of the framing of desired outcomes, and continued 
improvement to the transparency and detail in measurable outcome and action descriptions.   
 
The development of new LCAP goals specific to student groups (Goal 9, 10, and 11) were supported by input 
from educational partners.  Input that had significant influence included: 
• The development of Goal 9 by the district’s Special Education Department was influenced by input form 

the district’s Community Advisory Community (CAC).  This included their ongoing discussions over the 
course of the year as well as a special meeting on 3.8.22 to provide input specifically towards the goal 
development.  Their input had specific input on all aspects of the development process including the 
goal statement, rationale, measurable outcomes, and actions.  In response to input, the goal statement 
is focused on the need to provide every student receiving Special Education services an inclusive 
instructional program, with the context of Least Restrictive Environment (LRE) as a key indicator, but 
not the purpose in and unto itself.  CAC input similarly influenced the actions, which include several 
focused on professional learning for staff aimed at increasing inclusivity, measurable outcomes, and 
access to standards aligned instruction.  The rationale for the goal also cites key CAC input regarding 
persistent inequitable outcomes at the intersection of race and disability, lack of access to inclusive 
environments, and empowering staff.  

• The development of Goal 10 by the district’s Homeless Youth Services staff was influence by input and 
thought partnership with colleagues from the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) through a 
collaborative workshop on required goals as well as recurring input from educational partners in recent 
years.  Collectively, these partners have consistently reaffirmed the need to improve the rate of 
identification of Homeless Youth as a necessary first step in improving outcomes for this student group.  
With a projected Homeless Youth population equal to 5-10% of the districts low-income population, 
SCUSD has significant room for improvement with an annual percentage of ~1% in recent years.  Given 
the recurring partner input and SCUSD’s own recognition of the need in this area, staff focused goal 
development toward the improvement of identification processes and overall rates. Specific input from 
educational partners resulted in the revision of the goal statement to include the word ‘respectfully.’  
Educational partners noted that some families have had challenging experiences with the identification 
process in the past and that respect should be prioritized alongside efficiency and effectiveness in the 
implementation of the goal. 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

15 | P a g e  
 

 
Revisions to existing goals, measurable outcomes, and actions is annually influenced by educational partner 
input.  Notable examples from this year’s engagement cycle include: 
• Increased disaggregation: A significant growth from the previous three-year LCAP to the current cycle 

was the increased disaggregation of student group data across the wide range of measurable outcomes 
in the LCAP.  In response to input from Multilingual Literacy, who works in partnership with the DELAC, 
several measurable outcomes have been further disaggregated to include Migrant Youth.  These 
include A-G completion rates, State Seal of Bilteracy Rates, High School Drop-out Rates, and Suspension 
Rates. 

• Revised targets across key measurable outcomes: Following input from educational partners, most 
notably the LCAP PAC in their spring discussions, several measurable outcomes have revised targets 
that set a single goal for 2023-24 (rather than the previous disaggregated targets) for all student groups 
performing under the current ‘All students’ level.  This shift occurred in response to the desire of 
partners to set target outcomes that are easy to understand, focus attention and effort on historically 
underperforming student groups, and are realistic.  They noted that, as efforts are focused on these 
student groups and their growth is accelerated, the ‘All students’ rates will rise more rapidly than if 
small improvements are made for those groups who are already achieving above the ‘All students’ 
level.   

• Revision of Action Titles and Descriptions: Educational partners shared in the past and have continued 
to emphasize the importance of action titles and descriptions that are easy for all community members 
to understand in terms of the key actions to be accomplished and that also clearly communicate how 
target student groups are being served.  While this area of improvement will remain an area of focus 
over the coming years, this initial effort resulted in significant revision of action titles and descriptions. 

• Alignment of LCAP action to ESSER III Expenditure Plan- and other key plans: Educational partners have 
continued to seek greater transparency in the use of funding and overall alignment of district efforts. In 
response to this advocacy, the 2022-23 LCAP includes references and – where applicable – new actions 
that reflect the aligned efforts of the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  An example of a new action is 1.11 
(Establish college and career readiness labs at Middle Schools), which is a key piece of the districts 
College and Career Readiness efforts.  Where ESSER III actions are supplemental to existing actions, a 
reference note has been included so the community can identify where multiple funding streams and 
plans are working together.  An example of a reference note is Action 3.9 (Attendance and Engagement 
Strategies), which is supplemented by Action B7 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  The Expanded 
Learning Opportunities action (2.3) also includes specific alignment to the Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Plan (ELOP) and the new actions 8.5 (Employee Pipelines) and 8.6 (Recruitment and 
Retention) are aligned to both the ESSER III plan and the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (EEBG) 
plan. 

• Development of new LCAP Actions: A key example is the new Action 5.9 (Special Education Adult 
Professional Learning).  This action was informed by input from the Community Advisory Committee 
(CAC) and will focus on the provision of adult professional learning regarding federal and special 
education law, multi-tiered system of supports, and alternative dispute resolution to SCUSD 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability  
Summary of Educational Partner Input to the LCAP 
May 19, 2022  
  

 

16 | P a g e  
 

Ombudspersons to expand their expertise in proving information and supports to guardians’ requests 
for assistance in achieving resolution. 

 
 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps: 
 
Remaining Checkpoints in the LCAP development and adoption process include: 

• June 9, 2022:  LCAP/Budget Public Hearing 
• June 23, 2022:  LCAP/Budget Adoption 
• June 28, 2022:  Deadline to Submit LCAP to Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) 
• Summer 2021:  (If needed) SCOE Feedback, SCUSD Revisions, SCOE Approval 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Terms: 
 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
A three-year plan that describes the goals, actions, services, and expenditures to support positive student 
outcomes. 
 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
The state’s method for funding school districts 
 
LCFF Base Funding 
Uniform base grant based on grade span and average daily attendance 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
English Learners, Foster Youth Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students 
 
LCFF Supplemental Grant Funding 
Additional funding based upon unduplicated pupil percentage 
 
LCFF Concentration Grant Funding 
Additional funding based upon the percentage of unduplicated pupils exceeding 55% of district’s enrollment 
 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
 

Agenda Item 11.1a 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
3. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
  Dan Sanchez, Purchasing Manager 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 4  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

California Department of Education 
A22-00081 

☐  Yes 
☒  No, received grant in 2020/21 

$272,750 
No Match 

7/1/21 – 9/30/23: Federal Preschool Grant per the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Part B. 
Funding supports certificated and classified staff who assess, evaluate, and provide instruction to 
preschool age children. Children are referred for evaluation by preschool staff. This grant also supports 
multi-cultural intervention at the preschool level. 

 
 
 
EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Miracle Play System 
R22-04800 
 
Utilizing Sourcewell 
Cooperative 
Purchasing 
Agreement  
#010521-LTS 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Purchase and installation of playground structure and 
poured-in-place rubber safety surfacing for the Elder 
Creek Playfield Renovation Project. 
 
The Purchasing and Facilities departments find it is in 
the best interest of the District to utilize Sourcewell 
agreement #010521-LTS pursuant to Public Contract 
Code § 20118, which allows other government 
agencies, such as school districts, to piggyback on 
awards while still satisfying the legally required 
competition for contracts. Sourcewell (formerly NJPA) is 
a State of Minnesota local government agency. As a 
Sourcewell member, the District is able to utilize 
Sourcewell’s nationally bid Playground and Water Play 
Equipment with Related Equipment and Services 
contract to purchase the playground structure, poured-
in-place rubber safety surface, and installation directly 
from Miracle Play System without the time and expense 
of competitively bidding the equipment itself. 

$178,814.54 
Measure Q Funds 

   
Park Associates, Inc. 
R22-04792 
 
Utilizing National 
Purchasing Partners 
dba NPPGov 
Cooperative 
Purchasing 
Agreement #2060 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Purchase of playground structure for the Parkway Play 
Structures and Site Repair Project. 
 
The Purchasing and Facilities departments find it is in 
the best interest of the District to utilize NPPGov 
agreement #2060 pursuant to Public Contract Code § 
20118, which allows other government agencies, such 
as school districts, to piggyback on awards while still 
satisfying the legally required competition for contracts. 
NPPGov is a national cooperative procurement 
organization based in Seattle, WA; the Lead Public 
Agency for agreement #2060 is the League of Oregon 
Cities. As an NPPGov member, the District is able to 
utilize NPPGov’s nationally bid Park, Playground and 

$326,049.26 
Measure Q Funds 



 Page 2 of 4  

Recreation Equipment contract to purchase the 
playground structure directly from Park Associates 
without the time and expense of competitively bidding 
the equipment itself. 

   
Park Associates, Inc. 
dba Park Planet 
R22-04002 
 
Utilizing National 
Purchasing Partners 
dba NPPGov 
Cooperative 
Purchasing 
Agreement #2060 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Purchase of eight steel shade structures for installation 
at Caroline Wenzel, Earl Warren, Elder Creek, 
Hollywood Park, John Still, Mark Twain, Rosa Parks and 
Leonardo da Vinci as part of the Shade Structures at 8 
Sites Project. 
 
The Purchasing and Facilities departments find it is in 
the best interest of the District to utilize NPPGov 
agreement #2060 pursuant to Public Contract Code § 
20118, which allows other government agencies, such 
as school districts, to piggyback on awards while still 
satisfying the legally required competition for contracts. 
NPPGov is a national cooperative procurement 
organization based in Seattle, WA; the Lead Public 
Agency for agreement #2060 is the League of Oregon 
Cities. As an NPPGov member, the District is able to 
utilize NPPGov’s nationally bid Park, Playground and 
Recreation Equipment contract to purchase the shade 
structures directly from Park Associates, Inc. without the 
time and expense of competitively bidding the 
equipment itself. 

$925,073 
COVID Relief 

Funds 

   
 
FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 
 
Tutor Me LA, LLC 
SA22-00221 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

8/1/21 – 6/30/22: Agreement for provision of academic 
tutoring sessions and/or homework support in Math and 
English Language Arts for foster youth and homeless 
students as needed during the 2021/22 school year. 
Contractor will work with students that are functioning at 
one or more years below grade level individually and in 
groups of up to 3 students. Contractor will track student 
outcomes in the areas of academic growth and 
attendance and provide a year-end report on program 
outcomes.  
 
Services began in the fall but due to greater-than-
expected student demand for the program additional 
funding is being requested which will increase the 
contract above the threshold where Board approval is 
required ($99,100).   

Original Amount: 
$95,000 

 
Increase: 
$39,000 

 
New Total: 

$134,000 
Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Grant 

   
   
SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 
Nonpublic School and 
Agency Providers 
 
 

5/1/21 – 6/30/22: Ratification is requested for new 
master contract with Mountain Valley Child and Family 
Services, Inc. and increases to five existing contracts 
with the below Non-Public Schools and Agencies, 
approved on August 19, 2021.  
 
Non-Public School services include basic education, 
related services, and room and board/mental health 
services for students in day treatment 
programs/residential placements. Non-Public Agency 

See Below 
Special Education 

Funds 



 Page 3 of 4  

services include Speech and Language Pathology, 
Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy, Music 
Therapy, aides, and nurses for services that are 
identified on Individual Education Plans (IEPs). When 
the District is not able to provide services via District 
employees, the use of contract agencies is necessary to 
ensure that we comply with state and federal law that 
govern special education. 
 

 New Non-Public School Contract:  
S22-00072 Mountain Valley Child and Family Services, Inc.  $50,000 
   
 Existing Non-Public School/Agency Contracts: Increase New Total 
S22-00001 
S22-00004 
S22-00007 
S22-00036 
S22-00066 

Global Teletherapy 
Access Language Connection 
Aldar Academy 
Point Quest Education 
Beach Cities Learning dba Learn Academy 

$210,000 
$250,000 
$200,000 
$300,000 

$3,000 

$566,383 
$890,000 
$820,000 

$1,650,000 
$38,000 

    
    
STATE & FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
 
Vision 2000 
SA22-00209 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

9/2/21 – 6/30/22: Ratification is requested for agreement 
and amendment to develop, administer, maintain and 
sustain the tutoring/intervention program under 
ESSA/ESEA to eligible private school students during 
the 2021-22 school year. Through this agreement, 
Vision 2000 works collaboratively with the District to 
develop, support, coordinate, and implement the Vision 
2000 Student Support Program. This collaboration is 
designed to assist academically low performing, eligible 
students who live in District Title I funded school 
attendance areas with literacy and numeracy 
development services designed to support increased 
academic achievement and provide opportunities for 
parents to actively participate in their children’s 
education. Increase is necessary because eligible 
private schools have allocated a higher share of their 
Title I budgets to tutoring services. This is the fourth year 
Vision 2000 has served as a third party provider for the 
non-profit private school equitable services program. In 
this role, they have provided excellent service and have 
shown a dedication to ensuring that all students receive 
quality academic supports and interventions.  

Original Amount: 
$80,000 

 
Increase: 
$70,000 

 
New Total: 

$150,000 
Title I Funds 

 
 
 
  



 Page 4 of 4  

RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS   

Project: Lease-Leaseback Agreement for Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and  
 Locker Room Improvement   
 
Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction 

for preconstruction services of $25,000 for this project. Authorize staff to 
pursue a lease-leaseback contract with Otto Construction for construction 
services for this project using a fee-based contract with a percentage fee of 
4.0%. Once plans are finalized, approved by Division of State Architect and the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of the project is developed the construction 
contract will be submitted to the Board for approval. The cost of construction is 
currently estimated at $4,688,487.  

 
Amount/Funding: $25,000; Measure Q Funds 
 
 
Project: Lease-Leaseback Agreement for John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC 
 Replacement   
 
Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with Landmark Construction for 

preconstruction services of $10,636 for this project. Authorize staff to pursue a 
lease-leaseback contract with Landmark Construction for construction services 
for this project using a fee-based contract with a percentage fee of 5.50%. 
Once plans are finalized, approved by Division of State Architect and the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of the project is developed, the 
construction contract will be submitted to the Board for approval. The cost of 
construction is currently estimated at $3,800,000.  

 
Amount/Funding: $10,636; ESSER and Ongoing and Major Maintenance Restricted Maintenance 

Funds 
 
 
Project: Lease-Leaseback Agreement for Sutter HVAC Modernization  
 
Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with John F. Otto dba Otto Construction for 

preconstruction services of $25,000 for this project. Authorize staff to pursue a 
lease-leaseback contract with Otto Construction for construction services for 
this project using a fee-based contract with a percentage fee of 4.00%. Once 
plans are finalized, approved by Division of State Architect and the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) of the project is developed, the construction contract 
will be submitted to the Board for approval. The cost of construction is currently 
estimated at $1,500,000.  

 
Amount/Funding: $25,000; ESSER Funds 
 
Recent state legislation (AB2316) made significant changes to K-12 lease-leaseback statutes, Education 
Code §17400 et seq.  AB2316 requires a competitive process in selecting the lease-leaseback contractor, 
and in some cases, authorizes pre-construction services by the same lease-leaseback contractor. 
 
Per AB2316, staff solicited “Request for Proposals” by advertising and sending notices directly to 
contractors.  Proposals received were evaluated and ranked based on scoring criteria used to determine 
“best value”. 
 
 



California Department of Education
Fiscal Administrative Services Division 
AO-400 (REV. 9/2014) 

Grant Award Notification 
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS 
Sacramento City Unified School District
PO Box 246870 
Sacramento, CA 95824-6870 

CDE GRANT NUMBER 

FY PCA 
Vendor 
Number 

Suffix 

21 13430 67439 01 

Attention 
Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT 
CODE STRUCTURE 

COUNTY 

Program Office 
Sacramento City Unified SELPA, 3412 

Resource 
Code 

Revenue 
Object Code 

34 

Telephone 
916-643-9000 3315 8182 INDEX 

Name of Grant Program 
2021 22 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 619 Federal Preschool Grant 0663 

GRANT 
DETAILS 

Original/Prior 
Amendments 

Amendment 
Amount 

Total 
Amend. 

No. 

Award 
Starting 

Date 

Award 
Ending 

Date 

$272,750   $272,750   07/01/2021 09/30/2023 

CFDA 
Number 

Federal Grant 
Number Federal Grant Name  Federal Agency 

84.173A H173A210120 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 Part B, Section 619 
United States Department of 

Education 

I am pleased to inform you that you have been funded for the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
619 Federal Preschool Grant award.  

This award is made contingent upon the availability of funds. If the Legislature takes action to reduce or defer 
the funding upon which this award is based, then this award will be amended accordingly.  

Please return the original Grant Award Notification form (AO-400) with original signature to: 

Emily Bunnell, Education Programs Consultant 
California Department of Education 

 1430 N Street, Room 2401 
Sacramento, CA 95814-5901 

Please also scan and email a copy of the signed Grant Award Notification to EBunnell@cde.ca.gov.  

California Department of Education Contact 
Emily Bunnell 

Job Title 
Education Programs Consultant 

Email Address 
EBunnell@cde.ca.gov  

Telephone 
916-327-3536 

Signature of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or Designee Date 
January 24, 2022 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT REQUIREMENTS 
On behalf of the grantee named above, I accept this grant award. I have read the applicable certifications, 

assurances, terms, and conditions identified on the grant application (for grants with an application process) or 
in this document or both; and I agree to comply with all requirements as a condition of funding. 

Printed Name of Authorized Agent 
     

Title 
      

Email Address 
     

Telephone 
      

Signature 
 

Date 
      



CDE Grant Number: 21 13430 67439 01 
January 24, 2022
Page 2 

Grant Award Notification (Continued) 
The following grant conditions apply: 

1. This grant was awarded to the California Department of Education (CDE) by the U.S. 
Department of Education (ED). This program is authorized under the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Part B, Section 619, as amended on December 3, 2004, and 
codified under Public Law (PL) 108 446, 20 United States Code (USC) 1400 et seq. 
Implementing regulations for this program are in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 300. This grant shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the 
IDEA. 

2. IDEA Part B funds are subject to the uniform administrative requirements, cost principles, and 
audit requirements for federal awards codified in 2 CFR Part 200 and commonly referred to as 
the uniform guidance. The uniform guidance provisions in 2 CFR Part 200 replace provisions 
previously found in the Education Department General Administrative Regulations in 34 CFR 
parts 74 and 80, and prior Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-87 and A-133.  

3. General assurances and certifications are required for grants supported by federal funds and 
are hereby incorporated by reference. The CDE has agreed to accept the assurances your 
agency currently provides in the Consolidated Application. Information about the general 
assurances and certifications are available on the CDE General Assurances 2021 22 web 
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2021-22.asp.  

4. The grantee must sign and complete the Certification of Acceptance of Grant Requirements 
section of the AO-400 form, which certifies the grantee accepts and agrees to the conditions of 
the grant. The grantee must return the signed AO-400 form to the CDE. 

5. The grantee must complete and return to the CDE the Expenditure Report. Please ensure that 
these funds are appropriately reported by using the Standardized Account Code Structure 
indicated on this award. All approved project funds must be expended within the designated 
award period. Refer to the enclosed Expenditure Report Instruction for detailed information on 
reporting requirements and payment reimbursements. Note: The Federal Cash Management 
Improvement Act of 1990 was enacted by PL 101 453 and codified at 31 USC sections 3335, 
6501, and 6503. The implementing regulations are provided in Title 31 of the CFR Part 205. In 
accordance with Title 31 CFR Part 205.10, the CDE grant allocations must be limited to the 
actual, immediate cash requirements of the grantee. 

6. Upon completion of grant conditions 3 through 5, the initial payment will be processed up to the 
actual expenditures reported.  

7. The grantee must provide the special education local plan area (SELPA) responsible local 
agency/administrative unit (RLA/AU) negotiated, approved, federally recognized indirect cost 
rate (ICR) for agency-wide and general management costs according to CFR Part 
200.331(a)(4). The CDE-approved rates for local educational agencies (LEAs) are available on 
the CDE indirect cost rates (ICR) web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic/. The SELPA 
RLA/AU must complete the ICR report and return with the final expenditure report. When 
submitting the ICR report, the grantee must report the maximum allowable and actual indirect 
cost claimed by each SELPA RLA/AU receiving IDEA funds excluding pass-through to LEAs. 

8. The grantee must return to the CDE the final expenditure report and ICR report no later than  



CDE Grant Number: 21 13430 67439 01 
January 24, 2022
Page 3 

Grant Award Notification (Continued) 

October 11, 2023, to meet end-of-year federal reporting and payment deadlines. Upon receipt 
of these documents, up to 100 percent of the grant will be reimbursed. 

9. Under the False Claims Act, each recipient awarded funds under the IDEA shall promptly refer 
to the ED Office of Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, 
agent, contractor, sub-recipient, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim or 
has committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, 
bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving those funds. Information about the ED OIG 
Hotline is available on the OIG Hotline Fraud Prevention web page at 
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oig/hotline.html. 

10. Under authority of the CDE, if your agency is identified as noncompliant, special conditions 
may be imposed. The State Superintendent of Public Instruction may authorize the CDE to 
withhold partial or total funding. Agencies with sanctions will receive notification of special 
conditions. No payments will be released to agencies with special conditions until the CDE 
receives written notification from the agency agreeing to the special conditions. 

If you have any questions regarding payment status, please contact the Special Education Division, 
Administrative Services Unit, by email at SEDGrants@cde.ca.gov.  

cc: Business Fiscal Officer: Expenditure Report   
SELPA Director





4/29/2022 

  
 Elder Creek 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 1 of 5 

 
Job Number: 22-0578 
Job: Elder Creek 
Quote Name:  Quote-22-0578-ElderCreek_001 
Quote Number:  Q-03140 
  
Prepared by: 
KarlManiglia 
karl@miracleplaygroup.com 
  

 

Terms: Net 30 
Remit to: Miracle Playsystems, Inc. 
1276 S Main St., Salinas, CA 93901 

Sub Total:  $162,175.80 
Freight:  $7,359.00 

Estimated Tax:  $9,279.74 
Total:  $178,814.54 

  

 
 

Miracle  

Product Code Description Qty Rate Total Estimated Tax ( if 
applicable) 

MREC EQUIP Provide Miracle Recreation Playground 

Equipment per Plan View 
22_0578_001 (Model 714-S514) 

1 $79,716.00 $75,730.20 $6,626.39 

 
 

 
 

Installation Services  

Product Code Description Qty Rate Total Estimated Tax ( if 

applicable) 

B13 Offload/Transport Play Equipment as 
Needed 

1 $1,080.00 $1,080.00 $0.00 

B15 Installation of New Play Equipment per 
Plan View 22_0578_001 to 

Specification by Certified Miracle 
Equipment Installer 

1 $34,818.00 $34,818.00 $0.00 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 



4/29/2022 

  
 Elder Creek 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 2 of 5 

Rubber/Turf Surfacing  

Product Code Description Qty Rate Total Estimated Tax ( if 

applicable) 

C6 Provide Poured-in-Place Rubber Safety 
Surfacing Materials; Critical Fall Height 
= 7'-0"; Color Blend to be 50% Black, 
50% Standard Color (Red, Blue, Green 

or Beige) 

2,280 $13.30 $30,324.00 $2,653.35 

C1 Installation of Poured-in-Place Rubber 
Safety Surfacing; No Graphics are 
Included; Installation to be Over 
Prepared Area by Others; Includes 

Concrete Curbs and Base Rock or 
Concrete Sub Base Prepared to 
Specification 

2,280 $8.87 $20,223.60 $0.00 

 
 

 
  Sub Total: $162,175.80 

Total Freight:  $7,359.00 
Total Estimated Tax:  $9,279.74 

Grand Total:  $178,814.54 
 Company: ________________________________________ 
  
Signature: ________________________________________ 
  
Name: ___________________________________________ 
  
Date: ____________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4/29/2022 

  
 Elder Creek 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 3 of 5 

Sourcewell Contract # 010521-LTS 

 
Qty Model          Description                                      
====================================================== 
6 7145029        DECK                                                         
1 7146386        GROOVE II SLIDE                                         
1 71471516      ELECTRONIC PIANO PANEL                         
3 714816W        WAVE BARRIER                                             
1 71472312W9    WIDE 12' BURMA BRIDGE                          
1 7147613        GEAR                                                            
1 7147716S      DUPLI-GATOR SLIDE                                    
1 71499349       ADA STAIRS 1'6" RISE                                 
1 7146615        DNA CLIMBER                                              
1 714796P1       BELL                                                            
1 7147155        JUMP PANEL, 5' DECK                                   
1 714872H12      12' HIP CRAWL TUBE                                    
1 7146835        HURRICANE CLIMBER                                   
1 71495949       ADA STAIRS 2' RISE                                        
1 714700         SIDE-BY-SIDE SLIDE                                        
1 714994         FUN FONE                                             
1 714994Z        FUN FONE                                         
1 7147146        PILOT W/WINDOW                                   
1 71497049       ARCH BRIDGE                                      
1 7149071        L-SLIDE                                          
1 71485139       TRANSFER POINT                                   
3 7148614        SQUARE ROOF                                      
1 714633         HOW TALL RU PANEL                                
8 714552        5" OD X 136" POST 552  ..(3'-5' DECK)         
4 7145493        5" OD X 112" POST 549-3 ..(3' DECK)            
8 714574         5" OD X 186" ROOF 574 ..(5'6"-6'6" DECK)       
4 714572         5" OD X 144" ROOF 572 ..(=< 3' DECK)      

 
 
 
 



4/29/2022 

  
 Elder Creek 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 4 of 5 

Please confirm or edit order information below. 

End User Company:  
Sacramento City Unified School District 
End User Contact:  
End User Email: 
  
Delivery Contact:  
Delivery Email:  
Delivery Phone:  
Delivery Address:   
7934 Lemon Hill Ave Sacramento 
CA 95824 
  
Site Address:  
7934 Lemon Hill Avenue 
Sacramento 
  

Bill To Email:  
  
Bill To:  
Sacramento City Unified School District, 
425 1st Street, 
Sacramento, Ca, 
95818 
  
Customer Reference #: 

  

INDEMNITY 
Client/Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Miracle Playsystems, Inc., its officers, directors, board of trustees,  agents, or employees and each of them, from any and all claims, 
demands, causes of action in law or in equity, damages, penalties, costs, expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees, reasonable experts’ fees, reasonable consultants’ fees, judgments, losses or 
liabilities, of every kind and nature whatsoever arising out of or in any way connected with or incidental to, the performance of the services under this Agreement or any of the obligations 
contained in this Agreement (“Claims”). Without limitation, “damages” include personal injury, including, but not limited to bodily injury, emotional injury, sickness or disease, or death to 
persons, including, but not limited to, any employees or agents of Miracle Playsystems, Inc., or any other person; or other damages of any kind to anyone including, without limitation, 
economic loss, property damage and loss of use thereof. It is expressly acknowledged and agreed that each of the foregoing indemnities is independent, that each shall be given effect, and 
that each shall apply despite any acts or omissions, misconduct or negligent conduct, whether active or passive, on the part of, or other contractor(s); provided, however, Miracle Playsystems, 
Inc. duty to indemnify shall be limited to the percentage or the degree Miracle Playsystems, Inc. comparative negligence caused any damages. 
  
STANDARD NOTES 

• Price quotation is good for 30 days. Accurate color selections must be made in writing prior to equipment going into production. Colors to be confirmed with your local 
sales representative.  

• PLEASE MAKE PURCHASE ORDER TO MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC at PO Box 263 Alamo, CA 94507 
• PLEASE REMIT CHECKS TO: MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS INC., 1276 S MAIN ST, SALINAS, CA 93901 
• Please email/fax quotation with your signature to accept this quote and place order. Fax 510-893-2163 or email Info@MiraclePlayGroup.com 
• Unless otherwise specified, Miracle Playsystems, Inc DOES NOT include the following in this proposal:  

• Engineered drawings 
• Installation of equipment or other site amenities  
• Specialty trades, equipment, power supply required to install equipment 

• Any insurance requiring in excess of $1M/$2M per occurrence, special insurance coverage or wording, Prevailing/Certified wage rates, local permitting, bid/performance 
bonds, temp fencing, geo tech surveys, playground safety inspection, equipment offload, and testing services. 

• Inspect equipment upon delivery. Color discrepancy must be reported at time of delivery. Installation constitutes acceptance of colors.  
• Warranty does not cover labor for reinstallation. 

  
TERMS & CONDITIONS 

• Purchase contract terms & conditions of sale: The client/customer’s acceptance and understanding of these terms & conditions and all other supporting documentation 
provided as part of this package is evidenced by signing of this estimate/quote.  



4/29/2022 

  
 Elder Creek 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 5 of 5 

• Payment terms: Standard terms (on approved credit), unless otherwise noted are 50% with order and balance to ship equipment (no retention). Should any changes be 
required to the products after order is placed, modifications or changes will be at client/customers expense. Miracle Playsystems, Inc maintains a no return policy and asks 
all clients to determine feature, layout and color selection prior to ordering. Should any order be cancelled after production has started a 30% restocking fee will be 

charged to client. Credit card convenience fee is 3.5% which will be added to all credit card charges  
• Lead times: Estimated lead times for the time the order is released into production until it is delivered will vary.  
• Lead times may currently be extended due to reasons such as supply chain issues, shipping delays, raw material shortages, and other COVID-19 related impacts. 
• Custom play feature lead times are determined on a case by case basis. 

  
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (if applicable) 
Unless otherwise noted, we exclude responsibility for material delivery & offloading equipment, removal & disposal of packaging accumulated by equipment packaging, project security, 
landscape & hardscape repair based on access route to site, delays or returns due to layout conflicts or delay of other trades, removal of spoils from job site, locating underground: utilities, 
pipes, obstructions in work area, conditions unforeseen and/or not disclosed at time of estimate, permits, engineering, material testing, soil samples, CPSI. Conditions: Grades; stable, 
compacted & workable with 95% compaction and less than 1% grade, adequate access to site for labor, materials, tools and equipment. Estimate good for 90 days from quote or Dec. 31 of 
current calendar year, whichever comes first. Terms: Upon completion. 
  
  
GENERAL TERMS 

• THIS QUOTE IS LIMITED TO AND GOVERNED BY THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN: Miracle Playsystems, Inc. objects to any other terms proposed by client, in writing or 
otherwise, as material alterations, and all such proposed terms shall be void. Client authorizes Miracle Playsystems, Inc. to ship equipment and agrees to pay the total 
specified. Shipping terms are FOB the place of shipment via common carrier. 

• Client and owner/operator agree to indemnify and hold Miracle Playsystems, Inc. harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, penalties, damages and expenses, 
including costs and attorney fees, resulting from any and all claims, liens, damages, actions, suits, judgments or settlements, injuries arising or alleged to arise out of their 
failure, or failure of architect, contractors, subcontractors, installers, employees, agents and assigns to assemble, install, inspect and/or maintain the play equipment and 
impact absorbing surfacing in full compliance with each manufacturers installation instructions and safety requirements and their misuse and/or alteration of the play 
equipment. 

  
Company: ______________________________________ 
  
Signature: ______________________________________ 
  
Name: ______________________________________ 
  
Date: ______________________________________ 

 

 



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP #010521 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and PlayPower, Inc., 11515 Vanstory Drive #100, Huntersville, NC  28078 
(Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to federal, 
state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Playground and Water Play Equipment with Related 
Accessories and Services from which Vendor was  awarded a contract.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires February 17, 2025, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract may be extended up to one additional 
one-year period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           2 
 

All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 
Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute 
over warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past 
the expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will 
make available to Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized dealers, 
distributors, and/or resellers relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this 
Contract. This list may be updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by 
reference. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current 
version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           3 
 

time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. 
   
Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Vendor as soon 
as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with 
conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

• Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
• Clearly specify the requested change; 
• Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
• Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 
along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
• Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 
effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           4 
 

restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will become an amendment 
to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 
to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Vendor. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating 
Entity issues a purchase order, it may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly 
note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this 
Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this Contract; however, Vendor performance, 
Participating Entity payment, and any applicable warranty periods or other Vendor or 
Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           5 
 

Vendor’s acceptable forms of payment are included in Attachment A.  Participating Entities will 
be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any unpaid invoice of 
any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Vendor, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or immigration status requirements), 
or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating Entitles may require the use of a 
Participating Addendum; the terms of which will be worked out directly between the 
Participating Entity and the Vendor.  Any negotiated additional terms and conditions must 
never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, 
specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in 
this Contract, the Participating Entity and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal,  state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms agreed to 
between the Vendor and a Participating Entity. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

• Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
• Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
• Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           6 
 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other 
necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

• Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
• Customer Physical Street Address; 
• Customer City; 
• Customer State/Province; 
• Customer Zip Code; 
• Customer Contact Name; 
• Customer Contact Email Address; 
• Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
• Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
• Item Purchased Description; 
• Item Purchased Price;  
• Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
• Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Vendor will submit payment to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased 
by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should 
note the Vendor’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be 
mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to 
Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments 
must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           7 
 

 
Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant this Agreement are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the 
terms set out in Articles 1-22, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           8 
 

respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused 
by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use theTrademark(s) provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Vendor. 
b. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing 
representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship to Participating 
Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Article. 
Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           9 
 

a. Sourcewell must not alter Vendor’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Vendor and must comply with Vendor’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
trademarks or logos.   
b. Vendor must not alter Sourcewell’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Sourcewell and must comply with Sourcewell’s removal requests as to specific uses 
of its trademarks or logos.   
c. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent 
with such party’s use of the Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching party, 
the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach 
or the license will be terminated.  

4. As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its 
Participating Entities against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or 
recovered against Sourcewell or Participating Entities by any person on account of the use 
of any Equipment or Products by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities supplied by Vendor 
in violation of applicable patent or copyright laws. 
5. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of vendors which may be used until the next printing).  Vendor must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator 
assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           10 
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes the 
issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Vendor will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Participating Entities as a result 
of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           11 
 

• Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
• Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 
Contract. 

 
18. INSURANCE 

  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 
broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor 
will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles in limits 
of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms no less 
broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), or 
equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           12 
 

4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain umbrella 
coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and Commercial 
Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Professional/Technical, Errors and Omissions, and/or Miscellaneous Professional 
Liability. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for all claims 
the Vendor may become legally obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged 
negligent act, error, or omission related to Vendor’s professional services required 
under this Contract.  

 Minimum Limits:  
$2,000,000 per claim or event 
$2,000,000 – annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must furnish 
to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of 
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           13 
 

maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Vendor conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may also require 
additional requirements based on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all 
references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           14 
 

The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Vendor’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           15 
 

hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24



010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           16 
 

agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 
also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e70d4d5b3d21f635ea2aec391214bde6&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:31:200.322
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=89450cc597955157f0392deeabdb3199&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:31:200.322
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=89450cc597955157f0392deeabdb3199&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:31:200.322
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=32b12e59e5274a5fa6d18d6b129446fa&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:31:200.322
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/40/part-247


010521-LTS 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           17 
 

22. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 

Sourcewell        PlayPower, Inc. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz W. Todd Brinker 

Title: Director of Operations & 
Procurement/CPO 

Title: Senior Vice President Global Sales & 
Marketing Outdoor Play 
 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

Approved:  
  

By: __________________________ 
 

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F416D837-E545-4A9D-8F62-28D5E4268B24

2/15/2021 | 10:36 PM CST 2/15/2021 | 2:23 PM CST

2/15/2021 | 10:46 PM CST























'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - CAROLINE WENZEL 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1676 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - EARL WARREN 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1677 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00 

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - ELDER CREEK 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1678 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - HOLLYWOOD PARK 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1679 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - JOHN STILL (K-5) 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1680 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - MARK TWAIN 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1681 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00 

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









'"': 

� 
Park Planet 

Quoted To: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Ave 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contact: James Dobson 

Phone: 916.264.4075 / Email: jimd@scusd.edu 

# Description 

30'X64' ICON DSA HIP SHELTER - ROSA PARKS 

DSARH30X64-1 0M-P4 
Rectangular Hip Shelter 
24 Ga. Pre-Cut Standing Seam Metal Roof Panel (Ribs @ 12' 
Centers) 
4:12 Roof Slope 
10' Eave Height 
Gutters and (4) Downspouts 
Electrical Cutouts (2 Total) 
Ecoat/Powdercoat Frame 
Standard Roof & Frame colors 

(Upcharge for Custom Colors) 
Anchor Bolts & Templates 
Rebar Cages NOT included 

PURCHASING CONTRACT DISCOUNT 

Vendor 

ICON 

2 National 
Purchasing 

National Purchasing Partners Contract #PS21050 
Customer Member ID#: M-5720358
*NPP Discount not valid unless customer is an NPP member Partners 

SHIPPING 

3 ICON Freight 

EXCLUSIONS 

4 Site Drawings, Welding Inspection, Special Field Inspection 
Fees & Submission To DSA By Others 

Fabrication cannot begin until customer has provided supplier 
with proof of DSA approval 

ICON 

Park Planet 

5 Equipment only. Installation to be supplied by others. Park Planet 

6 Offloading & storage of equipment is the customer's Park Planet 
responsibility. For most products a forklift rated for 5000Ibs or 
more is recommended. 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS - DUE TO THE CURRENT INDUSTRY WIDE 
VOLATILITY OF STEEL, AFTER 30 DAYS STEEL PRICES MAY ADJUST. 
CURRENTLY EXPERIENCING SIGNIFICANTLY EXTENDED LEAD TIMES DUE TO 
NATIONWIDE TRANSPORTATION DELAYS - LEAD TIMES MAY EXCEED 14 
WEEKS, PLEASE DISCUSS WITH A PARK PLANET REPRESENTATIVE. 

ORDER/ DELIVERY INFORMATION: 

QUOTE 

Quote#: 

Date: 

Project: 

City: 

Sales Rep - Email: 

Terms: 

Item No 

IC-DSA 

Discount
NPP-TX 

ICF 

DSA 

Equip-Only 

Offloading 

Qty 

Park Planet 

a Division of Park Associates Inc 
415 Elm Street 

Red Bluff California 96080 
(530) 244-6116

Q22-1682 

March 04, 2022 

Sacramento City Schools 
District Shades 

Sacramento 

Kyle Knox
kyle@parkplanet.com 

Net 30dys I Shipment 

Rate 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

99,500.00 

-6,965.00 

8,800.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sub Total 

CA-Sacramento-Sacramento 
(8.75%) 

101,335.00 

8,096.81 

Total $109,431.81 

A PURCHASE ORDER OR SIGNED CHANGE ORDER MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT, INSTALLATION, OR SERVICES CAN 
PROCEED. IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, A SURCHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED ON PAYMENT AMOUNT FOR 3.5% VISNMC OR 5% AMEX. 

Authorized Signature: ________________________ Date: ________ _ 









 

 

LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES 
 

MASTER PRICE AGREEMENT 
 

 This Master Price Agreement is effective as of the date of the last signature below (the “Effective Date”) 
by and between the LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES, an Oregon public corporation under ORS Chapter 190 
(“LOC” or “Purchaser”) and Park Associates Inc. DBA Park Planet (“Vendor”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Vendor is in the business of selling certain PARK, PLAYGROUND, AND RECREATION 
EQUIPMENT, as further described herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Vendor desires to sell and the Purchaser desires to purchase certain products and 
related services all upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, through a solicitation for PARK, PLAYGROUND, AND RECREATION EQUIPMENT the 
Vendor was awarded the opportunity to complete a Master Price Agreement with the LEAGUE OF OREGON 
CITIES as a result of its response to Request for Proposal No. 2060 for PARK, PLAYGROUND, AND 
RECREATION EQUIPMENT; and 

 
WHEREAS, the LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES asserts that the solicitation and Request for Proposal 

meet Oregon public contracting requirements (ORS 279, 279A, 279B and 279C et. seq.); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Purchaser and Vendor desire to extend the terms of this Master Price Agreement to benefit 
other qualified government members of National Purchasing Partners, LLC dba Public Safety GPO, dba First 
Responder GPO, dba Law Enforcement GPO and dba NPPGov; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Vendor and Purchaser, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 – CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 
 

1.1 “Agreement” shall mean this Master Price Agreement, including the main body of this Agreement 
and Attachments A-F attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, including Purchaser’s Request 
for Proposal No. 2060 (herein “RFP”) and Vendor’s Proposal submitted in response to the RFP (herein “Vendor’s 
Proposal”) as referenced and incorporated herein as though fully set forth (sometimes referred to collectively as 
the “Contract Documents”). 

 
1.2 “Applicable Law(s)” shall mean all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

codes, rules, regulations, standards, orders and other governmental requirements of any kind. 
 
1.3 “Employee Taxes” shall mean all taxes, assessments, charges and other amounts whatsoever 

payable in respect of, and measured by the wages of, the Vendor’s employees (or subcontractors), as required 
by the Federal Social Security Act and all amendments thereto and/or any other applicable federal, state or local 
law. 

 
1.4 “Purchaser’s Destination” shall mean such delivery location(s) or destination(s) as Purchaser may 

prescribe from time to time. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

1.5 “Products and Services” shall mean the products and/or services to be sold by Vendor hereunder 
as identified and described on Attachment A hereto and incorporated herein, as may be updated from time to 
time by Vendor to reflect products and/or services offered by Vendor generally to its customers. 
 

1.6 “Purchase Order” shall mean any authorized written order for Products and Services sent by 
Purchaser to Vendor via mail, courier, overnight delivery service, email, fax and/or other mode of transmission 
as Purchaser and Vendor may from time to time agree.  
 

1.7 “Unemployment Insurance” shall mean the contribution required of Vendor, as an employer, in 
respect of, and measured by, the wages of its employees (or subcontractors) as required by any applicable 
federal, state or local unemployment insurance law or regulation. 
 

1.8 “National Purchasing Partners” or “(NPP)” is a subsidiary of two nonprofit health care systems. The 
Government Division of NPP, hereinafter referred to as “NPPGov”, provides group purchasing marketing and 
administrative support for governmental entities within the membership.  NPPGov’s membership includes 
participating public entities across North America. 
 

1.9 “Lead Contracting Agency” shall mean the LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES, which is the 
governmental entity that issued the Request for Proposal and awarded this resulting Master Price Agreement. 
 

1.10 “Participating Agencies” shall mean members of National Purchasing Partners for which Vendor 
has agreed to extend the terms of this Master Price Agreement pursuant to Article 2.6 and Attachment C herein. 
For purposes of cooperative procurement, “Participating Agency” shall be considered “Purchaser” under the 
terms of this Agreement. 
 

1.11 “Party” and “Parties” shall mean the Purchaser and Vendor individually and collectively as 
applicable. 
 

ARTICLE 2 – AGREEMENT TO SELL 
 

2.1 Vendor hereby agrees to sell to Purchaser such Products and Services as Purchaser may order 
from time to time by Purchase Order, all in accordance with and subject to the terms, covenants and conditions 
of this Agreement.  Purchaser agrees to purchase those Products and Services ordered by Purchaser by 
Purchase Order in accordance with and subject to the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

2.2 Vendor may add additional products and services to the contract provided that any additions 
reasonably fall within the intent of the original RFP specifications.  Pricing on additions shall be equivalent to the 
percentage discount for other similar products. Vendor may provide a web-link with current product listings, 
which may be updated periodically, as allowed by the terms of the resulting Master Price Agreement. Vendor 
may replace or add product lines to an existing contract if the line is replacing or supplementing products on 
contract, is equal or superior to the original products offered, is discounted in a similar or to a greater degree, 
and if the products meet the requirements of the solicitation. No products may be added to avoid competitive 
procurement requirements. LOC may reject any additions without cause. 

 
2.3 All Purchase Orders issued by Purchaser to Vendor for Products during the term (as hereinafter 

defined) of this Agreement are subject to the provisions of this Agreement as though fully set forth in such 
Purchase Order. The Vendor retains authority to negotiate above and beyond the terms of this Agreement to 
meet the Purchaser or Vendor contract requirements.   In the event that the provisions of this Agreement conflict 
with any Purchase Order issued by Purchaser to Vendor, the provisions of this Agreement shall govern.  No 
other terms and conditions, including, but not limited to, those contained in Vendor’s standard printed terms and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

conditions, on Vendor’s order acknowledgment, invoices or otherwise, shall have any application to or effect 
upon or be deemed to constitute an amendment to or to be incorporated into this Agreement, any Purchase 
Order, or any transactions occurring pursuant hereto or thereto, unless this Agreement shall be specifically 
amended to adopt such other terms and conditions in writing by the Parties. 

 
2.4 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Lead Contracting 

Agency shall have no obligation to order or purchase any Products and Services hereunder and the placement 
of any Purchase Order shall be in the sole discretion of the Participating Agencies.  This Agreement is not 
exclusive.  Vendor expressly acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser may purchase at its sole discretion, 
Products and Services that are identical or similar to the Products and Services described in this Agreement 
from any third party. 

 
2.5 In case of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the Contract Documents, the documents 

shall prevail and apply in the following order of priority: 
 
(i) This Agreement; 
(ii) The RFP; 
(iii) Vendor’s Proposal;  

 
2.6 Extension of contract terms to Participating Agencies: 

 
2.6.1 Vendor agrees to extend the same terms, covenants and conditions available to Purchaser under 

this Agreement to Participating Agencies, that have executed an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement (“IGA”) as may be required by each Participating Agency’s local laws and regulations, in accordance 
with Attachment C. Each Participating Agency will be exclusively responsible for and deal directly with Vendor on 
matters relating to ordering, delivery, inspection, acceptance, invoicing, and payment for Products and Services in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement as if it were “Purchaser” hereunder.  Any disputes 
between a Participating Agency and Vendor will be resolved directly between them under and in accordance with 
the laws of the State in which the Participating Agency exists.  Pursuant to the IGA, the Lead Contracting Agency 
shall not incur any liability as a result of the access and utilization of this Agreement by other Participating 
Agencies. 
 

2.6.2 This Solicitation meets the public contracting requirements of the Lead Contracting Agency and may 
not be appropriate under or meet Participating Agencies’ procurement laws.  Participating Agencies are urged to 
seek independent review by their legal counsel to ensure compliance with all local and state solicitation 
requirements. 

 
2.6.3 Vendor acknowledges execution of the Vendor Administration Fee Agreement, Contract Number 

PS21050, with NPPGov, pursuant to the terms of the RFP.         
 

 2.7 Oregon Public Agencies are prohibited from use of Products and Services offered under this 
Agreement that are already provided by qualified nonprofit agencies for disabled individuals as listed on the 
Department of Administrative Service’s Procurement List (“Procurement List”) pursuant to ORS 279.835-.855.  
See www.OregonRehabilitation.org/qrf for more information.  Vendor shall not sell products and services 
identified on the Procurement List (e.g., reconditioned toner cartridges) to Purchaser or Participating Agencies 
within the state of Oregon. 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

ARTICLE 3 – TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

3.1 The initial contract term shall be for three (3) calendar years from the Effective Date of this 
Agreement (“Initial Term”). Upon termination of the original three (3) year term, this Agreement shall 
automatically extend for up to three (3) successive one (1) year periods; (each a “Renewal Term”); provided, 
however, that the Lead Contracting Agency and/or the Vendor may opt to decline extension of the MPA by 
providing notification in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the annual automatic extension 
anniversary of the Initial Term. 

 
3.2 Either Vendor or the Lead Contracting Agency may terminate this Agreement by written notice to 

the other party if the other Party breaches any of its obligations hereunder and fails to remedy the breach within 
thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of such breach from the non-breaching party. 
 

ARTICLE 4 – PRICING, INVOICES, PAYMENT AND DELIVERY 
 

4.1 Purchaser shall pay Vendor for all Products and Services ordered and delivered in compliance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement at the pricing specified for each such Product and Service on 
Attachment A, including shipping.  Unless Attachment A expressly provides otherwise, the pricing schedule set 
forth on Attachment A hereto shall remain fixed for the Initial Term of this Agreement; provided that manufacturer 
pricing is not guaranteed and may be adjusted based on the next manufacturer price increase.  Pricing 
contained in Attachment A shall be extended to all NPPGov, Public Safety GPO, First Responder GPO and Law 
Enforcement GPO members upon execution of the IGA. 

 
4.2 Vendor shall submit original invoices to Purchaser in form and substance and format reasonably 

acceptable to Purchaser.  All invoices must reference the Purchaser’s Purchase Order number, contain an 
itemization of amounts for Products and Services purchased during the applicable invoice period and any other 
information reasonably requested by Purchaser, and must otherwise comply with the provisions of this 
Agreement. Invoices shall be addressed as directed by Purchaser. 

 
4.3 Unless otherwise specified, Purchaser is responsible for any and all applicable sales taxes.  

Attachment A or Vendor’s Proposal (Attachment D) shall specify any and all other taxes and duties of any kind 
which Purchaser is required to pay with respect to the sale of Products and Services covered by this Agreement 
and all charges for packing, packaging and loading. 
 

4.4 Except as specifically set forth on Attachments A and F, Purchaser shall not be responsible for any 
additional costs or expenses of any nature incurred by Vendor in connection with the Products and Services, 
including without limitation travel expenses, clerical or administrative personnel, long distance telephone 
charges, etc. (“Incidental Expenses”).  

 
4.5 Price reductions or discount increases may be offered at any time during the contract term and 

shall become effective upon notice of acceptance from Purchaser. 
 
4.6 Notwithstanding any other agreement of the Parties as to the payment of shipping/delivery costs, 

and subject to Attachments A, D, and F herein, Vendor shall offer delivery and/or shipping costs prepaid FOB 
Destination.  If there are handling fees, these also shall be included in the pricing. 

 
4.7 Unless otherwise directed by Purchaser for expedited orders, Vendor shall utilize such common 

carrier for the delivery of Products and Services as Vendor may select; provided, however, that for expedited 
orders Vendor shall obtain delivery services hereunder at rates and terms not less favorable than those paid by 
Vendor for its own account or for the account of any other similarly situated customer of Vendor. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

 
4.8 Vendor shall have the risk of loss of or damage to any Products until delivery to Purchaser. 

Purchaser shall have the risk of loss of or damage to the Products after delivery to Purchaser. Title to Products 
shall not transfer until the Products have been delivered to and accepted by Purchaser at Purchaser’s 
Destination. 
 

ARTICLE 5 – INSURANCE 
 

    5.1 During the term of this Agreement, Vendor shall maintain at its own cost and expense (and shall 
cause any subcontractor to maintain) insurance policies providing insurance of the kind and in the amounts 
generally carried by reasonably prudent manufacturers, suppliers or installers in the industry, with one or more 
reputable insurance companies licensed to do business in Oregon and any other state or jurisdiction where 
Products and Services are sold hereunder. Such certificates of insurance shall be made available to the Lead 
Contracting Agency upon 48 hours’ notice. BY SIGNING THE AGREEMENT PAGE THE VENDOR AGREES TO 
THIS REQUIREMENT AND FAILURE TO MEET THIS REQUIREMENT WILL RESULT IN CANCELLATION OF 
THIS MASTER PRICE AGREEMENT.  
 

5.2 All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect until all work or service 
required to be performed under the terms of this Agreement is satisfactorily completed and formally accepted. 
Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the insurance policies or any breach of an insurance 
policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the insurance policies to protect the Lead Contracting 
Agency. The insurance policies may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured retentions. Such 
deductible and/or self-insured retentions shall not be applicable with respect to the coverage provided to the 
Lead Contracting Agency under such policies.  Vendor shall be solely responsible for the deductible and/or self-
insured retention and the Lead Contracting Agency, at its option, may require Vendor to secure payment of such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions by a surety bond or an irrevocable and unconditional letter of credit. 

 
5.3 Vendor shall carry Workers’ Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and 

state statutes having jurisdiction over Vendor’s employees engaged in the performance of the work or services, 
as well as Employer’s Liability insurance. Vendor waives all rights against the Lead Contracting Agency and its 
agents, officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by 
the Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by 
Vendor pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
5.4 Insurance required herein shall not be permitted to expire, be canceled, or materially changed 

without thirty days (30 days) prior written notice to the Lead Contracting Agency. 
 

ARTICLE 6 – INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 
 

6.1 Vendor agrees that it shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lead Contracting Agency, its 
respective officials, directors, employees, members and agents (collectively, the “Indemnitees”), from and 
against any and all damages, claims, losses, expenses, costs, obligations and liabilities (including, without 
limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees), suffered directly or indirectly by any of the Indemnitees to the extent of, or 
arising out of, (i) any breach of any covenant, representation or warranty made by Vendor in this Agreement, (ii) 
any failure by Vendor to perform or fulfill any of its obligations, covenants or agreements set forth in this 
Agreement, (iii) the negligence or intentional misconduct of Vendor, any subcontractor of Vendor, or any of their 
respective employees or agents, (iv) any failure of Vendor, its subcontractors, or their respective employees to 
comply with any Applicable Law, (v) any litigation, proceeding or claim by any third party relating in any way to 
the obligations of Vendor under this Agreement or Vendor’s performance under this Agreement, (vi) any 
Employee Taxes or Unemployment Insurance, or (vii) any claim alleging that the Products and Services or any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

part thereof infringe any third party’s U.S. patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property 
interest. Such obligation to indemnify shall not apply where the damage, claim, loss, expense, cost, obligation or 
liability is due to the breach of this Agreement by, or negligence or willful misconduct of, Lead Contracting 
Agency or its officials, directors, employees, agents or contractors. The amount and type of insurance coverage 
requirements set forth herein will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 
The indemnity obligations of Vendor under this Article shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for two years. 

6.2 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES IN CONNECTION WITH 
OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES FOR INJURIES 
TO PERSONS OR TO PROPERTY OR LOSS OF PROFITS OR LOSS OF FUTURE BUSINESS OR 
REPUTATION, WHETHER BASED ON TORT OR BREACH OF CONTRACT OR OTHER BASIS, EVEN IF IT 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 
6.3 The same terms, conditions and pricing of this Agreement may be extended to government 

members of National Purchasing Partners, LLC.  In the event the terms of this Agreement are extended to 
other government members, each government member (procuring party) shall be solely responsible for 
the ordering of Products and Services under this Agreement.  A non-procuring party shall not be liable in 
any fashion for any violation by a procuring party, and the procuring party shall hold non-procuring parties 
or unrelated purchasing parties harmless from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the 
procuring party. 

 
ARTICLE 7 – WARRANTIES 

 
Purchaser shall refer to Vendor’s Proposal for all Vendor and manufacturer express warranties, as well 

as those warranties provided under Attachment B herein. 
 

ARTICLE 8 - INSPECTION AND REJECTION 
 

   8.1    Purchaser shall have the right to inspect and test Products at any time prior to shipment, and 
within a reasonable time after delivery to the Purchaser’s Destination. Products not inspected within a 
reasonable time after delivery shall be deemed accepted by Purchaser. The payment for Products shall in no 
way impair the right of Purchaser to reject nonconforming Products, or to avail itself of any other remedies to 
which it may be entitled. 

 
   8.2    If any of the Products are found at any time to be defective in material or workmanship, damaged, 

or otherwise not in conformity with the requirements of this Agreement or any applicable Purchase Order, as its 
exclusive remedy, Purchaser may at its option and at Vendor’s sole cost and expense, elect either to (i) return 
any damaged, non-conforming or defective Products to Vendor for correction or replacement, or (ii) require 
Vendor to inspect the Products and remove or replace damaged, non-conforming or defective Products with 
conforming Products. If Purchaser elects option (ii) in the preceding sentence and Vendor fails promptly to make 
the necessary inspection, removal and replacement, Purchaser, at its option, may inspect the Products and 
Vendor shall bear the cost thereof. Payment by Purchaser of any invoice shall not constitute acceptance of the 
Products covered by such invoice, and acceptance by Purchaser shall not relieve Vendor of its warranties or 
other obligations under this Agreement. 

 
8.3 The provisions of this Article shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

ARTICLE 9 – SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

Except as otherwise permitted hereunder, Vendor may not make any substitutions of Products, or any 
portion thereof, of any kind without the prior written consent of Purchaser. 
 

ARTICLE 10 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

10.1   Vendor agrees to comply with all Applicable Laws and at Vendor’s expense, secure and maintain 
in full force during the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, approvals, authorizations, registrations and 
certificates, if any, required by Applicable Laws in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder. 
At Purchaser’s request, Vendor shall provide to Purchaser copies of any or all such licenses, permits, approvals, 
authorizations, registrations and certificates. 

 
10.2 Purchaser has taken all required governmental action to authorize its execution of this Agreement 

and there is no governmental or legal impediment against Purchaser’s execution of this Agreement or 
performance of its obligations hereunder. 
 

ARTICLE 11 – PUBLICITY / CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

11.1 No news releases, public announcements, advertising materials, or confirmation of same, 
concerning any part of this Agreement or any Purchase Order issued hereunder shall be issued or made without 
the prior written approval of the Parties. Neither Party shall in any advertising, sales materials or in any other 
way use any of the names or logos of the other Party without the prior written approval of the other Party. 

 
11.2 Any knowledge or information which Vendor or any of its affiliates shall have disclosed or may 

hereafter disclose to Purchaser, and which in any way relates to the Products and Services covered by this 
Agreement shall not, unless otherwise designated by Vendor, be deemed to be confidential or proprietary 
information, and shall be acquired by Purchaser, free from any restrictions, as part of the consideration for this 
Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 12 - RIGHT TO AUDIT 
 

Subject to Vendor’s reasonable security and confidentiality procedures, Purchaser, or any third party 
retained by Purchaser, may at any time upon prior reasonable notice to Vendor, during normal business hours, 
audit the books, records and accounts of Vendor to the extent that such books, records and accounts pertain to 
sale of any Products and Services hereunder or otherwise relate to the performance of this Agreement by 
Vendor. Vendor shall maintain all such books, records and accounts for a period of at least three (3) years after 
the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement. The Purchaser’s right to audit under this Article 12 and 
Purchaser’s rights hereunder shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for a period of three 
(3) years after the date of such expiration or termination. 

 
ARTICLE 13 - REMEDIES 

 
Except as otherwise provided herein, any right or remedy of Vendor or Purchaser set forth in this 

Agreement shall not be exclusive, and, in addition thereto, Vendor and Purchaser shall have all rights and 
remedies under Applicable Law, including without limitation, equitable relief. The provisions of this Article shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

ARTICLE 14 - RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

Vendor is an independent contractor and is not an agent, servant, employee, legal 
representative, partner or joint venture of Purchaser.  Nothing herein shall be deemed or construed as creating a 
joint venture or partnership between Vendor and Purchaser. Neither Party has the power or authority to bind or 
commit the other. 
 

ARTICLE 15 - NOTICES 
 

All notices required or permitted to be given or made in this Agreement shall be in writing. Such notice(s) 
shall be deemed to be duly given or made if delivered by hand, by certified or registered mail or by nationally 
recognized overnight courier to the address specified below: 
 

If to Lead Contracting Agency: 
 
LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES 
1201 Court St. NE 
Suite 200 
Salem OR 97301 
ATTN: Jamie Johnson-Davis 

  Email: rfp@ORCities.org 
 
 If to Vendor: 
 
 Park Associates Inc. DBA Park Planet 

 415 Elm St.  
 Red Bluff CA 96080 

 ATTN: Cynthia Cooper 
 Email: cindy@parkplanet.com 
 
Either Party may change its notice address by giving the other Party written notice of such change in the manner 
specified above. 
 

ARTICLE 16 - FORCE MAJEURE 
 

Except for Purchaser’s obligation to pay for Products and Services delivered, delay in performance or 
non-performance of any obligation contained herein shall be excused to the extent such failure or non-
performance is caused by force majeure. For purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall mean any cause 
or agency preventing performance of an obligation which is beyond the reasonable control of either Party hereto, 
including without limitation, fire, flood, sabotage, shipwreck, embargo, strike, explosion, labor trouble, accident, 
riot, acts of governmental authority (including, without limitation, acts based on laws or regulations now in 
existence as well as those enacted in the future), acts of nature, and delays or failure in obtaining raw materials, 
supplies or transportation. A Party affected by force majeure shall promptly provide notice to the other, 
explaining the nature and expected duration thereof, and shall act diligently to remedy the interruption or delay if 
it is reasonably capable of being remedied. In the event of a force majeure situation, deliveries or acceptance of 
deliveries that have been suspended shall not be required to be made upon the resumption of performance. 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45

mailto:cindy@parkplanet.com


 

 

ARTICLE 17 - WAIVER 
 

No delay or failure by either Party to exercise any right, remedy or power herein shall impair such Party’s 
right to exercise such right, remedy or power or be construed to be a waiver of any default or an acquiescence 
therein; and any single or partial exercise of any such right, remedy or power shall not preclude any other or 
further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy or power. No waiver hereunder shall be valid 
unless set forth in writing executed by the waiving Party and then only to the extent expressly set forth in such 
writing. 

 
ARTICLE 18 - PARTIES BOUND; ASSIGNMENT 

 
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and 

assigns of the Parties hereto, but it may not be assigned in whole or in part by Vendor without prior written notice 
to Purchaser which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  

 
 
 

ARTICLE 19 - SEVERABILITY 
 

To the extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be 
effective and valid under Applicable Law. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, 
by judicial determination or otherwise, such provision shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the entire 
Agreement, but rather the entire Agreement shall be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or 
unenforceable provision or provisions and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and 
enforced accordingly. 
 

ARTICLE 20 - INCORPORATION; ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

20.1 All the provisions of the Attachments hereto are hereby incorporated herein and 
made a part of this Agreement. In the event of any apparent conflict between any provision set forth in the main 
body of this Agreement and any provision set forth in the Attachments, including the RFP and/or Vendor’s 
Proposal, the provisions shall be interpreted, to the extent possible, as if they do not conflict. If such an 
interpretation is not possible, the provisions set forth in the main body of this Agreement shall control. 

 
20.2 This Agreement (including Attachments and Contract Documents hereto)  

constitutes the entire Agreement of the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all 
prior written and oral agreements or understandings relating to such subject matter. 
 

ARTICLE 21 - HEADINGS 
 

Headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall in no way be used to 
construe or limit the provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 22 - MODIFICATIONS 

 
This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing executed by Vendor and the Lead 

Contracting Agency.  The Lead Contracting Agency and each Participating Agency contracting hereunder 
acknowledge and agree that any agreement entered into in connection with any Purchase Order hereunder shall 
constitute a modification of this Agreement as between the Vendor and the Participating Agency. Any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

modification of this Agreement as between Vendor and any Participating Agency shall not be deemed a 
modification of this Agreement for the benefit of the Lead Contracting Agency or any other Participating Agency.   

 
ARTICLE 23 - GOVERNING LAW 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon 

or in the case of a Participating Agency’s use of this Agreement, the laws of the State in which the Participating 
Agency exists, without regard to its choice of law provisions. 

 
ARTICLE 24 - COUNTERPARTS 

 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts all of which together shall constitute one and the same 

Agreement.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year last written 
below. 
 
 PURCHASER:  
 
  
 Signature: ____________________________________ 

 
Printed Name:                                                          
 

Title: ____________________________________________ 
LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES 

  
Dated: ____________________________ 

 
 
 
 VENDOR: 
 
 
 Signature: ______________________________ 
  

Printed Name:                                                          
 

Title: _____________________________ 
 Park Associates Inc. DBA Park Planet  
  

Dated: ____________________________ 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45

C.O.O , Vice President

Cindy Cooper

April 1, 2021 | 9:10 AM PDT

April 1, 2021 | 9:15 AM PDT

Mike Cully

Executive Director



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 

PRODUCTS, SERVICES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PRICES 
 

 
PRODUCT CATEGORY DISCOUNT 

OFFERED 

1. School Age Playgrounds and Components 

(except custom concrete or GFRC items see other #8) 

 

-10% 

2. Aquatic & Other Playgrounds & Components -5% 

3. Shelters and Shade Structures -7% 

4. Outdoor Fitness Equipment -7% 

5. Safety Surfacing - PIP, Synthetic Turf, Rubber tiles 

Rubber mulch and wood fiber 

- 7% 

6. Site Amenities (Except Kay Park -5%) -7% 

7. Installation  FIXED 

8. Other Playground Equipment - IDS, UPC Parks 

And Themed Concepts (Custom concrete & GFRC 

-5% 

 
Services & Labor 

o  Demo of existing, removal and off haul of old product FIXED 
(Not to exceed cost plus 25% plus prevailing wage if applicable) 

o Assembly & Installation of New playground equipment FIXED 

(Not to exceed 65% of Equipment retail plus Prevailing wage if applicable) 

o Assembly & Installation of New Shade shelters/structures FIXED 

(Not to exceed 65% of structures retail plus Prevailing wage if applicable) 

o Site Work & Site Prep for playgrounds, including but not limited to Excavating and 

grading - Not to exceed 65% of equipment retail cost of the equipment being 

installed. 

 

Installation of Rubber Tiles - $4.50 per sq ft FIXED  

Install wood fiber - manual spread $18 yd  FIXED  

Install wood fiber - blow in - $24 yd FIXED 

 Install Poured in Place surfacing - see above discount 

 

o Concrete Curb, walkway, ADA ramp or concrete slab FIXED (Cost plus 

25%, plus prevailing wage, if applicable) 

o ADD Custom Footings Shelters - Pier $2500 ea FIXED 

• ADD Custom Footings Shelters - Spread ea. $3500 FIXED 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

• ADD Custom Grade Beams for Shelters $5000 ea FIXED 

• ADD Custom Cutting of Roof Angles $2500 FIXED 

• Engineering - Drawings & Calculations for shade FIXED 
or playgrounds Not to exceed 10% of retail cost of equipment. FIXED 

• Special Insurance Requirements - Not to exceed Cost plus 20% FIXED 

• Offloading services - .25 per lb. of equipment FIXED 

• Temporary Fencing - $13 per lineal foot FIXED 

• Performance and/Payment Bonds - Not to exceed cost plus 20% FIXED 
 

*Prevailing wage adds for State or Federal Wages can increase overall installation up to 10% of the 

cost of the retail equipment or materials. 

 

FREIGHT FOR ABOVE EQUIPMENT 

Playground Freight --West Coast $ .50 lb.  

Shelter Freight --West Coast $1.00 lb. 

Aquatic Freight --West Coast $5.50 lb. 

Rubber Surfacing --West Coast $1,000 per truck 

Wood Fiber --West Coast $1500 per truck Site 

Amenities --West Coast $1,200 per truck 

Outdoor Fitness --West Coast $ 2000 per truck 

*Other - Including --West Coast $3500 per truck IDS, 
Themed Concepts 

UPC Parks & Concrete Playground 

items 

Midwest $1.00 lb.  

Midwest $1.25 lb. 

Midwest $5.50 lb. 

Midwest $1000 per truck load 

Midwest $1500 per truck load 

Midwest $1,200 per truck load 

Midwest $2,000 per truck load 

Midwest $4500 per truck load

*Weather, COVID-19 and Changes in fuel prices can affect freight costs 

 

 

Pricing contained in this Attachment A shall be extended to all NPPGov members upon execution of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 
 
Participating Agencies may purchase from Vendor’s authorized dealers and distributors, as applicable, provided 
the pricing and terms of this Agreement are extended to Participating Agencies by such dealers and distributors. 
[ A current list may be obtained from Vendor.]  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 
 

ADDITIONAL SELLER WARRANTIES 
 
To the extent possible, Vendor will make available all warranties from third party manufacturers of Products 
not manufactured by Vendor, as well as any warranties identified in this Agreement and Vendor’s Proposal.   
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 14 

 
ATTACHMENT C 

 
to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 
 

PARTICIPATING AGENCIES 
 

The Lead Contracting Agency in cooperation with National Purchasing Partners (NPPGov) entered 
into this Agreement on behalf of other government agencies that desire to access this Agreement to purchase 
Products and Services. Vendor must work directly with any Participating Agency concerning the placement of 
orders, issuance of the purchase orders, contractual disputes, invoicing, and payment. The Lead Contracting 
Agency shall not be held liable for any costs, damages, etc., incurred by any Participating Agency. 
 

Any subsequent contract entered into between Vendor and any Participating Agency shall be 
construed to be in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State in which the Participating Agency 
exists. Each Participating Agency is directed to execute an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement (“IGA”), as set forth on the NPPGov web site, www.nppgov.com. The IGA allows the Participating 
Agency to purchase Products and Services from the Vendor in accordance with each Participating Agency’s 
legal requirements as if it were the “Purchaser” hereunder.   

 
 
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45

http://www.nppgov.com/


 

 15 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 
 

 Vendor’s Proposal 
 (The Vendor’s Proposal is not attached hereto.) 
 (The Vendor’s Proposal is incorporated by reference herein.) 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 16 

ATTACHMENT E 
 

to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 
 

Purchaser’s Request for Proposal 
(The Purchaser’s Request for Proposal is not attached hereto.) 
(The Purchaser’s Request for Proposal is incorporated by reference herein.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



 

 17 

ATTACHMENT F 
 

to Master Price Agreement by and between VENDOR and PURCHASER. 
 
ADDITIONAL VENDOR TERMS OF PURCHASE, IF ANY. 
 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 334133CC-098E-46D9-97F8-7940978A3E45



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

Between 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Foster Youth Services Department (FYS) 

And 

TUTOR ME LA, LLC 

 
Amendment No. 1 

 

The agreement between Sacramento City Unified School District (“District” or “SCUSD”) and 

Tutor Me LA, LLC (“Contractor”) dated August 1, 2021 is hereby amended as follows: 

 

B. Payment. For provision of services pursuant to this Agreement, District shall pay the 

Provider $65.00 per hour per student for direct services upon receipt of properly submitted 

invoices. Total payments to Contractor shall not exceed $134,000.00. This represents an increase 

of $39,000.00.  

 

All other provisions of the Agreement remain unchanged. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be executed. 

 

District: 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Rose Ramos      Date 

Chief Business Officer 

 

 

Tutor Me LA, LLC 

 

 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 

Elliot Farahnik     Date 

Director 



Page 1 of 8

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
Between

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Foster Youth Services Department (FYS)

And
TUTOR ME LA, LLC 

The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and Tutor Me LA, LLC (“Provider”) 
collectively hereinafter referred to as “the Parties” hereby enter into this Agreement for program services 
(“Agreement”) effective on August 1, 2021 (“Effective Date”) with respect to the following recitals:  

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Provider to develop, maintain and sustain programs that 
offer academic tutoring and homework support to eligible foster and homeless youth students within 
their home, by virtual means (i.e Zoom), at a school site and/or community space (i.e. library or 
community center)

WHEREAS, the Provider is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the services 
requested by the District and will work collaboratively to develop, coordinate and implement the tutoring 
support program at the above students during the 2021/22 school year. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

A. Roles and Responsibilities.

i. Provider shall provide academic tutoring sessions and/or homework support to foster youth
students currently enrolled in a District elementary, middle or high school. Provider shall also
adhere to Scope of Services in Attachment A;

ii. District shall adhere to scope of service outlined in Attachment A. District shall provide and
coordinate space and location of all District- sponsored expanded learning professional
development, meetings, and trainings. District shall coordinate the convening of all Provider’s
tutoring staff to facilitate program planning and modifications.

B. Payment. For provision of services pursuant to this Agreement, District shall pay the Provider
$65.00 per hour per student for direct services upon receipt of properly submitted invoices. Total
payments to Contractor shall not exceed $95,000.00

C. Period of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 7, 2021 – June 30,
2022.

D. Independent Contractor. While engaged in providing the services in this Agreement, and
otherwise performing as set forth in this Agreement, Provider and each of   its employees, is an
independent contractor and not an officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the District.

E. Insurance Requirements. Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this
Agreement, the Provider shall provide the District with a copy of its certificates of insurance
evidencing its comprehensive general liability insurance, employment practices liability insurance,
and directors and officers coverage in sums of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The Provider
will also provide a written endorsement to such policies-naming District as an additional insured and

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 2 of 8

such endorsement shall also state, "Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and 
any insurance carried by District shall be excess and noncontributory." 

F.  Fingerprinting Requirements. Contractor agrees that any employee it assigns to provide services 
directly to, or have any contact with, pupil(s) of the District, shall be subject to the 
fingerprinting/background and TB requirements set forth in the California Education Code. Any 
employee that Contractor assigns to provide services directly to, or have any contact with, pupil(s) of the 
District shall have undergone the background check required in §45125(b)&(c), including response by 
DOJ, before any service or contact with pupil(s) of the District is allowed.

Pursuant to Education Code §45125.1, Contractor shall provide a complete list to the District of all 
employees cleared by the DOJ who will provide services under this Agreement (or MOU) and shall 
certify in writing to the District that Contractor has no information that any of its employees who are 
required to have their fingerprints submitted to the Department of Justice (DOJ), and who may come in 
contact with pupils, have been convicted of a “violent or serious felony” as defined in §45122.1 or that 
they have been advised of any such arrest by the DOJ.  

Contractor shall continuously monitor through DOJ, and obtain subsequent arrest notification from DOJ, 
regarding any individual whose fingerprints were submitted pursuant to §45125.1 and who is or will be 
providing service directly to, or has contact with, pupil(s) of the District. Upon receipt of a subsequent 
arrest notification from DOJ, Contractor shall, within 24 hours, notify the District of such arrest 
notification and prohibit the employee from having any further contact with any pupil(s) of the District 
until such time as the employee’s arrest has been determined to not involve a “violent or serious felony” 
as defined in §45122.1 or the notification has been withdrawn by DOJ. If an employee is disqualified 
from working for the District pursuant to the requirements of the California Education Code, even if only 
temporarily, Contractor agrees to provide a replacement employee within 15 days of receiving 
notification that the previous employee has been disqualified. 

Contractor further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any pupil(s) of the 
District whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California Penal Code §11165.7(a), or 
not, shall be provided  annual training on child abuse and mandated reporting of child abuse or neglect 
utilizing an evidence-based training method which includes training on how to recognize conduct of 
adults which may trigger reasonable suspicion of abuse of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming” 
behaviors.

Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement (or MOU).

G. Vaccination requirements. As required by district and state public health order of August 11, 
2021, all individuals serving in school settings must verify vaccine status. Individuals who are not fully 
vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, are required to 
undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once weekly. Contractor agrees that any employee it 
provides to district shall be subject to the vaccination requirements set forth by the California Department 
of Public Health. Upon Contractor’s receipt of vaccination documents, District will be notified. For 
individuals who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not 
provided, Contractor agrees such individuals must undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once 
weekly and Contractor shall provide evidence of same to district on a weekly basis or as otherwise agreed 
upon by District and the Contractor. District shall provide contractor’s employees opportunities to 
undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once weekly through its facilities.

Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 3 of 8

H. Confidential Records and Data. Each Party shall not disclose confidential records received from 
the other Party, including student records pursuant to FERPA, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et seq., and California 
Education Code Section 49060, et seq. The Provider shall maintain the confidentiality of student or pupil 
records and shall not disclose such records to any third parties without the express written approval of the 
District. In the event a Party receives a request for disclosure of such confidential records, whether under 
the California Public Records Act, a duly-issued subpoena, or otherwise, said Party shall tender the 
request to the other Party who shall be responsible for addressing said request, including the defense of 
its claim of confidentiality. The Party asserting its claim of confidentiality shall hold harmless and defend 
the Party receiving such request from any liability, claim, loss, cost, attorney’s fees and damages, as 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, arising out of a refusal to disclose such confidential 
records.

I.  Data and Evaluation Requirements. The Provider shall share assessment data with the District as 
pursuant to scope of work. The provider shall share data and information collected via surveys and focus 
groups, and to collaborate with the district to standardize procedures and collection tools developed for 
evaluation/assessment purposes.

J. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party at any time, for any reason, with 
or without cause, by providing at least thirty (30) days written notice. 

The District may terminate this Contract with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate for 
cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Contract by the Provider; (b) 
any act by the Provider exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or property damage; 
or (c) the Provider is adjudged a bankrupt; Provider makes a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of the Provider's insolvency.

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Contract shall cease and terminate. In the event 
of such termination, the District may secure the required services from another Provider. If the cost to the 
District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Contract, the excess cost shall be 
charged to and collected from the Provider. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a 
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be 
deemed given when received by the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 
whichever is sooner.

K.  Disclosure of Student Information. The Parties understand and agree that, in order for the 
Provider to effectively provide the Services as described herein, the Contractor may have access to and/or 
generate information that may be considered confidential student information, subject to the protections 
of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), 20 U.S.C. §1232g, 34 Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 99, and California Education Code sections 49060-49085. 

Whereas parental consent is generally required in order for a school district to disclose confidential 
student information, an exception exists wherein a school district may disclose confidential student 
information to a contractor or consultant, such as the Provider, with a legitimate educational interest who 
has a formal written agreement or contract with the school district regarding the provision of outsourced 
institutional services or functions by the contractor or consultant. (Ed. Code, § 49076, subd. (a)(2)(G)(i).) 

The Provider is considered a “school official” for purposes of 34 CFR §99.31(a)(1)(i) and Education 
Code section 49076, subdivision (a)(2)(G)(i). The Provider and/or its employees or subcontractors shall 
not disclose personally identifiable student information to any other party without the consent of the 
parent or adult student. The Contractor and/or its employees or subcontractors shall not use student 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 4 of 8

information for any other purpose than the scope of work described herein. The Contractor shall permit 
the District access to any relevant records for purposes of completing authorized audits.

L.  Indemnity. The Provider agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its successors, 
assigns, trustees, officers, employees, staff, agents and students from and against all actions, causes of 
action, claims and demands whatsoever, and from all costs, damages, expenses, charges, debts and 
liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of any actual or alleged act, omission, willful 
misconduct, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability proximately caused by the Provider 
and/or its successors, assigns, directors, employees, officers, and agents related this Agreement. The 
Provider has no obligation under this Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the District and is not 
liable for any actions, causes of action, claims and demands whatsoever, and for any costs, damages, 
expenses, charges, debts or other liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of any 
actual or alleged act, omission, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability proximately caused 
by the District and/or its successors, assigns, trustees, officers, employees, staff, agents or students. 

The parties expressly agree that the indemnity obligation set forth in this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect during the term of this Agreement. The parties further agree that said indemnity 
obligations shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any actual or alleged act, omission, 
negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability that occurred during the term of this Agreement.

M. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by final 
legislative act or a court of competent jurisdiction inclusive of appeals, if any, such provisions will not be 
deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue 
in full force and effect.

N. Applicable Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California. If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement, venue 
shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in Sacramento 
County, California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit 
by the District.

O. Assignment. This Agreement is made by and between the Provider and the District and any 
attempted assignment by them, their successors or assigns shall be void unless approved in writing by all 
parties.

P. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Provider and 
the District with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous negotiations, proposals, 
commitments, writings, advertisements, publications and understandings of any nature whatsoever, with 
respect to the same subject matter unless expressly included in this Agreement. The parties hereby waive 
the presumption that any ambiguities in a contract are read against the drafter of same. The parties further 
agree and represent that each of them are the drafters of every part of this Agreement.

Q.  Amendments. The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner except by 
written agreement signed by the parties.

R. Execution In Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures of the parties may appear on separate signature pages. Facsimile or photocopy signatures shall 
be deemed original signatures for all purposes.

S. Authority. Each party represents that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement and 
that the undersigned are authorized to execute this Agreement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 5 of 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed.

DISTRICT:

By: _________________________________________ ___________________
Rose Ramos Date
Chief Financial Officer
Sacramento City Unified School District

TUTOR ME LA, LLC:

By: _________________________________________ ___________________
Authorized Signature Date

Print Name: ________________________________

Title: _____________________________________

09/30/2021

Elliot Farahnik

Director

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A

01/10/2022



Page 6 of 8

Attachment A – Scope of Services 

DISTRICT shall:
1. Provide evaluation and/or survey of projects as required.
2. Recognize in all sponsored events and on brochures, flyers, and promotional materials as

appropriate.
3. Provide a district liaison for each school that will provide the support and guidance needed to

operate the Expanded Learning program.
4. Meet monthly with the FYS Coordinator & Homeless Services Coordinator to identify program

needs, assistance, and successes.
5. Help recruit students into the program and provide the program access to parents of participating

students.
6. Help provide care providers/parents/students forums to obtain feedback on the program, what is

working and what new services/program elements need to be added or modified.
7. Provide space for the program to operate.
8. Provide a “Mid-Year” Partnership Report addressing strengths and areas for improvement for

future partnership.

Provider shall:
1. Provide a comprehensive academic support program to include at least 60 minutes of homework

and/or tutoring assistance (includes all instructional days) from school closure until 6:00 PM at
designated tutoring site (i.e. school, Zoom, community space)

2. Work closely with school sites and District to keep student enrollment and daily attendance as
close to and within the agreed upon parameters as outlined in the agreement. Student days of
attendance will be monitored by the Provider.

3. Work collaboratively with the District to create a comprehensive program plan for the academic
support program plan.  The plan will be shared out with stakeholders.

4. Provide an “End of Year” Report on status of all outcomes and objectives.
5. Maintain and provide to the District monthly attendance and program activities records.
6. Work collaboratively with the other outside service providers contracted by the District to provide

after school services at school sites.
7. Communicate progress of project/partnership development on a timely and consistent manner to

the District.
8. Meet with the FYS Coordinator and Homeless Coordinator to identify program needs, successes

and areas for assistance
9. Communicate new partnership opportunities with the District.
10. Other areas as agreed upon by both parties.

Attendance Policy:
● 1 hour sessions 2-3 times per week (Elementary)

○ Can be more depending on student’s needs
● 1 ½ hour sessions s – 3 times per week (Secondary)

○ Can be more depending on student’s needs
● Individual and/or small group sessions (3 students max)
● At least 2 students must be present for sessions to occur
● If there is advance notice of absence (>24 hours), Tutor Me Education will not charge and can

reschedule the session
● Tutoring services will be placed on hold should a student miss more than 4 sessions without

advance notice. Tutor Me Education will notify FYS Coordinator or Homeless Coordinator to
determine next steps.

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 7 of 8

Attachment B – Program Deliverables

Description of 
Service

CONTRACTOR
Deliverable(s)/Activities

Timeframe

Program Planning: 
In collaboration with 
SCUSD, TME 
agrees to provide 
academic tutoring 
and/or homework 
support to foster 
youth students 
enrolled in a district 
elementary, middle 
or high school as 
outlined in the MOU 
including:

● Work with all eligible foster and homeless youth in the areas of 
Math and English Language Arts that are functioning at one or 
more years below grade level 

● Complete Pre, Mid and Post assessments on all participating 
students to show academic progress

● Provide homework assistance and/or academic tutoring to middle 
school and high school foster youth 

● TME will track student outcomes in the areas of academic growth 
and attendance

● Provide Year-End Report on program outcomes
● Provide tutors to work both individually or in small groups not to 

exceed more than 3 students 

On-going 

Program 
Management & 
Facilitation:  
TME will provide 
staff, coordination 
and programming 
across designated 
sites, and will also:

TME Staff will:
● Keep to 1:3 tutor to student ratio max
● Report to SCUSD lead staff regarding progress on overall 

outcomes
● Maintain and provide to the SCUSD lead staff timely attendance 

and program activities records
● Complete all required reports
● Provide a final report on the impact and overall outcomes of the 

program
● Communicate regularly with SCUSD lead staff regarding project 

progress
● Facilitate communication between parents of participants and 

TME regarding announcements and information that pertains to 
the program participants

● Other deliverables as agreed upon by TME and the District

On-going

Program Planning
Program; 
Management;
Program 
Evaluation
FYS will:  

● Train TME staff on SCUSD protocols, mission, vision, and 
structure

● Provide After School Program Manager with TME contact 
information and programming details in order to facilitate ongoing 
communication

● Provide Principal information about TME program scope and 
deliverables  

● Provide classroom space for the program at each designated site
● Assist in recruiting participants for the program through school 

advertising and outreach
● Assist in marketing & sharing information about TME  

programming 
● Collect and share data per contract agreement to be included in 

evaluation reports, to the extent permitted by law and regulation

October 2021

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A



Page 8 of 8

COVID-19 Addendum

In further consideration for this Agreement, Provider enters into this COVID-19 Addendum as 
Provider will be providing services at school sites:

1. Provider agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or district 
rules regarding protection from the COVID-19. Such guidelines may be found at:

a. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html 

b. https://covid19.ca.gov/ 

c. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx

d. https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19 

e. https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf 

f. https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health

2. Provider agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or district 
rules regarding reopening guidelines for child care providers.  Such guidelines may be found at:

a. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-
19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf

3. School Administration and plant manager need to be aware of the staff and all the activities.

4. Provider will provide training to their staff on COVID-19 mitigation measures and how to remain 
safe at all times. 

5. Provider’s staff will only be at the sites during the hours agreed upon with the site administration.

6. Provider’s staff are required to follow all District protocols while on-site at this time, including, but 
not limited to maintaining proper physical distancing, wearing a mask while inside district’s facilities, 
partaking in the health screening, washing their hands properly etc. 

7. The District reserves the right to stop the use of its facilities if it observes violation of the COVID-19 
rules. 

Signature: 

Name and Title: 

Address: 

Work Phone: Other Phone: 

Email Address: 

Elliot Farahnik, Director

1093 Broxton Ave. #240 Los Angeles, CA 90024

Info@tutormeeducation.com

310-896-8625

DocuSign Envelope ID: D41C5465-7B02-4C53-8E4B-86B8547AE65A

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://covid19.ca.gov/
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf
https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf


S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 1 - 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

MASTER CONTRACT 

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES 

2021-2022 

  

 
AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. MASTER CONTRACT  
  

 This Master Contract (or “Contract”) is entered into on May 1, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified 

School District (hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency “LEA” or “District”), a member of 

the Sacramento City Unified School District SELPA, and Mountain Valley Child and Family Services Inc., 

Mountain Valley School - Nevada City (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as 

NPS/A or “CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to 

students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 

and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 

862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004).  It is understood that this agreement does 

not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or 

CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized 

LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.   

 

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement 

(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”).  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge 

CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student’s Individualized 

Education Program (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”).  The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of 

a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by 

CONTRACTOR.  As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP 

system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing. 
 

  Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter 

referred to as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or 

authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not 

responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP 

team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is 

signed by the student’s parent. 
 

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES 

 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as 

“CDE”) as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and 

licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq 

and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification and/or credential.  A 

current copy of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE 

pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement 

is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver 

is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. 

Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the 

Master Contract. 

 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 2 - 

shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services 

and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   

 

  If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR 

shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to 

license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional 

needs.  The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and 

have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed.  If the CONTRACTOR operates 

a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate 

licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.  

 

With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes 

in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major 

modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the 

suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by 

the LEA.  
 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS 
 

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 

applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations.  CONTRACTOR 

shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the 

surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply 

to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and 

responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of 

Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 

resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those 

policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with 

exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student 

discipline, and positive behavior interventions).    

   

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the 

provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE 

nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a). 
 

4.  TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT 
 

The term of this Master Contract shall be from May 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022 (Title 5 California Code of 

Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated.  Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required 

to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years.  The parties acknowledge that any subsequent 

Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2022.  In the event the contract negotiations are not 

agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days.  (Title 

5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d))  No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of 

the contracting requirements have been satisfied.  The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at 

the sole discretion of the LEA. 

 

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent 

contractors.  Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be 

provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized 

representative.   

 

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 3 - 

5.   INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR 

TERMINATION 
 

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference.  This Master 

Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement.  This Master 

Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.   

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract 

or a renewal. 

 

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance 

documentation and CDE certification.  The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the 

application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued.  If 

CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative 

within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the 

newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new 

Master Contract’s effective date.  If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such 

ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school 

year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and 

(2)).  In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound 

to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and 

LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA. 

 

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“ISA”) 
  

 This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide 

special education and/or related services.   An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval 

of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A).  An ISA may be effective for more than one 

contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect.  In the event that this Master 

Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions 

of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is 

servicing authorized students.  

 

Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract 

and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP or by written agreement 

between the parent and LEA.  At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student’s parent, 

CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards 

required by law.  

 

 Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified 

in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA.  (California Education Code 

sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)).  In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service 

at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) 

business days of the last date a service was provided.  CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent 

compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was 

served by the NPS/A. 

 

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, 

CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees 

otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH 

consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere 

to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.  

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 4 - 

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master 

Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, 

or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code 

section 56366(c) (2). 

 

7. DEFINITIONS   

 

 The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract: 

 

a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the 

California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.  

 

b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible 

for NPS/A.  It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of 

which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA.  The 

LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract. 

 

c. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special 

education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of 

Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which 

entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as 

defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g). 

 

d. The term “qualified”  means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to 

that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated 

instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other 
comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education 

or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California 

Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice 

established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California 

Business and Professions  Code. 

 

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate 

needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree 

at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations.  (Title 

5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)). 

  

e  The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the 

Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and 

authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves 

using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care 

services at a residential placement.  If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing 

agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or 

state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be 

deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(l). 

 

f. “Parent” means: 

i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal 

authority to make educational decisions for the child,  

ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make educational 

decisions for the  child,  



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 5 - 

iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, 

stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally 

responsible for the child’s welfare,   

iv. a surrogate parent,  

v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational 

decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance 

with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).   

 

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under 

contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services 

for a child. (California Education Code section 56028). 

 

g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

 

h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those 

in comparable LEA programs. 

 

i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education Code 

Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed 

those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA. 

 

j. It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Contract” and is referred to as such in 

this document. 

 

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 
 

8. NOTICES 
  

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing.  Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand 

and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.    

 

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of 

the Master Contract.  Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this 

Master Contract. 

 

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS   

 

 All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years 

after the termination of this Master Contract.  For purposes of this Master Contract, “records” shall include, 

but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including 

electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations 

section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes 

and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs 

and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA 

behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification 

of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the 

CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive 

attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other 

staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee 

training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and 

other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and 

worker’s compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications by-laws; lists of current board of 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 6 - 

directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and 

disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial 

expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile 

thereof.   

 

 CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent 

unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of 

CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain an 

access log for each student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving 

information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 

49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual 

requesting or receiving information from the student’s record.  Such log needs to record access to the 

student’s records by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed 

by the student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest 

in requesting or receiving information from the record.  CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any 

written parental concerns granting access to student records.  For purposes of this paragraph, “employees of 

LEA or CONTRACTOR” do not include subcontractors.  CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to 

student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as required by state and 

federal laws and regulations.  CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward 

student records within ten (10) business days to LEA.  These shall include, but not limited to, current 

transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER’s, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports.  LEA 

and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) 

business days. 

 

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 

 If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect. 

 

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 

 

 This contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of 

any change of ownership or corporate control.   
 

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW 

  

 The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the 

County where the LEA is located. 

 

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES 
 

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory 

guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency.  The party seeking such modification 

shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such changes or modifications 

made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which 

the modification or changes are based. 

 

14. TERMINATION   
 

 This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause.  The cause shall not be the availability of a public 

class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the 

public school program at an IEP team meeting.  To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 7 - 

days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, 

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under 

this Master Contract.  ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6.  

CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause.  To terminate the ISA, either party shall give 

twenty (20) days prior written notice.  

 

15.       INSURANCE   

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the 

term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer 

with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, 

costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment 

of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part 

thereof: 

 

 PART I -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, 

with limits as follows:  

                         

$2,000,000 per occurrence 

$   500,000 fire damage 

$       5,000 medical expenses 

$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury 

$3,000,000 general aggregate 

$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 
 

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual 

molestation or abuse.  In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for 

sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a 

supplemental policy providing such coverage. 

 

B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 

Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations 

pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ Compensation 

Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 

$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   
 

C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 

$1 million combined single limit.  

 

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.  

 

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from 

students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR 

must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements. 

 

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, 

including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is 

afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by 

endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits: 
 

                                    $1,000,000 per occurrence 

                                    $2,000,000 general aggregate 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 8 - 

E.     CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall 

furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage.  The certificate of 

insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision.  The Commercial General 

Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education 

additional insured’s premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR 

and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this contract at no 

additional charge. 

 
F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and approved by the 

LEA.  At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR’s sole cost, 

to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or 

self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond 

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation. 

G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the 

CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its 

subsidiaries, officials and employees.   Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its 

subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall 

not contribute with it. 

 

H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency 

submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on 

the certificate. 

 

             PART II -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH 

A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”) 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following 

insurance policies are required: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits 

as follows:  

 

$3,000,000 per occurrence 

$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.  

 

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional 

insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be 

applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary despite 

any conflicting provisions in the RTC’s policy.  Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-

Insured Retention above $100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA. 

 

B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 

Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the 

Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 

$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   

C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 

Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service.  If the RTC provides student bus 

services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence. 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 9 - 

D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who 

process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. 

Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention. 

E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of 

$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   

F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the 

Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum 

limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   

 

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is 

necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations. 

 

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS   
 

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, 

administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA Indemnities”) harmless 

against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 

out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 

proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, 

without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it 

(excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon 

tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right 

in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the 

CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier. 

  

 To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, 

administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR Indemnities”) harmless 

against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 

out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 

proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without 

limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding 

CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities). 

 

 LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-

insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its 

self-insurance covers the LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master Contract. 

 

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR   

  

 Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent 

relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this 

Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any 

commitment on behalf of the other.  Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any 

association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer 

and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual 

assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.   

 

 If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principle, employer or co-employer of 

CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all 

claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, 

penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.   



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 10 - 

18. SUBCONTRACTING   

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or 

related services pursuant to this Master Contract.  In the event LEA determines that it can provide the 

subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s).  If LEA elects to provide 

such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of 

CONTRACTOR’s original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s). 

 

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the 

fullest extent reasonably possible.  Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the 

provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any 

student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term 

of each subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15.  Each 

subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage 

required by Section 15.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 

coverage on its behalf.  The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA.  All endorsements are to 

be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences.  The Commercial General 

Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as 

additional insured. 

 

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract.  All 

Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting 

the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate.  

In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements 

and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.  

 

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 

 CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board 

of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated.  CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors 

(or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest 

pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not 

limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at 

IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate.  Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an 

attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at 

CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or 

will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest. 

 

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with 

CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education 

and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR 

to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR 

regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is 

enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a 

report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid 

conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation 

(hereinafter  referred to as “IEE”) and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE 

by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom 

the IEE is requested.  Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose 

IEE the LEA agrees to fund.   When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if 

CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE. 

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 11 - 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read 

and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education 

and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual 

who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this 

contract.  This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and 

services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the 

school year by LEA. 

 

  CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private 

pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue 

funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings. 

 

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION   
 

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis 

of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, 

marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, 

physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law 

or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or 

more of these actual or perceived characteristics.  
 

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM  
 

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) 

 

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan 

(hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall provide 

to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the NPS/A 

consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR 

shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student’s 

IEP.  If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall 

notify LEA if provision of services cease.  

  

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the 

provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student’s 

IEP and ISA.  CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or 

related services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, 

assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student’s enrollment under the terms of 

this Master Contract).   LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence 

disabilities when specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the 

SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no 

longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS.  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 

facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and 

safety regulations.  CONTRACTOR may charge a student’s parent(s) for services and/or activities not 

necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the 

student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the 

LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student’s parent(s) of the cost 

and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements 

concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility. 

 

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public 

education shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related services as specified 

in the student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing. 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 12 - 

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 

 

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification 

and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq..  

  

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize 

evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course of study and 

curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive 

technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular course of 

study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  Students shall have 

access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted  Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”) for 

curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide 

standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local 

education agency (LEA), that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular 

activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, 

consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including 

individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.   

 

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to 

CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading 

toward graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements.    CONTRACTOR shall not award a high 

school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s graduation requirements. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general program of 

instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE 

guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  The NPA providing 

Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for 

each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA.  School-based 

services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a 

location not specifically authorized by the IEP team.  Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that 

is a Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence 

of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver 

have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested.   
LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during 

the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in 

writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written 

description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract.  

CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained 

equivalent on staff.  It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification 

and do not constitute as an instructional program. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for 

transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing. 

 

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES   
 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by 

CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided 

to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed 

in accordance with the student’s IEP. 

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 13 - 

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP and 

ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the 

same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA. 

 

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual 

instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise 

specified in the student’s IEP. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school 

day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with the 

student’s IEP. 

 

24. CLASS SIZE  
 

 When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one 

teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing.  Upon prior 

written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 

1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide 

services to students with disabilities. 

 

 In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, 

and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the 

NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated 

staff.  The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may 

be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher.  Such an agreement shall be in 

writing and signed by both parties.  This provision does not apply to a NPA. 

 

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the 

ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child 

ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq. 

 

25. CALENDARS  
 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with 

the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent 

to the number of days determined by the LEA’s extended school year calendar.  Billable days shall include 

only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP 

(developed by the LEA) for each student.  CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar 

and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA.  Nothing in this 

Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes. 

 

Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site.  A student 

shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and 

the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA.  Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) 

instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA.  Any days of 

extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to 

the start of the extended school year. 

 

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school 

year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible 

for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other 

times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 14 - 

any NPS service.  Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial 

responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA.  Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran’s 

Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Lincoln’s Birthday, 

Washington’s Birthday, Memorial Day and Independence Day.  With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR 

may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by 

the LEA. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved 

calendar prior to the initiation of services.  CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified 

in the LEA-developed/approved calendar.  CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-

developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA.  Unless otherwise specified 

in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days 

that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school.  

CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA 

calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing.  Student must have actually been 

in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be 

eligible for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays 

and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the 

delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR.  Any instructional days provided without this 

written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

 

26. DATA REPORTING  
 

  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing 

information with LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, 

including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA.  It is 

understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, 

service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA.  Additional 

progress reporting may be required by the LEA.  The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with 

appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access. 

 

  Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by 

CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all 

incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a 

disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education 

Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral 

restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 

48915. 

   

  The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but 

not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports.  The LEA may approve use of 

CONTRACTOR’S provided forms at their discretion. 

 

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  

 

  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive 

Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to 

have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent 

appropriate. 

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 15 - 

  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings 

regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  This shall include IEP team consideration 

of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary 

to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings. 

 

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, 

CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support the 

transition.   

 

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  

 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer 

all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 

(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment 

(“CAA”), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, 

, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), and as appropriate to the student, 

and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.  

 

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code 

section 52052, in the same manner as public schools.  Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the 

LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program.  

LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff.   CONTRACTOR shall 

attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA. 

 

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS 

 

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and 

procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of:  curriculum, high school graduation, 

standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, 

dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized 

testing and IEPs.  LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings.  

Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s). 

 

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS   

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1 and 

56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must 

receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the 

federal law and it’s implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team 

determines that a student’s behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is 

required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address 

that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and 

associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan 

(“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems through the 

development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 

regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all 

of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices 

and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR’s pupil population.  The 

training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction 

with pupils during the schoolday, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils 

during the schoolday. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 16 - 

California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training 

and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request. 

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a 

BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may 

only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious 

physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented 

by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a 

situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site 

administrator or a law enforcement agency. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a 

serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others.  It 

requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical 

intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property 

damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used.  Emergencies require a 

behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for 

administrative action.  CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone.  If 

the student’s IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”) or Positive Behavior Intervention 

Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if 

there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan.  If the student 

already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited 

or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA 

an IEP meeting within two (2) days.    

    

  Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay 

for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: 

(1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, 

electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, 

mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, 

food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An intervention that is 

designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or 

humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that 

employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the 

procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by 

trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise 

licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate 

supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her 

senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of others, the 

individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and 

supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) 

of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. 

 

 All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are 

used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple 

uses by the same individual.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s parent/guardian when any type of 

physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used.  Upon the use of any type of physical or 

mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the 

reporting and notification requirements listed above.   

 

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  
 

 CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with 

state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 17 - 

as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a 

monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, 

regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses 

as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in 

the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education 

Code Sections 48900 and 48915. 

 

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary 

reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA.  Written discipline 

reports shall include, but not be limited to:  the student’s name; the time, date, and description of the 

misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action.  

A copy of the student’s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report.   

CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later 

than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.   

  

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS   

 

 An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each 

student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of 

Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the 

NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be 

transitioned to a public school setting.  (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and 

pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)   

 

 If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for 

any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided 

to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as 

the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the 

transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student 

shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team.  Except as 

otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team 

meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  At any time during the term of 

this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s IEP, 

subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation 

of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting.  Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time 

and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall provide 

to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to 

LEA policy and procedures.  It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR’S 

professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract. 

  

 It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all 

IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion.  The LEA or SELPA may provide training for 

any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain 

confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the 

system.  When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the 

approved system for that student. 

 

Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting 

provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP.  In the 

event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR 

may request a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student’s 

placement.  Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 18 - 

agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or 

OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.   

 

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as 

the child’s parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under 

the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-

300.756.  A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b).  

The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison 

for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion 

of the pupil’s second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading 

towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in 

writing pursuant to Section 51225.1. 

 

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS   

 
CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations 

and hearings, as requested by LEA.  Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR’s 

staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. 

CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to 

any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal 

governmental body or agency.  Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with 

LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision 

of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the 

implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan (“IFSP”). 

 

35.  COMPLAINT PROCEDURES   

 
  CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints.  

These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate 

information (including complaint forms) for the following:  (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to 

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to 

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California 

Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 

(a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

Act (“HIPAA”).  CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students 

and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, 

including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation. 

 
36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS   

 
 Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards.  At a minimum, progress reports 

shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives.  A copy of the progress reports/report 

cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR’s place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and 

LEA student’s parent(s) quarterly. 

 

 The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to 

determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data 

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress 

http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/364373/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/364373/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191419/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191419/6
http://www.gamutonline.net/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/191725/6


S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 19 - 

on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans.  The LEA may request such 

data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data 

supporting progress within five (5) business days of request.  Additional time may be granted as needed by 

the LEA. 
 

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the 

student’s annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s present levels 

of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant 

to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices.  CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, 

documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the 

IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data 

collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.  

 

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, 

progress reporting and development of present levels of performance.  All assessments resulting from an 

assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that 

CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment.  Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added 

to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA’s sole discretion. 

 

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA.  For NPA 

services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, 

shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA.  Supervision means the direct observation of 

services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each 

professional’s license, certification, or credential. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report 

cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings.  

It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is 

understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s record 

and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request. 

 

37. TRANSCRIPTS  
 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or 

upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA 

approved forms to the student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma 

requirements as specified in LEA Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students 

and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA. 

 

38.  STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE   
 

  Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student’s change of residence, 

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student’s change of residence as specified in LEA 

Procedures.  Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify 

CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon 

request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents. 

 

 If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s change of 

residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA 

shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student’s change of residence.   

 

  



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 20 - 

39.  WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM   

 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business 

days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student’s 

change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student’s discharge against 

professional advice from a NPS/RTC. 

 

40. PARENT ACCESS   

 

 CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not 

limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters.  

CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA 

students. 

 

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s reasonable 

request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC.  CONTRACTOR shall require 

that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA 

at least thirty (30) days in advance.  CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations 

and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate.  Payment by LEA for approved travel-

related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.  

 

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least 

one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an 

emergency, is present.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA 

prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency 

situations.  The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization 

for emergency situation.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the 

NPS/NPA service provider. 

 

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, 

to the LEA. 

 

41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL 

TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS   
 

  If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational 

placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety 

Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 

Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), 

AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require 

that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility. 

 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code 

section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement 

Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, 

section 3001 et seq., regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to 

receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s IEPs. CONTRACTOR shall meet all monitoring 

requirements as noted in Section 43 below. 
 

  If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special 

education.  For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 21 - 

eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student’s 

IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA. 

 

  Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed 

agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement 

until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is 

appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent or another adult with educational decision-making 

rights. 

 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, 

special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the 

federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   

 

42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  
 

  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under 

California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550. 

 

43. MONITORING   
 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit 

during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a 

master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the 

pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the 

goals set forth in the pupil’s individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making 

toward the goals set forth in the pupil’s behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil 

during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA (or SELPA) shall report the findings resulting 

from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite 

visit.  

 

The LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does 

not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement. 

 

 CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of 

each student’s instructional program.  LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the 

instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student’s records and progress.  Such 

access shall include unannounced monitoring visits.  When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to 

CONTRACTOR's site administrative office.  CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of 

each student’s progress. 

 

 If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether 

CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 

1501.1(b).   

 

 The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S 

facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching 

staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the 

standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall 

complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and 

(3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three. 

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 22 - 

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as 

aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code 

section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state 

and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or 

corrective action procedures related to review findings. 

 

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause.  

The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; 

curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance. 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable 

portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code 

Section 33126. 

 

PERSONNEL 
 

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS   
 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 

35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department 

of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

(hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers who will have or likely 

may have any direct contact with LEA students.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR’s 

employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are 

ascertained.  CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, 

unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or 

subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony 

as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee’s 

conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant 

to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j).  Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have 

successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who 

may come into contact with students.  

 

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, 

CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal 

background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each 

owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A.  CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as 

specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency.  Background 

clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 

11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.  

 

 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  
 

  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by 

CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, 

certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold  in 

the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 

34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of 

Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065.  Such qualified staff may only provide related services within 

the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, 

and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher’s 

scope of practice.   

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 23 - 

  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services 

to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to 

the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)). 

 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and 

instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The 

administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative 

credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with 

pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or 

psychology. (C) A license as a clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A 

license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master’s degree issued by an accredited 

postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, 

social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction 

and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A 

license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as 

an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional 

clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 

(a)(5)) 

 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and 

teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 

45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq.  Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional 

aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by 

CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a 

high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications:  (a) 

completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s 

(or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or 

local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; 

or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and 

mathematics readiness, as appropriate.   CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations 

governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.  

 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 

operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by 

that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   

 

46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS   

 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, 

permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services 

by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office 

of the County Superintendent of Schools.    CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates 

of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, 

approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other 

documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR.  

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes 

occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. 

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers 

are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 24 - 

lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be 

obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are 

expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is 

providing services under this Master Contract.  Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in 

credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or 

termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 

 

47. STAFF ABSENCE  

         

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is 

absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined 

by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service 

providers.  It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for 

their student.  LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR 

provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider 

within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided.  

CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless 

otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative. 

 

48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR 

SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME 

 

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the 

customary professional and ethical standards when providing services.  All practices shall only be within the 

scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well 

as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to 

the CONTRACTOR.   

 

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A 

providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus 

consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the 

CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is 

responsible for the instructional program. 

 

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that 

at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in 

an emergency is present during provision of services.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent 

shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed 

authorization in emergency situations.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer 

associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR 

to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA. 

 
HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 
 

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY   

 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, 

policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety.  CONTRACTOR shall comply 

with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health and Safety 

Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers for 

tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, 

employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual 

comes in contact with a student. 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 25 - 

 CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student.  

CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to 

post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code. 

 

50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS   

 

  CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply 

with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to:  

disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning 

permits; and occupancy capacity.  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills 

as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 

any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required complying with 

applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of 

any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of 

CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 

 

51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  

 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when 

CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication 

during the school day.  CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration 

of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a 

physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication 

shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission 

to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and 

provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written 

log for each student to whom medication is administered.  Such written log shall specify the student’s name; 

the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s 

employee who administered the medication.  CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring 

appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician’s written orders.  

Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a 

licensed physician and parent.   

 

52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING   

 

 CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA.  

CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures 

specified in LEA Procedures.  

 

53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING   
 

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are 

familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and 

procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect 

the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain 

confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates.  A written statement acknowledging the 

legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted 

to the LEA.  

 

  



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 26 - 

54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds 

of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as well 

as federal and state law.  The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, 

and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints.  CONTRACTOR further 

agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and 

related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.  

 

55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN   

 

  CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to 

adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 

49370.  A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff 

adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA.  The written statement shall be submitted 

as specified by the LEA. 

 

FINANCIAL 
 

56.  ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND 

BILLING PROCEDURES  

 

  CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an 

appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to 

implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student. 

 

  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance 

reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA 

Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services 

specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and 

services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides.  Original attendance 

forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional 

assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual 

service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or 

audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter.  

CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being 

billed for payment. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month 

when education or related services were provided.  Invoices and related documents shall be properly 

submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. 

At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and 

times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed 

to by the LEA;  name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service 

and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing 

that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; 

verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent 

with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or 

quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service 

was provided.   



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 27 - 

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.  

 

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract.  At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic 

invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the 

CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training. 

 

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in 

which the services were rendered.  LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of 

billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days 

of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in 

California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA.   CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and 

submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA.  LEA 

shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely 

corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA. 

 

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) 

extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year.  In no case shall any rebilling for the Master 

Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless 

approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in 

obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but 

no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year.  If the billing or re-billing error is the 

responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have 

communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year.  

LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee. 

 

57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT   
  

 LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when:  (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole 

or in part,  under the terms of this contract;  (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days 

other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive 

services; (c)  CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its 

program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an 

invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e)  education and/or related services are provided to students by 

personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f)  LEA has not received 

prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning  one or more students enrolled in 

CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s change of residence 

to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five 

(5) days of such confirmation;   or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other 

agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made 

for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services 

provided in that year.  

 

 Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a 

Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for 

regular ongoing operations.  In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a 

review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA.  Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) 

days.  The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined 

to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the 

CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected. 

 

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding 

paragraph are as follows:  (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of 

overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 28 - 

by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately 

credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e)  the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the 

applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or 

(f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service 

provided to the student.  
 

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) 

business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding 

payment.  Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to be 

withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all 

necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding 

payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies.  Upon receipt of 

CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s time to correct 

deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied. 

 

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should 

not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment 

should not be withheld.  LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business days by 

indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment 

should not be made.  If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the 

withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, CONTRACTOR 

may invoke the following escalation policy.  

After forty-five (45) business days:  The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s Representative 

of the dispute in writing.  The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in 

writing within fifteen (15) business days.   

After sixty (60) business days:  Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master 

Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public 

Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2). 
 

58.  PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES   
 

  CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with 

the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any 

other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to 

students. 
 

59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  
  

 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE 
 

 Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an 

appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California 

Education Code section 56061.  CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage 

pursuant to the LEA Procedures.  Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all 

instructional time.  LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is 

provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher. 

 

 Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in 

Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute.  LEA will not pay for services unless a 

qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 29 - 

“make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which 

the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student’s IEP. 
 

 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE 

 

 If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student’s unexcused absence, 

CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.   
 

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education 

Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307.   LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student’s 

attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law.  Per Diem 

rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis 

in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be 

responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student’s attendance does not qualify for 

Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-

up services. 
 

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE 
 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall 

provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless 

LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers.  LEA shall not pay for 

services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing 

the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the 

date on which the services should have been provided.  CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” 

make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR 

and LEA.  In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be 

included. 
 

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE  
 

If CONTRACTOR is a NPA, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) 

consecutive service day of the student’s absence.  LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services 

when a student is absent.   
 

60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY 

 

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with 

guidelines followed by LEAs under Education Code Section 41422: 

 

a. If CONTRACTOR remains open during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated 

in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or 

closed.   

a. NPS School Closure- If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR 

shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school closure. If the LEA is 

unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the 

signed ISA, as though the student were continuing in their regular attendance, until alternative placement 

can be found. 

b. LEA and NPS School Closure- On days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment 

consistent with the signed ISA, until alternative placement can be found. If the LEA is able to obtain 

alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is 

not in attendance due to school closure.  

 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 30 - 

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost 

instructional minutes.  CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for 

make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate. 

 

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT   
 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, 

records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to 

have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to:  student records as 

defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service 

logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service 

logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention 

aides,  bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and 

related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents 

evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and 

volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class 

schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A 

certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents 

evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank 

statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.  Such access shall include unannounced inspections by 

LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets 

submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.  

 

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR’s offices (to be 

specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge.  All records shall be provided to LEA within 

five (5) working days of a written request from LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide 

assistance for such examination or audit.  LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to 

CONTRACTOR’s offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees.  If any document or 

evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA 

agrees to the use of the electronic format. 
 

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements 

of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.  
 

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm 

determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing or failure 

to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to 

CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases 

for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay 

to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole 

or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit 

by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make 

such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice demanding payment. 

  

62. RATE SCHEDULE 
 

 The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum 

dollar amount of the contract.  It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided 

specific services.  Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be 

adjusted proportionally.  In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the 

required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-

46208. 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 31 - 

 Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified 

personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services 

during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A. 

 

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

 
By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that: 

 
(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by 
any Federal agency, and 

 
(b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or 
subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these 
offenses. 
 

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives.  This 
contract is effective on the 1st day of July, 2021 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2022, unless sooner 
terminated as provided herein. 
 

CONTRACTOR 

Mountain Valley Child and Family Services Inc.  

LEA 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

 

By: 

  

By: 

 

 Teresa Petrie 

Director of Contracts  

Date   Rose Ramos             Date 

Chief Business Officer 

 

 

    

 
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: 

 

Teresa Petrie, Director of Contracts 

Mountain Valley Child and Family Services Inc. 

24077 State Hwy 49 

Nevada City, CA  95959 

 

P: 530-265-9057 F: 530-292-3803 

Email:  teresa@mv.email  

Notices to LEA shall be addressed to: 

 

Geovanni Linares, Director III, Special Education 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

P: 916-643-9163 F: 916-643-9466 

Email:  Geovanni-linares@scusd.edu 
 



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 32 - 

EXHIBIT A:  2021-2022 RATES 

 

4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR 

 

The CONTRACTOR: Mountain Valley School - Nevada City CDS NUMBER:  

   

Maximum Contract Amount: See Purchase Order    PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO: 1:9 

 

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this 

contract shall be as follows: 

 

1) Daily Basic Education Rate: $201.00 

 

2) Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech 

& Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student’s 

IEP.) DAILY RATE:  

 

3) Related Services 

 

SERVICE  RATE  PERIOD 

Transportation     

Residential and ERMHS Services  $692.55  Per Day 

Mental Health Services     

Intensive Individual Services (340)     

Language and Speech (415)     

Adapted Physical Education (425)     

Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)     

Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)     

Assistive Technology Services (445)     

Occupational Therapy (450)     

Physical Therapy (460)     

Individual Counseling (510)     

Counseling and Guidance (515)     

Parent Counseling (520)     

Social Work Services (525)     

Psychological Services (530)     

Behavior Intervention Services (535)     

Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)     

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)     

Interpreter Services (715)     

Audiological Services (720)     

Specialized Vision Services (725)     

Orientation and Mobility (730)     

Other (900)     



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School - Nevada City 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 33 - 

EXHIBIT B: 2021-2022 ISA 
 

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES 

(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.) 

 

This agreement is effective on May 1, 2022 or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a 

nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided 

in the Master Contract and by applicable law. 

 

LEA: Sacramento City Unified School District    Nonpublic School/Agency       

LEA Case Manager:  Name     Phone Number     

Pupil Name             Sex:   M    F    Grade:      

                     (Last)                                  (First)                                   (M.I.) 

Address     City      State/Zip      

DOB        Residential Setting:  Home  Foster     LCI  #          OTHER     

Parent/Guardian     Phone (     )                                     (     )  

                          (Residence)                   (Business) 

Address     City      State/Zip      

                              (If different from student) 

 

AGREEMENT TERMS: 

 

1. Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the 

instructional day will be: 

   

during the regular school year 

    
during the extended school year 

2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the 

calendar of the school year are: 

   

during the regular school year 

    
during the extended school year 

3. Educational services as specified in the IEP shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid at the rates specified 

below. 

 A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM RATE:  (Applies 

to nonpublic schools only): Daily Rate:  

Estimated # of Days  x Daily Rate  = Projected Basic Education Costs  

 B. RELATED SERVICES 

 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Intensive Individual Services (340) 
       

Language/Speech Therapy (415) 

a.  Individual 

b.  Group 

       

Adapted Physical Ed. (425)        

Health and Nursing: Specialized 

Physical Health Care (435) 
       

Health and Nursing Services: Other 

(436)        



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School - Nevada City 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 34 - 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Assistive Technology Services (445)        

Occupational Therapy (450)        

Physical Therapy (460)        

Individual Counseling (510)        

Counseling and guidance (515).           

Parent Counseling (520)        

Social Work Services (525)        

Psychological Services (530)        

Behavior Intervention Services (535)        

Specialized Services for Low 

Incidence Disabilities (610) 
       

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing 

Services (710) 
       

Interpreter Services (715)        

Audiological Services (720)        

Specialized Vision Services (725)        

Orientation and Mobility (730)        

Braille Transcription (735)        

Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)        

Reader Services (745)        

Note Taking Services (750)        

Transcription Services (755)        

Recreation Services (760)        

College Awareness Preparation (820)        

Vocational Assessment, Counseling, 

Guidance and Career Assessment 

(830) 

       

Career Awareness (840)        

Work Experience Education (850)        

Mentoring (860)        



S22-00072 

Mountain Valley School - Nevada City 

SCUSD 21-22 (NPS/A) 

 - 35 - 

 Provider     

SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER 

Specify 

# of Times per 

wk/mo/yr., 

Duration;  

or per IEP;  

or as needed 

Cost per 

session 

Maximum 

Number of 

Sessions 

Estimated 

Maximum Total 

Cost for 

Contracted 

Period 

Agency Linkages (865)        

Travel Training (870)        

Other Transition Services (890)        

Other (900)        

Other (900)        

Transportation-Emergency 

b. Transportation-Parent 
       

Bus Passes        

Other        

 

 ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST$         

 

TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES COSTS $       

 

4.   Other Provisions/Attachments: 

     

  

 

5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON       ______  

 

6. Progress Reporting Requirements:   Quarterly  Monthly  Other (Specify) __________________________________ 

 

The parties hereto have executed this Individual Services Agreement by and through their duly authorized agents or 

representatives as set forth below. 
 
CONTRACTOR 

Mountain Valley Child and Family Services Inc., 

Mountain Valley School - Nevada City  

LEA 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

 

By: 

  

By: 

 

 Teresa Petrie 

Director of Contracts  

Date   Rose Ramos         Date 

Chief Business Officer 

 





1 of 8 

SA22-00209 
Vision 2000 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Date: September 24, 2021 Place: Sacramento, California 

Parties: Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of 
California, (hereinafter referred to as the "District"); and Vision 2000 (hereinafter 
referred to as "Contractor"). 

Recitals: 

A. The District is a public school district in the County of Sacramento, State of
California, and has its administrative offices located at the Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, 
Sacramento, CA 95824. 

B. The District desires to engage the services of the Contractor and to have said
Contractor render services on the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement. 

C. California Government Code Section 53060 authorizes a public school district to
contract with and employ any persons to furnish to the District, services and advice in financial, 
economic, accounting, engineering, legal, or administrative matters if such persons are specially 
trained, experienced and competent to perform the required services, provided such contract is 
approved or ratified by the governing board of the school district. Said section further authorizes 
the District to pay from any available funds such compensation to such persons as it deems 
proper for the services rendered, as set forth in the contract. 

D. The Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the
services required by the District, and such services are needed on a limited basis. 

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SERVICES. 
The Contractor hereby agrees to provide to the District the services as described below 
(“Services”): 

Develop, administer, maintain and sustain the tutoring/intervention program under ESSA/ESEA 
to eligible private school students during the 2021-22 school year. The primary purpose of the 
Vision 2000 Programming is to enhance academic skills and provide services to eligible 
students in private and non-profit schools that are equitable to those provided district-wide. 

Contractor will work collaboratively with the District to develop, support, coordinate, and 
implement the Vision 2000 Student Support Program. This collaboration is designed to assist 
academically low performing, eligible students who live in District Title I funded school 
attendance areas with literacy and numeracy development services designed to support 
increased academic achievement and provide opportunities for parents to actively participate in 
their children’s education. 

i. Contractor shall employ, compensate, supervise and provide training as necessary to all
personnel required including teachers, tutors, academic coaches, counselors, and social
workers.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



2 of 8 

Vision 2000 

ii. Contractor supervision will include at least 2 monthly site visits (or online visits, during
the COVID-19 pandemic) with each tutor where evaluative data can be collected and
strategies to maximize efficacy can be shared.

iii. Contractor shall provide and coordinate space and location of all sponsored professional
development, meetings, and trainings. Contractor shall coordinate the convening of all
necessary parties to facilitate program planning and modifications.

iv. Contractor agrees that all services will be non-sectarian, non-religious and non-
ideological in nature and will only be provided in private schools that maintain non-profit
status and have provided all student data to the District.

v. Contractor will be responsible for either collecting student standardized assessment data
that verifies low performance status or administer a standardized pre-assessment to all
students who participate in the program. Contractor will also collect or administer post
tutoring assessments. Pre and post assessment data for each served student will be
made available to the district upon request.

vi. Contractor will only bill for those services for students who are identified by the District
as eligible to participate in the program.

ARTICLE 2. TERM. 
This Agreement shall commence on September 24, 2021, and continue through June 30, 2022, 
unless sooner terminated, as set forth in Article 10 of this Agreement, provided all services under 
this Agreement are performed in a manner that satisfies both the needs and reasonable 
expectations of the District. The determination of a satisfactory performance shall be in the sole 
judgment and discretion of the District in light of applicable industry standards, if applicable. The 
term may be extended by mutual consent of the parties on the same terms and conditions by a 
mutually executed addendum. 

ARTICLE 3. PAYMENT. 
District agrees to pay Contractor for services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this Agreement 
as follows: 

Fee Rate: $65.00 per hour of services as may be requested by District. Additionally, 
District will compensate Contractor at the rate of 3% for administrative costs. District shall not 
pay travel and other expenses. Total fee shall not exceed Eighty Thousand Dollars ($80,000). 

Payment shall be made within 30 days upon submission of monthly invoices (with hours 
delineated by school site), which will include all required documentary backup including Student 
Sign-In/Attendance Verification Sheets, to the attention of Dr. Kelley Odipo, State & Federal 
Programs, at Kelley-odipo@scusd.edu  

ARTICLE 4. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES. 
District will provide Contractor with access to all needed records and materials during normal 
business hours upon reasonable notice. However, District shall not be responsible for nor will it 
be required to provide personnel to accomplish the duties and obligations of Contractor under 
this Agreement. Contractor will provide all other necessary equipment and facilities to render the 
services pursuant to this Agreement. 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7

mailto:Kelley-odipo@scusd.edu


3 of 8 

Vision 2000 

ARTICLE 5. WORKS FOR HIRE/COPYRIGHT/TRADEMARK/PATENT 
The Contractor understands and agrees that all matters specifically produced under this 
Agreement that contain no intellectual property or other protected works owned by Contractor 
shall be works for hire and shall become the sole property of the District and cannot be used 
without the District's express written permission. The District shall have the right, title and interest 
in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark and/or patent 
of said matter in the name of the District. The Contractor consents to the use of the Contractor's 
name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any 
purpose in any medium. 

As to those matters specifically produced under this Agreement that are composed of intellectual 
property or other protected works, Contractor must clearly identify to the District those protected 
elements included in the completed work. The remainder of the intellectual property of such 
completed works shall be deemed the sole property of the District. The completed works that 
include both elements of Contractor’s protected works and the District’s protected works, shall be 
subject to a mutual non-exclusive license agreement that permits either party to utilize the 
completed work in a manner consistent with this Agreement including the sale, use, performance 
and distribution of the matters, for any purpose in any medium. 

ARTICLE 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
Contractor’s relationship to the District under this Agreement shall be one of an independent 
contractor. The Contractor and all of their employees shall not be employees or agents of the 
District and are not entitled to participate in any District pension plans, retirement, health and 
welfare programs, or any similar programs or benefits, as a result of this Agreement.  

The Contractor and their employees or agents rendering services under this agreement shall not 
be employees of the District for federal or state tax purposes, or for any other purpose. The 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to report 
as income its compensation from the District and to make the requisite tax filings and payments 
to the appropriate federal, state, and/or local tax authorities. No part of the Contractor’s 
compensation shall be subject to withholding by the District for the payment of social security, 
unemployment, or disability insurance, or any other similar state or federal tax obligation.  

The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all 
claims, losses, liabilities, or damages arising from any contention by a third party that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 

The District assumes no liability for workers' compensation or liability for loss, damage or injury 
to persons or property during or relating to the performance of services under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 7. FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS. 
Contractor agrees that any employee it assigns to provide services directly to, or have any 
contact with, pupil(s) of the District, shall be subject to the fingerprinting/background and TB 
requirements set forth in the California Education Code. Any employee that Contractor assigns 
to provide services directly to, or have any contact with, pupil(s) of the District shall have 
undergone the background check required in §45125(b)&(c), including response by DOJ, before 
any service or contact with pupil(s) of the District is allowed. 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



4 of 8 

Vision 2000 

Pursuant to Education Code §45125.1, Contractor shall provide a complete list to the District of 
all employees cleared by the DOJ who will provide services under this Agreement (or MOU) and 
shall certify in writing to the District that Contractor has no information that any of its employees 
who are required to have their fingerprints submitted to the Department of Justice (DOJ), and 
who may come in contact with pupils, have been convicted of a “violent or serious felony” as 
defined in §45122.1 or that they have been advised of any such arrest by the DOJ.   

Contractor shall continuously monitor through DOJ, and obtain subsequent arrest notification 
from DOJ, regarding any individual whose fingerprints were submitted pursuant to §45125.1 and 
who is or will be providing service directly to, or has contact with, pupil(s) of the District. Upon 
receipt of a subsequent arrest notification from DOJ, Contractor shall, within 24 hours, notify the 
District of such arrest notification and prohibit the employee from having any further contact with 
any pupil(s) of the District until such time as the employee’s arrest has been determined to not 
involve a “violent or serious felony” as defined in §45122.1 or the notification has been 
withdrawn by DOJ. If an employee is disqualified from working for the District pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Education Code, even if only temporarily, Contractor agrees to 
provide a replacement employee within 15 days of receiving notification that the previous 
employee has been disqualified.  

Contractor further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any 
pupil(s) of the District whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California Penal 
Code §11165.7(a), or not, shall be provided  annual training on child abuse and mandated 
reporting of child abuse or neglect utilizing an evidence-based training method which includes 
training on how to recognize conduct of adults which may trigger reasonable suspicion of abuse 
of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming” behaviors. 

Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement (or 
MOU). 

ARTICLE 8.  VACCINATION REQUIREMENTS 

As required by District and State Public Health Order of August 11, 2021, all individuals serving 
in school settings must verify vaccine status. Individuals who are not fully vaccinated, or for 
whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, are required to undergo 
diagnostic screening testing at least once weekly. Contractor agrees that any employee it 
provides to District shall be subject to the vaccination requirements set forth by the California 
Department of Public Health. Upon Contractor’s receipt of vaccination documents, District will 
be notified. For individuals who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown 
or documentation is not provided, Contractor agrees such individuals must undergo diagnostic 
screening testing at least once weekly and Contractor shall provide evidence of same to District 
on a weekly basis or as otherwise agreed upon by District and the Contractor. District shall 
provide Contractor’s employees opportunities to undergo diagnostic screening testing at least 
once weekly through its facilities. 

Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the agreement. 

ARTICLE 9. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. 
Each of the Parties shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, its officers, agents 
and employees from any and all claims, liabilities and costs, for any damages, sickness, death, or 
injury to person(s) or property, including payment of reasonable attorney’s fees, and including 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



5 of 8 

Vision 2000 

without limitation all consequential damages, from any cause whatsoever, arising directly or 
indirectly from or connected with the operations or services performed under this Agreement, 
caused in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Parties or its 
agents, employees or subcontractors.  

It is the intention of the Parties, where fault is determined to have been contributory, principles of 
comparative fault will be followed and each Party shall bear the proportionate cost of any 
damage attributable to fault of that Party. It is further understood and agreed that such 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 10. INSURANCE. 
Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this Agreement, Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate of insurance reflecting its comprehensive general liability 
insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence naming District as an 
additional insured. Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any 
insurance carried by District shall be excess and noncontributory. If insurance is not kept in 
force during the entire term of the Agreement, District may procure the necessary insurance and 
pay the premium therefore, and the premium shall be paid by the Contractor to the District. 

ARTICLE 11. TERMINATION. 
The District may terminate this Agreement without cause upon giving the Contractor thirty days 
written notice. Notice shall be deemed given when received by Contractor, or no later than three 
days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

The District may terminate this Agreement with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate 
for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Agreement by the 
Contractor; (b) any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal 
injury or property damage; or (c) the Contractor confirms its insolvency or is adjudged a bankrupt; 
Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on 
account of the Contractor's insolvency.  

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or 
satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Agreement shall cease and 
terminate. In the event of such termination, the District may secure the required services from 
another contractor. If the cost to the District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to 
this Agreement, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the Contractor. The 
foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies 
available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be deemed given when received by 
the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

ARTICLE 12. ASSIGNMENT. 
This Agreement is for personal services to be performed by the Contractor. Neither this 
Agreement nor any duties or obligations to be performed under this Agreement shall be assigned 
without the prior written consent of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the 
event of an assignment to which the District has consented, the assignee or his/her or its legal 
representative shall agree in writing with the District to personally assume, perform, and be 
bound by the covenants, obligations, and agreements contained in this Agreement. 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



6 of 8 

Vision 2000 

ARTICLE 13. NOTICES. 
Any notices, requests, demand or other communication required or permitted to be given under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of 
service if served personally on the party to whom notice is to be given, or on the third day after 
mailing if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid, or on the day after dispatching by Federal Express or another 
overnight delivery service, and properly addressed as follows: 

District: 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
PO Box 246870 
Sacramento CA 95824-6870 
Attn: Jessica Sulli, Contracts 

Contractor: 
Vision 2000 
2816 Robinson Creek Ln 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 
Attn: Hazel Mahone, President 

ARTICLE 14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
understanding between them with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no 
promises, terms, conditions or obligations, oral or written, between or among the parties relating 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that are not fully expressed in this Agreement. This 
Agreement may not be modified, changed, supplemented or terminated, nor may any obligations 
under this Agreement be waived, except by written instrument signed by the party to be 
otherwise expressly permitted in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 15. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 
The Contractor shall abide by and be subject to all applicable District policies, regulations, 
statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. Contractor shall not hire any officer or 
employee of the District to perform any service covered by this Agreement. If the work is to be 
performed in connection with a Federal contract or grant, Contractor shall not hire any employee 
of the United States government to perform any service covered by this Agreement. 

Contractor affirms to the best of their knowledge, there exists no actual or potential conflict of 
interest between Contractor’s family, business or financial interest and the services provided 
under this Agreement. In the event of a change in either private interest or services under this 
Agreement, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may arise as a result of 
such change will be brought to the District’s attention in writing. 

ARTICLE 16. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed under contract, there 
will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in the work 
because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, age or marital 
status. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not 
limited to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 

ARTICLE 17. SEVERABILITY. 
Should any term or provision of this Agreement be determined to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law of the State of California, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be 
affected thereby. Each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced as 
written to the full extent permitted by law. 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



7 of 8 

Vision 2000 

ARTICLE 18. RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
All rules and regulations of the District’s Board of Education and all federal, state and local laws, 
ordinance and regulations are to be strictly observed by the Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement. Any rule, regulation or law required to be contained in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be incorporated herein. 

ARTICLE 19. APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE. 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement, venue shall only be in 
the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in Sacramento County, 
California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by 
the District. 

ARTICLE 20. DISCLOSURE OF STUDENT INFORMATION 

The Parties understand and agree that, in order for the Contractor to effectively provide the 
Services as described herein, the Contractor may have access to and/or generate information 
that may be considered confidential student information, subject to the protections of the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), 20 U.S.C. §1232g, 34 Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 99, and California Education Code sections 49060-49085.  

Whereas parental consent is generally required in order for a school district to disclose 
confidential student information, an exception exists wherein a school district may disclose 
confidential student information to a contractor or consultant, such as the Contractor, with a 
legitimate educational interest who has a formal written agreement or contract with the school 
district regarding the provision of outsourced institutional services or functions by the contractor 
or consultant. (Ed. Code, § 49076, subd. (a)(2)(G)(i).)  
The Contractor is considered a “school official” for purposes of 34 CFR §99.31(a)(1)(i) and 
Education Code section 49076, subdivision (a)(2)(G)(i). The Contractor and/or its employees or 
subcontractors shall not disclose personally identifiable student information to any other party 
without the consent of the parent or adult student. The Contractor and/or its employees or 
subcontractors shall not use student information for any other purpose than the scope of work 
described herein.  

ARTICLE 21. RATIFICATION BY BOARD OF EDUCATION. 
To the extent the Agreement exceeds an expenditure above the amount specified in Education 
Code section 17605, this Agreement, as to any such exceeded amount, is not enforceable and is 
invalid unless and until the exceeded amount is approved and/or ratified by the governing board 
of the Sacramento City Unified School District, as evidenced by a motion of said board duly 
passed and adopted. 

SA22-00209 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FC6E0C5-4C2C-43EC-AA5C-6C1BF49453C7

11/01/2021



 

 

FACILITIES LEASE 

 

For all or a portion of the following Site: 

 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project   

Recorded Address: 7256 Luther Drive, Sacramento, CA 95823 

Physical Address: 3500 Florin Rd, Sacramento, CA 95823 

APN:  049-0010-089-0000 

 

By and between 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

And 

 

John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction  

1717 2nd Street  

Sacramento, CA  95811 

 

 

Dated as of April 21, 2022



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 2 

2. Exhibits ............................................................................................................ 3 

3. Lease of Project and Site .................................................................................... 3 

4. Term ............................................................................................................... 4 

5. Payment .......................................................................................................... 5 

6. Title................................................................................................................. 5 

7. Quiet Enjoyment ............................................................................................... 5 

8. Representations of the District ............................................................................ 5 

9. Representations of the Developer ........................................................................ 6 

10. Pre-construction Services ................................................................................... 7 

11. Construction of Project ......................................................................................15 

12. Maintenance ....................................................................................................16 

13. Utilities ...........................................................................................................16 

14. Taxes and Other Impositions .............................................................................16 

15. Insurance ........................................................................................................17 

16. Indemnification and Defense .............................................................................23 

17. Eminent Domain ..............................................................................................25 

18. Damage and Destruction ...................................................................................26 

19. Abatement ......................................................................................................26 

20. Access ............................................................................................................26 

21. Assignment, Subleasing ....................................................................................27 

22. Termination, Default And Suspension .................................................................27 

23. Notices ...........................................................................................................35 

24. Binding Effect ..................................................................................................36 

25. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver .......................................................36 

26. Severability .....................................................................................................36 

27. Amendments, Changes and Modifications ............................................................36 

28. Net-Net-Net Lease ............................................................................................36 

29. Execution in Counterparts .................................................................................37 

30. Developer and District Representatives ...............................................................37 

31. Applicable Law .................................................................................................37 

32. Attorney's Fees ................................................................................................37 

33. Captions .........................................................................................................37 



 

 

34. Prior Agreements .............................................................................................37 

35. Further Assurances ...........................................................................................37 

36. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated ......................................................................37 

37. Time of the Essence .........................................................................................37 

38. Force Majeure ..................................................................................................38 

39. Interpretation ..................................................................................................38 

 

 

Exhibits A - H 

 

 



 

Facilities Lease Page 1 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

FACILITIES LEASE 

This facilities lease (“Facilities Lease”), dated as of May 19, 2022 (“Effective Date”), is 

made and entered into by and between John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction 

(“Developer”), a [California corporation] duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of [California], as sublessor, and Sacramento City Unified School District, a school 

district duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California, as 

sublessee (“District”) (together, the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized under Section 17406 of the Education Code of 

the State of California to lease a site to a developer and to have that developer develop and 

construct the project on the site and to lease back to the District the completed project and 

site; and  

WHEREAS, on the date hereof, the District has leased to Developer, a parcel of land 

located at 3500 Florin Rd, Sacramento, CA 95823, known as Luther Burbank High School, 

particularly described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference (“Site”); and 

WHEREAS, District and Developer have executed a site lease at the same time as this 

Facilities Lease whereby the District is leasing the Site to Developer (“Site Lease”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for the development and construction of 

certain work to be performed on portions of the Site which will include construction of 

improvements to be known as the Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room 

Improvement Project (“Project”); and   

WHEREAS, District has retained Lionakis (“Architect”) to prepare plans and 

specifications for the Project (“Plans and Specifications”) and to act as the Design Professional 

in General Responsible Charge for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the District (“Board”) has determined that it is in 

the best interests of the District and for the common benefit of the citizens residing in the 

District to construct the Project by leasing the Site to Developer and by simultaneously 

entering into this Facilities Lease under which the District will lease back the completed Project 

and site from Developer and if necessary, make Lease Payments; and 

WHEREAS, the District further acknowledges and agrees that it has entered into the 

Site Lease and the Facilities Lease pursuant to Education Code Section 17406 as the best 

available and most expeditious means for the District to satisfy its substantial need for the 

facilities to be provided by the Project and to accommodate and educate District students and 

to utilize its facilities proceeds expeditiously; and 

WHEREAS, this Site Lease and Facilities Lease are awarded based a competitive 

solicitation process pursuant to Education Code section 17406 and in compliance with the 

required procedures and guidelines for evaluating the qualifications of proposers adopted and 

published by the Board to the proposer providing the best value to the school district, taking 

into consideration the proposer’s demonstrated competence and professional qualifications 

necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required; and 



 

Facilities Lease Page 2 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

WHEREAS, the selection of Developer was conducted in a fair and impartial manner; 

and  

WHEREAS, Developer has reviewed the Lease Documents; and 

WHEREAS, Developer represents that it has the expertise and experience to perform 

the services set forth in this Facilities Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have performed all acts, conditions and things required by law 

to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with 

the execution and entering into of this Facilities Lease and all those conditions precedent do 

exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as 

required by law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute and enter into this 

Facilities Lease; and  

WHEREAS, Developer is authorized to lease the Site as lessee and to develop the 

Project by constructing the Project on the Site and to lease the completed Project and Site 

back to the District, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual 

covenants hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Definitions  

In addition to the terms and entities defined above or in subsequent provisions, and unless 

the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this section shall, for all purposes of this 

Facilities Lease, have the meanings herein specified. 

1.1 “Developer” or “Lessor” means John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction, a 

[California corporation], organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

[California], Contractor's license number 178809 issued by the State of California, 

Contractors’ State License Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 9, of the 

Business and Professions Code, and its successors and assigns. 

1.2 “Developer’s Representative” means the Managing Member of Developer, 

or any person authorized to act on behalf of Developer under or with respect to this 

Facilities Lease. 

1.3 “Contract Documents” are defined in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease.  

1.4 “District” or “Lessee” means the Sacramento City Unified School District, a 

school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California. 

1.5 “District Representative” means the Superintendent of the District, or any 

other person authorized by the Governing Board of the District to act on behalf of the 

District under or with respect to this Facilities Lease. 

1.6 “Permitted Encumbrances” means, as of any particular time:  

1.6.1 Liens for general ad valorem taxes and assessments, if any, not then 

delinquent, or which the District may permit to remain unpaid;  

1.6.2 The Site Lease.  



 

Facilities Lease Page 3 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

1.6.3 This Facilities Lease.  

1.6.4 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 

reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions which exist of record as of 

the date of this Facilities Lease. 

1.6.5 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 

reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions established following the 

date of recordation of this Facilities Lease and to which Developer and the 

District consent in writing which will not impair or impede the operation of the 

Site.  

2. Exhibits   

The following Exhibits are attached to and by reference incorporated and made a part of this 

Facilities Lease:   

2.1 Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Site:  The description of the real 

property constituting the Site. 

2.2 Exhibit B - Description of the Project:  The map or diagram depiction of the 

Project. 

2.3 Exhibit C - Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, 

and Payment Provisions:  A detailed description of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 

and the provisions related to the payment of that amount to Developer, including 

Attachment 3, the Schedule of Lease Payments and Payoff Dates and Amounts. 

2.4 Exhibit D - General Construction Provisions:  The provisions generally 

describing the Project’s construction. 

2.5 Exhibit D-1 – Special Conditions Provisions:  The provisions describing 

conditions specific to the Project’s construction. 

2.6 Exhibit E - Memorandum of Commencement Date:  The Memorandum 

which will memorialize the commencement and expiration dates of the Lease Term. 

2.7 Exhibit F - Construction Schedule  

2.8 Exhibit G – Schedule of Values  

2.9 Exhibit H – Project Labor Agreement 

3. Lease of Project and Site  

3.1 Developer hereby leases the compled Project to the District, and the District 

hereby leases said completed Project and Site from Developer upon the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Facilities Lease.   

3.2 The leasing by Developer to the District of the completed Project and Site shall 

not affect or result in a merger of the District’s leasehold estate pursuant to this 

Facilities Lease and its fee estate as lessor under the Site Lease.  Developer shall 



 

Facilities Lease Page 4 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

continue to have and hold a leasehold estate in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease 

throughout the Term thereof and the Term of this Facilities Lease.   

3.3 As to the Site, this Facilities Lease shall be deemed and constitute a sublease. 

4. Term 

4.1 Facilities Lease is Legally Binding  

This Facilities Lease is legally binding on the Parties upon execution by the Parties and 

the District Board’s approval of this Facilities Lease.  The “Term” of this Facilities Lease 

for the purposes of District’s obligation to make Lease Payments shall commence on 

the date when Developer delivers possession of the Project to District and when all 

improvements to be provided by Developer are determined by the District to be 

completed as set forth in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Documents, the 

Term of this Facilities Lease for the purposes of District’s obligations to make Lease 

Payments shall terminate one (1) year thereafter or upon payment of the final lease 

payment, whichever occurs later.   

4.2 After Developer has completed construction of the Project and the District has 

accepted the Project, the Parties shall execute the Memorandum of Commencement 

Date attached hereto as Exhibit E to memorialize the commencement date of the 

Lease Payments and expiration date of the Term.  Notwithstanding this Term, the 

Parties hereby acknowledge that each has obligations, duties, and rights under this 

Facilities Lease that exist upon execution of this Facilities Lease and prior to the 

beginning of the Lease Payment obligations. 

4.3 The Term may be extended or shortened upon the occurrence of the earliest of 

any of the following events, which shall constitute the end of the Term: 

4.3.1 An Event of Default by District as defined herein and Developer’s 

election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 

4.3.2 An Event of Default by Developer as defined herein and District’s 

election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 

4.3.3 Consummation of the District’s purchase option pursuant to the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, and Payment 

Provisions indicated in Exhibit C (“Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions”); or 

4.3.4 A third-party taking of the Project under Eminent Domain, only if the 

Term is ended as indicated more specifically herein; or 

4.3.5 Damage or destruction of the Project, only if the Term is ended as 

indicated more specifically herein. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

5. Payment   

In consideration for the lease of the completed Project and Site by Developer back to the 

District and for other good and valuable consideration, the District shall make all necessary 

payments pursuant to the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 

6. Title   

6.1 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, the District shall hold fee title to the 

Site, including the Project, and nothing in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease shall 

change, in any way, the District’s ownership interest. 

6.2 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall have a leasehold 

interest in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease. 

6.3 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall hold title to the Project 

improvements provided by Developer which comprise fixtures, repairs, replacements 

or modifications thereto.   

6.4 If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C or if District makes all necessary 

payments under the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C, all 

right, title and interest of Developer, its assigns and successors in interest in and to 

the Project and the Site shall be transferred to and vested in the District at the end of 

the Term.  Title shall be transferred to and vested in the District hereunder without 

the necessity for any further instrument of transfer; provided, however, that Developer 

agrees to execute any instrument requested by District to memorialize the termination 

of this Facilities Lease and transfer of title to the Project. 

7. Quiet Enjoyment   

Upon District’s possession of the Project, Developer shall thereafter provide the District with 

quiet use and enjoyment of the Project, and the District shall during the Term peaceably and 

quietly have and hold and enjoy the Project, without suit, trouble or hindrance from 

Developer, except as otherwise may be set forth in this Facilities Lease.  Developer will, at 

the request of the District and at Developer’s cost, join in any legal action in which the District 

asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment to the extent Developer may lawfully do 

so.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have the right to inspect the Project and 

the Site as provided herein. 

8. Representations of the District   

The District represents, covenants and warrants to Developer as follows: 

8.1 Due Organization and Existence   

The District is a school district, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and 

laws of the State of California. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 6 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

8.2 Authorization  

The District has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver 

this Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 

duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease. 

8.3 No Violations   

Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease nor the Site Lease, nor the 

fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 

results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 

agreement or instrument to which the District is now a party or by which the District 

is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 

or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 

or assets of the District, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

8.4 Condemnation Proceedings   

8.4.1 District covenants and agrees, but only to the extent that it may lawfully 

do so, that so long as this Facilities Lease remains in effect, the District will not 

seek to exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to the Project so as 

to cause a full or partial termination of this Facilities Lease.  

8.4.2 If for any reason the foregoing covenant is determined to be 

unenforceable or in some way invalid, or if District should fail or refuse to abide 

by such covenant, then, to the extent it may lawfully do so, District agrees that 

the financial interest of Developer shall be as indicated in this Facilities Lease. 

9. Representations of Developer   

Developer represents, covenants and warrants to the District as follows: 

9.1 Due Organization and Existence   

Developer is a [California company] duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of [California], has the power to enter into this Facilities Lease and the Site 

Lease; is possessed of full power to lease, lease back, and hold real and personal 

property and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of all of the aforesaid 

agreements. 

9.2 Authorization   

Developer has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver this 

Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 

duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease.  

9.3 No Violations   

Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease and the Site Lease, nor the 

fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 

results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 



 

Facilities Lease Page 7 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

agreement or instrument to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer is 

bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 

or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 

or assets of Developer, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

9.4 No Bankruptcy   

Developer is not now nor has it ever been in bankruptcy or receivership. 

9.5 No Encumbrances   

Developer shall not pledge any District payments of any kind, related to the Site Lease, 

this Facilities Lease, or in any way derived from the Site, and shall not mortgage or 

encumber the Site, except as may be specifically permitted pursuant to the provisions 

of this Facilities Lease related to Developer’s financing the construction of the project. 

9.6 Continued Existence   

Developer shall not voluntarily commence any act intended to dissolve or terminate 

the legal existence of Developer, at or before the latest of the following: 

9.6.1 Eighteen (18) months following completion of the Project.  

9.6.2 One (1) year following expiration or earlier termination of the Term. 

9.6.3 After dismissal and final resolution of any and all disputes between the 

Parties and/or any third-party claims related, in any way, to the Project. 

While the lease documents are in effect, Developer shall give District one hundred 

twenty (120) days written notice prior to dissolving or terminating the legal existence 

of Developer. 

10. Preconstruction Services 

10.1 Scope of the Preconstruction Services 

Developer shall perform management and coordination services, plan and specification 

constructability reviews, provide value-engineering reviews and recommendations and 

other reviews as necessary to verify that the drawings and specifications are clear and 

reasonably accurate to minimize the need for changes during the construction phase 

of the project, including but not limited to the following: 

10.1.1 General Services 

10.1.1.1 Developer shall attend meetings between the Architect, the 

District, District site personnel, and any other applicable consultants of 

the District as required to discuss the Project, including budget, scope 

and schedule. 

10.1.1.2 Developer shall assist the Architect with making formal 

presentations to the governing board of District. Such assistance is 

anticipated to include floor plans and elevations necessary for any 

architectural presentation. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 8 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.1.1.3 Developer shall prepare a rough schedule in a format 

acceptable to District, and update as necessary. 

10.1.1.4 Developer shall prepare and update the components of the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and shall be primarily responsible for 

ensuring that the Project can and is constructed for no more than that 

amount. 

10.1.1.5 While the Architect is anticipated to provide primary 

assistance, Developer shall assist District with City land use issues. 

10.1.1.6 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist District 

and Architect with DSA review, input, and timeframe for same. 

10.1.1.7 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 

review and comment upon geotechnical / soils investigation and report. 

10.1.1.8 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 

review and comment upon survey of the Site for the Project. 

10.1.1.9 When requested, Developer will prepare meeting minutes. 

10.1.1.10 Prepare schedule for preconstruction deliverables, subject to 

District’s approval, and provide preconstruction deliverables within time 

frames of approved preconstruction schedule. 

10.1.2 Review of Design Documents. 

10.1.2.1 Review Project design and budget with District and Architect 

based on the 100% Construction Documents submitted to DSA to: 

10.1.2.1.1 Provide recommendations on site use and 

improvements, selection of materials, building systems and 

equipment and methods of Project delivery; 

10.1.2.1.2 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 

construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 

requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 

the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 

to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 

alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 

economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 

substitutions; 

10.1.2.1.3 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 

construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 

requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 

the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 

to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 

alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 

economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 

substitutions; 



 

Facilities Lease Page 9 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.1.2.1.4 Provide plan review. 

10.1.2.1.5 Value-engineering. Prepare a value-engineering 

report for District review and approval that: 

10.1.2.1.5.1 Details areas of cost saving (e.g. 

construction processes/procedures, specified materials 

and equipment, and equipment or other aspects of the 

design documents that can be modified to reduce costs 

and/or the time for achieving final completion of the 

Project and/or to extend life-cycle and/or to reduce 

maintenance/operations costs, without diminution in the 

quality of materials/equipment/workmanship, scope or 

intended purposes of the Project); 

10.1.2.1.5.2 Provides detailed estimate for proposed 

value-engineering items; 

10.1.2.1.5.3 Defines methodology or approaches that 

maximize value; and 

10.1.2.1.5.4 Identifies design choices that can be more 

economically delivered.   

10.1.2.1.6 Constructability Review. Prepare detailed 

interdisciplinary constructability review within Fourteen (14) 

days of receipt of the plans from the District that: 

10.1.2.1.6.1 Ensures construction documents are well 

coordinated and reviewed for errors; 

10.1.2.1.6.2 Identifies to the extent known, 

construction deficiencies and areas of concern; 

10.1.2.1.6.3 Back-checks design drawings for inclusion 

of modifications; and 

10.1.2.1.6.4 Provides the District with written 

confirmation that: 

10.1.2.1.6.4.1 Requirements noted in the design 

documents prepared for the Project are consistent 

with and conform to the District's Project 

requirements and design standards. 

10.1.2.1.6.4.2 Various components have been 

coordinated and are consistent with each other so 

as to minimize conflicts within or between 

components of the design documents. 

10.1.2.2 Confirm Modifications to Design Drawings. If the District 

accepts Developer's comments, including the value-engineering and/or 

constructability review comments, review the design documents to 



 

Facilities Lease Page 10 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

confirm that those comments are properly incorporated into the final 

design documents. 

In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not acting in the capacity of a licensed design 

professional, and that Developer’s examination is made in good faith to facilitate 

construction and does not create an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to 

detect errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain 

compliance with applicable laws, building codes or regulations.  However, nothing in this 

provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and reporting any error, 

inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within the Developer’s standard of care 

including, without limitation, any applicable laws, ordinance, rules, or regulations.   

10.1.3 Budget of Project Costs. 

10.1.3.1 At each stage of plan review indicated above, Developer will 

update and refine the budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price based 

on the most recent set of design documents. Developer shall also advise 

the District and the Architect if it appears that the total construction 

costs may exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price established by the 

District and shall make recommendations for corrective action. 

Developer will further provide input to the District and Architect relative 

to value of construction, means and methods for construction, duration 

of construction of various building methods and constructability. 

In each budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer shall include values of scopes 

of work subdivided into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for 

progress payments during construction. This budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall 

include, at a minimum, the following information divided into at least the following 

categories for each site: 

10.1.3.1.1 Overhead and profit; 

10.1.3.1.2 Supervision; 

10.1.3.1.3 General conditions; 

10.1.3.1.4 Layout & Mobilization (not more than 1%); 

10.1.3.1.5 Submittals, samples, shop drawings (not more than 

3%); 

10.1.3.1.6 Bonds and insurance (not more than 2%); 

10.1.3.1.7 Close-out documentation (not less than 3%); 

10.1.3.1.8 Demolition; 

10.1.3.1.9 Installation; 

10.1.3.1.10 Rough-in; 

10.1.3.1.11 Finishes; 

10.1.3.1.12 Testing; 



 

Facilities Lease Page 11 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.1.3.1.13 Owner and Maintenance Manuals; and 

10.1.3.1.14 Punchlist and District acceptance. 

10.1.4 Construction Schedule and Phasing Plan 

Developer shall prepare a preconstruction schedule to guide the design team 

through to bid dates. That schedule shall show the multiple phases and 

interrelations of design, constructability review, and estimating. Developer shall 

also prepare a full construction schedule for the Project detailing the 

construction activities. Developer shall further investigate, recommend and 

prepare a schedule for the purchase of materials and equipment requiring long 

lead time procurement, and coordinate the schedule with the early preparation 

of portions of the Contract Documents by the Architect.  

10.1.5 Construction Planning and Bidding 

10.1.5.1 For all of Developer’s activities relating to construction 

planning and bidding, Developer shall comply with all applicable legal 

requirements, including but not limited to those set forth in 

Education Code section 17406. 

10.1.5.2 Consult with District staff in relation to the existing site.  

Selected developer should make site visits, as needed to review the 

current site conditions.  During this evaluation, Respondent may 

make recommendations relating to soils investigations and utility 

locations and capacities, in order to minimize unforeseen conditions. 

10.1.5.3 Attend meetings at the Site with the Architect and the 

design team as needed. 

10.1.5.4 Provide plan review and constructability services with an 

emphasis on ensuring that the Project can be completed within the 

established schedule and within the available budget. 

10.1.5.5 Provide a detailed analysis of all major Project systems 

with an emphasis on possible value engineering possibilities.   

10.1.5.6 Prepare and distribute specifications and drawings 

provided by District to facilitate bidding to Developer's 

subcontractors. 

10.1.5.7 Review the drawings and specifications to eliminate areas 

of conflict and overlapping in the work to be performed by various 

subcontractors, and with a view to eliminating change order requests 

by the Architect or subcontractors. 

10.1.5.8 Conduct pre-bid conferences. Coordinate with District and 

the Architect in responding to subcontractor questions or providing 

clarification to all subcontractors. 

10.1.5.9 DSA approved plans shall be utilized to receive 

subcontractor bids and develop the GMP in accordance with the 



 

Facilities Lease Page 12 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

lease-leaseback agreement forms, including the requirement that 

Developer engage in competitive bidding for subcontractors for all 

scopes of work on the Project that constitute more than one half of 

one percent (0.5%) of the GMP. The District representative shall be 

present during the receipt of bids from subcontractors. 

10.1.5.10 Each phase GMP shall be presented to the District in the 

following manner within a three ring binder as well as electronically 

on an external memory device such as a CD, USB drive, or other 

comparable device: 

10.1.5.10.1 Cover sheet, signed by Developer indicating the 

GMP dollar amount with a certification, indicating that the GMP 

is all inclusive per the plans, specifications and addenda (contract 

documents).  Also include certification stating, “Developer 

hereby certifies that they have reviewed all subcontractor 

proposals and whether the subcontractor excluded portions of 

their scope Developer has included all costs for a complete GMP 

in accordance with plans, specifications and addenda.” 

10.1.5.10.2 A bid tabulation sheet indicating the breakdown by 

subcontractor/trade along with the appropriate general condition 

amount, other fees (as submitted with the response to the 

RFQ/P). 

10.1.5.10.3 Behind the bid tabulation sheet mentioned in 

subdivision 10.1.5.5.2 above should be a sheet that indicates 

what is included in the general conditions, which should match 

what was submitted in the response to the RFQ/P. 

10.1.5.10.4 Copies of all subcontractor bids received divided 

by trade that corresponds to the final spread sheet with a cover 

sheet indicating the scope and subcontractors that provided bids 

as well as those that were asked to bid, but did not submit a 

proposal. This sheet should have the dollar amounts for each 

subcontractor that provided a bid with the first column being the 

proposed subcontractor for that trade. 

10.1.5.10.5 Behind subdivision 10.1.5.5.4 above should be the 

bids for that trade with the proposed subcontractor bid on top 

and the other subcontractor bids in descending order based on 

best value score. 

10.1.5.10.6 The minimum number of bona fide bids from 

contractors for a specific trade shall be as follows: 

10.1.5.10.6.1 Two (2) bids for subcontracts up to One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000);   

10.1.5.10.6.2 Three (3) bids for subcontracts over One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000). 



 

Facilities Lease Page 13 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.1.5.10.7 If Developer intends to propose to self-perform 

portion(s) of the construction of the Project, it must receive the 

District’s prior written approval. If approved, Developer must 

provide its pricing (its bid) to the District twenty-four (24) hours 

prior to Developer’s receipt of Subcontractor bids for those 

portion(s) of the Work.  

10.1.5.10.7.1 Regardless of the scope of work and not in 

any way reducing the number of Subcontractor bids 

based on the other requirements of the Contract 

Documents, the minimum number of bona fide bids from 

Subcontractors for scope(s) of Work that Developer is 

bidding to self-perform shall be Two (2) Bids, not 

including Developer’s pricing/bid. 

10.1.5.11 Produce detailed construction CPM schedules to be 

incorporated into the Project documents including identification of 

the Project critical path and agency approvals. 

10.1.5.12 Plan the phases and staging of construction, staging 

areas, temporary fencing, office trailer placement, access, etc. as 

required. 

10.1.5.13 Any other services that are reasonable and necessary to 

control the budget and schedule. List those areas where 

subconsultants will be required and where the Respondent has in-

house expertise.  Provide resumes of persons providing each of 

these services and for key personnel assigned to the Project. 

10.2 Schedule 

Preconstruction services outlined above will commence on the date the District issues 

a Notice to Proceed with Preconstruction Services for the Agreement, and conclude 

upon approval of the Amendment to the Lease Agreements by District’s Board, or 

termination of this Agreement by either party per the Agreement’s terms.  Any 

extension shall be subject to reasonable approval in writing by the Parties.  

10.3 Ownership of Records 

It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by Developer under this Agreement 

shall become the property of the District and Developer shall have no property right 

therein whatsoever.  Developer hereby assigns to District any copyrights associated 

with the materials prepared pursuant to the Agreement.   

10.4 Open Book Policy 

There will be an open book policy with Developer and its construction team. District 

shall have access to all subcontractor bids, value engineering back-up, contingency 

breakdown & tracking, and Developer fees.  



 

Facilities Lease Page 14 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.5 Compensation to Developer for Preconstruction Services 

District agrees to reimburse Developer in the total amount not to exceed TWENTY 

FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($25,000.00), for the performance of 

services contemplated by this Agreement.  Developer shall be paid monthly for the 

actual fees and allowed costs and expenses for all time and materials required and 

expended for work requested and specified by the District as completed.  Said amount 

shall be paid within thirty (30) days upon submittal to and verification by the District 

of a monthly billing statement showing completion of the tasks for that month on a 

line item basis.  In the event Developer and District continue with the lease/leaseback 

agreements for the development of the Project, this compensation for services 

rendered will be included as part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price (“GMP”) to be paid 

to Developer by District. 

Developer shall be responsible for any and all costs and expenses incurred by 

Developer, including but not limited to the costs of hiring sub-consultants, contractors 

and other professionals, review of the Project’s Plans and Specifications, review and 

preparation of necessary documentation relating to the development of the Project, all 

travel-related expenses, as well as for meetings with District and its representatives, 

long distance telephone charges, copying expenses, salaries of Developer staff and 

employees working on the Project, overhead, and any other reasonable expenses 

incurred by Developer in performance of the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

10.6 Termination before Construction Phase  

10.6.1 Before the notice to proceed with the Construction Phase is issued 

by the District, this Agreement may be terminated at any time without cause 

by District upon fourteen (14) days written notice to Developer.  In the event 

of such a termination by District, the District shall pay Developer for all 

undisputed services performed and expenses incurred per this Agreement, 

supported by documentary evidence, including, but not limited to, payroll 

records, invoices from third parties retained by Developer pursuant to this 

Agreement, and expense reports up until the date of notice of termination plus 

any sums due Developer for Board-approved extra services.  In ascertaining 

the services actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this 

Agreement, consideration shall be given to completed work and work in process 

that would best serve the District if a completed product was presented. 

10.6.2 In the event that the Parties do not reach an agreement on the GMP, 

this Agreement will be terminated at that time.  In the event of such a 

termination, the District shall pay Developer no more than the not to exceed 

amount in Section 10.5 above. 

10.7 Construction Phase 

Developer shall not commence work for which a contractor is required to be licensed 

in accordance with Article 5 (commencing with Section 7065) of Chapter 9 of Division 

3 of the Business and Professions Code and for which Division of the State Architect 

approval is required can be performed before receipt of the required Division of the 

State Architect approval. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 15 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

11. Construction of Project 

11.1 Construction of Project   

11.1.1 Developer agrees to cause the Project to be developed, constructed, 

and installed in accordance with the terms hereof and the Construction 

Provisions set forth in Exhibit D, including those things reasonably inferred 

from the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Project and 

necessary to produce the stated result even though no mention is made in the 

Contract Documents.   

11.1.2 Contract Time / Construction Schedule   

It is hereby understood and agreed that the Contract Time for this Project shall 

be [days in words] ([days in numbers]) calendar days, commencing with the 

date upon which the Facilities Lease and the Site Lease are fully executed and 

delivered to both Parties and ending with completion of the Work which will 

occur no later than [Date] (“Contract Time”). The Construction Schedule must 

be approved by the District. 

11.1.3 Schedule of Values  

Developer will provide a schedule of values, approved by the District, which will 

be attached hereto as Exhibit G (“Schedule of Values”).  The Schedule of 

Values must be approved by the District. 

11.1.4 Liquidated Damages  

Time is of the essence for all work Developer must perform to complete the 

Project.  It is hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or 

impossible to ascertain and determine the actual damage that the District will 

sustain in the event of and by reason of Developer's delay; therefore, Developer 

agrees that it shall pay to the District the sum of One Thousand Five Hundred 

and No/100 Dollars ($ 1,500.00) per day as liquidated damages for each and 

every day's delay beyond the Contract Time.   

11.1.4.1 It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is 

not a penalty. 

11.1.4.2 In the event any portion of the liquidated damages is not 

paid to the District, the District may deduct that amount from any 

money due or that may become due Developer under this Facilities 

Lease.  The District's right to assess liquidated damages is as 

indicated herein and in Exhibit D. 

11.1.4.3 The time during which the construction of the Project is 

delayed for cause as hereinafter specified may extend the time of 

completion for a reasonable time as the District may grant.   



 

Facilities Lease Page 16 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

11.1.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price  

Developer will cause the Project to be constructed within the GMP as set forth 

and defined in the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and Developer will not seek 

additional compensation from District in excess of that amount. 

11.1.6 Modifications  

If the DSA requires changes to the Contract Documents submitted by District 

to Developer, and those changes change the construction costs and/or 

construction time for the Project, then those changed costs or time will be 

handled as a modification pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit D.  

11.1.7 Labor Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement by 

Department of Industrial Relations 

This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 

Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and 

Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. Developer specifically 

acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Contract 

while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 

1, of the Labor Code. 

12. Maintenance   

Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the repair, 

improvement, replacement and maintenance of the Project and the Site shall be at the sole 

cost and expense and the sole responsibility of the District, subject only to all punch list items 

and warranties against defects in materials and workmanship of Developer as provided in 

Exhibit D.  The District shall pay for or otherwise arrange for the payment of the cost of the 

repair and replacement of the Project resulting from ordinary wear and tear.  The District 

waives the benefits of subsections 1 and 2 of Section 1932 of the California Civil Code, but 

such waiver shall not limit any of the rights of the District under the terms of this Facilities 

Lease. 

13. Utilities   

Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the cost and expenses 

for all utility services, including, but not limited to, electricity, natural gas, telephone, water, 

sewer, trash removal, cable television, janitorial service, security, heating, water, internet 

service, data transmission, and all other utilities of any type shall be paid by District. 

14. Taxes and Other Impositions   

All ad valorem real property taxes, special taxes, possessory interest taxes, bonds and special 

lien assessments or other impositions of any kind with respect to the Project, the Site and the 

improvements thereon, charged to or imposed upon either Developer or the District or their 

respective interests or estates in the Project, shall at all times be paid by District.  In the 

event any possessory interest tax is levied on Developer, its successors and assigns, by virtue 

of this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease, District shall pay such possessory interest tax directly, 

if possible, or shall reimburse Developer, its successors and assigns for the full amount thereof 

within forty-five (45) days after presentation of proof of payment by Developer. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 17 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

15. Insurance 

15.1 Developer’s Insurance   

Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated here and in 

Exhibit D. 

15.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability 

Insurance   

15.1.1.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 

the Project, Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile 

Liability Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, its Board 

Members, employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 

bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising 

injury, and medical payments arising from, or in connection with, 

operations under the Project.  This coverage shall be provided in a 

form at least as broad as Insurance Services (ISO) Form CG 00 01 

11 88.  Developer shall ensure that Products Liability and Completed 

Operations coverage, Fire Damage Liability coverage, and 

Automobile Liability coverage including owned, non-owned, and 

hired automobiles, are included within the above policies and at the 

required limits, or Developer shall procure and maintain these 

coverages separately. 

15.1.1.2 Developer’s deductible or self-insured retention for its 

Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall not exceed five 

thousand dollars ($5,000) for deductible or twenty-five thousand 

dollars ($25,000) for self-insured retention, respectively, unless 

approved in writing by District. 

15.1.1.3 All such policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 

15.1.2 Excess Liability Insurance 

15.1.2.1 If Developer’s underlying policy limits are less than 

required, subject to 15.1.2.3 below, Developer may procure and 

maintain, during the life of the Project, an Excess Liability Insurance 

Policy to meet the policy limit requirements of the required policies 

in order to satisfy, in aggregate with its underlying policy, the 

insurance requirements herein.   

15.1.2.2 There shall be no gap between the per occurrence amount 

of any underlying policy and the start of the coverage under the 

Excess Liability Insurance Policy.  Any Excess Liability Insurance 

Policy shall protect Developer, District, its Board Members, 

employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), 

Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) in amounts and including the 

provisions as set forth in Exhibit D and/or the Supplementary 

Conditions (if any), and that complies with all requirements for 

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability and 

Employers’ Liability Insurance. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 18 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

15.1.2.3 The District, in its sole discretion, may accept the Excess 

Liability Insurance Policy that brings Developer’s primary limits to 

the minimum requirements herein. 

15.1.3 Subcontractor   

Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and maintain 

Commercial General Liability Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance, and 

Excess Liability Insurance (if Subcontractor elects to satisfy, in part, the 

insurance required herein by procuring and maintaining an Excess Liability 

Insurance Policy) with minimum limits at least equal to the amount required of 

Developer except where smaller minimum limits are permitted as set forth 

below. 

15.1.4 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

15.1.4.1 In accordance with provisions of section 3700 of the 

California Labor Code, Developer and every Subcontractor shall be 

required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees. 

15.1.4.2 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 

the Project, Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance for all of its employees engaged in work under 

the Project, on/or at the Site of the Project.  This coverage shall 

cover, at a minimum, medical and surgical treatment, disability 

benefits, rehabilitation therapy, and survivors' death benefits.  

Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and 

maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability 

Insurance for all employees of Subcontractor(s).  Any class of 

employee or employees not covered by a Subcontractor’s insurance 

shall be covered by Developer’s insurance.  If any class of employee 

or employees engaged in Work on the Project, on or at the Site of 

the Project, is not protected under the Workers’ Compensation 

Insurance, Developer shall provide, or shall cause a Subcontractor 

to provide, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any 

employee(s) not otherwise protected before any of those 

employee(s) commence work. 

15.1.5 Builder's Risk Insurance: Builder's Risk “All Risk” Insurance 

15.1.5.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, until the District 

accepts the project as complete, Builder’s Risk (Course of 

Construction), or similar first party property coverage acceptable to 

the District, issued on a replacement cost value basis.  The cost shall 

be consistent with the total replacement cost of all insurable Work 

of the Project included within the Contract Documents.  Coverage is 

to insure against all risks of accidental physical loss and shall include 

without limitation the perils of vandalism and/or malicious mischief 

(both without any limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), 

sprinkler leakage, civil authority, theft, sonic disturbance, 

earthquake, flood, collapse, wind, rain, dust, fire, war, terrorism, 

lightning, smoke, and rioting.  Coverage shall include debris 

removal, demolition, increased costs due to enforcement of all 



 

Facilities Lease Page 19 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

applicable ordinances and/or laws in the repair and replacement of 

damaged and undamaged portions of the property, and reasonable 

costs for the Architect’s and engineering services and expenses 

required as a result of any insured loss upon the Work and Project, 

including completed Work and Work in progress, to the full insurable 

value thereof. 

15.1.6 Pollution Liability Insurance 

15.1.6.1 Developer shall procure and maintain Pollution Liability 

Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, Construction 

Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 

bodily injury, property damage, including natural resource damage, 

cleanup costs, removal, storage, disposal, and/or use of the 

pollutant arising from operations under this Facilities Lease, and 

defense, including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, 

defense, or settlement of claims.  Coverage shall apply to sudden 

and/or gradual pollution conditions resulting from the escape or 

release of smoke, vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, 

liquids, or gases, natural gas, waste materials, or other irritants, 

contaminants, or pollutants, including asbestos.  This coverage shall 

be provided in a form at least as broad as Insurance Services Offices, 

Inc. (ISO) Form CG 2415, or Developer shall procure and maintain 

these coverages separately. 

15.1.6.2 Developer warrants that any retroactive date applicable 

to coverage under the policy shall predate the Effective Date of this 

Facilities Lease and that continuous coverage will be maintained or 

an extended reporting or discovery period will be exercised for a 

period of three (3) years, beginning from the time that the Work 

under the Contract is completed. 

15.1.6.3 If Developer is responsible for removing any pollutants 

from a site, then Developer shall ensure that Any Auto, including 

owned, non-owned, and hired, are included within the above policies 

and at the required limits, to cover its automobile exposure for 

transporting the pollutants from the site to an approved disposal 

site.  This coverage shall include the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement, 

MCS 90. 

15.1.7 Proof of Carriage of Insurance and Other Requirements 

Endorsements and Certificates 

15.1.7.1 Developer shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any 

Subcontractor to commence Work on the Project, until Developer 

and its Subcontractor(s) have procured all required insurance and 

Developer has delivered in duplicate to the District complete 

endorsements (or entire insurance policies) and certificates 

indicating the required coverages have been obtained, and the 

District has approved these documents. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 20 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

15.1.7.2 Endorsements, certificates, and insurance policies shall 

include the following: 

15.1.7.2.1 A clause stating the following, or other 

language acceptable to the District: 

“This policy shall not be canceled and the coverage 

amounts shall not be reduced until notice has been mailed 

to District, Architect, and Construction Manager stating 

date of cancellation by the insurance carrier.  Date of 

cancellation may not be less than thirty (30) days after 

date of mailing notice.” 

15.1.7.2.2 Language stating in particular those 

insured, extent of insurance, location and operation to 

which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom 

cancellation notice will be sent, and length of notice 

period.  

15.1.7.3 All endorsements, certificates and insurance policies shall 

state that District, its Board Members, employees and agents, 

Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Inspector(s) and 

Architect(s) are named additional insureds under all policies except 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability 

Insurance.   

15.1.7.4 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 

against any of the named additional insureds.  

15.1.7.5 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 

be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 

agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s).   

15.1.7.6 Developer’s insurance limit shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought. 

15.1.7.7 No policy shall be amended, canceled, or modified, and 

the coverage amounts shall not be reduced, until Developer or 

Developer’s broker has provided written notice to District, Architect, 

and Construction Manager stating date of the amendment, 

modification, cancellation or reduction, and a description of the 

change.  Date of amendment, modification, cancellation or reduction 

may not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice. 

15.1.7.8 Insurance written on a “claims made” basis shall be 

retroactive to a date that coincides with or precedes Developer’s 

commencement of Work, including subsequent policies purchased as 

renewals or replacements.  Said policy is to be renewed by Developer 

and all Subcontractors for a period of five (5) years following 

completion of the Work or termination of this Facilities Lease.  Such 

insurance must have the same coverage and limits as the policy that 



 

Facilities Lease Page 21 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

was in effect during the term of this Facilities Lease, and will cover 

Developer and all Subcontractors for all claims made. 

15.1.7.9 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 

be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 

agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s).   

15.1.7.10 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 

against any of the named additional insureds.  

15.1.7.11 All policies shall be written on an occurrence form.  

15.1.7.12 All of Developer’s insurance shall be with insurance 

companies with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: XI.  

15.1.7.13 The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no 

way limit Developer’s liability arising out of or relating to the 

performance of the Work or related activities.  

15.1.7.14 Failure of Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) to 

comply with the insurance requirements herein shall be deemed a 

material breach of the Facilities Lease and constitute a Default by 

Developer pursuant to this Facilities Lease.  

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Facilities Lease Page 22 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

15.1.8 Insurance Policy Limits   

The limits of insurance shall not be less than the following amounts and for those 
subcontractors whose subcontract does not exceed $1,000,000 shall not be less than the following 
amounts:  

Commercial General 
Liability 

Product Liability and 
Completed Operations, Fire 
Damage Liability – Split Limit 

Developer:  $2,000,000 per 
occurrence; $4,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors:   

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Excess Liability  Developer:  $10,000,000 per 
occurrence; $10,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Automobile Liability – Any 
Auto 

Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 (limits may be met 
with Excess Liability Policy required 
herein) 

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Workers’ Compensation  Statutory limits pursuant to State 
law 

Employer’s Liability  $1,000,000 

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Builder’s Risk  Replacement Cost 

Pollution Liability  $2,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

If Developer normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required 

by District, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for 

purposes of the Contract. Therefore, Developer hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance 

carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the 

Contract. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Facilities Lease to the contrary, the above insurance 

requirements may be modified as appropriate for subcontractors, with District's prior written 

approval. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 23 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

15.2 District’s Insurance  

15.2.1 Rental Interruption Insurance  

District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, for 

the benefit of District and Developer, as their interests may appear, maintain 

rental interruption insurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of the 

Project due to damage or destruction, in an amount at least equal to the 

maximum estimated Lease Payments payable under this Facilities Lease during 

the current or any future twenty-four (24) month period.  This insurance may 

be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other insurance coverage 

carried by the District, and such insurance may be maintained in whole or in 

part in the form of participation by the District in a joint powers agency or other 

program providing pooled insurance.  This insurance may not be maintained in 

the form of self-insurance.   

15.2.2 Property Insurance   

District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, 

carry and maintain in force a policy of property insurance for 100% of the 

insurable replacement value with no coinsurance penalty, on the Site and the 

Project, together with all improvements thereon, under a standard “all risk” 

contract insuring against loss or damage.  Developer shall be named as 

additional insureds or co-insureds thereon by way of endorsement.  District 

shall have the right to procure the required insurance through a joint powers 

agency or to self-insure against such losses or portion thereof as is deemed 

prudent by District.  

16. Indemnification and Defense 

16.1 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall indemnify, 

keep and hold harmless the District, the Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s), 

their respective consultants, separate contractors, board members, officers, 

representatives, agents, and employees, in both individual and official capacities 

(“Indemnitees”), against all suits, claims, injury, damages, losses, and expenses 

(“Claims”), including but not limited to attorney’s fees and costs, caused by, arising 

out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole or in part, the performance of the 

Work under this Contract by Developer or its Subcontractors, vendors and/or suppliers.  

However, Developer’s indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be reduced 

by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or Architect’s liability to the extent the 

Claim(s) is/are caused wholly by the active negligence or willful misconduct of the 

Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court 

or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction.  This indemnification and hold harmless 

obligation of Developer shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce 

any right or obligation of indemnity that would otherwise exist or arise as to any 

Indemnitee or other person described herein.  This indemnification and hold harmless 

obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 

comply with any law and/or provision of the Contract Documents in strict accordance 

with their terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developers 

obligations regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage 

and Penalty Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR.   



 

Facilities Lease Page 24 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

16.2 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall also defend 

Indemnitees, at its own expense, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs, 

against all Claims caused by, arising out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole 

or in part, the performance of the Work under this Facilities Lease by Developer, its 

Subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers.  However, without impacting Developer’s 

obligation to provide an immediate and ongoing defense of Indemnitees, Developer’s 

defense obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or 

Architect’s liability to the extent caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or 

willful misconduct of the Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the 

Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction.  The District shall 

have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Developer proposes to 

defend the Indemnitees.  If any Indemnitee provides its own defense due to failure to 

timely respond to tender of defense, rejection of tender of defense, or conflict of 

interest of proposed counsel, Developer shall reimburse such Indemnitee for any 

expenditures.  Developer’s defense obligation shall not be construed to negate, 

abridge, or otherwise reduce any right or obligation of defense that would otherwise 

exist as to any Indemnitee or other person described herein.  Developer’s defense 

obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 

comply with any provision of law, any failure or alleged failure to timely and properly 

fulfill all of its obligations under the Contract Documents in strict accordance with their 

terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developer’s obligations 

regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage and Penalty 

Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR.  Developer shall give prompt notice to the 

District in the event of any Claim(s).   

16.3 Without limitation of the provisions herein, if Developer’s obligation to 

indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees or its obligation to defend Indemnitees 

as provided herein shall be determined to be void or unenforceable, in whole or in part, 

it is the intention of the Parties that these circumstances shall not otherwise affect the 

validity or enforceability of Developer’s agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless the rest of the Indemnitees, as provided herein.  Further, Developer shall be 

and remain fully liable on its agreements and obligations herein to the fullest extent 

permitted by law. 

16.4 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, the District shall provide timely 

notification to Developer of the receipt of any third-party Claim relating to this 

Contract.  The District shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in 

providing said notification. 

16.5 In any and all Claims against any of the Indemnitees by any employee of 

Developer, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them 

or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, Developer’s indemnification 

obligation herein shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 

type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Developer or any 

Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts. 

16.6 The District may retain so much of the moneys due to Developer as shall be 

considered necessary, until disposition of any such Claims or until the District, 

Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s) have received written agreement from 

Developer that Developer will unconditionally defend the District, the Architect(s) and 

Construction Manager(s), their respective officers, agents and employees, and pay any 

damages due by reason of settlement or judgment. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 25 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

16.7 Developer’s defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the 

completion of Work, including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination 

of the Contract. 

17. Eminent Domain 

17.1 Total Taking After Project Delivery   

If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, all of the 

Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent domain, the 

Term shall cease as of the day possession shall be so taken.   

17.1.1 The financial interest of Developer shall be limited to the amount of 

principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that 

are then due or past due together with all remaining and succeeding principal 

payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 

remainder of the original Term.  For example, if all of the Project and the Site 

is taken at the end of the third year of the Term, Developer shall be entitled to 

receive from the eminent domain award the sum of all principal payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that would have been 

owing for the fourth year through the end of the Term had there been no taking. 

17.1.2 The balance of the award, if any, shall be paid to the District.   

17.2 Total Taking Prior to Project Delivery   

If all of the Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent 

domain and Developer is still performing the work of the Project and has not yet 

delivered possession of the Project to District, the Term shall cease as of the day 

possession shall be so taken.  The financial interest of Developer shall be the amount 

Developer has expended to date for work performed on the Project, subject to 

documentation reasonably satisfactory to the District. 

17.3 Partial Taking   

If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, less than all 

of the Project and the Site is taken permanently, or if all of the Project and the Site or 

any part thereof is taken temporarily, under the power of eminent domain.  

17.3.1 This Facilities Lease shall continue in full force and effect and shall 

not be terminated by virtue of that partial taking and the Parties waive the 

benefit of any law to the contrary, and  

17.3.2 There shall be a partial abatement of any principal payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C as a result of the 

application of the net proceeds of any eminent domain award to the 

prepayment of those payments hereunder.  The Parties agree to negotiate, in 

good faith, for an equitable split of the net proceeds of any eminent domain 

award and a corresponding reduction in the payments required pursuant to the 

GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C.  



 

Facilities Lease Page 26 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

18. Damage and Destruction   

If, following delivery of possession of all or a portion of the Project by Developer to District, 

the Project is totally or partially destroyed due to fire, acts of vandalism, flood, storm, 

earthquake, Acts of God, or other casualty beyond the control of either party hereto, the Term 

shall end and District shall no longer be required to make any payments required pursuant to 

the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that are then due or past due or any remaining and 

succeeding principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 

remainder of the original Term.   

19. Abatement   

19.1 If, after the Parties have executed the Memorandum of Commencement Date 

attached hereto as Exhibit E, the Project becomes destroyed or damaged beyond 

repair, the District may determine its use of the Project abated.  Thereafter, the District 

shall have no obligation to make, nor shall Developer have the right to demand, the 

Lease Payments as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 

Facilities Lease.  The Term shall cease at that time.  

19.2 The Parties hereby agree that the net proceeds of the District’s rental 

interruption insurance that the District must maintain during the Term, as required 

herein, shall constitute a special fund for the payment of the Lease Payments indicated 

in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C.   

19.3 The District shall as soon as practicable after such event, apply the net proceeds 

of its insurance policy intended to cover that loss (“Net Proceeds”), either to: 

19.3.1 Repair the Project to full use.  

19.3.2 Replace the Project, at the District’s sole cost and expense, with 

property of equal or greater value to the Project immediately prior to the time 

of the destruction or damage, and that replacement, once completed, shall be 

substituted in this Facilities Lease by appropriate endorsement; or  

19.3.3 Exercise the District’s purchase optio to Exhibit D to the Facilities 

Lease n as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 

Facilities Lease. 

19.4 The District shall notify Developer of which course of action it desires to take 

within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the destruction or damage.  The Net 

Proceeds of all insurance payable with respect to the Project shall be available to the 

District and shall be used to discharge the District's obligations under this Section.  

20. Access 

20.1 By Developer   

Developer shall have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the Site to 

construct the Project pursuant to this Facilities Lease.  Following the acceptance of the 

Project by District, Developer may enter the Project at reasonable times with advance 

notice and arrangement with District for purposes of making any repairs required to 

be made by Developer. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 27 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

20.2 By District   

The District shall have the right to enter upon the Site at all times.  District shall comply 

with all safety precautions and procedures required by Developer.   

21. Assignment, Subleasing 

21.1 Assignment and Subleasing by the District   

Any assignment or sublease by District shall be subject to all of the following 

conditions: 

21.1.1 This Facilities Lease and the obligation of the District to make the 

payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall 

remain obligations of the District; and 

21.1.2 The District shall, within thirty (30) days after the delivery thereof, 

furnish or cause to be furnished to Developer a true and complete copy of any 

assignment or sublease. 

21.2 Assignment by Developer   

Developer may assign its right, title and interest in this Facilities Lease, in whole or in 

part to one or more assignees, only after the written consent of District, which District 

will not unreasonably withhold. No assignment shall be effective against the District 

unless and until the District has consented in writing.  Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary contained in this Facilities Lease, no consent from the District shall be required 

in connection with any assignment by Developer to a lender for purposes of financing 

the Project as long as there are not additional costs to the District. 

22. Termination, Default And Suspension 

22.1 Termination; Lease Terminable Only As Set Forth Herein 

22.1.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, this 

Facilities Lease shall not terminate, nor shall District have any right to terminate 

this Facilities Lease or be entitled to the abatement of any necessary payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C or any reduction thereof.  The 

obligations hereunder of District shall not be otherwise affected by reason of 

any damage to or destruction of all or any part of the Project; the taking of the 

Project or any portion thereof by condemnation or otherwise; the prohibition, 

limitation or restriction of District’s use of the Project; the interference with 

such use by any private person or contractor; the District’s acquisition of the 

ownership of the Project (other than pursuant to an express provision of this 

Facilities Lease); any present or future law to the contrary notwithstanding.  It 

is the intention of the Parties hereto that all necessary payments pursuant to 

the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall continue to be payable in all 

events, and the obligations of the District hereunder shall continue unaffected 

unless the requirement to pay or perform the same shall be terminated or 

modified pursuant to an express provision of this Facilities Lease. 

22.1.2 Nothing contained herein shall be deemed a waiver by the District of 

any rights that it may have to bring a separate action with respect to any Event 



 

Facilities Lease Page 28 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

of Default by Developer hereunder or under any other agreement to recover 

the costs and expenses associated with that action.  The District covenants and 

agrees that it will remain obligated under this Facilities Lease in accordance 

with its terms.   

22.1.3 Following completion of the Project, the District will not take any 

action to terminate, rescind or avoid this Facilities Lease, notwithstanding the 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation, 

dissolution, winding-up or other proceeding affecting Developer or any assignee 

of Developer in any such proceeding, and notwithstanding any action with 

respect to this Facilities Lease which may be taken by any trustee or receiver 

of Developer or of any assignee of Developer in any such proceeding or by any 

court in any such proceeding.  Following completion of the Project, except as 

otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, District waives all rights 

now or hereafter conferred by law to quit, terminate or surrender this Facilities 

Lease or the Project or any part thereof.  

22.1.4 District acknowledges that Developer may assign an interest in some 

or all of the necessary payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in 

Exhibit C to a lender in order to obtain financing for the cost of constructing 

the Project and that the lender may rely on the foregoing covenants and 

provisions in connection with such financing. 

22.2 District’s Request for Assurances 

If District at any time reasonably believes Developer is or may be in default under this 

Contract, District may in its sole discretion notify Developer of this fact and request 

written assurances from Developer of performance of Work and a written plan from 

Developer to remedy any potential default under the terms of this Contract that the 

District may advise Developer of in writing. Developer shall, within ten (10) calendar 

days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the District’s 

requirements in its request for assurances. Developer’s failure to provide such written 

assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) calendar 

days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Contract sufficient to justify 

termination for cause. 

22.3 District's Right to Terminate Developer for Cause 

22.3.1 Grounds for Termination   

The District, in its sole discretion, without prejudice to any other right or 

remedy, may terminate the Site Lease and Facilities Lease and/or terminate 

Developer’s right to perform the work of the Facilities Lease based upon any of 

the following: 

22.3.1.1 Developer refuses or fails to execute the Work or any 

separable part thereof; or 

22.3.1.2 Developer fails to complete said Work within the time 

specified or any extension thereof; or 



 

Facilities Lease Page 29 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

22.3.1.3 Developer persistently fails or refuses to perform Work or 

provide material of sufficient quality as to be in compliance with the 

Facilities Lease; or 

22.3.1.4 Prior to completion of the Project, Developer is adjudged 

a bankrupt, files a petition for relief as a debtor, or a petition is filed 

against Developer without its consent, and the petition not dismissed 

within sixty (60) days; or 

22.3.1.5 Prior to the completion of the Project, Developer makes a 

general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or a receiver is 

appointed on account of its insolvency; or 

22.3.1.6 Developer persistently or repeatedly refuses and/or fails, 

except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply 

enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to complete the 

Work in the time specified; or 

22.3.1.7 Developer fails to make prompt payment to 

Subcontractors, or for material, or for labor; or 

22.3.1.8 Developer persistently disregards laws, or ordinances, or 

instructions of District as indicated in Exhibit D, or otherwise in 

violation of Exhibit D; or 

22.3.1.9 Developer fails to supply labor, including that of 

Subcontractors, that is sufficient to prosecute the Work or that can 

work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be 

employed on the Work; or 

22.3.1.10 Developer or its Subcontractor(s) is/are otherwise in 

breach, default, or in substantial violation of any provision of this 

Facilities Lease, including but not limited to a lapse in licensing or 

registration. 

22.3.2 Notification of Termination 

22.3.2.1 Upon the occurrence at District's sole determination of 

any of the above conditions, or upon Developer’s failure to perform 

any material covenant, condition or agreement in this Facilities 

Lease, District may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, 

serve written notice upon Developer and its Surety of District's 

termination of this Facilities Lease and/or Developer’s right to 

perform the Work of this Facilities Lease.  This notice will contain the 

reasons for termination.   

22.3.2.2 Unless, within fifteen (15) days after the service of the 

notice, any and all condition(s) shall cease, and any and all 

violation(s) shall cease, or arrangement satisfactory to District for 

the correction of the condition(s) and/or violation(s) be made, this 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease shall cease and terminate; 

provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be 

corrected within fifteen (15) days after the service of notice, District 



 

Facilities Lease Page 30 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

may consent to an extension of time, provided Developer instituted 

and diligently pursued corrective action within the applicable fifteen 

(15)-day period and until the violation is corrected. Upon District 

determination, Developer shall not be entitled to receive any further 

payment until the entire Work is finished.   

22.3.2.3 Upon Termination, District may immediately serve written 

notice of tender upon Surety whereby Surety shall have the right to 

take over and perform this Facilities Lease only if Surety: 

22.3.2.3.1 Within three (3) days after service upon it 

of the notice of tender, gives District written notice of 

Surety’s intention to take over and perform this Facilities 

Lease; and 

22.3.2.3.2 Commences performance of this Facilities 

Lease within three (3) days from date of serving of its 

notice to District. 

22.3.2.4 Surety shall not utilize Developer in completing the 

Project if the District notifies Surety of the District’s objection to 

Developer’s further participation in the completion of the Project.  

Surety expressly agrees that any developer which Surety proposes 

to fulfill Surety’s obligations is subject to District’s approval.   

22.3.2.5 If Surety fails to notify District or begin performance as 

indicated herein, District may take over the Work and execute the 

Work to completion by any method it may deem advisable at the 

expense of Developer and/or its Surety.  Developer and its Surety 

shall be liable to District for any excess cost or other damages the 

District incurs thereby.  Time is of the essence in this Facilities Lease.  

If the District takes over the Work as herein provided, District may, 

without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in 

completing the Work all materials, appliances, plan, and other 

property belonging to Developer as may be on the Site of the Work, 

in bonded storage, or previously paid for. 

22.3.3 Effect of Termination 

22.3.3.1 If District terminates the Site Lease and the Facilities 

Lease pursuant to this section, the Site and any improvements built 

upon the Site shall vest in District upon termination of the Site Lease 

and Facilities Lease, and District shall thereafter be required to pay 

only the principal amounts then due and owing pursuant to the GMP 

provisions indicated in Exhibit C, less any damages incurred by 

District due to Developer’s default, acts, or omissions. 

22.3.3.2 The District shall retain all rights it possesses pursuant to 

this Facilities Lease including, without limitation. 

22.3.3.2.1 The right to assess liquidated damages due 

because of any project delay; and 



 

Facilities Lease Page 31 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

22.3.3.2.2 All rights the District holds to demand 

performance pursuant to Developer’s required 

performance bond. 

22.3.3.3 Developer shall, only if  ordered to do so by the District, 

immediately remove from the Site all or any materials and personal 

property belonging to Developer that have not been incorporated in 

the construction of the Work, or which are not in place in the Work.  

The District retains the right, but not the obligation, to keep and use 

any materials and personal property belonging to Developer that 

have not been incorporated in the construction of the Work, or which 

are not in place in the Work.  Developer and its Surety shall be liable 

upon the performance bond for all damages caused the District by 

reason of Developer’s failure to complete the Work under this 

Facilities Lease. 

22.3.3.4 In the event that the District shall perform any portion of, 

or the whole of the Work, pursuant to the provisions of the General 

Conditions, the District shall not be liable nor accountable to 

Developer in any way for the time within which, or the manner in 

which, the Work is performed by the District or for any changes the 

District may make in the Work or for the money expended by the 

District in satisfying claims and/or suits and/or other obligations in 

connection with the Work. 

22.3.3.5 In the event termination for cause is determined to have 

not been for cause, the termination shall be deemed to have been a 

termination for convenience effective as of the same date as the 

purported termination for cause. 

22.3.3.6 In the event that the Site Lease and Facilities Lease are 

terminated for any reason, no allowances or compensation will be 

granted for the loss of any anticipated profit by Developer or any 

impact or impairment of Developer’s bonding capacity. 

22.3.3.7 If the expense to the District to finish the Work exceeds 

the unpaid Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer and Surety shall 

pay difference to District within twenty-one (21) days of District's 

request.  District may apply any amounts otherwise due to 

Developer to this difference. 

22.3.3.8 The District shall have the right (but shall have no 

obligation) to assume and/or assign to a replacement contractor or 

construction manager, or other third party who is qualified and has 

sufficient resources to complete the Work, the rights of Developer 

under its subcontracts with any or all Subcontractors.  In the event 

of an assumption or assignment by the District, no Subcontractor 

shall have any claim against the District or third party for Work 

performed by Subcontractor or other matters arising prior to 

termination of the Facilities Lease.  The District or any third party, 

as the case may be, shall be liable only for obligations to the 

Subcontractor arising after assumption or assignment.  Should the 

District so elect, Developer shall execute and deliver all documents 



 

Facilities Lease Page 32 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

and take all steps, including the legal assignment of its contractual 

rights, as the District may require, for the purpose of fully vesting in 

the District the rights and benefits of its Subcontractors under 

Subcontracts or other obligations or commitments.  Developer must 

include this assignment provision in all of its Facilities Leases with 

its Subcontractors. 

22.3.3.9 All payments due Developer hereunder shall be subject to 

a right of offset by the District for expenses, damages, losses, costs, 

claims, or reimbursements suffered by, or due to, the District as a 

result of any default, acts, or omissions of Developer.  

22.3.3.10 The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not in 

limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District. 

22.4 Termination of Developer for Convenience 

22.4.1 District in its sole discretion may terminate the Facilities Lease in 

whole or in part upon three (3) days written notice to Developer.   

22.4.2 Upon notice, Developer shall: 

22.4.2.1 Cease operations as directed by the District in the notice; 

22.4.2.2 Take necessary actions for the protection and 

preservation of the Work as soon as possible; and 

22.4.2.3 Terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders 

and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

22.4.3 Within 30 days of the notice, Developer shall submit to the District 

a payment application for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services 

performed, including all Developer's and Subcontractor(s)’ mobilization and/or 

demobilization costs, that is unpaid.  Developer shall have no claims against 

the District except for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services 

performed that adequately documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, 

or otherwise.  District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed 

until the notice of termination. 

22.4.4 Under a termination for convenience, the District retains the right to 

all the options available to the District if there is a termination for cause. 

22.5 Developer Remedies Upon District Default 

22.5.1 Events of Default by District Defined   

The following shall be “Events of Default” of the District under this Facilities 

Lease.  The terms “Event of Default” and “Default,” whenever they are used as 

to the District in the Site Lease or this Facilities Lease, shall only mean one or 

more of the following events: 



 

Facilities Lease Page 33 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

22.5.1.1 Failure by the District to pay payments required pursuant 

to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and the continuation of this 

failure for a period of forty-five (45) days. 

22.5.1.2 Failure by the District to perform any material covenant, 

condition or agreement in this Facilities Lease and that failure 

continues for a period of forty-five (45) days after Developer 

provides District with written notice specifying that failure and 

requesting that the failure be remedied; provided, however, if the 

failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable 

period, Developer shall not withhold its consent to an extension of 

time if corrective action is instituted by the District within the 

applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected. 

22.5.2 Remedies on District’s Default   

If there has been an Event of Default on the District’s part, Developer may 

exercise any and all remedies granted pursuant to this Facilities Lease; 

provided, however, there shall be no right under any circumstances to 

accelerate any of the payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in 

Exhibit C or otherwise declare those payments not then past due to be 

immediately due and payable.  

22.5.2.1 Developer may rescind its leaseback of the Project to the 

District under this Facilities Lease and re-rent the Project and Site to 

another lessee for the remaining Term for no less than the fair 

market value for leasing the Project and Site, which shall be: 

22.5.2.1.1 An amount determined by a mutually-

agreed upon appraiser; or 

22.5.2.1.2 If an appraiser cannot be agreed to, an 

amount equal to the mean between a District appraisal 

and a Developer appraisal for the Project and Site, both 

prepared by MAI-certified appraisers. 

22.5.2.2 District’s obligation to make the payments required 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall be: 

22.5.2.2.1 Increased by the amount of costs, 

expenses, and damages incurred by Developer in re-

renting the Project and Site; and 

22.5.2.2.2 Decreased by the amount of rent Developer 

receives in re-letting the Project and Site. 

22.5.2.3 District agrees that the terms of this Facilities Lease 

constitute full and sufficient notice of the right of Developer to re-

rent the Project and Site in the Event of Default without effecting a 

surrender of this Facilities Lease, and further agrees that no acts of 

Developer in re-renting as permitted herein shall constitute a 

surrender or termination of this Facilities Lease, but that, on the 

contrary, in the event of an Event of Default by the District the right 



 

Facilities Lease Page 34 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

to re-rent the Project and Site shall vest in Developer as indicated 

herein. 

22.5.3 District’s Continuing Obligation   

Unless there has been damage, destruction, a Taking, or Developer has acted, 

failed to act, or is in default as indicated above providing District with the right 

to terminate for cause, the District shall continue to remain liable for the 

payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C and those 

amounts shall be payable to Developer at the time and in the manner therein 

provided. 

22.5.4 No Remedy Exclusive   

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Developer is intended to be 

exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 

every other remedy given under this Facilities Lease or now or hereafter existing 

at law or in equity.  No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing 

upon any Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to 

be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time 

to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  In order to entitle Developer 

to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this article, it shall not be necessary to 

give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article or by 

law. 

22.6 Emergency Termination Pursuant to Public Contracts Act of 1949 

22.6.1 This Facilities Lease is subject to termination as provided by sections 

4410 and 4411 of the Government Code of the State of California, being a 

portion of the Emergency Termination of Public Contracts Act of 1949. 

22.6.1.1 Section 4410 of the Government Code states: 

In the event a national emergency occurs, and public work, being 

performed by contract, is stopped, directly or indirectly, because of 

the freezing or diversion of materials, equipment or labor, as the 

result of an order or a proclamation of the President of the United 

States, or of an order of any federal authority, and the circumstances 

or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a reasonable 

time to proceed with a substantial portion of the work, then the 

public agency and the contractor may, by written agreement, 

terminate said contract. 

22.6.1.2 Section 4411 of the Government Code states: 

Such an agreement shall include the terms and conditions of the 

termination of the contract and provision for the payment of 

compensation or money, if any, which either party shall pay to the 

other or any other person, under the facts and circumstances in the 

case. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 35 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

22.6.2 Compensation to Developer shall be determined at the sole 

discretion of District on the basis of the reasonable value of the Work done, 

including preparatory work.  As an exception to the foregoing and at the 

District's discretion, in the case of any fully completed separate item or portion 

of the Work for which there is a separate previously submitted unit price or 

item on the accepted schedule of values, that price may control.  The District, 

at its sole discretion, may adopt the Schedule of Values Price as the value of 

the work done or any portion thereof. 

22.7 Suspension of Work 

22.7.1 District in its sole discretion may suspend, delay or interrupt the 

Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the District may determine 

upon three (3) days written notice to Developer.  

22.7.1.1 An adjustment may be made for changes in the cost of 

performance of the Work caused by any suspension, delay or 

interruption.  No adjustment shall be made to the extent: 

22.7.1.1.1 That performance is, was or would have 

been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another 

cause for which Developer is responsible; or 

22.7.1.1.2 That an equitable adjustment is made or 

denied under another provision of the Site Lease or the 

Facilities Lease; or 

22.7.1.1.3 That the suspension of Work was the direct 

or indirect result of Developer’s failure to perform any of 

its obligations hereunder. 

22.7.1.1.4 The delay could not have been avoided or 

mitigated by Developer's reasonable diligence. 

22.7.1.2 Any adjustments in cost of performance may have a fixed 

or percentage fee as provided in the section on Format for Proposed 

Change Order in Exhibit D.  This amount shall be full compensation 

for all Developer’s and its Subcontractor(s)’ changes in the cost of 

performance of the Facilities Lease caused by any such suspension, 

delay or interruption. 

23. Limitation of District Liability 

District’s financial obligations under this Contract shall be limited to the payment of the 

compensation provided in this Contract.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, 

in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or 

tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited 

to, lost profits or revenue, lost bonding capacity, arising out of or in connection with this 

Contract for the services performed in connection with this Contract. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 36 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

24. Notices 

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall 

be deemed to have been received five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail in 

registered or certified form with postage fully prepaid or one (1) business day after deposit 

with an overnight delivery service with proof of actual delivery: 

If to District: If to Developer: 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95824 

Attn:  Contracts Dept.  

John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction 

1717 2nd Street  

 

Attn:  John Hayward -Principal-in-Charge  

 

With a copy to: 

 

 

Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Dannis Woliver Kelley 

200 California Street, Suite 400  

San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

Developer and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 

subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 

25. Binding Effect 

This Facilities Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon Developer and 

District and their respective successors, transferees and assigns. 

26. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver 

In the event any agreement contained in this Facilities Lease should be breached by either 

party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular 

breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 

27. Severability 

In the event any provision of this Facilities Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any 

other provision hereof, unless elimination of the invalid provision materially alters the rights 

and obligations embodied in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease. 

28. Amendments, Changes and Modifications 

This Facilities Lease may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated without 

the written agreement of both Parties hereto. 

29. Net-Net-Net Lease 

This Facilities Lease shall be deemed and construed to be a “net-net-net lease” and the District 

hereby agrees that all payments it makes pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C shall 

be an absolute net return to Developer, free and clear of any expenses, charges or set-offs. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 37 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

30. Execution in Counterparts 

This Facilities Lease may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

31. Developer and District Representatives  

Whenever under the provisions of this Facilities Lease the approval of Developer or the District 

is required, or Developer or the District is required to take some action at the request of the 

other, the approval or request shall be given for Developer by Developer’s Representative and 

for the District by the District’s Representative, and any party hereto shall be authorized to 

rely upon any such approval or request. 

32. Applicable Law 

This Facilities Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California, and venued in the County within which the Site is located. 

33. Attorney's Fees 

If either party brings an action or proceeding involving the Property or to enforce the terms 

of this Facilities Lease or to declare rights hereunder, each party shall bear the cost of its own 

attorneys’ fees. 

34. Captions 

The captions or headings in this Facilities Lease are for convenience only and in no way define, 

limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Facilities Lease. 

35. Prior Agreements 

This Facilities Lease and the corresponding Site Lease collectively contain all of the 

agreements of the Parties hereto with respect to any matter covered or mentioned in this 

Facilities Lease and no prior agreements or understanding pertaining to any matter shall be 

effective for any purpose.    

36. Further Assurances  

Parties shall promptly execute and deliver all documents and instruments reasonably 

requested to give effect to the provisions of this Facilities Lease.  

37. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated   

The Recitals set forth at the beginning of this Facilities Lease and the attached Exhibits are 

hereby incorporated into its terms and provisions by this reference. 

38. Time of the Essence 

Time is of the essence with respect to each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 

Facilities Lease. 



 

Facilities Lease Page 38 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

39. Force Majeure 

A party shall be excused from the performance of any obligation imposed in this Facilities 

Lease and the exhibits hereto for any period and to the extent that a party is prevented from 

performing that obligation, in whole or in part, as a result of delays caused by the other party 

or third parties, a governmental agency or entity, an act of God, war, terrorism, civil 

disturbance, forces of nature, fire, flood, earthquake,  strikes, or lockouts, and that non-

performance will not be a default hereunder or a grounds for termination of this Facilities 

Lease.  

40. Interpretation 

None of the Parties hereto, nor their respective counsel, shall be deemed the drafters of this 

Facilities Lease for purposes of construing the provisions thereof.  The language in all parts 

of this Facilities Lease shall in all cases be construed according to its fair meaning, not strictly 

for or against any of the Parties hereto. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

  



 

Facilities Lease Page 39 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Facilities Lease to be executed by 

their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective Date. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below:  

Dated: __________, 20__ 

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District  

 

 

By:              

Name:             

 

Title:              

Dated: __________, 20__ 

 

 

John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction  

 

 

By:              

Name:             

 

Title:              

 

 



 

Exhibit  to Facilities Lease Page  1 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE 

Attached is the Legal Description for: 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project   

Recorded Address: 7256 Luther Drive, Sacramento, CA 95823 

Physical Address: 3500 Florin Rd, Sacramento, CA 95823 

APN:  049-0010-089-0000 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  



 

Exhibit  to Facilities Lease Page  1 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT  

Attached is a map or diagram of the Site that is subject to this Facilities Lease and 

upon which Developer will construct the Project. 

 

 

  



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 1 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT C 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AND 

OTHER PROJECT COST, FUNDING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. Site Lease Payments   

As indicated in the Site Lease, Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District as 

consideration for the Site Lease. 

2. Guaranteed Maximum Price 

Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer will cause the Project to be constructed for an 

amount to be determined after preconstruction services are completed (“Guaranteed 

Maximum Price”).  The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include the preconstruction fees and 

costs. 

2.1 Cost of the Work   

The term Cost of the Work shall mean the costs necessarily incurred in the proper 

performance of the Work contemplated by the Contract Documents. Such costs shall 

be at rates no higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with 

the prior consent of the District. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set 

forth in this Section 2 and approved by the District.  

2.1.1 General Conditions  

The General Conditions as set forth in Attachment 1 hereto shall be included 

in a progress billing as incurred.  Said rates shall include all costs for labor, 

equipment and materials for the items identified therein which are necessary 

for the proper management of the Project, and shall include all costs paid or 

incurred by Developer for insurance, permits, taxes, and all contributions, 

assessments and benefits, holidays, vacations, retirement benefits, incentives 

to the extent contemplated in Attachment 1, whether required by law or 

collective bargaining agreements or otherwise paid or provided by Developer 

to its employees.  The District reserves the right to request changes to the 

personnel, equipment, or facilities provided as General Conditions as may be 

necessary or appropriate for the proper management of the Project, in which 

case, the District shall be entitled to a reduction in the cost of General 

Conditions based on the rates set forth in Attachment 1.   

2.1.2 Subcontract Costs 

Payments made by the Developer to Subcontractors (inclusive of the 

Subcontractor’s bonding, if required, and insurance costs, which shall be 

included in the subcontract amount), which payments shall be made in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.   



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 2 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work   

Costs incurred by Developer for self-performed work at the direction of District 

or with the District’s prior approval, as follows: 

2.1.3.1 Actual costs to Developer of wages of construction workers, 

excluding all salaried and/or administrative personnel, directly 

employed by Developer to perform the construction of the Work at the 

site.   

2.1.3.2 Wages or salaries and customary benefits, such as sick leave, 

medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive programs, 

and pension plans of Developer’s field supervisory, safety and 

administrative personnel when stationed at the site or stationed at 

Developer’s principal office, only for that portion of their time required 

for the Work. 

2.1.3.3 Wages and salaries and customary benefits, such as sick 

leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive 

programs and pension plans of Developer’s supervisory or 

administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the 

road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or 

equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time 

required for the Work. 

2.1.3.4 Costs paid or incurred by Developer for taxes, insurance, 

contributions, assessments required by law or collective bargaining 

agreements and for personnel not covered by such agreements, and for 

customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, 

holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on 

wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under 

Subparagraphs 2.1.3.1 through 2.1.3.3. 

2.1.3.5 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and 

equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including costs 

of materials in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable 

waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the 

District’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the District’s 

option, shall be sold by Developer. Any amounts realized from such sales 

shall be credited to the District as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.   

2.1.3.6 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, 

maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 

machinery and equipment not customarily owned by construction 

workers, that are provided by Developer at the site and fully consumed 

in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 

items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by 

Developer. Cost for items previously used by Developer shall mean fair 

market value.   

2.1.3.7 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, 

equipment, vehicles and vehicle expenses, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 3 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

Developer at the site, whether rented from Developer or others, and the 

costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs and replacements, 

dismantling and removal thereof and costs of Developer’s Project field 

office, overhead and general expenses including office supplies, parking, 

office equipment, and software. Rates and quantities of equipment 

rented shall be subject to the District’s prior approval.   

2.1.3.8 Costs of removal of debris from the site, daily clean-up costs 

and dumpster charges not otherwise included in the cost of the 

subcontracts which exceeds the clean-up provided under the General 

Conditions.  

2.1.3.9 Costs of that portion of the reasonable travel, parking and 

subsistence expenses of Developer’s personnel incurred while traveling 

and discharging duties connected with the Work.   

2.1.3.10 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site 

at a mutually acceptable location, if approved in advance by the District. 

2.1.4 Allowances    

Because it is impossible at the time of execution of the Facilities Lease to 

determine the exact cost of performing certain tasks, the Cost of the Work shall 

include the following Allowances for the Tasks/Work as noted here: 

Task/Work Allowance Amount 

TBD  

  

  

Total Allowance Amount  

 

The Allowance Value for an Allowance Item includes the direct cost of labor, 

materials, equipment, transportation, taxes and insurance associated with the 

applicable Allowance Item.  All other costs, including design fees, Developer’s 

overall project management and general conditions costs, overhead and fee, 

are deemed to be included in the original Guaranteed Maximum Price, and are 

not subject to adjustment regardless of the actual amount of the Allowance 

Item. 

The District shall have sole discretion to authorize all expenditures from the 

Allowances. The District shall process expenditures from the Allowances in the 

form of an Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”). The Allowances are 

included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Any unused Allowance or unused 

portion thereof shall be deducted from the Cost of the Work pursuant to 

Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease to the benefit of the District. 

 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 4 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs 

2.1.5.1 Where not included in the General Conditions, and with the 

prior approval of District, costs of document reproductions 

(photocopying and blueprinting expenses), long distance telephone call 

charges, postage, overnight and parcel delivery charges, telephone 

costs including cellular telephone charges, facsimile or other 

communication service at the Project site, job photos and progress 

schedules, and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 

Developer shall consult with District to determine whether District has 

any vendor relationships that could reduce the cost of these items and 

use such vendors whenever possible. 

2.1.5.2 Sales, use, gross receipts, local business and similar taxes 

imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

2.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for permits, plan checks, licenses and 

inspections for which Developer is required by the Contract Documents 

to pay including, but not limited to, permanent utility connection 

charges, street use permit, street use rental, OSHA permit and sidewalk 

use permit and fees. 

2.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract 

Documents. 

2.1.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Developer’s or its 

subcontractors’ negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to 

the District as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

2.1.5.6 Expenses incurred in accordance with Developer’s standard 

personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of 

personnel required for the Work if approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.7 Where requested by District, costs or expenses incurred by 

Developer in performing design services for the design-build systems. 

2.1.5.8 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 

to the extent, approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.9 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent 

threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the 

safety of persons and/or property. 

2.1.5.10 Provided all other eligible costs have been deducted from the 

contingency and as part of the calculation of amounts due Developer for 

Final Payment, costs of repairing and correcting damaged or non-

conforming Work executed by Developer, Subcontractors or suppliers, 

providing that such damage or non-conforming Work was not caused by 

negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Developer and 

only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered 

by Developer from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or suppliers. 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 5 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

2.1.6 Excluded Costs   

The following items are considered general overhead items and shall not be 

billed to the District: 

2.1.6.1 Salaries and other compensation of Developer’s personnel 

stationed at Developer’s principal office or offices other than the Project 

Field Office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 2.1.3.2. 

and 2.1.3.4. 

2.1.6.2 Expenses of Developer’s principal office and offices other than 

the Project Field Office. 

2.1.6.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly 

included in this Section 2. 

2.1.6.4 Developer’s capital expenses, including interest on 

Developer’s capital employed for the Work. 

2.1.6.5 Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price (as 

adjusted by Change Order) to be exceeded.  

2.1.7 Developer’s Fee 

__________ percent (_____%) of the Cost of the Work as described in Sections 

2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 2.1.4 and 2.1.5.  

2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance   

For insurance and bonds required under this Facilities Lease (exclusive of those 

required by Subcontractors, which costs are included in the subcontract 

amounts), that portion of insurance and bond premiums which are directly 

attributable to this Contract, which shall be calculated at a rate of _____ 

percent (__%) of the Cost of the Work for insurance and _____ percent (__%) 

of the Cost of the Work for payment and performance bonds.  

2.1.9 Contingency   

2.1.9.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes a Contingency of 

__________ percent (_____%) of the Cost of the Work as described in 

Section 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.1.3 for potential additional construction costs 

for unforeseen conditions that occur over the course of construction 

and/or scope gaps between the subcontract categories of the Work.   

2.1.9.2  

2.1.9.3 The Contingency is not intended for such things as scope 

changes.   

2.1.9.4 The Contingency shall not be used without the agreement of 

the District.   



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 6 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

2.1.9.5 The unused portion of the Contingency shall be considered as 

cost savings and retained by the District at the end of the Project. 

2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price will consist of the amounts to be identified in 

Attachment 2 to this Exhibit C.  Except as indicated herein for modifications to the 

Project approved by the District, Developer will not seek additional compensation from 

District in excess of Guaranteed Maximum Price.  District shall pay the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price to Developer in the form of Tenant Improvement Payments and Lease 

Payments as indicated herein. 

2.3 Total Payment   

In no event shall the cumulative total of the Tenant Improvement Payments and the 

Loan Amount for the Lease Payments ever exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price to 

be defined, as may be modified pursuant to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price   

2.4.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based 

on the Construction Documents, including the plans and specifications, as 

identified in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4.2 As indicated in the Facilities Lease, the Parties may add to or remove 

from the project specific scopes of work.  Based on these change(s), the Parties 

may agree to a reduction or increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  If a 

cost impact of a change is agreed to by the Parties, it shall be paid upon the 

payment request from Developer for the work that is the subject of the change 

in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit D.  The amount of any change to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be calculated in accordance with the 

provisions of Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

2.4.3 The Parties agree to reduce the Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 

unused portion of Allowances and/or Contingency, if any. 

2.4.4 Cost Savings  

Developer shall work cooperatively with Architect, Construction Manager, 

subcontractors and District, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities 

to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings.  Any identified cost 

savings from the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be identified by Developer, 

and approved in writing by the District.  In the event Developer realizes a 

savings on any aspect of the Project, such savings shall be added to the 

Contingency and expended consistent with the Contingency.  In addition, any 

portion of Allowance remaining after completion of the Project shall be added 

to the Contingency.  If any cost savings require revisions to the Construction 

Documents, Developer shall work with the District and Architect with respect 

to revising the Construction Documents and, if necessary, obtaining the 

approval of DSA with respect to those revisions.  Developer shall be entitled to 

an adjustment of Contract Time for delay in completion caused by any cost 

savings adopted by District pursuant to Exhibit D, if requested in writing before 

the approval of the cost savings. 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 7 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

2.4.5  If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to this Exhibit C, 

any reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price resulting from that exercise of 

the Purchase Option, if any, shall be retained in full by the District and shall not 

be shared with Developer. 

3. Tenant Improvement Payments   

Prior to the District’s taking delivery or occupancy of the Project, the District shall pay to 

Developer an amount equal to the Guaranteed Maximum Price as modified pursuant to the 

terms of the Facilities Lease, including Exhibit C and Exhibit D, less the Loan Amount for 

the Lease Payments (“Tenant Improvement Payments”).  The District shall withhold a amount 

equal to the Loan Amount as indicated in Attachment 3 to Exhibit C from the Developer for 

its Work on the Project.  In other words, no further Tenant Improvement Payment will be 

made to Developer once the amount equal to Guaranteed Maximum Price minus the Loan 

Amount has been paid. Otherwise, the Tenant Improvement Payments will be processed 

based on the amount of Work performed according to Developer’s Schedule of Values (Exhibit 

G to the Facilities Lease) and pursuant to the provisions in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease, 

including withholding for or escrow of retention of five percent (5%) of the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price.  The withholding for the Loan Amount shall be separate from and in addition 

to withholding for or escrow of retention. 

4. Lease Payments  

Upon execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date, the form of which is attached 

to the Facilities Lease as Exhibit E, the District shall commence making lease payments to 

Developer in accordance with the Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 3.  

4.1 The Lease Payments shall be consideration for the District’s rental, use, and 

occupancy of the Project and the Project Site and shall be made in monthly 

installments as indicated in the Schedule of Lease Payments attached hereto as 

Attachment 3 for the duration of the lease term of one (1) year, with the first Lease 

Payment due ninety (90) days after execution of the Memorandum of Commencement 

Date.   

4.2 The District represents that the annual Lease Payment obligation does not 

surpass the District’s annual budget and will not require the District to increase or 

impose additional taxes or obligations on the public that did not exist prior to the 

execution of the Facilities Lease. 

4.3 Fair Rental Value  

District and Developer have agreed and determined that the total Lease 

Payments constitute adequate consideration for the Facilities Lease and are 

reasonably equivalent to the fair rental value of the Project.  In making such 

determination, consideration has been given to the obligations of the Parties 

under the Facilities Lease and Site Lease, the uses and purposes which may be 

served by the Project and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District 

and the general public. 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 8 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District   

4.4.1 The District and Developer understand and intend that the obligation of 

the District to pay Lease Payments and other payments hereunder constitutes 

a current expense of the District and shall not in any way be construed to be a 

debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory 

limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the 

District, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general 

tax revenues, funds or moneys of the District.   

4.4.2 Lease Payments due hereunder shall be payable only from current funds 

which are budgeted and appropriated or otherwise made legally available for 

this purpose.  This Facilities Lease shall not create an immediate indebtedness 

for any aggregate payments that may become due hereunder.   

4.4.3 The District covenants to take all necessary actions to include the Lease 

Payments in each of its final approved annual budgets.   

4.4.4 The District further covenants to make all necessary appropriations 

(including any supplemental appropriations) from any source of legally 

available funds of the District for the actual amount of Lease Payments that 

come due and payable during the period covered by each such budget.  

Developer acknowledges that the District has not pledged the full faith and 

credit of the District, State of California or any state agency or state department 

to the payment of Lease Payments or any other payments due hereunder.  The 

covenants on the part of District contained in this Facilities Lease constitute 

duties imposed by law and it shall be the duty of each and every public official 

of the District to take such action and do such things as are required by law in 

the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to 

carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Facilities Lease 

agreed to be carried out and performed by the District. 

4.4.5 Developer cannot, under any circumstances, accelerate the District’s 

payments under the Facilities Lease. 

5. District’s Purchase Option 

5.1 If the District is not then in uncured Default hereunder, the District shall have 

the option to purchase not less than all of the Project in its “as-is, where-is” condition 

and terminate this Facilities Lease and Site Lease by paying the balance of the “Loan 

Amount” identified in Attachment 3, which is exclusive of interest that would have 

otherwise been owed, as of the date the option is exercised (“Option Price”).  Said 

payment shall be made on or before the date on which the District’s lease payment 

would otherwise be due for that month (“Option Date”).   

5.2 District shall provide to Developer a written notice no less than ten (10) days 

prior to the Option Date.  The notice will include that District is exercising its option to 

purchase the Project as set forth above on the Option Date.  If the District exercises 

this option, the District shall pay directly to Developer the Option Price on or prior to 

the Option Date and Developer shall at that time deliver to District an executed 

Termination Agreement and Quitclaim Deed in recordable form to terminate this 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 9 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease.  District may record all such documents at District’s 

cost and expense.  

5.3 Under no circumstances can the first Option Date be on or before ninety (90) 

days after Developer completes the Project and the District accepts the Project. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK; ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW] 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 10 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

(To Be Attached Via Addendum) 

 

 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 11 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

(To Be Attached Via Addendum) 

 

 



 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 12 of 12 

Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS 

(To Be Attached Via Addendum) 

 

Amortization Schedule    

     

Loan Amount: $     

Interest: 4.25% Annual    

Term in Months 12.00     

Payment Frequency Monthly    

     

Payment 

Monthly 

Payment 

Principal 

Payment 

Interest 

Payment Balance 

     

1     

2     

3     

4     

5     

6     

7     

8     

9     

10     

11     

12     

Totals     

 

 



  
DWK DMS 3804496v1 

EXHIBIT D 

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PROVISIONS 

FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND 

LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND 

John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction  

Dated as of April 21, 2022 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

1. CONTRACT TERMS AND DEFINITIONS .......................................................................... 1 

2. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 11 

3. ARCHITECT ...................................................................................................... 11 

4. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER .................................................................................... 12 

5. INSPECTOR, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS ...................................................................... 12 

6. DEVELOPER ...................................................................................................... 14 

7. SUBCONTRACTORS ............................................................................................. 27 

8. OTHER CONTRACTS/CONTRACTORS .......................................................................... 28 

9. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ............................................................................ 28 

10. DEVELOPER’S SUBMITTALS AND SCHEDULES ............................................................... 30 

11. SITE ACCESS, CONDITIONS, AND REQUIREMENTS ........................................................ 35 

12. TRENCHES ....................................................................................................... 38 

13. INSURANCE AND BONDS ....................................................................................... 39 

14. WARRANTY/GUARANTEE/INDEMNITY ........................................................................ 40 

15. TIME .............................................................................................................. 41 

16. EXTENSIONS OF TIME – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, EXCUSABLE DELAYS .................................. 43 

17. CHANGES IN THE WORK ....................................................................................... 46 

18. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION ................................................................................ 56 

19. PAYMENTS ....................................................................................................... 56 

20. COMPLETION OF THE WORK ................................................................................... 64 

21. FINAL PAYMENT AND RETENTION ............................................................................. 68 

22. UNCOVERING OF WORK ........................................................................................ 69 

23. NONCONFORMING WORK AND CORRECTION OF WORK .................................................... 70 

24. TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION ............................................................................. 71 

25. CLAIMS PROCESS ............................................................................................... 71 

26. STATE LABOR, WAGE & HOUR, APPRENTICE, AND RELATED PROVISIONS ............................. 79 

27. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 86 

28. MISCELLANEOUS ................................................................................................ 86 

 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 1 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1. Contract Terms and Definitions 

1.1 Definitions 

Wherever used in the Contract Documents, the following terms shall have the 

meanings indicated, which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural 

thereof: 

1.1.1 Adverse Weather. Shall be only weather that satisfies all of the 

following conditions: (1) unusually severe precipitation, sleet, snow, hail, or 

extreme temperature or air conditions in excess of the norm for the location 

and time of year it occurred based on the closest weather station data averaged 

over the past five years, (2) that is unanticipated and would cause unsafe work 

conditions and/or is unsuitable for scheduled work that should not be performed 

during inclement weather (i.e., exterior finishes), and (3) at the Project. 

1.1.2 Allowance Expenditure Directive.  Written authorization for 

expenditure of allowance, if any. 

1.1.3 Approval, Approved, and/or Accepted.  Written authorization, 

unless stated otherwise.  

1.1.4 Architect (or “Design Professional in General Responsible 

Charge”).  The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any 

combination thereof, named as Architect, who will have the rights and authority 

assigned to the Architect in the Contract Documents.  The term Architect means 

the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge as defined in DSA PR 

13-02 on this Project or the Architect’s authorized representative.  

1.1.5 As-Builts.  Digitally prepared and reproducible drawings using the 

District’s Project Management System to be prepared on a monthly basis 

pursuant to the Contract Documents, that reflect changes made during the 

performance of the Work, recording differences between the original design of 

the Work and the Work as constructed since the preceding monthly submittal.  

See Record Drawings. 

1.1.6 Burdened.  The labor rate for Contractor or any Subcontractor inclusive 

of any and all burden costs including, but not limited to, health and welfare 

pay, vacation and holiday pay, pension contributions, training rates, benefits of 

any kind, insurance of any kind, workers’ compensation, liability insurance, 

truck expenses, supply expenses of any kind, payroll taxes, and any other taxes 

of any kind. 

1.1.7 Change Order.  A written order to Developer authorizing an addition 

to, deletion from, or revision in the Work, and/or authorizing an adjustment in 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 

1.1.8 Claim.  A Dispute that remains unresolved at the conclusion of all the 

applicable Dispute Resolution requirements provided herein. 

1.1.9 Completion.  The earliest of the date of acceptance by the District or 

the cessation of labor thereon for a continuous period of sixty (60) days. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 2 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.1.10 Construction Change Directive.  A written order prepared and issued 

by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and signed by 

the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. 

1.1.11 Construction Manager.  The individual, partnership, corporation, 

joint venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, 

named as such by the District.  If no Construction Manager is used on the 

Project that is the subject of this Contract, then all references to Construction 

Manager herein shall be read to refer to District. 

1.1.12 Construction Schedule.  The progress schedule of construction of the 

Project as provided by Developer and approved by District. 

1.1.13 Contingency. The GMP proposal will contain, as part of the estimated 

cost of the Work, Project’s Contingency, a sum mutually agreed upon, 

controlled by District, and monitored by District and Developer to cover costs 

that are properly reimbursable as a cost of the Work, but are not the basis for 

a Change Order. Project’s Contingency will not be used for changes in scope or 

for any item that would be the basis for an increase in the GMP. Developer will 

provide District with a monthly accounting of charges against Project’s 

Contingency, if applicable, with each application for payment. Any unused 

Project Contingency belongs to District. 

1.1.14 Contract.  The agreement between the District and Developer 

contained in the Contract Documents. 

1.1.15 Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents consist exclusively of 

the documents evidencing the agreement of the District and Developer.  The 

Contract Documents consist of the following documents: 

1.1.15.1 Non-Collusion Declaration  

1.1.15.2 Iran Contracting Act Certification  

1.1.15.3 Site Lease 

1.1.15.4 Facilities Lease, including Exhibits A-G 

1.1.15.4.1 Iran Contracting Act Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.2 Federal Debarment Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.3 Federal Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification (if 

applicable) 

1.1.15.4.4 Performance Bond 

1.1.15.4.5 Payment Bond (Developer’s Labor & Material Bond) 

1.1.15.4.6 Workers’ Compensation Certification 

1.1.15.4.7 Prevailing Wage Certification 

1.1.15.4.8 Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting 

Certification  

1.1.15.4.9 COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification  

1.1.15.4.10 Drug-Free Workplace Certification  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 3 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.1.15.4.11 Tobacco-Free Environment Certification  

1.1.15.4.12 Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise 

Participation Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.13 Roofing Project Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.14 Hazardous Materials Procedures and 

Requirements 

1.1.15.4.15 Hazardous Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.16 Lead-Based Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.17 Imported Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.18 Skilled and Trained Workforce Certification 

1.1.15.4.19 Project Labor Agreement (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.20 Registered Subcontractors List 

1.1.15.4.21 Escrow Agreement for Security Deposits in Lieu of 

Retention (if used) 

1.1.15.4.22 Guarantee Form 

1.1.15.4.23 Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 

1.1.15.5 All Plans, Technical Specifications, and Drawings, including 

the Division of the State Architect approved versions of the foregoing 

1.1.15.6 Any and all addenda to any of the above documents 

1.1.15.7 Any and all change orders or written modifications to the 

above documents if approved in writing by the District 

1.1.16 Contract Time.  The time period stated in the Facilities Lease for the 

completion of the Work. 

1.1.17 Daily Job Report(s).  Daily Project reports prepared by Developer's 

employee(s) who are present on Site, which shall include the information 

required herein. 

1.1.18 Day(s).  Unless otherwise designated, day(s) means calendar day(s).  

1.1.19 Department of Industrial Relations (or “DIR”).  DIR is 

responsible, among other things, for labor compliance monitoring and 

enforcement of California prevailing wage laws and regulations for public works 

contracts. 

1.1.20 Design Professional in General Responsible Charge.  See 

definition of Architect above. 

1.1.21 Developer.  The person or persons identified in the Facilities Lease as 

contracting to perform the Work to be done under this Contract, or the legal 

representative of such a person or persons. 

1.1.22 Dispute.  A separate demand by Developer for a time extension, or 

payment of money or damages arising from Work done by or on behalf of 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 4 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Developer pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not otherwise 

expressly provided for or Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or an amount 

of payment disputed by the District.   

1.1.23 District.  The public agency or the school district for which the Work is 

performed.  The governing board of the District or its designees will act for the 

District in all matters pertaining to the Contract.  The District may, at any time:  

1.1.23.1 Direct Developer to communicate with or provide notice to 

the Construction Manager or the Architect on matters for which the 

Contract Documents indicate Developer will communicate with or 

provide notice to the District; and/or 

1.1.23.2 Direct the Construction Manager or the Architect to 

communicate with or direct Developer on matters for which the Contract 

Documents indicate the District will communicate with or direct 

Developer.   

1.1.24 Drawings (or “Plans”).  The graphic and pictorial portions of the 

Contract Documents showing the design, location, scope and dimensions of the 

Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, 

sequence of operation, and diagrams.  

1.1.25 DSA.  Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.26 Force Account Directive.  A process that may be used when the 

District and Developer cannot agree on a price for a specific portion of work or 

before Developer prepares a price for a specific portion of work and whereby 

Developer performs the work as indicated herein on a time and materials basis. 

1.1.27 Guaranteed Maximum Price.  The total monies payable to Developer 

under the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

1.1.28 Job Cost Reports.  Any and all reports or records detailing the costs 

associated with work performed on or related to the Project that Developer 

shall maintain for the Project. Specifically, Job Cost Reports shall contain, but 

are not limited by or to, the following information: a description of the work 

performed or to be performed on the Project; quantity, if applicable, of work 

performed (hours, square feet, cubic yards, pounds, etc.) for the Project; 

Project budget; costs for the Project to date; estimated costs to complete the 

Project; and expected costs at completion.  The Job Cost Reports shall also 

reflect all Contract cost codes, change orders, elements of non-conforming 

work, back charges, and additional services. 

1.1.29 Labor Commissioner’s Office (or “Labor Commissioner”).  Also 

known as the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”):  Division of 

the DIR responsible for adjudicating wage claims, investigating discrimination 

and public works complaints, and enforcing Labor Code statutes and Industrial 

Welfare Commission orders. 

1.1.30 Material Safety Data Sheets (or “MSDS”).  A form with data 

regarding the properties for potentially harmful substances handled in the 

workplace. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 5 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.1.31 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (or “MS4”).  A system 

of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without 

limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and 

storm drains. 

1.1.32 Plans.  See “Drawings”. 

1.1.33 Premises.  The real property on which the Site is located. 

1.1.34 Product(s).  New material, machinery, components, equipment, 

fixtures and systems forming the Work, including existing materials or 

components required and approved by the District for reuse. 

1.1.35 Product Data.  Illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, 

instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by 

Developer to illustrate a material, product, or system for some portion of the 

Work. 

1.1.36 Program Manager.  The individual, partnership, corporation, joint 

venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named 

as such by the District.  If no Program Manager is designated for the Project 

that is the subject of the Contract Documents, then all references to Program 

Manager herein shall be read to refer to District. 

1.1.37 Project.  The planned undertaking as provided for in the Contract 

Documents. 

1.1.38 Project Inspector (or “Inspector”).  The individual(s) retained by 

the District in accordance with title 24 of the California Code of Regulations to 

monitor and inspect the Project.   

1.1.39 Project Labor Agreement (or “PLA” or Project Stabilization 

Agreement or “PSA”).  A prehire collective bargaining agreement in 

accordance with Public Contract Code section 2500 et seq. that establishes 

terms and conditions of employment for a specific construction project or 

projects and/or is an agreement described in Section 158(f) of Title 29 of the 

United States Code.   

1.1.40 Proposed Change Order (or “PCO”).  A written request prepared by 

Developer requesting that the District, the Construction Manager and the 

Architect issue a Change Order based upon a proposed change to the Work, to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or to the Contract Time. 

1.1.41 Provide.  Shall include “provide complete in place,” that is, “furnish 

and install,” and “provide complete and functioning as intended in place” unless 

specifically stated otherwise. 

1.1.42 Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (or “QSP”).  Certified personnel that 

attended a State Water Resources Control Board sponsored or approved 

training class and passed the qualifying exam. 

1.1.43 Record Drawings.  Unless otherwise defined in the Special Conditions, 

Reproducible drawings (or Plans) prepared pursuant to the requirements of the 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 6 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Contract Documents, that reflect all changes made during the performance of 

the Work, recording differences between the original design of the Work and 

the Work as constructed upon completion of the Project.  See also “As-Builts.” 

1.1.44 Request for Information (or “RFI”).  A written request prepared by 

Developer requesting that the Architect provide additional information 

necessary to clarify or amplify an item in the Contract Documents that 

Developer believes is not clearly shown or called for in the Drawings or 

Specifications or other portions of the Contract Documents, or to address 

problems that have arisen under field conditions. 

1.1.45 Request for Substitution for Specified Item.  A request by 

Developer to substitute an equal or superior material, product, thing, or service 

for a specific material, product, thing, or service that has been designated in 

the Contract Documents by a specific brand or trade name. 

1.1.46 Safety Orders.  Written and/or verbal orders for construction issued 

by the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) or by 

the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”). 

1.1.47 Safety Plan.  Developer’s safety plan specifically adapted for the 

Project.  Developer's Safety Plan shall comply with all provisions regarding 

Project safety, including all applicable provisions in these Construction 

Provisions. 

1.1.48 Samples.  Physical examples that illustrate materials, products, 

equipment, finishes, colors, or workmanship and that, when approved in 

accordance with the Contract Documents, establish standards by which 

portions of the Work will be judged. 

1.1.49 Shop Drawings. All drawings, prints, diagrams, illustrations, 

brochures, schedules, and other data that are prepared by Developer, a 

subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, that illustrate how 

specific portions of the Work shall be fabricated or installed. 

1.1.50 Site.  The Project site as shown on the Drawings. 

1.1.51 Specifications.  That portion of the Contract Documents, Division 1 

through Division 49, and all technical sections, and addenda to all of these, if 

any, consisting of written descriptions and requirements of a technical nature 

of materials, equipment, construction methods and systems, standards, and 

workmanship.  

1.1.52 State.  The State of California.  

1.1.53 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (or “SWPPP”).  A 

document which identifies sources and activities at a particular facility that may 

contribute pollutants to storm water and contains specific control measures and 

time frames to prevent or treat such pollutants.  

1.1.54 Subcontractor.  A contractor and/or supplier who is under contract 

with Developer or with any other subcontractor, regardless of tier, to perform 

a portion of the Work of the Project.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 7 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.1.55 Submittal Schedule.  The schedule of submittals as provided by 

Developer and approved by District. 

1.1.56 Surety.  The person, firm, or corporation that executes as surety 

Developer’s Performance Bond and Payment Bond, and must be a California 

admitted surety insurer as defined in the Code of Civil Procedure section 

995.120. 

1.1.57 Work.  All labor, materials, equipment, components, appliances, 

supervision, coordination, and services required by, or reasonably inferred 

from, the Contract Documents, that are necessary for the construction and 

completion of the Project. 

1.2 Laws Concerning the Contract Documents 

The Contract is subject to all provisions of the Constitution and laws of California and 

the United States governing, controlling, or affecting District, or the property, funds, 

operations, or powers of District, and such provisions are by this reference made a 

part hereof.  Any provision required by law to be included in this Contract shall be 

deemed to be inserted. 

1.3 No Oral Agreements 

No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of District, 

either before or after execution of Contract Documents, shall affect or modify any of 

the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract 

Documents. 

1.4 No Assignment 

Except as specifically permitted in the Facilities Lease, Developer shall not assign the 

Contract Documents or any part thereof including, without limitation, any services or 

money to become due hereunder without the prior written consent of the District.  

Assignment without District’s prior written consent shall be null and void.  Any 

assignment of money due or to become due under the Contract Documents shall be 

subject to a prior lien for services rendered or material supplied for performance of 

Work called for under the Contract Documents in favor of all persons, firms, or 

corporations rendering services or supplying material to the extent that claims are 

filed pursuant to the Civil Code, Code of Civil Procedure, Government Code, Labor 

Code, and/or Public Contract Code, and shall also be subject to deductions for 

liquidated damages or withholding of payments as determined by District in 

accordance with the Contract Documents.  Developer shall not assign or transfer in 

any manner to a Subcontractor or supplier the right to prosecute or maintain an action 

against the District. 

1.5 Notice and Service Thereof 

1.5.1 Any notice from one party to the other or otherwise under the Contract 

Documents shall be in writing and shall be dated and signed by the party giving 

notice or by a duly authorized representative of that party.  Notice shall not be 

effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in one of the following 

manners: 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 8 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.5.1.1 If notice is given by personal delivery thereof, it shall be 

considered delivered on the day of delivery. 

1.5.1.2 If notice is given by overnight delivery service, it shall be 

considered delivered one (1) day after date deposited, as indicated by 

the delivery service. 

1.5.1.3 If notice is given by depositing same in United States mail, 

enclosed in a sealed envelope, it shall be considered delivered five (5) 

days after date deposited, as indicated by the postmarked date. 

1.5.1.4 If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage 

prepaid, return receipt requested, it shall be considered delivered on the 

day the notice is signed for. 

1.6 No Waiver 

The failure of District in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance 

of any of the terms of the Contract Documents or to exercise any option herein 

conferred shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the 

right to assert or rely upon any such terms or option on any future occasion.  No action 

or failure to act by the District, Architect, or Construction Manager shall constitute a 

waiver of any right or duty afforded the District under the Contract Documents, nor 

shall any action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence on any 

breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

1.7 Substitutions For Specified Items 

Developer shall not substitute different items for any items identified in the Contract 

Documents without prior written approval of the District, unless otherwise provided in 

the Contract Documents.  

1.7.1 Whenever in the Specifications any materials, process, or article 

is indicated or specified by grade, patent, or proprietary name, or by 

name of manufacturer, that Specification shall be deemed to be followed 

by the words “or equal.”  Developer may, unless otherwise stated, offer 

any material, process, or article that shall be substantially equal or 

better in every respect to that so indicated or specified.  

1.7.1.1 If the material, process, or article offered by 

Developer is not, in the opinion of the District, substantially equal or 

better in every respect to that specified, then Developer shall furnish 

the material, process, or article specified in the Specifications without 

any additional compensation or change order.  

1.7.1.2 This provision shall not be applicable with respect 

to any material, product, thing or service for which District made 

findings and gave notice in accordance with Public Contract Code section 

3400(c); therefore, Developer shall not be entitled to request a 

substitution with respect to those materials, products or services.  

1.7.2 A request for a substitution shall be submitted as follows:  

1.7.2.1 Developer shall notify the District in writing of any 

request for a substitution at least ten (10) days prior to proposal opening 

as indicated in the Request for Qualifications and Proposals.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 9 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.7.2.2 Requests for Substitutions after award of the 

Contract shall be submitted within thirty-five (25) days of the date of 

the Notice to Proceed with Construction.  

1.7.3 Within (25) days after the date of the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction, Developer shall provide data substantiating a request for 

substitution of “an equal” item, including but not limited to the 

following:  

1.7.3.1 All variations of the proposed substitute from the 

material specified including, but not limited to, principles of operation, 

materials, or construction finish, thickness or gauge of materials, 

dimensions, weight, and tolerances;  

1.7.3.2 Available maintenance, repair or replacement 

services;  

1.7.3.3 Increases or decreases in operating, maintenance, 

repair, replacement, and spare parts costs;  

1.7.3.4 Whether or not acceptance of the substitute will 

require other changes in the Work (or in work performed by the District 

or others under Contract with the District); and  

1.7.3.5 The time impact on any part of the Work resulting 

directly or indirectly from acceptance of the proposed substitute.  

1.7.4 No substitutions shall be made until approved, in writing, by the 

District.  The burden of proof as to equality of any material, process, or 

article shall rest with Developer.  Developer warrants that if substitutes 

are approved:  

1.7.4.1 The proposed substitute is equal or superior in all 

respects to that specified, and that such proposed substitute is suitable 

and fit for the intended purpose and will perform adequately the function 

and achieve the results called for by the general design and the Contract 

Documents;  

1.7.4.2 Developer provides the same warranties and 

guarantees for the substitute that would be provided for that specified;  

1.7.4.3 Developer shall be fully responsible for the 

installation of the substitute and any changes in the Work required, 

either directly or indirectly, because of the acceptance of such 

substitute, with no increase in Contract Price or Contract 

Time.  Incidental changes or extra component parts required to 

accommodate the substitute will be made by Developer without a 

change in the Contract Price or Contract Time;  

1.7.4.4 Developer shall be responsible for any re-design 

costs occasioned by District's acceptance and/or approval of any 

substitute; and  

1.7.4.5 Developer shall, in the event that a substitute is 

less costly than that specified, credit the District with one hundred 

percent (100%) of the net difference between the substitute and the 

originally specified material.  In this event, Developer agrees to execute 

a deductive Change Order to reflect that credit.  

1.7.5 In the event Developer furnishes a material, process, or article 

more expensive than that specified, the difference in the cost of that 

material, process, or article so furnished shall be borne by Developer.  

1.7.6 In no event shall the District be liable for any increase in Contract 

Price or Contract Time due to any claimed delay in the evaluation of any 

proposed substitute or in the acceptance or rejection of any proposed 

substitute.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 10 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

1.7.7 Developer shall be responsible for any costs the District incurs 

for professional services, DSA fees, or delay to the Project Schedule, if 

applicable, while DSA reviews changes for the convenience of Developer 

and/or to accommodate Developer’s means and methods.  District may 

deduct those costs from any amounts owing to Developer for the review 

of the request for substitution, even if the request for substitution is not 

approved.  District, at its sole discretion, shall deduct from the 

payments due to and/or invoice Developer for all the professional 

services and/or DSA fees or delay to the Project Schedule, if applicable, 

while DSA reviews changes for the convenience of Developer and/or to 

accommodate Developer’s means and methods.  

 

1.8 Materials and Work 

1.8.1 Except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, 

Developer shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, 

transportation, supervision, temporary constructions of every nature, and all 

other services, management, and facilities of every nature whatsoever 

necessary to execute and complete the Work, in a good and workmanlike 

manner, within the Contract Time. 

1.8.2 Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and of the best 

quality of their respective kinds and grades as noted or specified, and 

workmanship shall be of high quality, and Developer shall use all diligence to 

inform itself fully as to the required manufacturer’s instructions and to comply 

therewith. 

1.8.3 Materials shall be furnished in ample quantities and at such times as to 

ensure uninterrupted progress of Work and shall be stored properly and 

protected from the elements, theft, vandalism, or other loss or damage as 

required. 

1.8.4 For all materials and equipment specified or indicated in the Drawings 

and Specifications, Developer shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and 

services necessary for complete assemblies and complete working systems, 

functioning as intended.  Incidental items not indicated on Drawings, nor 

mentioned in the Specifications, that can legitimately and reasonably be 

inferred to belong to the Work described, or be necessary in good practice to 

provide a complete assembly or system, shall be furnished as though itemized 

here in every detail.  In all instances, material and equipment shall be installed 

in strict accordance with each manufacturer’s most recent published 

recommendations and specifications. 

1.8.5 Developer shall, after award of the Project by District and after relevant 

submittals have been reviewed, place orders for materials and/or equipment 

as specified so that delivery of same may be made without delays to the Work.  

Developer shall, upon five (5) days’ demand from District, present documentary 

evidence showing that orders have been placed. 

1.8.6 In the event of Developer’s neglect in complying or failure to comply 

with the above instructions, District reserves the right, but has no obligation, 

to place orders for such materials and/or equipment as the District may deem 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 11 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

advisable so that the Work may be completed by the date specified in the 

Facilities Lease, and all expenses incidental to the procuring of said materials 

and/or equipment shall be paid for by Developer or deducted from payment(s) 

to Developer. 

1.8.7 Developer warrants good title to all material, supplies, and equipment 

installed or incorporated in Work and agrees upon completion of all Work to 

deliver the Site to District, together with all improvements and appurtenances 

constructed or placed thereon by it, and free from any claims, liens, or charges.  

Developer further agrees that neither it nor any person, firm, or corporation 

furnishing any materials or labor for any work covered by the Contract 

Documents shall have any right to lien any portion of the Premises or any 

improvement or appurtenance thereon, except that Developer may install 

metering devices or other equipment of utility companies or of political 

subdivision, title to which is commonly retained by utility company or political 

subdivision.  In the event of installation of any such metering device or 

equipment, Developer shall advise District as to owner thereof. 

1.8.8 Nothing contained in this Article, however, shall defeat or impair the 

rights of persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by 

Developer for their protection or any rights under any law permitting such 

protection or any rights under any law permitting such persons to look to funds 

due Developer in hands of District (e.g., Stop Payment Notices), and this 

provision shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice 

of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing material for Work when 

no formal contract is entered into for such material. 

1.8.9 Title to new materials and/or equipment for the Work of the Contract 

Documents and attendant liability for its protection and safety shall remain with 

Developer until incorporated in the Work of the Contract Documents and 

accepted by District.  No part of any materials and/or equipment shall be 

removed from its place of storage except for immediate installation in the Work 

of the Contract Documents.  Should the District, in its discretion, allow 

Developer to store materials and/or equipment for the Work off-site, Developer 

will store said materials and/or equipment at a bonded warehouse and with 

appropriate insurance coverage at no cost to District.  Developer shall keep an 

accurate inventory of all materials and/or equipment in a manner satisfactory 

to District or its authorized representative and shall, at the District’s request, 

forward it to the District.  

1.8.10  [Reserved] 

2. [Reserved] 

3. Architect 

3.1 The Architect shall represent the District during the Project and will observe the 

progress and quality of the Work on behalf of the District.  Architect shall have the 

authority to act on behalf of District to the extent expressly provided in the Contract 

Documents and to the extent determined by District.  Architect shall have authority to 

reject materials, workmanship, and/or the Work whenever rejection may be 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 12 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

necessary, in Architect’s reasonable opinion, to ensure the proper execution of the 

Contract Documents. 

3.2 Architect shall, with the District and on behalf of the District, determine the 

amount, quality, acceptability, and fitness of all parts of the Work, and interpret the 

Specifications, Drawings, and shall, with the District, interpret all other Contract 

Documents. 

3.3 Architect shall have all authority and responsibility established by law, including 

title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 

3.4 Developer shall provide District and the Construction Manager with a copy of 

all written communication between Developer and Architect at the same time as that 

communication is made to Architect, including, without limitation, all RFIs, 

correspondence, submittals, claims, change order requests and/or proposed change 

orders. 

4. Construction Manager 

4.1 If a Construction Manager is used on this Project (“Construction Manager” or 

“CM”), the Construction Manager will provide administration of the Contract 

Documents on the District's behalf.  After execution of the Contract Documents, all 

correspondence and/or instructions from Developer and/or District shall be forwarded 

through the Construction Manager.  The Construction Manager will not be responsible 

for and will not have control or charge of construction means, methods, techniques, 

sequences, or procedures or for safety precautions in connection with the Work, which 

shall all remain Developer’s responsibility. 

4.2 The Construction Manager, however, will have authority to reject materials 

and/or workmanship not conforming to the Contract Documents, as determined by the 

District, the Architect, and/or the Project Inspector.  The Construction Manager shall 

also have the authority to require special inspection or testing of any portion of the 

Work, whether it has been fabricated, installed, or fully completed.  Any decision made 

by the Construction Manager in good faith, shall not give rise to any duty or 

responsibility of the Construction Manager to:  Developer, any Subcontractor, or their 

agents, employees, or other persons performing any of the Work.  The Construction 

Manager shall have free access to any or all parts of Work at any time.   

4.3 If the District does not use a Construction Manager on this Project, all 

references within the Contract Documents to Construction Manager or CM shall be read 

as District. 

5. Inspector, Inspections, and Tests 

5.1 Project Inspector 

5.1.1 One or more Project Inspector(s), including special Project Inspector(s), 

as required, will be assigned to the Work by District, in accordance with 

requirements of title 24, part 1, of the California Code of Regulations, to enforce 

the building code and monitor compliance with Plans and Specifications for the 

Project previously approved by the DSA.  Duties of Project Inspector(s) are 

specifically defined in section 4-342 of said part 1 of title 24. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 13 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

5.1.2 No Work shall be carried on except with the knowledge and under the 

inspection of the Project Inspector(s).  The Project Inspector(s) shall have free 

access to any or all parts of Work at any time.  Developer shall furnish Project 

Inspector(s) reasonable opportunities for obtaining such information as may be 

necessary to keep Project Inspector(s) fully informed respecting progress and 

manner of work and character of materials, including, but not limited to, 

submission of form DSA 156 (or the most current version applicable at the time 

the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector at least 48 hours in advance of 

the commencement and completion of construction of each and every aspect 

of the Work.  Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx.  Inspection of Work shall not relieve 

Developer from an obligation to fulfill the Contract Documents.  Project 

Inspector(s) and the DSA are authorized to suspend work whenever Developer 

and/or its Subcontractor(s) are not complying with the Contract Documents.  

Any work stoppage by the Project Inspector(s) and/or DSA shall be without 

liability to the District.  Developer shall instruct its Subcontractors and 

employees accordingly. 

5.1.3 If Developer and/or any Subcontractor requests that the Project 

Inspector(s) perform any inspection off-Site, this shall only be done if it is 

allowable pursuant to applicable regulations and DSA approval, if the Project 

Inspector(s) agree to do so, and at the expense of Developer. 

5.2 Tests and Inspections 

5.2.1 Tests and Inspections shall comply with title 24, part 1, California Code 

of Regulations, group 1, article 5, section 4-335, and with the provisions of the 

Specifications. 

5.2.2 The District will select an independent testing laboratory to conduct the 

tests.  Selection of the materials required to be tested shall be by the laboratory 

or the District's representative and not by Developer.  Developer shall notify 

the District's representative a sufficient time in advance of its readiness for 

required observation or inspection.  This notice shall be provided, at a 

minimum, forty-eight (48) hours prior to the inspection of the material that 

needs to be tested and, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to any 

special or off-site inspection. 

5.2.3 Developer shall notify the District's representative a sufficient time in 

advance of the manufacture of material to be supplied under the Contract 

Documents that must by terms of the Contract Documents be tested so that 

the District may arrange for the testing of same at the source of supply.  This 

notice shall be provided, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 

manufacture of the material that needs to be tested. 

5.2.4 Any material shipped by Developer from the source of supply prior to 

having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection or prior to the receipt 

of notice from said representative that such testing and inspection will not be 

required, shall not be incorporated into and/or onto the Project. 

5.2.5 The District will select the testing laboratory and pay for the costs for all 

tests and inspections, except those inspections performed at Developer’s 

request and expense.  Developer shall reimburse the District for any and all 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 14 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

laboratory costs or other testing costs for any materials found to be not in 

compliance with the Contract Documents.  At the District’s discretion, District 

may elect to deduct laboratory or other testing costs for noncompliant materials 

from the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and such deduction shall not constitute 

a withholding. 

5.3 Costs for After Hours and/or Off Site Inspections 

If Developer performs Work outside the Inspector’s regular working hours, costs of 

any inspections required outside regular working hours shall be borne by Developer 

and may be invoiced to Developer by the District or the District may deduct those 

expenses from the next Tenant Improvement Payment. 

6. Developer 

Developer shall construct and complete, in a good and workmanlike manner, the Work for the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price including any adjustment(s) to the Guaranteed Maximum Price 

pursuant to provisions herein regarding changes to the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Except 

as otherwise noted, Developer shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, 

permits (excluding DSA), fees, licenses, facilities, transportation, taxes, bonds and insurance, 

and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, except as 

indicated herein.  

6.1 Status of Developer 

6.1.1 Developer is and shall at all times be deemed to be an independent 

contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it and its 

Subcontractors perform the services required of it by the Contract Documents.  

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the relationship of 

employer and employee, or principal and agent, between the District, or any of 

the District's employees or agents, and Developer or any of Developer’s 

Subcontractors, agents or employees.  Developer assumes exclusively the 

responsibility for the acts of its agents and employees as they relate to the 

services to be provided during the course and scope of their employment.  

Developer, its Subcontractors, and its agents and employees shall not be 

entitled to any rights or privileges of District employees.  District shall be 

permitted to monitor Developer’s activities to determine compliance with the 

terms of the Contract Documents. 

6.1.2 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 

licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board, 9821 Business 

Park Drive, Sacramento, California 95827 (Post Office Box 26000, Sacramento, 

California 95826), http://www.cslb.ca.gov. 

6.1.3 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 

registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial Relations 

at https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm  

or current URL. 

6.1.4 Developer represents that Developer and all Subcontractors shall not 

be presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared 

ineligible or excluded pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor 

Code section 1777.7. 

https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm


 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 15 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.1.5 [Reserved] 

6.1.6 Developer represents that it has no existing interest and will not acquire 

any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree 

with the performance of Work required under this Contract and that no person 

having any such interest shall be employed by Developer. 

6.1.7 [Reserved] 

6.1.8 If Developer intends to make any change in the name or legal nature of 

the Developer’s entity, Developer must first notify the District in writing prior to 

making any contemplated change.  The District shall determine in writing if 

Developer’s intended change is permissible while performing this Contract. 

6.2 Project Inspection Card(s)  

Developer shall verify that forms DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the 

time the Work is performed) are issued for the Project prior to the commencement of 

construction. 

6.3 Developer’s Supervision 

6.3.1 During progress of the Work, Developer shall keep on the Premises, and 

at all other locations where any Work related to the Contract is being 

performed, an experienced and competent project manager and construction 

superintendent who are employees of Developer, to whom the District does not 

object and whom shall be fluent in English, written and verbal.   

6.3.2 The project manager and construction superintendent shall both speak 

fluent English and the predominant language of Developer’s employees.  

6.3.3 Developer acknowledges the quality and qualifications of the Key 

Personnel were important factors in District’s selection of Developer for the 

Project.  Developer and District agree that the personal services of the Key 

Personnel are a material term of the Contract Documents. Developer and 

District agree further that the substitution or removal or change in role or level 

of effort of such Key Personnel would result in damages to the District, the 

measure of which would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix. In lieu such 

damages, District and Developer have agreed to liquidated damages as 

described below: 

6.3.3.1 Before commencing the Work herein, Developer shall give 

written notice to District of Developer’s Key Personnel.   

6.3.3.2 Key Personnel shall be the same as those individuals 

identified in Developer’s response to the District’s RFQ/P. 

6.3.3.3 For any substitution of any Key Personnel individual before 

the end of the individual’s Project commitment period provided in 

Developer’s Key Personnel staffing schedule, District may assess once, 

and Developer shall accept, liquidated damages in the amount of six (6) 

times the gross monthly salary for each substituted Key Personnel. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 16 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.3.4 Developer’s Key Personnel shall not be changed except with prior written 

notice to, and approval by, District.   

6.3.5 If any of Developer’s Key Personnel prove to be unsatisfactory to 

Developer, or to District, any of the District's employees, agents, the 

Construction Manager, or the Architect, the unsatisfactory Key Personnel shall 

be replaced.  However, Developer shall immediately notify District in writing 

before any change occurs, but no less than two (2) business days prior.  Any 

replacement of Key Personnel shall be made promptly and must be satisfactory 

to the District.  Developer’s Key Personnel shall each represent Developer, and 

all directions given to Key Personnel shall be as binding as if given to Developer. 

6.3.6 Developer shall give efficient supervision to Work, using its best skill 

and attention.  Developer shall carefully study and compare all Contract 

Documents, Drawings, Specifications, and other instructions and shall at once 

report to District, Construction Manager, and Architect any error, inconsistency, 

or omission that Developer or its employees and Subcontractors may discover, 

in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Developer shall have 

responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions.  

6.3.7 All contractors doing work on the Project will provide their workers with 

identification badges.  These badges will be worn by all members of the 

contractor's staff who are working in a District facility. 

6.3.7.1   Badges must be filled out in full and contain the following 

information: 

6.3.7.1.1 Name of contractor 

6.3.7.1.2 Name of employee 

6.3.7.1.3 Contractor's address and phone number 

6.3.7.2 Badges are to be worn when Developer or his/her employees 

are on site and must be visible at all times.  Contractors must inform 

their employees that they are required to allow District employees, the 

Architect, the Construction Manager, the Program Manager, or the 

Project Inspector to review the information on the badges upon request. 

6.3.7.3 Continued failure to display identification badges as required 

by this policy may result in the individual being removed from the 

Project or assessment of fines against the contractor. 

6.4 Duty to Provide Fit Workers 

6.4.1 Developer and Subcontractor(s) shall at all times enforce strict discipline 

and good order among their employees and shall not employ any unfit person 

or anyone not skilled in work assigned to that person.  It shall be the 

responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this requirement.  District 

may require Developer to permanently remove unfit persons from Project Site. 

6.4.2 Any person in the employ of Developer or Subcontractor(s) whom 

District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be excluded from working on the 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 17 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Project and shall not again be employed on the Project except with the prior 

written consent of District. 

6.4.3 Developer shall furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other 

elements of labor employed or to be employed in the Work. 

6.4.4 Fingerprinting.  Developer shall comply with the provisions of 

Education Code section 45125.2 regarding the submission of employee 

fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the completion of 

criminal background investigations of its employees, Subcontractor(s), and 

Subcontractors’ employees.  Developer shall not permit any employee to have 

any contact with District pupils until such time as Developer has verified in 

writing to the governing board of the District, (A) that such employee has not 

been convicted of a violent or serious felony, as defined in Education Code 

section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee 

as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3).  Developer shall 

fully complete and perform all tasks required pursuant to the Criminal 

Background Investigation/ Fingerprinting Certification. 

6.5 Field Office 

6.5.1 Developer shall provide on the Site a temporary office.  

6.6 Purchase of Materials and Equipment 

Developer is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently 

in advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from District to assure 

that there will be no delays. 

6.7 Documents on Work 

6.7.1 Developer shall at all times keep on the Site, or at another location as 

the District may authorize in writing, one legible copy of all Contract 

Documents, including Addenda and Change Orders, and Titles 19 and 24 of the 

California Code of Regulations, the specified edition(s) of the Uniform Building 

Code, all approved Drawings, Plans, Schedules, and Specifications, and all 

codes and documents referred to in the Specifications, and made part thereof.  

These documents shall be kept in good order and available to District, 

Construction Manager, Architect, Architect’s representatives, the Project 

Inspector(s), and all authorities having jurisdiction.  Developer shall be 

acquainted with and comply with the provisions of these titles as they relate to 

this Project.  (See particularly the duties of Contractor, Title 24, Part 1, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 4-343.)  Developer shall also be 

acquainted with and comply with all California Code of Regulations provisions 

relating to conditions on this Project, particularly Titles 8 and 17.  Developer 

shall coordinate with Architect and Construction Manager and shall submit its 

verified report(s) according to the requirements of Title 24. 

6.7.2 Daily Job Reports 

6.7.2.1 Developer shall maintain, at a minimum, at least one (1) set 

of Daily Job Reports on the Project.  These must be prepared by 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 18 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Developer's employee(s) who are present on Site, and must include, at 

a minimum, the following information: 

6.7.2.1.1 A brief description of all Work performed on that day. 

6.7.2.1.2 A summary of all other pertinent events and/or 

occurrences on that day. 

6.7.2.1.3 The weather conditions on that day. 

6.7.2.1.4 A list of all Subcontractor(s) working on that day, 

including DIR registration numbers, Subcontractor employees 

working, and hours of work.  

6.7.2.1.5 A list of each Developer employee working on that 

day and the total hours worked for each employee. 

6.7.2.1.6 A complete list of all equipment on Site that day, 

whether in use or not. 

6.7.2.1.7 A complete list of all materials, supplies, and 

equipment delivered on that day, and verification that all 

materials, supplies, and equipment comply with the Contract 

Documents and are properly stored. 

6.7.2.1.8 A complete list of all inspections and tests performed 

on that day. 

6.7.2.1.9 Daily verification the Project is properly secured from 

the public and unauthorized entry. 

6.7.2.2 Each day Developer shall provide a copy of the previous day’s 

Daily Job Report to the District or the District’s Construction Manager. 

6.8 Preservation of Records 

Developer shall maintain, and District shall have the right to inspect, Developer’s 

financial records for the Project, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports for the 

Project in compliance with the criteria set forth herein.  The District shall have the right 

to examine and audit all Daily Job Reports or other Project records of Developer’s 

project manager(s), project superintendent(s), and/or project foreperson(s), all 

certified payroll records and/or related documents including, without limitation, Job 

Cost Reports, payroll, payment, timekeeping and tracking documents; and as it 

pertains to change orders, all books, estimates, records, contracts, documents, cost 

data, subcontract job cost reports, and other data of Developer, any Subcontractor, 

and/or supplier, including computations and projections related to estimating, 

negotiating, pricing, or performing the Work or modification, in order to evaluate the 

accuracy, completeness, and currency of the cost, manpower, coordination, 

supervision, or pricing data at no additional cost to the District.  These documents may 

be duplicative and/or be in addition to any documents held in escrow by the District.  

Developer shall make available at its office at all reasonable times the materials 

described in this paragraph for the examination, audit, or reproduction until three (3) 

years after final payment under this Facilities Lease.  Notwithstanding the provisions 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 19 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

above, Developer shall provide any records requested by any governmental agency, if 

available, after the time set forth above.   

6.9 Integration of Work 

6.9.1 Developer shall do all cutting, fitting, patching, and preparation of Work 

as required to make its several parts come together properly, to fit it to receive 

or be received by work of other contractors, and to coordinate tolerances to 

various pieces of work, showing upon, or reasonably implied by, the Drawings 

and Specifications for the completed structure, and shall conform them as 

District and/or Architect may direct. 

6.9.2 Developer shall make its own layout of lines and elevations and shall be 

responsible for the accuracy of both Developer’s and Subcontractors' work 

resulting therefrom.   

6.9.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall take all field dimensions required 

in performance of the Work, and shall verify all dimensions and conditions on 

the Site.  All dimensions affecting proper fabrication and installation of all Work 

must be verified prior to fabrication by taking field measurements of the true 

conditions.  If there are any discrepancies between dimensions in drawings and 

existing conditions which will affect the Work, Developer shall bring such 

discrepancies to the attention of the District and Architect for adjustment before 

proceeding with the Work.  In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not 

acting in the capacity of a licensed design professional, and that Developer’s 

examination is made in good faith to facilitate construction and does not create 

an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to detect errors, omissions 

or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain compliance with 

applicable laws, building codes or regulations.  However, nothing in this 

provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and 

reporting any error, inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within 

Developer’s standard of care including, without limitation, any applicable laws, 

ordinance, rules, or regulations.  Following receipt of written notice from 

Developer, the District and/or Architect shall inform Developer what action, if 

any, Developer shall take with regard to such discrepancies. 

6.9.4 All costs caused by noncompliant, defective, or delayed Work shall be 

borne by Developer, inclusive of repair work.  Schedule delays resulting from 

unauthorized work shall be Contractor’s responsibility. 

6.9.5 Developer shall not endanger any work performed by it or anyone else 

by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering work and shall not cut or alter 

work of any other contractor except with consent of District. 

6.10 Notifications 

6.10.1 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 

the commencement of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at 

least 48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current 

version applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 20 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx. 

6.10.2 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 

the completion of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at least 

48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current version 

applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. 

6.11 Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations 

6.11.1 Developer shall secure and pay for any permits (except DSA), licenses, 

registrations, approvals, and certificates necessary for prosecution of Work, 

including but not limited to those listed in the Special Conditions, Exhibit D-1, 

if any, before the date of the commencement of the Work or before the permits, 

licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates are legally required to 

continue the Work without interruption.  Developer shall obtain and pay, only 

when legally required, for all licenses, approvals, registrations, permits, 

inspections, and inspection certificates required to be obtained from or issued 

by any authority having jurisdiction over any part of the Work included in the 

Contract Documents.  All final permits, licenses, registrations, approvals and 

certificates shall be delivered to District before demand is made for final 

payment.  The costs associated with said permits, licenses, registrations, 

approvals and certificates shall be direct reimbursement items and are not 

subject to any markup. 

6.11.2 General Permit For Storm Water Discharges Associated With Construction 

and Land Disturbance Activities. 

6.11.2.1 Contractor acknowledges that all California school districts 

are obligated to develop and implement the following requirements for 

the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and 

land disturbance activities pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter 

Cologne Water Quality Act.  District has determined that the 

construction of this Project requires enrollment in the Construction 

Storm Water Permit.  District has filed certain submittals referred to as 

Permit Registration Documents (“PRDS”) with the Regional Water 

Control Board (“Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan” or “SWPPP”). 

6.11.2.2 Contractor shall comply with any District SWPPP that is 

approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 

cost to the District.  Contractor shall pay any fees and any penalties that 

may imposed by a regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the 

SWPPP during the course of Work. 

6.11.2.3 Contractor shall provide a Qualified Storm Water Practitioner 

(“QSP”) at no additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and 

implement and monitor any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to 

the Project, including but not limited to: 

6.11.2.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, 

reporting and record keeping, including any Numeric Action 

Levels (“NALs”), if applicable; 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 21 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.11.2.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (“REAP”) at least forty eight 

(48) hours prior to any forecasted rain event requiring 

implementation of the REAP, including any erosion and sediment 

control measures needed to protect all exposed portions of the 

site, if applicable; 

6.11.2.3.3 Active Treatment System (“ATS”), if applicable; and 

6.11.2.3.4 Best management practices (“BMPs”). 

6.12 Royalties and Patents 

6.12.1 Developer shall obtain and pay, when legally required, all royalties and 

license fees necessary for prosecution of Work before the earlier of the date of 

the commencement of the Work or the date the license is legally required to 

continue the Work without interruption.  Developer shall defend suits or claims 

of infringement of patent, copyright, or other rights and shall hold the District, 

Construction Manager and the Architect harmless and indemnify them from loss 

on account thereof except when a particular design, process, or make or model 

of product is required by the Contract Documents.  However, if Developer has 

reason to believe that the required design, process, or product is an 

infringement of a patent or copyright, Developer shall indemnify and defend 

the District, Construction Manager and Architect against any loss or damage. 

6.12.2 The review by the District, Construction Manager or Architect of any 

method of construction, invention, appliance, process, article, device, or 

material of any kind shall be only as to its adequacy for the Work and shall not 

constitute approve use by Developer in violation of any patent or other rights 

of any person or entity. 

6.13 Work to Comply With Applicable Laws and Regulations 

6.13.1 Developer shall give all notices and comply with the following specific 

laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations and all other applicable laws, 

ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on conduct of Work as indicated and 

specified, including but not limited to the appropriate statutes and 

administrative code sections.  If Developer observes that Drawings and 

Specifications are at variance with any applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 

regulations, or should Developer become aware of the development of 

conditions not covered by Contract Documents that may result in finished Work 

being at variance therewith, Developer shall promptly notify District in writing 

and any changes deemed necessary by District shall be made as provided in 

this Exhibit D for changes in Work.  

6.13.1.1 National Electrical Safety Code, U. S. Department of Commerce 

6.13.1.2 National Board of Fire Underwriters’ Regulations 

6.13.1.3 International Building Code, latest addition, and the 

California Code of Regulations, title 24, and other amendments 

6.13.1.4 Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, latest edition, 

published by A.G.C. of America 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 22 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.13.1.5 Industrial Accident Commission’s Safety Orders, State of 

California 

6.13.1.6 Regulations of the State Fire Marshall (title 19, California 

Code of Regulations) and Pertinent Local Fire Safety Codes 

6.13.1.7 Americans with Disabilities Act 

6.13.1.8 Education Code of the State of California 

6.13.1.9 Government Code of the State of California 

6.13.1.10 Labor Code of the State of California, division 2, part 7, 

Public Works and Public Agencies  

6.13.1.11 Public Contract Code of the State of California 

6.13.1.12 California Art Preservation Act 

6.13.1.13 U. S. Copyright Act 

6.13.1.14 U. S. Visual Artists Rights Act 

6.13.2 Developer shall comply with all applicable mitigation measures, if any, 

adopted by any public agency or local utility with respect to this Project 

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 

section 21000 et seq.).    

6.13.3 If Developer performs any Work that it knew, or through exercise of 

reasonable care should have known, to be contrary to any applicable laws, 

ordinance, rules, or regulations, Developer shall bear all costs arising therefrom 

and arising from the correction of said Work. 

6.13.4 Where Specifications or Drawings state that materials, processes, or 

procedures must be approved by the DSA, State Fire Marshall, or other body 

or agency, Developer shall use its best efforts to satisfy the requirements of 

such bodies or agencies applicable at the time the Work is performed, and as 

determined by those bodies or agencies.  

6.13.5 [Reserved] 

6.14 Safety/Protection of Persons and Property 

6.14.1 Developer will be solely and completely responsible for conditions of 

the Site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the 

Work.  This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal 

working hours. 

6.14.2 Developer to provide safe access for staff and students at any time, 

and to provide barricades, sound walls, signage, fencing, and other reasonably 

necessary protective measures, as necessary, to protect staff and students 

during construction. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 23 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.14.3 The wearing of hard hats will be mandatory at all times for all personnel 

on Site.  Developer shall supply sufficient hard hats to properly equip all 

employees and visitors. 

6.14.4 Any construction review of Developer’s performance is not intended to 

include review of the adequacy of Developer’s safety measures in, on, or near 

the Site. 

6.14.5 Implementation and maintenance of safety programs shall be the sole 

responsibility of Developer. 

6.14.6 Developer shall furnish to the District a copy of Developer's safety plan 

within the time frame indicated in the Contract Documents and specifically 

adapted for the Project. 

6.14.7 Developer shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property 

that occur as a result of its fault or negligence in connection with the 

prosecution of the Contract Documents and shall take all necessary measures 

and be responsible for the proper care and completion and final acceptance by 

District.  All Work shall be solely at Developer’s risk. 

6.14.8 Developer shall take, and require Subcontractors to take, all necessary 

precautions for safety of workers on the Project and shall comply with all 

applicable federal, state, local, and other safety laws, standards, orders, rules, 

regulations, and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, 

about, or adjacent to premises where Work is being performed and to provide 

a safe and healthful place of employment.  Developer shall furnish, erect, and 

properly maintain at all times, all necessary safety devices, safeguards, 

construction canopies, signs, nets, barriers, lights, and watchmen for protection 

of workers and the public and shall post danger signs warning against hazards 

created by such features in the course of construction. 

6.14.9 Hazards Control –Developer shall store volatile wastes in approved 

covered metal containers and remove them from the Site daily.  Developer shall 

prevent accumulation of wastes that create hazardous conditions.  Developer 

shall provide adequate ventilation during use of volatile or noxious substances. 

6.14.10 Developer shall designate a responsible member of its organization 

on the Project, whose duty shall be to post information regarding protection 

and obligations of workers and other notices required under occupational safety 

and health laws, to comply with reporting and other occupational safety 

requirements, and to protect the life, safety, and health of workers.  Name and 

position of person so designated shall be reported to District by Developer. 

6.14.11 Developer shall correct any violations of safety laws, rules, orders, 

standards, or regulations.  Upon the issuance of a citation or notice of violation 

by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, Developer shall correct such 

violation promptly. 

6.14.12 Developer shall comply with any District storm water requirements 

that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 

cost to the District. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 24 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.14.13 In an emergency affecting safety of life or of work or of adjoining 

property, Developer, without special instruction or authorization, shall act, at 

its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury.  Any compensation 

claimed by Developer on account of emergency work shall be determined by 

agreement. 

6.14.14 All salvage materials will become the property of Developer and shall 

be removed from the Site unless otherwise called for in the Contract 

Documents. However, the District reserves the right to designate certain items 

of value that shall be turned over to the District unless otherwise directed by 

District. 

6.14.15 All connections to public utilities and/or existing on-site services, 

including, without limitation, internet, phone, and data connections, shall be 

made and maintained in such a manner as to not interfere with the continuing 

use of same by the District during the entire progress of the Work.   

6.14.16 Developer shall provide such heat, covering, and enclosures as are 

necessary to protect all Work, materials, equipment, appliances, and tools 

against damage by weather conditions, such as extreme heat, cold, rain, snow, 

dry winds, flooding, or dampness. 

6.14.17 Developer shall protect and preserve the Work from all damage or 

accident, providing any temporary roofs, window and door coverings, boxings, 

or other construction as required by the Architect.  Developer shall be 

responsible for existing structures, walks, roads, trees, landscaping, and/or 

improvements in working areas; and shall provide adequate protection 

therefor.  If temporary removal is necessary of any of the above items, or 

damage occurs due to the Work, Developer shall replace same at his expense 

with same kind, quality, and size of Work or item damaged.  This shall include 

any adjoining property of the District and others. 

6.14.18 Developer shall take adequate precautions to protect existing roads, 

sidewalks, curbs, pavements, utilities, adjoining property, and structures 

(including, without limitation, protection from settlement or loss of lateral 

support), and to avoid damage thereto, and repair any damage thereto caused 

by construction operations. 

6.14.19 Developer shall confine apparatus, the storage of materials, and the 

operations of workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or 

directions of Architect, and shall not interfere with the Work or unreasonably 

encumber Premises or overload any structure with materials.  Developer shall 

enforce all instructions of District and Architect regarding signs, advertising, 

fires, and smoking, and require that all workers comply with all regulations 

while on Project Site. 

6.14.20 Developer, Developer’s employees, Subcontractors, Subcontractors’ 

employees, or any person associated with the Work shall conduct themselves 

in a manner appropriate for a school site.  No verbal or physical contact with 

neighbors, students, and faculty, profanity, or inappropriate attire or behavior 

will be permitted.  Developer is also responsible for ensuring workers refrain 

from wearing inappropriate clothing and/or logos on the Project. District may 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 25 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

require Developer to temporarily or permanently remove non-complying 

persons from Project Site. 

6.14.21 Developer shall take care to prevent disturbing or covering any 

survey markers, monuments, or other devices marking property boundaries or 

corners.  If such markers are disturbed, Developer shall have a civil engineer, 

registered as a professional engineer in California, replace them at no cost to 

District.   

6.14.22 In the event that Developer enters into any agreement with owners 

of any adjacent property to enter upon the adjacent property for the purpose 

of performing the Work, Developer shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless each person, entity, firm, or agency that owns or has any interest in 

adjacent property.  The form and content of the agreement of indemnification 

shall be approved by the District prior to the commencement of any Work on 

or about the adjacent property.  Developer shall also indemnify the District as 

provided in the indemnification provision herein.  These provisions shall be in 

addition to any other requirements of the owners of the adjacent property. 

6.15 General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 

Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (“Construction Storm Water 

Permit”) 

6.15.1 Developer acknowledges that all California school districts are obligated 

to develop and implement the following requirements for the discharge of storm 

water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities 

pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter Cologne Water Quality Act.  District 

has determined that the construction of this Project requires enrollment in the 

Construction Storm Water Permit.  District has filed certain submittals referred 

to as Permit Registration Documents (PRDS) with the Regional Water Control 

Board (Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan or “SWPPP”).   

6.15.2  Developer shall comply with any District SWPPP that are approved by 

the District and applicable to the Project at no additional cost to the District.  

Developer shall pay any fees and any penalties that may be imposed by a 

regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the SWPPP during the course of 

Work. 

6.15.3  Developer shall provide a Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP) at no 

additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and implement and monitor 

any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to the Project, including but not 

limited to: 

6.15.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, reporting 

and record keeping, including any Numeric Action Levels (NALs), if 

applicable;  

6.15.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (REAP) at least forty eight (48) hours 

prior to any forecasted rain event requiring implementation of the REAP, 

including any erosion and sediment control measures needed to protect 

all exposed portions of the site, if applicable;  

6.15.3.3 Active Treatment System (ATS), if applicable; and 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 26 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.15.3.4 Best management practices (BMPs). 

6.16 Working Evenings and Weekends 

Developer may be required to work increased hours, evenings, and/or weekends at no 

additional cost to the District.  Developer shall give the District forty-eight (48) hours’ 

notice prior to performing any evening and/or weekend work.  Developer shall perform 

all evening and/or weekend work in compliance with all applicable rules, regulations, 

laws, and local ordinances including, without limitation, all noise and light limitations.  

Developer shall reimburse the District for any increased or additional Inspector charges 

as a result of Developer’s increased hours, or evening and/or weekend work. 

6.17 Cleaning Up 

6.17.1 Developer shall provide all services, labor, materials, and equipment 

necessary for protecting and securing the Work, all school occupants, 

furnishings, equipment, and building structure from damage until its 

completion and final acceptance by District.  Dust barriers shall be provided to 

isolate dust and dirt from construction operations.  At completion of the Work 

and portions thereof, Developer shall clean to the original state any areas 

beyond the Work area that become dust laden as a result of the Work.  

Developer must erect the necessary warning signs and barricades to ensure 

the safety of all school occupants.  Developer at all times must maintain good 

housekeeping practices to reduce the risk of fire damage and must make a fire 

extinguisher, fire blanket, and/or fire watch, as applicable, available at each 

location where cutting, braising, soldering, and/or welding is being performed 

or where there is an increased risk of fire. 

6.17.2 Developer at all times shall keep Premises, including property 

immediately adjacent thereto, free from debris such as waste, rubbish 

(including personal rubbish of workers, e.g., food wrappers, etc.), and excess 

materials and equipment caused by the Work.  Developer shall not leave debris 

under, in, or about the Premises (or surrounding property or neighborhood), 

but shall promptly remove same from the Premises on a daily basis.  If 

Developer fails to clean up, District may do so and the cost thereof shall be 

charged to Developer.  If the Contract calls for Work on an existing facility, 

Developer shall also perform specific clean-up on or about the Premises upon 

request by the District as it deems necessary for continued operations.  

Developer shall comply with all related provisions of the Specifications. 

6.17.3 If the Construction Manager, Architect, or District observes the 

accumulation of trash and debris, the District will give Developer a 24-hour 

written notice to mitigate the condition. 

6.17.4 Should Developer fail to perform the required clean-up, or should the 

clean-up be deemed unsatisfactory by the District, the District may, at its sole 

discretion, then perform the clean-up.  All cost associated with the clean-up 

work (including all travel, payroll burden, and costs for supervision) will be 

deducted from the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 27 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

6.18 No Relief from Obligations Based on Review by Other Persons 

6.18.1 Developer shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in 

accordance with the Contract Documents by act or omission of the District, 

Architect, Construction Manager, Project Inspector, or DSA or other entities 

having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, administration of the Contract, 

review of submittals, or by tests, observation, inspection, or permit 

/interconnection approvals. 

7. Subcontractors 

7.1 Developer shall provide the District with information for all of Developer’s 

Subcontracts and Subcontractors as indicated in Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 

Section herein. 

7.2 No contractual relationship exists between the District and any Subcontractor, 

supplier, or sub-subcontractor by reason of the Contract Documents. 

7.3 Developer agrees to bind every Subcontractor by terms of the Contract 

Documents as far as those terms that are applicable to Subcontractor’s work including, 

without limitation, all labor, wage & hour, apprentice and related provisions and 

requirements. If Developer subcontracts any part of the Work called for by the Contract 

Documents, Developer shall be as fully responsible to District for acts and omissions 

of any Subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any 

Subcontractor, including Subcontractor caused Project delays, as it is for acts and 

omissions of persons directly employed by Developer.  The divisions or sections of the 

Specifications and/or the arrangements of the drawings are not intended to control 

Developer in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or limit the work performed by 

any trade. 

7.4 District's consent to, or approval of, or failure to object to, any Subcontractor 

under the Contract Documents shall not in any way relieve Developer of any 

obligations under the Contract Documents and no such consent shall be deemed to 

waive any provisions of the Contract Documents. 

7.5 Developer is directed to familiarize itself with sections 1720 through 1861 of 

the Labor Code of the State of California, as regards the payment of prevailing wages 

and related issues, and to comply with all applicable requirements therein including, 

without limitation, section 1775 and Developer’s and Subcontractors’ obligations and 

liability for violations of prevailing wage law and other applicable laws.  

7.6 Developer shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, 

Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers working on 

the Project.   

7.6.1 Developer is responsible for ensuring that first-tier Subcontractors 

holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C-

46 licenses, are prequalified by the District to work on the Project pursuant to 

Public Contract Code section 20111.6. 

7.6.2 Developer is responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractors are 

properly registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial 

Relations. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 28 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

7.7 Developer is solely responsible for settling any differences between Developer 

and its Subcontractor(s) or between Subcontractors. 

7.8 Developer must include in all of its subcontracts the assignment provisions 

indicated in the Termination section of these Construction Provisions. 

8. Other Contracts/Contractors 

8.1 District reserves the right to let other contracts, and/or to perform work with 

its own forces, in connection with the Project.  Developer shall afford other contractors 

reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage of their materials and execution 

of their work and shall properly coordinate and connect Developer’s Work with the 

work of other contractors. 

8.2 Developer shall protect the work of any other contractor that Developer 

encounters while working on the Project. 

8.3 If any part of Developer’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon 

work of District or any other contractor, Developer shall visually inspect, and with 

reasonable effort, physically inspect all accessible portions of District’s or any other 

contractor’s work and, before proceeding with its Work, promptly report to the District 

in writing any defects in District’s or any other contractor’s work that render 

Developer’s Work unsuitable for proper execution and results.  Developer shall be held 

accountable for damages to District for District’s or any other contractor’s work that 

Developer failed to inspect or should have inspected.  Developer’s failure to inspect 

and report shall constitute Developer’s acceptance of all District’s or any other 

contractor’s work as fit and proper for reception of Developer’s Work, except as to 

defects that may develop in District’s or any other contractor’s work after execution of 

Developer’s Work and not caused by execution of Developer’s Work. 

8.4 To ensure proper execution of its subsequent Work, Developer shall measure 

and inspect Work already in place and shall at once report to the District in writing any 

discrepancy between that executed Work and the Contract Documents. 

8.5 Developer shall ascertain to its own satisfaction the scope of the Project and 

nature of District’s or any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by District 

in prosecution of the Project to the end that Developer may perform under the Contract 

in light of the other contracts, if any. 

8.6 Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted as granting to Developer 

exclusive occupancy of the Site, the Premises, or of the Project.  Developer shall not 

cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to the use and/or operation(s) of the 

Premises and/or to District or any other contractor working on the Project.  If 

simultaneous execution of any contract or Premises operation is likely to cause 

interference with performance of Developer’s obligations under the Contract 

Documents, Developer shall coordinate with those contractor(s), person(s), and/or 

entity(s) and shall notify the District of the resolution. 

9. Drawings and Specifications 

9.1 A complete list of all Drawings that form a part of the Contract Documents are 

to be found as an index on the Drawings themselves, and/or may be provided to 

Developer and/or in the Table of Contents. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 29 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

9.2 Materials or Work described in words that so applied have a well-known 

technical or trade meaning shall be deemed to refer to recognized standards, unless 

noted otherwise. 

9.3 Trade Name or Trade Term  

It is not the intention of the Contract Documents to go into detailed descriptions of 

any materials and/or methods commonly known to the trade under “trade name” or 

“trade term.”  The mere mention or notation of “trade name” or “trade term” shall be 

considered a sufficient notice to Developer that it will be required to complete the work 

so named, complete, finished, and operable, with all its appurtenances, according to 

the best practices of the trade. 

9.4 The naming of any material and/or equipment shall mean furnishing and 

installing of same, including all incidental and accessory items thereto and/or labor 

therefor, as per best practices of the trade(s) involved, unless specifically noted 

otherwise. 

9.5 Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be 

binding as if called for by all.  As such, Drawings and Specifications are intended to be 

fully cooperative and to agree.  However, if Developer observes that Drawings and 

Specifications are in conflict with the Contract Documents, Developer shall promptly 

notify District and Architect in writing, and any necessary changes shall be made as 

provided in the Contract Documents. 

9.6 Figured dimensions shall be followed in preference to scaled dimensions, and 

Developer shall make all additional measurements necessary for the work and shall be 

responsible for their accuracy.  Before ordering any material or doing any work, each 

Developer shall verify all measurements at the building and shall be responsible for 

the correctness of same. 

9.7 Should any question arise concerning the intent or meaning of the Contract 

Documents, including the Plans and Specifications, the question shall be submitted to 

the District for interpretation.  If a conflict exists in the Contract Documents, these 

Construction Provisions shall control over the Facilities Lease, which shall control over 

the Site Lease, which shall control over Division 1 Documents, which shall control over 

Division 2 through Division 49 documents, which shall control over figured dimensions, 

which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over small-scale 

drawings.  In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or quantity of 

material or workmanship control.  However, in the case of discrepancy or ambiguity 

solely between and among the Drawings and Specifications, the discrepancy or 

ambiguity shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation that will provide District with 

the functionally complete and operable Project described in the Drawings and 

Specifications.   

9.8 Drawings and Specifications are intended to comply with all laws, ordinances, 

rules, and regulations of constituted authorities having jurisdiction, and where referred 

to in the Contract Documents, the laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations shall be 

considered as a part of the Contract Documents within the limits specified.  

9.9 As required by Section 4-317(c), Part 1, Title 24, CCR:  “Should any existing 

conditions such as deterioration or non-complying construction be discovered which is 

not covered by the DSA-approved documents wherein the finished work will not comply 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 30 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

with Title 24, California Code of Regulations, a construction change document, or a 

separate set of plans and specifications, detailing and specifying the required repair 

work shall be submitted to and approved by DSA before proceeding with the repair 

work.” 

9.10 Ownership of Drawings 

All copies of Plans, Drawings, Designs, Specifications, and copies of other incidental 

architectural and engineering work, or copies of other Contract Documents furnished 

by District, are the property of District.  They are not to be used by Developer in other 

work and, with the exception of signed sets of Contract Documents, are to be returned 

to District on request at completion of Work, or may be used by District as it may 

require without any additional costs to District.  Neither Developer nor any 

Subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the 

Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect.  District 

hereby grants Developer, Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or 

equipment suppliers a limited license to use applicable portions of the Drawings 

prepared for the Project in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.  

10. Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 

Developer’s submittals shall comply with the provisions and requirements of the 

Specifications including, without limitation Submittals. 

10.1 Schedule of Work, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

10.1.1 Developer shall comply with the construction schedule attached to the 

Facilities Lease as Exhibit F (“Construction Schedule”). [To be attached when 

available.] 

10.1.2 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 

electronically, in a native format (e.g. Microsoft Project or Primavera) approved 

in advance by the District. 

10.1.3 The District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall 

make changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 

resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 

10.1.4 The District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 

revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District's sole opinion, the schedule 

of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed.   

10.1.5 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 

rely on them as a basis for payment. 

10.1.6 Within TEN (10) calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed 

with Construction (unless otherwise specified in the Specifications), Developer 

shall prepare and submit to the District for review, in a form supported by 

sufficient data to substantiate its accuracy as the District may require: 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 31 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

10.1.6.1 Preliminary Schedule  

A preliminary schedule of construction indicating the starting and 

completion dates of the various stages of the Work, including any 

information and following any form as may be specified in the 

Specifications.  Once approved by District, this shall become the 

Construction Schedule.  This schedule shall include and identify all tasks 

that are on the Project’s critical path with a specific determination of the 

start and completion of each critical path task as well as all Contract 

milestones and each milestone’s completion date(s) as may be required 

by the District. 

10.1.6.1.1 The District is not required to approve a 

preliminary schedule of construction with early completion, i.e., 

one that shows early completion dates for the Work and/or 

milestones.  Developer shall not be entitled to extra 

compensation if the District approves a Construction Schedule 

with an early completion date and Developer completes the 

Project beyond the date shown in the schedule but within the 

Contract Time.  A Construction Schedule showing the Work 

completed in less than the Contract Time, the time between the 

early completion date and the end of the Contract Time shall be 

Float. 

10.1.6.2 Preliminary Schedule of Values   

A preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work, which must include 

quantities and prices of items aggregating the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price and must subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient 

detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction.  

Unless the Special Conditions contain different limits, this preliminary 

schedule of values shall include, at a minimum, the following information 

and the following structure: 

10.1.6.2.1 Divided into at least the following categories:  

10.1.6.2.1.1 Overhead and profit  

10.1.6.2.1.2 Supervision  

10.1.6.2.1.3 General conditions  

10.1.6.2.1.4 Layout  

10.1.6.2.1.5 Mobilization  

10.1.6.2.1.6 Submittals  

10.1.6.2.1.7 Bonds and insurance  

10.1.6.2.1.8 Close-out/Certification documentation  

10.1.6.2.1.9 Demolition  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 32 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

10.1.6.2.1.10 Installation  

10.1.6.2.1.11 Rough-in  

10.1.6.2.1.12 Finishes 

10.1.6.2.1.13 Testing  

10.1.6.2.1.14 Punch list and District acceptance 

10.1.6.2.2 And also divided by each of the following areas:  

10.1.6.2.2.1 Site work 

10.1.6.2.2.2 By each phase and/or building, as 

applicable 

10.1.6.2.2.3 By each floor  

10.1.6.2.3 The preliminary schedule of values shall not provide 

for values any greater than the following percentages of the 

Contract value: 

10.1.6.2.3.1 Mobilization and layout combined to equal 

not more than 1%. 

10.1.6.2.3.2 Submittals, samples and shop drawings 

combined to equal not more than 3%. 

10.1.6.2.3.3 Bonds and insurance combined to equal not 

more than 2%.  

10.1.6.2.3.4 Closeout documentation shall have a value 

in the preliminary schedule of not less than 3%. 

10.1.6.2.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Contract 

Documents to the contrary, payment of Developer's overhead, 

supervision, general conditions costs, and profit, as reflected in 

the Cost Breakdown, shall be paid based on percentage 

complete, with the disbursement of Progress Payments and the 

Final Payment. 

10.1.6.2.5 Developer shall certify that the preliminary schedule 

of values as submitted to the District is accurate and reflects the 

costs as developed in preparing Developer’s bid. For example, 

without limiting the foregoing, Developer shall not “front-load” 

the preliminary schedule of values with dollar amounts greater 

than the value of activities performed early in the Project. 

10.1.6.2.6 The preliminary schedule of values shall be subject 

to the District's review and approval of the form and content 

thereof.  In the event that the District objects to any portion of 

the preliminary schedule of values, the District shall notify 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 33 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Developer, in writing, of the District's objection(s) to the 

preliminary schedule of values.  Within five (5) calendar days of 

the date of the District's written objection(s), Developer shall 

submit a revised preliminary schedule of values to the District for 

review and approval. The foregoing procedure for the 

preparation, review and approval of the preliminary schedule of 

values shall continue until the District has approved the entirety 

of the preliminary schedule of values.  

10.1.6.2.7 Once the preliminary schedule of values is approved 

by the District, this shall become the Schedule of Values.  The 

Schedule of Values shall not be thereafter modified or amended 

by Developer without the prior consent and approval of the 

District, which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion 

of the District.  

10.1.6.3 Schedule of Values 

The Developer shall provide for District review and approval prior to 

commencement of the Work a schedule of values for all of the Work, 

which includes quantities and prices of items aggregating the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and subdivided into component parts as per 

specifications.  The Schedule of Values shall not be modified or amended 

by the Developer without the prior consent and approval of the District, 

which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of the District.  

The District shall have the right at any time to revise the schedule of 

values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule of values does not 

accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 

10.1.6.4 Preliminary Schedule of Submittals   

A preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, Product 

Data, and Samples submittals.  Once approved by District, this shall 

become the Submittal Schedule.  All submittals may be reviewed by 

District in ProCore an agreed upon District Project Management System 

at no cost and shall be forwarded to the Architect by the date indicated 

on the approved Submittal Schedule, unless an earlier date is necessary 

to maintain the Construction Schedule, in which case those submittals 

shall be forwarded to the District so as not to delay the Construction 

Schedule.  Upon request by the District, Developer shall provide an 

electronic copy of all submittals to the District.  All submittals shall be 

submitted no later than ninety (90) days after the Notice to Proceed 

with Construction. 

10.1.6.5 Safety Plan    

Developer’s Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project shall comply 

with the following requirements: 

10.1.6.5.1 All applicable requirements of California Division of 

Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and/or of the 

United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

(“OSHA”). 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 34 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

10.1.6.5.2 All provisions regarding Project safety, including all 

applicable provisions in these Construction Provisions. 

10.1.6.5.3 Developer’s Safety Plan shall be in English and in the 

language(s) of Developer’s and its Subcontractors’ employees. 

10.1.6.6 Complete Registered Subcontractor List 

The name, address, telephone number, facsimile number, California 

State Contractors License number, classification, DIR registration 

number, and monetary value of all Subcontracts of any tier for parties 

furnishing labor, material, or equipment for completion of the Project. 

10.2 Monthly Progress Schedule(s) 

10.2.1 Developer shall provide Monthly Progress Schedule(s) to the District.  

A Monthly Progress Schedule shall update the approved Construction Schedule 

or the last Monthly Progress Schedule, showing all work completed and to be 

completed as well as updating the Registered Subcontractors List.  The monthly 

Progress Schedule shall be sent as noted below and, if also requested by 

District, within the timeframe requested by the District and shall be in a format 

acceptable to the District and contain a written narrative of the progress of 

work that month and any changes, delays, or events that may affect the work.  

The process for District approval of the Monthly Progress Schedule shall be the 

same as the process for approval of the Construction Schedule. 

10.2.2 Developer shall submit Monthly Progress Schedule(s) with all payment 

applications. 

10.2.3 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 

electronically in a native format (e.g., Microsoft Project or Primavera), 

approved in advance by District.   

10.2.4 District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall make 

changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 

resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 

10.2.5 District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 

revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule 

of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed.   

10.2.6 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 

rely on them as a basis for payment. District shall use best efforts to approve 

all submittals and schedules on or before fourteen (14) days after presentation 

of the same from Developer, providing there are no extenuating circumstances, 

and no such approval shall be unreasonably withheld by District. 

10.3 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 

Developer is required to ensure Material Safety Data Sheets are available in a readily 

accessible place at the Site for any material requiring a Material Safety Data Sheet per 

the federal “Hazard Communication” standard, or employees’ “right to know” law.  

Developer is also required to ensure proper labeling on substances brought onto the 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 35 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

job site and that any person working with the material or within the general area of 

the material is informed of the hazards of the substance and follows proper handling 

and protection procedures.  Two additional copies of the Material Safety Data Sheets 

shall also be submitted directly to the District.  

10.4 Submittals 

10.4.1 Architect’s favorable review shall neither be construed as a complete 

check nor relieve Developer, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, or 

supplier from responsibility for any deficiency that may exist or from any 

departures or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents 

unless Developer has, in writing, called Architect’s attention to the deviations 

at the time of submission and the Architect has given specific written response. 

“Favorable review” shall mean merely that Architect has no objection to 

Developer using, upon Developer’s own full responsibility, plan or method of 

Work proposed, or furnishing materials or equipment proposed. 

11. Site Access, Conditions, And Requirements 

11.1 Site Investigation 

Developer has made a careful investigation of the Site and is familiar with the 

requirements of the Contract Documents and has accepted the readily observable, 

existing conditions of the Site. 

11.2 Soils Investigation Report 

When a soils investigation report obtained from test holes at Site or for the Project is 

available, that report may be made available to Developer but shall not be a part of 

this Contract but shall not alleviate or excuse Developer’s obligation to perform its own 

investigation.  Any information obtained from that report or any information given on 

Drawings as to subsurface soil condition or to elevations of existing grades or 

elevations of underlying rock is approximate only, is not guaranteed, does not form a 

part of this Contract, and Developer may not rely thereon. Developer acknowledges 

that it has made a visual examination of the Site and has made whatever tests 

Developer deems appropriate to determine underground condition of soil.  Although 

any such report is not a part of this Contract, recommendations from the report may 

be included in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents.  It is 

Developer’s sole responsibility to thoroughly review all Contract Documents, Drawings, 

and Specifications. 

11.3 Access to Work 

District and its representatives shall at all times have access to Work wherever it is 

in preparation or progress, including storage and fabrication.  Developer shall provide 

safe and proper facilities for such access so that District's representatives may 

perform their functions.  District shall provide Developer adequate advance notice for 

access to active construction zones such that Developer may provide for safety 

measures to District and representatives. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 36 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

11.4 Layout and Field Engineering 

11.4.1 All field engineering required for layout of this Work and establishing 

grades for earthwork operations shall be furnished by Developer at its expense.  

This Work shall be done by a qualified, California-registered civil engineer or 

licensed land surveyor approved in writing by District and Architect.  Any 

required Record and/or As-Built Drawings of Site development shall be 

prepared by the approved civil engineer or licensed land surveyor. 

11.4.2 Developer shall be responsible for having ascertained pertinent local 

conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the Site and 

for having satisfied itself as to the conditions under which the Work is to be 

performed.  District shall not be liable for any claim for allowances because of 

Developer’s error or negligence in acquainting itself with the conditions at the 

Site. 

11.4.3 Developer shall protect and preserve established benchmarks and 

monuments and shall make no changes in locations without the prior written 

approval of District.  Developer shall replace any benchmarks or monuments 

that are lost or destroyed subsequent to proper notification of District and with 

District's approval. 

11.5 Utilities 

Utilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

11.6 Sanitary Facilities 

Sanitary facilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

11.7 Surveys 

Developer shall provide surveys done by a California-licensed civil engineer or licensed 

land surveyor to determine locations of construction, grading, and site work as 

required to perform the Work. 

11.8 Regional Notification Center 

Developer, except in an emergency, shall contact the appropriate regional notification 

center at least two (2) days prior to commencing any excavation if the excavation will 

be conducted in an area or in a private easement that is known, or reasonably should 

be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the underground facilities 

owned or operated by the District, and obtain an inquiry identification number from 

that notification center.  No excavation shall be commenced and/or carried out by 

Developer unless an inquiry identification number has been assigned to Developer or 

any Subcontractor and Developer has given the District the identification number.  Any 

damages arising from Developer's failure to make appropriate notification shall be at 

the sole risk and expense of Developer.  Any delays caused by failure to make 

appropriate notification shall be at the sole risk of Developer and shall not be 

considered for an extension of the Contract Time. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 37 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

11.9 Existing Utility Lines 

11.9.1 Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, District assumes the 

responsibility for removal, relocation, and protection of main or trunk utility 

lines and facilities located on the construction Site at the time of 

commencement of construction under the Contract Documents with respect to 

any such utility facilities that are not identified in the Plans and Specifications.  

Developer shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in completion 

of the Project caused by failure of District or the owner of a utility to provide 

for removal or relocation of such utility facilities. 

11.9.2 Locations of existing utilities provided by District shall not be 

considered exact, but approximate within a reasonable margin and shall not 

relieve Developer of its responsibilities to exercise reasonable care and to pay 

all costs of repair due to Developer’s failure to do so.  District shall compensate 

Developer for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to the failure of 

Developer to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility 

facilities not indicated in the Plans and Specifications with reasonable accuracy, 

and for equipment necessarily idle during such work. 

11.9.3 No provision herein shall be construed to preclude assessment against 

Developer for any other delays in completion of the Work.  Nothing in this 

Article shall be deemed to require District to indicate the presence of existing 

service laterals, appurtenances, or other utility lines, within the exception of 

main or trunk utility lines.  Whenever the presence of these utilities on the Site 

of the construction Project can be inferred from the presence of other visible 

facilities, such as buildings, meter junction boxes, on or adjacent to the Site of 

the construction. 

11.9.4 If Developer, while performing Work under this Contract, discovers 

utility facilities not identified by District in Contract Plans and Specifications, 

Developer shall immediately notify the District and the utility in writing.  In the 

event Developer fails to immediately provide notice and subsequently causes 

damage to the utility facilities, the cost of repair for damage to above-

mentioned visible facilities shall be borne by Developer.   

11.10 Notification 

Developer understands, acknowledges and agrees that the purpose for prompt 

notification to the District pursuant to these provisions is to allow the District to 

investigate the condition(s) so that the District shall have the opportunity to decide 

how the District desires to proceed as a result of the condition(s).  Accordingly, failure 

of Developer to promptly notify the District in writing, pursuant to these provisions, 

shall constitute Developer's waiver of any claim for damages or delay incurred as a 

result of the condition(s). 

11.11 Hazardous Materials 

Developer shall comply with all provisions and requirements of the Contract 

Documents related to hazardous materials including, without limitation, Hazardous 

Materials Procedures and Requirements. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 38 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

11.12 No Signs 

Neither Developer nor any other person or entity shall display any signs not required 

by law or the Contract Documents at the Site, fences, trailers, offices, or elsewhere on 

the Site without specific prior written approval of the District. 

12. Trenches 

12.1 Trenches Greater Than Five Feet 

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Guaranteed Maximum Price exceeds 

$25,000 and involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in 

depth, Developer shall, in advance of excavation, promptly submit to the District 

and/or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the District or Architect, a 

detailed plan showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving 

ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. 

12.2 Excavation Safety 

If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Safety 

Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in 

no case shall such plan be less effective than that required by the Safety Orders.  No 

excavation of such trench or trenches shall be commenced until said plan has been 

accepted by the District or by the person to whom authority to accept has been 

delegated by the District. 

12.3 No Tort Liability of District 

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability 

upon the District or any of its employees. 

12.4 No Excavation without Permits 

Developer shall not commence any excavation Work until it has secured all necessary 

permits including the required CalOSHA excavation/shoring permit.  Any permits shall 

be prominently displayed on the Site prior to the commencement of any excavation. 

12.5 Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions 

12.5.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, if the Work involves 

digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below 

the Surface, Developer shall promptly, and before the following conditions are 

disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any: 

12.5.1.1 Material that Developer believes may be material that is 

hazardous waste, as defined in section 25117 of the Health and Safety 

Code, is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III 

disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law. 

12.5.1.2 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing 

from those indicated. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 39 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

12.5.1.3 Unknown physical conditions at the Project Site of any 

unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered 

and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided 

for in the Contract Documents. 

12.5.2 The District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that 

the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause 

a decrease or increase in Developer’s cost of, or the time required for, 

performance of any part of the Work, shall issue a Change Order under the 

procedures described herein. 

12.5.3 In the event that a dispute arises between District and Developer 

whether the conditions materially differ or cause a decrease or increase in 

Developer’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, 

Developer shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided 

for by the Contract Documents, but shall proceed with all work to be performed 

under the Contract Documents.  Developer shall retain any and all rights 

provided either by the Contract Documents or by law that pertain to the 

resolution of disputes and protests. 

13. Insurance and Bonds 

13.1 Developer’s Insurance   

Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated in the Facilities 

Lease. 

13.2 Contract Security – Bonds 

13.2.1 Developer shall furnish two surety bonds issued by a California 

admitted surety insurer as follows: 

13.2.1.1 Performance Bond   

A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 

Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for faithful performance of the 

Contract Documents. 

13.2.1.2 Payment Bond   

A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for payment of persons 

performing labor and/or furnishing materials in connection with this 

Contract. 

13.2.2 Cost of bonds shall be included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

13.2.3 All bonds related to this Project shall be in the forms set forth in these 

Contract Documents and shall comply with all requirements of the Contract 

Documents, including, without limitation, the bond forms. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 40 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

14. Warranty/Guarantee/Indemnity 

14.1 Warranty/Guarantee 

14.1.1 Developer shall obtain and preserve for the benefit of the District, 

manufacturer’s warranties on materials, fixtures, and equipment incorporated 

into the Work. 

14.1.2 In addition to guarantees and warranties required elsewhere, 

Developer shall, and hereby does guarantee and warrant all Work furnished on 

the job against all defects for a period of TWO (2) years after the later of the 

following dates, unless a longer period is provided for in the Contract 

Documents:   

14.1.2.1 The acceptance by the District’s governing board of the Work, 

subject to these General Conditions, or  

14.1.2.2 The date that commissioning for the Project, if any, was 

completed.   

14.1.3 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications, 

Developer shall repair or replace any and all of that Work, together with any 

other Work that may be displaced in so doing, that may prove defective in 

workmanship and/or materials within a TWO (2) year period from date of 

completion as defined above, unless a longer period is provided for in the 

Contract Documents, without expense whatsoever to District.   

14.1.4 In the event of failure of Developer and/or Surety to commence and 

pursue with diligence said replacements or repairs within ten (10) days after 

being notified in writing, Developer and Surety hereby acknowledge and agree 

that District is authorized to proceed to have defects repaired and made good 

at expense of Developer and/or Surety who hereby agree to pay costs and 

charges therefore immediately on demand.   

14.1.5 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications 

and if in the opinion of District said defective work creates a dangerous 

condition or requires immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss 

to District or to prevent interruption of District operations, District will attempt 

to give the notice required above.  If Developer or Surety cannot be contacted 

or neither complies with District's request for correction within a reasonable 

time as determined by District, District may, notwithstanding the above 

provision, proceed to make any and all corrections and/or provide attentions 

the District believes are necessary.  The costs of correction or attention shall 

be charged against Developer and Surety of the guarantees or warranties 

provided in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract. 

14.1.6 The above provisions do not in any way limit the guarantees or 

warranties on any items for which a longer guarantee or warranty is specified 

or on any items for which a manufacturer gives a guarantee or warranty for a 

longer period.  Developer shall furnish to District all appropriate guarantee or 

warranty certificates as indicated in the Specifications or upon request by 

District. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 41 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

14.1.7 Nothing herein shall limit any other rights or remedies available to 

District. 

14.2 Indemnity   

Developer shall indemnify the District as indicated in the Facilities Lease. 

15. Time 

15.1 Notice to Proceed with Construction 

15.1.1 District may issue a Notice to Proceed with Construction (“NTP 2”) 

within ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award after Guaranteed 

Maximum Price.  Once Developer has received the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction, Developer shall complete the Work within the period of time 

indicated in the Contract Documents. 

15.1.2 In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction beyond ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice 

of Award after Guaranteed Maximum Price, it is expressly understood that with 

reasonable notice to Developer, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction.  It is further expressly understood by Developer 

that Developer shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as 

a result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction. 

15.1.3 If Developer believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction will cause a hardship to Developer, Developer may 

terminate the Contract.  Developer’s termination due to a postponement shall 

be by written notice to District within ten (10) days after receipt by Developer 

of District's notice of postponement.  It is further understood by Developer that 

in the event that Developer terminates the Contract as a result of 

postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay 

Developer for the Work that Developer had performed at the time of notification 

of postponement.   

15.2 Computation of Time / Adverse Weather 

15.2.1 Developer will only be allowed a time extension for Adverse Weather 

conditions if requested by Developer in compliance with the time extension 

request procedures herein and only if all of the following conditions are met: 

15.2.1.1 The weather conditions constitute Adverse Weather, as 

defined herein; 

15.2.1.2 Developer can verify that the Adverse Weather caused delays 

in excess of five (5) hours of the indicated labor required to complete 

the scheduled tasks of Work on the day affected by the Adverse 

Weather; 

15.2.1.3 Developer’s crew is dismissed as a result of the Adverse 

Weather;  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 42 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

15.2.1.4 Said delay adversely affect the critical path in the 

Construction Schedule; and 

15.2.2 The number of days of Adverse Weather exceeds the following 

parameters: (To Be Revised w/ Addendum) 

January    July    

February    August    

March    September    

April    October    

May    November    

June    December    

 

15.2.3 If the aforementioned conditions are met, a non-compensable day-for-

day extension will only be allowed for those days in excess of those indicated 

herein. 

15.2.4 Developer shall work seven (7) days per week, if necessary, 

irrespective of inclement weather, to maintain access and the Construction 

Schedule, and to protect the Work under construction from the effects of 

Adverse Weather, all at no further cost to the District. 

15.2.5 The Contract Time has been determined with consideration given to the 

average climate weather conditions prevailing in the County in which the 

Project is located.  

15.3 Hours of Work 

15.3.1 Sufficient Forces 

Developer and Subcontractors shall continuously furnish sufficient and 

competent work forces with the required levels of familiarity with the Project 

and skill, training and experience to ensure the prosecution of the Work in 

accordance with the Construction Schedule. 

15.3.2 Performance During Working Hours 

Work shall be performed during regular working hours as permitted by the 

appropriate governmental agency except that in the event of an emergency, or 

when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, Work 

may be performed outside of regular working hours with the advance written 

consent of the District and approval of any required governmental agencies.   

15.3.3 No Work during State Testing 

Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 

coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, 

not performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or 

Federally-required tests.  The District or District’s Representative will provide 

Developer with a schedule of test dates concurrent with the District’s issuance 

of the Notice to Proceed with Construction, or as soon as test dates are made 

available to the District.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 43 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

15.4 Progress and Completion 

15.4.1 Time of the Essence 

Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence to the Contract 

Documents.  By executing the Facilities Lease, Developer confirms that the 

Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 

15.4.2 No Commencement Without Insurance or Bonds 

Developer shall not commence operations on the Project or elsewhere prior to 

the effective date of insurance and bonds.  The date of commencement of the 

Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such insurance or bonds.  If 

Developer commences Work without insurance and bonds, all Work is 

performed at Developer’s peril and shall not be compensable until and unless 

Developer secures bonds and insurance pursuant to the terms of the Contract 

Documents and subject to District claim for damages. 

15.5 Schedule 

Developer shall provide to District, Construction Manager, and Architect a schedule in 

conformance with the Contract Documents and as required in these Construction 

Provisions.  

15.6 Expeditious Completion 

Developer shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve 

Completion within the Contract Time. 

16. Extensions of Time – Liquidated Damages, Excusable Delays 

16.1 Liquidated Damages 

Developer and District hereby agree that the exact amount of damages for failure to 

complete the Work within the time specified is extremely difficult or impossible to 

determine.  If the Work is not completed within the time specified in the Contract 

Documents, it is understood that the District will suffer damage.  It being impractical 

and unfeasible to determine the amount of actual damage, it is agreed Developer shall 

pay to District as fixed and liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount set 

forth in the Facilities Lease for each calendar day of delay in Completion.  Developer 

and its Surety shall be liable for the amount thereof pursuant to Government Code 

section 53069.85. 

16.2 Excusable Delay 

16.2.1 Developer shall not be charged for liquidated damages because of any 

delays in completion of the Work which are not the fault of Developer or its 

Subcontractors, including without limitation acts of God as defined in Public 

Contract Code section 7105, acts of enemy, epidemics, and quarantine 

restrictions.  Developer shall, within five (5) calendar days of beginning of any 

delay, notify District in writing of causes of delay including documentation and 

facts explaining the delay and the direct correlation between the cause and 

effect (“Notice of Delay”).  If Developer fails to provide its written Notice of 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 44 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Delay within this timeframe, Developer waives, releases, and discharges any 

right to assert or claim any entitlement to an adjustment to the Contract Price 

and/or the Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the asserted 

delay. District shall review the facts and extent of any delay and shall grant 

extension(s) of time for completing Work when, in its judgment, the findings of 

fact justify an extension.  Extension(s) of time shall apply only to that portion 

of Work affected by delay, and shall not apply to other portions of Work not so 

affected.  An extension of time may only be granted if Developer has timely 

submitted the Construction Schedule as required herein. 

16.2.2 Developer’s Notice of Delay and request for a time extension pursuant 

to subparagraph 16.2 is a condition precedent to Developer’s submittal of 

and/or entitlement to a claim pursuant to Article 25 of these Construction 

Provisions.  Developer shall notify the District pursuant to the claims provisions 

in these Construction Provisions of any anticipated delay and its cause.  

Following submission of a claim, the District may determine whether the delay 

is to be considered avoidable or unavoidable, how long it continues, and to 

what extent the prosecution and completion of the Work might be delayed 

thereby. 

16.2.3 In the event Developer requests an extension of Contract Time for 

unavoidable delay as set forth in subparagraph 16.2.1, such request shall be 

submitted in accordance with the provisions in the Contract Documents 

governing changes in Work, including without limitation, the time requirements 

set forth in subsection 17.5, below.  When requesting time, requests must be 

submitted with full justification and documentation.  If Developer fails to submit 

justification, it waives its right to a time extension at a later date.  Such 

justification must be based on the official Construction Schedule as updated at 

the time of occurrence of the delay or execution of Work related to any changes 

to the Scope of Work.  Any request for a time extension must include the 

following information as support, without limitation: 

16.2.3.1 The duration of the activity relating to the changes in the 

Work and the resources (manpower, equipment, material, etc.) required 

to perform the activities within the stated duration. 

16.2.3.2 Specific logical ties to the Contract Schedule for the proposed 

changes and/or delay showing the activity/activities in the Construction 

Schedule that are affected by the change and/or delay.  In particular, 

Developer must show an actual impact to the schedule, after making a 

good faith effort to mitigate the delay by rescheduling the work, by 

providing an analysis of the schedule (“Time Impact Analysis”).  Such 

Time Impact Analysis shall describe in detail the cause and effect of the 

delay and the impact on the critical dates in the Project schedule.  (This 

information must be provided for any portion of any delay of seven (7) 

days or more.) 

16.2.3.3 A recovery schedule must be submitted within twenty (20) 

calendar days of written notification to the District of causes of delay. 

16.2.4 Developer must comply with requirements in subsection 16.2 for a 

Notice of Delay and supporting justification notwithstanding Developer 

contends the specific delay period is unknown and continuing. When submitting 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 45 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

a Notice of Delay and supporting justification, Developer must provide an 

estimated delay duration to critical path activities at the time the Notice of 

Delay and supporting justification is required to be submitted. If Developer 

contends the delaying event(s) are continuing, Developer must update monthly 

the estimated delay period with supporting justification.  

16.2.5   Developer’s failure to timely submit a written Notice of Delay and/or 

provide the justification required in subparagraph 16.2 shall constitute 

Developer’s waiver of any right to later submit a Proposed Change Order or 

pursue a Claim on the circumstances giving rise to the request, or to later 

pursue any additional money or time extensions in any manner related to that 

issue, regardless of the merits. Developer will not have satisfied a condition 

precedent or exhausted administrative remedies required to show entitlement 

to a Contract Time adjustment. Developer acknowledges that these written 

notices and justification requirements are critically important to District’s Work, 

Project management, and evaluating potential options and alternatives to 

implement mitigation efforts to reduce or eliminate additional Project costs and 

delays. 

16.3 No Additional Compensation for Delays within Developer’s Control 

16.3.1 Developer is aware that governmental agencies and utilities, including, 

without limitation, the Division of the State Architect, the Department of 

General Services, gas companies, electrical utility companies, water districts, 

and other agencies may have to approve Developer-prepared drawings or 

approve a proposed installation.  Accordingly, Developer has included in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price, time for possible review of its drawings and for 

reasonable delays and damages that may be caused by such agencies, 

including without limitation delays due to California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) compliance.  Thus, Developer is not entitled to make a claim for 

damages for delays arising from the review of Developer’s drawings. 

16.3.2 Developer shall only be entitled to compensation for delay when all of 

the following conditions are met: 

16.3.2.1 The District is responsible for the delay; 

16.3.2.2 The delay is unreasonable under the circumstances involved; 

16.3.2.3 The delay was not within the contemplation of the District 

and Developer; 

16.3.2.4 The delay could not have been avoided or mitigated by 

reasonable diligence; and 

16.3.2.5 Developer timely complies with the claims procedure of the 

Contract Documents.  

16.3.3 Where a change in the Work extends the Contract Time, Developer may 

request and recover additional, actual direct costs, provided that Developer can 

demonstrate such additional costs are: 

16.3.3.1 Actually incurred performing the Work; 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 46 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

16.3.3.2 Not compensated by the Markup allowed; and 

16.3.3.3 Directly result from the extended Contract Time. 

16.3.4 Contractor shall comply with all required procedures, documentation 

and time requirements in the Contract Documents.  Contractor may not seek 

or recover such costs using formulas (e.g. Eichleay, labor factors). 

16.4 Float or Slack in the Schedule 

Float or slack is the amount of time between the early start date and the late start 

date, or the early finish date and the late finish date, of any of the activities in the 

schedule.  Float or slack is not for the exclusive use of or benefit of either the District 

or Developer, but its use shall be determined solely by the District.  

17. Changes in the Work 

17.1 No Changes without Prior Authorization 

17.1.1 There shall be no change whatsoever in the Drawings, Specifications, 

or in the Work without an executed Change Order or a written Construction 

Change Directive authorized by the District as herein provided.  District shall 

not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, 

additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless 

the District's governing board has authorized the same and the cost thereof 

has been approved in writing by Change Order or Construction Change 

Directive in advance of the changed Work being performed.  No extension of 

time for performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder unless a request 

for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and 

such time duly adjusted and approved in writing in the Change Order or 

Construction Change Directive.  The provisions of the Contract Documents shall 

apply to all such changes, additions, and omissions with the same effect as if 

originally embodied in the Drawings and Specifications. 

17.1.2 Developer shall perform immediately all work that has been authorized 

by a fully executed Change Order or Construction Change Directive.  Developer 

shall be fully responsible for any and all delays and/or expenses caused by 

Developer's failure to expeditiously perform this Work. 

17.1.3 Should any Change Order result in an increase in the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price or extend the Contract Time, the cost of or length of extension 

in that Change Order shall be agreed to, in writing, by the District in advance 

of the work by Developer.  In the event that Developer proceeds with any 

change in Work without a Change Order executed by the District or 

Construction Change Directive, Developer waives any claim of additional 

compensation or time for that additional work.  Under no circumstances shall 

Developer be entitled to any claim of additional compensation or time not 

expressly requested by Developer in a Proposed Change Order or approved by 

District in an executed Change Order. 

17.1.4   A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 

effective when approved by the Board, notwithstanding that Developer has 

not signed it.  A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 47 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

effective without Developer’s signature provided District indicates it as a 

“Unilateral Change Order”.  Any dispute as to the adjustment in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, if any, of the Unilateral Change 

Order shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 

provisions herein. 

17.1.5 Developer understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the reason for 

District authorization is so that District may have an opportunity to analyze the 

Work and decide whether the District shall proceed with the Change Order or 

alter the Project so that a change in Work becomes unnecessary. 

17.2 Architect Authority 

The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any 

adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, or an extension of the Contract Time, 

or a change that is inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.  These 

changes shall be effected by written Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or 

by Architect’s response(s) to RFI(s), or by Architect’s Supplemental Instructions 

(“ASI”). 

17.3 Change Orders 

17.3.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared and issued by the 

District and/or the Architect and signed by the District (as authorized by the 

District’s Board of Education), Developer, the Architect, and approved by the 

Project Inspector (if necessary) and DSA (if necessary), stating their agreement 

regarding all of the following: 

17.3.1.1 A description of a change in the Work. 

17.3.1.2 The amount of the adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price, if any; and 

17.3.1.3 The extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any. 

17.4 Proposed Change Order 

17.4.1 Definition of Proposed Change Order 

A Proposed Change Order (“PCO”) is a written request prepared by the 

Developer requesting that the District and the Architect issue a Change Order 

based upon a proposed change to the Work, to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

and/or to the Contract Time. 

17.4.2 Changes in Guaranteed Maximum Price 

A PCO shall include breakdowns and backup documentation pursuant to the 

provisions herein and sufficient, in the District’s judgment, to validate any 

change in Guaranteed Maximum Price.  In no case shall Developer or any of its 

Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional compensation for 

Change Order Work. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 48 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

17.4.3 Changes in Time 

A PCO shall also include any changes in time required to complete the Project.  

Any additional time requested shall not be the number of days to make the 

proposed change, but must be based upon the impact to the critical path in the 

Construction Schedule as defined in the Contract Documents.  Developer shall 

justify the proposed change in time by submittal of a schedule analysis that 

accurately shows the actual impact, if known, or the estimated impact if 

unknown, of the change on the critical path of the Construction Schedule (“Time 

Impact Analysis”).  If Developer fails to request a time extension in a PCO, 

including the Time Impact Analysis, and/or fails to comply with these 

Construction Provisions including, without limitation, Articles 15, 16, or 17, then 

Developer is thereafter precluded from requesting, and waives any right to 

request, an adjustment to the Contract Time or Contract Price relating to the 

subject matter of the PCO.  In no case shall Developer or any of its 

Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional time for Change 

Order Work.  A PCO that leaves the amount of time requested blank, or states 

that such time requested is “to be determined,” or otherwise not specifically 

identified, is not permitted and shall also constitute a waiver of any right to 

request additional time and/or claim a delay.   

17.4.4 Unknown and/or Unforeseen Conditions 

If there is an Allowance, then Developer must submit a Request for Allowance 

Expenditure Directive, including supporting documentation as described below, 

to receive authorization for the release of funds from the Allowance.  Allowance 

Expenditure Directives shall be based on Developer’s costs, without overhead 

and profit, for products, delivery, installation, labor, insurance, payroll, taxes, 

bonding and equipment rental will be included in Allowance Expenditure 

Directive authorizing expenditure of funds from this Allowance.  No overhead 

and profit shall be added to the Allowance Expenditure Directive.  If cost of the 

unforeseen condition(s) exceed the Allowance, and Developer submits a PCO 

for amounts in excess of the Allowance requesting an increase in Guaranteed 

Maximum Price and/or Contract Time that is based at least partially on 

Developer’s assertion that Developer has encountered unknown and/or 

unforeseen condition(s) on the Project, then Developer shall base the PCO on 

provable information that, beyond a reasonable doubt and to the District’s 

satisfaction, demonstrates that the unknown and/or unforeseen condition(s) 

were actually unknown and/or unforeseen.  If not, the District shall deny the 

PCO as unsubstantiated, and Developer shall complete the Project without any 

increase in Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time based on that 

PCO. 

17.4.5 Time to Submit Proposed Change Order 

Developer shall submit its PCO within five (5) working days of the date 

Developer discovers, or reasonably should have discovered, the circumstances 

giving rise to the PCO, unless additional time to submit a PCO is granted in 

writing by the District.  Time is of the essence in Developer’s submission of 

PCOs so that the District can promptly investigate the basis for the PCO.  

Accordingly, if Developer fails to submit its PCO within this timeframe, 

Developer waives, releases, and discharges any right to assert or claim any 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 49 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

entitlement to an adjustment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or 

Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the PCO. 

17.4.6 Proposed Change Order Certification 

In submitting a PCO, Developer certifies and affirms that the cost and/or time 

request is submitted in good faith, that the cost and/or time request is accurate 

and in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, and 

Developer submits the cost and/or request for extension of time recognizing 

the significant civil penalties and treble damages which follow from making a 

false claim or presenting a false claim under Government Code section 12650 

et seq. 

It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 

includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, 

resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 

to the Project including, without limitation, cumulative impacts.  Developer is 

not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs.  

Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 

17.5 Format for Proposed Change Order 

17.5.1 The following format shall be used as applicable by the District and 

Developer (e.g. Change Orders, PCOs) to communicate proposed additions 

and/or deductions to the Contract, supported by attached documentation. Any 

spaces left blank will be deemed no change to cost or time. 

 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach suppliers’ invoice or itemized quantity 

and unit cost plus sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 

Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 

labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 

etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Subtotal   

(e) Add Overhead and Profit for any and all tiers of 

Subcontractors, the total not to exceed ten percent 

(10%) of Item (d) 

  

(f) Subtotal   

(g) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 

(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(h) Subtotal   

(i) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 

exceed _____ percent (___%) of Item (h) 

  

(j) Subtotal   

(k) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed _____ 

percent (___%) of Item (j) 

  

(l) TOTAL   

    

(m) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted) ____ Calendar Days 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 50 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

 

 WORK PERFORMED BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus 

sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 

Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 

labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 

etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 

(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(e) Subtotal   

(f) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 

exceed _____ percent (___%) of Item (e) 

  

(g) Subtotal   

(h) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed _____ 

percent (___%) of Item (g) 

  

(i) TOTAL   

   

(j) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted) ____ Calendar Days 

 

17.5.2 Labor  

Developer shall be compensated for the costs of labor actually and directly 

utilized in the performance of the Work.  Such labor costs shall be the actual 

cost, use of any formulas (e.g. labor factors) is not allowed, not to exceed 

prevailing wage rates in the locality of the Site and shall be in the labor 

classification(s) necessary for the performance of the Work, fully Burdened.  

Labor costs shall exclude costs incurred by the Developer in preparing 

estimate(s) of the costs of the change in the Work, in the maintenance of 

records relating to the costs of the change in the Work, coordination and 

assembly of materials and information relating to the change in the Work or 

performance thereof, or the supervision and other overhead and general 

conditions costs associated with the change in the Work or performance 

thereof, including but not limited to the cost for the job superintendent. If 

applicable, District will pay Developer the reasonable costs for room and board, 

supported with appropriate backup documentation, without markup for profit 

or overhead as provided by U.S. General Services Administration per diem rates 

for California lodging, meals and incidentals, https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-

book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup. 

17.5.3 Materials  

Developer shall be compensated for the costs of materials necessarily and 

actually used or consumed in connection with the performance of the change 

in the Work.  Costs of materials may include reasonable costs of transportation 

from a source closest to the Site of the Work and delivery to the Site. If 

discounts by material suppliers are available for materials necessarily used in 

the performance of the change in the Work, they shall be credited to the 

District.  If materials necessarily used in the performance of the change in the 

Work are obtained from a supplier or source owned in whole or in part by 

Developer, compensation therefor shall not exceed the current wholesale price 

https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup


 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 51 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

for such materials.  If, in the reasonable opinion of the District, the costs 

asserted by Developer  for materials in connection with any change in the Work 

are excessive, or if Developer fails to provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 

costs of such materials from its supplier or vendor of the same, the costs of 

such materials and the District’s obligation to pay for the same shall be limited 

to the then lowest wholesale price at which similar materials are available in 

the quantities required to perform the change in the Work.  The District may 

elect to furnish materials for the change in the Work, in which event Developer 

shall not be compensated for the costs of furnishing such materials or any 

mark-up thereon. 

17.5.4 Equipment   

As a precondition to the District’s duty to pay for Equipment rental or loading 

and transportation, Developer shall provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 

costs of Equipment from the supplier, vendor or rental agency of same.  

Developer shall be compensated for the actual cost of the necessary and direct 

use of Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work.  Use of 

Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work shall be compensated 

in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. Rental time for Equipment moved by its 

own power shall include time required to move the Equipment to the site of the 

Work from the nearest available rental source of the same.  If Equipment is not 

moved to the Site by its own power, Developer will be compensated for the 

loading and transportation costs in lieu of rental time.  The foregoing 

notwithstanding, neither moving time or loading and transportation time shall 

be allowed if the Equipment is used for performance of any portion of the Work 

other than the change in the Work.  Unless prior approval in writing is obtained 

by Developer from the Architect, the Project Inspector, the Construction 

Manager and the District, no costs or compensation shall be allowed for time 

while Construction Equipment is inoperative, idle or on standby, for any reason.  

Developer shall not be entitled to an allowance or any other compensation for 

Equipment or tools used in the performance of a change in the Work where the 

Equipment or tools have a replacement value of $500.00 or less.  Equipment 

costs claimed by Developer in connection with the performance of any Work 

shall not exceed rental rates established by distributors or construction 

equipment rental agencies in the locality of the Site; any costs asserted which 

exceed such rental rates shall not be allowed or paid.  Unless otherwise 

specifically approved in writing by the Architect, the Project Inspector, 

Construction Manager and the District, the allowable rate for the use of 

Equipment in connection with the Work shall constitute full compensation to 

Developer for the cost of rental, fuel, power, oil, lubrication, supplies, necessary 

attachments, repairs or maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, 

insurance, labor (exclusive of labor costs of the Equipment operator), and any 

and all other costs incurred by Developer incidental to the use of the 

Equipment. 

17.5.5  General Conditions Cost.   

The phrase “General Conditions Cost” shall mean, other than expressly limited 

or excluded herein, the costs of Developer during the construction phase, 

including but not limited to: payroll costs for project manager for Work 

conducted at the Site, payroll costs for the superintendent and full-time general 

foremen, workers not included as direct labor costs engaged in support 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 52 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

functions (e.g., loading/unloading, clean-up), costs of offices and temporary 

facilities including office materials, office supplies, office equipment, minor 

expenses, utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the Site, 

costs of consultants not in the direct employ of Developer or Subcontractors, 

and fees for permits and licenses. 

17.5.6 Overhead and Profit.   

The phrase “Overhead and Profit” shall include field and office supervisors and 

assistants, watchperson, use of small tools, consumable, insurance other than 

construction bonds and insurance required herein, and general conditions, field 

and home office expenses. 

17.6 Change Order Certification 

17.6.1 All Change Orders and PCOs must include the following certification by 

Developer, either in the form specifically or incorporated by this reference: 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, 

and to the Guaranteed Maximum Price specified for each item and as to the 

extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire Work as stated 

herein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, and service, and perform all 

work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 

stated herein.  Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 

Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a 

violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 

12650 et seq. and U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. § 1001.  It is understood that 

the changes herein to the Contract Documents shall only be effective when 

approved by the governing board of the District. 

It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 

includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, 

resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 

to the Project, including, without limitation, cumulative impacts.  Developer is 

not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs.  

Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 

17.6.2 Accord and Satisfaction: Developer’s execution of any Change Order 

shall constitute a full accord and satisfaction, and release, of all Developer (and 

if applicable, Subcontractor) claims for additional time, money or other relief 

arising from or relating to the subject matter of the change including, without 

limitation, impacts of all types, cumulative impacts, inefficiency, overtime, 

delay and any other type of claim. 

17.7 Determination of Change Order Cost 

17.7.1 The amount of the increase or decrease in the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price from a Change Order, if any, shall be determined in one or more of the 

following ways as applicable to a specific situation and at the District’s 

discretion: 

17.7.1.1 District acceptance of a COR or PCO. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 53 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

17.7.1.2 By amounts contained in Developer’s schedule of values, if 

applicable. 

17.7.1.3 By agreement between District and Developer. 

17.8 Deductive Change Orders 

All deductive Change Order(s) must be prepared pursuant to the provisions herein.  

Where a portion of the Work is deleted from the Contract, the reasonable value of the 

deleted work less the value of any new work performed shall be considered the 

appropriate deduction.  The value submitted on the Schedule of Values shall be used 

to calculate the credit amount unless the bid documentation is being held in escrow as 

part of the Contract Documents.  Unit Prices, if any, may be used in District’s discretion 

in calculating reasonable value.  If Developer offers a proposed amount for a deductive 

Change Order(s) for work performed, Developer shall include a credit for total profit 

and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work with the Change 

Order(s).  If Subcontractor work is involved, Subcontractors shall also include a credit 

for total profit and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work 

with the Change Order(s).  Any deviation from this provision shall not be allowed. 

17.9 Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s) 

If Developer’s Proposal includes proposal(s) for Alternate Bid Item(s), during 

Developer’s performance of the Work, the District may elect to add or delete any such 

Alternate Bid Item(s) if not included in the Contract at the time the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price is agreed upon.  If the District elects to add or delete Alternate Bid 

Item(s) after Contract award, the cost or credit for such Alternate Bid Item(s) shall be 

as set forth in the Proposal unless the parties agree to a different price and the Contract 

Time shall be adjusted by the number of days allocated in the Contract Documents.  If 

days are not allocated in the Contract Documents, the Contract Time shall be equitably 

adjusted. 

17.10 Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds 

For purposes of determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to 

the Work hereunder, all trade discounts, rebates, refunds, and all returns from the 

sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue and be credited to Developer, 

Developer shall make provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns 

may be secured, and the amount thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of Developer’s 

cost in determining the actual cost of construction for purposes of any change, 

addition, or omission in the Work as provided herein. 

17.11 Construction Change Directives 

17.11.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared and 

issued by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and 

signed by the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work.  The 

District may, as provided by law, by Construction Change Directive and without 

invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work consisting of additions, 

deletions, or other revisions.  The adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price or Contract Time, if any, is subject to the provision of this section 

regarding Changes in the Work.  If all or a portion of the Project is being funded 

by funds requiring approval by the State Allocation Board (“SAB”), these 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 54 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

revisions may be subject to compensation once approval of same is received 

and funded by the SAB, and funds are released by the Office of Public School 

Construction (“OPSC”).  Any dispute as to the adjustment of the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price, if any, of the Construction Change Directive or timing of 

payment shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 

provisions herein. 

17.11.2 The District may issue a Construction Change Directive in the absence 

of agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 

17.12 Force Account Directives   

17.12.1 When work, for which a definite price has not been agreed upon in 

advance, is to be paid for on a force account basis, all direct costs necessarily 

incurred and paid by Developer for labor, material, and equipment used in the 

performance of that Work, shall be subject to the approval of the District and 

compensation will be determined as set forth herein. 

17.12.2 District will issue a Force Account Directive to proceed with the Work 

on a force account basis, and a not-to-exceed budget will be established by the 

District. 

17.12.3 All requirements regarding direct cost for labor, labor burden, 

material, equipment, and markups on direct costs for overhead and profit 

described in this section shall apply to Force Account Directives.  However, the 

District will only pay for actual costs verified in the field by the District or its 

authorized representative(s) on a daily basis.  

17.12.4 Developer shall be responsible for all costs related to the 

administration of Force Account Directives.  The markup for overheard and 

profit for Developer modifications shall be full compensation to Developer to 

administer Force Account Directives, and Developer shall not be entitled to 

separately recover additional amounts for overhead and/or profit.  

17.12.5 Developer shall notify the District or its authorized representative(s) 

at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to proceeding with any of the force account 

work.  Furthermore, Developer shall notify the District when it has consumed 

eighty percent (80%) of the budget, and shall not exceed the budget unless 

specifically authorized in writing by the District.  Developer will not be 

compensated for force account work in the event that Developer fails to timely 

notify the District regarding the commencement of force account work, or 

exceeding the force account budget.   

17.12.6 Developer shall diligently proceed with the work, and on a daily basis, 

submit a daily force account report using the Daily Force Account Report form 

no later than 5:00 p.m. each day.  The report shall contain a detailed 

itemization of the daily labor, material, and equipment used on the force 

account work only.  The names of the individuals performing the force account 

work shall be included on the daily force account reports.  The type and model 

of equipment shall be identified and listed.  The IOR or District representative 

will review the information contained in the reports, and sign the reports no 

later than the next work day, and return a copy of the report to Developer for 

its records.  The District will not sign, nor will Developer receive compensation 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 55 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

for, work the District cannot verify.  Developer will provide a weekly force 

account summary indicating the status of each Force Account Directive in terms 

of percent complete of the not-to-exceed budget and the estimated percent 

complete of the work 

17.12.7 In the event Developer and the District reach a written agreement on 

a set cost for the work while the work is proceeding based on a Force Account 

Directive, Developer’s signed daily force account reports shall be discontinued 

and all previously signed reports shall be invalid. 

17.13 Price Request 

17.13.1 Definition of Price Request 

A Price Request is a written request prepared by the Architect or Construction 

Manager requesting Developer submit to the District, the Construction Manager 

and the Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change in the Work 

on the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Contract Time. 

17.13.2 Scope of Price Request 

A Price Request shall contain adequate information, including any necessary 

Drawings and Specifications, to enable Developer to provide the cost 

breakdowns required.  Developer shall not be entitled to any additional 

compensation for preparing a response to a Price Request, whether ultimately 

accepted or not. 

17.14 Accounting Records 

With respect to portions of the Work performed by Change Orders and Construction 

Change Directives, Developer shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records 

satisfactory to the District, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports as provided 

in these General Conditions, which shall be available to the District on the same terms 

as any other books and records Developer is required to maintain under the Contract 

Documents.  Such records shall include without limitation hourly records for Labor and 

Equipment and itemized records of materials and Equipment used that day in 

connection with the performance of any Work.  All records maintained hereunder shall 

be subject to inspection, review and/or reproduction by the District, the Construction 

Manager and the Architect or the Project Inspector upon request.  In the event that 

Developer fails or refuses, for any reason, to maintain or make available for inspection, 

review and/or reproduction such records, the District’s determination of the extent of 

adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be final, conclusive, dispositive 

and binding upon Developer. 

17.15 Notice Required 

If Developer desires to make a claim for an increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

or any extension in the Contract Time for completion, it shall notify the District 

pursuant to the provisions herein, including the Article on Claims and Disputes.  No 

claim shall be considered unless made in accordance with this subparagraph.  

Developer shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment may not 

have been agreed upon.  Any change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or extension 

of the Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by a Change Order. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 56 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

17.16 Applicability to Subcontractors 

Any requirements under this Article shall be equally applicable to Change Orders or 

Construction Change Directives issued to Subcontractors by Developer to the extent 

required by the Contract Documents. 

17.17 Alteration to Change Order Language 

Developer shall not alter Change Orders or reserve time in Change Orders.  Change 

Orders altered in violation of this provision, if in conflict with the terms set forth herein, 

shall be construed in accordance with the terms set forth herein.  Developer shall 

execute finalized Change Orders and proceed under the provisions herein with proper 

notice. 

17.18 Failure of Developer to Execute Change Order  

Developer shall be in default of the Contract Documents if Developer fails to execute 

a Change Order when Developer agrees with the addition and/or deletion of the Work 

in that Change Order. 

18. Requests For Information 

18.1 Any Request for Information shall reference all applicable Contract 

Document(s), including Specification section(s), detail(s), page number(s), drawing 

number(s), and sheet number(s), etc.  Developer shall make suggestions and 

interpretations of the issue raised by each Request for Information.  A Request for 

Information cannot modify the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Contract Time, or the 

Contract Documents. 

18.2 Developer may be responsible for any costs incurred for professional services 

that District may deduct from any amounts owing to Developer, if a Request for 

Information requests an interpretation or decision of a matter where the information 

sought is equally available to the party making the request.  District may deduct from 

and/or invoice Developer for professional services arising therefrom. 

19. Payments 

19.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 

As compensation for Developer’s construction of the Project, the District shall pay 

Developer pursuant to the terms of Exhibit C to the Facilities Lease.  This is the total 

amount payable by the District to Developer for performance of the Work under the 

Contract. 

19.2 Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 

19.2.1 Procedure for Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 

19.2.1.1 Not before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during 

the progress of the Work, Developer shall submit to the District and the 

Architect an itemized Application for Payment for operations completed 

in accordance with the Schedule of Values.  Such application shall be on 

a form approved by the District and shall be notarized, if required, and 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 57 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

supported by the following or each portion thereof unless waived by the 

District in writing: 

19.2.1.1.1 The amount paid to the date of the Application for 

Payment to Developer, to all its Subcontractors, and all others 

furnishing labor, material, or equipment under the Contract 

Documents. 

19.2.1.1.2 The amount being requested under the Application 

for Payment by Developer on its own behalf and separately 

stating the amount requested on behalf of each of the 

Subcontractors and all others furnishing labor, material, and 

equipment under the Contract Documents. 

19.2.1.1.3 The balance that will be due to each of such entities 

after said payment is made. 

19.2.1.1.4 A certification that the As-Built Drawings and 

annotated Specifications are current. 

19.2.1.1.5 Itemized breakdown of work done for the purpose of 

requesting partial payment. 

19.2.1.1.6 An updated and acceptable construction schedule in 

conformance with the provisions herein. 

19.2.1.1.7 The additions to and subtractions from the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time. 

19.2.1.1.8 A total of the retentions held. 

19.2.1.1.9 Material invoices, evidence of equipment purchases, 

rentals, and other support and details of cost as the District may 

require from time to time.  

19.2.1.1.10 The percentage of completion of Developer’s Work 

by line item. 

19.2.1.1.11 Schedule of Values updated from the preceding 

Application for Payment. 

19.2.1.1.12 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver 

and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with 

Civil Code section 8132 from Developer and each subcontractor 

of any tier and supplier to be paid from the current Tenant 

Improvement Payment. 

19.2.1.1.13 A duly completed and executed unconditional 

waiver and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment 

compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from Developer and each 

subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the 

previous Tenant Improvement Payment submitted 60 days prior; 

and 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 58 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.2.1.1.14 A certification by Developer of the following: 

Developer warrants title to all Work performed as of the date of 

this payment application and that all such Work has been 

completed in accordance with the Contract Documents for the 

Project.  Developer further warrants that all Work performed as 

of the date of this payment application is free and clear of liens, 

claims, security interests, or encumbrances in favor of 

Developer, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, 

workers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason 

of having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to 

the Work, except those of which the District has been informed. 

Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 

Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and 

may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under 

Government Code section 12650 et seq. 

19.2.1.1.15 Developer shall be subject to the False Claims Act 

set forth in Government Code section 12650 et seq. for 

information provided with any Application for Tenant 

Improvement Payments. 

19.2.1.1.16 All remaining certified payroll records (“CPR(s)”) 

for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 

employed by Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection 

with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment.  As 

indicated herein, the District shall not make any payment to 

Developer until: 

19.2.1.1.16.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 

provide electronic CPRs directly to the DIR on no less than 

every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 

30 days after the final day of Work performed on the 

Project for any journeyman, apprentice, worker or other 

employee was employed in connection with the Work, or 

within ten (10) days of any request by the District or the 

DIR to the requesting entity; and  

19.2.1.1.16.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its 

Subcontractor(s) providing CPRs in a timely manner may 

directly delay Developer’s payment. 

19.2.1.1.17 Applications received after June 20th will not be 

paid until the second week of July and applications received after 

December 12th will not be paid until the first week of January. 

19.2.2 Prerequisites for Tenant Improvement Payments 

19.2.2.1 First Payment Request   

The following items, if applicable, must be completed before the District 

will accept and/or process Developer's first payment request: 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 59 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.2.2.1.1 Installation of the Project sign. 

19.2.2.1.2 Installation of field office. 

19.2.2.1.3 Installation of temporary facilities and fencing. 

19.2.2.1.4 Schedule of Values. 

19.2.2.1.5 Developer’s Preliminary Construction Schedule for 

the first ninety (90) days. 

19.2.2.1.6 Schedule of unit prices, if applicable.  

19.2.2.1.7 Submittal Schedule. 

19.2.2.1.8 Receipt by Architect of all submittals due as of the 

date of the payment application. 

19.2.2.1.9 List of Subcontractors, with names, license numbers, 

telephone numbers, and Scope of Work. 

19.2.2.1.10 All bonds and insurance endorsements; and 

19.2.2.1.11 Resumes of Developer’s project manager, and if 

applicable, job site secretary, record documents recorder, and 

job site superintendent. 

19.2.3 Subsequent Payment Requests  

The District will not process subsequent payment requests until and unless 

submittals and Shop Drawings necessary to maintain the Project schedule have 

been submitted to the Architect. 

19.2.4 No Waiver of Criteria   

Any payments made to Developer where criteria set forth herein have not been 

met shall not constitute a waiver of said criteria by District.  Instead, such 

payment shall be construed as a good faith effort by District to resolve 

differences so Developer may pay its Subcontractors and suppliers.  Developer 

agrees that failure to submit such items may constitute a breach of contract by 

Developer and may subject Developer to termination.  

19.3 District’s Approval of Application for Payment 

19.3.1 Upon receipt of an Application for Payment, The District shall act in 

accordance with both of the following: 

19.3.1.1 Each Application for Payment shall be reviewed by the District 

as soon as practicable after receipt for the purpose of determining that 

the Application for Payment is a proper Application for Payment. 

19.3.1.2 Any Application for Payment determined not to be a proper 

Application for Payment suitable for payment shall be returned to 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 60 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Developer as soon as practicable, but not later than seven (7) days, 

after receipt.  An Application for Payment returned pursuant to this 

paragraph shall be accompanied by a document setting forth in writing 

the reasons why the Application for Payment is not proper.  The number 

of days available to the District to make a payment without incurring 

interest pursuant to this section shall be reduced by the number of days 

by which the District exceeds this seven-day return requirement. 

19.3.2 An Application for Payment shall be considered properly executed if 

funds are available for payment of the Application for Payment, and payment 

is not delayed due to an audit inquiry by the financial officer of the District. 

19.3.3 District’s review of the Developer’s Application for Payment will be 

based on the District’s and the Architect’s observations at the Site and the data 

comprising the Application for Payment that the Work has progressed to the 

point indicated and that, to the best of the District’s and the Architect’s 

knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance 

with the Contract Documents.  The foregoing representations are subject to: 

19.3.3.1 Observation of the Work for general conformance with the 

Contract Documents. 

19.3.3.2 Results of subsequent tests and inspections. 

19.3.3.3 Minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable 

prior to completion; and 

19.3.3.4 Specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 

19.3.4 District’s approval of the certified Application for Payment shall be 

based on Developer complying with all requirements for a fully complete and 

valid certified Application for Payment. 

19.3.5 Payments to Developer 

19.3.5.1 Within thirty (30) days after approval of the Application for 

Payment, Developer shall be paid a sum equal to ninety-five percent 

(95%), of the value of the Tenant Improvement Payment (as verified 

by Architect and Inspector and certified by Developer) up to the last day 

of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments and 

amount to be withheld.  The value of the Work completed shall be 

Developer’s best estimate.  No inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall 

operate to release Developer, or any Surety upon any bond, from 

damages arising from such Work, or from the District's right to enforce 

each and every provision of the Contract Documents, and the District 

shall have the right subsequently to correct any error made in any 

estimate for payment. 

19.3.5.2 Developer may not be entitled to have payment requests 

processed, or may be entitled to have only partial payment made for 

Work performed, so long as any direction given by the District 

concerning the Work, or any portion thereof, remains incomplete. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 61 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.3.6 No Waiver 

No payment by District hereunder shall be interpreted so as to imply that 

District has inspected, approved, or accepted any part of the Work.  

Notwithstanding any payment, the District may enforce each and every 

provision of this Contract.  The District may correct or require correction of any 

error subsequent to any payment 

19.3.7 Warranty of Title 

19.3.7.1 If a lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice of any 

nature should at any time be filed against the Work or any District 

property, by any entity that has supplied material or services at the 

request of Developer, Developer and Developer’s Surety shall promptly, 

on demand by District and at Developer’s and Surety’s own expense, 

take any and all action necessary to cause any such lien or a claim based 

on a stop payment notice to be released or discharged immediately 

therefrom. 

19.3.7.2 If Developer fails to furnish to the District within ten (10) 

calendar days after demand by the District satisfactory evidence that a 

lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice has been released, 

discharged, or secured, the District may discharge such indebtedness 

and deduct the amount required therefor, together with any and all 

losses, costs, damages, and attorney’s fees and expenses incurred or 

suffered by District from any sum payable to Developer under the 

Contract. 

19.4 Decisions to Withhold Payment 

19.4.1 Reasons to Withhold Payment 

The District shall withhold payment in whole, or in part, as required by statute.  

In addition, the District may withhold payment in whole, or in part, to the extent 

reasonably necessary to protect the District if, in the District's opinion, the 

representations to the District required herein cannot be made.  Payment, in 

whole, or in part, will be withheld based on the need to protect the District from 

loss because of, but not limited to, any of the following: 

19.4.1.1 Defective Work not remedied within FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours 

of written notice to Developer. 

19.4.1.2 Stop Payment Notices or other liens served upon the District 

as a result of the Contract. 

19.4.1.3 Failure to comply with the requirements of Public Contract 

Code section 2600 et seq. (“Skilled and Trained Workforce 

Requirements”).  

19.4.1.4 Liquidated damages assessed against Developer. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 62 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.4.1.5 Reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the 

unpaid balance of the Guaranteed Maximum Price or by the Contract 

Time. 

19.4.1.6 Damage to the District or other contractor(s). 

19.4.1.7 Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by Developer. 

19.4.1.8 Failure to store and properly secure materials. 

19.4.1.9 Failure of Developer to submit, on a timely basis, proper, 

sufficient, and acceptable documentation required by the Contract 

Documents, including, without limitation, a Construction Schedule, 

Schedule of Submittals, Schedule of Values, Monthly Progress 

Schedules, Shop Drawings, Product Data and samples, Proposed 

product lists, executed Change Orders, and/or verified reports. 

19.4.1.10 Failure of Developer to maintain As-Built Drawings. 

19.4.1.11 Erroneous estimates by Developer of the value of the Work 

performed, or other false statements in an Application for Payment. 

19.4.1.12 Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents. 

19.4.1.13 Failure of Developer to prosecute the Work in a timely 

manner in compliance with the Construction Schedule, established 

progress schedules, and/or completion dates. 

19.4.1.14 Failure to provide acceptable electronic certified payroll 

records, as required by the Labor Code, by these Contract Documents 

or by written request for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other 

employee employed by Developer and/or by each Subcontractor in 

connection with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment 

or if payroll records are delinquent or inadequate.   

19.4.1.15 Failure to properly pay prevailing wages as required in Labor 

Code section 1720 et seq., failure to comply with any other Labor Code 

requirements, and/or failure to comply with labor compliance monitoring 

and enforcement by the DIR. 

19.4.1.16 Allowing an unregistered subcontractor, as described in 

Labor Code section 1725.5, to engage in the performance of any work 

under this Contract. 

19.4.1.17 Failure to comply with any, if applicable federal 

requirements regarding minimum wages, withholding, payrolls and 

basic records, apprentice and trainee employment requirements, equal 

employment opportunity requirements, Copeland Act requirements, 

Davis-Bacon Act and related requirements, Contract Work Hours and 

Safety Standards Act requirements.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 63 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.4.1.18 Failure to properly maintain or clean up the Site. 

19.4.1.19 Failure to timely indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the 

District. 

19.4.1.20 Failure to perform any implementation and/or monitoring 

required by the General Permit, including without limitation any SWPPP 

for the Project and/or the imposition of any penalties or fines therefore 

whether imposed on the District or Developer.  

19.4.1.21 Any payments due to the District, including but not limited 

to payments for failed tests, utilities changes, or permits. 

19.4.1.22 Failure to pay any royalty, license or similar fees. 

19.4.1.23 Failure to pay Subcontractor(s) or supplier(s) as required by 

law and Developer’s subcontract agreement and by the Contract 

Documents; and 

19.4.1.24 Developer is otherwise in breach, default, or in substantial 

violation of any provision of the Contract Documents. 

19.4.2 Reallocation of Withheld Amounts 

19.4.2.1 After prior written notice to Developer with details regarding 

the District’s proposed application of withheld amounts, District may, in 

its discretion, apply any withheld amount to pay outstanding claims or 

obligations as defined herein.  In so doing, District shall make such 

payments on behalf of Developer.  If any payment is so made by District, 

then that amount shall be considered a payment made under the 

Contract Documents by District to Developer and District shall not be 

liable to Developer for any payment made in good faith.  These 

payments may be made without prior judicial determination of claim or 

obligation.  District will render Developer an accounting of funds 

disbursed on behalf of Developer. 

19.4.2.2 If Developer defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in 

accordance with the Contract Documents or fails to perform any 

provision thereof, District may, after FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written 

notice to Developer and opportunity to commence and pursue cure of 

default, and, without prejudice to any other remedy, make good such 

deficiencies.  The District shall adjust the total Guaranteed Maximum 

Price by reducing the amount thereof by the cost of making good such 

deficiencies.  If District deems it inexpedient to correct Work that is 

damaged, defective, or not done in accordance with the provisions of 

the Contract Documents, an equitable reduction in the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price (up to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the 

estimated reasonable value of the nonconforming Work) shall be made 

therefor. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 64 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

19.4.3 Payment After Cure 

When Developer removes the grounds for declining approval, payment shall be 

made for amounts withheld because of them.  No interest shall be paid on any 

retainage or amounts withheld due to the failure of Developer to perform in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

19.5 Subcontractor Payments 

19.5.1 Payments to Subcontractors 

No later than seven (7) days after receipt of any Tenant Improvement Payment, 

or pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7108.5 and Public 

Contract Code section 7107, Developer shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of 

the amount paid to Developer on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of 

the Work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled.  Developer shall, 

by appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor 

to make payments to its Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 

19.5.2 No Obligation of District for Subcontractor Payment 

The District shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of, money 

to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. 

19.5.3 Joint Checks 

District shall have the right in its sole discretion, if necessary for the protection 

of the District, to issue joint checks made payable to Developer and 

Subcontractors and/or material or equipment suppliers.  The joint check payees 

shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of funds included as 

part of any such joint payment.  In no event shall any joint check payment be 

construed to create any contract between the District and a Subcontractor of 

any tier, or a material or equipment supplier, or any obligation from the District 

to such Subcontractor or a material or equipment supplier or rights in such 

Subcontractor against the District. 

20. Completion of the Work 

20.1 Completion 

20.1.1 District will accept completion of Project and have the Notice of 

Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been completed to the 

satisfaction of District. 

20.1.2 The Work may only be accepted as complete by action of the governing 

board of the District. 

20.1.3 District, at its sole option, may accept completion of Project and have 

the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been 

completed to the satisfaction of District, except for minor corrective items, as 

distinguished from incomplete items.  If Developer fails to complete all minor 

corrective items within fifteen (15) days after the date of the District’s 

acceptance of completion, District shall withhold from the final payment one 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 65 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

hundred fifty percent (150%) of an estimate of the amount sufficient to 

complete the corrective items, as reasonably determined by District, until the 

item(s) are completed. 

20.1.4 At the end of the fifteen (15) day period, if there are any items 

remaining to be corrected, District may elect to proceed as provided herein 

related to adjustments to Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or District’s right to 

perform the Work of Developer. 

20.2 Close-Out/Certification Procedures 

20.2.1 Punch List 

Developer shall notify the Architect via the Construction Manager when 

Developer considers the Work complete.  Upon notification, Architect will 

prepare a list of minor items to be completed or corrected (“Punch List”).  

Developer and/or its Subcontractors shall proceed promptly to complete and 

correct items on the Punch List.  Failure to include an item on Punch List does 

not alter the responsibility of Developer to complete all Work in accordance with 

the Contract Documents. 

20.2.2 Close-Out/Certification Requirements 

20.2.2.1 Utility Connections 

Buildings shall be connected to water, gas, sewer, electric, phone, and 

internet services, complete and ready for use.  Service connections shall 

be made and existing services reconnected. 

20.2.2.2 As-Builts/Record Drawings and Record Specifications 

20.2.2.2.1 Developer shall provide exact “as-built” drawings of 

the Work upon completion of the Project as indicated in the 

Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 

Specifications (“As-Built Drawings”) as a condition precedent to 

approval of final payment. 

20.2.2.2.2 Developer is liable and responsible for any and all 

inaccuracies in the As-Built Drawings, even if inaccuracies 

become evident at a future date. 

20.2.2.2.3 Upon completion of the Work and as a condition 

precedent to approval of final payment, Developer shall obtain 

the Inspector’s approval of the corrected prints and deliver the 

same to Architect via the Construction Manager in a form 

acceptable to the Architect as part of closeout. 

20.2.2.3 Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable 

Developer shall submit to District all electric and hard copy records 

required by the Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable, within 

seven (7) days of Completion of the Project.   



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 66 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

20.2.3 Maintenance Manuals   

Developer shall prepare all operation and maintenance manuals and date as 

indicated in the Specifications. 

20.2.4 Source Programming   

Developer shall provide all source programming for all items in the Project. 

20.2.5 Verified Reports   

Developer shall completely and accurately fill out and file forms DSA 6-C or 

DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the time the Work is 

performed), as appropriate.  Refer to section 4-336 and section 4-343 of Part 

1, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 

20.3 Final Inspection 

20.3.1 Developer shall comply with Punch List procedures as provided herein, 

and maintain the presence of its District-approved project superintendent and 

project manager until the Punch List is complete to ensure proper and timely 

completion of the Punch List.  Under no circumstances shall Developer 

demobilize its forces prior to completion of the Punch List without District’s prior 

written approval.  Upon receipt of Developer’s written notice to the Construction 

Manager that all of the Punch List items have been fully completed and the 

Work is ready for final inspection and District acceptance, Architect and Project 

Inspector will inspect the Work and shall submit to Developer and District a 

final inspection report noting the Work, if any, required in order to complete in 

accordance with the Contract Documents.  Absent unusual circumstances, this 

report shall consist of the Punch List items not yet satisfactorily completed. 

20.3.2 Upon Developer’s completion of all items on the Punch List and any 

other uncompleted portions of the Work, Developer shall notify the District and 

Architect, who shall again inspect such Work.  If the Architect finds the Work 

complete and acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Architect will 

notify Developer, who shall then jointly submit to the Architect and the District 

its final Application for Payment. 

20.3.3 Final Inspection Requirements 

20.3.3.1 Before calling for final inspection, Developer shall determine 

that the following have been performed: 

20.3.3.1.1 The Work has been completed. 

20.3.3.1.2 All life safety items are completed and in working 

order. 

20.3.3.1.3 Mechanical and electrical Work, including, without 

limitation,, security system, data, fire alarm, are complete and 

tested, fixtures are in place, connected, and ready for tryout. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 67 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

20.3.3.1.4 Electrical circuits scheduled in panels and disconnect 

switches labeled. 

20.3.3.1.5 Painting and special finishes complete. 

20.3.3.1.6 Doors complete with hardware, cleaned of protective 

film, relieved of sticking or binding, and in working order. 

20.3.3.1.7 Tops and bottoms of doors sealed. 

20.3.3.1.8 Floors waxed and polished as specified. 

20.3.3.1.9 Broken glass replaced and glass cleaned. 

20.3.3.1.10 Grounds cleared of Developer’s equipment, raked 

clean of debris, and trash removed from Site. 

20.3.3.1.11 Work cleaned, free of stains, scratches, and other 

foreign matter, damaged and broken material replaced. 

20.3.3.1.12 Finished and decorative work shall have marks, 

dirt, and superfluous labels removed. 

20.3.3.1.13 Final cleanup, as provided herein. 

20.4 Costs of Multiple Inspections 

More than two (2) requests of the District to make a final inspection shall be considered 

an additional service of District, Architect, Construction Manager, and/or Project 

Inspector, and all subsequent costs will be invoiced to Developer and if funds are 

available, withheld from remaining payments. 

20.5 Partial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion 

20.5.1 District’s Rights to Occupancy 

The District may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of 

the Work at any stage, and such occupancy shall not constitute the District’s 

Final Acceptance of any part of the Work. Neither the District’s Final 

Acceptance, the making of Final Payment, any provision in Contract 

Documents, nor the use or occupancy of the Work, in whole or in part, by 

District shall constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract 

Documents nor relieve Developer or Developer’s Performance Bond Surety from 

liability with respect to any warranties or responsibility for faulty or defective 

Work or materials, equipment and workmanship incorporated therein.  The 

District and Developer shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned to 

each of them for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to 

the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the 

commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents.  Any 

dispute as to responsibilities shall be resolved pursuant to the Claims and 

Disputes provisions herein, with the added provision that during the dispute 

process, the District shall have the right to occupy or use any portion of the 

Work that it needs or desires to use. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 68 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

20.5.2 Inspection Prior to Occupancy or Use 

Immediately prior to partial occupancy or use, the District, Developer, and the 

Architect shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to 

be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 

20.5.3 No Waiver 

Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial or entire occupancy or use of a portion 

or portions of the Work shall not constitute beneficial occupancy or District’s 

acceptance of the Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract 

Documents.  

21. Final Payment and Retention 

21.1 Final Payment 

Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment from Developer, the Architect will notify 

the District whether the Work is complete so that joint inspection of the Work can be 

scheduled.  Thereafter, the District shall jointly inspect the Work and either accept the 

Work as complete or notify the Architect and Developer in writing of reasons why the 

Work is not complete.  Upon District’s acceptance of the Work of Developer as fully 

complete (that, absent unusual circumstances, will occur when the Punch List items 

have been satisfactorily completed), the District shall record a Notice of Completion 

with the County Recorder, and Developer shall, upon receipt of final payment from the 

District, pay the amount due Subcontractors. 

21.2 Prerequisites for Final Payment   

The following conditions must be fulfilled prior to Final Payment:  

21.2.1 A full release of all Stop Payment Notices served in connection with the 

Work shall be submitted by Developer. 

21.2.2 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver and release upon 

final payment compliant with Civil Code section 8136 from each subcontractor 

of any tier and supplier to be paid from the final Tenant Improvement Payment.  

21.2.3 A duly completed and executed unconditional waiver and release upon 

Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from 

each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the previous 

Tenant Improvement Payment(s). 

21.2.4 A duly completed and executed “AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY 

AND ALL CLAIMS” from Developer. 

21.2.5 Developer shall have made all corrections to the Work that are required 

to remedy any defects therein, to obtain compliance with the Contract 

Documents or any requirements of applicable codes and ordinances, or to fulfill 

any of the orders or directions of District required under the Contract 

Documents. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 69 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

21.2.6 Each Subcontractor shall have delivered to Developer all written 

guarantees, warranties, applications, and bonds required by the Contract 

Documents for its portion of the Work. 

21.2.7 Developer must have completed all requirements set forth under 

“Close-Out/Certification Procedures,” including, without limitation, submission 

of an approved set of complete Record Drawings. 

21.2.8 Architect shall have issued its written approval that final payment can 

be made. 

21.2.9 Developer shall have delivered to the District all manuals and materials 

required by the Contract Documents, which must be approved by the District. 

21.2.10 Developer shall have completed final clean up as provided herein. 

21.3 Retention   

21.3.1 The retention, less any amounts disputed by the District or that the 

District has the right to withhold pursuant to provisions herein, shall be paid: 

21.3.1.1 After approval by the District of the Architect of the 

Application and Certificate of Payment.  

21.3.1.2 After the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein.  

21.3.1.3 No less than forty-five (45) days after the recording of the 

Notice of Completion by District; and 

21.3.1.4 After receipt of a duly completed and executed unconditional 

waiver and release upon Final Payment compliant with Civil Code section 

8138 from each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid 

from the Final Payment. 

21.3.2 No interest shall be paid on any retention, or on any amounts withheld 

due to a failure of Developer to perform, in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of the Contract Documents, except as provided to the contrary in 

any Escrow Agreement between the District and Developer pursuant to Public 

Contract Code section 22300.  

21.4 Substitution of Securities  

The District will permit the substitution of securities in accordance with the provisions 

of Public Contract Code section 22300. 

22. Uncovering of Work 

If a portion of the Work is covered without Inspector or Architect approval or not in compliance 

with the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the District, the Project 

Inspector, or the Architect, be uncovered for the Project Inspector’s or the Architect’s 

observation and be corrected, replaced and/or recovered at Developer’s expense without 

change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 70 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

23. Nonconforming Work and Correction of Work 

23.1 Nonconforming Work 

23.1.1 Developer shall promptly remove from Premises all Work identified by 

District as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether incorporated 

or not.  Developer shall promptly replace and re-execute its own Work to 

comply with the Contract Documents without additional expense to the District 

and shall bear the expense of making good all work of other contractors 

destroyed or damaged by any removal or replacement pursuant hereto and/or 

any delays to the District or other contractors caused thereby. 

23.1.2 If Developer does not commence to remove Work that District has 

identified as failing to conform to the Contract Documents within a reasonable 

time, not to exceed FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours after written notice and complete 

removal of work within a reasonable time, District may remove it and may store 

any material at Developer’s expense.  If Developer does not pay expense(s) of 

that removal within ten (10) days’ time thereafter, District may, upon ten (10) 

days’ written notice, sell any material at auction or at private sale and shall 

deduct all costs and expenses incurred by the District and/or District may 

withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 

23.2 Correction of Work 

23.2.1 Correction of Rejected Work 

Pursuant to the notice provisions herein, Developer shall promptly correct the 

Work rejected by the District, the Architect, or the Project Inspector as failing 

to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed 

before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or 

completed.  Developer shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, 

including additional testing, inspections, and compensation for the Inspector’s 

or the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby. 

23.2.2 One-Year Warranty Corrections 

If, within one (1) year after the date of Completion of the Work or a designated 

portion thereof, or after the date for commencement of warranties established 

hereunder, or by the terms of an applicable special warranty required by the 

Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the 

requirements of the Contract Documents, Developer shall correct it promptly 

after receipt of written notice from the District to do so.  This period of one (1) 

year shall be extended with respect to portions of the Work first performed 

after Completion by the period of time between Completion and the actual 

performance of the Work.  This obligation hereunder shall survive District’s 

acceptance of the Work under the Contract Documents and termination of the 

Contract Documents.  The District shall give such notice promptly after 

discovery of the condition. 

23.3 District's Right to Perform Work 

23.3.1 If Developer should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to 

perform any provisions of the Contract Documents, the District, after providing 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 71 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written notice and an opportunity to cure the failure, 

to Developer, may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make 

good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then 

or thereafter due Developer.  

23.3.2 If it is found at any time, before or after completion of the Work, that 

Developer has varied from the Drawings and/or Specifications, including, but 

not limited to, variation in material, quality, form, or finish, or in the amount 

or value of the materials and labor used, District may require at its option: 

23.3.2.1 That all such improper Work be removed, remade or 

replaced, and all work disturbed by these changes be made good by 

Developer at no additional cost to the District. 

23.3.2.2 That the District deduct from any amount due Developer the 

sum of money equivalent to the difference in value between the work 

performed and that called for by the Drawings and Specifications; or 

23.3.2.3 That the District exercise any other remedy it may have at 

law or under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 

District hiring its own forces or another contractor to replace Developer’s 

nonconforming Work, in which case the District shall either issue a 

deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice 

Developer for the cost of that work.  Developer shall pay any invoices 

within thirty (30) days of receipt of same or District may withhold those 

amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 

24. Termination And Suspension 

The Parties’ rights to terminate the Project are as indicated in the Facilities Lease.  In the 

event of a termination of the Facilities Lease and notwithstanding any other provision in the 

Contract Documents, the Surety shall remain liable to all obligees under the Payment Bond 

and to the District under the Performance Bond for any claim related to the Project. 

25. Claims Process 

25.1 Obligation to File Claims for Disputed Work 

25.1.1 Should Developer otherwise seek extra time or compensation for any 

reason whatsoever (“Disputed Work”), then Developer shall first follow 

procedures set forth in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, 

Articles 15, 16 and 17, all of which are conditions precedent to submitting a 

Claim pursuant to Article 25.   A Notice of Delay or Proposed Change Order 

are less formal procedures that proceed the formal claim and do not 

constitute a Claim.  A Claim also does not include correspondence, RFIs, 

vouchers, invoices, progress payment applications, or other routine or 

authorized form of requests for progress payments in compliance with the 

Contract.  If a dispute remains, then Developer shall give written notice to 

District that expressly invokes this Article 25 within the time limits set forth 

herein. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 72 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

25.1.2   Developer’s sole and exclusive remedy for Disputed Work is to file a 

written claim setting forth Developer’s position as required herein within the 

time limits set forth herein. 

25.2 Duty to Perform during Claim Process 

Developer and its subcontractors shall continue to perform its Work under the 

Contract, including the Disputed Work, and shall not cause a delay of the Work during 

any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or arbitration proceeding, except by written 

agreement by the District. 

25.3 Definition of Claim 

25.3.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the term “Claim” means 

a separate demand by Developer sent by registered mail or certified mail with 

return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 

25.3.1.1 A time extension, including without limitation, for relief of 

damages or penalties for delay assessed by the District under the 

Contract; 

25.3.1.2 Payment by the District of money or damages arising from 

work done by, or on behalf of, Developer pursuant to the Contract and 

payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which 

Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or 

25.3.1.3 An amount of payment disputed by the District. 

25.4 Claims Presentation 

25.4.1 Form and Contents of Claim 

25.4.1.1 If Developer intends to submit a Claim for an increase in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time for any reason 

including, without limitation, the acts of District or its agents, Developer 

shall, within thirty (30) days after the event giving rise to the Claim, 

give notice of the Claim (“Notice of Potential Claim”) in writing, 

specifically identifying Developer is invoking this Article 25 Claims 

Presentation.  The Notice of Potential Claim shall provide Developer’s 

preliminary request for an adjustment to the Contract Price and/or 

Contract Time, with a description of the grounds therefore. 

25.4.1.2 Within thirty (30) days after serving the written Notice of 

Potential Claim, Developer shall provide a Claim including  an itemized 

statement of the details and amounts of its Claim for any increase in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, as provided below, 

including a Time Impact Analysis and any and all other documentation 

substantiating Developer’s claimed damages: 

25.4.1.2.1 The issues, events, conditions, circumstances and/or 

causes giving rise to the dispute;  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 73 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

25.4.1.2.2 Citation to provisions in the Contract Documents, 

statute sections, and/or case law entitling Developer to an 

increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time; 

25.4.1.2.3 The pertinent dates and/or durations and actual 

and/or anticipated effects on the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

Contract Schedule milestones and/or Contract Time 

adjustments;  

25.4.1.2.4 The Time Impact Analysis of all time delays that 

shows actual time impact on the critical path; and 

25.4.1.2.5 The line-item costs for labor, material, and/or 

equipment, if applicable, for all cost impacts priced like a change 

order according to Article 17 and must be updated monthly as to 

cost and entitlement if a continuing claim. 

25.4.1.3 The Claim shall include the following certification by 

Developer: 

25.4.1.3.1 The undersigned Developer certifies under penalty of 

perjury that the attached dispute is made in good faith; that the 

supporting data is accurate and complete to the best of my 

knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately 

reflects the adjustment for which Developer believes the District 

is liable; and that I am duly authorized to certify the claim on 

behalf of Developer. 

25.4.1.3.2 Furthermore, Developer understands that the value 

of the attached dispute expressly includes any and all of 

Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting 

from the Work performed on the Project, additional time required 

on the Project and/or resulting from delay to the Project 

including, without limitation, cumulative impacts.  Any costs, 

expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 

25.4.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation and 

submission of a Claim. 

25.4.3 Failure to timely submit a Claim and the requisite supporting 

documentation shall constitute a waiver of Developer’s claim(s) against the 

District and Developer’s Claim(s) for compensation or an extension of time shall 

be deemed waived, released, and discharged as to any entitlement for 

adjustment to Contract Price and/or Contract Time. 

25.5 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204 

Developer may request to waive the claims procedure under Public Contract Code 

section 9204 and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding 

arbitration.  If Developer chooses to proceed, Developer shall comply with the following 

steps: 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 74 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

25.5.1 STEP 1: 

25.5.1.1 Upon receipt of a Claim by registered or certified mail, return 

receipt  requested, including the documents necessary to substantiate 

it, the District shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and, within 

a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide Developer a written 

statement identifying what portion of the Claim is disputed and what 

portion is undisputed.  Upon receipt of a Claim, the District and 

Developer may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period to provide 

a written statement. If the District needs approval from its governing 

body to provide Developer a written statement identifying the disputed 

portion and the undisputed portion of the Claim, and the governing body 

does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to 

extension of time following receipt of Claim sent by registered mail or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, the District shall have up to 

three (3) days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the 

governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide 

Developer a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 

undisputed portion. 

25.5.1.1.1 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the 

Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the 

District issues its written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely 

manner as required by this section, section 25.4, shall bear 

interest at seven percent (7%) per annum. 

25.5.1.2 Upon receipt of a Claim, the parties may mutually agree to 

waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement 

of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable.  In this instance, 

District and Developer must comply with the sections below regarding 

Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. and Government Code Claim 

Act Claims. 

25.5.1.3 If the District fails to issue a written statement, or to 

otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, this shall result in 

the Claim being deemed rejected in its entirety.  A claim that is denied 

by reason of the District’s failure to have responded to a claim, or its 

failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not 

constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the claim or 

the responsibility or qualifications of Developer. 

25.5.2 STEP 2: 

25.5.2.1 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or if the 

District fails to respond to a Claim within the time prescribed, Developer 

may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for 

settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon receipt of a demand in writing 

sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the 

District shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for 

settlement of the dispute.  Within 10 business days following the 

conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion 

of the claim remains in dispute, the District shall provide Developer a 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 75 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in 

dispute and the portion that is undisputed. 

25.5.2.2 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall 

be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues its 

written statement.  Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by 

this section, section 25.4, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per 

annum. 

25.5.3 STEP 3: 

25.5.3.1 Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by Developer 

in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District 

and Developer sharing the associated costs equally. The District and 

Developer shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days 

after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If 

the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 

mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party 

to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party 

shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in 

connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is 

unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject 

to applicable procedures outside this section. 

25.5.3.1.1 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any 

nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral 

evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent 

third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution 

through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any 

mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section. 

25.5.3.2 Unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Developer in 

writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse 

any further obligation under Public Contract Code section 20104.4 to 

mediate after litigation has been commenced. 

25.5.4 STEP 4: 

25.5.4.1 If mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 

dispute, the District may, but does not require arbitration of disputes 

under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration 

Program. 

25.6 Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims 

25.6.1 If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 

assert a claim against a District because privity of contract does not exist, the 

contractor may present to the District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or 

lower tier subcontractor.  A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his 

or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that Developer 

present a Claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a 

lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 76 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

requesting that the Claim be presented to the District shall furnish reasonable 

documentation to support the Claim. 

25.6.2 Within 45 days of receipt of this written request from a subcontractor, 

Developer shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether Developer 

presented the Claim to the District and, if Developer did not present the Claim, 

provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done 

so. 

25.6.3 Developer shall bind all its Subcontractors to the provisions of this 

section and will hold the District harmless against Claims by Subcontractors. 

25.7 Government Code Claim Act Claim 

25.7.1 If a Claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction 

of all applicable Claim Resolution requirements, including those pursuant to 

Public Contract Code section 9204, Developer shall comply with all claims 

presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 

900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of 

Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to Developer’s right to 

bring a civil action against the District.   

25.7.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation, submission 

and administration of a Claim.  Any claims presented in accordance with the 

Government Code must affirmatively indicate Developer’s prior compliance with 

the claims procedure herein of the claims asserted. 

25.7.3 For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which 

a claim pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104.2 only must be 

presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Developer submits its 

written claim pursuant to subdivision (a) until the time that the claim is denied 

as a result of the meet and confer process, including any period of time utilized 

by the meet and confer process. 

25.8 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. 

25.8.1 In the event of a disagreement between the parties as to performance 

of the Work, the interpretation of this Contract, or payment or nonpayment for 

Work performed or not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve all claims 

of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) or less which arise 

between Developer and District by those procedures set forth in Public Contract 

Code section 20104 et seq., to the extent applicable.  

25.8.1.1 Developer shall file with the District any written Claim, 

including the documents necessary to substantiate it, upon the 

application for final payment. 

25.8.1.2 For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), the 

District shall respond in writing within forty-five (45) days of receipt of 

the Claim or may request in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of 

the Claim any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating 

to defenses or claims the District may have against Developer. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 77 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

25.8.1.2.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 

requested and provided by mutual agreement of the parties. 

25.8.1.2.2 District's written response to the documented Claim 

shall be submitted to Developer within fifteen (15) days after 

receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time 

no greater than that taken by Developer to produce the 

additional information, whichever is greater.  

25.8.1.3 For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) and less 

than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars 

($375,000), the District shall respond in writing to all written Claims 

within sixty (60) days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, 

within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim any additional 

documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses or claims 

the District may have against Developer. 

25.8.1.3.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 

requested and provided upon mutual agreement of the District 

and Developer.   

25.8.1.3.2 The District's written response to the claim, as 

further documented, shall be submitted to Developer within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of the further documentation, or 

within a period of time no greater than that taken by Developer 

to produce the additional information or requested 

documentation, whichever is greater. 

25.8.1.4 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or the 

District fails to respond within the time prescribed, Developer may so 

notify the District, in writing, either within fifteen (15) days of receipt of 

the District's response or within fifteen (15) days of the District's failure 

to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an 

informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in 

dispute.  Upon a demand, the District shall schedule a meet and confer 

conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute. 

25.8.1.5 Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 

portion of it remains in dispute, Developer shall file a claim as provided 

in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the 

Government Code.  For purposes of those provisions the running of the 

time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time 

Developer submits its written Claim until the time the Claim is denied, 

including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 

25.8.1.6 For any civil action filed to resolve claims filed pursuant to 

this section, within sixty (60) days, but no earlier than thirty (30) days, 

following the filing of responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the 

matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of 

both parties.  The mediation process shall provide for the selection 

within fifteen (15) days by both parties of a disinterested third person 

as mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 78 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

submittal, and shall be concluded within fifteen (15) days from the 

commencement of the mediation unless a time requirement is extended 

upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both parties.  

If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any 

party may petition the court to appoint the mediator. 

25.8.1.7 If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted 

to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 

1141.10) of the Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 

notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code.  The Civil Discovery Act, 

(commencing with Section 2016) of Chapter 1 of Title 4 of part 4 of the 

Code of Civil Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under 

this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to judicial 

arbitration. 

25.8.1.8 The District shall not fail to pay money as to any portion of a 

Claim which is undisputed except as otherwise provided in the Contract 

Documents.  In any suit filed pursuant to this section, the District shall 

pay interest at the legal rate on any arbitration award or judgment.  

Interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of 

law. 

25.8.2 Developer shall bind its Subcontractors to the provisions of this Section 

and will hold the District harmless against disputes by Subcontractors. 

25.9 Claims Procedure Compliance 

25.9.1 Failure to submit and administer claims as required in Article 25 shall 

waive Developer’s right to claim on any specific issues not included in a timely 

submitted claim. Claim(s) not raised in a timely protest and timely claim 

submitted under this Article 25 may not be asserted in any subsequent 

litigation, Government Code Claim, or legal action. 

25.9.2 District shall not be deemed to waive any provision under this Article 

25, if at District’s sole discretion, a claim is administered in a manner not in 

accord with this Article 25.  Waivers or modifications of this Article 25 may only 

be made by a signed change order approved as to form by legal counsel for 

both District and Developer; oral or implied modifications shall be ineffective. 

25.10 Claim Resolution Non-Applicability 

25.10.1 The procedures for dispute and claim resolution set forth in this Article 

shall not apply to the following: 

25.10.1.1 Personal injury, wrongful death or property damage claims. 

25.10.1.2 Latent defect or breach of warranty or guarantee to repair. 

25.10.1.3 Stop payment notices. 

25.10.1.4 District’s rights set forth in the Article on Suspension and 

Termination.  



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 79 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

25.10.1.5 Disputes arising out of labor compliance enforcement by the 

Department of Industrial Relations; or 

25.10.1.6 District rights and obligations as a public entity set forth in 

applicable statutes; provided, however, that penalties imposed against 

a public entity by statutes, including, but not limited to, Public Contract 

Code sections 20104.50 and 7107, shall be subject to the Claim 

Resolution requirements provided in this Article. 

25.11 Attorney’s Fees 

25.11.1 Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of 

this Contract, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection 

expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney’s fees. 

26. State Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions 

26.1 Labor Compliance and Enforcement 

Since this Project is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the Department 

of Industrial Relations (“DIR”), Developer specifically acknowledges and understands 

that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable 

provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code and Title 8 of the 

California Code of Regulations, including, without limitation, the requirement that 

Developer and all Subcontractors shall timely furnish complete and accurate electronic 

certified payroll records directly to the DIR.  The District may not issue payment if this 

requirement is not met. 

26.2 Wage Rates, Travel, and Subsistence 

26.2.1 Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at section 1770), 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code of California, the general 

prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday 

and overtime work in the locality in which this public work is to be performed 

for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract 

Documents are on file at the District’s principal office and copies will be made 

available to any interested party on request.  Developer shall obtain and post 

a copy of these wage rates at the job site. 

26.2.2 Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for at 

a rate of at least one and one-half times the above specified rate of per diem 

wages, unless otherwise specified.  The holidays upon which those rates shall 

be paid need not be specified by the District, but shall be all holidays recognized 

in the applicable collective bargaining agreement.  If the prevailing rate is not 

based on a collectively bargained rate, the holidays upon which the prevailing 

rate shall be paid shall be as provided in Section 6700 of the Government Code. 

26.2.3 Developer shall pay and shall cause to be paid each worker engaged in 

Work on the Project not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 

determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) 

(“Director”), regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to 

exist between Developer or any Subcontractor and such workers. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 80 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

26.2.4 If, prior to execution of the Facilities Lease, the Director determines 

that there has been a change in any prevailing rate of per diem wages in the 

locality in which the Work under the Contract Documents is to be performed, 

such change shall not alter the wage rates in the Contract Documents 

subsequently awarded. 

26.2.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1775, Developer shall, as a penalty, 

forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently two 

hundred dollars ($200) to District for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 

each worker paid less than the prevailing rates, determined by the District 

and/or the Director, for the work or craft in which that worker is employed for 

any public work done under Contract by Developer or by any Subcontractor 

under it.  The difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 

paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 

worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate, shall be paid to each worker 

by Developer. 

26.2.6 Any worker employed to perform Work on the Project, which Work is 

not covered by any classification listed in the general prevailing wage rate of 

per diem wages determined by the Director, shall be paid not less than the 

minimum rate of wages specified therein for the classification which most nearly 

corresponds to Work to be performed by him, and that minimum wage rate 

shall be retroactive to time of initial employment of the person in that 

classification. 

26.2.7 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1773.1, per diem wages are deemed to 

include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, travel 

time, subsistence pay, and apprenticeship or other training programs 

authorized by Labor Code section 3093, and similar purposes. 

26.2.8 Developer shall post at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project 

Site a schedule showing all determined minimum wage rates and all authorized 

deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned.  In addition, Developer 

shall post a sign-in log for all workers and visitors to the Site, a list of all 

Subcontractors of any tier on the Site, and the required Equal Employment 

Opportunity poster(s). 

26.3 Hours of Work 

26.3.1 As provided in Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 

7, Division 2, of the Labor Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal 

day of work.  The time of service of any worker employed at any time by 

Developer or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under the Contract 

Documents upon the Work or upon any part of the Work contemplated by the 

Contract Documents shall be limited and restricted by Developer to eight (8) 

hours per day, and forty (40) hours during any one week, except as hereinafter 

provided.  Notwithstanding the provisions hereinabove set forth, Work 

performed by employees of Developer in excess of eight (8) hours per day and 

forty (40) hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon this public work 

upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at 

not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 81 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

26.3.2 Developer shall keep and shall cause each Subcontractor to keep an 

accurate record showing the name of and actual hours worked each calendar 

day and each calendar week by each worker employed by Developer in 

connection with the Work or any part of the Work contemplated by the Contract 

Documents.  The record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the 

inspection of District and to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the 

DIR. 

26.3.3 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1813, Developer shall, as a penalty, 

forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently twenty-

five dollars ($25)) to the District for each worker employed in the execution of 

the Contract Documents by Developer or by any Subcontractor for each 

calendar day during which a worker is required or permitted to work more than 

eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar 

week in violation of the provisions of Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code. 

26.3.4 Any Work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or 

on Sundays or other holidays shall be performed without additional expense to 

the District. 

26.4 Payroll Records 

26.4.1 Developer shall upload, and shall cause each Subcontractor performing 

any portion of the Work under this Contract to upload, an accurate and 

complete certified payroll record (“CPR”) electronically using DIR’s eCPR 

System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record 

manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online on a weekly no less 

than every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 30 days after the 

final day of Work performed on the Project and within ten (10) days of any 

request by the District or Labor Commissioner at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-

Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html or current application and URL, 

showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight 

time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem 

wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 

employed by Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection with the 

Work. 

26.4.1.1 The CPRs enumerated hereunder shall be filed directly with 

the DIR on a weekly basis or to the requesting party, whether the 

District or DIR, within ten (10) days after receipt of each written request.  

The CPRs from Developer and each Subcontractor for each week shall 

be provided on or before ten (10) days after the end of the Sunday to 

Saturday conventional week covered by the CPRs.  District may not 

make any payment to Developer until: 

26.4.1.1.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) provide CPRs 

acceptable to the District and DIR. 

26.4.1.1.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 

providing CPRs to the District or DIR in a timely manner may 

directly delay the District’s review and/or audit of the CPRs and 

Developer’s payment. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html


 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 82 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

26.4.2 All CPRs shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the 

principal office of Developer on the following basis: 

26.4.2.1 A certified copy of an employee’s CPR shall be made available 

for inspection or furnished to the employee or his/her authorized 

representative on request. 

26.4.2.2 CPRs shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon 

request or as required by regulation to a representative of the District, 

Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, Division of Apprenticeship 

Standards, and/or the DIR. 

26.4.2.3 CPRs shall be made available upon request by the public for 

inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that a request 

by the public shall be made through the District, Division of 

Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards 

Enforcement.  If the requested CPRs have not been provided pursuant 

to the provisions herein, the requesting party shall, prior to being 

provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by Developer, 

Subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made.  

The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal office 

of Developer. 

26.4.3 Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and 

furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by District, Division 

of Apprenticeship Standards, Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, or DIR 

shall be mark ed or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an 

individual’s name, address, and social security number.  The name and address 

of Developer awarded the Project under the Contract Documents or performing 

under the Contract Documents shall not be marked or obliterated. 

26.4.4 Developer shall inform District of the location of the records 

enumerated hereunder, including the street address, city, and county, and 

shall, within five (5) working days of a change in location of the records, provide 

a notice of change of location and address. 

26.4.5 In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, 

Developer shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of 

written notice specifying in what respects Developer must comply with this 

section.  Should noncompliance still be evident after the ten (10) day period, 

Developer shall, as a penalty, forfeit up to one hundred dollars ($100) to District 

for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict 

compliance is effectuated.  Upon the request of the Labor Commissioner, these 

penalties shall be withheld from Tenant Improvement Payments then due. 

26.4.6 As Developer and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the 

terms of the PLA entered into by the District dated November 16, 2017, 

Developer and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs 

electronically using DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic 

XML file or entering each record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current 

form) online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-

Reporting.html , or by using a more current application and URL.  However, 

within ten (10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner, 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 83 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Developer and its subcontractors shall provide CPRs showing the name, 

address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and 

overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid 

to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the 

Developer and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

26.5 [Reserved] 

26.6 Apprentices 

26.6.1 Developer acknowledges and agrees that, if the Contract Documents 

involve a dollar amount greater than or a number of working days greater than 

that specified in Labor Code section 1777.5, then this Contract is governed by 

the provisions of Labor Code Section 1777.5 and 29 CFR part 5.  It shall be the 

responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this Article and with Labor 

Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeship occupations. 

26.6.2 Apprentices of any crafts or trades may be employed and, when 

required by Labor Code section 1777.5, shall be employed provided they are 

properly registered in full compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code. 

26.6.3 Every apprentice shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices 

under the regulations of the craft or trade at which he/she is employed, and 

shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which she/he is 

registered. 

26.6.4 Only apprentices, as defined in section 3077 of the Labor Code, who 

are in training under apprenticeship standards and written apprentice 

agreements under Chapter 4 (commencing at section 3070), Division 3, of the 

Labor Code, are eligible to be employed.  The employment and training of each 

apprentice shall be in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 

standards and apprentice agreements under which he/she is training. 

26.6.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 

Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractors employing 

workers in any apprenticeable craft or trade in performing any Work under this 

Contract shall apply to the applicable joint apprenticeship committee for a 

certificate approving Developer or Subcontractor under the applicable 

apprenticeship standards and fixing the ratio of apprentices to journeymen 

employed in performing the Work. 

26.6.6 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 

Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractor may be required 

to make contributions to the apprenticeship program. 

26.6.7 If Developer or Subcontractor willfully fails to comply with Labor Code 

section 1777.5, then, upon a determination of noncompliance by the 

Administrator of Apprenticeship, it shall: 

26.6.7.1 Be denied the right to bid on any subsequent project for one 

(1) year from the date of such determination. 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 84 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

26.6.7.2 Forfeit, as a penalty, to District the full amount stated in 

Labor Code section 1777.7.  Interpretation and enforcement of these 

provisions shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the 

California Apprenticeship Council and under the authority of the Chief of 

the Division of Apprenticeship Standards. 

26.6.7.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall comply with Labor 

Code section 1777.6, which section forbids certain discriminatory 

practices in the employment of apprentices. 

26.6.7.4 Developer shall become fully acquainted with the law 

regarding apprentices prior to commencement of the Work.  Special 

attention is directed to sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor 

Code, and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 200 et seq.  

Questions may be directed to the State Division of Apprenticeship 

Standards, 455 Golden Gate Avenue, 9th Floor, San Francisco, California 

94102. 

26.7 Skilled and Trained Workforce 

26.7.1 Developer and its subcontractors at every tier hereby provides an 

enforceable commitment to comply with Public Contract Code section 2600 et 

seq., which requires use of a skilled and trained workforce to perform all work 

on the Contract or Project that falls within an apprenticeable occupation in the 

building and construction trades. 

26.7.1.1 “Apprenticeable Occupation” means an occupation for which 

the Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards of the Department 

of Industrial Relations (“Chief”) had approved an apprenticeship 

program pursuant to Section 3075 of the Labor Code before January 1, 

2014. 

26.7.1.2 “Skilled and Trained Workforce” means a workforce that 

meets all of the following conditions: 

26.7.1.2.1 All of the workers are either skilled journeypersons 

or apprentices registered in an apprenticeship program approved 

by the Chief. 

26.7.1.2.2 That, for the applicable dates, either (A) the number 

of the skilled journeypersons employed to perform work on the 

Contract or Project by Developer or its subcontractors at every 

tier are graduates of an apprenticeship program for the 

applicable occupation that was either approved by the Chief 

pursuant to Labor Code section 3075 or located outside California 

and approved for federal purposes pursuant to the 

apprenticeship regulations adopted by the federal Secretary of 

Labor, or (B) the hours of work performed by skilled 

journeypersons who have graduated from an approved 

apprenticeship program meet at least the percentages set forth 

in the following chart: 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 85 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

REQUIREMENT EXCLUDED OCCUPATIONS 

0% Teamster  

At least 30% 

 

Acoustical installer, bricklayer, carpenter, cement 
mason, drywall installer or lather, marble mason, 
finisher, or setter, modular furniture or systems 

installer, operating engineer, pile driver, plasterer, 
roofer or waterproofer, stone mason, surveyor, 
terrazzo worker or finisher, and tile layer, setter, 
or finisher  

At least 60% All remaining apprenticeable occupations 

26.7.1.2.3 For an apprenticeable occupation in which no 

apprenticeship program has been approved by the Chief before 

January 1, 1995, up to one-half of the above graduation 

percentage requirements set forth in the above chart may be 

satisfied by skilled journeypersons who commenced working in 

the apprenticeable occupation before the Chief’s approval of an 

apprenticeship program for that occupation in the county in 

which the Project is located. 

26.7.1.2.4 The contractor or subcontractor need not meet the 

apprenticeship graduation requirements if: 

26.7.1.2.4.1 During a calendar month, Developer or 

subcontractor employs skilled journeypersons to perform 

fewer than 10 hours of work on the Contract or Project; 

or  

26.7.1.2.4.2 The subcontractor was not a listed 

subcontractor under Public Contract Code section 4104 or 

a substitute for a listed subcontractor, and the 

subcontract does not exceed one-half of one percent 

(0.5%) of the price of the prime contract. 

26.7.1.3 “Skilled Journeyperson” means a worker who either:  

26.7.1.3.1 Graduated from an apprenticeship program for the 

applicable occupation that was approved by the Chief or located 

outside of California and approved for federal purposes pursuant 

to the apprenticeship regulations adopted by the federal 

Secretary of Labor; or 

26.7.1.3.2 Has at least as many hours of on-the-job experience 

in the applicable occupation as would be required to graduate 

from an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation 

that is approved by the Chief. 

26.7.2 Developer and its subcontractors will demonstrate its compliance with 

the Skilled and Trained Workforce requirements by either of the following: 

26.7.2.1 Provide monthly reports to the District demonstrating that 

Developer and its subcontractors are complying with the requirements 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 86 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

of Public Contract Code section 2600 et seq., which shall be a public 

record under California Public Records Act, Government Code section 

6250 et seq.; or 

26.7.2.2 Provide evidence that Developer and its subcontractors have 

agreed to be bound by:  (1) a project labor agreement entered into by 

the District that binds all contractors and all its subcontractors at every 

tier performing work on the Project to use a skilled and trained 

workforce; (2) the extension or renewal of a project labor agreement 

entered into by the District prior to January 1, 2017; or (3) a project 

labor agreement that binds all contractors and all its subcontractors at 

every tier performing work on the Project to use a skilled and trained 

workforce.   

26.8 [Reserved] 

26.9 Non-Discrimination 

26.9.1 Developer herein agrees to comply with the provisions of the California 

Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in Part 2.8 of Division 3 of Title 

2 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the 

Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all 

amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and 

regulations found to be applicable to Developer and Subcontractor. 

26.9.2 Special requirements for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts:  

During the performance of the requirement of the Contract Documents, 

Developer agrees to incorporate in all subcontracts the provisions set forth in 

Chapter 60-1.4(b) of Title 41 published in Volume 33 No. 104 of the Federal 

Register dated May 28, 1968. 

26.10 Labor First Aid 

Developer shall maintain emergency first aid treatment for Developer’s laborers and 

mechanics on the Project which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and 

Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.) and the California Occupational Safety 

and Health Act of 1973 (Lab. Code, § 6300 et seq.; 8 Cal. Code of Regs., § 330 et 

seq.). 

27. [Reserved] 

28. Miscellaneous 

28.1 Assignment of Antitrust Actions 

Although this project may not have been formally bid, the following provisions may 

apply:   

28.1.1 Section 7103.5(b) of the Public Contract Code states: 

In entering into a public works contract or subcontract to supply goods, 

services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the contractor or 

subcontractor  offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 87 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 

Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 

Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 

pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall 

be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final 

payment to the contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties. 

28.1.2 Section 4552 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees 

that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, 

and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 

Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 

Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by 

the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid.  Such 

assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing 

body tenders final payment to the bidder. 

28.1.3 Section 4553 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through 

judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned 

under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for 

actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 

body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to 

overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were not paid by the public 

body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 

portion of the recovery. 

28.1.4 Section 4554 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year 

from such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the 

assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which 

the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, 

or (b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. 

28.1.5 Under this Article, “public purchasing body” is District and “bidder” is 

Developer. 

28.2 Excise Taxes 

If, under Federal Excise Tax Law, any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on 

which a Federal Excise Tax is imposed and the sale is exempt from such Federal Excise 

Tax because it is a sale to a State or Local Government for its exclusive use, District, 

upon request, will execute documents necessary to show (1) that District is a political 

subdivision of the State for the purposes of such exemption, and (2) that the sale is 

for the exclusive use of District.  No Federal Excise Tax for such materials shall be 

included in any Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

28.3 Taxes 



 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 88 OF 88 
LUTHER BURBANK POOL REPLACEMENT AND LOCKER ROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Guaranteed Maximum Price is to include any and all applicable sales taxes or other 

taxes that may be due in accordance with section 7051 et seq. of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code, Regulation 1521 of the State Board of Equalization or any other tax 

code that may be applicable. 

28.4 Shipments 

Developer is responsible for any or all damage or loss to shipments until delivered and 

accepted on Site, as indicated in the Contract Documents.  There must be no charge 

for containers, packing, unpacking, drayage, or insurance.  The total Guaranteed 

Maximum Price shall be all inclusive (including sales tax) and no additional costs of 

any type will be considered. 

28.5 Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements 

If this Contract is subject to federal or other governmental reporting requirements 

because of federal or other governmental financing in whole or in part for the Project 

of which it is part, or for any other reason, Developer shall comply with those reporting 

requirements at the request of the District at no additional cost. 

[END OF DOCUMENT] 



 

Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease        Page 1 of 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT D-1 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing Requirements 

Developer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  

On August 11, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued a new State 

Public Health Officer Order (“Order”) regarding COVID-19 vaccine verification for workers in 

school districts, affecting District operations.  The Order took effect on August 12, 2021, and 

all affected worksites must be in full compliance with the Order by October 15, 2021.  In 

addition, the District passed Resolution No. 3233 which requires all District contractors who 

work directly with students or District staff at District facilities after January 31, 2022 to be 

be fully vaccinated or have submitted a valid exemption to Developer. Accordingly, Developer 

is required to comply with the following before permitting Developer personnel to work at the 

Project site: 

Vaccination Requirements 

Developer shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 

Vaccination/Testing Certification Form.  The completed COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing 

Certification Form must be received by the District prior to the Notice to Proceed.  

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) 

State Public Health Officer Order (“Order”), a person is “fully vaccinated” for COVID-

19 if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 

2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health 

Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose 

vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen).   

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, Developer 

shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination: 

(a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health 

and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card) 

which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose 

administered);  

(b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document;  

(c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic 

device; 

(d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider;  

(e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART 

Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and 

vaccine type; or 

(f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who 

follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards. 

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Developer may accept the documentation 

presented in (a) through (f) above as valid. 



 

Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease        Page 2 of 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking verified Developer personnel 

vaccination status.  Records of vaccination verification must be made available, upon 

request, to the local health jurisdiction for purposes of case investigation. 

Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any 

other personnel entering the Project site, who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom 

vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, must be considered 

unvaccinated. 

 Weekly Testing Requirements 

Developer shall ensure that Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of 

subcontractor, supplier, and any other worker entering the Project site, who have 

submitted a valid exemption to vaccination are required to undergo diagnostic 

screening testing, as specified below: 

(a) Developer personnel may be tested with either antigen or molecular 

tests to satisfy this requirement, but unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated workers 

must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing.  Any 

PCR (molecular) or antigen test used must either have Emergency Use Authorization 

by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or be operating per the Laboratory 

Developed Test requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

(b) Unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated Developer personnel must also 

observe all other infection control requirements, and are not exempted from the 

testing requirement even if they have a medical contraindication to vaccination, since 

they are still potentially able to spread the illness.  Previous history of COVID-19 from 

which the individual recovered more than 90 days earlier, or a previous positive 

antibody test for COVID-19, do not waive this requirement for testing.   

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking test results and conducting workplace 

contact tracing, and must report results to local public health departments, if 

applicable. 

2. COVID-19 Safety and Social Distancing Requirements 

Developer shall, at its cost, timely comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 

requirements relating to COVID-19 including, without limitation, preparing, posting, and 

implementing a Social Distancing Protocol, as required.  In addition, Developer’s Safety Plan, 

required under the General Conditions, must include an Appendix labeled “COVID-19 SAFETY 

PLAN,” which must detail Developer’s safety and compliance plan for COVID-19, specifically 

adapted from the Project, including, without limitation, the following: signage, measures to 

protect employee health, measures to prevent crowds from gathering, measures to keep 

people at least six feet apart, measures to prevent unnecessary contact, and measures to 

increase sanitization. 

3. Mitigation Measures 

Not Used 



 

Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease        Page 3 of 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

4. Permits, Certificates, Licenses, Fees, Approvals 

4.1. Payment for Permits, Certificates, Licenses, Fees, Approvals.   

As required in the General Construction Provisions, Developer shall secure and pay for 

all permits, licenses and certificates necessary for the prosecution of the Work with 

the exception of the following: 

Water Connection Fees, Sewer Connection Fees, Impact Fees, Capacity 

Charges. 

With respect to the above listed items, Developer shall be responsible for securing 

such items; however, District will be responsible for payment of these charges or fees, 

but only for the actual and direct costs (without markup or additional fees).  Developer 

shall notify the District of the amount due with respect to these items and to whom 

the amount is payable.  Developer shall provide the District with an invoice and receipt 

with respect to such charges or fees.  In the alternative, District may pay such costs 

directly to DSA.  

5. Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise 

Not Used 

6. Modernization Projects 

6.1. Access.   

Access to the school buildings and entry to buildings, classrooms, restrooms, 

mechanical rooms, electrical rooms, or other rooms, for construction purposes, must 

be coordinated with District and onsite District personnel before Work is to start.  

Unless agreed to otherwise in writing, only a school custodian will be allowed to unlock 

and lock doors in existing building(s).  The custodian will be available only while school 

is in session.  If a custodian is required to arrive before 7:00 a.m. or leave after 3:30 

p.m. to accommodate Developer’s Work, the overtime wages for the custodian will be 

paid by Developer, unless at the discretion of the District, other arrangements are 

made in advance. 

6.2. Master Key.   

Upon request, the District may, at its own discretion, provide a master key to the 

school site for the convenience of Developer.  Developer agrees to pay all expenses to 

re-key the entire school site and all other affected District buildings if the master key 

is lost or stolen, or if any unauthorized party obtains a copy of the key or access to 

the school. 



 

Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease        Page 4 of 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

6.3. Maintaining Services.   

Developer is advised that Work is to be performed in spaces regularly scheduled for 

instruction.  Interruption and/or periods of shutdown of public access, electrical 

service, water service, lighting, or other utilities shall be only as arranged in advance 

with the District.  Developer shall provide temporary services to all facilities interrupted 

by Developer’s Work. 

6.4. Maintaining Utilities.   

Developer shall maintain in operation during duration of Contract, drainage lines, 

storm drains, sewers, water, gas, electrical, steam, and other utility service lines within 

working area. 

6.5. Confidentiality.   

Developer shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, documents, programs, 

procedures and all other items that Developer encounters while performing the Work.  

This requirement shall be ongoing and shall survive the expiration or termination of 

this Contract and specifically includes, without limitation, all student, parent, and 

employee disciplinary information and health information. 

6.6. Work during Instructional Time.   

Developer affirms that Work may be performed during ongoing instruction in existing 

facilities.  If so, Developer agrees to cooperate to the best of its ability to minimize 

any disruption to school operations and any use of school facilities by the public up to, 

and including, rescheduling specific work activities, at no additional cost to District. 

6.7. No Work during Student Testing.   

Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 

coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, not 

performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or Federally-required 

tests. 

7. Construction Manager 

Kitchell CEM is the Construction Manager described in Section 4 to Exhibit D to the Facilities 

Lease, the General Construction Provisions. 

8. Designation of Certain Products as the Only Acceptable Materials, Products, or 

Things for the Project 

Not Used 

9. Not Used 



 

Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease        Page 5 of 5 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

10.  Not Used 

11.  Not Used 

12. Not Used 

13. Not Used 

14. As-Builts and Record Drawings 

14.1 When called for by Division 1, Developer shall submit As-Built Drawings 

pursuant to the Contract Documents consisting of one set of computer-aided design 

and drafting (“CADD”) files in the following format Auto CADD and PDF, plus one set 

of As-Built Drawings as hard copy. 

14.2 Developer shall submit Record Drawings pursuant to the Contract Documents 

consisting of one set of computer-aided design and drafting (“CADD”) files in the 

following format Auto CADD and PDF, plus one set of Record Drawings as hard copy 

 



 

Exhibit  to Facilities Lease Page  1 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT E 

 

MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE 

 

 This MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE is dated _____________, 20__, and is 

made by and between __________________________ (“Developer”), as Lessor, and the 

Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”), as Lessee. 

 

1. Developer and District have previously entered into a Facilities Lease dated as of 

_____________, 20__, (the “Lease”) for the leasing by Developer to District of the completed 

Project in [City], California, referenced in the Lease. 

 

2. District hereby confirms the following: 

 

A. That all construction of the Project required to be performed pursuant to the Facilities 

Lease has been completed by Developer in all respects; 

 

B. That District has accepted and entered into possession of the Project and now occupies 

same; and 

 

C. That the term for the Lease Payments under the Facilities Lease commenced on 

_______________, 20__ and will expire at 11:59 P.M. on ___________, 20__. 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE IS ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the 

date indicated below:  

 

 

Dated: __________ __ , 20__ 

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District  

 

 

By:              

Name:             

 

Title:              

Dated: __________ __ , 20__ 

 

 

[Developer] 

 

 

By:              

Name:             

 

Title:              

 

(THIS DOCUMENT TO BE EXECUTED AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION) 

 



 

Exhibit  to Facilities Lease Page  1 
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT F 

 

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 

 

Attached is a detailed Project Construction Schedule with a duration no longer than the 

Contract Time, and with specific milestones that Developer shall meet.   

 

(To Be Added to Facility Lease via GMP Construction Addendum) 

 

 

 

  



 

Exhibit  to Facilities Lease PAGE 1  
Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project 
 

EXHIBIT G 

 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

  

Attached is a detailed Schedule of Values that complies with the requirements of the 

Construction Provisions (Exhibit “D”) and that has been approved by the District. 

 

(To Be Added to Facility Lease via GMP Construction Addendum) 

 



PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

 

for the 

 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

PREAMBLE 

 

This Project Labor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the 

Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”), together with contractors and/or 

subcontractors, who shall become signatory to this Agreement by signing the “Agreement 

To Be Bound” (Attachment A), and the Sacramento-Sierra Building & Construction Trades 

Council (“Council”) and the local Unions that have executed this Agreement. 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to promote efficiency of construction 

operations during the construction of the District’s projects subject to this Agreement, and to 

provide for the peaceful settlement of labor disputes and grievances without work 

disruptions or delays, thereby promoting the District’s interest and the public’s interest in 

assuring the timely and cost-effective completion of the District’s construction projects; and  

 

WHEREAS, the successful and efficient completion of the District’s construction projects 

is of the utmost importance to the District and its educational programs and mission; and  

 

WHEREAS, large numbers of workers of various skills will be required in the performance 

of the construction work, including those to be represented by the Unions affiliated with the 

Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that District construction projects require multiple contractors 

and bargaining units on the job site at the same time over an extended period of time, and 

that the potential for work disruption is substantial in the absence of a binding commitment 

to maintain continuity of work; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Employers and the Unions desire to mutually establish and stabilize 

wages, hours and working conditions for the workers employed on the construction projects 

subject to this Agreement in order to promote a satisfactory, continuous and harmonious 

relationship among the parties to this Agreement; and  

 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide construction training and employment 

opportunities for students of and residents within the District through local hire, apprentice 

and pre-apprentice programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties signatory to this Agreement pledge their full good faith and trust to 

work towards mutually satisfactory and successful completion of all District construction 

projects subject to the Agreement; and 

 

Ex
Text Box
Exhibit H to Facilities Lease



 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District has previously adopted 

Resolution No. 2774 regarding the use of Project Labor Agreements on District projects. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 “Agreement” means this Project Labor Agreement. 

 

1.2 “Agreement to be Bound” means the agreement (attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Attachment A) required to be executed by any Employer(s) working on the 

Project as a precondition to performing Covered Work on the Project.  

 

1.3 “Council” means the Sacramento-Sierra Building and Construction Trades Council, 

which is the local jurisdictional division of the State Building and Construction 

Trades Council of California, with affiliated trades unions within its geographical 

jurisdiction of Sacramento, Yolo, Placer, El Dorado, Amador, Nevada and Sierra 

Counties. 

 

1.4 “Completion” means the point at which there is Final Acceptance by the District of a 

Construction Contract.  For purposes of this definition of “Completion,” “Final 

Acceptance” shall mean that point in time at which the District has determined upon 

final inspection that the work on a Construction Contract has been completed in all 

respects and all required contract documents, contract drawings, warranties, 

certificates, manuals and data have been submitted and training completed in 

accordance with the contract documents and the District has executed a written 

acceptance of the work. 

 

1.5 "Construction Contract" means, except as to section 2.5 (exclusions from Covered 

Work) public works or improvement contracts approved by the District, including 

design-bid, design-build, lease-leaseback or other contracts under which construction 

work is performed, that are necessary to complete the Project. 

 

1.6 “District” means the Sacramento Unified School District and the administrative 

employees  under its Superintendent, including any in house Project Manager 

designated by the District for the Project. 

 

1.7 “Contractor(s)” means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity, or any 

combination thereof, including joint ventures, and any of its contractors or 

subcontractors of any tier, or any successor or  assigns of such persons or entities, 

that has entered into a contract with the District, or with any other person or entity 

contracting for work on the Project on behalf of the District (whether by design-bid, 

design-build, lease-leaseback or other means), with respect to the construction of any 

part of the Project under contract terms and conditions approved by the District. 

 



 

1.8 “Master Agreement” means the multi-employer collective bargaining agreement of 

each of the Unions that covers the geographic area of the Project, copies of which 

shall be provided to the District upon request. 

 

1.9 “Project” means any District construction project that has a total minimum value of 

five hundred thousand  ($500,000) or more.  The District may, at its discretion, 

designate other projects or contracts with a total value of less than five hundred 

thousand  ($500,000) to be covered by this Agreement if the District believes it is in 

the best interest of the District to do so.  Routine maintenance of District properties 

are not covered by the scope of this Agreement.  

 

1.10 “Project Manager” means a person, including a District employee, firm or other 

entity designated by the District to manage, coordinate or administer the construction 

work on a Project subject to this Agreement.   

 

1.11 “Union” or “Unions” means the Sacramento-Sierra Building and Construction 

Trades Council and the local Unions that are signatory to this Agreement, acting on 

their own behalf and on behalf of their respective affiliates and member 

organizations whose names are subscribed hereto and who have through their 

officers executed this Agreement. The Council and the local Unions are collectively 

referred to herein as the “Unions.” 

 

ARTICLE 2 

 

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 

2.1 Parties.  This Agreement shall apply and is limited to all Contractor(s), the District 

and the Unions that are signatory to this Agreement. 

 

2.2. Applicability.  This Agreement shall govern all Construction Contracts awarded on 

the District Projects that are subject to this Agreement.  Except for exclusions from 

the Covered Work described in section 2.5, for purposes of this Agreement, a 

Construction Contract shall be considered completed as described in Section 1.4, 

except when the District’s authorized representative directs a Contractor to engage in 

repairs, warranty work, or modifications as required under the original Construction 

Contract with the District. 

 

2.3 Covered Work.  This Agreement covers all on-site construction, alteration, painting 

or repair of buildings, structures and other works and related activities for the Project 

that is within the craft jurisdiction of one of the Unions and which is directly or 

indirectly part of the Project, including, without limitation, start-up and 

commissioning, site preparation, survey work, soil and material inspection and 

testing, modular furniture installation covered by an applicable Master Agreement or 

a prevailing wage determination, all on-site fabrication work, provided such work is 

within the fabrication provision of the Master or national agreement of one of the 

Unions, demolition of existing structures, and all construction, demolition or 

improvements required to be performed as a condition of approval by any public 

agency.  On-site fabrication work includes work done for the Project in temporary 



 

yards or areas near the Project.  This Agreement also covers all off-site work, 

including fabrication, traditionally performed by any of the Unions that is directly or 

indirectly part of the Project, provided such work is covered by a provision of a local 

Master Agreement of the applicable Union(s).  On-site construction shall also 

include the site of any batch plant constructed solely to supply materials to the 

Project.  The furnishing of supplies, equipment or materials which are stockpiled for 

later use shall in no case be considered subcontracting, however, the delivery of 

ready-mix, asphalt, aggregate, sand or other fill material which are directly 

incorporated into the construction process, as well as the off-hauling of debris and 

excess fill and/or mud shall be covered by the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement.  All of the work described in this Section is within the scope of this 

Agreement and is referred to hereafter as “Covered Work.”   

 

2.5 The following shall be excluded from Covered Work: 

 

2.5.1 Work of non-manual employees, including, but not limited to, 

superintendents, supervisors above the level of general foreman (except those 

covered by any applicable Master Agreement), staff engineers, building 

inspectors, timekeepers, clerks, office workers, including messengers, 

guards, safety personnel, emergency medical and first aid technicians, and 

other professional, engineering, administrative, executive and management 

employees; 

 

2.5.2 Equipment and machinery owned or controlled and operated by the District; 

 

2.5.3 Any work performed on or near or leading to or on to the site of work 

covered by this Agreement and undertaken by state, county, city or other 

governmental bodies, or their contractor, or by public utilities or their 

contractors; 

 

2.5.4 Off-site maintenance of leased equipment and on-site supervision of such 

work; 

 

2.5.5 Work performed by employees of a manufacturer or vendor on the 

manufacturer’s or vendor’s equipment if necessary to satisfy the guarantee or 

warranty on such equipment and where performance of the work is expressly 

stated in the manufacturer’s or vendor’s written warranty or guarantee to be a 

condition for the warranty or guarantee for such products.  For any work 

performed pursuant to this provision, the Contractor shall provide copies of 

the written warranty requirement to the District, Project Manager, the 

Council and the affected local Union prior to the commencement of work by 

the manufacturer or vendor.  This exclusion does not apply to any on site 

construction work subcontracted by such manufacturer or vendor. 

 

2.5.6 Off-site maintenance of leased equipment and on-site supervision of such 

work; 

 



 

2.5.7 Laboratory or specialty testing or inspection not covered by an applicable 

Master Agreement; 

 

2.5.8  Non-construction support services contracted by the District or any 

Contractor in connection with this Project;  

 

2.5.9  All work by employees of the District. 

 

ARTICLE 3 

 

SUBCONTRACTING 

 

3.1  Each Contractor agrees that it will contract for the assignment, awarding or 

subcontracting of Covered Work, or authorize another party to assign, award or 

subcontract Covered Work, only to a person, firm, corporation or other entity that, at 

the time the contract is executed, has become a party to this Agreement by executing 

Attachment A, the Agreement to be Bound. 

 

3.2 Each Contractor agrees that it will contract or subcontract the performance of 

Covered Work only to a person, firm, corporation or other entity that is or becomes a 

party to this Agreement.  Any Contractor performing Covered Work on the Project 

shall, as a condition to working on the Project, perform all work under the terms of 

this Agreement and the applicable Master Agreement.  Before being authorized to 

perform any Covered Work, Contractors shall become a party to this Agreement by 

signing Attachment A, the Agreement to be Bound.  Every Contractor shall notify 

the Council in writing within five (5) business days after it has contracted to assign, 

award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award 

or subcontract Covered Work in accordance with Section 3.1 or this Section 3.2, and 

shall at the same time provide to the Council a copy of the executed Agreement to be 

Bound. The District shall also provide copies to the Council of all executed 

Agreements to be Bound that it receives within fifteen (15)  days of receipt.  

 

3.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall in any manner whatsoever limit the rights of the 

District or any Contractor to subcontract Covered Work or to select its contractors or 

subcontractors; provided, however, that all Contractors, at all tiers, assigning, 

awarding, contracting or performing Covered Work, or authorizing another to 

assign, award, contract or perform Covered Work, shall be required to comply with 

the provisions of this Agreement.  Each Contractor shall notify each of its 

contractors and subcontractors of the provisions of this Agreement and require as a 

condition precedent to the assigning, awarding or subcontracting of any Covered 

Work, or allowing any subcontracted Covered Work to be performed, that all such 

contractors and subcontractors at all tiers become signatory to this Agreement.  Any 

Contractor that fails to provide the Council with the Agreement to be Bound 

executed by its contractor or subcontractor shall be liable for any failure of that 

contractor or subcontractor, or any contractor or subcontractor at a lower tier, to 

comply with the provisions of this Agreement, including any contributions to any 

trust funds that the contractor or subcontractor, or any subcontractor to that 

subcontractor, fails to make.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 



 

interfere with or supersede the usual and customary legal remedies available to the 

Unions and/or employee benefit Trust Funds to collect delinquent Trust Fund 

contributions from Contractors on the Project. 

3.4 Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the District’s right to combine, consolidate, or 

cancel contracts for Project construction, or to comply with public agency 

contracting laws. 

 

ARTICLE 4 

 

WAGES AND BENEFITS 

 

4.1  All employees covered by this Agreement (including foremen and general foremen 

if they are covered by the Master Agreement) shall be classified and paid wages and 

other compensation, including but not limited to travel, subsistence, and shift 

premium pay, and contributions made on their behalf to multi-employer trust funds, 

all in accordance with the then current multi-employer Master Agreement of the 

applicable Union and in compliance with the applicable prevailing wage rate 

determination established pursuant to the California Labor Code by the Department 

of Industrial Relations. 

 

4.2  During the period of construction on this Project, the Contractors agree to recognize 

and put into effect such increases in wages and recognized fringe benefits as shall be 

negotiated between the various Unions and the historically recognized local 

bargaining parties on the effective date as set forth in the applicable Master 

Agreement. The Unions shall notify the Contractors in writing of the specific 

increases in wages and recognized fringe benefits and the date on which they 

become effective. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

 

NO STRIKES - NO LOCKOUTS 

 

5.1 During the term of this Agreement, there shall be no strikes, sympathy strikes, 

picketing, work stoppages, picket-related hand billing, slow downs, interference with 

the work or other disruptive activity for any reason by the Union or by any 

employee, and there shall be no lockout by any Contractor.  Failure of any Union or 

employee to cross any picket line established at the Contractor’s Project site is a 

violation of this Article. 

 

5.2 The Union shall not sanction, aid or abet, encourage or continue any work stoppage, 

strike, picketing or other disruptive activity at the Project site and shall undertake all 

reasonable means to prevent or to terminate any such activity.  No employee shall 

engage in activities which violate this Article.  Any employee who participates in or 

encourages any activities which interfere with the normal operation of the Project 

shall be subject to disciplinary action, including discharge, and, if justifiably 



 

discharged for the above reasons, shall not be eligible for rehire on the same project 

for a period of not less than ninety (90) days. 

 

5.3 The Union(s) agrees that if any union or any other persons, whether parties to this 

Agreement or otherwise, engage in any picketing or work stoppages, the signatory 

Unions shall consider such work stoppage or picketing to be illegal and refuse to 

honor such picket line or work stoppage. 

 

5.4 In the event of any work stoppage, strike, sympathy strike, picketing interference 

with the work or other disruptive activity in violation of this Article, the Contractor 

may  suspend all or any portion of the Project work affected by such activity at the 

Contractor’s discretion and without penalty, and the District may replace any 

Contractor whose employees have not reported to work with any other contactor or 

subcontractor in accordance with Section 3.2. 

 

5.5 In addition to any other action at law or equity, any party may elect to have the 

matter decided by a neutral arbitrator in accordance with the following procedure 

when a breach of this Article is alleged, after the Union(s) or Contractor(s) has been 

notified of the fact. 

 

5.5.1 A party invoking this procedure shall notify Robert Hirsch, as the permanent 

arbitrator, or Barry Winograd, as the alternate arbitrator under this procedure. 

In the event that the permanent arbitrator is unavailable at any time, the 

alternate will be contacted. If neither is available, then the American 

Arbitration Association shall select an alternative arbitrator within 24 hours 

of notice.  Notice to the Arbitrator shall be by the most expeditious means 

available, with notice by fax or electronic means or any other effective 

written means to the party alleged to be in violation and the involved 

International Union President and/or local Union. 

 

5.5.2 Upon receipt of said notice, the Project Manager shall contact the designated 

Arbitrator named above or his alternate who will attempt to convene a 

hearing within twenty-four (24) hours if it is contended that the violation still 

exists. 

 

5.5.3 The Arbitrator shall notify the parties by fax or electronic means or any other 

effective written means of the place and time he has chosen for this hearing.  

Said hearing shall be completed in one session.  A failure of any party or 

parties to attend said hearing shall not delay the hearing of evidence or 

issuance of an Award by the Arbitrator. 

 

5.5.4 The sole issue at the hearing shall be whether or not a violation of this Article 

has in fact occurred.  The Award which shall be final and binding shall be 

issued in writing within three (3) hours after the close of the hearing, and 

may be issued without an opinion.  If any party desires an opinion, one shall 

be issued within fifteen (15) days, but its issuance shall not delay compliance 

with, or enforcement of, the Award.  The Arbitrator may order cessation of 

the violation of this Article by the Union or Contractor, and such Award shall 



 

be served on all parties by hand or registered mail upon issuance.  Should a 

party found in violation of this Article fail to comply with an Arbitrator’s 

award to cease the violation, the party in violation shall pay to the affected 

party as liquidated damages the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for the 

first shift for which it failed to comply, or portion thereof, and ten thousand 

dollars ($10,000) for each subsequent shift for which it failed to comply, 

until such violation is ceased. The Arbitrator shall retain jurisdiction to 

resolve any disputes regarding the liquidated damages claimed under this 

Section. 

 

5.5.5 Such Award may be enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction upon 

the filing of this Agreement and all other relevant documents referred to 

hereinabove in the following manner.  The fax or electronic notice of the 

filing of such enforcement proceedings shall be given to the other party.  In 

the proceeding to obtain a temporary order enforcing the Arbitrator’s Award 

as issued under Section 5.5.4 of this Article, all parties waive the right to a 

hearing and agree that such proceedings may be ex parte.  Such agreement 

does not waive any party’s right to participate in a hearing for a final order of 

enforcement.  The Court’s order or orders enforcing the Arbitrator’s Award 

shall be served on all parties by hand or by delivery to their last known 

address or by certified mail. 

 

5.5.6 Any rights created by statute or law governing arbitration proceedings 

inconsistent with the above procedure or which interfere with compliance 

therewith are hereby waived by the parties to whom they accrue. 

 

5.5.7 The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the party or parties 

found in violation, or in the event no violation is found, such fees and 

expenses shall be borne by the moving party. 

 

5.6 The procedures contained in Section 5.5 shall be applicable to alleged violations of 

this Article.  Disputes alleging violation of any other provision of this Agreement, 

including any underlying disputes alleged to be in justification, explanation or 

mitigation of any violation of this Article, shall be resolved under the grievance 

procedures of Article 9. 

 

5.7 In the case of nonpayment of wages or trust fund contributions on the Project, the 

Union shall give the District and the Contractor(s) three (3) business days' notice 

when nonpayment of trust fund contributions has occurred and one (1) business day’s 

notice when nonpayment of wages has occurred or when paychecks being tendered 

to a financial institution normally recognized to honor such paychecks will not honor 

such paycheck as a result of insufficient funds, of the intent to withhold labor from 

the Contractor(s)' or their subcontractor's workforce, during which time the 

Contractor shall have the opportunity to correct the default. In this instance, a Union's 

withholding of labor (but not picketing) from an Contractor who has failed to pay its 

fringe benefit contributions or failed to meet its weekly payroll shall not be considered 

a violation of this Article.  In the event the Union or any of its members withhold 

their services from such contractor or subcontractor, District shall have the right to 



 

replace such contractor or subcontractor with any other contractor or subcontractor 

who executes the Agreement to be Bound. 

5.8 It will not be a violation of this Agreement when the Contractor considers it 

necessary to shut down to avoid the possible loss of human life because of an 

emergency situation that could endanger the life and safety of an employee.  In such 

cases, employees will be compensated only for the actual time worked.  In the case 

of a situation described above whereby the Contractor requests employees to wait in 

a designated area available for work, the employees will be compensated for the 

waiting time. 

 

5.9 If a Master Agreement expires before the Contractor completes the performance of 

work under the Construction Contract and the Union or Contractor gives notice of 

demands for a new or modified Master Agreement, the Union agrees that it will not 

strike on work covered under this Agreement and the Union and the Contractor agree 

that the expired Master Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for work 

covered under this Agreement until a new or modified Master Agreement is reached.  

If the new or modified Master Agreement provides that any terms of the Master 

Agreement shall be retroactive, the Contractor agrees to comply with any retroactive 

terms of the new or modified Master Agreement which are applicable to employees 

who were employed on the projects during the interim, with retroactive payment due 

within seven (7) days of the effective date of the modified Master Agreement subject 

to section 4.3. 

 

ARTICLE 6 

 

WORK ASSIGNMENTS AND JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES 

 

6.1 The assignment of Covered Work will be solely the responsibility of the Contractor 

performing the work involved; and such work assignments will be in accordance 

with the Plan for the Settlement of the Jurisdictional Disputes in the Construction 

Industry (the "Plan") or any successor Plan. 

 

6.2 All jurisdictional disputes on this Project between or among the building and 

construction trades Unions and the Contractors parties to this Agreement, shall be 

settled and adjusted according to the present Plan established by the Building and 

Construction Trades Department or any other plan or method of procedure that may 

be adopted in the future by the Building and Construction Trades Department.  

Decisions rendered shall be final, binding and conclusive on the Contractors and 

Unions parties to this Agreement. 

 

6.3 If a dispute arising under this Article involves the Northern California Carpenters 

Regional Council or any of its subordinate bodies, an Arbitrator shall be chosen by 

the procedures specified in Article V, Section 5, of the Plan from a list composed of 

John Kagel, Thomas Angelo, Robert Hirsch, and Thomas Pagan, and the Arbitrator's 

hearing on the dispute shall be held at the offices of the California State Building 

and Construction Trades Council in Sacramento, California within fourteen (14) 



 

days of the selection of the Arbitrator.  All other procedures shall be as specified in 

the Plan. 

 

6.4 All jurisdictional disputes shall be resolved without the occurrence of any strike, 

work stoppage, or slow-down of any nature and the Contractor's assignment shall be 

adhered to until the dispute is resolved.  Individual employees violating this section 

shall be subject to immediate discharge.  

 

 

ARTICLE 7 

 

JOINT LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS 

 

7.1 Joint Labor/Management Meetings. During the period of any work performed under 

this Agreement, the Project Manager, or District designee, may schedule monthly 

Joint Labor/Management Meetings that include the Project Manager, or the 

District’s designee, the Contractors and the Unions.  The purpose of these meetings 

is to promote harmonious labor/management relations, ensure adequate 

communications and advance the proficiency and efficiency of the employees and 

the Contractors on the Project. These meetings may include a discussion of safety, 

craft resource requirements, scheduling and productivity of work performed at the 

Project.  The Union representative shall keep minutes of any such meetings and the 

minutes shall be subject to approval at any subsequent meeting.  Any such meetings 

may be in person or by conference call. It shall be mandatory for a representative of 

the Unions to participate in such meetings. 

 

7.2 A Pre-Job Conference shall be scheduled by the District prior to the commencement 

of work to establish the scope of work in each Contractor’s contract.  When a 

contract has been let to a Contractor covered by this Agreement, a job conference 

and/or mark up meeting shall be scheduled by the District upon request of any 

Union, Contractor or the District.  

 

 

ARTICLE 8 

 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 

8.1 The Contractor(s) retains full and exclusive authority for the management of their 

work forces for all work performed under this Agreement.  This authority includes, 

but is not limited to the right to: 

 

A.  Plan, direct and control the operation of all the work. 

 

B.  Decide the number and types of employees required to perform the work 

safely and efficiently.  The lawful staffing provisions of the applicable 

Master Agreement shall be recognized. 

 



 

C.  Hire, promote and layoff employees as deemed appropriate to meet work 

requirements and/or skills required. 

 

D.  Require all employees to observe the District and Contractor Project Rules, 

Security and Safety Regulations, consistent with the provisions of this 

Agreement.  These Project Rules and Regulations shall be reviewed and 

mutually agreed upon at the Pre-Job meeting and supplied to all employees 

and/or posted on the jobsite. 

 

E.  Discharge, suspension or discipline will be handled under the applicable craft 

agreement. 

 

F.  Assign and schedule work at its sole discretion and determine when overtime 

will be worked.  There shall be no refusal by a craft to perform work 

assigned, including overtime work.  However, individual craftspeople shall 

not be required to work overtime unless specifically dispatched for overtime 

work.  Any cases of a craft's refusal to work overtime shall be subject to the 

grievance procedure. 

 

G.  Utilize any work methods, procedures or techniques and select and use any 

type or kind of materials, apparatus or equipment regardless of source, 

manufacturer or designator (in accordance with Article 2). 

 

H.  The foregoing listing of management rights shall not be deemed to exclude 

other functions not specifically set forth herein.  The Contractors, therefore, 

retain all legal rights not specifically enumerated in this Agreement. 

 

8.2 All workers employed or otherwise used on a Project shall comply with the 

District’s Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy (BP 4020) and Employee Drug 

Testing Policy (BP 4112.41, 4212.41, 4312.41) and applicable regulations as 

amended from time to time.  If not otherwise specified, the drug testing protocol 

shall be in compliance with 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 382.105 

(Testing procedures) which incorporates 49 CFR Part 40.   

 

ARTICLE 9 

 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 

9.1 It is mutually agreed that any question arising out of and during the term of this 

Agreement involving its interpretation and application (other than matters subject to 

Section 5.5 and Union jurisdictional disputes subject to Article 6) shall be 

considered a grievance.  Questions between or among parties signatory to a Master 

Agreement arising out of or involving the interpretation of a Master Agreement shall 

be resolved under the grievance procedure provided in that Master Agreement. 

 

9.2 The District and other Contractors, as well as the Unions, may bring forth grievances 

under this Article. 

 



 

9.3 A grievance shall be considered null and void if not brought to the attention of the 

Contractor(s) within five (5) working days after the incident that initiated the alleged 

grievance occurred or was discovered, whichever is later.  The term “working days” 

as used in this Article shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays or holidays regardless of 

whether any work is actually performed on such days. 

 

9.4 Grievances shall be settled according to the following procedure, except that 

grievances that do not involve an individual grievant shall be discussed by the 

District, and the Council and then, if not resolved within five (5) working days of 

written notice unless extended by mutual consent, commence at Step 4: 

 

Step 1 

The Steward and the grievant shall attempt to resolve the grievance with the 

craft supervisor within five (5) working days after the Grievance has been 

brought to the attention of the Contractor. 

Step 2 

In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 1 above after five (5) 

working days, within five (5) working days thereafter, the alleged grievance 

may be referred in writing to the Business Manager(s) of the Union(s) 

affected and the site construction manager or Labor Relations representative 

of the Contractor(s) for discussion and resolution.  A copy of the written 

grievance shall also be mailed, faxed or emailed to the District. 

Step 3 

In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 2 above within five (5) 

working days, within five (5) working days thereafter, the grievance may be 

referred in writing to the Business Manager(s) of the affected Union(s) 

involved and the Manager of Labor Relations of the Contractor(s) or the 

Manager’s designated representative and the District for discussion and 

resolution. 

Step 4 

If the grievance is not settled in Step 3 within five (5) working days, within 

five (5) days thereafter, either party may request the dispute be submitted to 

neutral arbitration or the time may be extended by mutual consent of both 

parties.  The request for arbitration and/or the request for an extension of 

time must be in writing with a copy to the District.  Should the parties be 

unable to mutually agree on the selection of a neutral Arbitrator, selection for 

that given arbitration shall be made by seeking a list of seven (7) labor 

arbitrators with construction experience from the Federal Mediation and 

Conciliation Service and alternately striking names from the list of names on 

the list until the parties agree on an Arbitrator or until one name remains.  

The first party to strike a name from the list shall alternate between the party 

bringing forth the grievance and the party defending the grievance.  District 

shall keep a record of the sequence and shall notify the parties to the 

grievance as to which party has the right to strike a name first. 

 

9.5 The Arbitrator shall conduct a hearing at which the parties to the grievance shall be 

entitled to present testimonial and documentary evidence.  Hearings will be 



 

transcribed by a certified court reporter.  The parties shall be entitled to file written 

briefs after the close of the hearing and receipt of the transcript. 

 

9.6 Upon expiration of the time for the parties to file briefs, the Arbitrator shall issue a 

written decision that will be served on all parties and on the District.  The Arbitrator 

shall have the authority to utilize any equitable or legal remedy to prevent and/or 

cure any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement.  The Arbitrator’s decision 

shall be final and binding as to all parties signatory to this Agreement. 

 

9.7 The cost of the Arbitrator and the court reporter, and any cost to pay for facilities for 

the hearing, shall be borne equally by the parties to the grievance.  All other costs 

and expenses in connection with the grievance hearing shall be borne by the party 

who incurs them.   

 

9.8 The Arbitrator’s decision shall be confined to the issue(s) posed by the grievance, 

and the Arbitrator shall not have the authority to modify, amend, alter, add to or 

subtract from any provision of this Agreement.   

 

9.9 Any party to a grievance may invite the District to participate in resolution of a 

grievance.  The District may, at its own initiative, participate in Steps 1 through 3 of 

the grievance procedure. 

 

9.10 In determining whether the time limits of Steps 2 through 4 of the grievance 

procedure have been met, a written referral or request shall be considered timely if it 

is personally delivered, sent by overnight mail or faxed within the five (5) working 

day period.  Any of the time periods set forth in this Article may be extended in 

writing by mutual consent of the parties to the grievance, and any written referral or 

request shall be considered timely if it is personally delivered, sent by overnight mail 

or faxed during the extended time period. 

 

ARTICLE 10 

 

UNION SECURITY 

 

10.1 The Contractors recognize the Unions signatory to this Agreement as the sole 

bargaining representative of all craft employees performing Covered Work for the 

Project. 

 

10.2 All employees performing Covered Work shall, as a condition of employment on or 

before the eighth (8th) cumulative day of employment on the Project, be responsible 

for the payment of the applicable periodic working dues and any associated fees 

uniformly required for union membership in the local Union that is a signatory to 

this Agreement for the duration of his or her employment on the Project.  Nothing in 

this Agreement is intended to prevent any non-union employees from joining the 

local Union. 

 

10.3 Authorized representatives of the Unions shall have access to the Project whenever 

Covered Work is or will be performed on the Project.  All authorized representatives 



 

of the Union must comply with the required uniform check-in procedure prior to 

visiting the work area. 

 

10.4 Each Union shall have the right to designate a working journeyperson as a steward.  

The steward shall be a qualified employee performing the work of that craft and 

shall not exercise any supervisory functions.  Each steward shall be concerned with 

the employees of the steward’s Contractor and not with the employees of any other 

Contractor.  A steward shall be allowed sufficient time to perform his duties. 

 

ARTICLE 11 

 

REFERRAL-LOCAL HIRE 

 

11.1 Contractors performing Covered Work on the Project shall, in filling craft job 

vacancies, utilize and be bound by the registration facilities and referral systems 

established or authorized by the Unions signatory to this Agreement.  Such Job 

Referral System shall be operated in a non-discriminatory manner and in full 

compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including those 

which require equal employment opportunities and non-discrimination.  The 

Contractor(s) shall have the right to reject any applicant referred by the Union(s), in 

accordance with the applicable Master Agreement. The Unions shall be the primary 

source of all craft labor employed on the Project, however, an Contractor with a core 

workforce may request by name, and the local Union shall honor, referral of such 

Contractor’s regular and experienced personnel (“Core Employees”) who have 

applied to the applicable Union to perform Covered Work on the Project.  For 

purposes of this Agreement, a Core Employee is a person who meets all of the 

following: 

(1)  Possesses any license required by state or federal law for the Project 

work to be performed; 

 

(2)  Worked a total of at least one thousand (1,000) hours in the construction 

craft during the prior two (2) years; 

 

(3)  Has been on the Contractor’s active payroll for at least ninety (90) out of 

the one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days prior to the contract 

award; and  

 

(4)  Has the ability to perform safely the basic functions of the applicable 

trade.  

 

11.2 The Union will refer to such Contractor one journeyman employee from the hiring 

hall out-of-work list for the affected trade or craft, and will then refer one of the 

Contractor’s Core Employees as a journeyman.  The process will then be repeated, 

one for one, until such Contractor’s crew requirements are met, or until such 

Contractor has hired eight (8) Core Employees, whichever occurs first.  Thereafter, 

all additional employees in the affected trade or craft shall be hired exclusively from 

the hiring hall out-of-work list(s).  For the duration of the Contractor’s work on the 



 

Project, the ratio shall be maintained.  When such Contractor’s workforce is reduced, 

employees shall be reduced in the same one for one ratio of Core Employees to 

hiring hall referrals as was applied in the initial hiring.  Contractors that are 

signatory to a Master Agreement with Union(s) signatory hereto must comply with 

the hiring hall provisions contained in the applicable Master Agreement, and nothing 

in the referral provisions of this Agreement shall be construed to supersede the local 

hiring hall provisions of the Master Agreement(s) as they apply to such Contractors.  

 

11.3  In the event the referral facilities maintained by the Unions do not refer the 

employees as requested by the Contractor within a forty-eight (48)  hour period after 

such requisition is made by the Contractor (Saturdays, Sundays and holidays 

excepted), the Contractor may employ applicants from any source. Contractors shall 

immediately notify and provide the appropriate Union(s) with the name and address 

of such gate-hires, who shall be bound by the provisions of this Article. 

 

11.4  It is in the interest of the parties to this Agreement to facilitate employment of 

District and Local Area residents, including parents, guardians or other care givers of 

students attending the District’s schools, and to use resources in the Local Area in 

construction of a Project.  The “Local Area” shall be defined as the area within the 

boundaries of the District, the City of Sacramento and Sacramento County.  To the 

extent allowed by law, and consistent with the Union’s hiring hall provisions, and as 

long as they possess the requisite skills and qualifications, residents of the Local 

Area shall be first referred for Project work, including journeymen and apprentices 

covered by this Agreement.  It is the goal of the parties that not less than fifty (50) 

percent of all hours worked on the Project, on a craft by craft basis, be worked by 

residents of the Local Area (including fifty (50) percent of the total hours worked by 

any Core Employees).  Contractors will be required to submit certified weekly 

payroll records to the District along with monthly workforce utilization reports 

documenting the Contractor’s compliance with the requirements described in this 

Article.  At a minimum, the monthly reports must include:  1) data on Local Area 

resident work hour utilization on the Project; and 2) documentation showing any 

requests made to the Union dispatchers for Local Area residents and the Union’s 

response to the request.  An annual report shall be submitted to the Board on the 

number of workers employed, or contracted for, within the Local Area.  

 

ARTICLE 12 

 

APPRENTICES 

 

12.1 The parties recognize the need to maintain continuing support of programs designed 

to develop adequate numbers of competent workers in the construction industry, the 

Contractors will employ apprentices in the respective crafts to perform such work as 

is within their capabilities and which is customarily performed by the craft in which 

they are indentured. 



 

12.2. Apprentices may comprise up to thirty (30) percent of each craft’s work force at any 

time, unless the state approved apprenticeship standards or regulations or the 

applicable Master Agreement establish a lower maximum percentage.   

 

12.3  The parties agree to work with the Construction Technology Academy 

("Academy'') as set forth in Attachment B in order to carry out the training and 

employment objectives of this Agreement, including providing District 

students with the opportunities and skills necessary to enter post-secondary 

study and to pursue lifelong training within the broader context of the building 

trades industry, and to develop and reinforce academic course standards in 

order to maximize career opportunities and technical competency.   

 

ARTICLE 13 

 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

13.1 The Unions and Contractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, political 

affiliation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam veteran or Vietnam Era status, 

disability as identified in the Americans with Disabilities Act, membership in a labor 

organization in hiring and dispatching workers for the Project, or any other basis 

recognized by law.  The parties to this Agreement understand and agree that nothing 

in this Agreement shall supersede or take precedence over any District Board of 

Education policy or requirement including, but not limited to, the construction 

contract and general conditions for the Project. 

 

13.2 All qualified (as determined by the District and applicable law) contractors and 

subcontractors may bid and be awarded work on a Project without regard to whether 

they are otherwise parties to collective bargaining agreements provided they comply 

with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 14 

 

HOURS OF WORK, SHIFTS AND HOLIDAYS 

 

14.1  The standard work day shall be in accordance with the applicable Master 

Agreements.  Common start times may be established by the Contractor during the 

standard work day established by the applicable Master Agreements.  The standard 

work week shall be five (5) consecutive days of work commencing on Monday.  

Nothing herein shall be construed as guaranteeing any employee eight (8) hours of 

work per day or forty (40) hours of work per week. 

 

14.2 Common shifts may be established when considered necessary by the Contractor.  

The Contractor shall provide at least one week notice to the Council prior to any 

change in shift time.  Any shifts established shall continue for the established work 

week.   

 



 

14.3 Recognized holidays shall be in accordance with the applicable Master Agreements.  

Under no circumstances shall any work be performed on Labor Day except in cases 

of emergency involving life or property.  In the event a holiday falls on Saturday, the 

previous day, Friday, shall be observed as such holiday.  In the event a holiday falls 

on Sunday, the following day, Monday, shall be observed as such holiday.  There 

shall be no paid holidays.  If employees are required to work on a holiday, they shall 

receive the appropriate rate, but in no case shall such overtime rate be more than 

double the straight time rate. 

 

ARTICLE 15 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

15.1 If any article or provision of this Agreement shall become invalid, inoperative and/or 

unenforceable by operation of law or by declaration of any competent authority of 

the executive, legislative, judicial or administrative branches of the federal or state 

government, the District, the Contractors and the Council shall suspend the operation 

of such article or provision during the period of its invalidity, and the District and the 

Council shall negotiate in its place and stead an article or provision that will satisfy 

the objections to its validity and that, to the greatest extent possible, will be in accord 

with the intent and purpose of the article or provision in question.  The new article or 

provision negotiated by the District and the Council shall be binding on all parties 

signatory to this Agreement. 

 

15.2 If any article or provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, inoperative or 

unenforceable by operation of law, or by any of the above mentioned tribunals of 

competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement or application of such article 

or provision to persons or circumstances other than to which it has been held invalid, 

inoperative or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby. 

 

15.3 Except as enumerated in this Agreement, all other terms and conditions of 

employment described in the Master Agreement of the Union having traditional and 

customary jurisdiction over the Covered Work shall apply. 

 

15.4 The provisions of this Agreement shall take precedence over conflicting provisions 

of any Master Agreement or any other national, area or local collective bargaining 

agreement, except for all work performed under the NTL Articles of Agreement, the 

National Stack/Chimney Agreement and the National Cooling Tower Agreement.  In 

addition, all instrument calibration work and loop checking Covered Work shall be 

performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW Joint National Agreement for 

Instrument and Control Systems Technicians, and work within the craft jurisdiction 

of the Elevator Constructors will be performed under the terms of the National 

Agreements of the International Union of Elevator Constructors.  Notwithstanding 

the provisions of this section, Articles 5, 6 and 9 of this Agreement shall apply to all 

Covered Work. 

 

15.4 Each person executing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is 

authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party or parties indicated.   



 

 

15.5 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each 

counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document.  All executed counterparts 

together shall constitute one and the same document, and any signature pages may 

be assembled to form a single original document. 

 

15.6 To the fullest extent consistent with the applicable Master Agreement and trust 

agreement, it is agreed that any liability under this Agreement by District, the 

Council, a Union, or any other Contractor shall be several and not joint.  Any alleged 

breach of this Agreement by a party shall not affect the rights, liabilities, obligations, 

and duties among the other parties or between that party and any other party. 

 

ARTICLE 16 

 

HELMETS TO HARDHATS 

 

16.1 The Contractors and Unions recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the 

building and construction trades of veterans and members of the National Guard and 

Reserves who are interested in careers in the building and construction industry.  The 

Contractors and Unions agree to utilize the services of the Center for Military 

Recruitment, Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter “Center”), a joint 

Labor-Management Cooperation Trust Fund, established under the authority of 

Section 6(b) of the Labor-Management Cooperation Act of 1978, 29 U.S.C. Section 

175(a), and Section 302(c)(9) of the Labor-Management Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. 

Section 186(c)(9), and a charitable tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) 

of the Internal Revenue Code, and the Center’s “Helmets to Hardhats” program to 

serve as a resource for preliminary orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, 

referral to apprenticeship programs or hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, 

support network, employment opportunities and other needs as identified by the 

parties. 

 

16.2 The Unions and Contractors agree to coordinate with the Center to create and 

maintain an integrated database of veterans and members of the National Guard and 

Reserves interested in working on this Project and of apprenticeship and 

employment opportunities for this Project.  To the extent permitted by law, the 

Contractors and Unions will give credit to such veterans and members of the 

National Guard and Reserves for bona fide, provable past experience.  

 

ARTICLE 17 

 

DURATION OF AGREEMENT; MID-TERM ASSESSMENT  

 

 

17.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of  four (4) years 

from the date approved by the Board of Education on November 16, 2017.  

Notwithstanding the term of the Agreement as set forth above, the Agreement 

will continue to apply until the completion of all Covered Work pursuant to 

Section 2.1 where the initial bid for any Construction Contract for a Project is 



 

awarded or approved by the Board on or before the date the Agreement 

terminates.   

 

17.2 At the two year mark, a mid-term assessment, including mutually agreed upon 

metrics, shall be reported to the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 































 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

 

Project: ____________________ 

Bid Number __________ 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1.) It is a Contractor as that term is defined in Section 1.7 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District Agreement (“Agreement”) because it has been, or will be, 

awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work (as 

defined in Section 2.3) on the Project (as defined in Section 1.9), or to authorize 

another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered 

Work. 

2.) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 

consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 

copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 

bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreement, together with any and all 

amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

3.) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust 

agreements designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby 

authorizes the parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor 

trustee to administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so 

appointed as if made by the undersigned. 

4.) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 

compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

5.) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 

document, from any Contractor(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to 

assign, award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, 

award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work, and it will 

provide a copy of such executed Agreement to be Bound to the Sacramento-Sierra  

  

 

 

jward
Typewritten Text

jward
Typewritten Text

jward
Typewritten Text
Luther Burbank Pool & Locker Room Improvement

jward
Typewritten Text
0530-442



 

 

 Building & Construction Trades Council within fifteen (15) days of such contracting 

or subcontracting in accordance with Section 3.2 of the Agreement. 

 

DATED:   Name of Contractor   

  

(Authorized Officer & Title) 

  

  

(Address)



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

 

Project: ____________________ 

Bid Number __________ 
 
Construction Technology Academy.  The parties have agreed to work with the 

Construction Technology Academy ("Academy'') operated at the Sacramento City Unified 

School District's comprehensive high schools to carry out the training and  employment 

objectives of this Attachment B.  The overall objectives are to: 
 

(a) offer opportunities and skills necessary to enter post-secondary study and to 

pursue lifelong learning within the broader context of the building trades 

industry and construction management industry; and 
 

(b) develop and reinforce academic course contents standards in order to 

maximize career opportunities and technical competency. 
 
Academy Steering Committee. In order to facilitate the goals of the Academy, the District 

and Council agree to create a steering committee (“Commit tee”)  which will conduct 

meetings as determined by the District during the school year to develop the goals of the 

Academy; plan for the presentation and content of training lectures to facilitate employable 

skills in the construction trades; develop a summer schedule for training; organize and develop 

summer internship positions; assist in planning curriculum scope and sequencing; design co-

curricular activities; identify sources for educational and financial support; and otherwise 

initiate steps to carry out the goals of the Academy.   

 

The committee shall consist of eight (8) members, with three (3) of the  members representing 

building trades JATCs, two (2) members representing the Sacramento-Sierra Building and 

Construction Trades Council (“Council”) and three (3) members representing the District.  The 

Academy Steering Committee, in coordination with the District's Career Services 

representative, shall develop and implement a plan for annual assessment of the goals and 

objectives of Attachment B in order to maximize the employability of the summer interns 

described below.  A quorum for the Committee meeting shall be at least one member 

representing the building trades JATCs; one member representing the Council; and one 

member representing the District. 
 

(1)  Annual Training Summer Sessions.  Annual summer intern training 

sessions developed by the Academy Steering Committee shall be made 

available for qualified District students nominated by the District and 

accepted by the Academy Steering Committee. 
 

(a) Purpose of Summer Training Sessions.  The purpose of the summer 

intern training sessions is to teach the interns employable skills in the 

construction trades and soft job skills applicable to any job setting.  The 

skills sets to be taught will be determined by the Academy Steering 

jward
Typewritten Text
Luther Burbank Pool & Locker Room Improvement

jward
Typewritten Text
0530-442



 

 

Committee.  Examples of such are work site safety, proper use of 

construction tools, general employability skills and drug and alcohol 

information.  The sessions shall include classroom and job visit 

components. 

 
(b) Number of Interns.  The goal for the summer programs for the term of 

the Agreement shall be a maximum of twenty (20) internships available 

for students nominated by the District and approved by the Academy 

Steering Committee.  The actual number of interns shall be determined 

and selected by the District. 

 

(c) Number and Scope of Training Sessions.  For the first year, the number 

of summer training sessions shall not be less than eight (8) with each 

session lasting a minimum of four (4) hours.  The scope of the training 

sessions, and the presenters, shall be developed by the Academy Steering 

Committee.  The location of the summer training centers will be at a 

JATC and the JATC’s will provide presenters.  Attendances at the 

training sessions are mandatory in order to be eligible for a summer 

internship.  

(d) Cost.  The District shall incur the costs of the interns.  After the first year, 

a report shall be submitted to the Board of the costs incurred by the 

District and the costs incurred as provided by the Council, through the 

local Unions.     

  

(2) Employment of Interns.  The interns shall be paid an hourly rate as required 

by law, but not for periods of time attending the classroom training sessions.  

The training sessions shall occur over a minimum of four (4) and maximum of 

five (5) weeks.  The number of interns each year shall be determined by the 

District pursuant to (1)(b) above.  Due to safety, prevailing wage and state law 

restrictions, the interns shall not be employed directly on the public works 

projects that are the subject of the Project Labor Agreement and this 

Attachment B. 

 

(3) Intern Program and Priority on California Apprenticeship Council 

Approved Program Apprenticeship Lists. 

 

(a) Post-graduate Training. The Academy Steering Committee will 

collaborate with post-graduate training programs, such as the Northern 

California Construction Training and American River College’s Stripe 

Program, in order to assist graduates in obtaining an internship into a 

JATC. 

 

(b) Priority on Apprenticeship List.  The training and employment program 

of the interns shall be developed by the Academy Steering Committee such 

that graduating interns shall possess the skills, training, and educational 

background to help the graduate achieve priority on the lists of the building 

trades to the degree allowed under each JATC’s application process 



 

 

including those programs that allow direct entry.  It is recognized that the 

Apprenticeship Programs operate according to existing Standards approved 

by the California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of 

Apprenticeship Standards, and the standards set forth in the collective 

bargaining agreements for each building trades union and that any such 

priority shall be in accordance with such Standards and agreements. 

 

(4) District Staff Training.  The parties have also agreed that the Academy 

Steering Committee will explore opportunities to utilize the Academy’s 

construction skills training program, including work site safety and proper use of 

construction tools, to enhance the skills of District maintenance and construction 

staff. 

 

(5) Binding Effect.  This Attachment B shall be deemed incorporated into the 

Agreement as if set forth fully and at length in the Agreement and is binding in 

accordance with its terms.  However, nothing in this Attachment B shall 

supersede the provisions of the Project Labor Agreement, a Master Agreement 

or the approved standards for any building trades' union apprenticeship program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
J:\wdocs\00736\019\agt\00543182.DOCX 



Amendment Extending Term of  
Project Labor Agreement 

for the 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

 
 

This Amendment ("Amendment") to the Project Labor Agreement for the Sacramento City 
Unified School District (“PLA”) is entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified 
School District (“District”), together with contractors and/or subcontractors who previously 
became signatory to the PLA and this Amendment by signing the “Agreement To Be Bound” 
(PLA Attachment A), and the Sacramento-Sierra Building & Construction Trades Council 
(“Council”) and the local Unions that have executed this Amendment (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 
  
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the PLA on or about November 16, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 17.1 of the PLA provides the term of the PLA shall be for a period of four (4) 
years from the date approved by the District’s Board of Education on November 16, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend the term of the PLA for a period of six (6) months through 
and including May 16, 2022. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The term of the PLA shall be extended to May 16, 2022. 
 

2. This Amendment shall not alter or affect in any way any other portion of the PLA. 
All other terms of the PLA remain in full force and effect. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Amendment on the dates set forth below. 
 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
________________________________  Date:  November __, 2021 
Name:  Christina Pritchett 
Title:    President 
 
 
Sacramento-Sierra Building and  
Construction Trades Council 
 
________________________________  Date:  __________________ 
Name:  Kevin Ferreira 
Title:    President 
 
  

jessica-sulli
Text Box

jessica-sulli
Text Box
Currently being routed for signatures - will replace with executed copy when available.

sfowler
Text Box
Exhibit H to Facilities Lease (Continued)



UNIONS 
  

______________________________ 
Asbestos Workers Local #16 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Iron Workers Local #118 
 

__________________________________ 
Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 
Local #67 

 

__________________________________ 
Laborers Local #185 

__________________________________ 
Boilermakers Local #549 

 

__________________________________ 
Northern California Carpenters Regional 
Council on behalf of itself and its affiliated 
Local Unions 

 

__________________________________ 
Bricklayers Local #3 

 

__________________________________ 
Operating Engineers Local # 3 

__________________________________ 
Cement Masons Local #400 

 

 

__________________________________ 
Plasterers & Cement Masons Local #300 

__________________________________ 
District Council #16 International Union of 
Painters & Allied Trades  

__________________________________ 
Plumbers & Pipefitters Local #447 

__________________________________ 
Elevator Constructors Local #8 

 

__________________________________ 
Roofers Local #81 

 

__________________________________ 
International Brotherhood of Electricians  
Local #340 

 

__________________________________ 
Sheet Metal Workers Local #104 



  

__________________________________ 
Sprinkler Fitters Local #669 

 
 
__________________________________ 
Teamsters Local #150 

 
 
__________________________________ 
UA of Journeymen & Apprentices of the 
Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind. Local #355 
 

 



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
 
For all or a portion of the following Site: 

 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
Recorded Address: 6749 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
Physical Address: 6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
APN: 030-0370-021 

 
By and between 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 
And 

 
Landmark Construction  
4312 Anthony Court, Ste. B 
Rocklin, CA  95677 

 
Dated as of May 19, 2022   



Performance Bond 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2  

PERFORMANCE BOND 
(100% of Contract Price) 

 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
(“District”) and  (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the furnishing 
of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform 
the following project: 

 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
 
(“Project”  or  “Contract”)  which Contract dated  , 20 , and all of the Contract 
Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made a part 
hereof; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of the Contract to furnish a bond for the faithful 
performance of the Contract. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and    
  (“Surety”) are held 
and firmly bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of 

 
 
 

Dollars ($  ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum 
well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents, to: 

 
- Promptly perform all the work required to complete the Project; and 

 
- Pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the Principal’s failure 

to perform all the Work required to complete the Project. 
 
Or, at the District’s sole discretion and election, the Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for completing 
the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the District of 
the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the District and make 
available as Work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the “balance of the 
Contract Price,” and to pay and perform all obligations of Principals under the Contract, including, 
without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of liquidated 
damages. The term “balance of the Contract Price,” as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total 
amount payable to Principal by the District under the Contract and any modifications thereto, less the 
amount previously paid by the District to the Principal, less any withholdings by the District allowed 
under the Contract. District shall not be required or obligated to accept a tender of a completion 
contractor from the Surety for any or no reason. 

 
The condition of the obligation is such that, if the above bounden Principal, his or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Contract and any alteration 
thereof made as therein provided, on his or its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the 
intent and meaning, including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of materials and 



Performance Bond 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2  

workmanship, and shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its trustees, officers and agents, 
as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and remain 
in full force and virtue. 

 
Surety expressly agrees that the District may reject any contractor or subcontractor proposed by 
Surety to fulfill its obligations in the event of default by the Principal. Surety shall not utilize Principal 
in completing the Work nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for completion of the Work if the 
District declares the Principal to be in default and notifies Surety of the District’s objection to Principal’s 
further participation in the completion of the Work. 

 
As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall 
hold good for a period equal to the warranty and/or guarantee period of the Contract, during which 
time Surety’s obligation shall continue if Developer shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory 
repair and replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or caused 
by defective materials or faulty workmanship. The obligations of Surety hereunder shall continue so 
long as any obligation of Developer remains. Nothing herein shall limit the District’s rights or 
Developer or Surety’s obligations under the Contract, law or equity, including, but not limited to, 
California Code of Civil Procedure section 337.15. 

 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 
specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does 
hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the 
Contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall for all 
purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above 
named, on the            day of  , 20 . 

 
 
 

Principal  Surety 

By  By 

  Name of California Agent of Surety 

  Address of California Agent of Surety 

  Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety 
 
 
 

Developer must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power 
of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance 
must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer. 

 
END OF DOCUMENT 



Payment Bond 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2  

PAYMENT BOND 
Developer's Labor & Material Bond 

(100% of Contract Price) 
 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
(“District”) and  (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the furnishing 
of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to 
perform the following project: 

 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
 
(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated  , 20 , and all of the Contract 
Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made a 
part hereof; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to law and the Contract, the Principal is required, before entering upon 
the performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient bond with the body by which the 
Contract is awarded in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price, 
to secure the claims to which reference is made in sections 9000 through 9510 and 9550 
through 9566 of the Civil Code, and division 2, part 7, of the Labor Code. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and   
   (“Surety”) 
are held and firmly bound unto all laborers, material men, and other persons referred to in 
said statutes in the sum of    
Dollars ($  ), lawful money of the United States, being a sum not less than the total 
amount payable by the terms of Contract, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, jointly 
and severally, by these presents. 

 
The condition of this obligation is that if the Principal or any of his or its subcontractors, of 
the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall 
fail to pay for any labor, materials, provisions, provender, or other supplies, used in, upon, 
for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the 
Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal or any 
of his or its subcontractors of any tier under Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance 
Code with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not 
exceeding the amount herein above set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, 
will pay a reasonable attorney’s fee to be awarded and fixed by the Court, and to be taxed as 
costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 

 
It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any 
and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under section 9100 of the 
Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon 
this bond. 

 
Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null 
and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and affect. 



Payment Bond 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2  

And the Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension 
of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of Contract or the specifications accompanying 
the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive 
notice of any such change, extension, alteration, or addition. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall 
for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and 
Surety above named, on the  day of  , 20 . 

 
 
 

Principal  Surety 

By  By 

  Name of California Agent of Surety 

  Address of California Agent of Surety 

  Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety 
 
 
 

Developer must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and 
a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California 
Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety 
insurer. 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 



Workers' Compensation Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1  

WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 
 
 
Labor Code section 3700, in relevant part, provides: 

 
Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or 
more of the following ways: 

 
a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers 

duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state; and/or 
 

b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to 
self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the 
Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any 
compensation that may become due to his employees. 

 
I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer 
to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract. 

 
Date:   

Proper Name of Developer:     

Signature:    

Print Name:    
 
Title:    

 
(In accordance with Labor Code sections 1860 and 1861, the above certificate must be 
signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any Work under this Contract.) 

 
END OF DOCUMENT 



Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirements Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1  

PREVAILING WAGE AND 
RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 

 
 
I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract 
requirements regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours’ notice, 
payroll records, and apprentice and trainee employment requirements, for all Work on the 
above Project including, without limitation, labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by 
the Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
Date: 

 
Name of Developer:    

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 3  

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION 
/FINGERPRINTING CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned does hereby certify to the District that I am a representative of the Developer 
currently under contract with the District; that I am familiar with the facts herein certified; 
and that I am authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of Developer. 

 
Developer certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions (check all that apply): 

 
 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Developer has installed or will install, 

prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit contact 
between Developer's employees, Subcontractors or suppliers and District pupils at all 
times; and/or 

 
 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Developer certifies that all employees will 

be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an employee of the Developer 
who the California Department of Justice (“DOJ”) has ascertained, or as described below, 
will ascertain, has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. The name and title of 
the employee who will be supervising Developer's and its subcontractors' or suppliers’ 
employees is: 

Name:  

Title:    

NOTE: If Developer is a sole proprietor, and elects the above option, Developer must have 
the above-named employee’s fingerprints prepared and submitted by District for 
submission to the DOJ, in accordance with Education Code section 45125.1(h). No work 
shall commence until such determination by DOJ has been made. 

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), the District will take appropriate steps to 
protect the safety of any pupils that may come in contact with Developer’s employees, 
subcontractors or suppliers so that the fingerprinting and criminal background 
investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply to Developer 
under the Contract. 

 
 The Work on the Contract is either (i) at an unoccupied school site and no employee of 

Developer and/or subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract shall come in 
contact with the District pupils or (ii) if Developer’s employees or any subcontractor or 
supplier of any tier of the Contract interacts with pupils, such interaction shall only take 
place under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a 
school employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation 
requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 shall not apply to Developer under the 
Contract. 

 

 
[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 



Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 3  

 The Developer, who is not a sole proprietor, has complied with the fingerprinting 
requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 with respect to all Developer’s employees 
and all of its Subcontractors’ employees who may have contact with District pupils in the 
course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the DOJ has determined (A) 
that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in 
Education Code section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an 
employee as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). When the 
Developer performs the criminal background check, it shall immediately provide any 
subsequent arrest and conviction information it receives to the District pursuant to the 
subsequent arrest service. No work shall commence until the Department of Justice 
ascertains that Developer’s employees and any subcontractors’ employees have not been 
convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1. 

 
A complete and accurate list of Developer's employees and of all of its 
subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during 
the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto as ATTACHMENT “A;” 
and/or 

 
 The Developer is a sole proprietor and intends to comply with the fingerprinting 

requirements of Education Code section 45125.1(h) with respect to all Developer’s 
employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services 
pursuant to the Contract, and hereby agrees to the District’s preparation and submission 
of fingerprints such that the DOJ may determine (A) that none of those employees has 
been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1 
and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee as provided by Education 
Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). No work shall commence until the Department of 
Justice ascertains that Developer’s employees and any subcontractors’ employees have 
not been convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1. 

 
Developer’s responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, 
Subcontractors or suppliers, and employees of Subcontractors or suppliers coming into 
contact with District pupils regardless of whether they are designated as employees or acting 
as independent contractors of the Developer. 

 

 
[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 



Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 3  

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

List of Employees/Subcontractors 
 
Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:    

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:    

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:    

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:    

Name/Company:  

Name/Company:    

If further space is required for the list of employees/subcontractors, attach additional copies 
of this page. 

Date: 

Proper Name of Developer:    

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification Page 1 of 1 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

 

COVID-19 VACCINATION/TESTING CERTIFICATION 
 
The California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) requires, pursuant to its August 11, 
2021, Order (“Order”), that all public and private schools serving students in transitional 
kindergarten through grade twelve, unless exempt, are required to verify the vaccine status 
of all K-12 school workers. Further, pursuant to the Order, all such schools are required to 
verify that all workers are either fully vaccinated or undergo weekly diagnostic testing. 

 
On October 12, 2021, the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District 
(“SCUSD”) approved Resolution No. 3233: Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination for Eligible, Non-
Exempt Students and Staff, providing that as of January 31, 2022, “all non-exempt SCUSD 
staff (including SCUSD partners, contractors, and other individuals who work directly with 
students and SCUSD staff on SCUSD facilities)” must be fully vaccinated prior to performing 
services at District facilities. 

 
In light of these requirements, Developer certifies that the following entity: 

 
 

has verified that the Developer and its subcontractors’ personnel providing services at 
 District’s Project site(s): 

 

□ Have all been fully vaccinated in accordance with the District’s Policy. 

□ 
 
Have not all been fully vaccinated, but those who are unvaccinated or not 
fully vaccinated have filed a valid exemption from vaccination with Developer 
and will undergo weekly diagnostic testing in accordance with the District’s 
Policy. 

 
Developer understands that the District’s Project site will need to comply with the District’s 
COVID-19 requirements for fully vaccinated personnel or unvaccinated personnel. Developer 
will comply with District policy, and all applicable state and local laws for vaccinated and 
unvaccinated personnel. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I,  , certify that I am Developer’s    
and that I have made a diligent effort to ascertain the facts with regard to the representations 
made herein. 

 
Date: 

Proper Name of Developer:    

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2  

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 
 
 
This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from the successful Bidder pursuant 
to Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990. The Drug- 
Free Workplace Act of 1990 requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or 
grant for the procurement of any property or service from any state agency must certify that 
it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing certain specified acts. In addition, the Act 
provides that each contract or grant awarded by a state agency may be subject to suspension 
of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the contractor or grantee may be 
subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that 
specified acts have occurred. 

 
The District is not a “state agency” as defined in the applicable section(s) of the Government 
Code, but the District is a local agency and public school district under California law and 
requires all contractors on District projects to comply with the provisions and requirements of 
Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990. 

 
Developer shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following: 

 
a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 

distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the person’s or organization’s workplace and specifying actions 
which will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition. 

 
b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of 

the following: 
 

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace. 
 

(2) The person’s or organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free 
workplace. 

 
(3) The availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee- 

assistance programs. 
 

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

 
c. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or 

grant be given a copy of the statement required above, and that, as a condition 
of employment on the contract or grant, the employee agrees to abide by the 
terms of the statement. 

 
I, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code section 
8355 listed above and will publish a statement notifying employees concerning (a) the 
prohibition of controlled substance at the workplace, (b) establishing a drug-free awareness 
program, and (c) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the Contract 
be given a copy of the statement required by section 8355(a), and requiring that the employee 
agree to abide by the terms of that statement. 



Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2  

I also understand that if the District determines that I have either (a) made a false certification 
herein, or (b) violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of section 
8355, that the Contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension of payments, or 
both. I further understand that, should I violate the terms of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990, I may be subject to debarment in accordance with the requirements of the 
aforementioned Act. 

 
I acknowledge that I am aware of the provisions of Government Code section 8350 et seq. 
and hereby certify that I will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990. 

 
Date:    

 

Proper Name of Developer:     

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



Tobacco-Free Environment Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1  

TOBACCO-FREE ENVIRONMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 
Pursuant to, without limitation, 20 U.S.C. section 6083, Labor Code section 6400 et seq., 
Health & Safety Code section 104350 et seq., and District Board policies, all District sites, 
including the Project site, are tobacco-free environments. Smoking and the use of tobacco 
products by all persons is prohibited on or in District property. District property includes school 
buildings, school grounds, school-owned vehicles and vehicles owned by others while on 
District property. 

 
I acknowledge that I am aware of the District’s policy regarding tobacco-free environments 
at District sites, including the Project site and hereby certify that I will adhere to the 
requirements of that policy and not permit any of my firm’s employees, agents, 
subcontractors, or my firm’s subcontractors’ employees or agents, to use tobacco and/or 
smoke on the Project site. 

 
Date:    

 

Proper Name of Developer:     

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 4  

DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATION 

 
 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 
 
Section 17076.11 of the Education Code requires school districts using, or planning to use, 
funds allocated pursuant to the State of California School Facility Program (“Program”) for the 
construction and/or modernization of school buildings to have a participation goal for disabled 
veteran business enterprises (“DVBE”) of at least three percent (3%) per year of the overall 
dollar amount expended each year by the school district on projects that receive state funding. 
Therefore, lowest responsive responsible bidder awarded the Contract must submit this 
document to the District after issuance of the Notice of Award After Guaranteed Maximum 
Price, identifying the steps Developer took to solicit DVBE participation in conjunction with 
this Contract. Do not submit this form with your bids. 

 
PART I – Method of Compliance with DVBE Participation Goals. Check the appropriate 
box to indicate your method of committing the contract dollar amount. 

 
YOUR BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
IS: 

AND YOU WILL AND YOU WILL 

 Disabled veteran owned and your 
forces will perform at least 3% of 
this Contract 

Include a copy of your 
DVBE letter from Office 
of Small Business and 
Disabled Veterans 
Business Enterprise 
Services (“OSB”)* 

Complete Part 1 of this 
form and the 
Certification 

 Disabled veteran owned but is 
unable to perform 3% of this 
Contract with your forces 

Use DVBE 
subcontractors 
/suppliers to bring the 
Contract participation to 
at least 3% 

Include a copy of each 
DVBE’s letter from OSB 
(including yours, if 
applicable), and 
complete Part 1 of this 
form and the 
certification 

 NOT disabled veteran owned Use DVBE 
subcontractors 
/suppliers for at least 
3% of this Contract 

 Unable to meet the required 
participation goals after good 
faith efforts 

Make good faith efforts, 
including contacts, 
advertisement and DVBE 
solicitation 

Complete all of this form 
and the Certification 

* A DVBE letter from OSB is obtained from the participating DVBE. 



Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 4  

You must complete the following table to show the dollar amount of DVBE 
participation: 

 
 TOTAL CONTRACT 

PRICE 

A. Prime Bidder, if DVBE (own participation) $ 

DVBE Subcontractor or Supplier  

  

  

  

  

Subtotal (A & B)  

Non-DVBE  

Total Bid  

 
PART II – Contacts. To identify DVBE subcontractors/suppliers for participation in your 
contract, you must contact each of the following categories. You should contact several DVBE 
organizations. 

 
CATEGORY TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 
DATE 
CONTACTED 

PERSON 
CONTACTED 

The District, if any   * 

OSB, which publishes a list of 
DVBE’s; Internet Address: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/osbcr 

(916) 323-5478 
(916) 322-5060 

 * 

DVBE Organization (List)   * 

    
    
    

*Write “recorded message” in this column, if applicable. 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/osbcr


Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 4  

PART III – Advertisement. You must advertise for DVBE participation in both a trade and 
focus paper. List the advertisement you place to solicit DVBE participation. Advertisements 
should be published at least fourteen (14) days prior to bid/proposal opening; if you cannot 
advertise fourteen (14) days prior, advertisements should be published as soon as possible. 
Advertisements must include that your firm is seeking DVBE participation, the project name 
and location, and you firm’s name, your contact person, and telephone number. Attach copies 
of advertisements to this form. 

 
FOCUS/TRADE PAPER NAME CHECK ONE DATE OF 

ADVERTISEMENT 
 TRADE FOCUS  
    
    

 
PART IV – DVBE Solicitations. List DVBE subcontractors/suppliers that were invited to bid. 
Use the following instructions to complete the remainder of this section (read the three 
columns as a sentence from left to right). If you need additional space to list DVBE 
solicitations, please use a separate page and attach to this form. 

 
IF THE DVBE….. THEN….. AND….. 
was selected to participate Check “yes” in the 

“SELECTED” column 
include a copy of their DVBE 
letter(s) from OSB 

was NOT selected to 
participate 

Check “NO” in the 
“SELECTED” column 

state why in the “REASON 
NOT SELECTED” column 

did not respond to your 
solicitation 

Check the “NO RESPONSE” 
column. 

 

DISABLED VETERANS BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISES CONTACTED 

SELECTED REASON 
NOT 
SELECTED 

NO 
RESPONSE 

 YES NO   

     

     

     

     

 
A copy of this form must be retained by you and may be subject to a future audit. 



Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 4 of 4  

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
I,  certify that I am Developer’s    
and that I have made a diligent effort to ascertain the facts with regard to the representations 
made herein. 

 
Date:    

 

Name of Developer:    

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 5  

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
PROCEDURES & REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
2. Summary 

 
This document includes information applicable to hazardous materials and hazardous 
waste abatement. 

 
3. Notice of Hazardous Waste or Materials 

 
a. Developer shall give notice in writing to the District, the Construction Manager, 

and the Architect promptly, before any of the following materials are disturbed, 
and in no event later than twenty-four (24) hours after first observance, of any: 

 
(1) Material that Developer believes may be a material that is hazardous 

waste or hazardous material, as defined in section 25117 of the Health 
and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, 
or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; 

 
(2) Other material that may present a substantial danger to persons or 

property exposed thereto in connection with Work at the site. 
 

b. Developer's written notice shall indicate whether the hazardous waste or 
material was shown or indicated in the Contract Documents to be within the 
scope of Work, and whether the materials were brought to the site by 
Developer, its Subcontractors, suppliers, or anyone else for whom Developer is 
responsible. As used in this section the term "hazardous materials" shall 
include, without limitation, asbestos, lead, Polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), 
petroleum and related hydrocarbons, and radioactive material. 

 
c. In response to Developer's written notice, the District shall investigate the 

identified conditions. 
 

d. If the District determines that conditions do not involve hazardous materials or 
that no change in terms of Contract is justified, the District shall so notify 
Developer in writing, stating reasons. If the District and Developer cannot agree 
on whether conditions justify an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time, 
or on the extent of any adjustment, Developer shall proceed with the Work as 
directed by the District. 

 
e. If after receipt of notice from the District, Developer does not agree to resume 

Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume 
Work under special conditions, then District may order such portion of Work 
that is in connection with such hazardous condition or such affected area to be 
deleted from the Work, or performed by others, or District may invoke its rights 
to terminate the Contract in whole or in part. District will determine entitlement 
to or the amount or extent of an adjustment, if any, in Contract Price or 
Contract Time as a result of deleting such portion of Work, or performing the 
Work by others. 



Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 5  

f. If Developer stops Work in connection with any hazardous condition and in any 
area affected thereby, Developer shall immediately redeploy its workers, 
equipment, and materials, as necessary, to other portions of the Work to 
minimize delay and disruption. 

 
4. Additional Warranties and Representations 

 
a. Developer represents and warrants that it, its employees, and its 

subcontractors and their employees, shall at all times have the required levels 
of familiarity with the Site and the Work, training, and ability to comply fully 
with all applicable laws and contractual requirements for safe and expeditious 
performance of the Work, including whatever training is or may be required 
regarding the activities to be performed (including, but not limited to, all 
training required to address adequately the actual or potential dangers of 
Contract performance). 

 
b. Developer represents and warrants that it, its employees, and its 

subcontractors and their employees, shall at all times have and maintain in 
good standing any and all certifications and licenses required by applicable 
federal, state, and other governmental and quasi-governmental requirements 
applicable to the Work. 

 
c. Developer represents and warrants that it has studied carefully all requirements 

of the Specifications regarding procedures for demolition, hazardous waste 
abatement, or safety practices, specified in the Contract, and prior to 
submitting its bid, has either (a) verified to its satisfaction that the specified 
procedures are adequate and sufficient to achieve the results intended by the 
Contract Documents, or (b) by way of approved "or equal" request or request 
for clarification and written Addenda, secured changes to the specified 
procedures sufficient to achieve the results intended by the Contract 
Documents. Developer accepts the risk that any specified procedure will result 
in a completed Project in full compliance with the Contract Documents. 

 
5. Monitoring and Testing 

 
a. District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to conduct air monitoring, earth 

monitoring, Work monitoring, and any other tests (in addition to testing 
required under the agreement or applicable law), to monitor Contract 
requirements of safe and statutorily compliant work methods and (where 
applicable) safe re-entry level air standards under state and federal law upon 
completion of the job, and compliance of the work with periodic and final 
inspection by public and quasi-public entities having jurisdiction. 

 
b. Developer acknowledges that District has the right to perform, or cause to be 

performed, various activities and tests including, but not limited to, pre- 
abatement, during abatement, and post-abatement air monitoring, that District 
shall have no obligation to perform said activities and tests, and that a portion 
of said activities and tests may take place prior to the completion of the Work 
by Developer. In the event District elects to perform these activities and tests, 
Developer shall afford District ample access to the Site and all areas of the 
Work as may be necessary for the performance of these activities and tests. 



Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 5  

Developer will include the potential impact of these activities or tests by District 
in the Contract Price and the Scheduled Completion Date. 

 
c. Notwithstanding District's rights granted by this paragraph, Developer may 

retain its own industrial hygiene consultant at Developer’s own expense and 
may collect samples and may perform tests including, but not limited to, pre- 
abatement, during abatement, and post-abatement personal air monitoring, 
and District reserves the right to request documentation of all such activities 
and tests performed by Developer relating to the Work and Developer shall 
immediately provide that documentation upon request. 

 
6. Compliance with Laws 

 
a. Developer shall perform safe, expeditious, and orderly work in accordance with 

the best practices and the highest standards in the hazardous waste 
abatement, removal, and disposal industry, the applicable law, and the 
Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, all responsibilities relating 
to the preparation and return of waste shipment records, all requirements of 
the law, delivering of all requisite notices, and obtaining all necessary 
governmental and quasi-governmental approvals. 

 
b. Developer represents that it is familiar with and shall comply with all laws 

applicable to the Work or completed Work including, but not limited to, all 
federal, state, and local laws, statutes, standards, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances applicable to the Work relating to: 

 
(1) The protection of the public health, welfare and environment; 

 
(2) Storage, handling, or use of asbestos, PCB, lead, petroleum based 

products, radioactive material, or other hazardous materials; 
 

(3) The generation, processing, treatment, storage, transport, disposal, 
destruction, or other management of asbestos, PCB, lead, petroleum, 
radioactive material, or hazardous waste materials or other waste 
materials of any kind; and 

 
(4) The protection of environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands and 

coastal areas. 
 

7. Disposal 
 

a. Developer has the sole responsibility for determining current waste storage, 
handling, transportation, and disposal regulations for the job Site and for each 
waste disposal facility. Developer must comply fully at its sole cost and expense 
with these regulations and any applicable law. District may, but is not obligated 
to, require submittals with this information for it to review consistent with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
b. Developer shall develop and implement a system acceptable to District to track 

hazardous waste from the Site to disposal, including appropriate "Hazardous 
Waste Manifests" on the EPA form, so that District may track the volume of 
waste it put in each landfill and receive from each landfill a certificate of receipt. 



Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 4 of 5  

c. Developer shall provide District with the name and address of each waste 
disposal facility prior to any disposal, and District shall have the express right 
to reject any proposed disposal facility. Developer shall not use any disposal 
facility to which District has objected. Developer shall document actual disposal 
or destruction of waste at a designated facility by completing a disposal 
certificate or certificate of destruction forwarding the original to the District. 

 
8. Permits 

 
a. Before performing any of the Work, and at such other times as may be required 

by applicable law, Developer shall deliver all requisite notices and obtain the 
approval of all governmental and quasi-governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction over the Work. Developer shall submit evidence satisfactory to 
District that it and any disposal facility: 

 
(1) have obtained all required permits, approvals, and the like in a timely 

manner both prior to commencement of the Work and thereafter as and 
when required by applicable law; and 

 
(2) are in compliance with all such permits, approvals and the regulations. 

 
For example, before commencing any work in connection with the Work 
involving asbestos-containing materials, or PCBs, or other hazardous 
materials subject to regulation, Developer agrees to provide the 
required notice of intent to renovate or demolish to the appropriate state 
or federal agency having jurisdiction, by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or by some other method of transmittal for which a return 
receipt is obtained, and to send a copy of that notice to District. 
Developer shall not conduct any Work involving asbestos-containing 
materials or PCBs unless Developer has first confirmed that the 
appropriate agency having jurisdiction is in receipt of the required 
notification. All permits, licenses, and bonds that are required by 
governmental or quasi-governmental authorities, and all fees, deposits, 
tap fees, offsite easements, and asbestos and PCB disposal facilities 
expenses necessary for the prosecution of the Work, shall be procured 
and paid for by Developer. Developer shall give all notices and comply 
with the all applicable laws bearing on the conduct of the Work as drawn 
and specified. If Developer observes or reasonably should have 
observed that Plans and Specifications and other Contract Documents 
are at variance therewith, it shall be responsible for promptly notifying 
District in writing of such fact. If Developer performs any Work contrary 
to applicable laws, it shall bear all costs arising therefrom. 

 
b. In the case of any permits or notices held in District's name or of necessity to 

be made in District's name, District shall cooperate with Developer in securing 
the permit or giving the notice, but Developer shall prepare for District review 
and execution upon approval, all necessary applications, notices, and other 
materials. 



Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 5 of 5  

9. Indemnification 
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the indemnities and limitations of liability 
expressed throughout the Contract Documents apply with equal force and effect to 
any claims or liabilities imposed or existing by virtue of the removal, abatement, and 
disposal of hazardous waste. This includes, but is not limited to, liabilities connected 
to the selection and use of a waste disposal facility, a waste transporter, personal 
injury, property damage, loss of use of property, damage to the environment or natural 
resources, or “disposal” and “release” of materials associated with the Work (as 
defined in 42 U.S.C. § 960l et seq.). 

 
10. Termination 

 
District shall have an absolute right to terminate for default immediately without notice 
and without an opportunity to cure should Developer knowingly or recklessly commit 
a material breach of the terms of the Contract Documents, or any applicable law, on 
any matter involving the exposure of persons or property to hazardous waste. 
However, if the breach of contract exposing persons or property to hazardous waste 
is due solely to an ordinary, unintentional, and non-reckless failure to exercise 
reasonable care, then the procedures for termination for cause shall apply without 
modification. 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 



HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

Hazardous Materials Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 
Developer hereby certifies that no asbestos, or asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated 
biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state Environmental Protection Agency 
or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous material, or any other material defined as 
being hazardous under federal or state laws, rules, or regulations (“New Hazardous Material”), 
shall be furnished, installed, or incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, 
devices, clothing, or equipment used to affect any portion of Developer's work on the Project 
for District. 

 
Developer further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the above- 
mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities. 

 
Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing but not 
limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and actinolite. Any or all 
material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) asbestos shall be defined 
as asbestos-containing material. 

 
Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous Material 
shall be settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized testing procedure, 
at the District’s determination. The costs of any such tests shall be paid by Developer if the 
material is found to be New Hazardous Material. 

 
All Work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or Work or material installed with 
equipment containing New Hazardous Material will be immediately rejected and this Work will 
be removed at Developer’s expense at no additional cost to the District. 

 
Developer has read and understood the document titled Hazardous Materials Procedures & 
Requirements, and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein. 

 
Date:    

 

Proper Name of Developer:     

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

Lead-Based Materials Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
 
This certification provides notice to Developer that: 

 
(1) Developer's work may disturb lead-containing building materials. 

 
(2) Developer shall notify the District if any work may result in the disturbance of lead- 

containing building materials. 
 

(3) Developer shall comply with the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, if lead-based 
paint is disturbed in a six-square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot 
or greater area outdoors. 

 
1. Lead as a Health Hazard 

 

Lead poisoning is recognized as a serious environmental health hazard facing children 
today. Even at low levels of exposure, much lower than previously believed, lead can impair 
the development of a child's central nervous system, causing learning disabilities, and 
leading to serious behavioral problems. Lead enters the environment as tiny lead particles 
and lead dust disburses when paint chips, chalks, peels, wears away over time, or is 
otherwise disturbed. Ingestion of lead dust is the most common pathway of childhood 
poisoning; lead dust gets on a child’s hands and toys and then into a child’s mouth through 
common hand-to-mouth activity. Exposures may result from construction or remodeling 
activities that disturb lead paint, from ordinary wear and tear of windows and doors, or 
from friction on other surfaces. 

 
Ordinary construction and renovation or repainting activities carried out without lead-safe 
work practices can disturb lead-based paint and create significant hazards. Improper 
removal practices, such as dry scraping, sanding, or water blasting painted surfaces, are 
likely to generate high volumes of lead dust. 

 
Because Developer and its employees will be providing services for the District, and 
because Developer's work may disturb lead-containing building materials, DEVELOPER IS 
HEREBY NOTIFIED of the potential presence of lead-containing materials located within 
certain buildings utilized by the District. All school buildings built prior to 1978 are 
presumed to contain some lead-based paint until sampling proves otherwise. 

 
2. Overview of California Law 

 

Education Code section 32240 et seq. is known as the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act. 
Under this act, the Department of Health Services is to conduct a sample survey of schools 
in the State of California for the purpose of developing risk factors to predict lead 
contamination in public schools. (Ed. Code, § 32241.) 

 
Any school that undertakes any action to abate existing risk factors for lead is required to 
utilize trained and state-certified contractors, inspectors, and workers. (Ed. Code, § 32243, 
subd. (b).) Moreover, lead-based paint, lead plumbing, and solders, or other potential 
sources of lead contamination, shall not be utilized in the construction of any new school 
facility or the modernization or renovation of any existing school facility. (Ed. Code, § 
32244.) 

 
Both the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("Fed/OSHA") and the 
California Division of Occupational Safety and Health ("Cal/OSHA") have implemented 



Lead-Based Materials Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

safety orders applicable to all construction work where a contractor’s employee may be 
occupationally exposed to lead. 

 
The OSHA Regulations apply to all construction work where a contractor’s employee may 
be occupationally exposed to lead. The OSHA Regulations contain specific and detailed 
requirements imposed on contractors subject to those regulations. The OSHA Regulations 
define construction work as work for construction, alteration, and/or repair, including 
painting and decorating. Regulated work includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 
a. Demolition or salvage of structures where lead or materials containing lead are 

present; 
 

b. Removal or encapsulation of materials containing lead; 
 

c. New construction, alteration, repair, or renovation of structures, substrates, or 
portions thereof, that contain lead, or materials containing lead; 

 
d. Installation of products containing lead; 

 
e. Lead contamination/emergency cleanup; 

 
f. Transportation, disposal, storage, or containment of lead or materials containing 

lead on the site or location at which construction activities are performed; and 
 

g. Maintenance operations associated with the construction activities described in the 
subsection. 

 
Because it is assumed by the District that all painted surfaces (interior as well as exterior) 
within the District contain some level of lead, it is imperative that Developer, its workers 
and subcontractors fully and adequately comply with all applicable laws, rules and 
regulations governing lead-based materials (including title 8, California Code of 
Regulations, section 1532.1). 

 
Developer shall notify the District if any Work may result in the disturbance of 
lead-containing building materials. Any and all Work that may result in the 
disturbance of lead-containing building materials shall be coordinated through 
the District. A signed copy of this Certification shall be on file prior to beginning 
Work on the Project, along with all current insurance certificates. 

 
3. Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, Section 402(c)(3) of the Toxic Substances 

Control Act 
 

The EPA requires lead safe work practices to reduce exposure to lead hazards created by 
renovation, repair and painting activities that disturb lead-based paint. Pursuant to the 
Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule (RRP), renovations in homes, childcare facilities, and 
schools built prior to 1978 must be conducted by certified renovations firms, using 
renovators with training by a EPA-accredited training provider, and fully and adequately 
complying with all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials, 
including those rules and regulations appearing within title 40 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations as part 745 (40 CFR 745). 

 
The RRP requirements apply to all contractors who disturb lead-based paint in a six-square- 
foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot or greater area outdoors. If a DPH-certified 



Lead-Based Materials Certification 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

inspector or risk assessor determines that a home constructed before 1978 is lead-free, 
the federal certification is not required for anyone working on that particular building. 

 
4. Developer’s Liability 

 

If Developer fails to comply with any applicable laws, rules, or regulations, and that failure 
results in a site or worker contamination, Developer will be held solely responsible for all 
costs involved in any required corrective actions, and shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Contract, for all 
damages and other claims arising therefrom. 

 
If lead disturbance is anticipated in the Work, only persons with appropriate accreditation, 
registrations, licenses, and training shall conduct this Work. 

 
It shall be the responsibility of Developer to properly dispose of any and all waste products, 
including, but not limited to, paint chips, any collected residue, or any other visual material 
that may occur from the prepping of any painted surface. It will be the responsibility of 
Developer to provide the proper disposal of any hazardous waste by a certified hazardous 
waste hauler. This company shall be registered with the Department of Transportation 
(DOT) and shall be able to issue a current manifest number upon transporting any 
hazardous material from any school site within the District. 

 
Developer shall provide the District with any sample results prior to beginning Work, during 
the Work, and after the completion of the Work. The District may request to examine, prior 
to the commencement of the Work, the lead training records of each employee of 
Developer. 

 
DEVELOPER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT IT: 

 
1. HAS RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL LEAD-BASED MATERIALS ON THE OWNER'S 

PROPERTY; 
 

2. IS KNOWLEDGEABLE REGARDING AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, 
RULES, AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORK WITH, AND DISPOSAL, OF LEAD. 

 

THE UNDERSIGNED WARRANTS THAT HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF AND 
BIND DEVELOPER. THE DISTRICT MAY REQUIRE PROOF OF SUCH AUTHORITY. 

 
Date:    

 

Proper Name of Developer:    
 

Signature:    
 

Print Name:    
 

Title:    
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IMPORTED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 
 
 
This form shall be executed by all entities that, in any way, provide or deliver and/or supply 
any soils, aggregate, or related materials (“Fill”) to the Project Site and shall be provided to 
the District at least ten (10) days before delivery. All Fill shall satisfy all requirements of any 
environmental review of the Project performed pursuant to the statutes and guidelines of the 
California Environmental Quality Act, section 21000 et seq. of the Public Resources Code 
(“CEQA”), and all requirements of section 17210 et seq. of the Education Code, including 
requirements for a Phase I environmental assessment acceptable to the State of California 
Department of Education and Department of Toxic Substances Control. 

 
Certification of:  □ Delivery Firm/Transporter      □ Supplier □ Manufacturer 

□ Wholesaler □ Broker □ Retailer 
□ Distributor □ Other    

 
Type of Entity    □ Corporation □ General Partnership 

□ Limited Partnership □ Limited Liability Company 
□ Sole Proprietorship □ Other    

Name of firm ("Firm"):       

Mailing address:       

Addresses of branch office used for this Project:     

If subsidiary, name and address of parent company:     

 
 

By my signature below, I hereby certify that I am aware of section 25260 of the Health and 
Safety Code and the sections referenced therein regarding the definition of hazardous 
material. I further certify on behalf of the Firm that all soils, aggregates, or related materials 
provided, delivered, and/or supplied or that will be provided, delivered, and/or supplied by 
this Firm to the Project Site are free of any and all hazardous material as defined in section 
25260 of the Health and Safety Code. I further certify that I am authorized to make this 
certification on behalf of the Firm. 

 
Date:    

 

Proper Name of Firm:         

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    

END OF DOCUMENT 

 
 
 
 

IMPORTED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION  



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

REGISTERED CONTRACTORS LIST 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

REGISTERED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST 
(Labor Code Section 1771.1) 

 

PROJECT:  John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Date Submitted (for Updates):    

Developer acknowledges and agrees that it must clearly set forth below the name and 
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) registration number of each subcontractor for all 
tiers who will perform work or labor or render service to Developer or its subcontractors in 
or about the construction of the Work at least two (2) weeks before the subcontractor 
is scheduled to perform work. This document is to be updated as all tiers of subcontractors 
are identified. 

Developer acknowledges and agrees that, if Developer fails to list as to any subcontractor of 
any tier who performs any portion of Work, the Contract is subject is subject to cancellation 
and Developer will be subjected to penalty under applicable law. 

If further space is required for the list of proposed subcontractors, attach additional copies of 
page 2 showing the required information, as indicated below. 

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

REGISTERED CONTRACTORS LIST 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Subcontractor Name:      

DIR Registration #:     

Portion of Work:    

Date:   

Proper Name of Developer:    

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Notice of Award 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
DATED:  20   

 

TO:   (“Developer”) 
[ADDRESS] 

 
PROJECT: John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

CONTRACT NO.:  between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) 
and Developer (“Contract”). 

Developer has been awarded the above-referenced Contract on  , 20 , by act of 
the District's Board. 

 
Developer shall execute and submit to District the following documents by no later than 5:00 
p.m. on the SEVENTH (7th) calendar day following the date of this Notice of Award. 

 
1.1 Site Lease. 
1.2 Facilities Lease. 
1.3 Insurance Certificates and Endorsements as required. 
1.4 Registered Subcontractors List (Initial List): Include any designated 

Subcontractors of any tier from Developer’s proposal. To be 
amended/supplemented following Subcontractor bidding. 

1.5 Workers' Compensation Certification. 
1.6 Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirements Certification. 
1.7 Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification. 
1.8 COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification. 
1.9 Drug-Free Workplace Certification. 
1.10 Tobacco-Free Environment Certification. 
1.11 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification. 
1.12 Hazardous Materials Certification. 
1.13 Lead-Based Materials Certification. 
1.14 Imported Materials Certification. 

 
After Developer’s timely compliance with those conditions, District will return a fully signed 
counterpart of the Contract and may then issue the Notice to Proceed with Preconstruction 
Services for the Project. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BY:  

NAME:    

TITLE:  

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Notice to Proceed with Preconstruction 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED WITH PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
 
 
DATED:  20   

 

TO:   (“Developer”) 
[ADDRESS] 

 
PROJECT:    

 

CONTRACT NO.:  between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) 
and Developer (“Contract”). 

 
Developer is hereby notified that the Contract Time under the above Contract will commence 
to run on  , 20   .   By that date, Developer is to start performing its 
preconstruction services for the Project. 

 
Preconstruction services will conclude upon approval of the Amendment to the Facilities Lease 
by District’s Board, or termination of this Contract by either party per the Contract’s terms. 

 
No work for which a contractor is required to be licensed in accordance with the Business and 
Professions Code and for which Division of the State Architect (DSA) approval is required can 
be performed before receipt of DSA approval. 

 
Developer shall not commence construction of the Project until the Notice to Proceed with 
Construction is issued by District following approval of the Amendment to the Facilities Lease 
by District’s Board. 

 
Thank you. We look forward to a very successful Project. 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BY:  

NAME:  

TITLE:    

 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Notice of Award after Guaranteed Maximum Price 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD AFTER GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 
 
 
DATED:  20   

 

TO:   (“Developer”) 
[ADDRESS] 

 
PROJECT: John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

CONTRACT NO.:  between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) 
and Developer (“Contract”). 

Amendment No. 1 to the Facilities Lease for the above-referenced Contract has been approved 
on  , 20 , by act of the District's Board. The Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(“GMP”) for the Project is  Dollars ($  ). 

 
Developer shall fully execute the following documents on the forms provided in the Contract 
Documents as indicated on the forms and submit the same to District by no later than 5:00 
p.m. on the SEVENTH (7th) calendar day following the date of this Notice of Amendment. 

 
1.1 Performance Bond (100% of GMP). 

 
1.2 Payment Bond (Contractor's Labor & Material Bond) (100% of GMP). 

 
1.3 Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise Participation Certification. 

 
After Developer’s timely compliance with those conditions, District may then issue the Notice 
to Proceed with Construction for the Project. 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BY:  

NAME:  

TITLE:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Notice to Proceed with Construction 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED WITH CONSTRUCTION 
 
 
DATED:  20   

 

TO:   (“Developer”) 
[ADDRESS] 

 
PROJECT:     

 

CONTRACT NO.:  between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) 
and Developer (“Contract”). 

 
Developer is hereby notified that the construction phase of the Project will commence on    
  , 20 . In accordance with the Contract, Developer shall complete the 
Work by no later than  , 20 . 

 
Developer must submit the following documents by 5:00 p.m. on the TENTH (10th) calendar 
day following the date of this Notice to Proceed with Construction, and in no event later than 
the FIRST (1st) day on which Developer has workers employed on the construction phase 
of the Project: 

 
1.1 Developer’s preliminary schedule of construction. 

 
1.2 Developer’s preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work. 

 
1.3 Developer’s preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, 

Product Data, and Samples submittals 
 

1.4 Developer’s Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project. 
 

1.5 A complete list subcontractors of any and all tiers, including the name, address, 
telephone number, facsimile number, California State Contractors License 
number, classification, DIR registration number, and monetary value of all 
subcontracts for parties furnishing labor, material, or equipment for completion 
of the Project. 

 
Thank you. We look forward to a very successful Project. 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BY:    

NAME:  

TITLE:    

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Application and Certificate for Payment 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
 

TO: PROJECT: APPLICATION NO: Distribution to: 
INVOICE NO: � OWNER 

� ARCHITECT 
PERIOD TO: � CONTRACTOR 

JOB: � INSPECTOR OF RECORD 
FROM: ARCHITECT: � 3RD PARTY INSPECTOR 

PROJECT NO: � DISBURSEMENT AGENCY 
DSA FILE NO: 

 
CONTRACT DATE: 

 
 

 

DEVELOPER’S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
Application is made for Payment as shown below, in connection with the 
Contract Continuation Sheet, is attached. 

 
1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM $   
2. Net change by Change Orders $   
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE $   
4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE $   
5. Lease Payment (1/3 of Total Lease Payments 

for last 3 pay applications) $   
6. Total TI Payments Earned: (Line 4 less Line 5) $   
7. Retainage: 

a. 5% of Total TI Payment $   
8. TOTAL EARNED LESS Lease Payment 

& Retainage (Line 6  less Line 7) $   
9. LESS PREVIOUS APPLICATIONS FOR 

PAYMENT $   
10. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE $   
11. Balance to Finish, Plus Lease Pmt & Retainage $  

(Line 3 less Line 8) 

 
The undersigned Developer certifies that to the best of the Developer’s knowledge, 
information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid by 
the Developer for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and 
payments received from the District, and that current payment shown herein is now due. 
We certify that the Surety for this project has been notified of the amount of this request. 
DEVELOPER: 

 
By:   Date:  

[NAME, TITLE] 
 

Notary Public:   My Commission Expires:                   
Name:    

 

ARCHITECT’S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
RECOMMENDED FOR CERTIFICATION 

 
By:   Date:  

NAME:  _ 
 

In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data 
comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of 
the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as indicated, 
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Developer 
is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED. 

 
AMOUNT CERTIFIED $   
(Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied. Initial all figures on this 
Application and on the Continuation Sheet that are changed to conform with the amount certified.) 

ARCHITECT: 
 

By:  Date:  
This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the Developer 
named herein. Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without prejudice to 
any rights of the District or Developer under this Contract. 

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 

Total changes approved in 
previous months by District 

  

Total approved this month 
  

NET CHANGES by Change 
Orders 

  

 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Application and Certificate for Payment 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

California All-Purpose Certificate of Acknowledgment 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 

 
 

On  , before me,  ,  Notary  Public, personally appeared  , who 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature of Notary Public:  (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and 
not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Contingency Expenditure Directive 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE FORM 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

CONTINGENCY 
EXPENDITURE 
DIRECTIVE NO.: 

CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE 
 

Project: 
Building Project: 
Bid No.: 

Date: 
DSA File No.: 
DSA Appl. No.: 

 
The following parties agree to the terms of this Contingency Expenditure Directive (“CED”): 

 
Owner: Sacramento City Unified School 

District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Developer: 

 
Reference Description Contingency 

Authorized for 
Expenditure 

Days 
Ext. 

Request for CED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

Request for CED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

Request for CED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

 
Contract time will be adjusted as follows: 

Previous Completion Date: [DATE]   

  [#]  Calendar Days Extension 
(zero days unless otherwise indicated) 

 
Current Completion Date: [DATE]   

Total Contract Contingency 
Amount: 

$ 

Amount of Previously Approved 
Contingency Expenditure 
Directive(s): 

$ 

Amount of this Contingency 
Expenditure Directive: 

$ 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Contingency Expenditure Directive 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing release of contingency for completion of 
each specified item, and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the 
entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and services and 
perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 
stated therein (“Work”). Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Developer 
knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a violation of the False Claims 
Act set forth under Government Code section 12650, et seq. 

 
This Contingency Expenditure Directive must be signed by an authorized District 
representative. 

 
It is expressly understood that the authorized contingency expenditure and time, if any, 
granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts 
of the items herein, and Developer waives any and all further compensation or time extension 
based on the items herein. The value of the extra work or changes expressly includes any and 
all of Developer’s costs and expenses, and its subcontractors, both direct and indirect, 
resulting from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project. 
Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions not included are deemed waived. 

 
Signatures: 
 
District: 

    

Developer: 

 

[Name] 

Architect: 

 Date  [Name] 
 

Project Inspector: 

 Date 

[Name]  Date  [Name]  Date 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Allowance Expenditure Directive 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

ALLOWANCE EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE FORM 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

ALLOWANCE 
EXPENDITURE 

DIRECTIVE NO.: 

ALLOWANCE EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE 
 

Project: Building Project 
Bid No.: 

Date: 
DSA File No.: 
DSA Appl. No.: 

 
The following parties agree to the terms of this Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”): 

 
Owner: Sacramento City Unified School 

District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Developer: 

 
Reference Description Allowance 

Authorized for 
Expenditure 

Days 
Ext. 

Request for AED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

Request for AED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

Request for AED # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of unforeseen item relating to 
Work] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

 
Total Contract Allowance Amount: $ 

Amount of Previously Approved 
Allowance Expenditure 
Directive(s): 

$ 

Amount of this Allowance 
Expenditure Directive: 

$ 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Allowance Expenditure Directive 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing release of allowance for completion of 
each specified item, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and services and perform all 
work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated therein 
(“Work”). Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Developer knows are false 
are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under 
Government Code section 12650, et seq. 

 
This Allowance Expenditure Directive must be signed by an authorized District representative. 

 
It is expressly understood that the authorized allowance expenditure granted herein represent 
a full accord and satisfaction for any and all cost impacts of the items herein, and Developer 
waives any and all further compensation based on the items herein. The value of the extra 
work or changes expressly includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, and its 
subcontractors, both direct and indirect. Any costs, expenses, or damages not included are 
deemed waived. 

 
Signatures: 

 
District: Developer: 

 
 
 

[Name] Date [Name] Date 
 
 

Architect: Project Inspector: 
 
 
 

[Name] Date [Name] Date 
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Daily Force Account Report 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

DAILY FORCE ACCOUNT REPORT 
 

From: Developer 
[Name/Address] 

To: Owner 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 
Project:    

 
Developer hereby submits this Daily Force Account Report for Work performed, pursuant to Force 
Account Directive No.  , on  . 

[Date of Work] 
 

Developer attests that the material, labor, and equipment itemized herein were used only on the force 
account work. 

 
A. Material: Attach all applicable invoices not provided in prior Daily Force Account Reports and 

complete the information below. 
 

Description Unit Price Quantity Cost 

    

    

    

    

    

 
Daily subtotal (w/out markup): $   

 
B. Labor: Labor must be fully Burdened. Attach timesheets, if applicable, and complete the 

information below. 
 

Name Craft Regular 
Hrs. 

Rate OT Hrs. Rate 

      

      

      

      

      

 
Daily subtotal (w/out markup): $   



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Daily Force Account Report 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

C. Equipment: Attach all applicable invoices not provided in prior Daily Force Account Reports and 
complete the information below. 

 
Type / Model Hrs. 

Operated 
Rate 

   

   

   

   

   

 
Daily subtotal (w/out markup): $   

 
Complete based on information reported above. 

 
 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY DEVELOPER ADD 
 Material  
 Add Labor  
 Add Equipment  
 Subtotal  
 Add overhead and profit for any and all tiers of Subcontractor, the 

total not to exceed ten percent (10%) of Item (d) 
 

 Subtotal  
 Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to exceed five percent 

(5%) of Item (f) 
 

 Subtotal  
 Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed two percent (2%) of Item (h)  
 TOTAL  

 
 WORK PERFORMED BY DEVELOPER ADD 

(a) Material  
 Add Labor  
 Add Equipment  
 Subtotal  
 Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to exceed fifteen 

percent (15%) of Item (d) 
 

 Subtotal  
 Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed two percent (2%) of Item 

(f) 
 

 TOTAL  



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Daily Force Account Report 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Developer knows are false are at the sole 
risk of Developer and may be a violation of the False Claims Act (Gov. Code, § 12650 et seq.). 

 
It is expressly understood that all force account work for the date stated above must be reported 
herein, and Developer may not claim any labor, equipment, material or any other costs or expenses 
not reported herein. Developer is not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other 
indirect costs. Any costs, expenses, or damages, not included are deemed waived. 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 
Developer: 

 
 

  

[Name] Date 

REVIEWED BY: 
 

District: 
 
 

  

[Name] Date 
 
 
 

District may require additional information from Developer to review this Daily Force Account Report. 
Upon District’s return of the Daily Force Account Report, Developer may invoice the Work reflected 
therein. District’s review and return of the Daily Force Account Report and/or payment for the force 
account work does not constitute acceptance of the Work or waiver of any Contract rights or criteria. 

 
END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Proposed Change Order Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

PCO NO.: 

 

Project: 
Bid No.: 
RFI #: 

Date: 
DSA File No.: 
DSA Appl. No.: 

 
Developer hereby submits for District’s review and evaluation this Proposed Change Order (“PCO”), 
submitted in accordance with and subject to the terms of the Contract Documents, including Sections 
17.7 and 17.8 of the General Conditions. Any spaces left blank below are deemed no change to cost 
or time. 

 
Developer understands and acknowledges that documentation supporting Developer’s PCO must be 
attached and included for District review and evaluation. Developer further understands and 
acknowledges that failure to include documentation sufficient to, in District’s discretion, support some 
or all of the PCO, shall result in a rejected PCO. 

 
 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach suppliers’ invoice or itemized quantity 
and unit cost plus sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 
Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 
labor burden, i.e., payroll taxes, fringe benefits, etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Subtotal   

(e) Add overhead and profit for any and all tiers of 
Subcontractor, the total not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of Item (d) 

  

(f) Subtotal   

(g) Add General Conditions (if Time is Compensable) 
(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(h) Subtotal   

(i) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to exceed 
  percent (_ %) of Item (h) 

  

(j) Subtotal   

(k) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    
percent (  %) of Item (j) 

  

 TOTAL  

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Proposed Change Order Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 WORK PERFORMED BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 
(a) Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus 

sales tax) 
  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 
Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 
labor burden, i.e., payroll taxes, fringe benefits, etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Add General Conditions (if Time is Compensable) 
(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(e) Subtotal   

(f) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to exceed 
  percent (_ %) of Item (e) 

  

(g) Subtotal   

(h) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    
percent (  %) of Item (g) 

  

 TOTAL  
 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, to the Contract 
Price specified for each item, and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion 
of the entire Work as stated herein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, and service, 
and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 
stated herein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Developer knows are 
false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth 
under Government Code section 12650 et seq. It is understood that the changes herein to 
the Contract shall only be effective when approved by the governing board of the District. 

 
It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly includes any 
and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting from additional time 
required on the Project or resulting from delay to the Project including, without limitation, 
cumulative impacts. Developer is not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or 
other indirect costs. Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are 
deemed waived. 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 
Developer: 

 
 

Date 
 
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Change Order Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 

CHANGE ORDER 
 

Project:   
Bid No.:    

Date:   
DSA File No.:     
DSA Appl. No.:   

The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 
 

Owner: Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

Developer:    
[Name / Address] 

5735 47th Avenue    
Sacramento, CA 95824    

 
Architect:    
[Name / Address] 

Project Inspector:    
[Name / Address] 

 
  

 

 
 

Reference Description Cost Days 
Ext. 

PCO # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of change] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

PCO # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of change] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

PCO # 
Requested by: 
Performed by: 
Reason: 

[Description of change] 
[Requester] 
[Performer] 
[Reason] 

$  

Contract time will be adjusted as follows: 

Previous Completion Date: [Date] 

  [#] Calendar Days Extension (zero 
unless otherwise indicated) 

 
Current Completion Date: [Date] 

Original Contract Amount: $ 

Amount of Previously 
Approved Change Order(s): 

$ 

Amount of this Change 
Order: 

$ 

Contract Amount: $ 

 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Change Order Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, to the Contract 
Price specified for each item, and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Change Order Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 2 

 

 

of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and services 
and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 
stated therein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Developer knows are 
false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth 
under Government Code section 12650 et seq. 

 
This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this District and must be 
signed by the District. Until such time as this change order is approved by the District’s 
governing board and executed by a duly authorized District representative, this change order 
is not effective and not binding. 

 
It is expressly understood that the compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent 
a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts of the items herein, and 
Developer waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items 
herein. The value of the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of Developer’s 
costs and expenses, and its subcontractors, both direct and indirect, resulting from additional 
time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project including without limitation, 
cumulative impacts. Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions not included are 
deemed waived. 

 
Signatures: 

 
District: Developer: 

 
 
 

[Name] Date [Name] Date 
 

Architect: Project Inspector: 
 
 
 

[Name] Date [Name] Date 
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



(Print on Contractor/Subcontractor Letterhead) 

Guarantee Form 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

GUARANTEE FORM 
 

  [Contractor’s Name] hereby unconditionally 
guarantees that the Work performed at JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT RFP#0525-442-2/6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA  95831 has been done in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract therefore and further guarantees the Work of 
the contract to be and remain free of defects in workmanship and materials for a period of two (2) 
years from and after the recordation of the Notice of Completion of the Project and completion of 
all Contract obligations by the Contractor, including formal acceptance of the entire Project by the 
District, unless a longer guarantee period is called for by the Contract Documents, in which case 
the terms of the longer guarantee shall govern. The Contractor specifically waives any right to 
claim or rely on the statutory definition of completion set forth in Civil Code section 9200. The 
Contractor specifically acknowledges and agrees that completion shall mean the Contractor’s 
complete performance of all Work required by the Contract Documents, amendments, change 
orders, construction change directives and punch lists, and the District’s formal acceptance of the 
entire Project, without regard to prior occupancy, substantial completion doctrine, beneficial 
occupancy, or otherwise. The Contractor hereby agrees to repair or replace any and all Work, 
together with any adjacent Work which may have been damaged or displaced in so doing, that 
may prove to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract or that may be defective 
in its workmanship or materials within the guarantee period specified, without any expense 
whatsoever to the District, ordinary wear and tear and unusual abuse and neglect only excepted. 
The Contractor has provided contract bonds, which will remain in full force and effect during the 
guarantee period. 

The Contractor further agrees that within ten (10) calendar days after being notified in writing by 
the District of any Work not in accordance with the requirements of the contract or any defects in 
the Work, it will commence and prosecute with due diligence all Work necessary to fulfill the terms 
of this guarantee, and to complete the Work within a period of time stipulated in writing. In the 
event it fails to so comply, Contractor does hereby authorize the District to proceed to have such 
Work done at the Contractor’s expense and it will pay the cost thereof upon demand. The District 
shall be entitled to all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, necessarily incurred upon the 
Contractor’s refusal to pay the above costs. 

The guarantee period for corrected defective work shall continue for a duration equivalent to the 
original guarantee period. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, in the event of an emergency constituting an immediate 
hazard to the health or safety of the employees of the District, or its property or licensees, the 
District may undertake at the Contractor’s expense without prior notice, all Work necessary to 
correct such hazardous condition when it was caused by the Work of the Contractor not being in 
accordance with the requirements of this contract, or being defective, and to charge the same to 
the Contractor as specified in the preceding paragraph. 

The guarantee set forth herein is not intended by the parties, not shall it be construed, as in any 
way limiting or reducing the District’s rights to enforce all terms of the Contract referenced 
hereinabove or the time for enforcement thereof. This guarantee is provided in addition to, and 
not in lieu of, the District’s rights on such contract. 

 

Spec Section(s): --------------------------------- 
CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE 

 

 
PRINT NAME 



Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS (“Agreement and Release”) IS MADE AND 
ENTERED INTO THIS  DAY OF  , 20 by and between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and       
(“Developer”), whose place of business is   . 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, District and Developer entered into a Facilities Lease and Site Lease for 
the following project: JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT  
(“Contract” or “Project”) in the County of Sacramento, California. 

 
WHEREAS, The Work under the Contract was completed on  , 20 and a 

Notice of Completion was recorded with the County Recorder on  , 20 . 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between District and Developer as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Developer will only be assessed liquidated damages as detailed below: 
 

Original Guaranteed Maximum Price $   Modified Guaranteed Maximum Price 

$   Payment to Date

 $   

Liquidated Damages $  

Payment Due Developer $   

2. Subject to the provisions hereof, District shall forthwith pay to Developer the 
undisputed sum of  Dollars ($  ) under the 
Contract for Tenant Improvement Payments, less any amounts represented by any 
notice to withhold funds on file with District as of the date of such payment. 

 
3. Developer acknowledges and hereby agrees that there are no unresolved or 

outstanding claims in dispute against District arising from the performance of work 
under the Contract, except for the claims described in Paragraph 4 and continuing 
obligations described in Paragraph 6. It is the intention of the parties in executing this 
Agreement and Release that this Agreement and Release shall be effective as a full, 
final and general release of all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, obligations, 
costs, expenses, damages, losses and liabilities of Developer against District and all of 
its respective agents, employees, trustees, inspectors, assignees, consultants and 
transferees, except for the Lease Payments under the Contract, any Disputed Claim 
that may be set forth in Paragraph 4 and the continuing obligations described in 
Paragraph 6 hereof. 



Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

4. The following claims are disputed (hereinafter, the "Disputed Claims") and are 
specifically excluded from the operation of this Agreement and Release: 

 
Claim No. Description of Claim Amount of Claim Date Claim 

Submitted 

   $      
 

   
 
$   

 
   

 
   

 
$   

 
   

 
   

 
$   

 
   

 
[If further space is required, attach additional sheets showing the required 
information.] 

 
5. Consistent with California Public Contract Code section 7100, Developer hereby agrees 

that, in consideration of the payment set forth in Paragraph 2 hereof, Developer hereby 
releases and forever discharges District, all its agents, employees, inspectors, 
assignees, and transferees from any and all liability, claims, demands, actions, or 
causes of action of whatever kind or nature arising out of or in any way concerned with 
the Work under the Contract, except for the Lease Payments. 

 
6. Guarantees and warranties for the Work, duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

the District, and any other continuing obligation of Developer, shall remain in full force 
and effect as specified in the Contract Documents. 

 
7. Except as provided for specifically herein, Developer hereby waives the provisions of 

California Civil Code section 1542 which provides as follows: 
 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE CREDITOR 
OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS 
OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF 
KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR 
HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY. 

 
8. The provisions of this Agreement and Release are contractual in nature and not mere 

recitals and shall be considered independent and severable. If any such provision or 
any part thereof shall be at any time held invalid in whole or in part under any 
federal, state, county, municipal, or other law, ruling, or regulations, then such 
provision, or part thereof, shall remain in force and effect to the extent permitted by 
law, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement and Release shall also remain in 
full force and effect, and shall be enforceable. 

 
9. All rights of District shall survive completion of the Work or termination of Contract, 

and execution of this Release. 



Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
DWK DMS 3804499v1 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

* * * CAUTION: THIS IS A RELEASE - READ BEFORE EXECUTING * * * 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Signature:  

Print Name:    

Title:     

 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 

Signature:  

Print Name:    

Title:    

 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



 
 

FACILITIES LEASE 
 
 

For all or a portion of the following Site: 
 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
Recorded Address: 6749 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
Physical Address: 6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
APN: 030-0370-021 

 
By and between 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 
And 

 
Landmark Construction 
4312 Anthony Court, Ste. B 
Rocklin, CA  95677 

 
Dated as of May 19, 2022 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 2 

2. Exhibits ............................................................................................................ 3 

3. Lease of Project and Site .................................................................................... 3 

4. Term ............................................................................................................... 4 

5. Payment .......................................................................................................... 5 

6. Title................................................................................................................. 5 

7. Quiet Enjoyment ............................................................................................... 5 

8. Representations of the District ............................................................................ 5 

9. Representations of the Developer ........................................................................ 6 

10. Pre-construction Services ................................................................................... 7 

11. Construction of Project ......................................................................................15 

12. Maintenance ....................................................................................................16 

13. Utilities ...........................................................................................................16 

14. Taxes and Other Impositions .............................................................................16 

15. Insurance ........................................................................................................17 

16. Indemnification and Defense .............................................................................23 

17. Eminent Domain ..............................................................................................25 

18. Damage and Destruction ...................................................................................26 

19. Abatement ......................................................................................................26 

20. Access ............................................................................................................26 

21. Assignment, Subleasing ....................................................................................27 

22. Termination, Default And Suspension ..................................................................27 

23. Notices ...........................................................................................................35 

24. Binding Effect ..................................................................................................36 

25. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver .......................................................36 

26. Severability .....................................................................................................36 

27. Amendments, Changes and Modifications ............................................................36 

28. Net-Net-Net Lease ............................................................................................36 

29. Execution in Counterparts .................................................................................37 

30. Developer and District Representatives ...............................................................37 

31. Applicable Law .................................................................................................37 

32. Attorney's Fees ................................................................................................37 

33. Captions .........................................................................................................37 



34. Prior Agreements .............................................................................................37 

35. Further Assurances ...........................................................................................37 

36. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated ......................................................................37 

37. Time of the Essence .........................................................................................37 

38. Force Majeure ..................................................................................................38 

39. Interpretation ..................................................................................................38 

Exhibits A - H 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 1  

FACILITIES LEASE 

This facilities  lease  (“Facilities  Lease”),  dated as of May 19, 2022 (“Effective Date”), 
is made and entered into by and between Landmark Construction (“Developer”), a [California 
corporation] duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of [California], as 
sublessor, and Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly organized and 
validly existing under the laws of the State of California, as sublessee (“District”) (together, 
the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District is authorized under Section 17406 of the Education Code of 

the State of California to lease a site to a developer and to have that developer develop and 
construct the project on the site and to lease back to the District the completed project and 
site; and 

 
WHEREAS, on the date hereof, the District has leased to Developer, a parcel of land 

located at 6715 Gloria Dr., Sacramento, CA 95831, known as John F. Kennedy Middle School, 
particularly described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (“Site”); and 

 
WHEREAS, District and Developer have executed a site lease at the same time as this 

Facilities Lease whereby the District is leasing the Site to Developer (“Site Lease”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for the development and construction of 
certain work to be performed on portions of the Site which will include construction of 
improvements to be known as the John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
(“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, District has retained HMC Architects (“Architect”) to prepare plans and 

specifications for the Project (“Plans and Specifications”) and to act as the Design Professional 
in General Responsible Charge for the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the District (“Board”) has determined that it is in 

the best interests of the District and for the common benefit of the citizens residing in the 
District to construct the Project by leasing the Site to Developer and by simultaneously 
entering into this Facilities Lease under which the District will lease back the completed Project 
and site from Developer and if necessary, make Lease Payments; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District further acknowledges and agrees that it has entered into the 

Site Lease and the Facilities Lease pursuant to Education Code Section 17406 as the best 
available and most expeditious means for the District to satisfy its substantial need for the 
facilities to be provided by the Project and to accommodate and educate District students and 
to utilize its facilities proceeds expeditiously; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Site Lease and Facilities Lease are awarded based a competitive 

solicitation process pursuant to Education Code section 17406 and in compliance with the 
required procedures and guidelines for evaluating the qualifications of proposers adopted and 
published by the Board to the proposer providing the best value to the school district, taking 
into consideration the proposer’s demonstrated competence and professional qualifications 
necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required; and 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 2  

WHEREAS, the selection of Developer was conducted in a fair and impartial manner; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has reviewed the Lease Documents; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer represents that it has the expertise and experience to perform 
the services set forth in this Facilities Lease; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties have performed all acts, conditions and things required by law 

to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with 
the execution and entering into of this Facilities Lease and all those conditions precedent do 
exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as 
required by law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute and enter into this 
Facilities Lease; and 

 
WHEREAS, Developer is authorized to lease the Site as lessee and to develop the 

Project by constructing the Project on the Site and to lease the completed Project and Site 
back to the District, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual 

covenants hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Definitions 
 

In addition to the terms and entities defined above or in subsequent provisions, and unless 
the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this section shall, for all purposes of this 
Facilities Lease, have the meanings herein specified. 

 
1.1 “Developer”    or   “Lessor”   means Landmark Construction, a [California 
corporation], organized and existing under the laws of the State of [California], 
Contractor's license number 1070556 issued by the State of California, Contractors’ 
State License Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 9, of the Business and 
Professions Code, and its successors and assigns. 

 
1.2 “Developer’s Representative” means the Managing Member of Developer, 
or any person authorized to act on behalf of Developer under or with respect to this 
Facilities Lease. 

 
1.3 “Contract Documents” are defined in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

 
1.4 “District” or “Lessee” means the Sacramento City Unified School District, a 
school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California. 

 
1.5 “District Representative” means the Superintendent of the District, or any 
other person authorized by the Governing Board of the District to act on behalf of the 
District under or with respect to this Facilities Lease. 

 
1.6 “Permitted Encumbrances” means, as of any particular time: 

 
1.6.1 Liens for general ad valorem taxes and assessments, if any, not then 
delinquent, or which the District may permit to remain unpaid; 

 
1.6.2 The Site Lease. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 3  

1.6.3 This Facilities Lease. 
 

1.6.4 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 
reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions which exist of record as of 
the date of this Facilities Lease. 

 
1.6.5 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 
reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions established following the 
date of recordation of this Facilities Lease and to which Developer and the 
District consent in writing which will not impair or impede the operation of the 
Site. 

 
2. Exhibits 

 

The following Exhibits are attached to and by reference incorporated and made a part of this 
Facilities Lease: 

 
2.1 Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Site: The description of the real 
property constituting the Site. 

 
2.2 Exhibit B - Description of the Project: The map or diagram depiction of the 
Project. 

 
2.3 Exhibit C - Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, 
and Payment Provisions: A detailed description of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
and the provisions related to the payment of that amount to Developer, including 
Attachment 3, the Schedule of Lease Payments and Payoff Dates and Amounts. 

 
2.4 Exhibit D - General Construction Provisions: The provisions generally 
describing the Project’s construction. 

 
2.5 Exhibit D-1 – Special Conditions Provisions: The provisions describing 
conditions specific to the Project’s construction. 

 
2.6 Exhibit E - Memorandum of Commencement Date: The Memorandum 
which will memorialize the commencement and expiration dates of the Lease Term. 

 
2.7 Exhibit F - Construction Schedule 

 
2.8 Exhibit G – Schedule of Values 

 
2.9 Exhibit H – Project Labor Agreement 

 
3. Lease of Project and Site 

 
3.1 Developer hereby leases the completed Project to the District, and the District 
hereby leases said completed Project and Site from Developer upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Facilities Lease. 

 
3.2 The leasing by Developer to the District of the completed Project and Site shall 
not affect or result in a merger of the District’s leasehold estate pursuant to this 
Facilities Lease and its fee estate as lessor under the Site Lease. Developer shall 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 4  

continue to have and hold a leasehold estate in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease 
throughout the Term thereof and the Term of this Facilities Lease. 

 
3.3 As to the Site, this Facilities Lease shall be deemed and constitute a sublease. 

 
4. Term 

 
4.1 Facilities Lease is Legally Binding 

 
This Facilities Lease is legally binding on the Parties upon execution by the Parties and 
the District Board’s approval of this Facilities Lease. The “Term” of this Facilities Lease 
for the purposes of District’s obligation to make Lease Payments shall commence on 
the date when Developer delivers possession of the Project to District and when all 
improvements to be provided by Developer are determined by the District to be 
completed as set forth in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

 
Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Documents, the 
Term of this Facilities Lease for the purposes of District’s obligations to make Lease 
Payments shall terminate one (1) year thereafter or upon payment of the final lease 
payment. 

 
4.2 After Developer has completed construction of the Project and the District has 
accepted the Project, the Parties shall execute the Memorandum of Commencement 
Date attached hereto as Exhibit E to memorialize the commencement date of the 
Lease Payments and expiration date of the Term. Notwithstanding this Term, the 
Parties hereby acknowledge that each has obligations, duties, and rights under this 
Facilities Lease that exist upon execution of this Facilities Lease and prior to the 
beginning of the Lease Payment obligations. 

 
4.3 The Term may be extended or shortened upon the occurrence of the earliest of 
any of the following events, which shall constitute the end of the Term: 

 
4.3.1 An Event of Default by District as defined herein and Developer’s 
election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 

 
4.3.2 An Event of Default by Developer as defined herein and District’s 
election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 

 
4.3.3 Consummation of the District’s purchase option pursuant to the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, and Payment 
Provisions indicated in Exhibit C (“Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions”); or 

 
4.3.4 A third-party taking of the Project under Eminent Domain, only if the 
Term is ended as indicated more specifically herein; or 

 
4.3.5 Damage or destruction of the Project, only if the Term is ended as 
indicated more specifically herein. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 5  

5. Payment 
 

In consideration for the lease of the completed Project and Site by Developer back to the 
District and for other good and valuable consideration, the District shall make all necessary 
payments pursuant to the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 

 
6. Title 

 
6.1 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, the District shall hold fee title to the 
Site, including the Project, and nothing in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease shall 
change, in any way, the District’s ownership interest. 

 
6.2 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall have a leasehold 
interest in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease. 

 
6.3 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall hold title to the Project 
improvements provided by Developer which comprise fixtures, repairs, replacements 
or modifications thereto. 

 
6.4 If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C or if District makes all necessary 
payments under the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C, all 
right, title and interest of Developer, its assigns and successors in interest in and to 
the Project and the Site shall be transferred to and vested in the District at the end of 
the Term. Title shall be transferred to and vested in the District hereunder without the 
necessity for any further instrument of transfer; provided, however, that Developer 
agrees to execute any instrument requested by District to memorialize the termination 
of this Facilities Lease and transfer of title to the Project. 

 
7. Quiet Enjoyment 

 
Upon District’s possession of the Project, Developer shall thereafter provide the District with 
quiet use and enjoyment of the Project, and the District shall during the Term peaceably and 
quietly have and hold and enjoy the Project, without suit, trouble or hindrance from 
Developer, except as otherwise may be set forth in this Facilities Lease. Developer will, at the 
request of the District and at Developer’s cost, join in any legal action in which the District 
asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment to the extent Developer may lawfully do 
so. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have the right to inspect the Project and 
the Site as provided herein. 

 
8. Representations of the District 

 
The District represents, covenants and warrants to Developer as follows: 

 
8.1 Due Organization and Existence 

 
The District is a school district, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and 
laws of the State of California. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 6  

8.2 Authorization 
 

The District has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver 
this Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 
duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease. 

 
8.3 No Violations 

 
Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease nor the Site Lease, nor the 
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 
results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 
agreement or instrument to which the District is now a party or by which the District 
is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 
or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 
or assets of the District, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

 
8.4 Condemnation Proceedings 

 
8.4.1 District covenants and agrees, but only to the extent that it may lawfully 
do so, that so long as this Facilities Lease remains in effect, the District will not 
seek to exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to the Project so as 
to cause a full or partial termination of this Facilities Lease. 

 
8.4.2 If for any reason the foregoing covenant is determined to be 
unenforceable or in some way invalid, or if District should fail or refuse to abide 
by such covenant, then, to the extent it may lawfully do so, District agrees that 
the financial interest of Developer shall be as indicated in this Facilities Lease. 

 
9. Representations of Developer 

 
Developer represents, covenants and warrants to the District as follows: 

 
9.1 Due Organization and Existence 

 
Developer is a [California company] duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of [California], has the power to enter into this Facilities Lease and the Site 
Lease; is possessed of full power to lease, lease back, and hold real and personal 
property and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of all of the aforesaid 
agreements. 

 
9.2 Authorization 

 
Developer has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver this 
Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 
duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease. 

 
9.3 No Violations 

 
Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease and the Site Lease, nor the 
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 
results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 7  

agreement or instrument to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer is 
bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 
or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 
or assets of Developer, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

 
9.4 No Bankruptcy 

 
Developer is not now nor has it ever been in bankruptcy or receivership. 

 
9.5 No Encumbrances 

 
Developer shall not pledge any District payments of any kind, related to the Site Lease, 
this Facilities Lease, or in any way derived from the Site, and shall not mortgage or 
encumber the Site, except as may be specifically permitted pursuant to the provisions 
of this Facilities Lease related to Developer’s financing the construction of the project. 

 
9.6 Continued Existence 

 
Developer shall not voluntarily commence any act intended to dissolve or terminate 
the legal existence of Developer, at or before the latest of the following: 

 
9.6.1 Eighteen (18) months following completion of the Project. 

 
9.6.2 One (1) year following expiration or earlier termination of the Term. 

 
9.6.3 After dismissal and final resolution of any and all disputes between the 
Parties and/or any third-party claims related, in any way, to the Project. 

 
While the lease documents are in effect, Developer shall give District one hundred 
twenty (120) days written notice prior to dissolving or terminating the legal existence 
of Developer. 

 
10. Preconstruction Services 

 
10.1 Scope of the Preconstruction Services 

 
Developer shall perform management and coordination services, plan and specification 
constructability reviews, provide value-engineering reviews and recommendations and 
other reviews as necessary to verify that the drawings and specifications are clear and 
reasonably accurate to minimize the need for changes during the construction phase 
of the project, including but not limited to the following: 

 
10.1.1 General Services 

 
10.1.1.1 Developer shall attend meetings between the Architect, the 
District, District site personnel, and any other applicable consultants of 
the District as required to discuss the Project, including budget, scope 
and schedule. 

 
10.1.1.2 Developer shall assist the Architect with making formal 
presentations to the governing board of District. Such assistance is 
anticipated to include floor plans and elevations necessary for any 
architectural presentation. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 8  

10.1.1.3 Developer shall prepare a rough schedule in a format 
acceptable to District, and update as necessary. 

 
10.1.1.4 Developer shall prepare and update the components of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price and shall be primarily responsible for 
ensuring that the Project can and is constructed for no more than that 
amount. 

 
10.1.1.5 While the Architect is anticipated to provide primary 
assistance, Developer shall assist District with City land use issues. 

 
10.1.1.6 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist District 
and Architect with DSA review, input, and timeframe for same. 

 
10.1.1.7 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 
review and comment upon geotechnical / soils investigation and report. 

 
10.1.1.8 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 
review and comment upon survey of the Site for the Project. 

 
10.1.1.9 When requested, Developer will prepare meeting minutes. 

 
10.1.1.10 Prepare schedule for preconstruction deliverables, subject to 
District’s approval, and provide preconstruction deliverables within time 
frames of approved preconstruction schedule. 

 
10.1.2 Review of Design Documents. 

 
10.1.2.1 Review Project design and budget with District and Architect 
based on the 100% Construction Documents submitted to DSA to: 

 
10.1.2.1.1 Provide recommendations on site use and 
improvements, selection of materials, building systems and 
equipment and methods of Project delivery; 

 
10.1.2.1.2 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 
construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 
requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 
the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 
to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 
alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 
economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 
substitutions; 

 
10.1.2.1.3 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 
construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 
requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 
the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 
to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 
alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 
economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 
substitutions; 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 9  

10.1.2.1.4 Provide plan review. 
 

10.1.2.1.5 Value-engineering. Prepare a value-engineering 
report for District review and approval that: 

 
10.1.2.1.5.1 Details areas of cost saving (e.g. 
construction processes/procedures, specified materials 
and equipment, and equipment or other aspects of the 
design documents that can be modified to reduce costs 
and/or the time for achieving final completion of the 
Project and/or to extend life-cycle and/or to reduce 
maintenance/operations costs, without diminution in the 
quality of materials/equipment/workmanship, scope or 
intended purposes of the Project); 

 
10.1.2.1.5.2 Provides detailed estimate for proposed 
value-engineering items; 

 
10.1.2.1.5.3 Defines methodology or approaches that 
maximize value; and 

 
10.1.2.1.5.4 Identifies design choices that can be more 
economically delivered. 

 
10.1.2.1.6 Constructability Review. Prepare detailed 
interdisciplinary constructability review within Fourteen (14) 
days of receipt of the plans from the District that: 

 
10.1.2.1.6.1 Ensures construction documents are well 
coordinated and reviewed for errors; 

 
10.1.2.1.6.2 Identifies to the extent known, 
construction deficiencies and areas of concern; 

 
10.1.2.1.6.3 Back-checks design drawings for inclusion 
of modifications; and 

 
10.1.2.1.6.4 Provides the District with written 
confirmation that: 

 
10.1.2.1.6.4.1 Requirements noted in the design 
documents prepared for the Project are consistent 
with and conform to the District's Project 
requirements and design standards. 

 
10.1.2.1.6.4.2 Various components have been 
coordinated and are consistent with each other so 
as to minimize conflicts within or between 
components of the design documents. 

 
10.1.2.2 Confirm Modifications to Design Drawings. If the District 
accepts Developer's comments, including the value-engineering and/or 
constructability review comments, review the design documents to 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 10  

confirm that those comments are properly incorporated into the final 
design documents. 

 
In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not acting in the capacity of a licensed design 
professional, and that Developer’s examination is made in good faith to facilitate 
construction and does not create an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to 
detect errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain 
compliance with applicable laws, building codes or regulations. However, nothing in this 
provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and reporting any error, 
inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within the Developer’s standard of care 
including, without limitation, any applicable laws, ordinance, rules, or regulations. 

 
10.1.3 Budget of Project Costs. 

 
10.1.3.1 At each stage of plan review indicated above, Developer will 
update and refine the budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price based 
on the most recent set of design documents. Developer shall also advise 
the District and the Architect if it appears that the total construction 
costs may exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price established by the 
District and shall make recommendations for corrective action. 
Developer will further provide input to the District and Architect relative 
to value of construction, means and methods for construction, duration 
of construction of various building methods and constructability. 

 
In each budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer shall include values of scopes 
of work subdivided into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for 
progress payments during construction. This budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall 
include, at a minimum, the following information divided into at least the following 
categories for each site: 

10.1.3.1.1 Overhead and profit; 
 

10.1.3.1.2 Supervision; 
 

10.1.3.1.3 General conditions; 
 

10.1.3.1.4 Layout & Mobilization (not more than 1%); 
 

10.1.3.1.5 Submittals, samples, shop drawings (not more than 
3%); 

 
10.1.3.1.6 Bonds and insurance (not more than 2%); 

 
10.1.3.1.7 Close-out documentation (not less than 3%); 

 
10.1.3.1.8 Demolition; 

 
10.1.3.1.9 Installation; 

10.1.3.1.10 Rough-in; 

10.1.3.1.11 Finishes; 

10.1.3.1.12 Testing; 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 11  

10.1.3.1.13 Owner and Maintenance Manuals; and 
 

10.1.3.1.14 Punchlist and District acceptance. 
 

10.1.4 Construction Schedule and Phasing Plan 
 

Developer shall prepare a preconstruction schedule to guide the design team 
through to bid dates. That schedule shall show the multiple phases and 
interrelations of design, constructability review, and estimating. Developer shall 
also prepare a full construction schedule for the Project detailing the 
construction activities. Developer shall further investigate, recommend and 
prepare a schedule for the purchase of materials and equipment requiring long 
lead time procurement, and coordinate the schedule with the early preparation 
of portions of the Contract Documents by the Architect. 

 
10.1.5 Construction Planning and Bidding 

 
10.1.5.1 For all of Developer’s activities relating to construction 
planning and bidding, Developer shall comply with all applicable legal 
requirements, including but not limited to those set forth in 
Education Code section 17406. 

 
10.1.5.2 Consult with District staff in relation to the existing site. 
Selected developer should make site visits, as needed to review the 
current site conditions. During this evaluation, Respondent may 
make recommendations relating to soils investigations and utility 
locations and capacities, in order to minimize unforeseen conditions. 

 
10.1.5.3 Attend meetings at the Site with the Architect and the 
design team as needed. 

 
10.1.5.4 Provide plan review and constructability services with an 
emphasis on ensuring that the Project can be completed within the 
established schedule and within the available budget. 

 
10.1.5.5 Provide a detailed analysis of all major Project systems 
with an emphasis on possible value engineering possibilities. 

 
10.1.5.6 Prepare and distribute specifications and drawings 
provided by District to facilitate bidding to Developer's 
subcontractors. 

 
10.1.5.7 Review the drawings and specifications to eliminate areas 
of conflict and overlapping in the work to be performed by various 
subcontractors, and with a view to eliminating change order requests 
by the Architect or subcontractors. 

 
10.1.5.8 Conduct pre-bid conferences. Coordinate with District and 
the Architect in responding to subcontractor questions or providing 
clarification to all subcontractors. 

 
10.1.5.9 DSA approved plans shall be utilized to receive 
subcontractor bids and develop the GMP in accordance with the 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 12  

lease-leaseback agreement forms, including the requirement that 
Developer engage in competitive bidding for subcontractors for all 
scopes of work on the Project that constitute more than one half of 
one percent (0.5%) of the GMP. The District representative shall be 
present during the receipt of bids from subcontractors. 

 
10.1.5.10 Each phase GMP shall be presented to the District in the 
following manner within a three ring binder as well as electronically 
on an external memory device such as a CD, USB drive, or other 
comparable device: 

 
10.1.5.10.1 Cover sheet, signed by Developer indicating the 
GMP dollar amount with a certification, indicating that the GMP 
is all inclusive per the plans, specifications and addenda (contract 
documents). Also include certification stating, “Developer hereby 
certifies that they have reviewed all subcontractor proposals and 
whether the subcontractor excluded portions of their scope 
Developer has included all costs for a complete GMP in 
accordance with plans, specifications and addenda.” 

 
10.1.5.10.2 A bid tabulation sheet indicating the breakdown by 
subcontractor/trade along with the appropriate general condition 
amount, other fees (as submitted with the response to the 
RFQ/P). 

 
10.1.5.10.3 Behind the bid tabulation sheet mentioned in 
subdivision 10.1.5.5.2 above should be a sheet that indicates 
what is included in the general conditions, which should match 
what was submitted in the response to the RFQ/P. 

 
10.1.5.10.4 Copies of all subcontractor bids received divided 
by trade that corresponds to the final spread sheet with a cover 
sheet indicating the scope and subcontractors that provided bids 
as well as those that were asked to bid, but did not submit a 
proposal. This sheet should have the dollar amounts for each 
subcontractor that provided a bid with the first column being the 
proposed subcontractor for that trade. 

 
10.1.5.10.5 Behind subdivision 10.1.5.5.4 above should be the 
bids for that trade with the proposed subcontractor bid on top 
and the other subcontractor bids in descending order based on 
best value score. 

 
10.1.5.10.6 The minimum number of bona fide bids from 
contractors for a specific trade shall be as follows: 

 
10.1.5.10.6.1 Two (2) bids for subcontracts up to One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000); 

 
10.1.5.10.6.2 Three (3) bids for subcontracts over One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000). 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 13  

10.1.5.10.7 If Developer intends to propose to self-perform 
portion(s) of the construction of the Project, it must receive the 
District’s prior written approval. If approved, Developer must 
provide its pricing (its bid) to the District twenty-four (24) hours 
prior to Developer’s receipt of Subcontractor bids for those 
portion(s) of the Work. 

 
10.1.5.10.7.1 Regardless of the scope of work and not in 
any way reducing the number of Subcontractor bids 
based on the other requirements of the Contract 
Documents, the minimum number of bona fide bids from 
Subcontractors for scope(s) of Work that Developer is 
bidding to self-perform shall be Two (2) Bids, not 
including Developer’s pricing/bid. 

 
10.1.5.11 Produce detailed construction CPM schedules to be 
incorporated into the Project documents including identification of 
the Project critical path and agency approvals. 

 
10.1.5.12 Plan the phases and staging of construction, staging 
areas, temporary fencing, office trailer placement, access, etc. as 
required. 

 
10.1.5.13 Any other services that are reasonable and necessary to 
control the budget and schedule. List those areas where 
subconsultants will be required and where the Respondent has in- 
house expertise. Provide resumes of persons providing each of these 
services and for key personnel assigned to the Project. 

 
10.2 Schedule 

 
Preconstruction services outlined above will commence on the date the District issues 
a Notice to Proceed with Preconstruction Services for the Agreement, and conclude 
upon approval of the Amendment to the Lease Agreements by District’s Board, or 
termination of this Agreement by either party per the Agreement’s terms. Any 
extension shall be subject to reasonable approval in writing by the Parties. 

 
10.3 Ownership of Records 

 
It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by Developer under this Agreement 
shall become the property of the District and Developer shall have no property right 
therein whatsoever. Developer hereby assigns to District any copyrights associated 
with the materials prepared pursuant to the Agreement. 

 
10.4 Open Book Policy 

 
There will be an open book policy with Developer and its construction team. District 
shall have access to all subcontractor bids, value engineering back-up, contingency 
breakdown & tracking, and Developer fees. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 14  

10.5 Compensation to Developer for Preconstruction Services 
 

District agrees to reimburse Developer in the total amount not to exceed TEN 
THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY-SIX AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10,636.00), 
for the performance of services contemplated by this Agreement. Developer shall be 
paid monthly for the actual fees and allowed costs and expenses for all time and 
materials required and expended for work requested and specified by the District as 
completed. Said amount shall be paid within thirty (30) days upon submittal to and 
verification by the District of a monthly billing statement showing completion of the 
tasks for that month on a line item basis. In the event Developer and District continue 
with the lease/leaseback agreements for the development of the Project, this 
compensation for services rendered will be included as part of the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (“GMP”) to be paid to Developer by District. 

 
Developer shall be responsible for any and all costs and expenses incurred by 
Developer, including but not limited to the costs of hiring sub-consultants, contractors 
and other professionals, review of the Project’s Plans and Specifications, review and 
preparation of necessary documentation relating to the development of the Project, all 
travel-related expenses, as well as for meetings with District and its representatives, 
long distance telephone charges, copying expenses, salaries of Developer staff and 
employees working on the Project, overhead, and any other reasonable expenses 
incurred by Developer in performance of the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
10.6 Termination before Construction Phase 

 
10.6.1 Before the notice to proceed with the Construction Phase is issued 
by the District, this Agreement may be terminated at any time without cause 
by District upon fourteen (14) days written notice to Developer. In the event of 
such a termination by District, the District shall pay Developer for all undisputed 
services performed and expenses incurred per this Agreement, supported by 
documentary evidence, including, but not limited to, payroll records, invoices 
from third parties retained by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and 
expense reports up until the date of notice of termination plus any sums due 
Developer for Board-approved extra services. In ascertaining the services 
actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this Agreement, 
consideration shall be given to completed work and work in process that would 
best serve the District if a completed product was presented. 

 
10.6.2 In the event that the Parties do not reach an agreement on the GMP, 
this Agreement will be terminated at that time. In the event of such a 
termination, the District shall pay Developer no more than the not to exceed 
amount in Section 10.5 above. 

 
10.7 Construction Phase 

 
Developer shall not commence work for which a contractor is required to be licensed 
in accordance with Article 5 (commencing with Section 7065) of Chapter 9 of Division 
3 of the Business and Professions Code and for which Division of the State Architect 
approval is required can be performed before receipt of the required Division of the 
State Architect approval. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 15  

11. Construction of Project 
 

11.1 Construction of Project 
 

11.1.1 Developer agrees to cause the Project to be developed, constructed, 
and installed in accordance with the terms hereof and the Construction 
Provisions set forth in Exhibit D, including those things reasonably inferred 
from the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Project and 
necessary to produce the stated result even though no mention is made in the 
Contract Documents. 

 
11.1.2 Contract Time / Construction Schedule 

 
It is hereby understood and agreed that the Contract Time for this Project shall 
be [days in words] ([days in numbers]) calendar days, commencing with the 
date upon which the Facilities Lease and the Site Lease are fully executed and 
delivered to both Parties and ending with completion of the Work which will 
occur no later than [Date] (“Contract Time”). The Construction Schedule must 
be approved by the District. 

 
11.1.3 Schedule of Values 

 
Developer will provide a schedule of values, approved by the District, which will 
be attached hereto as Exhibit G (“Schedule of Values”). The Schedule of Values 
must be approved by the District. 

 
11.1.4 Liquidated Damages 

 
Time is of the essence for all work Developer must perform to complete the 
Project. It is hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or 
impossible to ascertain and determine the actual damage that the District will 
sustain in the event of and by reason of Developer's delay; therefore, Developer 
agrees that it shall pay to the District the sum of One Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars ($ 1,500.00) per day as liquidated damages for each and every day's 
delay beyond the Contract Time. 

 
11.1.4.1 It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is 
not a penalty. 

 
11.1.4.2 In the event any portion of the liquidated damages is not 
paid to the District, the District may deduct that amount from any 
money due or that may become due Developer under this Facilities 
Lease. The District's right to assess liquidated damages is as 
indicated herein and in Exhibit D. 

 
11.1.4.3 The time during which the construction of the Project is 
delayed for cause as hereinafter specified may extend the time of 
completion for a reasonable time as the District may grant. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 16  

11.1.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

Developer will cause the Project to be constructed within the GMP as set forth 
and defined in the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and Developer will not seek 
additional compensation from District in excess of that amount. 

 
11.1.6 Modifications 

 
If the DSA requires changes to the Contract Documents submitted by District 
to Developer, and those changes change the construction costs and/or 
construction time for the Project, then those changed costs or time will be 
handled as a modification pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit D. 

 
11.1.7 Labor Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement by 

Department of Industrial Relations 
 

This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and 
Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. Developer specifically 
acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Contract 
while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 
1, of the Labor Code. 

 
12. Maintenance 

 
Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the repair, 
improvement, replacement and maintenance of the Project and the Site shall be at the sole 
cost and expense and the sole responsibility of the District, subject only to all punch list items 
and warranties against defects in materials and workmanship of Developer as provided in 
Exhibit D. The District shall pay for or otherwise arrange for the payment of the cost of the 
repair and replacement of the Project resulting from ordinary wear and tear. The District 
waives the benefits of subsections 1 and 2 of Section 1932 of the California Civil Code, but 
such waiver shall not limit any of the rights of the District under the terms of this Facilities 
Lease. 

 
13. Utilities 

 

Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the cost and expenses 
for all utility services, including, but not limited to, electricity, natural gas, telephone, water, 
sewer, trash removal, cable television, janitorial service, security, heating, water, internet 
service, data transmission, and all other utilities of any type shall be paid by District. 

 
14. Taxes and Other Impositions 

 
All ad valorem real property taxes, special taxes, possessory interest taxes, bonds and special 
lien assessments or other impositions of any kind with respect to the Project, the Site and the 
improvements thereon, charged to or imposed upon either Developer or the District or their 
respective interests or estates in the Project, shall at all times be paid by District. In the event 
any possessory interest tax is levied on Developer, its successors and assigns, by virtue of this 
Facilities Lease or the Site Lease, District shall pay such possessory interest tax directly, if 
possible, or shall reimburse Developer, its successors and assigns for the full amount thereof 
within forty-five (45) days after presentation of proof of payment by Developer. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 17  

15. Insurance 
 

15.1 Developer’s Insurance 
 

Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated here and in 
Exhibit D. 

 
15.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability 

Insurance 
 

15.1.1.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 
the Project, Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile 
Liability Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, its Board 
Members, employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project 
Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 
bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising 
injury, and medical payments arising from, or in connection with, 
operations under the Project. This coverage shall be provided in a 
form at least as broad as Insurance Services (ISO) Form CG 00 01 
11 88. Developer shall ensure that Products Liability and Completed 
Operations coverage, Fire Damage Liability coverage, and 
Automobile Liability coverage including owned, non-owned, and 
hired automobiles, are included within the above policies and at the 
required limits, or Developer shall procure and maintain these 
coverages separately. 

 
15.1.1.2 Developer’s deductible or self-insured retention for its 
Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall not exceed five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) for deductible or twenty-five thousand 
dollars ($25,000) for self-insured retention, respectively, unless 
approved in writing by District. 

 
15.1.1.3 All such policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 

 
15.1.2 Excess Liability Insurance 

 
15.1.2.1 If Developer’s underlying policy limits are less than 
required, subject to 15.1.2.3 below, Developer may procure and 
maintain, during the life of the Project, an Excess Liability Insurance 
Policy to meet the policy limit requirements of the required policies 
in order to satisfy, in aggregate with its underlying policy, the 
insurance requirements herein. 

 
15.1.2.2 There shall be no gap between the per occurrence amount 
of any underlying policy and the start of the coverage under the 
Excess Liability Insurance Policy. Any Excess Liability Insurance 
Policy shall protect Developer, District, its Board Members, 
employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), 
Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) in amounts and including the 
provisions as set forth in Exhibit D and/or the Supplementary 
Conditions (if any), and that complies with all requirements for 
Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability and 
Employers’ Liability Insurance. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 18  

15.1.2.3 The District, in its sole discretion, may accept the Excess 
Liability Insurance Policy that brings Developer’s primary limits to 
the minimum requirements herein. 

 
15.1.3 Subcontractor 

 
Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance, and 
Excess Liability Insurance (if Subcontractor elects to satisfy, in part, the 
insurance required herein by procuring and maintaining an Excess Liability 
Insurance Policy) with minimum limits at least equal to the amount required of 
Developer except where smaller minimum limits are permitted as set forth 
below. 

 
15.1.4 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

 
15.1.4.1 In accordance with provisions of section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, Developer and every Subcontractor shall be 
required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees. 

 
15.1.4.2 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 
the Project, Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance for all of its employees engaged in work under 
the Project, on/or at the Site of the Project. This coverage shall 
cover, at a minimum, medical and surgical treatment, disability 
benefits, rehabilitation therapy, and survivors' death benefits. 
Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and 
maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance for all employees of Subcontractor(s). Any class of 
employee or employees not covered by a Subcontractor’s insurance 
shall be covered by Developer’s insurance. If any class of employee 
or employees engaged in Work on the Project, on or at the Site of 
the Project, is not protected under the Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance, Developer shall provide, or shall cause a Subcontractor 
to provide, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any 
employee(s) not otherwise protected before any of those 
employee(s) commence work. 

 
15.1.5 Builder's Risk Insurance: Builder's Risk “All Risk” Insurance 

 
15.1.5.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 
this Contract, Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction), or similar first 
party property coverage acceptable to the District, issued on a 
replacement cost value basis. The cost shall be consistent with the 
total replacement cost of all insurable Work of the Project included 
within the Contract Documents. Coverage is to insure against all 
risks of accidental physical loss and shall include without limitation 
the perils of vandalism and/or malicious mischief (both without any 
limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), sprinkler leakage, civil 
authority, theft, sonic disturbance, earthquake, flood, collapse, 
wind, rain, dust, fire, war, terrorism, lightning, smoke, and rioting. 
Coverage shall include debris removal, demolition, increased costs 
due to enforcement of all applicable ordinances and/or laws in the 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 19  

repair and replacement of damaged and undamaged portions of the 
property, and reasonable costs for the Architect’s and engineering 
services and expenses required as a result of any insured loss upon 
the Work and Project, including completed Work and Work in 
progress, to the full insurable value thereof. 

 
15.1.6 Pollution Liability Insurance 

 
15.1.6.1 Developer shall procure and maintain Pollution Liability 
Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, Construction 
Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 
bodily injury, property damage, including natural resource damage, 
cleanup costs, removal, storage, disposal, and/or use of the 
pollutant arising from operations under this Facilities Lease, and 
defense, including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, 
defense, or settlement of claims. Coverage shall apply to sudden 
and/or gradual pollution conditions resulting from the escape or 
release of smoke, vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, 
liquids, or gases, natural gas, waste materials, or other irritants, 
contaminants, or pollutants, including asbestos. This coverage shall 
be provided in a form at least as broad as Insurance Services Offices, 
Inc. (ISO) Form CG 2415, or Developer shall procure and maintain 
these coverages separately. 

 
15.1.6.2 Developer warrants that any retroactive date applicable 
to coverage under the policy shall predate the Effective Date of this 
Facilities Lease and that continuous coverage will be maintained or 
an extended reporting or discovery period will be exercised for a 
period of three (3) years, beginning from the time that the Work 
under the Contract is completed. 

 
15.1.6.3 If Developer is responsible for removing any pollutants 
from a site, then Developer shall ensure that Any Auto, including 
owned, non-owned, and hired, are included within the above policies 
and at the required limits, to cover its automobile exposure for 
transporting the pollutants from the site to an approved disposal 
site. This coverage shall include the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement, 
MCS 90. 

 
15.1.7 Proof of Carriage of Insurance and Other Requirements 

Endorsements and Certificates 
 

15.1.7.1 Developer shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any 
Subcontractor to commence Work on the Project, until Developer 
and its Subcontractor(s) have procured all required insurance and 
Developer has delivered in duplicate to the District complete 
endorsements (or entire insurance policies) and certificates 
indicating the required coverages have been obtained, and the 
District has approved these documents. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 20  

15.1.7.2 Endorsements, certificates, and insurance policies shall 
include the following: 

 
15.1.7.2.1 A clause stating the following, or other 
language acceptable to the District: 

 
“This policy shall not be canceled and the coverage 
amounts shall not be reduced until notice has been mailed 
to District, Architect, and Construction Manager stating 
date of cancellation by the insurance carrier. Date of 
cancellation may not be less than thirty (30) days after 
date of mailing notice.” 

 
15.1.7.2.2 Language stating in particular those 
insured, extent of insurance, location and operation to 
which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom 
cancellation notice will be sent, and length of notice 
period. 

 
15.1.7.3 All endorsements, certificates and insurance policies shall 
state that District, its Board Members, employees and agents, 
Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Inspector(s) and 
Architect(s) are named additional insureds under all policies except 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability 
Insurance. 

 
15.1.7.4 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 
against any of the named additional insureds. 

 
15.1.7.5 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 
be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 
agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 
Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s). 

 
15.1.7.6 Developer’s insurance limit shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought. 

 
15.1.7.7 No policy shall be amended, canceled, or modified, and 
the coverage amounts shall not be reduced, until Developer or 
Developer’s broker has provided written notice to District, Architect, 
and Construction Manager stating date of the amendment, 
modification, cancellation or reduction, and a description of the 
change. Date of amendment, modification, cancellation or reduction 
may not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice. 

 
15.1.7.8 Insurance written on a “claims made” basis shall be 
retroactive to a date that coincides with or precedes Developer’s 
commencement of Work, including subsequent policies purchased as 
renewals or replacements. Said policy is to be renewed by Developer 
and all Subcontractors for a period of five (5) years following 
completion of the Work or termination of this Facilities Lease. Such 
insurance must have the same coverage and limits as the policy that 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 21  

was in effect during the term of this Facilities Lease, and will cover 
Developer and all Subcontractors for all claims made. 

 
15.1.7.9 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 
be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 
agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 
Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s). 

 
15.1.7.10 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 
against any of the named additional insureds. 

 
15.1.7.11 All policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 

 
15.1.7.12 All of Developer’s insurance shall be with insurance 
companies with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: XI. 

 
15.1.7.13 The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no 
way limit Developer’s liability arising out of or relating to the 
performance of the Work or related activities. 

 
15.1.7.14 Failure of Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) to 
comply with the insurance requirements herein shall be deemed a 
material breach of the Facilities Lease and constitute a Default by 
Developer pursuant to this Facilities Lease. 

 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 22  

15.1.8 Insurance Policy Limits 
 

The limits of insurance shall not be less than the following amounts and for those 
subcontractors whose subcontract does not exceed $1,000,000 shall not be less than the following 
amounts:   

Commercial General 
Liability 

Product Liability and 
Completed Operations, Fire 
Damage Liability – Split Limit 

Developer: $2,000,000 per 
occurrence; $4,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Excess Liability  Developer: $10,000,000 per 
occurrence; $10,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Automobile Liability – Any 
Auto 

Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 (limits may be met 
with Excess Liability Policy required 
herein) 

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Workers’ Compensation  Statutory limits pursuant to State 
law 

Employer’s Liability  $1,000,000  

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Builder’s Risk  Replacement Cost 

Pollution Liability  $2,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
If Developer normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required 
by District, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for 
purposes of the Contract. Therefore, Developer hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance 
carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the 
Contract. 

 
Notwithstanding anything in this Facilities Lease to the contrary, the above insurance 
requirements may be modified as appropriate for subcontractors, with District's prior written 
approval. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 23  

15.2 District’s Insurance 
 

15.2.1 Rental Interruption Insurance 
 

District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, for 
the benefit of District and Developer, as their interests may appear, maintain 
rental interruption insurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of the 
Project due to damage or destruction, in an amount at least equal to the 
maximum estimated Lease Payments payable under this Facilities Lease during 
the current or any future twenty-four (24) month period. This insurance may 
be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other insurance coverage 
carried by the District, and such insurance may be maintained in whole or in 
part in the form of participation by the District in a joint powers agency or other 
program providing pooled insurance. This insurance may not be maintained in 
the form of self-insurance. 

 
15.2.2 Property Insurance 

 
District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, 
carry and maintain in force a policy of property insurance for 100% of the 
insurable replacement value with no coinsurance penalty, on the Site and the 
Project, together with all improvements thereon, under a standard “all risk” 
contract insuring against loss or damage. Developer shall be named as 
additional insureds or co-insureds thereon by way of endorsement. District shall 
have the right to procure the required insurance through a joint powers agency 
or to self-insure against such losses or portion thereof as is deemed prudent by 
District. 

 
16. Indemnification and Defense 

 

16.1 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall indemnify, 
keep and hold harmless the District, the Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s), 
their respective consultants, separate contractors, board members, officers, 
representatives, agents, and employees, in both individual and official capacities 
(“Indemnitees”), against all suits, claims, injury, damages, losses, and expenses 
(“Claims”), including but not limited to attorney’s fees and costs, caused by, arising 
out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole or in part, the performance of the Work 
under this Contract by Developer or its Subcontractors, vendors and/or suppliers. 
However, Developer’s indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be reduced 
by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or Architect’s liability to the extent the 
Claim(s) is/are caused wholly by the active negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court 
or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction. This indemnification and hold harmless 
obligation of Developer shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce 
any right or obligation of indemnity that would otherwise exist or arise as to any 
Indemnitee or other person described herein. This indemnification and hold harmless 
obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 
comply with any law and/or provision of the Contract Documents in strict accordance 
with their terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developers 
obligations regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage 
and Penalty Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 24  

16.2 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall also defend 
Indemnitees, at its own expense, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs, 
against all Claims caused by, arising out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole 
or in part, the performance of the Work under this Facilities Lease by Developer, its 
Subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers. However, without impacting Developer’s 
obligation to provide an immediate and ongoing defense of Indemnitees, Developer’s 
defense obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or 
Architect’s liability to the extent caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or 
willful misconduct of the Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the 
Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction. The District shall 
have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Developer proposes to 
defend the Indemnitees. If any Indemnitee provides its own defense due to failure to 
timely respond to tender of defense, rejection of tender of defense, or conflict of 
interest of proposed counsel, Developer shall reimburse such Indemnitee for any 
expenditures. Developer’s defense obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any right or obligation of defense that would otherwise 
exist as to any Indemnitee or other person described herein. Developer’s defense 
obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 
comply with any provision of law, any failure or alleged failure to timely and properly 
fulfill all of its obligations under the Contract Documents in strict accordance with their 
terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developer’s obligations 
regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage and Penalty 
Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR. Developer shall give prompt notice to the 
District in the event of any Claim(s). 

 
16.3 Without limitation of the provisions herein, if Developer’s obligation to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees or its obligation to defend Indemnitees 
as provided herein shall be determined to be void or unenforceable, in whole or in part, 
it is the intention of the Parties that these circumstances shall not otherwise affect the 
validity or enforceability of Developer’s agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the rest of the Indemnitees, as provided herein. Further, Developer shall be 
and remain fully liable on its agreements and obligations herein to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

 
16.4 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, the District shall provide timely 
notification to Developer of the receipt of any third-party Claim relating to this 
Contract. The District shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in 
providing said notification. 

 
16.5 In any and all Claims against any of the Indemnitees by any employee of 
Developer, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them 
or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, Developer’s indemnification 
obligation herein shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Developer or any 
Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

 
16.6 The District may retain so much of the moneys due to Developer as shall be 
considered necessary, until disposition of any such Claims or until the District, 
Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s) have received written agreement from 
Developer that Developer will unconditionally defend the District, the Architect(s) and 
Construction Manager(s), their respective officers, agents and employees, and pay any 
damages due by reason of settlement or judgment. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 25  

16.7 Developer’s defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the 
completion of Work, including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination 
of the Contract. 

 
17. Eminent Domain 

 
17.1 Total Taking After Project Delivery 

 
If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, all of the 
Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent domain, the 
Term shall cease as of the day possession shall be so taken. 

 
17.1.1 The financial interest of Developer shall be limited to the amount of 
principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that 
are then due or past due together with all remaining and succeeding principal 
payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 
remainder of the original Term. For example, if all of the Project and the Site is 
taken at the end of the third year of the Term, Developer shall be entitled to 
receive from the eminent domain award the sum of all principal payments 
pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that would have been 
owing for the fourth year through the end of the Term had there been no taking. 

 
17.1.2 The balance of the award, if any, shall be paid to the District. 

 
17.2 Total Taking Prior to Project Delivery 

 
If all of the Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent 
domain and Developer is still performing the work of the Project and has not yet 
delivered possession of the Project to District, the Term shall cease as of the day 
possession shall be so taken. The financial interest of Developer shall be the amount 
Developer has expended to date for work performed on the Project, subject to 
documentation reasonably satisfactory to the District. 

 
17.3 Partial Taking 

 
If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, less than all 
of the Project and the Site is taken permanently, or if all of the Project and the Site or 
any part thereof is taken temporarily, under the power of eminent domain. 

 
17.3.1 This Facilities Lease shall continue in full force and effect and shall 
not be terminated by virtue of that partial taking and the Parties waive the 
benefit of any law to the contrary, and 

 
17.3.2 There shall be a partial abatement of any principal payments 
pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C as a result of the 
application of the net proceeds of any eminent domain award to the 
prepayment of those payments hereunder. The Parties agree to negotiate, in 
good faith, for an equitable split of the net proceeds of any eminent domain 
award and a corresponding reduction in the payments required pursuant to the 
GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 26  

18. Damage and Destruction 
 

If, following delivery of possession of all or a portion of the Project by Developer to District, 
the Project is totally or partially destroyed due to fire, acts of vandalism, flood, storm, 
earthquake, Acts of God, or other casualty beyond the control of either party hereto, the Term 
shall end and District shall no longer be required to make any payments required pursuant to 
the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that are then due or past due or any remaining and 
succeeding principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 
remainder of the original Term. 

 
19. Abatement 

 
19.1 If, after the Parties have executed the Memorandum of Commencement Date 
attached hereto as Exhibit E, the Project becomes destroyed or damaged beyond 
repair, the District may determine its use of the Project abated. Thereafter, the District 
shall have no obligation to make, nor shall Developer have the right to demand, the 
Lease Payments as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 
Facilities Lease. The Term shall cease at that time. 

 
19.2 The Parties hereby agree that the net proceeds of the District’s rental 
interruption insurance that the District must maintain during the Term, as required 
herein, shall constitute a special fund for the payment of the Lease Payments indicated 
in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 

 
19.3 The District shall as soon as practicable after such event, apply the net proceeds 
of its insurance policy intended to cover that loss (“Net Proceeds”), either to: 

 
19.3.1 Repair the Project to full use. 

 
19.3.2 Replace the Project, at the District’s sole cost and expense, with 
property of equal or greater value to the Project immediately prior to the time 
of the destruction or damage, and that replacement, once completed, shall be 
substituted in this Facilities Lease by appropriate endorsement; or 

 
19.3.3 Exercise the District’s purchase optio to Exhibit D to the Facilities 
Lease n as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 
Facilities Lease. 

 
19.4 The District shall notify Developer of which course of action it desires to take 
within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the destruction or damage. The Net 
Proceeds of all insurance payable with respect to the Project shall be available to the 
District and shall be used to discharge the District's obligations under this Section. 

 
20. Access 

 
20.1 By Developer 

 
Developer shall have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the Site to 
construct the Project pursuant to this Facilities Lease. Following the acceptance of the 
Project by District, Developer may enter the Project at reasonable times with advance 
notice and arrangement with District for purposes of making any repairs required to 
be made by Developer. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 27  

20.2 By District 
 

The District shall have the right to enter upon the Site at all times. District shall comply 
with all safety precautions and procedures required by Developer. 

 
21. Assignment, Subleasing 

 
21.1 Assignment and Subleasing by the District 

 
Any assignment or sublease by District shall be subject to all of the following 
conditions: 

 
21.1.1 This Facilities Lease and the obligation of the District to make the 
payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall 
remain obligations of the District; and 

 
21.1.2 The District shall, within thirty (30) days after the delivery thereof, 
furnish or cause to be furnished to Developer a true and complete copy of any 
assignment or sublease. 

 
21.2 Assignment by Developer 

 
Developer may assign its right, title and interest in this Facilities Lease, in whole or in 
part to one or more assignees, only after the written consent of District, which District 
will not unreasonably withhold. No assignment shall be effective against the District 
unless and until the District has consented in writing. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Facilities Lease, no consent from the District shall be required 
in connection with any assignment by Developer to a lender for purposes of financing 
the Project as long as there are not additional costs to the District. 

 
22. Termination, Default And Suspension 

 
22.1 Termination; Lease Terminable Only As Set Forth Herein 

 
22.1.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, this 
Facilities Lease shall not terminate, nor shall District have any right to terminate 
this Facilities Lease or be entitled to the abatement of any necessary payments 
pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C or any reduction thereof. The 
obligations hereunder of District shall not be otherwise affected by reason of 
any damage to or destruction of all or any part of the Project; the taking of the 
Project or any portion thereof by condemnation or otherwise; the prohibition, 
limitation or restriction of District’s use of the Project; the interference with 
such use by any private person or contractor; the District’s acquisition of the 
ownership of the Project (other than pursuant to an express provision of this 
Facilities Lease); any present or future law to the contrary notwithstanding. It 
is the intention of the Parties hereto that all necessary payments pursuant to 
the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall continue to be payable in all 
events, and the obligations of the District hereunder shall continue unaffected 
unless the requirement to pay or perform the same shall be terminated or 
modified pursuant to an express provision of this Facilities Lease. 

 
22.1.2 Nothing contained herein shall be deemed a waiver by the District of 
any rights that it may have to bring a separate action with respect to any Event 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 28  

of Default by Developer hereunder or under any other agreement to recover 
the costs and expenses associated with that action. The District covenants and 
agrees that it will remain obligated under this Facilities Lease in accordance 
with its terms. 

 
22.1.3 Following completion of the Project, the District will not take any 
action to terminate, rescind or avoid this Facilities Lease, notwithstanding the 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation, 
dissolution, winding-up or other proceeding affecting Developer or any assignee 
of Developer in any such proceeding, and notwithstanding any action with 
respect to this Facilities Lease which may be taken by any trustee or receiver 
of Developer or of any assignee of Developer in any such proceeding or by any 
court in any such proceeding. Following completion of the Project, except as 
otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, District waives all rights 
now or hereafter conferred by law to quit, terminate or surrender this Facilities 
Lease or the Project or any part thereof. 

 
22.1.4 District acknowledges that Developer may assign an interest in some 
or all of the necessary payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in 
Exhibit C to a lender in order to obtain financing for the cost of constructing 
the Project and that the lender may rely on the foregoing covenants and 
provisions in connection with such financing. 

 
22.2 District’s Request for Assurances 

 
If District at any time reasonably believes Developer is or may be in default under this 
Contract, District may in its sole discretion notify Developer of this fact and request 
written assurances from Developer of performance of Work and a written plan from 
Developer to remedy any potential default under the terms of this Contract that the 
District may advise Developer of in writing. Developer shall, within ten (10) calendar 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the District’s 
requirements in its request for assurances. Developer’s failure to provide such written 
assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) calendar 
days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Contract sufficient to justify 
termination for cause. 

 
22.3 District's Right to Terminate Developer for Cause 

 
22.3.1 Grounds for Termination 

 
The District, in its sole discretion, without prejudice to any other right or 
remedy, may terminate the Site Lease and Facilities Lease and/or terminate 
Developer’s right to perform the work of the Facilities Lease based upon any of 
the following: 

 
22.3.1.1 Developer refuses or fails to execute the Work or any 
separable part thereof; or 

 
22.3.1.2 Developer fails to complete said Work within the time 
specified or any extension thereof; or 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 29  

22.3.1.3 Developer persistently fails or refuses to perform Work or 
provide material of sufficient quality as to be in compliance with the 
Facilities Lease; or 

 
22.3.1.4 Prior to completion of the Project, Developer is adjudged 
a bankrupt, files a petition for relief as a debtor, or a petition is filed 
against Developer without its consent, and the petition not dismissed 
within sixty (60) days; or 

 
22.3.1.5 Prior to the completion of the Project, Developer makes a 
general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or a receiver is 
appointed on account of its insolvency; or 

 
22.3.1.6 Developer persistently or repeatedly refuses and/or fails, 
except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply 
enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to complete the 
Work in the time specified; or 

 
22.3.1.7 Developer fails to make prompt payment to 
Subcontractors, or for material, or for labor; or 

 
22.3.1.8 Developer persistently disregards laws, or ordinances, or 
instructions of District as indicated in Exhibit D, or otherwise in 
violation of Exhibit D; or 

 
22.3.1.9 Developer fails to supply labor, including that of 
Subcontractors, that is sufficient to prosecute the Work or that can 
work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be 
employed on the Work; or 

 
22.3.1.10 Developer or its Subcontractor(s) is/are otherwise in 
breach, default, or in substantial violation of any provision of this 
Facilities Lease, including but not limited to a lapse in licensing or 
registration. 

 
22.3.2 Notification of Termination 

 
22.3.2.1 Upon the occurrence at District's sole determination of 
any of the above conditions, or upon Developer’s failure to perform 
any material covenant, condition or agreement in this Facilities 
Lease, District may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, 
serve written notice upon Developer and its Surety of District's 
termination of this Facilities Lease and/or Developer’s right to 
perform the Work of this Facilities Lease. This notice will contain the 
reasons for termination. 

 
22.3.2.2 Unless, within fifteen (15) days after the service of the 
notice, any and all condition(s) shall cease, and any and all 
violation(s) shall cease, or arrangement satisfactory to District for 
the correction of the condition(s) and/or violation(s) be made, this 
Facilities Lease and the Site Lease shall cease and terminate; 
provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be 
corrected within fifteen (15) days after the service of notice, District 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 30  

may consent to an extension of time, provided Developer instituted 
and diligently pursued corrective action within the applicable fifteen 
(15)-day period and until the violation is corrected. Upon District 
determination, Developer shall not be entitled to receive any further 
payment until the entire Work is finished. 

 
22.3.2.3 Upon Termination, District may immediately serve written 
notice of tender upon Surety whereby Surety shall have the right to 
take over and perform this Facilities Lease only if Surety: 

 
22.3.2.3.1 Within three (3) days after service upon it 
of the notice of tender, gives District written notice of 
Surety’s intention to take over and perform this Facilities 
Lease; and 

 
22.3.2.3.2 Commences performance of this Facilities 
Lease within three (3) days from date of serving of its 
notice to District. 

 
22.3.2.4 Surety shall not utilize Developer in completing the 
Project if the District notifies Surety of the District’s objection to 
Developer’s further participation in the completion of the Project. 
Surety expressly agrees that any developer which Surety proposes 
to fulfill Surety’s obligations is subject to District’s approval. 

 
22.3.2.5 If Surety fails to notify District or begin performance as 
indicated herein, District may take over the Work and execute the 
Work to completion by any method it may deem advisable at the 
expense of Developer and/or its Surety. Developer and its Surety 
shall be liable to District for any excess cost or other damages the 
District incurs thereby. Time is of the essence in this Facilities Lease. 
If the District takes over the Work as herein provided, District may, 
without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in 
completing the Work all materials, appliances, plan, and other 
property belonging to Developer as may be on the Site of the Work, 
in bonded storage, or previously paid for. 

 
22.3.3 Effect of Termination 

 
22.3.3.1 If District terminates the Site Lease and the Facilities 
Lease pursuant to this section, the Site and any improvements built 
upon the Site shall vest in District upon termination of the Site Lease 
and Facilities Lease, and District shall thereafter be required to pay 
only the principal amounts then due and owing pursuant to the GMP 
provisions indicated in Exhibit C, less any damages incurred by 
District due to Developer’s default, acts, or omissions. 

 
22.3.3.2 The District shall retain all rights it possesses pursuant to 
this Facilities Lease including, without limitation. 

 
22.3.3.2.1 The right to assess liquidated damages due 
because of any project delay; and 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 31  

22.3.3.2.2 All rights the District holds to demand 
performance pursuant to Developer’s required 
performance bond. 

 
22.3.3.3 Developer shall, only if ordered to do so by the District, 
immediately remove from the Site all or any materials and personal 
property belonging to Developer that have not been incorporated in 
the construction of the Work, or which are not in place in the Work. 
The District retains the right, but not the obligation, to keep and use 
any materials and personal property belonging to Developer that 
have not been incorporated in the construction of the Work, or which 
are not in place in the Work. Developer and its Surety shall be liable 
upon the performance bond for all damages caused the District by 
reason of Developer’s failure to complete the Work under this 
Facilities Lease. 

 
22.3.3.4 In the event that the District shall perform any portion of, 
or the whole of the Work, pursuant to the provisions of the General 
Conditions, the District shall not be liable nor account to Developer 
in any way for the time within which, or the manner in which, the 
Work is performed by the District or for any changes the District may 
make in the Work or for the money expended by the District in 
satisfying claims and/or suits and/or other obligations in connection 
with the Work. 

 
22.3.3.5 In the event termination for cause is determined to have 
not been for cause, the termination shall be deemed to have been a 
termination for convenience effective as of the same date as the 
purported termination for cause. 

 
22.3.3.6 In the event that the Site Lease and Facilities Lease are 
terminated for any reason, no allowances or compensation will be 
granted for the loss of any anticipated profit by Developer or any 
impact or impairment of Developer’s bonding capacity. 

 
22.3.3.7 If the expense to the District to finish the Work exceeds 
the unpaid Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer and Surety shall 
pay difference to District within twenty-one (21) days of District's 
request. District may apply any amounts otherwise due to Developer 
to this difference. 

 
22.3.3.8 The District shall have the right (but shall have no 
obligation) to assume and/or assign to a replacement contractor or 
construction manager, or other third party who is qualified and has 
sufficient resources to complete the Work, the rights of Developer 
under its subcontracts with any or all Subcontractors. In the event 
of an assumption or assignment by the District, no Subcontractor 
shall have any claim against the District or third party for Work 
performed by Subcontractor or other matters arising prior to 
termination of the Facilities Lease. The District or any third party, as 
the case may be, shall be liable only for obligations to the 
Subcontractor arising after assumption or assignment. Should the 
District so elect, Developer shall execute and deliver all documents 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 32  

and take all steps, including the legal assignment of its contractual 
rights, as the District may require, for the purpose of fully vesting in 
the District the rights and benefits of its Subcontractors under 
Subcontracts or other obligations or commitments. Developer must 
include this assignment provision in all of its Facilities Leases with 
its Subcontractors. 

 
22.3.3.9 All payments due Developer hereunder shall be subject to 
a right of offset by the District for expenses, damages, losses, costs, 
claims, or reimbursements suffered by, or due to, the District as a 
result of any default, acts, or omissions of Developer. 

 
22.3.3.10 The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not in 
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District. 

 
22.4 Termination of Developer for Convenience 

 
22.4.1 District in its sole discretion may terminate the Facilities Lease in 
whole or in part upon three (3) days written notice to Developer. 

 
22.4.2 Upon notice, Developer shall: 

 
22.4.2.1 Cease operations as directed by the District in the notice; 

 
22.4.2.2 Take necessary actions for the protection and 
preservation of the Work as soon as possible; and 

 
22.4.2.3 Terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders 
and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

 
22.4.3 Within 30 days of the notice, Developer shall submit to the District 
a payment application for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services 
performed, including all Developer's and Subcontractor(s)’ mobilization and/or 
demobilization costs, that is unpaid. Developer shall have no claims against the 
District except for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services performed 
that adequately documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, or 
otherwise. District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed until 
the notice of termination. 

 
22.4.4 Under a termination for convenience, the District retains the right to 
all the options available to the District if there is a termination for cause. 

 
22.5 Developer Remedies Upon District Default 

 
22.5.1 Events of Default by District Defined 

 
The following shall be “Events of Default” of the District under this Facilities 
Lease. The terms “Event of Default” and “Default,” whenever they are used as 
to the District in the Site Lease or this Facilities Lease, shall only mean one or 
more of the following events: 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 33  

22.5.1.1 Failure by the District to pay payments required pursuant 
to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and the continuation of this 
failure for a period of forty-five (45) days. 

 
22.5.1.2 Failure by the District to perform any material covenant, 
condition or agreement in this Facilities Lease and that failure 
continues for a period of forty-five (45) days after Developer 
provides District with written notice specifying that failure and 
requesting that the failure be remedied; provided, however, if the 
failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable 
period, Developer shall not withhold its consent to an extension of 
time if corrective action is instituted by the District within the 
applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected. 

 
22.5.2 Remedies on District’s Default 

 
If there has been an Event of Default on the District’s part, Developer may 
exercise any and all remedies granted pursuant to this Facilities Lease; 
provided, however, there shall be no right under any circumstances to 
accelerate any of the payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in 
Exhibit C or otherwise declare those payments not then past due to be 
immediately due and payable. 

 
22.5.2.1 Developer may rescind its leaseback of the Project to the 
District under this Facilities Lease and re-rent the Project and Site to 
another lessee for the remaining Term for no less than the fair 
market value for leasing the Project and Site, which shall be: 

 
22.5.2.1.1 An amount determined by a mutually- 
agreed upon appraiser; or 

 
22.5.2.1.2 If an appraiser cannot be agreed to, an 
amount equal to the mean between a District appraisal 
and a Developer appraisal for the Project and Site, both 
prepared by MAI-certified appraisers. 

 
22.5.2.2 District’s obligation to make the payments required 
pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall be: 

 
22.5.2.2.1 Increased by the amount of costs, 
expenses, and damages incurred by Developer in re- 
renting the Project and Site; and 

 
22.5.2.2.2 Decreased by the amount of rent Developer 
receives in re-letting the Project and Site. 

 
22.5.2.3 District agrees that the terms of this Facilities Lease 
constitute full and sufficient notice of the right of Developer to re- 
rent the Project and Site in the Event of Default without effecting a 
surrender of this Facilities Lease, and further agrees that no acts of 
Developer in re-renting as permitted herein shall constitute a 
surrender or termination of this Facilities Lease, but that, on the 
contrary, in the event of an Event of Default by the District the right 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 34  

to re-rent the Project and Site shall vest in Developer as indicated 
herein. 

 
22.5.3 District’s Continuing Obligation 

 
Unless there has been damage, destruction, a Taking, or Developer has acted, 
failed to act, or is in default as indicated above providing District with the right 
to terminate for cause, the District shall continue to remain liable for the 
payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C and those 
amounts shall be payable to Developer at the time and in the manner therein 
provided. 

 
22.5.4 No Remedy Exclusive 

 
No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Developer is intended to be 
exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given under this Facilities Lease or now or hereafter existing 
at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing 
upon any Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to 
be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time 
to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle Developer 
to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this article, it shall not be necessary to 
give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article or by 
law. 

 
22.6 Emergency Termination Pursuant to Public Contracts Act of 1949 

 
22.6.1 This Facilities Lease is subject to termination as provided by sections 
4410 and 4411 of the Government Code of the State of California, being a 
portion of the Emergency Termination of Public Contracts Act of 1949. 

 
22.6.1.1 Section 4410 of the Government Code states: 

 
In the event a national emergency occurs, and public work, being 
performed by contract, is stopped, directly or indirectly, because of 
the freezing or diversion of materials, equipment or labor, as the 
result of an order or a proclamation of the President of the United 
States, or of an order of any federal authority, and the circumstances 
or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a reasonable 
time to proceed with a substantial portion of the work, then the 
public agency and the contractor may, by written agreement, 
terminate said contract. 

 
22.6.1.2 Section 4411 of the Government Code states: 

 
Such an agreement shall include the terms and conditions of the 
termination of the contract and provision for the payment of 
compensation or money, if any, which either party shall pay to the 
other or any other person, under the facts and circumstances in the 
case. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 35  

22.6.2 Compensation to Developer shall be determined at the sole 
discretion of District on the basis of the reasonable value of the Work done, 
including preparatory work. As an exception to the foregoing and at the 
District's discretion, in the case of any fully completed separate item or portion 
of the Work for which there is a separate previously submitted unit price or 
item on the accepted schedule of values, that price may control. The District, 
at its sole discretion, may adopt the Schedule of Values Price as the value of 
the work done or any portion thereof. 

 
22.7 Suspension of Work 

 
22.7.1 District in its sole discretion may suspend, delay or interrupt the 
Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the District may determine 
upon three (3) days written notice to Developer. 

 
22.7.1.1 An adjustment may be made for changes in the cost of 
performance of the Work caused by any suspension, delay or 
interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent: 

 
22.7.1.1.1 That performance is, was or would have 
been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another 
cause for which Developer is responsible; or 

 
22.7.1.1.2 That an equitable adjustment is made or 
denied under another provision of the Site Lease or the 
Facilities Lease; or 

 
22.7.1.1.3 That the suspension of Work was the direct 
or indirect result of Developer’s failure to perform any of 
its obligations hereunder. 

 
22.7.1.1.4 The delay could not have been avoided or 
mitigated by Developer's reasonable diligence. 

 
22.7.1.2 Any adjustments in cost of performance may have a fixed 
or percentage fee as provided in the section on Format for Proposed 
Change Order in Exhibit D. This amount shall be full compensation 
for all Developer’s and its Subcontractor(s)’ changes in the cost of 
performance of the Facilities Lease caused by any such suspension, 
delay or interruption. 

 
23. Limitation of District Liability 

 
District’s financial obligations under this Contract shall be limited to the payment of the 
compensation provided in this Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, 
in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or 
tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited 
to, lost profits or revenue, lost bonding capacity, arising out of or in connection with this 
Contract for the services performed in connection with this Contract. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 36  

24. Notices 
 

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall 
be deemed to have been received five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail in 
registered or certified form with postage fully prepaid or one (1) business day after deposit 
with an overnight delivery service with proof of actual delivery: 

 
If to District: If to Developer: 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
Attn:  Contracts Department  

Landmark Construction 
4312 Anthony Ct., Ste. B 
Rocklin, CA 95677] 
Attn: Kevin Brennan Principal-in-Charge 

 

With a copy to: 
 

Deidree Sakai, Esq. 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street, Suite 400 
San Francisco, CA 94111 

 
Developer and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 
subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 

 
25. Binding Effect 

 
This Facilities Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon Developer and 
District and their respective successors, transferees and assigns. 

 
26. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver 

 

In the event any agreement contained in this Facilities Lease should be breached by either 
party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular 
breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 

 
27. Severability 

 

In the event any provision of this Facilities Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any 
other provision hereof, unless elimination of the invalid provision materially alters the rights 
and obligations embodied in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease. 

 
28. Amendments, Changes and Modifications 

 
Except as to the termination rights of both Parties as indicated herein, this Facilities Lease 
may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated without the written 
agreement of both Parties hereto. 

 
29. Net-Net-Net Lease 

 
This Facilities Lease shall be deemed and construed to be a “net-net-net lease” and the District 
hereby agrees that all payments it makes pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C shall 
be an absolute net return to Developer, free and clear of any expenses, charges or set-offs. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 37  

30. Execution in Counterparts 
 

This Facilities Lease may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
31. Developer and District Representatives 

 
Whenever under the provisions of this Facilities Lease the approval of Developer or the District 
is required, or Developer or the District is required to take some action at the request of the 
other, the approval or request shall be given for Developer by Developer’s Representative and 
for the District by the District’s Representative, and any party hereto shall be authorized to 
rely upon any such approval or request. 

 
32. Applicable Law 

 

This Facilities Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California, and venued in the County within which the Site is located. 

 
33. Attorney's Fees 

 

If either party brings an action or proceeding involving the Property or to enforce the terms 
of this Facilities Lease or to declare rights hereunder, each party shall bear the cost of its own 
attorneys’ fees. 

 
34. Captions 

 

The captions or headings in this Facilities Lease are for convenience only and in no way define, 
limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Facilities Lease. 

 
35. Prior Agreements 

 

This Facilities Lease and the corresponding Site Lease collectively contain all of the 
agreements of the Parties hereto with respect to any matter covered or mentioned in this 
Facilities Lease and no prior agreements or understanding pertaining to any matter shall be 
effective for any purpose. 

 
36. Further Assurances 

 
Parties shall promptly execute and deliver all documents and instruments reasonably 
requested to give effect to the provisions of this Facilities Lease. 

 
37. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated 

 

The Recitals set forth at the beginning of this Facilities Lease and the attached Exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into its terms and provisions by this reference. 

 
38. Time of the Essence 

 

Time is of the essence with respect to each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Facilities Lease. 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 38  

39. Force Majeure 
 

A party shall be excused from the performance of any obligation imposed in this Facilities 
Lease and the exhibits hereto for any period and to the extent that a party is prevented from 
performing that obligation, in whole or in part, as a result of delays caused by the other party 
or third parties, a governmental agency or entity, an act of God, war, terrorism, civil 
disturbance, forces of nature, fire, flood, earthquake, strikes, or lockouts, and that non- 
performance will not be a default hereunder or a grounds for termination of this Facilities 
Lease. 

 
40. Interpretation 

 
None of the Parties hereto, nor their respective counsel, shall be deemed the drafters of this 
Facilities Lease for purposes of construing the provisions thereof. The language in all parts of 
this Facilities Lease shall in all cases be construed according to its fair meaning, not strictly for 
or against any of the Parties hereto. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 



 Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 39  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Facilities Lease to be executed by 
their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 

Dated:  , 20   Dated:  , 20   
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 

By:    

 
Landmark Construction 

 

By:    

 

Name: Rose F. Ramos Name:    
 

Title: Chief Business Officer Title:    



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 

Attached is the Legal Description for: 
 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
Recorded Address: 6749 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
Physical Address: 6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
APN: 030-0370-021 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to Facilities Lease Page A 1 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 



John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project  

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Attached is a map or diagram of the Site that is subject to this Facilities Lease and 
upon which Developer will construct the Project. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Exhibit B to Facilities Lease Page B 1 



Page 1 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

GUARANTEED    MAXIMUM    PRICE     AND 
OTHER PROJECT COST, FUNDING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
1. Site Lease Payments 

 
As indicated in the Site Lease, Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District as 
consideration for the Site Lease. 

 
2. Guaranteed Maximum Price 

 
Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer will cause the Project to be constructed for an 
amount to be determined after preconstruction services are completed (“Guaranteed 
Maximum Price”). The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include the preconstruction fees and 
costs. 

 

2.1 Cost of the Work 
 

The term Cost of the Work shall mean the costs necessarily incurred in the proper 
performance of the Work contemplated by the Contract Documents. Such costs shall 
be at rates no higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with 
the prior consent of the District. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set 
forth in this Section 2 and approved by the District. 

 
2.1.1 General Conditions 

 
The General Conditions as set forth in Attachment 1 hereto shall be included 
in a progress billing as incurred. Said rates shall include all costs for labor, 
equipment and materials for the items identified therein which are necessary 
for the proper management of the Project, and shall include all costs paid or 
incurred by Developer for insurance, permits, taxes, and all contributions, 
assessments and benefits, holidays, vacations, retirement benefits, incentives 
to the extent contemplated in Attachment 1, whether required by law or 
collective bargaining agreements or otherwise paid or provided by Developer 
to its employees. The District reserves the right to request changes to the 
personnel, equipment, or facilities provided as General Conditions as may be 
necessary or appropriate for the proper management of the Project, in which 
case, the District shall be entitled to a reduction in the cost of General 
Conditions based on the rates set forth in Attachment 1. 

 
2.1.2 Subcontract Costs 

 
Payments made by the Developer to Subcontractors (inclusive of the 
Subcontractor’s bonding, if required, and insurance costs, which shall be 
included in the subcontract amount), which payments shall be made in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 



Page 2 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work 
 

Costs incurred by Developer for self-performed work at the direction of District 
or with the District’s prior approval, as follows: 

 
2.1.3.1 Actual costs to Developer of wages of construction workers, 
excluding all salaried and/or administrative personnel, directly 
employed by Developer to perform the construction of the Work at the 
site. 

 
2.1.3.2 Wages or salaries and customary benefits, such as sick leave, 
medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive programs, 
and pension plans of Developer’s field supervisory, safety and 
administrative personnel when stationed at the site or stationed at 
Developer’s principal office, only for that portion of their time required 
for the Work. 

 
2.1.3.3 Wages and salaries and customary benefits, such as sick 
leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive 
programs and pension plans of Developer’s supervisory or 
administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the 
road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or 
equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time 
required for the Work. 

 
2.1.3.4 Costs paid or incurred by Developer for taxes, insurance, 
contributions, assessments required by law or collective bargaining 
agreements and for personnel not covered by such agreements, and for 
customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, 
holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on 
wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under 
Subparagraphs 2.1.3.1 through 2.1.3.3. 

 
2.1.3.5 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and 
equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including costs 
of materials in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable 
waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the 
District’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the District’s 
option, shall be sold by Developer. Any amounts realized from such sales 
shall be credited to the District as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 

 
2.1.3.6 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, 
maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 
machinery and equipment not customarily owned by construction 
workers, that are provided by Developer at the site and fully consumed 
in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 
items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by 
Developer. Cost for items previously used by Developer shall mean fair 
market value. 

 
2.1.3.7 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, 
equipment, vehicles and vehicle expenses, and hand tools not 
customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by 



Page 3 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

Developer at the site, whether rented from Developer or others, and the 
costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs and replacements, 
dismantling and removal thereof and costs of Developer’s Project field 
office, overhead and general expenses including office supplies, parking, 
office equipment, and software. Rates and quantities of equipment 
rented shall be subject to the District’s prior approval. 

 
2.1.3.8 Costs of removal of debris from the site, daily clean-up costs 
and dumpster charges not otherwise included in the cost of the 
subcontracts which exceeds the clean-up provided under the General 
Conditions. 

 
2.1.3.9 Costs of that portion of the reasonable travel, parking and 
subsistence expenses of Developer’s personnel incurred while traveling 
and discharging duties connected with the Work. 

 
2.1.3.10 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site 
at a mutually acceptable location, if approved in advance by the District. 

 
2.1.4 Allowances 

 
Because it is impossible at the time of execution of the Facilities Lease to 
determine the exact cost of performing certain tasks, the Cost of the Work shall 
include the following Allowances for the Tasks/Work as noted here: 

 

Task/Work Allowance Amount 

TBD 
 

  

  

Total Allowance Amount 
 

 
The Allowance Value for an Allowance Item includes the direct cost of labor, 
materials, equipment, transportation, taxes and insurance associated with the 
applicable Allowance Item. All other costs, including design fees, Developer’s 
overall project management and general conditions costs, overhead and fee, 
are deemed to be included in the original Guaranteed Maximum Price, and are 
not subject to adjustment regardless of the actual amount of the Allowance 
Item. 

 
The District shall have sole discretion to authorize all expenditures from the 
Allowances. The District shall process expenditures from the Allowances in the 
form of an Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”). The Allowances are 
included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Any unused Allowance or unused 
portion thereof shall be deducted from the Cost of the Work pursuant to Exhibit 
D to this Facilities Lease to the benefit of the District. 

 
2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs 



Page 4 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

2.1.5.1 Where not included in the General Conditions, and with the 
prior approval of District, costs of document reproductions 
(photocopying and blueprinting expenses), long distance telephone call 
charges, postage, overnight and parcel delivery charges, telephone 
costs including cellular telephone charges, facsimile or other 
communication service at the Project site, job photos and progress 
schedules, and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 
Developer shall consult with District to determine whether District has 
any vendor relationships that could reduce the cost of these items and 
use such vendors whenever possible. 

 
2.1.5.2 Sales, use, gross receipts, local business and similar taxes 
imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

 
2.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for permits, plan checks, licenses and 
inspections for which Developer is required by the Contract Documents 
to pay including, but not limited to, permanent utility connection 
charges, street use permit, street use rental, OSHA permit and sidewalk 
use permit and fees. 

 
2.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract 
Documents. 

 
2.1.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Developer’s or its 
subcontractors’ negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to 
the District as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

 
2.1.5.6 Expenses incurred in accordance with Developer’s standard 
personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of 
personnel required for the Work if approved in advance by District. 

 
2.1.5.7 Where requested by District, costs or expenses incurred by 
Developer in performing design services for the design-build systems. 

 
2.1.5.8 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 
to the extent, approved in advance by District. 

 
2.1.5.9 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent 
threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the 
safety of persons and/or property. 

 
2.1.5.10 Provided all other eligible costs have been deducted from the 
contingency and as part of the calculation of amounts due Developer for 
Final Payment, costs of repairing and correcting damaged or non- 
conforming Work executed by Developer, Subcontractors or suppliers, 
providing that such damage or non-conforming Work was not caused by 
negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Developer and 
only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered 
by Developer from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or suppliers. 



Page 5 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

2.1.6 Excluded Costs 
 

The following items are considered general overhead items and shall not be 
billed to the District: 

 
2.1.6.1 Salaries and other compensation of Developer’s personnel 
stationed at Developer’s principal office or offices other than the Project 
Field Office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 2.1.3.2. 
and 2.1.3.4. 

 
2.1.6.2 Expenses of Developer’s principal office and offices other than 
the Project Field Office. 

 
2.1.6.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly 
included in this Section 2. 

 
2.1.6.4 Developer’s capital expenses, including interest on 
Developer’s capital employed for the Work. 

 
2.1.6.5 Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price (as 
adjusted by Change Order) to be exceeded. 

 
2.1.7 Developer’s Fee 

 
  percent (_  %) of the Cost of the Work as described in Sections 
2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 2.1.4 and 2.1.5. 

 
2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance 

 
For insurance and bonds required under this Facilities Lease (exclusive of those 
required by Subcontractors, which costs are included in the subcontract 
amounts), that portion of insurance and bond premiums which are directly 
attributable to this Contract, which shall be calculated at a rate of     
percent (   %) of the Cost of the Work for insurance and  percent ( %) 
of the Cost of the Work for payment and performance bonds. 

 
2.1.9 Contingency 

 
2.1.9.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes a Contingency of 
  percent (_ %) of the Cost of the Work as described in 
Section 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.1.3 for potential additional construction costs 
for unforeseen conditions that occur over the course of construction 
and/or scope gaps between the subcontract categories of the Work. 

 
2.1.9.2 The Contingency is not intended for such things as scope 
changes. 

 
2.1.9.3 The Contingency shall not be used without the agreement of 
the District. 

 
2.1.9.4 The unused portion of the Contingency shall be considered as 
cost savings and retained by the District at the end of the Project. 



Page 6 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price will consist of the amounts to be identified in 
Attachment 2 to this Exhibit C. Except as indicated herein for modifications to the 
Project approved by the District, Developer will not seek additional compensation from 
District in excess of Guaranteed Maximum Price. District shall pay the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price to Developer in the form of Tenant Improvement Payments and Lease 
Payments as indicated herein. 

 
2.3 Total Payment 

 
In no event shall the cumulative total of the Tenant Improvement Payments and the 
Loan Amount for the Lease Payments ever exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price to 
be defined, as may be modified pursuant to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

 
2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price 

 
2.4.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based 
on the Construction Documents, including the plans and specifications, as 
identified in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

 
2.4.2 As indicated in the Facilities Lease, the Parties may add to or remove 
from the project specific scopes of work. Based on these change(s), the Parties 
may agree to a reduction or increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If a 
cost impact of a change is agreed to by the Parties, it shall be paid upon the 
payment request from Developer for the work that is the subject of the change 
in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit D. The amount of any change to 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be calculated in accordance with the 
provisions of Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

 
2.4.3 The Parties agree to reduce the Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 
unused portion of Allowances and/or Contingency, if any. 

 
2.4.4 Cost Savings 

 
Developer shall work cooperatively with Architect, Construction Manager, 
subcontractors and District, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities 
to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings. Any identified cost 
savings from the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be identified by Developer, 
and approved in writing by the District. In the event Developer realizes a 
savings on any aspect of the Project, such savings shall be added to the 
Contingency and expended consistent with the Contingency. In addition, any 
portion of Allowance remaining after completion of the Project shall be added 
to the Contingency. If any cost savings require revisions to the Construction 
Documents, Developer shall work with the District and Architect with respect 
to revising the Construction Documents and, if necessary, obtaining the 
approval of DSA with respect to those revisions. Developer shall be entitled to 
an adjustment of Contract Time for delay in completion caused by any cost 
savings adopted by District pursuant to Exhibit D, if requested in writing before 
the approval of the cost savings. 

 
2.4.5 If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to this Exhibit C, 
any reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price resulting from that exercise of 
the Purchase Option, if any, shall be retained in full by the District and shall not 
be shared with Developer. 



Page 7 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

3. Tenant Improvement Payments 
 

Prior to the District’s taking delivery or occupancy of the Project, the District shall pay to 
Developer an amount equal to the Guaranteed Maximum Price as modified pursuant to the 
terms of the Facilities Lease, including Exhibit C and Exhibit D, less the Loan Amount for 
the Lease Payments (“Tenant Improvement Payments”). The District shall withhold a amount 
equal to the Loan Amount as indicated in Attachment 3 to Exhibit C from the Developer for 
its Work on the Project. In other words, no further Tenant Improvement Payment will be made 
to Developer once the amount equal to Guaranteed Maximum Price minus the Loan Amount 
has been paid. Otherwise, the Tenant Improvement Payments will be processed based on the 
amount of Work performed according to Developer’s Schedule of Values (Exhibit G to the 
Facilities Lease) and pursuant to the provisions in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease, including 
withholding for or escrow of retention of five percent (5%) of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
The withholding for the Loan Amount shall be separate from and in addition to withholding 
for or escrow of retention. 

 
4. Lease Payments 

 
Upon execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date, the form of which is attached 
to the Facilities Lease as Exhibit E, the District shall commence making lease payments to 
Developer in accordance with the Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 3. 

 
4.1 The Lease Payments shall be consideration for the District’s rental, use, and 
occupancy of the Project and the Project Site and shall be made in monthly installments 
as indicated in the Schedule of Lease Payments attached hereto as Attachment 3 for 
the duration of the lease term of one (1) year, with the first Lease Payment due ninety 
(90) days after execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date. 

 
4.2 The District represents that the annual Lease Payment obligation does not 
surpass the District’s annual budget and will not require the District to increase or 
impose additional taxes or obligations on the public that did not exist prior to the 
execution of the Facilities Lease. 

 
4.3 Fair Rental Value 

 
District and Developer have agreed and determined that the total Lease 
Payments constitute adequate consideration for the Facilities Lease and are 
reasonably equivalent to the fair rental value of the Project. In making such 
determination, consideration has been given to the obligations of the Parties 
under the Facilities Lease and Site Lease, the uses and purposes which may be 
served by the Project and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District 
and the general public. 



Page 8 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District 
 

4.4.1 The District and Developer understand and intend that the obligation of 
the District to pay Lease Payments and other payments hereunder constitutes 
a current expense of the District and shall not in any way be construed to be a 
debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory 
limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the 
District, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general 
tax revenues, funds or moneys of the District. 

 
4.4.2 Lease Payments due hereunder shall be payable only from current funds 
which are budgeted and appropriated or otherwise made legally available for 
this purpose. This Facilities Lease shall not create an immediate indebtedness 
for any aggregate payments that may become due hereunder. 

 
4.4.3 The District covenants to take all necessary actions to include the Lease 
Payments in each of its final approved annual budgets. 

 
4.4.4 The District further covenants to make all necessary appropriations 
(including any supplemental appropriations) from any source of legally 
available funds of the District for the actual amount of Lease Payments that 
come due and payable during the period covered by each such budget. 
Developer acknowledges that the District has not pledged the full faith and 
credit of the District, State of California or any state agency or state department 
to the payment of Lease Payments or any other payments due hereunder. The 
covenants on the part of District contained in this Facilities Lease constitute 
duties imposed by law and it shall be the duty of each and every public official 
of the District to take such action and do such things as are required by law in 
the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to 
carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Facilities Lease 
agreed to be carried out and performed by the District. 

 
4.4.5 Developer cannot, under any circumstances, accelerate the District’s 
payments under the Facilities Lease. 

 
5.  District’s Purchase Option 

 
5.1 If the District is not then in uncured Default hereunder, the District shall have 
the option to purchase not less than all of the Project in its “as-is, where-is” condition 
and terminate this Facilities Lease and Site Lease by paying the balance of the “Loan 
Amount” identified in Attachment 3, which is exclusive of interest that would have 
otherwise been owed, as of the date the option is exercised (“Option Price”). Said 
payment shall be made on or before the date on which the District’s lease payment 
would otherwise be due for that month (“Option Date”). 

 
5.2 District shall provide to Developer a written notice no less than ten (10) days 
prior to the Option Date. The notice will include that District is exercising its option to 
purchase the Project as set forth above on the Option Date. If the District exercises 
this option, the District shall pay directly to Developer the Option Price on or prior to 
the Option Date and Developer shall at that time deliver to District an executed 
Termination Agreement and Quitclaim Deed in recordable form to terminate this 



Page 9 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease. District may record all such documents at District’s 
cost and expense. 

 
5.3 Under no circumstances can the first Option Date be on or before ninety (90) 
days after Developer completes the Project and the District accepts the Project. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK; ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW] 



Page 10 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 



Page 11 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 
 



Page 12 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 
 

Amortization Schedule 
 

Loan Amount: $ TBD 

Interest: TBD% Annual 

Term in Months TBD 

Payment Frequency TBD 
 
 

Payment 
Monthly 
Payment 

Principal 
Payment 

Interest 
Payment Balance 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 
 

Totals 



 

EXHIBIT D 
 

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PROVISIONS 
FOR THE FOLLOWING 

 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 
 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND 

LANDMARK CONSTRUCTION 
 
 
 
 

Dated as of May 19, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DWK DMS 3804496v1 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

1. CONTRACT TERMS AND DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................. 1 

2. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 11 

3. ARCHITECT ................................................................................................................................ 11 

4. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER .......................................................................................................... 12 

5. INSPECTOR, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS ........................................................................................ 12 

6. DEVELOPER ................................................................................................................................ 14 

7. SUBCONTRACTORS ..................................................................................................................... 27 

8. OTHER CONTRACTS/CONTRACTORS............................................................................................. 28 

9. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ................................................................................................ 28 

10. DEVELOPER’S SUBMITTALS AND SCHEDULES ................................................................................ 30 

11. SITE ACCESS, CONDITIONS, AND REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................... 35 

12. TRENCHES ................................................................................................................................. 38 

13. INSURANCE AND BONDS ............................................................................................................. 39 

14. WARRANTY/GUARANTEE/INDEMNITY ........................................................................................... 40 

15. TIME .......................................................................................................................................... 41 

16. EXTENSIONS OF TIME – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, EXCUSABLE DELAYS ........................................... 43 

17. CHANGES IN THE WORK .............................................................................................................. 46 

18. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION ..................................................................................................... 56 

19. PAYMENTS.................................................................................................................................. 56 

20. COMPLETION OF THE WORK ........................................................................................................ 64 

21. FINAL PAYMENT AND RETENTION ................................................................................................. 68 

22. UNCOVERING OF WORK .............................................................................................................. 69 

23. NONCONFORMING WORK AND CORRECTION OF WORK .................................................................. 70 

24. TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION ................................................................................................. 71 

25. CLAIMS PROCESS ....................................................................................................................... 71 

26. STATE LABOR, WAGE & HOUR, APPRENTICE, AND RELATED PROVISIONS ..................................... 79 

27. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 86 

28. MISCELLANEOUS ........................................................................................................................ 86 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 1 OF 86  

1. Contract Terms and Definitions 
 

1.1 Definitions 
 

Wherever used in the Contract Documents, the following terms shall have the 
meanings indicated, which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural 
thereof: 

 
1.1.1 Adverse Weather. Shall be only weather that satisfies all of the 
following conditions: (1) unusually severe precipitation, sleet, snow, hail, or 
extreme temperature or air conditions in excess of the norm for the location 
and time of year it occurred based on the closest weather station data averaged 
over the past five years, (2) that is unanticipated and would cause unsafe work 
conditions and/or is unsuitable for scheduled work that should not be performed 
during inclement weather (i.e., exterior finishes), and (3) at the Project. 

 
1.1.2 Allowance Expenditure Directive. Written authorization for 
expenditure of allowance, if any. 

 
1.1.3 Approval, Approved, and/or Accepted. Written authorization, unless 
stated otherwise. 

 
1.1.4 Architect (or “Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge”). The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any 
combination thereof, named as Architect, who will have the rights and authority 
assigned to the Architect in the Contract Documents. The term Architect means 
the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge as defined in DSA PR 
13-02 on this Project or the Architect’s authorized representative. 

 
1.1.5 As-Builts. Digitally prepared and reproducible drawings using the 
District’s Project Management System to be prepared on a monthly basis 
pursuant to the Contract Documents, that reflect changes made during the 
performance of the Work, recording differences between the original design of 
the Work and the Work as constructed since the preceding monthly submittal. 
See Record Drawings. 

 
1.1.6 Burdened. The labor rate for Contractor or any Subcontractor inclusive 
of any and all burden costs including, but not limited to, health and welfare 
pay, vacation and holiday pay, pension contributions, training rates, benefits of 
any kind, insurance of any kind, workers’ compensation, liability insurance, 
truck expenses, supply expenses of any kind, payroll taxes, and any other taxes 
of any kind. 

 
1.1.7 Change Order. A written order to Developer authorizing an addition to, 
deletion from, or revision in the Work, and/or authorizing an adjustment in the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 

 
1.1.8 Claim. A Dispute that remains unresolved at the conclusion of all the 
applicable Dispute Resolution requirements provided herein. 

 
1.1.9 Completion. The earliest of the date of acceptance by the District or 
the cessation of labor thereon for a continuous period of sixty (60) days. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 2 OF 86  

1.1.10 Construction Change Directive. A written order prepared and issued 
by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and signed by 
the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. 

 
1.1.11 Construction Manager. The individual, partnership, corporation, joint 
venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named 
as such by the District. If no Construction Manager is used on the Project that 
is the subject of this Contract, then all references to Construction Manager 
herein shall be read to refer to District. 

 
1.1.12 Construction Schedule. The progress schedule of construction of the 
Project as provided by Developer and approved by District. 

 
1.1.13 Contingency. The GMP proposal will contain, as part of the estimated 
cost of the Work, Project’s Contingency, a sum mutually agreed upon, 
controlled by District, and monitored by District and Developer to cover costs 
that are properly reimbursable as a cost of the Work, but are not the basis for 
a Change Order. Project’s Contingency will not be used for changes in scope or 
for any item that would be the basis for an increase in the GMP. Developer will 
provide District with a monthly accounting of charges against Project’s 
Contingency, if applicable, with each application for payment. Any unused 
Project Contingency belongs to District. 

 
1.1.14 Contract. The agreement between the District and Developer 
contained in the Contract Documents. 

 
1.1.15 Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist exclusively of 
the documents evidencing the agreement of the District and Developer. The 
Contract Documents consist of the following documents: 

 
1.1.15.1 Non-Collusion Declaration 

1.1.15.2 Iran Contracting Act Certification 

1.1.15.3 Site Lease 

1.1.15.4 Facilities Lease, including Exhibits A-G 

1.1.15.4.1 Iran Contracting Act Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.2 Federal Debarment Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.3 Federal Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification (if 
applicable) 

1.1.15.4.4 Performance Bond 

1.1.15.4.5 Payment Bond (Developer’s Labor & Material Bond) 

1.1.15.4.6 Workers’ Compensation Certification 

1.1.15.4.7 Prevailing Wage Certification 

1.1.15.4.8 Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting 
Certification 

1.1.15.4.9 COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification 

1.1.15.4.10 Drug-Free Workplace Certification 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 3 OF 86  

1.1.15.4.11 Tobacco-Free Environment Certification 

1.1.15.4.12 Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise 
Participation Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.13 Roofing Project Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.14 Hazardous Materials Procedures and 
Requirements 

1.1.15.4.15 Hazardous Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.16 Lead-Based Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.17 Imported Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.18 Skilled and Trained Workforce Certification 

1.1.15.4.19 Project Labor Agreement (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.20 Registered Subcontractors List 

1.1.15.4.21 Escrow Agreement for Security Deposits in Lieu of 
Retention (if used) 

1.1.15.4.22 Guarantee Form 

1.1.15.4.23 Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 
 

1.1.15.5 All Plans, Technical Specifications, and Drawings, including 
the Division of the State Architect approved versions of the foregoing 

1.1.15.6 Any and all addenda to any of the above documents 

1.1.15.7 Any and all change orders or written modifications to the 
above documents if approved in writing by the District 

 
1.1.16 Contract Time. The time period stated in the Facilities Lease for the 
completion of the Work. 

 
1.1.17 Daily Job Report(s). Daily Project reports prepared by Developer's 
employee(s) who are present on Site, which shall include the information 
required herein. 

 
1.1.18 Day(s). Unless otherwise designated, day(s) means calendar day(s). 

 
1.1.19 Department of Industrial Relations (or “DIR”). DIR is responsible, 
among other things, for labor compliance monitoring and enforcement of 
California prevailing wage laws and regulations for public works contracts. 

 
1.1.20 Design Professional in General Responsible Charge. See 
definition of Architect above. 

 
1.1.21 Developer. The person or persons identified in the Facilities Lease as 
contracting to perform the Work to be done under this Contract, or the legal 
representative of such a person or persons. 

 
1.1.22 Dispute. A separate demand by Developer for a time extension, or 
payment of money or damages arising from Work done by or on behalf of 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 4 OF 86  

Developer pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not otherwise 
expressly provided for or Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or an amount 
of payment disputed by the District. 

 
1.1.23 District. The public agency or the school district for which the Work is 
performed. The governing board of the District or its designees will act for the 
District in all matters pertaining to the Contract. The District may, at any time: 

 
1.1.23.1 Direct Developer to communicate with or provide notice to 
the Construction Manager or the Architect on matters for which the 
Contract Documents indicate Developer will communicate with or 
provide notice to the District; and/or 

 
1.1.23.2 Direct the Construction Manager or the Architect to 
communicate with or direct Developer on matters for which the Contract 
Documents indicate the District will communicate with or direct 
Developer. 

 
1.1.24 Drawings (or “Plans”). The graphic and pictorial portions of the 
Contract Documents showing the design, location, scope and dimensions of the 
Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, 
sequence of operation, and diagrams. 

 
1.1.25 DSA. Division of the State Architect. 

 
1.1.26 Force Account Directive. A process that may be used when the 
District and Developer cannot agree on a price for a specific portion of work or 
before Developer prepares a price for a specific portion of work and whereby 
Developer performs the work as indicated herein on a time and materials basis. 

 
1.1.27 Guaranteed Maximum Price. The total monies payable to Developer 
under the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 
1.1.28 Job Cost Reports. Any and all reports or records detailing the costs 
associated with work performed on or related to the Project that Developer 
shall maintain for the Project. Specifically, Job Cost Reports shall contain, but 
are not limited by or to, the following information: a description of the work 
performed or to be performed on the Project; quantity, if applicable, of work 
performed (hours, square feet, cubic yards, pounds, etc.) for the Project; 
Project budget; costs for the Project to date; estimated costs to complete the 
Project; and expected costs at completion. The Job Cost Reports shall also 
reflect all Contract cost codes, change orders, elements of non-conforming 
work, back charges, and additional services. 

 
1.1.29 Labor Commissioner’s Office (or “Labor Commissioner”). Also 
known as the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”): Division of 
the DIR responsible for adjudicating wage claims, investigating discrimination 
and public works complaints, and enforcing Labor Code statutes and Industrial 
Welfare Commission orders. 

 
1.1.30 Material Safety Data Sheets (or “MSDS”). A form with data 
regarding the properties for potentially harmful substances handled in the 
workplace. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 5 OF 86  

1.1.31 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (or “MS4”). A system of 
conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without 
limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and 
storm drains. 

 
1.1.32 Plans. See “Drawings”. 

 
1.1.33 Premises. The real property on which the Site is located. 

 
1.1.34 Product(s). New material, machinery, components, equipment, 
fixtures and systems forming the Work, including existing materials or 
components required and approved by the District for reuse. 

 
1.1.35 Product Data. Illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, 
instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by 
Developer to illustrate a material, product, or system for some portion of the 
Work. 

 
1.1.36 Program Manager. The individual, partnership, corporation, joint 
venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named 
as such by the District. If no Program Manager is designated for the Project 
that is the subject of the Contract Documents, then all references to Program 
Manager herein shall be read to refer to District. 

 
1.1.37 Project. The planned undertaking as provided for in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
1.1.38 Project Inspector (or “Inspector”). The individual(s) retained by 
the District in accordance with title 24 of the California Code of Regulations to 
monitor and inspect the Project. 

 
1.1.39 Project Labor Agreement (or “PLA” or Project Stabilization 
Agreement or “PSA”). A prehire collective bargaining agreement in 
accordance with Public Contract Code section 2500 et seq. that establishes 
terms and conditions of employment for a specific construction project or 
projects and/or is an agreement described in Section 158(f) of Title 29 of the 
United States Code. 

 
1.1.40 Proposed Change Order (or “PCO”). A written request prepared by 
Developer requesting that the District, the Construction Manager and the 
Architect issue a Change Order based upon a proposed change to the Work, to 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or to the Contract Time. 

 
1.1.41 Provide. Shall include “provide complete in place,” that is, “furnish and 
install,” and “provide complete and functioning as intended in place” unless 
specifically stated otherwise. 

 
1.1.42 Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (or “QSP”). Certified personnel that 
attended a State Water Resources Control Board sponsored or approved 
training class and passed the qualifying exam. 

 
1.1.43 Record Drawings. Unless otherwise defined in the Special Conditions, 
Reproducible drawings (or Plans) prepared pursuant to the requirements of the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 6 OF 86  

Contract Documents, that reflect all changes made during the performance of 
the Work, recording differences between the original design of the Work and 
the Work as constructed upon completion of the Project. See also “As-Builts.” 

 
1.1.44 Request for Information (or “RFI”). A written request prepared by 
Developer requesting that the Architect provide additional information 
necessary to clarify or amplify an item in the Contract Documents that 
Developer believes is not clearly shown or called for in the Drawings or 
Specifications or other portions of the Contract Documents, or to address 
problems that have arisen under field conditions. 

 
1.1.45 Request for Substitution for Specified Item. A request by 
Developer to substitute an equal or superior material, product, thing, or service 
for a specific material, product, thing, or service that has been designated in 
the Contract Documents by a specific brand or trade name. 

 
1.1.46 Safety Orders. Written and/or verbal orders for construction issued 
by the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) or by 
the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”). 

 
1.1.47 Safety Plan. Developer’s safety plan specifically adapted for the 
Project. Developer's Safety Plan shall comply with all provisions regarding 
Project safety, including all applicable provisions in these Construction 
Provisions. 

 
1.1.48 Samples. Physical examples that illustrate materials, products, 
equipment, finishes, colors, or workmanship and that, when approved in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, establish standards by which 
portions of the Work will be judged. 

 
1.1.49 Shop Drawings. All drawings, prints, diagrams, illustrations, 
brochures, schedules, and other data that are prepared by Developer, a 
subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, that illustrate how 
specific portions of the Work shall be fabricated or installed. 

 
1.1.50 Site. The Project site as shown on the Drawings. 

 
1.1.51 Specifications. That portion of the Contract Documents, Division 1 
through Division 49, and all technical sections, and addenda to all of these, if 
any, consisting of written descriptions and requirements of a technical nature 
of materials, equipment, construction methods and systems, standards, and 
workmanship. 

 
1.1.52 State. The State of California. 

 
1.1.53 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (or “SWPPP”). A 
document which identifies sources and activities at a particular facility that may 
contribute pollutants to storm water and contains specific control measures and 
time frames to prevent or treat such pollutants. 

 
1.1.54 Subcontractor. A contractor and/or supplier who is under contract 
with Developer or with any other subcontractor, regardless of tier, to perform 
a portion of the Work of the Project. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 7 OF 86  

1.1.55 Submittal Schedule. The schedule of submittals as provided by 
Developer and approved by District. 

 
1.1.56 Surety. The person, firm, or corporation that executes as surety 
Developer’s Performance Bond and Payment Bond, and must be a California 
admitted surety insurer as defined in the Code of Civil Procedure section 
995.120. 

 
1.1.57 Work. All labor, materials, equipment, components, appliances, 
supervision, coordination, and services required by, or reasonably inferred 
from, the Contract Documents, that are necessary for the construction and 
completion of the Project. 

 
1.2 Laws Concerning the Contract Documents 

 
The Contract is subject to all provisions of the Constitution and laws of California and 
the United States governing, controlling, or affecting District, or the property, funds, 
operations, or powers of District, and such provisions are by this reference made a 
part hereof. Any provision required by law to be included in this Contract shall be 
deemed to be inserted. 

 
1.3 No Oral Agreements 

 
No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of District, 
either before or after execution of Contract Documents, shall affect or modify any of 
the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract 
Documents. 

 
1.4 No Assignment 

 
Except as specifically permitted in the Facilities Lease, Developer shall not assign the 
Contract Documents or any part thereof including, without limitation, any services or 
money to become due hereunder without the prior written consent of the District. 
Assignment without District’s prior written consent shall be null and void. Any 
assignment of money due or to become due under the Contract Documents shall be 
subject to a prior lien for services rendered or material supplied for performance of 
Work called for under the Contract Documents in favor of all persons, firms, or 
corporations rendering services or supplying material to the extent that claims are 
filed pursuant to the Civil Code, Code of Civil Procedure, Government Code, Labor 
Code, and/or Public Contract Code, and shall also be subject to deductions for 
liquidated damages or withholding of payments as determined by District in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. Developer shall not assign or transfer in 
any manner to a Subcontractor or supplier the right to prosecute or maintain an action 
against the District. 

 
1.5 Notice and Service Thereof 

 
1.5.1 Any notice from one party to the other or otherwise under the Contract 
Documents shall be in writing and shall be dated and signed by the party giving 
notice or by a duly authorized representative of that party. Notice shall not be 
effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in one of the following 
manners: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 8 OF 86  

1.5.1.1 If notice is given by personal delivery thereof, it shall be 
considered delivered on the day of delivery. 

 
1.5.1.2 If notice is given by overnight delivery service, it shall be 
considered delivered one (1) day after date deposited, as indicated by 
the delivery service. 

 
1.5.1.3 If notice is given by depositing same in United States mail, 
enclosed in a sealed envelope, it shall be considered delivered five (5) 
days after date deposited, as indicated by the postmarked date. 

 
1.5.1.4 If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, it shall be considered delivered on the 
day the notice is signed for. 

 
1.6 No Waiver 

 
The failure of District in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance 
of any of the terms of the Contract Documents or to exercise any option herein 
conferred shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the 
right to assert or rely upon any such terms or option on any future occasion. No action 
or failure to act by the District, Architect, or Construction Manager shall constitute a 
waiver of any right or duty afforded the District under the Contract Documents, nor 
shall any action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence on any 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 
1.7 Substitutions For Specified Items 

 
Developer shall not substitute different items for any items identified in the Contract 
Documents without prior written approval of the District, unless otherwise provided in 
the Contract Documents. 

 
1.7.1 Whenever in the Specifications any materials, process, or article 
is indicated or specified by grade, patent, or proprietary name, or by 
name of manufacturer, that Specification shall be deemed to be followed 
by the words “or equal.” Developer may, unless otherwise stated, offer 
any material, process, or article that shall be substantially equal or 
better in every respect to that so indicated or specified. 

1.7.1.1 If the material, process, or article offered by 
Developer is not, in the opinion of the District, substantially equal or 
better in every respect to that specified, then Developer shall furnish 
the material, process, or article specified in the Specifications without 
any additional compensation or change order. 

1.7.1.2 This provision shall not be applicable with respect 
to any material, product, thing or service for which District made 
findings and gave notice in accordance with Public Contract Code section 
3400(c); therefore, Developer shall not be entitled to request a 
substitution with respect to those materials, products or services. 
1.7.2 A request for a substitution shall be submitted as follows: 

1.7.2.1 Developer shall notify the District in writing of any 
request for a substitution at least ten (10) days prior to proposal opening 
as indicated in the Request for Qualifications and Proposals. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 9 OF 86  

1.7.2.2 Requests for Substitutions after award of the 
Contract shall be submitted within thirty-five (25) days of the date of 
the Notice to Proceed with Construction. 
1.7.3 Within (25) days after the date of the Notice to Proceed with 
Construction, Developer shall provide data substantiating a request for 
substitution of “an equal” item, including but not limited to the following: 

1.7.3.1 All variations of the proposed substitute from the 
material specified including, but not limited to, principles of operation, 
materials, or construction finish, thickness or gauge of materials, 
dimensions, weight, and tolerances; 

1.7.3.2 Available maintenance, repair or replacement 
services; 

1.7.3.3 Increases or decreases in operating, maintenance, 
repair, replacement, and spare parts costs; 

1.7.3.4 Whether or not acceptance of the substitute will 
require other changes in the Work (or in work performed by the District 
or others under Contract with the District); and 

1.7.3.5 The time impact on any part of the Work resulting 
directly or indirectly from acceptance of the proposed substitute. 
1.7.4 No substitutions shall be made until approved, in writing, by the 
District. The burden of proof as to equality of any material, process, or 
article shall rest with Developer. Developer warrants that if substitutes 
are approved: 

1.7.4.1 The proposed substitute is equal or superior in all 
respects to that specified, and that such proposed substitute is suitable 
and fit for the intended purpose and will perform adequately the function 
and achieve the results called for by the general design and the Contract 
Documents; 

1.7.4.2 Developer provides the same warranties and 
guarantees for the substitute that would be provided for that specified; 

1.7.4.3 Developer shall be fully responsible for the 
installation of the substitute and any changes in the Work required, 
either directly or indirectly, because of the acceptance of such 
substitute,  with  no  increase  in  Contract   Price   or   Contract   Time. 
Incidental changes or extra component parts required to accommodate 
the substitute will be made by Developer without a change in the 
Contract Price or Contract Time; 

1.7.4.4 Developer shall be responsible for any re-design 
costs occasioned by District's acceptance and/or approval of any 
substitute; and 

1.7.4.5 Developer shall, in the event that a substitute is 
less costly than that specified, credit the District with one hundred 
percent (100%) of the net difference between the substitute and the 
originally specified material. In this event, Developer agrees to execute 
a deductive Change Order to reflect that credit. 
1.7.5 In the event Developer furnishes a material, process, or article 
more expensive than that specified, the difference in the cost of that 
material, process, or article so furnished shall be borne by Developer. 
1.7.6 In no event shall the District be liable for any increase in Contract 
Price or Contract Time due to any claimed delay in the evaluation of any 
proposed substitute or in the acceptance or rejection of any proposed 
substitute. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 10 OF 86  

 
 

1.8 Materials and Work 
 

1.8.1 Except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, 
Developer shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, 
transportation, supervision, temporary constructions of every nature, and all 
other services, management, and facilities of every nature whatsoever 
necessary to execute and complete the Work, in a good and workmanlike 
manner, within the Contract Time. 

 
1.8.2 Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and of the best 
quality of their respective kinds and grades as noted or specified, and 
workmanship shall be of high quality, and Developer shall use all diligence to 
inform itself fully as to the required manufacturer’s instructions and to comply 
therewith. 

 
1.8.3 Materials shall be furnished in ample quantities and at such times as to 
ensure uninterrupted progress of Work and shall be stored properly and 
protected from the elements, theft, vandalism, or other loss or damage as 
required. 

 
1.8.4 For all materials and equipment specified or indicated in the Drawings 
and Specifications, Developer shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and 
services necessary for complete assemblies and complete working systems, 
functioning as intended. Incidental items not indicated on Drawings, nor 
mentioned in the Specifications, that can legitimately and reasonably be 
inferred to belong to the Work described, or be necessary in good practice to 
provide a complete assembly or system, shall be furnished as though itemized 
here in every detail. In all instances, material and equipment shall be installed 
in strict accordance with each manufacturer’s most recent published 
recommendations and specifications. 

 
1.8.5 Developer shall, after award of the Project by District and after relevant 
submittals have been reviewed, place orders for materials and/or equipment 
as specified so that delivery of same may be made without delays to the Work. 
Developer shall, upon five (5) days’ demand from District, present documentary 
evidence showing that orders have been placed. 

 
1.8.6 In the event of Developer’s neglect in complying or failure to comply 
with the above instructions, District reserves the right, but has no obligation, 
to place orders for such materials and/or equipment as the District may deem 

1.7.7 Developer shall be responsible for any costs the District incurs for 
professional services, DSA fees, or delay to the Project Schedule, if 
applicable, while DSA reviews changes for the convenience of Developer 
and/or to accommodate Developer’s means and methods. District may 
deduct those costs from any amounts owing to Developer for the review 
of the request for substitution, even if the request for substitution is not 
approved. District, at its sole discretion, shall deduct from the payments 
due to and/or invoice Developer for all the professional services and/or 
DSA fees or delay to the Project Schedule, if applicable, while DSA 
reviews changes for the convenience of Developer and/or to 
accommodate Developer’s means and methods. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 11 OF 86  

advisable so that the Work may be completed by the date specified in the 
Facilities Lease, and all expenses incidental to the procuring of said materials 
and/or equipment shall be paid for by Developer or deducted from payment(s) 
to Developer. 

 
1.8.7 Developer warrants good title to all material, supplies, and equipment 
installed or incorporated in Work and agrees upon completion of all Work to 
deliver the Site to District, together with all improvements and appurtenances 
constructed or placed thereon by it, and free from any claims, liens, or charges. 
Developer further agrees that neither it nor any person, firm, or corporation 
furnishing any materials or labor for any work covered by the Contract 
Documents shall have any right to lien any portion of the Premises or any 
improvement or appurtenance thereon, except that Developer may install 
metering devices or other equipment of utility companies or of political 
subdivision, title to which is commonly retained by utility company or political 
subdivision. In the event of installation of any such metering device or 
equipment, Developer shall advise District as to owner thereof. 

 
1.8.8 Nothing contained in this Article, however, shall defeat or impair the 
rights of persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by 
Developer for their protection or any rights under any law permitting such 
protection or any rights under any law permitting such persons to look to funds 
due Developer in hands of District (e.g., Stop Payment Notices), and this 
provision shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice 
of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing material for Work when 
no formal contract is entered into for such material. 

 
1.8.9 Title to new materials and/or equipment for the Work of the Contract 
Documents and attendant liability for its protection and safety shall remain with 
Developer until incorporated in the Work of the Contract Documents and 
accepted by District. No part of any materials and/or equipment shall be 
removed from its place of storage except for immediate installation in the Work 
of the Contract Documents. Should the District, in its discretion, allow 
Developer to store materials and/or equipment for the Work off-site, Developer 
will store said materials and/or equipment at a bonded warehouse and with 
appropriate insurance coverage at no cost to District. Developer shall keep an 
accurate inventory of all materials and/or equipment in a manner satisfactory 
to District or its authorized representative and shall, at the District’s request, 
forward it to the District. 

 
1.8.10 [Reserved] 

 
2. [Reserved] 

 

3. Architect 
 

3.1 The Architect shall represent the District during the Project and will observe the 
progress and quality of the Work on behalf of the District. Architect shall have the 
authority to act on behalf of District to the extent expressly provided in the Contract 
Documents and to the extent determined by District. Architect shall have authority to 
reject materials, workmanship, and/or the Work whenever rejection may be 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 12 OF 86  

necessary, in Architect’s reasonable opinion, to ensure the proper execution of the 
Contract Documents. 

 
3.2 Architect shall, with the District and on behalf of the District, determine the 
amount, quality, acceptability, and fitness of all parts of the Work, and interpret the 
Specifications, Drawings, and shall, with the District, interpret all other Contract 
Documents. 

 
3.3 Architect shall have all authority and responsibility established by law, including 
title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
3.4 Developer shall provide District and the Construction Manager with a copy of 
all written communication between Developer and Architect at the same time as that 
communication is made to Architect, including, without limitation, all RFIs, 
correspondence, submittals, claims, change order requests and/or proposed change 
orders. 

 
4. Construction Manager 

 
4.1 If a Construction Manager is used on this Project (“Construction Manager” or 
“CM”), the Construction Manager will provide administration of the Contract 
Documents on the District's behalf. After execution of the Contract Documents, all 
correspondence and/or instructions from Developer and/or District shall be forwarded 
through the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager will not be responsible 
for and will not have control or charge of construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures or for safety precautions in connection with the Work, which 
shall all remain Developer’s responsibility. 

 
4.2 The Construction Manager, however, will have authority to reject materials 
and/or workmanship not conforming to the Contract Documents, as determined by the 
District, the Architect, and/or the Project Inspector. The Construction Manager shall 
also have the authority to require special inspection or testing of any portion of the 
Work, whether it has been fabricated, installed, or fully completed. Any decision made 
by the Construction Manager in good faith, shall not give rise to any duty or 
responsibility of the Construction Manager to: Developer, any Subcontractor, or their 
agents, employees, or other persons performing any of the Work. The Construction 
Manager shall have free access to any or all parts of Work at any time. 

 
4.3 If the District does not use a Construction Manager on this Project, all 
references within the Contract Documents to Construction Manager or CM shall be read 
as District. 

 
5. Inspector, Inspections, and Tests 

 

5.1 Project Inspector 
 

5.1.1 One or more Project Inspector(s), including special Project Inspector(s), 
as required, will be assigned to the Work by District, in accordance with 
requirements of title 24, part 1, of the California Code of Regulations, to enforce 
the building code and monitor compliance with Plans and Specifications for the 
Project previously approved by the DSA. Duties of Project Inspector(s) are 
specifically defined in section 4-342 of said part 1 of title 24. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 13 OF 86  

5.1.2 No Work shall be carried on except with the knowledge and under the 
inspection of the Project Inspector(s). The Project Inspector(s) shall have free 
access to any or all parts of Work at any time. Developer shall furnish Project 
Inspector(s) reasonable opportunities for obtaining such information as may be 
necessary to keep Project Inspector(s) fully informed respecting progress and 
manner of work and character of materials, including, but not limited to, 
submission of form DSA 156 (or the most current version applicable at the time 
the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector at least 48 hours in advance of 
the commencement and completion of construction of each and every aspect 
of the Work. Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx. Inspection of Work shall not relieve 
Developer from an obligation to fulfill the Contract Documents. Project 
Inspector(s) and the DSA are authorized to suspend work whenever Developer 
and/or its Subcontractor(s) are not complying with the Contract Documents. 
Any work stoppage by the Project Inspector(s) and/or DSA shall be without 
liability to the District. Developer shall instruct its Subcontractors and 
employees accordingly. 

 
5.1.3 If Developer and/or any Subcontractor requests that the Project 
Inspector(s) perform any inspection off-Site, this shall only be done if it is 
allowable pursuant to applicable regulations and DSA approval, if the Project 
Inspector(s) agree to do so, and at the expense of Developer. 

 
5.2 Tests and Inspections 

 
5.2.1 Tests and Inspections shall comply with title 24, part 1, California Code 
of Regulations, group 1, article 5, section 4-335, and with the provisions of the 
Specifications. 

 
5.2.2 The District will select an independent testing laboratory to conduct the 
tests. Selection of the materials required to be tested shall be by the laboratory 
or the District's representative and not by Developer. Developer shall notify the 
District's representative a sufficient time in advance of its readiness for required 
observation or inspection. This notice shall be provided, at a minimum, forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the inspection of the material that needs to be tested 
and, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to any special or off-site 
inspection. 

 
5.2.3 Developer shall notify the District's representative a sufficient time in 
advance of the manufacture of material to be supplied under the Contract 
Documents that must by terms of the Contract Documents be tested so that 
the District may arrange for the testing of same at the source of supply. This 
notice shall be provided, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
manufacture of the material that needs to be tested. 

 
5.2.4 Any material shipped by Developer from the source of supply prior to 
having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection or prior to the receipt 
of notice from said representative that such testing and inspection will not be 
required, shall not be incorporated into and/or onto the Project. 

 
5.2.5 The District will select the testing laboratory and pay for the costs for all 
tests and inspections, except those inspections performed at Developer’s 
request and expense. Developer shall reimburse the District for any and all 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 14 OF 86  

laboratory costs or other testing costs for any materials found to be not in 
compliance with the Contract Documents. At the District’s discretion, District 
may elect to deduct laboratory or other testing costs for noncompliant materials 
from the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and such deduction shall not constitute 
a withholding. 

 
5.3 Costs for After Hours and/or Off Site Inspections 

 
If Developer performs Work outside the Inspector’s regular working hours, costs of 
any inspections required outside regular working hours shall be borne by Developer 
and may be invoiced to Developer by the District or the District may deduct those 
expenses from the next Tenant Improvement Payment. 

 
6. Developer 

 
Developer shall construct and complete, in a good and workmanlike manner, the Work for the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price including any adjustment(s) to the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
pursuant to provisions herein regarding changes to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Except 
as otherwise noted, Developer shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, 
permits (excluding DSA), fees, licenses, facilities, transportation, taxes, bonds and insurance, 
and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, except as 
indicated herein. 

 
6.1 Status of Developer 

 
6.1.1 Developer is and shall at all times be deemed to be an independent 
contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it and its 
Subcontractors perform the services required of it by the Contract Documents. 
Nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the relationship of 
employer and employee, or principal and agent, between the District, or any of 
the District's employees or agents, and Developer or any of Developer’s 
Subcontractors, agents or employees. Developer assumes exclusively the 
responsibility for the acts of its agents and employees as they relate to the 
services to be provided during the course and scope of their employment. 
Developer, its Subcontractors, and its agents and employees shall not be 
entitled to any rights or privileges of District employees. District shall be 
permitted to monitor Developer’s activities to determine compliance with the 
terms of the Contract Documents. 

 
6.1.2 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 
licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board, 9821 Business 
Park Drive, Sacramento, California 95827 (Post Office Box 26000, Sacramento, 
California 95826), http://www.cslb.ca.gov. 

 
6.1.3 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 
registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial Relations 
at https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm 
or current URL. 

 
6.1.4 Developer represents that Developer and all Subcontractors shall not 
be presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared 
ineligible or excluded pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor 
Code section 1777.7. 

http://www.cslb.ca.gov/
https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 15 OF 86  

6.1.5 [Reserved] 
 

6.1.6 Developer represents that it has no existing interest and will not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of Work required under this Contract and that no person 
having any such interest shall be employed by Developer. 

 
6.1.7 [Reserved] 

 
6.1.8 If Developer intends to make any change in the name or legal nature of 
the Developer’s entity, Developer must first notify the District in writing prior to 
making any contemplated change. The District shall determine in writing if 
Developer’s intended change is permissible while performing this Contract. 

 
6.2 Project Inspection Card(s) 

 
Developer shall verify that forms DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the 
time the Work is performed) are issued for the Project prior to the commencement of 
construction. 

 
6.3 Developer’s Supervision 

 
6.3.1 During progress of the Work, Developer shall keep on the Premises, and 
at all other locations where any Work related to the Contract is being 
performed, an experienced and competent project manager and construction 
superintendent who are employees of Developer, to whom the District does not 
object and whom shall be fluent in English, written and verbal. 

 
6.3.2 The project manager and construction superintendent shall both speak 
fluent English and the predominant language of Developer’s employees. 

 
6.3.3 Developer acknowledges the quality and qualifications of the Key 
Personnel were important factors in District’s selection of Developer for the 
Project. Developer and District agree that the personal services of the Key 
Personnel are a material term of the Contract Documents. Developer and 
District agree further that the substitution or removal or change in role or level 
of effort of such Key Personnel would result in damages to the District, the 
measure of which would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix. In lieu such 
damages, District and Developer have agreed to liquidated damages as 
described below: 

 
6.3.3.1 Before commencing the Work herein, Developer shall give 
written notice to District of Developer’s Key Personnel. 

 
6.3.3.2 Key Personnel shall be the same as those individuals 
identified in Developer’s response to the District’s RFQ/P. 

 
6.3.3.3 For any substitution of any Key Personnel individual before 
the end of the individual’s Project commitment period provided in 
Developer’s Key Personnel staffing schedule, District may assess once, 
and Developer shall accept, liquidated damages in the amount of six (6) 
times the gross monthly salary for each substituted Key Personnel. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 16 OF 86  

6.3.4 Developer’s Key Personnel shall not be changed except with prior written 
notice to, and approval by, District. 

 
6.3.5 If any of Developer’s Key Personnel prove to be unsatisfactory to 
Developer, or to District, any of the District's employees, agents, the 
Construction Manager, or the Architect, the unsatisfactory Key Personnel shall 
be replaced. However, Developer shall immediately notify District in writing 
before any change occurs, but no less than two (2) business days prior. Any 
replacement of Key Personnel shall be made promptly and must be satisfactory 
to the District. Developer’s Key Personnel shall each represent Developer, and 
all directions given to Key Personnel shall be as binding as if given to Developer. 

 
6.3.6 Developer shall give efficient supervision to Work, using its best skill 
and attention. Developer shall carefully study and compare all Contract 
Documents, Drawings, Specifications, and other instructions and shall at once 
report to District, Construction Manager, and Architect any error, inconsistency, 
or omission that Developer or its employees and Subcontractors may discover, 
in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Developer shall have 
responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions. 

 
6.3.7 All contractors doing work on the Project will provide their workers with 
identification badges. These badges will be worn by all members of the 
contractor's staff who are working in a District facility. 

 
6.3.7.1 Badges must be filled out in full and contain the following 
information: 

 
6.3.7.1.1 Name of contractor 

 
6.3.7.1.2 Name of employee 

 
6.3.7.1.3 Contractor's address and phone number 

 
6.3.7.2 Badges are to be worn when Developer or his/her employees 
are on site and must be visible at all times. Contractors must inform 
their employees that they are required to allow District employees, the 
Architect, the Construction Manager, the Program Manager, or the 
Project Inspector to review the information on the badges upon request. 

 
6.3.7.3 Continued failure to display identification badges as required 
by this policy may result in the individual being removed from the 
Project or assessment of fines against the contractor. 

 
6.4 Duty to Provide Fit Workers 

 
6.4.1 Developer and Subcontractor(s) shall at all times enforce strict discipline 
and good order among their employees and shall not employ any unfit person 
or anyone not skilled in work assigned to that person. It shall be the 
responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this requirement. District 
may require Developer to permanently remove unfit persons from Project Site. 

 
6.4.2 Any person in the employ of Developer or Subcontractor(s) whom 
District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be excluded from working on the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 17 OF 86  

Project and shall not again be employed on the Project except with the prior 
written consent of District. 

 
6.4.3 Developer shall furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other 
elements of labor employed or to be employed in the Work. 

 
6.4.4 Fingerprinting. Developer shall comply with the provisions of 
Education Code section 45125.2 regarding the submission of employee 
fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the completion of 
criminal background investigations of its employees, Subcontractor(s), and 
Subcontractors’ employees. Developer shall not permit any employee to have 
any contact with District pupils until such time as Developer has verified in 
writing to the governing board of the District, (A) that such employee has not 
been convicted of a violent or serious felony, as defined in Education Code 
section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee 
as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). Developer shall 
fully complete and perform all tasks required pursuant to the Criminal 
Background Investigation/ Fingerprinting Certification. 

 
6.5 Field Office 

 
6.5.1 Developer shall provide on the Site a temporary office. 

 
6.6 Purchase of Materials and Equipment 

 
Developer is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently 
in advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from District to assure 
that there will be no delays. 

 
6.7 Documents on Work 

 
6.7.1 Developer shall at all times keep on the Site, or at another location as 
the District may authorize in writing, one legible copy of all Contract 
Documents, including Addenda and Change Orders, and Titles 19 and 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations, the specified edition(s) of the Uniform Building 
Code, all approved Drawings, Plans, Schedules, and Specifications, and all 
codes and documents referred to in the Specifications, and made part thereof. 
These documents shall be kept in good order and available to District, 
Construction Manager, Architect, Architect’s representatives, the Project 
Inspector(s), and all authorities having jurisdiction. Developer shall be 
acquainted with and comply with the provisions of these titles as they relate to 
this Project. (See particularly the duties of Contractor, Title 24, Part 1, 
California Code of Regulations, Section 4-343.) Developer shall also be 
acquainted with and comply with all California Code of Regulations provisions 
relating to conditions on this Project, particularly Titles 8 and 17. Developer 
shall coordinate with Architect and Construction Manager and shall submit its 
verified report(s) according to the requirements of Title 24. 

 
6.7.2 Daily Job Reports 

 
6.7.2.1 Developer shall maintain, at a minimum, at least one (1) set 
of  Daily  Job  Reports  on the Project. These must be prepared by 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 18 OF 86  

Developer's employee(s) who are present on Site, and must include, at 
a minimum, the following information: 

 
6.7.2.1.1 A brief description of all Work performed on that day. 

 
6.7.2.1.2 A summary of all other pertinent events and/or 
occurrences on that day. 

 
6.7.2.1.3 The weather conditions on that day. 

 
6.7.2.1.4 A list of all Subcontractor(s) working on that day, 
including DIR registration numbers, Subcontractor employees 
working, and hours of work. 

 
6.7.2.1.5 A list of each Developer employee working on that 
day and the total hours worked for each employee. 

 
6.7.2.1.6 A complete list of all equipment on Site that day, 
whether in use or not. 

 
6.7.2.1.7 A complete list of all materials, supplies, and 
equipment delivered on that day, and verification that all 
materials, supplies, and equipment comply with the Contract 
Documents and are properly stored. 

 
6.7.2.1.8 A complete list of all inspections and tests performed 
on that day. 

 
6.7.2.1.9 Daily verification the Project is properly secured from 
the public and unauthorized entry. 

 
6.7.2.2 Each day Developer shall provide a copy of the previous day’s 
Daily Job Report to the District or the District’s Construction Manager. 

 
6.8 Preservation of Records 

 
Developer shall maintain, and District shall have the right to inspect, Developer’s 
financial records for the Project, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports for the 
Project in compliance with the criteria set forth herein. The District shall have the right 
to examine and audit all Daily Job Reports or other Project records of Developer’s 
project manager(s), project superintendent(s), and/or project foreperson(s), all 
certified payroll records and/or related documents including, without limitation, Job 
Cost Reports, payroll, payment, timekeeping and tracking documents; and as it 
pertains to change orders, all books, estimates, records, contracts, documents, cost 
data, subcontract job cost reports, and other data of Developer, any Subcontractor, 
and/or supplier, including computations and projections related to estimating, 
negotiating, pricing, or performing the Work or modification, in order to evaluate the 
accuracy, completeness, and currency of the cost, manpower, coordination, 
supervision, or pricing data at no additional cost to the District. These documents may 
be duplicative and/or be in addition to any documents held in escrow by the District. 
Developer shall make available at its office at all reasonable times the materials 
described in this paragraph for the examination, audit, or reproduction until three (3) 
years after final payment under this Facilities Lease. Notwithstanding the provisions 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 19 OF 86  

above, Developer shall provide any records requested by any governmental agency, if 
available, after the time set forth above. 

 
6.9 Integration of Work 

 
6.9.1 Developer shall do all cutting, fitting, patching, and preparation of Work 
as required to make its several parts come together properly, to fit it to receive 
or be received by work of other contractors, and to coordinate tolerances to 
various pieces of work, showing upon, or reasonably implied by, the Drawings 
and Specifications for the completed structure, and shall conform them as 
District and/or Architect may direct. 

 
6.9.2 Developer shall make its own layout of lines and elevations and shall be 
responsible for the accuracy of both Developer’s and Subcontractors' work 
resulting therefrom. 

 
6.9.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall take all field dimensions required 
in performance of the Work, and shall verify all dimensions and conditions on 
the Site. All dimensions affecting proper fabrication and installation of all Work 
must be verified prior to fabrication by taking field measurements of the true 
conditions. If there are any discrepancies between dimensions in drawings and 
existing conditions which will affect the Work, Developer shall bring such 
discrepancies to the attention of the District and Architect for adjustment before 
proceeding with the Work. In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not 
acting in the capacity of a licensed design professional, and that Developer’s 
examination is made in good faith to facilitate construction and does not create 
an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to detect errors, omissions 
or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain compliance with 
applicable laws, building codes or regulations. However, nothing in this 
provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and 
reporting any error, inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within 
Developer’s standard of care including, without limitation, any applicable laws, 
ordinance, rules, or regulations. Following receipt of written notice from 
Developer, the District and/or Architect shall inform Developer what action, if 
any, Developer shall take with regard to such discrepancies. 

 
6.9.4 All costs caused by noncompliant, defective, or delayed Work shall be 
borne by Developer, inclusive of repair work. Schedule delays resulting from 
unauthorized work shall be Contractor’s responsibility. 

 
6.9.5 Developer shall not endanger any work performed by it or anyone else 
by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering work and shall not cut or alter 
work of any other contractor except with consent of District. 

 
6.10 Notifications 

 
6.10.1 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 
the commencement of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at 
least 48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current 
version applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 20 OF 86  

Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx. 

 
6.10.2 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 
the completion of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at least 
48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current version 
applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. 

 
6.11 Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations 

 
6.11.1 Developer shall secure and pay for any permits (except DSA), licenses, 
registrations, approvals, and certificates necessary for prosecution of Work, 
including but not limited to those listed in the Special Conditions, Exhibit D-1, 
if any, before the date of the commencement of the Work or before the permits, 
licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates are legally required to 
continue the Work without interruption. Developer shall obtain and pay, only 
when legally required, for all licenses, approvals, registrations, permits, 
inspections, and inspection certificates required to be obtained from or issued 
by any authority having jurisdiction over any part of the Work included in the 
Contract Documents. All final permits, licenses, registrations, approvals and 
certificates shall be delivered to District before demand is made for final 
payment. The costs associated with said permits, licenses, registrations, 
approvals and certificates shall be direct reimbursement items and are not 
subject to any markup. 

 
6.11.2 General Permit For Storm Water Discharges Associated With Construction 
and Land Disturbance Activities. 

 
6.11.2.1 Contractor acknowledges that all California school districts 
are obligated to develop and implement the following requirements for 
the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and 
land disturbance activities pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter 
Cologne Water Quality Act. District has determined that the construction 
of this Project requires enrollment in the Construction Storm Water 
Permit. District has filed certain submittals referred to as Permit 
Registration Documents (“PRDS”) with the Regional Water Control 
Board (“Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan” or “SWPPP”). 

 
6.11.2.2 Contractor shall comply with any District SWPPP that is 
approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 
cost to the District. Contractor shall pay any fees and any penalties that 
may imposed by a regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the 
SWPPP during the course of Work. 

 
6.11.2.3 Contractor shall provide a Qualified Storm Water Practitioner 
(“QSP”) at no additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and 
implement and monitor any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to 
the Project, including but not limited to: 

 
6.11.2.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, 
reporting and record keeping, including any Numeric Action 
Levels (“NALs”), if applicable; 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 21 OF 86  

6.11.2.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (“REAP”) at least forty eight 
(48) hours prior to any forecasted rain event requiring 
implementation of the REAP, including any erosion and sediment 
control measures needed to protect all exposed portions of the 
site, if applicable; 

 
6.11.2.3.3 Active Treatment System (“ATS”), if applicable; and 

 
6.11.2.3.4 Best management practices (“BMPs”). 

 
6.12 Royalties and Patents 

 
6.12.1 Developer shall obtain and pay, when legally required, all royalties and 
license fees necessary for prosecution of Work before the earlier of the date of 
the commencement of the Work or the date the license is legally required to 
continue the Work without interruption. Developer shall defend suits or claims 
of infringement of patent, copyright, or other rights and shall hold the District, 
Construction Manager and the Architect harmless and indemnify them from loss 
on account thereof except when a particular design, process, or make or model 
of product is required by the Contract Documents. However, if Developer has 
reason to believe that the required design, process, or product is an 
infringement of a patent or copyright, Developer shall indemnify and defend 
the District, Construction Manager and Architect against any loss or damage. 

 
6.12.2 The review by the District, Construction Manager or Architect of any 
method of construction, invention, appliance, process, article, device, or 
material of any kind shall be only as to its adequacy for the Work and shall not 
constitute approve use by Developer in violation of any patent or other rights 
of any person or entity. 

 
6.13 Work to Comply With Applicable Laws and Regulations 

 
6.13.1 Developer shall give all notices and comply with the following specific 
laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations and all other applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on conduct of Work as indicated and 
specified, including but not limited to the appropriate statutes and 
administrative code sections. If Developer observes that Drawings and 
Specifications are at variance with any applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, or should Developer become aware of the development of 
conditions not covered by Contract Documents that may result in finished Work 
being at variance therewith, Developer shall promptly notify District in writing 
and any changes deemed necessary by District shall be made as provided in 
this Exhibit D for changes in Work. 

 
6.13.1.1 National Electrical Safety Code, U. S. Department of Commerce 

 
6.13.1.2 National Board of Fire Underwriters’ Regulations 

 
6.13.1.3 International Building Code, latest addition, and the 
California Code of Regulations, title 24, and other amendments 

 
6.13.1.4 Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, latest edition, 
published by A.G.C. of America 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 22 OF 86  

6.13.1.5 Industrial Accident Commission’s Safety Orders, State of 
California 

 
6.13.1.6 Regulations of the State Fire Marshall (title 19, California 
Code of Regulations) and Pertinent Local Fire Safety Codes 

 
6.13.1.7 Americans with Disabilities Act 

 
6.13.1.8 Education Code of the State of California 

 
6.13.1.9 Government Code of the State of California 

 
6.13.1.10 Labor Code of the State of California, division 2, part 7, 
Public Works and Public Agencies 

 
6.13.1.11 Public Contract Code of the State of California 

 
6.13.1.12 California Art Preservation Act 

 
6.13.1.13 U. S. Copyright Act 

 
6.13.1.14 U. S. Visual Artists Rights Act 

 
6.13.2 Developer shall comply with all applicable mitigation measures, if any, 
adopted by any public agency or local utility with respect to this Project 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 
section 21000 et seq.). 

 
6.13.3 If Developer performs any Work that it knew, or through exercise of 
reasonable care should have known, to be contrary to any applicable laws, 
ordinance, rules, or regulations, Developer shall bear all costs arising therefrom 
and arising from the correction of said Work. 

 
6.13.4 Where Specifications or Drawings state that materials, processes, or 
procedures must be approved by the DSA, State Fire Marshall, or other body 
or agency, Developer shall use its best efforts to satisfy the requirements of 
such bodies or agencies applicable at the time the Work is performed, and as 
determined by those bodies or agencies. 

 
6.13.5 [Reserved] 

 
6.14 Safety/Protection of Persons and Property 

 
6.14.1 Developer will be solely and completely responsible for conditions of 
the Site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the 
Work. This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal 
working hours. 

 
6.14.2 Developer to provide safe access for staff and students at any time, 
and to provide barricades, sound walls, signage, fencing, and other reasonably 
necessary protective measures, as necessary, to protect staff and students 
during construction. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 23 OF 86  

6.14.3 The wearing of hard hats will be mandatory at all times for all personnel 
on Site. Developer shall supply sufficient hard hats to properly equip all 
employees and visitors. 

 
6.14.4 Any construction review of Developer’s performance is not intended to 
include review of the adequacy of Developer’s safety measures in, on, or near 
the Site. 

 
6.14.5 Implementation and maintenance of safety programs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Developer. 

 
6.14.6 Developer shall furnish to the District a copy of Developer's safety plan 
within the time frame indicated in the Contract Documents and specifically 
adapted for the Project. 

 
6.14.7 Developer shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property 
that occur as a result of its fault or negligence in connection with the 
prosecution of the Contract Documents and shall take all necessary measures 
and be responsible for the proper care and completion and final acceptance by 
District. All Work shall be solely at Developer’s risk. 

 
6.14.8 Developer shall take, and require Subcontractors to take, all necessary 
precautions for safety of workers on the Project and shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, local, and other safety laws, standards, orders, rules, 
regulations, and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, 
about, or adjacent to premises where Work is being performed and to provide 
a safe and healthful place of employment. Developer shall furnish, erect, and 
properly maintain at all times, all necessary safety devices, safeguards, 
construction canopies, signs, nets, barriers, lights, and watchmen for protection 
of workers and the public and shall post danger signs warning against hazards 
created by such features in the course of construction. 

 
6.14.9 Hazards Control –Developer shall store volatile wastes in approved 
covered metal containers and remove them from the Site daily. Developer shall 
prevent accumulation of wastes that create hazardous conditions. Developer 
shall provide adequate ventilation during use of volatile or noxious substances. 

 
6.14.10 Developer shall designate a responsible member of its organization 
on the Project, whose duty shall be to post information regarding protection 
and obligations of workers and other notices required under occupational safety 
and health laws, to comply with reporting and other occupational safety 
requirements, and to protect the life, safety, and health of workers. Name and 
position of person so designated shall be reported to District by Developer. 

 
6.14.11 Developer shall correct any violations of safety laws, rules, orders, 
standards, or regulations. Upon the issuance of a citation or notice of violation 
by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, Developer shall correct such 
violation promptly. 

 
6.14.12 Developer shall comply with any District storm water requirements 
that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 
cost to the District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 24 OF 86  

6.14.13 In an emergency affecting safety of life or of work or of adjoining 
property, Developer, without special instruction or authorization, shall act, at 
its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury. Any compensation 
claimed by Developer on account of emergency work shall be determined by 
agreement. 

 
6.14.14 All salvage materials will become the property of Developer and shall 
be removed from the Site unless otherwise called for in the Contract 
Documents. However, the District reserves the right to designate certain items 
of value that shall be turned over to the District unless otherwise directed by 
District. 

 
6.14.15 All connections to public utilities and/or existing on-site services, 
including, without limitation, internet, phone, and data connections, shall be 
made and maintained in such a manner as to not interfere with the continuing 
use of same by the District during the entire progress of the Work. 

 
6.14.16 Developer shall provide such heat, covering, and enclosures as are 
necessary to protect all Work, materials, equipment, appliances, and tools 
against damage by weather conditions, such as extreme heat, cold, rain, snow, 
dry winds, flooding, or dampness. 

 
6.14.17 Developer shall protect and preserve the Work from all damage or 
accident, providing any temporary roofs, window and door coverings, boxings, 
or other construction as required by the Architect. Developer shall be 
responsible for existing structures, walks, roads, trees, landscaping, and/or 
improvements in working areas; and shall provide adequate protection 
therefor. If temporary removal is necessary of any of the above items, or 
damage occurs due to the Work, Developer shall replace same at his expense 
with same kind, quality, and size of Work or item damaged. This shall include 
any adjoining property of the District and others. 

 
6.14.18 Developer shall take adequate precautions to protect existing roads, 
sidewalks, curbs, pavements, utilities, adjoining property, and structures 
(including, without limitation, protection from settlement or loss of lateral 
support), and to avoid damage thereto, and repair any damage thereto caused 
by construction operations. 

 
6.14.19 Developer shall confine apparatus, the storage of materials, and the 
operations of workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or 
directions of Architect, and shall not interfere with the Work or unreasonably 
encumber Premises or overload any structure with materials. Developer shall 
enforce all instructions of District and Architect regarding signs, advertising, 
fires, and smoking, and require that all workers comply with all regulations 
while on Project Site. 

 
6.14.20 Developer, Developer’s employees, Subcontractors, Subcontractors’ 
employees, or any person associated with the Work shall conduct themselves 
in a manner appropriate for a school site. No verbal or physical contact with 
neighbors, students, and faculty, profanity, or inappropriate attire or behavior 
will be permitted. Developer is also responsible for ensuring workers refrain 
from wearing inappropriate clothing and/or logos on the Project. District may 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 25 OF 86  

require Developer to temporarily or permanently remove non-complying 
persons from Project Site. 

 
6.14.21 Developer shall take care to prevent disturbing or covering any 
survey markers, monuments, or other devices marking property boundaries or 
corners. If such markers are disturbed, Developer shall have a civil engineer, 
registered as a professional engineer in California, replace them at no cost to 
District. 

 
6.14.22 In the event that Developer enters into any agreement with owners 
of any adjacent property to enter upon the adjacent property for the purpose 
of performing the Work, Developer shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless each person, entity, firm, or agency that owns or has any interest in 
adjacent property. The form and content of the agreement of indemnification 
shall be approved by the District prior to the commencement of any Work on 
or about the adjacent property. Developer shall also indemnify the District as 
provided in the indemnification provision herein. These provisions shall be in 
addition to any other requirements of the owners of the adjacent property. 

 
6.15 General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (“Construction Storm Water 
Permit”) 

 
6.15.1 Developer acknowledges that all California school districts are obligated 
to develop and implement the following requirements for the discharge of storm 
water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities 
pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter Cologne Water Quality Act. District 
has determined that the construction of this Project requires enrollment in the 
Construction Storm Water Permit. District has filed certain submittals referred 
to as Permit Registration Documents (PRDS) with the Regional Water Control 
Board (Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan or “SWPPP”). 

 
6.15.2 Developer shall comply with any District SWPPP that are approved by 
the District and applicable to the Project at no additional cost to the District. 
Developer shall pay any fees and any penalties that may be imposed by a 
regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the SWPPP during the course of 
Work. 

 
6.15.3 Developer shall provide a Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP) at no 
additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and implement and monitor 
any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to the Project, including but not 
limited to: 

 
6.15.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, reporting 
and record keeping, including any Numeric Action Levels (NALs), if 
applicable; 

 
6.15.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (REAP) at least forty eight (48) hours 
prior to any forecasted rain event requiring implementation of the REAP, 
including any erosion and sediment control measures needed to protect 
all exposed portions of the site, if applicable; 

 
6.15.3.3 Active Treatment System (ATS), if applicable; and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 26 OF 86  

6.15.3.4 Best management practices (BMPs). 
 

6.16 Working Evenings and Weekends 
 

Developer may be required to work increased hours, evenings, and/or weekends at no 
additional cost to the District. Developer shall give the District forty-eight (48) hours’ 
notice prior to performing any evening and/or weekend work. Developer shall perform 
all evening and/or weekend work in compliance with all applicable rules, regulations, 
laws, and local ordinances including, without limitation, all noise and light limitations. 
Developer shall reimburse the District for any increased or additional Inspector charges 
as a result of Developer’s increased hours, or evening and/or weekend work. 

 
6.17 Cleaning Up 

 
6.17.1 Developer shall provide all services, labor, materials, and equipment 
necessary for protecting and securing the Work, all school occupants, 
furnishings, equipment, and building structure from damage until its completion 
and final acceptance by District. Dust barriers shall be provided to isolate dust 
and dirt from construction operations. At completion of the Work and portions 
thereof, Developer shall clean to the original state any areas beyond the Work 
area that become dust laden as a result of the Work. Developer must erect the 
necessary warning signs and barricades to ensure the safety of all school 
occupants. Developer at all times must maintain good housekeeping practices 
to reduce the risk of fire damage and must make a fire extinguisher, fire blanket, 
and/or fire watch, as applicable, available at each location where cutting, 
braising, soldering, and/or welding is being performed or where there is an 
increased risk of fire. 

 
6.17.2 Developer at all times shall keep Premises, including property 
immediately adjacent thereto, free from debris such as waste, rubbish 
(including personal rubbish of workers, e.g., food wrappers, etc.), and excess 
materials and equipment caused by the Work. Developer shall not leave debris 
under, in, or about the Premises (or surrounding property or neighborhood), 
but shall promptly remove same from the Premises on a daily basis. If 
Developer fails to clean up, District may do so and the cost thereof shall be 
charged to Developer. If the Contract calls for Work on an existing facility, 
Developer shall also perform specific clean-up on or about the Premises upon 
request by the District as it deems necessary for continued operations. 
Developer shall comply with all related provisions of the Specifications. 

 
6.17.3 If the Construction Manager, Architect, or District observes the 
accumulation of trash and debris, the District will give Developer a 24-hour 
written notice to mitigate the condition. 

 
6.17.4 Should Developer fail to perform the required clean-up, or should the 
clean-up be deemed unsatisfactory by the District, the District may, at its sole 
discretion, then perform the clean-up. All cost associated with the clean-up 
work (including all travel, payroll burden, and costs for supervision) will be 
deducted from the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 27 OF 86  

6.18 No Relief from Obligations Based on Review by Other Persons 
 

6.18.1 Developer shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents by act or omission of the District, 
Architect, Construction Manager, Project Inspector, or DSA or other entities 
having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, administration of the Contract, 
review of submittals, or by tests, observation, inspection, or permit 
/interconnection approvals. 

 
7. Subcontractors 

 
7.1 Developer shall provide the District with information for all of Developer’s 
Subcontracts and Subcontractors as indicated in Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 
Section herein. 

 
7.2 No contractual relationship exists between the District and any Subcontractor, 
supplier, or sub-subcontractor by reason of the Contract Documents. 

 
7.3 Developer agrees to bind every Subcontractor by terms of the Contract 
Documents as far as those terms that are applicable to Subcontractor’s work including, 
without limitation, all labor, wage & hour, apprentice and related provisions and 
requirements. If Developer subcontracts any part of the Work called for by the Contract 
Documents, Developer shall be as fully responsible to District for acts and omissions 
of any Subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any 
Subcontractor, including Subcontractor caused Project delays, as it is for acts and 
omissions of persons directly employed by Developer. The divisions or sections of the 
Specifications and/or the arrangements of the drawings are not intended to control 
Developer in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or limit the work performed by 
any trade. 

 
7.4 District's consent to, or approval of, or failure to object to, any Subcontractor 
under the Contract Documents shall not in any way relieve Developer of any 
obligations under the Contract Documents and no such consent shall be deemed to 
waive any provisions of the Contract Documents. 

 
7.5 Developer is directed to familiarize itself with sections 1720 through 1861 of 
the Labor Code of the State of California, as regards the payment of prevailing wages 
and related issues, and to comply with all applicable requirements therein including, 
without limitation, section 1775 and Developer’s and Subcontractors’ obligations and 
liability for violations of prevailing wage law and other applicable laws. 

 
7.6 Developer shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, 
Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers working on 
the Project. 

 
7.6.1 Developer is responsible for ensuring that first-tier Subcontractors 
holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C- 
46 licenses, are prequalified by the District to work on the Project pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 20111.6. 

 
7.6.2 Developer is responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractors are 
properly registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial 
Relations. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 28 OF 86  

7.7 Developer is solely responsible for settling any differences between Developer 
and its Subcontractor(s) or between Subcontractors. 

 
7.8 Developer must include in all of its subcontracts the assignment provisions 
indicated in the Termination section of these Construction Provisions. 

 
8. Other Contracts/Contractors 

 
8.1 District reserves the right to let other contracts, and/or to perform work with 
its own forces, in connection with the Project. Developer shall afford other contractors 
reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage of their materials and execution 
of their work and shall properly coordinate and connect Developer’s Work with the 
work of other contractors. 

 
8.2 Developer shall protect the work of any other contractor that Developer 
encounters while working on the Project. 

 
8.3 If any part of Developer’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon 
work of District or any other contractor, Developer shall visually inspect, and with 
reasonable effort, physically inspect all accessible portions of District’s or any other 
contractor’s work and, before proceeding with its Work, promptly report to the District 
in writing any defects in District’s or any other contractor’s work that render 
Developer’s Work unsuitable for proper execution and results. Developer shall be held 
accountable for damages to District for District’s or any other contractor’s work that 
Developer failed to inspect or should have inspected. Developer’s failure to inspect and 
report shall constitute Developer’s acceptance of all District’s or any other contractor’s 
work as fit and proper for reception of Developer’s Work, except as to defects that may 
develop in District’s or any other contractor’s work after execution of Developer’s Work 
and not caused by execution of Developer’s Work. 

 
8.4 To ensure proper execution of its subsequent Work, Developer shall measure 
and inspect Work already in place and shall at once report to the District in writing any 
discrepancy between that executed Work and the Contract Documents. 

 
8.5 Developer shall ascertain to its own satisfaction the scope of the Project and 
nature of District’s or any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by District 
in prosecution of the Project to the end that Developer may perform under the Contract 
in light of the other contracts, if any. 

 
8.6 Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted as granting to Developer 
exclusive occupancy of the Site, the Premises, or of the Project. Developer shall not 
cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to the use and/or operation(s) of the 
Premises and/or to District or any other contractor working on the Project. If 
simultaneous execution of any contract or Premises operation is likely to cause 
interference with performance of Developer’s obligations under the Contract 
Documents, Developer shall coordinate with those contractor(s), person(s), and/or 
entity(s) and shall notify the District of the resolution. 

 
9. Drawings and Specifications 

 
9.1 A complete list of all Drawings that form a part of the Contract Documents are 
to be found as an index on the Drawings themselves, and/or may be provided to 
Developer and/or in the Table of Contents. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 29 OF 86  

9.2 Materials or Work described in words that so applied have a well-known 
technical or trade meaning shall be deemed to refer to recognized standards, unless 
noted otherwise. 

 
9.3 Trade Name or Trade Term 

 
It is not the intention of the Contract Documents to go into detailed descriptions of 
any materials and/or methods commonly known to the trade under “trade name” or 
“trade term.” The mere mention or notation of “trade name” or “trade term” shall be 
considered a sufficient notice to Developer that it will be required to complete the work 
so named, complete, finished, and operable, with all its appurtenances, according to 
the best practices of the trade. 

 
9.4 The naming of any material and/or equipment shall mean furnishing and 
installing of same, including all incidental and accessory items thereto and/or labor 
therefor, as per best practices of the trade(s) involved, unless specifically noted 
otherwise. 

 
9.5 Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be 
binding as if called for by all. As such, Drawings and Specifications are intended to be 
fully cooperative and to agree. However, if Developer observes that Drawings and 
Specifications are in conflict with the Contract Documents, Developer shall promptly 
notify District and Architect in writing, and any necessary changes shall be made as 
provided in the Contract Documents. 

 
9.6 Figured dimensions shall be followed in preference to scaled dimensions, and 
Developer shall make all additional measurements necessary for the work and shall be 
responsible for their accuracy. Before ordering any material or doing any work, each 
Developer shall verify all measurements at the building and shall be responsible for 
the correctness of same. 

 
9.7 Should any question arise concerning the intent or meaning of the Contract 
Documents, including the Plans and Specifications, the question shall be submitted to 
the District for interpretation. If a conflict exists in the Contract Documents, these 
Construction Provisions shall control over the Facilities Lease, which shall control over 
the Site Lease, which shall control over Division 1 Documents, which shall control over 
Division 2 through Division 49 documents, which shall control over figured dimensions, 
which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over small-scale 
drawings. In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or quantity of 
material or workmanship control. However, in the case of discrepancy or ambiguity 
solely between and among the Drawings and Specifications, the discrepancy or 
ambiguity shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation that will provide District with 
the functionally complete and operable Project described in the Drawings and 
Specifications. 

 
9.8 Drawings and Specifications are intended to comply with all laws, ordinances, 
rules, and regulations of constituted authorities having jurisdiction, and where referred 
to in the Contract Documents, the laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations shall be 
considered as a part of the Contract Documents within the limits specified. 

 
9.9 As required by Section 4-317(c), Part 1, Title 24, CCR: “Should any existing 
conditions such as deterioration or non-complying construction be discovered which is 
not covered by the DSA-approved documents wherein the finished work will not comply 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 30 OF 86  

with Title 24, California Code of Regulations, a construction change document, or a 
separate set of plans and specifications, detailing and specifying the required repair 
work shall be submitted to and approved by DSA before proceeding with the repair 
work.” 

 
9.10 Ownership of Drawings 

 
All copies of Plans, Drawings, Designs, Specifications, and copies of other incidental 
architectural and engineering work, or copies of other Contract Documents furnished 
by District, are the property of District. They are not to be used by Developer in other 
work and, with the exception of signed sets of Contract Documents, are to be returned 
to District on request at completion of Work, or may be used by District as it may 
require without any additional costs to District. Neither Developer nor any 
Subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the 
Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect. District 
hereby grants Developer, Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or 
equipment suppliers a limited license to use applicable portions of the Drawings 
prepared for the Project in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents. 

 
10.  Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 

 

Developer’s submittals shall comply with the provisions and requirements of the 
Specifications including, without limitation Submittals. 

 
10.1 Schedule of Work, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

 
10.1.1 Developer shall comply with the construction schedule attached to the 
Facilities Lease as Exhibit F (“Construction Schedule”). [To be attached when 
available.] 

 
10.1.2 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 
electronically, in a native format (e.g. Microsoft Project or Primavera) approved 
in advance by the District. 

 
10.1.3 The District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall 
make changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 
resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 

 
10.1.4 The District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 
revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District's sole opinion, the schedule 
of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 

 
10.1.5 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 
rely on them as a basis for payment. 

 
10.1.6 Within TEN (10) calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed 
with Construction (unless otherwise specified in the Specifications), Developer 
shall prepare and submit to the District for review, in a form supported by 
sufficient data to substantiate its accuracy as the District may require: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 31 OF 86  

10.1.6.1 Preliminary Schedule 
 

A preliminary schedule of construction indicating the starting and 
completion dates of the various stages of the Work, including any 
information and following any form as may be specified in the 
Specifications. Once approved by District, this shall become the 
Construction Schedule. This schedule shall include and identify all tasks 
that are on the Project’s critical path with a specific determination of the 
start and completion of each critical path task as well as all Contract 
milestones and each milestone’s completion date(s) as may be required 
by the District. 

 
10.1.6.1.1 The District is not required to approve  a preliminary 
schedule of construction with early completion, i.e., one that 
shows early completion dates for the Work and/or milestones. 
Developer shall not be entitled to extra compensation if the 
District approves a Construction Schedule with an early 
completion date and Developer completes the Project beyond the 
date shown in the schedule but within the Contract Time. A 
Construction Schedule showing the Work completed in less than 
the Contract Time, the time between the early completion date 
and the end of the Contract Time shall be Float. 

 
10.1.6.2 Preliminary Schedule of Values 

 
A preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work, which must include 
quantities and prices of items aggregating the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price and must subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient 
detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. 
Unless the Special Conditions contain different limits, this preliminary 
schedule of values shall include, at a minimum, the following information 
and the following structure: 

 
10.1.6.2.1 Divided into at least the following categories: 

 
10.1.6.2.1.1 Overhead and profit 

 
10.1.6.2.1.2 Supervision 

 
10.1.6.2.1.3 General conditions 

 
10.1.6.2.1.4 Layout 

 
10.1.6.2.1.5 Mobilization 

 
10.1.6.2.1.6 Submittals 

 
10.1.6.2.1.7 Bonds and insurance 

 
10.1.6.2.1.8 Close-out/Certification documentation 

 
10.1.6.2.1.9 Demolition 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 32 OF 86  

10.1.6.2.1.10 Installation 
 

10.1.6.2.1.11 Rough-in 
 

10.1.6.2.1.12 Finishes 
 

10.1.6.2.1.13 Testing 
 

10.1.6.2.1.14 Punch list and District acceptance 
 

10.1.6.2.2 And also divided by each of the following areas: 
 

10.1.6.2.2.1 Site work 
 

10.1.6.2.2.2 By each phase and/or building, as 
applicable 

 
10.1.6.2.2.3 By each floor 

 
10.1.6.2.3 The preliminary schedule of values shall not provide 
for values any greater than the following percentages of the 
Contract value: 

 
10.1.6.2.3.1 Mobilization and layout combined to equal 
not more than 1%. 

 
10.1.6.2.3.2 Submittals, samples and shop drawings 
combined to equal not more than 3%. 

 
10.1.6.2.3.3 Bonds and insurance combined to equal not 
more than 2%. 

 
10.1.6.2.3.4 Closeout documentation shall have a value 
in the preliminary schedule of not less than 3%. 

 
10.1.6.2.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Contract 
Documents to the contrary, payment of Developer's overhead, 
supervision, general conditions costs, and profit, as reflected in 
the Cost Breakdown, shall be paid based on percentage 
complete, with the disbursement of Progress Payments and the 
Final Payment. 

 
10.1.6.2.5 Developer shall certify that the preliminary schedule 
of values as submitted to the District is accurate and reflects the 
costs as developed in preparing Developer’s bid. For example, 
without limiting the foregoing, Developer shall not “front-load” 
the preliminary schedule of values with dollar amounts greater 
than the value of activities performed early in the Project. 

 
10.1.6.2.6 The preliminary schedule of values shall be subject 
to the District's review and approval of the form and content 
thereof. In the event that the District objects to any portion of 
the preliminary schedule of values, the District shall notify 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 33 OF 86  

Developer, in writing, of the District's objection(s) to the 
preliminary schedule of values. Within five (5) calendar days of 
the date of the District's written objection(s), Developer shall 
submit a revised preliminary schedule of values to the District for 
review and approval. The foregoing procedure for the 
preparation, review and approval of the preliminary schedule of 
values shall continue until the District has approved the entirety 
of the preliminary schedule of values. 

 
10.1.6.2.7 Once the preliminary schedule of values is approved 
by the District, this shall become the Schedule of Values. The 
Schedule of Values shall not be thereafter modified or amended 
by Developer without the prior consent and approval of the 
District, which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion 
of the District. 

 
10.1.6.3 Schedule of Values 

 
The Developer shall provide for District review and approval prior to 
commencement of the Work a schedule of values for all of the Work, 
which includes quantities and prices of items aggregating the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price and subdivided into component parts as per 
specifications. The Schedule of Values shall not be modified or amended 
by the Developer without the prior consent and approval of the District, 
which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of the District. 
The District shall have the right at any time to revise the schedule of 
values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule of values does not 
accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 

 
10.1.6.4 Preliminary Schedule of Submittals 

 
A preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, Product 
Data, and Samples submittals. Once approved by District, this shall 
become the Submittal Schedule. All submittals may be reviewed by 
District in an agreed upon District Project Management System at no 
cost and shall be forwarded to the Architect by the date indicated on the 
approved Submittal Schedule, unless an earlier date is necessary to 
maintain the Construction Schedule, in which case those submittals shall 
be forwarded to the District so as not to delay the Construction 
Schedule. Upon request by the District, Developer shall provide an 
electronic copy of all submittals to the District. All submittals shall be 
submitted no later than ninety (90) days after the Notice to Proceed 
with Construction. 

 
10.1.6.5 Safety Plan 

 
Developer’s Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project shall comply 
with the following requirements: 

 
10.1.6.5.1 All applicable requirements of California Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and/or of the 
United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(“OSHA”). 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 34 OF 86  

10.1.6.5.2 All provisions regarding Project safety, including all 
applicable provisions in these Construction Provisions. 

 
10.1.6.5.3 Developer’s Safety Plan shall be in English and in the 
language(s) of Developer’s and its Subcontractors’ employees. 

 
10.1.6.6 Complete Registered Subcontractor List 

 
The name, address, telephone number, facsimile number, California 
State Contractors License number, classification, DIR registration 
number, and monetary value of all Subcontracts of any tier for parties 
furnishing labor, material, or equipment for completion of the Project. 

 
10.2 Monthly Progress Schedule(s) 

 
10.2.1 Developer shall provide Monthly Progress Schedule(s) to the District. A 
Monthly Progress Schedule shall update the approved Construction Schedule or 
the last Monthly Progress Schedule, showing all work completed and to be 
completed as well as updating the Registered Subcontractors List. The monthly 
Progress Schedule shall be sent as noted below and, if also requested by 
District, within the timeframe requested by the District and shall be in a format 
acceptable to the District and contain a written narrative of the progress of 
work that month and any changes, delays, or events that may affect the work. 
The process for District approval of the Monthly Progress Schedule shall be the 
same as the process for approval of the Construction Schedule. 

 
10.2.2 Developer shall submit Monthly Progress Schedule(s) with all payment 
applications. 

 
10.2.3 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 
electronically in a native format (e.g., Microsoft Project or Primavera), approved 
in advance by District. 

 
10.2.4 District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall make 
changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 
resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 

 
10.2.5 District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 
revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule 
of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 

 
10.2.6 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 
rely on them as a basis for payment. District shall use best efforts to approve 
all submittals and schedules on or before fourteen (14) days after presentation 
of the same from Developer, providing there are no extenuating circumstances, 
and no such approval shall be unreasonably withheld by District. 

 
10.3 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 

 
Developer is required to ensure Material Safety Data Sheets are available in a readily 
accessible place at the Site for any material requiring a Material Safety Data Sheet per 
the federal “Hazard Communication” standard, or employees’ “right to know” law. 
Developer is also required to ensure proper labeling on substances brought onto the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 35 OF 86  

job site and that any person working with the material or within the general area of 
the material is informed of the hazards of the substance and follows proper handling 
and protection procedures. Two additional copies of the Material Safety Data Sheets 
shall also be submitted directly to the District. 

 
10.4 Submittals 

 
10.4.1 Architect’s favorable review shall neither be construed as a complete 
check nor relieve Developer, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, or 
supplier from responsibility for any deficiency that may exist or from any 
departures or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents 
unless Developer has, in writing, called Architect’s attention to the deviations 
at the time of submission and the Architect has given specific written response. 
“Favorable review” shall mean merely that Architect has no objection to 
Developer using, upon Developer’s own full responsibility, plan or method of 
Work proposed, or furnishing materials or equipment proposed. 

 
11. Site Access, Conditions, And Requirements 

 
11.1 Site Investigation 

 
Developer has made a careful investigation of the Site and is familiar with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and has accepted the readily observable, 
existing conditions of the Site. 

 
11.2 Soils Investigation Report 

 
When a soils investigation report obtained from test holes at Site or for the Project is 
available, that report may be made available to Developer but shall not be a part of 
this Contract but shall not alleviate or excuse Developer’s obligation to perform its own 
investigation. Any information obtained from that report or any information given on 
Drawings as to subsurface soil condition or to elevations of existing grades or 
elevations of underlying rock is approximate only, is not guaranteed, does not form a 
part of this Contract, and Developer may not rely thereon. Developer acknowledges 
that it has made a visual examination of the Site and has made whatever tests 
Developer deems appropriate to determine underground condition of soil. Although 
any such report is not a part of this Contract, recommendations from the report may 
be included in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents. It is 
Developer’s sole responsibility to thoroughly review all Contract Documents, Drawings, 
and Specifications. 

 
11.3 Access to Work 

 
District and its representatives shall at all times have access to Work wherever it is 
in preparation or progress, including storage and fabrication. Developer shall provide 
safe and proper facilities for such access so that District's representatives may 
perform their functions. District shall provide Developer adequate advance notice for 
access to active construction zones such that Developer may provide for safety 
measures to District and representatives. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 36 OF 86  

11.4 Layout and Field Engineering 
 

11.4.1 All field engineering required for layout of this Work and establishing 
grades for earthwork operations shall be furnished by Developer at its expense. 
This Work shall be done by a qualified, California-registered civil engineer or 
licensed land surveyor approved in writing by District and Architect. Any 
required Record and/or As-Built Drawings of Site development shall be 
prepared by the approved civil engineer or licensed land surveyor. 

 
11.4.2 Developer shall be responsible for having ascertained pertinent local 
conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the Site and 
for having satisfied itself as to the conditions under which the Work is to be 
performed. District shall not be liable for any claim for allowances because of 
Developer’s error or negligence in acquainting itself with the conditions at the 
Site. 

 
11.4.3 Developer shall protect and preserve established benchmarks and 
monuments and shall make no changes in locations without the prior written 
approval of District. Developer shall replace any benchmarks or monuments 
that are lost or destroyed subsequent to proper notification of District and with 
District's approval. 

 
11.5 Utilities 

 
Utilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

 
11.6 Sanitary Facilities 

 
Sanitary facilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

 
11.7 Surveys 

 
Developer shall provide surveys done by a California-licensed civil engineer or licensed 
land surveyor to determine locations of construction, grading, and site work as 
required to perform the Work. 

 
11.8 Regional Notification Center 

 
Developer, except in an emergency, shall contact the appropriate regional notification 
center at least two (2) days prior to commencing any excavation if the excavation will 
be conducted in an area or in a private easement that is known, or reasonably should 
be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the underground facilities 
owned or operated by the District, and obtain an inquiry identification number from 
that notification center. No excavation shall be commenced and/or carried out by 
Developer unless an inquiry identification number has been assigned to Developer or 
any Subcontractor and Developer has given the District the identification number. Any 
damages arising from Developer's failure to make appropriate notification shall be at 
the sole risk and expense of Developer. Any delays caused by failure to make 
appropriate notification shall be at the sole risk of Developer and shall not be 
considered for an extension of the Contract Time. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 37 OF 86  

11.9 Existing Utility Lines 
 

11.9.1 Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, District assumes the 
responsibility for removal, relocation, and protection of main or trunk utility 
lines and facilities located on the construction Site at the time of 
commencement of construction under the Contract Documents with respect to 
any such utility facilities that are not identified in the Plans and Specifications. 
Developer shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in completion 
of the Project caused by failure of District or the owner of a utility to provide 
for removal or relocation of such utility facilities. 

 
11.9.2 Locations of existing utilities provided by District shall not be 
considered exact, but approximate within a reasonable margin and shall not 
relieve Developer of its responsibilities to exercise reasonable care and to pay 
all costs of repair due to Developer’s failure to do so. District shall compensate 
Developer for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to the failure of 
Developer to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility 
facilities not indicated in the Plans and Specifications with reasonable accuracy, 
and for equipment necessarily idle during such work. 

 
11.9.3 No provision herein shall be construed to preclude assessment against 
Developer for any other delays in completion of the Work. Nothing in this Article 
shall be deemed to require District to indicate the presence of existing service 
laterals, appurtenances, or other utility lines, within the exception of main or 
trunk utility lines. Whenever the presence of these utilities on the Site of the 
construction Project can be inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, 
such as buildings, meter junction boxes, on or adjacent to the Site of the 
construction. 

 
11.9.4 If Developer, while performing Work under this Contract, discovers 
utility facilities not identified by District in Contract Plans and Specifications, 
Developer shall immediately notify the District and the utility in writing. In the 
event Developer fails to immediately provide notice and subsequently causes 
damage to the utility facilities, the cost of repair for damage to above- 
mentioned visible facilities shall be borne by Developer. 

 
11.10 Notification 

 
Developer understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the purpose for prompt 
notification to the District pursuant to these provisions is to allow the District to 
investigate the condition(s) so that the District shall have the opportunity to decide 
how the District desires to proceed as a result of the condition(s). Accordingly, failure 
of Developer to promptly notify the District in writing, pursuant to these provisions, 
shall constitute Developer's waiver of any claim for damages or delay incurred as a 
result of the condition(s). 

 
11.11 Hazardous Materials 

 
Developer shall comply with all provisions and requirements of the Contract 
Documents related to hazardous materials including, without limitation, Hazardous 
Materials Procedures and Requirements. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 38 OF 86  

11.12 No Signs 
 

Neither Developer nor any other person or entity shall display any signs not required 
by law or the Contract Documents at the Site, fences, trailers, offices, or elsewhere on 
the Site without specific prior written approval of the District. 

 
12. Trenches 

 
12.1 Trenches Greater Than Five Feet 

 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Guaranteed Maximum Price exceeds 
$25,000 and involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in 
depth, Developer shall, in advance of excavation, promptly submit to the District 
and/or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the District or Architect, a 
detailed plan showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving 
ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. 

 
12.2 Excavation Safety 

 
If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Safety 
Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in 
no case shall such plan be less effective than that required by the Safety Orders. No 
excavation of such trench or trenches shall be commenced until said plan has been 
accepted by the District or by the person to whom authority to accept has been 
delegated by the District. 

 
12.3 No Tort Liability of District 

 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability 
upon the District or any of its employees. 

 
12.4 No Excavation without Permits 

 
Developer shall not commence any excavation Work until it has secured all necessary 
permits including the required Cal/OSHA excavation/shoring permit. Any permits shall 
be prominently displayed on the Site prior to the commencement of any excavation. 

 
12.5 Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions 

 
12.5.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, if the Work involves 
digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below 
the Surface, Developer shall promptly, and before the following conditions are 
disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any: 

 
12.5.1.1 Material that Developer believes may be material that is 
hazardous waste, as defined in section 25117 of the Health and Safety 
Code, is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III 
disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law. 

 
12.5.1.2 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing 
from those indicated. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 39 OF 86  

12.5.1.3 Unknown physical conditions at the Project Site of any 
unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered 
and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided 
for in the Contract Documents. 

 
12.5.2 The District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that 
the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause 
a decrease or increase in Developer’s cost of, or the time required for, 
performance of any part of the Work, shall issue a Change Order under the 
procedures described herein. 

 
12.5.3 In the event that a dispute arises between District and Developer 
whether the conditions materially differ or cause a decrease or increase in 
Developer’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, 
Developer shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided 
for by the Contract Documents, but shall proceed with all work to be performed 
under the Contract Documents. Developer shall retain any and all rights 
provided either by the Contract Documents or by law that pertain to the 
resolution of disputes and protests. 

 
13. Insurance and Bonds 

 
13.1 Developer’s Insurance 

 
Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated in the Facilities 
Lease. 

 
13.2 Contract Security – Bonds 

 
13.2.1 Developer shall furnish two surety bonds issued by a California 
admitted surety insurer as follows: 

 
13.2.1.1 Performance Bond 

 
A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 
Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for faithful performance of the 
Contract Documents. 

 
13.2.1.2 Payment Bond 

 
A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for payment of persons 
performing labor and/or furnishing materials in connection with this 
Contract. 

 
13.2.2 Cost of bonds shall be included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

 
13.2.3 All bonds related to this Project shall be in the forms set forth in these 
Contract Documents and shall comply with all requirements of the Contract 
Documents, including, without limitation, the bond forms. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 40 OF 86  

14. Warranty/Guarantee/Indemnity 
 

14.1 Warranty/Guarantee 
 

14.1.1 Developer shall obtain and preserve for the benefit of the District, 
manufacturer’s warranties on materials, fixtures, and equipment incorporated 
into the Work. 

 
14.1.2 In addition to guarantees and warranties required elsewhere, 
Developer shall, and hereby does guarantee and warrant all Work furnished on 
the job against all defects for a period of TWO (2) years after the later of the 
following dates, unless a longer period is provided for in the Contract 
Documents: 

 
14.1.2.1 The acceptance by the District’s governing board of the Work, 
subject to these General Conditions, or 

 
14.1.2.2 The date that commissioning for the Project, if any, was 
completed. 

 
14.1.3 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications, 
Developer shall repair or replace any and all of that Work, together with any 
other Work that may be displaced in so doing, that may prove defective in 
workmanship and/or materials within a TWO (2) year period from date of 
completion as defined above, unless a longer period is provided for in the 
Contract Documents, without expense whatsoever to District. 

 
14.1.4 In the event of failure of Developer and/or Surety to commence and 
pursue with diligence said replacements or repairs within ten (10) days after 
being notified in writing, Developer and Surety hereby acknowledge and agree 
that District is authorized to proceed to have defects repaired and made good 
at expense of Developer and/or Surety who hereby agree to pay costs and 
charges therefore immediately on demand. 

 
14.1.5 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications 
and if in the opinion of District said defective work creates a dangerous 
condition or requires immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss 
to District or to prevent interruption of District operations, District will attempt 
to give the notice required above. If Developer or Surety cannot be contacted 
or neither complies with District's request for correction within a reasonable 
time as determined by District, District may, notwithstanding the above 
provision, proceed to make any and all corrections and/or provide attentions 
the District believes are necessary. The costs of correction or attention shall be 
charged against Developer and Surety of the guarantees or warranties provided 
in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract. 

 
14.1.6 The above provisions do not in any way limit the guarantees or 
warranties on any items for which a longer guarantee or warranty is specified 
or on any items for which a manufacturer gives a guarantee or warranty for a 
longer period. Developer shall furnish to District all appropriate guarantee or 
warranty certificates as indicated in the Specifications or upon request by 
District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 41 OF 86  

14.1.7 Nothing herein shall limit any other rights or remedies available to 
District. 

 
14.2 Indemnity 

 
Developer shall indemnify the District as indicated in the Facilities Lease. 

 
15. Time 

 
15.1 Notice to Proceed with Construction 

 
15.1.1 District may issue a Notice to Proceed with Construction (“NTP 2”) 
within ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award after Guaranteed 
Maximum Price. Once Developer has received the Notice to Proceed with 
Construction, Developer shall complete the Work within the period of time 
indicated in the Contract Documents. 

 
15.1.2 In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to 
Proceed with Construction beyond ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice 
of Award after Guaranteed Maximum Price, it is expressly understood that with 
reasonable notice to Developer, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to 
Proceed with Construction. It is further expressly understood by Developer that 
Developer shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as a 
result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed with 
Construction. 

 
15.1.3 If Developer believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to 
Proceed with Construction will cause a hardship to Developer, Developer may 
terminate the Contract. Developer’s termination due to a postponement shall 
be by written notice to District within ten (10) days after receipt by Developer 
of District's notice of postponement. It is further understood by Developer that 
in the event that Developer terminates the Contract as a result of 
postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay 
Developer for the Work that Developer had performed at the time of notification 
of postponement. 

 
15.2 Computation of Time / Adverse Weather 

 
15.2.1 Developer will only be allowed a time extension for Adverse Weather 
conditions if requested by Developer in compliance with the time extension 
request procedures herein and only if all of the following conditions are met: 

 
15.2.1.1 The weather conditions constitute Adverse Weather, as 
defined herein; 

 
15.2.1.2 Developer can verify that the Adverse Weather caused delays 
in excess of five (5) hours of the indicated labor required to complete 
the scheduled tasks of Work on the day affected by the Adverse 
Weather; 

 
15.2.1.3 Developer’s crew is dismissed as a result of the Adverse 
Weather; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 42 OF 86  

15.2.1.4 Said delay adversely affect the critical path in the 
Construction Schedule; and 

 
15.2.2 The number of days of Adverse Weather exceeds the following 
parameters: 

 
January 7 July 0 
February 6 August 0 
March 7 September 0 
April 4 October 2 
May 2 November 5 
June 0 December 7 

 

15.2.3 If the aforementioned conditions are met, a non-compensable day-for- 
day extension will only be allowed for those days in excess of those indicated 
herein. 

 
15.2.4 Developer shall work seven (7) days per week, if necessary, 
irrespective of inclement weather, to maintain access and the Construction 
Schedule, and to protect the Work under construction from the effects of 
Adverse Weather, all at no further cost to the District. 

 
15.2.5 The Contract Time has been determined with consideration given to the 
average climate weather conditions prevailing in the County in which the 
Project is located. 

 
15.3 Hours of Work 

 
15.3.1 Sufficient Forces 

 
Developer and Subcontractors shall continuously furnish sufficient and 
competent work forces with the required levels of familiarity with the Project 
and skill, training and experience to ensure the prosecution of the Work in 
accordance with the Construction Schedule. 

 
15.3.2 Performance During Working Hours 

 
Work shall be performed during regular working hours as permitted by the 
appropriate governmental agency except that in the event of an emergency, or 
when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, Work 
may be performed outside of regular working hours with the advance written 
consent of the District and approval of any required governmental agencies. 

 
15.3.3 No Work during State Testing 

 
Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 
coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, 
not performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or 
Federally-required tests. The District or District’s Representative will provide 
Developer with a schedule of test dates concurrent with the District’s issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed with Construction, or as soon as test dates are made 
available to the District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 43 OF 86  

15.4 Progress and Completion 
 

15.4.1 Time of the Essence 
 

Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence to the Contract 
Documents. By executing the Facilities Lease, Developer confirms that the 
Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 

 
15.4.2 No Commencement Without Insurance or Bonds 

 
Developer shall not commence operations on the Project or elsewhere prior to 
the effective date of insurance and bonds. The date of commencement of the 
Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such insurance or bonds. If 
Developer commences Work without insurance and bonds, all Work is 
performed at Developer’s peril and shall not be compensable until and unless 
Developer secures bonds and insurance pursuant to the terms of the Contract 
Documents and subject to District claim for damages. 

 
15.5 Schedule 

 
Developer shall provide to District, Construction Manager, and Architect a schedule in 
conformance with the Contract Documents and as required in these Construction 
Provisions. 

 
15.6 Expeditious Completion 

 
Developer shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve 
Completion within the Contract Time. 

 
16. Extensions of Time – Liquidated Damages, Excusable Delays 

 
16.1 Liquidated Damages 

 
Developer and District hereby agree that the exact amount of damages for failure to 
complete the Work within the time specified is extremely difficult or impossible to 
determine. If the Work is not completed within the time specified in the Contract 
Documents, it is understood that the District will suffer damage. It being impractical 
and unfeasible to determine the amount of actual damage, it is agreed Developer shall 
pay to District as fixed and liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount set 
forth in the Facilities Lease for each calendar day of delay in Completion. Developer 
and its Surety shall be liable for the amount thereof pursuant to Government Code 
section 53069.85. 

 
16.2 Excusable Delay 

 
16.2.1 Developer shall not be charged for liquidated damages because of any 
delays in completion of the Work which are not the fault of Developer or its 
Subcontractors, including without limitation acts of God as defined in Public 
Contract Code section 7105, acts of enemy, epidemics, and quarantine 
restrictions. Developer shall, within five (5) calendar days of beginning of any 
delay, notify District in writing of causes of delay including documentation and 
facts explaining the delay and the direct correlation between the cause and 
effect (“Notice of Delay”). If Developer fails to provide its written Notice of 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 44 OF 86  

Delay within this timeframe, Developer waives, releases, and discharges any 
right to assert or claim any entitlement to an adjustment to the Contract Price 
and/or the Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the asserted 
delay. District shall review the facts and extent of any delay and shall grant 
extension(s) of time for completing Work when, in its judgment, the findings of 
fact justify an extension. Extension(s) of time shall apply only to that portion 
of Work affected by delay, and shall not apply to other portions of Work not so 
affected. An extension of time may only be granted if Developer has timely 
submitted the Construction Schedule as required herein. 

 
16.2.2 Developer’s Notice of Delay and request for a time extension pursuant 
to subparagraph 16.2 is a condition precedent to Developer’s submittal of 
and/or entitlement to a claim pursuant to Article 25 of these Construction 
Provisions. Developer shall notify the District pursuant to the claims provisions 
in these Construction Provisions of any anticipated delay and its cause. 
Following submission of a claim, the District may determine whether the delay 
is to be considered avoidable or unavoidable, how long it continues, and to 
what extent the prosecution and completion of the Work might be delayed 
thereby. 

 
16.2.3 In the event Developer requests an extension of Contract Time for 
unavoidable delay as set forth in subparagraph 16.2.1, such request shall be 
submitted in accordance with the provisions in the Contract Documents 
governing changes in Work, including without limitation, the time requirements 
set forth in subsection 17.5, below. When requesting time, requests must be 
submitted with full justification and documentation. If Developer fails to submit 
justification, it waives its right to a time extension at a later date. Such 
justification must be based on the official Construction Schedule as updated at 
the time of occurrence of the delay or execution of Work related to any changes 
to the Scope of Work. Any request for a time extension must include the 
following information as support, without limitation: 

 
16.2.3.1 The duration of the activity relating to the changes in the 
Work and the resources (manpower, equipment, material, etc.) required 
to perform the activities within the stated duration. 

 
16.2.3.2 Specific logical ties to the Contract Schedule for the proposed 
changes and/or delay showing the activity/activities in the Construction 
Schedule that are affected by the change and/or delay. In particular, 
Developer must show an actual impact to the schedule, after making a 
good faith effort to mitigate the delay by rescheduling the work, by 
providing an analysis of the schedule (“Time Impact Analysis”). Such 
Time Impact Analysis shall describe in detail the cause and effect of the 
delay and the impact on the critical dates in the Project schedule. (This 
information must be provided for any portion of any delay of seven (7) 
days or more.) 

 
16.2.3.3 A recovery schedule must be submitted within twenty (20) 
calendar days of written notification to the District of causes of delay. 

 
16.2.4 Developer must comply with requirements in subsection 16.2 for a 
Notice of Delay and supporting justification notwithstanding Developer 
contends the specific delay period is unknown and continuing. When submitting 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 45 OF 86  

a Notice of Delay and supporting justification, Developer must provide an 
estimated delay duration to critical path activities at the time the Notice of 
Delay and supporting justification is required to be submitted. If Developer 
contends the delaying event(s) are continuing, Developer must update monthly 
the estimated delay period with supporting justification. 

 
16.2.5 Developer’s failure to timely submit a written Notice of Delay and/or 
provide the justification required in subparagraph 16.2 shall constitute 
Developer’s waiver of any right to later submit a Proposed Change Order or 
pursue a Claim on the circumstances giving rise to the request, or to later 
pursue any additional money or time extensions in any manner related to that 
issue, regardless of the merits. Developer will not have satisfied a condition 
precedent or exhausted administrative remedies required to show entitlement 
to a Contract Time adjustment. Developer acknowledges that these written 
notices and justification requirements are critically important to District’s Work, 
Project management, and evaluating potential options and alternatives to 
implement mitigation efforts to reduce or eliminate additional Project costs and 
delays. 

 
16.3 No Additional Compensation for Delays within Developer’s Control 

 
16.3.1 Developer is aware that governmental agencies and utilities, including, 
without limitation, the Division of the State Architect, the Department of 
General Services, gas companies, electrical utility companies, water districts, 
and other agencies may have to approve Developer-prepared drawings or 
approve a proposed installation. Accordingly, Developer has included in the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price, time for possible review of its drawings and for 
reasonable delays and damages that may be caused by such agencies, including 
without limitation delays due to California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
compliance. Thus, Developer is not entitled to make a claim for damages for 
delays arising from the review of Developer’s drawings. 

 
16.3.2 Developer shall only be entitled to compensation for delay when all of 
the following conditions are met: 

 
16.3.2.1 The District is responsible for the delay; 

 
16.3.2.2 The delay is unreasonable under the circumstances involved; 

 
16.3.2.3 The delay was not within the contemplation of the District 
and Developer; 

 
16.3.2.4 The delay could not have been avoided or mitigated by 
reasonable diligence; and 

 
16.3.2.5 Developer timely complies with the claims procedure of the 
Contract Documents. 

 
16.3.3 Where a change in the Work extends the Contract Time, Developer may 
request and recover additional, actual direct costs, provided that Developer can 
demonstrate such additional costs are: 

 
16.3.3.1 Actually incurred performing the Work; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 46 OF 86  

16.3.3.2 Not compensated by the Markup allowed; and 
 

16.3.3.3 Directly result from the extended Contract Time. 
 

16.3.4 Contractor shall comply with all required procedures, documentation 
and time requirements in the Contract Documents. Contractor may not seek or 
recover such costs using formulas (e.g. Eichleay, labor factors). 

 
16.4 Float or Slack in the Schedule 

 
Float or slack is the amount of time between the early start date and the late start 
date, or the early finish date and the late finish date, of any of the activities in the 
schedule. Float or slack is not for the exclusive use of or benefit of either the District 
or Developer, but its use shall be determined solely by the District. 

 
17. Changes in the Work 

 
17.1 No Changes without Prior Authorization 

 
17.1.1 There shall be no change whatsoever in the Drawings, Specifications, 
or in the Work without an executed Change Order or a written Construction 
Change Directive authorized by the District as herein provided. District shall 
not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, 
additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless 
the District's governing board has authorized the same and the cost thereof 
has been approved in writing by Change Order or Construction Change Directive 
in advance of the changed Work being performed. No extension of time for 
performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder unless a request for such 
extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such time 
duly adjusted and approved in writing in the Change Order or Construction 
Change Directive. The provisions of the Contract Documents shall apply to all 
such changes, additions, and omissions with the same effect as if originally 
embodied in the Drawings and Specifications. 

 
17.1.2 Developer shall perform immediately all work that has been authorized 
by a fully executed Change Order or Construction Change Directive. Developer 
shall be fully responsible for any and all delays and/or expenses caused by 
Developer's failure to expeditiously perform this Work. 

 
17.1.3 Should any Change Order result in an increase in the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price or extend the Contract Time, the cost of or length of extension 
in that Change Order shall be agreed to, in writing, by the District in advance 
of the work by Developer. In the event that Developer proceeds with any 
change in Work without a Change Order executed by the District or 
Construction Change Directive, Developer waives any claim of additional 
compensation or time for that additional work. Under no circumstances shall 
Developer be entitled to any claim of additional compensation or time not 
expressly requested by Developer in a Proposed Change Order or approved by 
District in an executed Change Order. 

 
17.1.4 A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 
effective when approved by the Board, notwithstanding that Developer has 
not signed it. A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 47 OF 86  

effective without Developer’s signature provided District indicates it as a 
“Unilateral Change Order”. Any dispute as to the adjustment in the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, if any, of the Unilateral Change 
Order shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 
provisions herein. 

 
17.1.5 Developer understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the reason for 
District authorization is so that District may have an opportunity to analyze the 
Work and decide whether the District shall proceed with the Change Order or 
alter the Project so that a change in Work becomes unnecessary. 

 
17.2 Architect Authority 

 
The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any 
adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, or an extension of the Contract Time, 
or a change that is inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. These 
changes shall be effected by written Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or 
by Architect’s response(s) to RFI(s), or by Architect’s Supplemental Instructions 
(“ASI”). 

 
17.3 Change Orders 

 
17.3.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared and issued by the 
District and/or the Architect and signed by the District (as authorized by the 
District’s Board of Education), Developer, the Architect, and approved by the 
Project Inspector (if necessary) and DSA (if necessary), stating their agreement 
regarding all of the following: 

 
17.3.1.1 A description of a change in the Work. 

 
17.3.1.2 The amount of the adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price, if any; and 

 
17.3.1.3 The extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any. 

 
17.4 Proposed Change Order 

 
17.4.1 Definition of Proposed Change Order 

 
A Proposed Change Order (“PCO”) is a written request prepared by the 
Developer requesting that the District and the Architect issue a Change Order 
based upon a proposed change to the Work, to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
and/or to the Contract Time. 

 
17.4.2 Changes in Guaranteed Maximum Price 

 
A PCO shall include breakdowns and backup documentation pursuant to the 
provisions herein and sufficient, in the District’s judgment, to validate any 
change in Guaranteed Maximum Price. In no case shall Developer or any of its 
Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional compensation for 
Change Order Work. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 48 OF 86  

17.4.3 Changes in Time 
 

A PCO shall also include any changes in time required to complete the Project. 
Any additional time requested shall not be the number of days to make the 
proposed change, but must be based upon the impact to the critical path in the 
Construction Schedule as defined in the Contract Documents. Developer shall 
justify the proposed change in time by submittal of a schedule analysis that 
accurately shows the actual impact, if known, or the estimated impact if 
unknown, of the change on the critical path of the Construction Schedule (“Time 
Impact Analysis”). If Developer fails to request a time extension in a PCO, 
including the Time Impact Analysis, and/or fails to comply with these 
Construction Provisions including, without limitation, Articles 15, 16, or 17, then 
Developer is thereafter precluded from requesting, and waives any right to 
request, an adjustment to the Contract Time or Contract Price relating to the 
subject matter of the PCO. In no case shall Developer or any of its 
Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional time for Change 
Order Work. A PCO that leaves the amount of time requested blank, or states 
that such time requested is “to be determined,” or otherwise not specifically 
identified, is not permitted and shall also constitute a waiver of any right to 
request additional time and/or claim a delay. 

 
17.4.4 Unknown and/or Unforeseen Conditions 

 
If there is an Allowance, then Developer must submit a Request for Allowance 
Expenditure Directive, including supporting documentation as described below, 
to receive authorization for the release of funds from the Allowance. Allowance 
Expenditure Directives shall be based on Developer’s costs, without overhead 
and profit, for products, delivery, installation, labor, insurance, payroll, taxes, 
bonding and equipment rental will be included in Allowance Expenditure 
Directive authorizing expenditure of funds from this Allowance. No overhead 
and profit shall be added to the Allowance Expenditure Directive. If cost of the 
unforeseen condition(s) exceed the Allowance, and Developer submits a PCO 
for amounts in excess of the Allowance requesting an increase in Guaranteed 
Maximum Price and/or Contract Time that is based at least partially on 
Developer’s assertion that Developer has encountered unknown and/or 
unforeseen condition(s) on the Project, then Developer shall base the PCO on 
provable information that, beyond a reasonable doubt and to the District’s 
satisfaction, demonstrates that the unknown and/or unforeseen condition(s) 
were actually unknown and/or unforeseen. If not, the District shall deny the 
PCO as unsubstantiated, and Developer shall complete the Project without any 
increase in Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time based on that 
PCO. 

 
17.4.5 Time to Submit Proposed Change Order 

 
Developer shall submit its PCO within five (5) working days of the date 
Developer discovers, or reasonably should have discovered, the circumstances 
giving rise to the PCO, unless additional time to submit a PCO is granted in 
writing by the District. Time is of the essence in Developer’s submission of PCOs 
so that the District can promptly investigate the basis for the PCO. Accordingly, 
if Developer fails to submit its PCO within this timeframe, Developer waives, 
releases, and discharges any right to assert or claim any 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 49 OF 86  

entitlement to an adjustment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or 
Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the PCO. 

 
17.4.6 Proposed Change Order Certification 

 
In submitting a PCO, Developer certifies and affirms that the cost and/or time 
request is submitted in good faith, that the cost and/or time request is accurate 
and in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, and 
Developer submits the cost and/or request for extension of time recognizing 
the significant civil penalties and treble damages which follow from making a 
false claim or presenting a false claim under Government Code section 12650 
et seq. 

 
It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 
includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, 
resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 
to the Project including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Developer is 
not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs. 
Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 
waived. 

 
17.5 Format for Proposed Change Order 

 
17.5.1 The following format shall be used as applicable by the District and 
Developer (e.g. Change Orders, PCOs) to communicate proposed additions 
and/or deductions to the Contract, supported by attached documentation. Any 
spaces left blank will be deemed no change to cost or time. 

 
 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach suppliers’ invoice or itemized quantity 
and unit cost plus sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 
Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 
labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 
etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Subtotal   

(e) Add Overhead and Profit for any and all tiers of 
Subcontractors, the total not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of Item (d) 

  

(f) Subtotal   

(g) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 
(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(h) Subtotal   

(i) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 
exceed  percent (  %) of Item (h) 

  

(j) Subtotal   

(k) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    
percent (  %) of Item (j) 

  

(l) TOTAL   
    

(m) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted)    Calendar Days 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 50 OF 86  

 
 WORK PERFORMED BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus 
sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 
Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 
labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 
etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 
(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(e) Subtotal   

(f) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 
exceed  percent (  %) of Item (e) 

  

(g) Subtotal   

(h) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    
percent (  %) of Item (g) 

  

(i) TOTAL   
   

(j) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted)    Calendar Days 
 

17.5.2 Labor 
 

Developer shall be compensated for the costs of labor actually and directly 
utilized in the performance of the Work. Such labor costs shall be the actual 
cost, use of any formulas (e.g. labor factors) is not allowed, not to exceed 
prevailing wage rates in the locality of the Site and shall be in the labor 
classification(s) necessary for the performance of the Work, fully Burdened. 
Labor costs shall exclude costs incurred by the Developer in preparing 
estimate(s) of the costs of the change in the Work, in the maintenance of 
records relating to the costs of the change in the Work, coordination and 
assembly of materials and information relating to the change in the Work or 
performance thereof, or the supervision and other overhead and general 
conditions costs associated with the change in the Work or performance 
thereof, including but not limited to the cost for the job superintendent. If 
applicable, District will pay Developer the reasonable costs for room and board, 
supported with appropriate backup documentation, without markup for profit 
or overhead as provided by U.S. General Services Administration per diem rates 
for California lodging, meals and incidentals, https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan- 
book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup. 

 
17.5.3 Materials 

 
Developer shall be compensated for the costs of materials necessarily and 
actually used or consumed in connection with the performance of the change 
in the Work. Costs of materials may include reasonable costs of transportation 
from a source closest to the Site of the Work and delivery to the Site. If 
discounts by material suppliers are available for materials necessarily used in 
the performance of the change in the Work, they shall be credited to the 
District. If materials necessarily used in the performance of the change in the 
Work are obtained from a supplier or source owned in whole or in part by 
Developer, compensation therefor shall not exceed the current wholesale price 

https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 51 OF 86  

for such materials. If, in the reasonable opinion of the District, the costs 
asserted by Developer for materials in connection with any change in the Work 
are excessive, or if Developer fails to provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 
costs of such materials from its supplier or vendor of the same, the costs of 
such materials and the District’s obligation to pay for the same shall be limited 
to the then lowest wholesale price at which similar materials are available in 
the quantities required to perform the change in the Work. The District may 
elect to furnish materials for the change in the Work, in which event Developer 
shall not be compensated for the costs of furnishing such materials or any 
mark-up thereon. 

 
17.5.4 Equipment 

 
As a precondition to the District’s duty to pay for Equipment rental or loading 
and transportation, Developer shall provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 
costs of Equipment from the supplier, vendor or rental agency of same. 
Developer shall be compensated for the actual cost of the necessary and direct 
use of Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work. Use of 
Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work shall be compensated 
in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. Rental time for Equipment moved by its 
own power shall include time required to move the Equipment to the site of the 
Work from the nearest available rental source of the same. If Equipment is not 
moved to the Site by its own power, Developer will be compensated for the 
loading and transportation costs in lieu of rental time. The foregoing 
notwithstanding, neither moving time or loading and transportation time shall 
be allowed if the Equipment is used for performance of any portion of the Work 
other than the change in the Work. Unless prior approval in writing is obtained 
by Developer from the Architect, the Project Inspector, the Construction 
Manager and the District, no costs or compensation shall be allowed for time 
while Construction Equipment is inoperative, idle or on standby, for any reason. 
Developer shall not be entitled to an allowance or any other compensation for 
Equipment or tools used in the performance of a change in the Work where the 
Equipment or tools have a replacement value of $500.00 or less. Equipment 
costs claimed by Developer in connection with the performance of any Work 
shall not exceed rental rates established by distributors or construction 
equipment rental agencies in the locality of the Site; any costs asserted which 
exceed such rental rates shall not be allowed or paid. Unless otherwise 
specifically approved in writing by the Architect, the Project Inspector, 
Construction Manager and the District, the allowable rate for the use of 
Equipment in connection with the Work shall constitute full compensation to 
Developer for the cost of rental, fuel, power, oil, lubrication, supplies, necessary 
attachments, repairs or maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, 
insurance, labor (exclusive of labor costs of the Equipment operator), and any 
and all other costs incurred by Developer incidental to the use of the Equipment. 

 
17.5.5 General Conditions Cost. 

 
The phrase “General Conditions Cost” shall mean, other than expressly limited 
or excluded herein, the costs of Developer during the construction phase, 
including but not limited to: payroll costs for project manager for Work 
conducted at the Site, payroll costs for the superintendent and full-time general 
foremen, workers not included as direct labor costs engaged in support 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 52 OF 86  

functions (e.g., loading/unloading, clean-up), costs of offices and temporary 
facilities including office materials, office supplies, office equipment, minor 
expenses, utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the Site, 
costs of consultants not in the direct employ of Developer or Subcontractors, 
and fees for permits and licenses. 

 
17.5.6 Overhead and Profit. 

 
The phrase “Overhead and Profit” shall include field and office supervisors and 
assistants, watchperson, use of small tools, consumable, insurance other than 
construction bonds and insurance required herein, and general conditions, field 
and home office expenses. 

 
17.6 Change Order Certification 

 
17.6.1 All Change Orders and PCOs must include the following certification by 
Developer, either in the form specifically or incorporated by this reference: 

 
The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, 
and to the Guaranteed Maximum Price specified for each item and as to the 
extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire Work as stated 
herein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, and service, and perform all 
work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 
stated herein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 
Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a 
violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 
12650 et seq. and U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. § 1001. It is understood that 
the changes herein to the Contract Documents shall only be effective when 
approved by the governing board of the District. 

 
It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 
includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, 
resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 
to the Project, including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Developer is 
not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs. 
Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 
waived. 

 
17.6.2 Accord and Satisfaction: Developer’s execution of any Change Order 
shall constitute a full accord and satisfaction, and release, of all Developer (and 
if applicable, Subcontractor) claims for additional time, money or other relief 
arising from or relating to the subject matter of the change including, without 
limitation, impacts of all types, cumulative impacts, inefficiency, overtime, 
delay and any other type of claim. 

 
17.7 Determination of Change Order Cost 

 
17.7.1 The amount of the increase or decrease in the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price from a Change Order, if any, shall be determined in one or more of the 
following ways as applicable to a specific situation and at the District’s 
discretion: 

 
17.7.1.1 District acceptance of a COR or PCO. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 53 OF 86  

17.7.1.2 By amounts contained in Developer’s schedule of values, if 
applicable. 

 
17.7.1.3 By agreement between District and Developer. 

 
17.8 Deductive Change Orders 

 
All deductive Change Order(s) must be prepared pursuant to the provisions herein. 
Where a portion of the Work is deleted from the Contract, the reasonable value of the 
deleted work less the value of any new work performed shall be considered the 
appropriate deduction. The value submitted on the Schedule of Values shall be used 
to calculate the credit amount unless the bid documentation is being held in escrow as 
part of the Contract Documents. Unit Prices, if any, may be used in District’s discretion 
in calculating reasonable value. If Developer offers a proposed amount for a deductive 
Change Order(s) for work performed, Developer shall include a credit for total profit 
and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work with the Change 
Order(s). If Subcontractor work is involved, Subcontractors shall also include a credit 
for total profit and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work 
with the Change Order(s). Any deviation from this provision shall not be allowed. 

 
17.9 Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s) 

 
If Developer’s Proposal includes proposal(s) for Alternate Bid Item(s), during 
Developer’s performance of the Work, the District may elect to add or delete any such 
Alternate Bid Item(s) if not included in the Contract at the time the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price is agreed upon. If the District elects to add or delete Alternate Bid 
Item(s) after Contract award, the cost or credit for such Alternate Bid Item(s) shall be 
as set forth in the Proposal unless the parties agree to a different price and the Contract 
Time shall be adjusted by the number of days allocated in the Contract Documents. If 
days are not allocated in the Contract Documents, the Contract Time shall be equitably 
adjusted. 

 
17.10 Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds 

 
For purposes of determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to 
the Work hereunder, all trade discounts, rebates, refunds, and all returns from the 
sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue and be credited to Developer, 
Developer shall make provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns 
may be secured, and the amount thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of Developer’s 
cost in determining the actual cost of construction for purposes of any change, 
addition, or omission in the Work as provided herein. 

 
17.11 Construction Change Directives 

 
17.11.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared and 
issued by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and 
signed by the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. The 
District may, as provided by law, by Construction Change Directive and without 
invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work consisting of additions, 
deletions, or other revisions. The adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
or Contract Time, if any, is subject to the provision of this section regarding 
Changes in the Work. If all or a portion of the Project is being funded by funds 
requiring approval by the State Allocation Board (“SAB”), these 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 54 OF 86  

revisions may be subject to compensation once approval of same is received 
and funded by the SAB, and funds are released by the Office of Public School 
Construction (“OPSC”). Any dispute as to the adjustment of the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, if any, of the Construction Change Directive or timing of 
payment shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 
provisions herein. 

 
17.11.2 The District may issue a Construction Change Directive in the absence 
of agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 

 
17.12 Force Account Directives 

 
17.12.1 When work, for which a definite price has not been agreed upon in 
advance, is to be paid for on a force account basis, all direct costs necessarily 
incurred and paid by Developer for labor, material, and equipment used in the 
performance of that Work, shall be subject to the approval of the District and 
compensation will be determined as set forth herein. 

 
17.12.2 District will issue a Force Account Directive to proceed with the Work 
on a force account basis, and a not-to-exceed budget will be established by the 
District. 

 
17.12.3 All requirements regarding direct cost for labor, labor burden, 
material, equipment, and markups on direct costs for overhead and profit 
described in this section shall apply to Force Account Directives. However, the 
District will only pay for actual costs verified in the field by the District or its 
authorized representative(s) on a daily basis. 

 
17.12.4 Developer shall be responsible for all costs related to the 
administration of Force Account Directives. The markup for overheard and profit 
for Developer modifications shall be full compensation to Developer to 
administer Force Account Directives, and Developer shall not be entitled to 
separately recover additional amounts for overhead and/or profit. 

 
17.12.5 Developer shall notify the District or its authorized representative(s) 
at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to proceeding with any of the force account 
work. Furthermore, Developer shall notify the District when it has consumed 
eighty percent (80%) of the budget, and shall not exceed the budget unless 
specifically authorized in writing by the District. Developer will not be 
compensated for force account work in the event that Developer fails to timely 
notify the District regarding the commencement of force account work, or 
exceeding the force account budget. 

 
17.12.6 Developer shall diligently proceed with the work, and on a daily basis, 
submit a daily force account report using the Daily Force Account Report form 
no later than 5:00 p.m. each day. The report shall contain a detailed itemization 
of the daily labor, material, and equipment used on the force account work 
only. The names of the individuals performing the force account work shall be 
included on the daily force account reports. The type and model of equipment 
shall be identified and listed. The IOR or District representative will review the 
information contained in the reports, and sign the reports no later than the next 
work day, and return a copy of the report to Developer for its records. The 
District will not sign, nor will Developer receive compensation 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 55 OF 86  

for, work the District cannot verify. Developer will provide a weekly force 
account summary indicating the status of each Force Account Directive in terms 
of percent complete of the not-to-exceed budget and the estimated percent 
complete of the work 

 
17.12.7 In the event Developer and the District reach a written agreement on 
a set cost for the work while the work is proceeding based on a Force Account 
Directive, Developer’s signed daily force account reports shall be discontinued 
and all previously signed reports shall be invalid. 

 
17.13 Price Request 

 
17.13.1 Definition of Price Request 

 
A Price Request is a written request prepared by the Architect or Construction 
Manager requesting Developer submit to the District, the Construction Manager 
and the Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change in the Work 
on the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Contract Time. 

 
17.13.2 Scope of Price Request 

 
A Price Request shall contain adequate information, including any necessary 
Drawings and Specifications, to enable Developer to provide the cost 
breakdowns required. Developer shall not be entitled to any additional 
compensation for preparing a response to a Price Request, whether ultimately 
accepted or not. 

 
17.14 Accounting Records 

 
With respect to portions of the Work performed by Change Orders and Construction 
Change Directives, Developer shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records 
satisfactory to the District, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports as provided 
in these General Conditions, which shall be available to the District on the same terms 
as any other books and records Developer is required to maintain under the Contract 
Documents. Such records shall include without limitation hourly records for Labor and 
Equipment and itemized records of materials and Equipment used that day in 
connection with the performance of any Work. All records maintained hereunder shall 
be subject to inspection, review and/or reproduction by the District, the Construction 
Manager and the Architect or the Project Inspector upon request. In the event that 
Developer fails or refuses, for any reason, to maintain or make available for inspection, 
review and/or reproduction such records, the District’s determination of the extent of 
adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be final, conclusive, dispositive 
and binding upon Developer. 

 
17.15 Notice Required 

 
If Developer desires to make a claim for an increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
or any extension in the Contract Time for completion, it shall notify the District 
pursuant to the provisions herein, including the Article on Claims and Disputes. No 
claim shall be considered unless made in accordance with this subparagraph. 
Developer shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment may not 
have been agreed upon. Any change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or extension 
of the Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by a Change Order. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 56 OF 86  

17.16 Applicability to Subcontractors 
 

Any requirements under this Article shall be equally applicable to Change Orders or 
Construction Change Directives issued to Subcontractors by Developer to the extent 
required by the Contract Documents. 

 
17.17 Alteration to Change Order Language 

 
Developer shall not alter Change Orders or reserve time in Change Orders. Change 
Orders altered in violation of this provision, if in conflict with the terms set forth herein, 
shall be construed in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Developer shall 
execute finalized Change Orders and proceed under the provisions herein with proper 
notice. 

 
17.18 Failure of Developer to Execute Change Order 

 
Developer shall be in default of the Contract Documents if Developer fails to execute 
a Change Order when Developer agrees with the addition and/or deletion of the Work 
in that Change Order. 

 
18. Requests For Information 

 
18.1 Any Request for Information shall reference all applicable Contract 
Document(s), including Specification section(s), detail(s), page number(s), drawing 
number(s), and sheet number(s), etc. Developer shall make suggestions and 
interpretations of the issue raised by each Request for Information. A Request for 
Information cannot modify the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Contract Time, or the 
Contract Documents. 

 
18.2 Developer may be responsible for any costs incurred for professional services 
that District may deduct from any amounts owing to Developer, if a Request for 
Information requests an interpretation or decision of a matter where the information 
sought is equally available to the party making the request. District may deduct from 
and/or invoice Developer for professional services arising therefrom. 

 
19. Payments 

 
19.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 

 
As compensation for Developer’s construction of the Project, the District shall pay 
Developer pursuant to the terms of Exhibit C to the Facilities Lease. This is the total 
amount payable by the District to Developer for performance of the Work under the 
Contract. 

 
19.2 Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 

 
19.2.1 Procedure for Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 

 
19.2.1.1 Not before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during 
the progress of the Work, Developer shall submit to the District and the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment for operations completed 
in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be on 
a form approved by the District and shall be notarized, if required, and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 57 OF 86  

supported by the following or each portion thereof unless waived by the 
District in writing: 

 
19.2.1.1.1 The amount paid to the date of the Application for 
Payment to Developer, to all its Subcontractors, and all others 
furnishing labor, material, or equipment under the Contract 
Documents. 

 
19.2.1.1.2 The amount being requested under the Application 
for Payment by Developer on its own behalf and separately 
stating the amount requested on behalf of each of the 
Subcontractors and all others furnishing labor, material, and 
equipment under the Contract Documents. 

 
19.2.1.1.3 The balance that will be due to each of such entities 
after said payment is made. 

 
19.2.1.1.4 A certification that the As-Built Drawings and 
annotated Specifications are current. 

 
19.2.1.1.5 Itemized breakdown of work done for the purpose of 
requesting partial payment. 

 
19.2.1.1.6 An updated and acceptable construction schedule in 
conformance with the provisions herein. 

 
19.2.1.1.7 The additions to and subtractions from the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time. 

 
19.2.1.1.8 A total of the retentions held. 

 
19.2.1.1.9 Material invoices, evidence of equipment purchases, 
rentals, and other support and details of cost as the District may 
require from time to time. 

 
19.2.1.1.10 The percentage of completion of Developer’s Work 
by line item. 

 
19.2.1.1.11 Schedule of Values updated from the preceding 
Application for Payment. 

 
19.2.1.1.12 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver 
and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with 
Civil Code section 8132 from Developer and each subcontractor 
of any tier and supplier to be paid from the current Tenant 
Improvement Payment. 

 
19.2.1.1.13 A duly completed and executed unconditional 
waiver and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment 
compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from Developer and each 
subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the 
previous Tenant Improvement Payment submitted 60 days prior; 
and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 58 OF 86  

19.2.1.1.14 A certification by Developer of the following: 
 

Developer warrants title to all Work performed as of the date of 
this payment application and that all such Work has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents for the 
Project. Developer further warrants that all Work performed as 
of the date of this payment application is free and clear of liens, 
claims, security interests, or encumbrances in favor of 
Developer, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, 
workers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason 
of having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to 
the Work, except those of which the District has been informed. 
Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 
Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and 
may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under 
Government Code section 12650 et seq. 

 
19.2.1.1.15 Developer shall be subject to the False Claims Act 
set forth in Government Code section 12650 et seq. for 
information provided with any Application for Tenant 
Improvement Payments. 

 
19.2.1.1.16 All remaining certified payroll records (“CPR(s)”) 
for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 
employed by Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection 
with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment. As 
indicated herein, the District shall not make any payment to 
Developer until: 

 
19.2.1.1.16.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 
provide electronic CPRs directly to the DIR on no less than 
every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 
30 days after the final day of Work performed on the 
Project for any journeyman, apprentice, worker or other 
employee was employed in connection with the Work, or 
within ten (10) days of any request by the District or the 
DIR to the requesting entity; and 

 
19.2.1.1.16.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its 
Subcontractor(s) providing CPRs in a timely manner may 
directly delay Developer’s payment. 

 
19.2.1.1.17 Applications received after June 20th will not be 
paid until the second week of July and applications received after 
December 12th will not be paid until the first week of January. 

 
19.2.2 Prerequisites for Tenant Improvement Payments 

 
19.2.2.1 First Payment Request 

 
The following items, if applicable, must be completed before the District 
will accept and/or process Developer's first payment request: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 59 OF 86  

19.2.2.1.1 Installation of the Project sign. 
 

19.2.2.1.2 Installation of field office. 
 

19.2.2.1.3 Installation of temporary facilities and fencing. 
 

19.2.2.1.4 Schedule of Values. 
 

19.2.2.1.5 Developer’s Preliminary Construction Schedule for 
the first ninety (90) days. 

 
19.2.2.1.6 Schedule of unit prices, if applicable. 

 
19.2.2.1.7 Submittal Schedule. 

 
19.2.2.1.8 Receipt by Architect of all submittals due as of the 
date of the payment application. 

 
19.2.2.1.9 List of Subcontractors, with names, license numbers, 
telephone numbers, and Scope of Work. 

 
19.2.2.1.10 All bonds and insurance endorsements; and 

 
19.2.2.1.11 Resumes of Developer’s project manager, and if 
applicable, job site secretary, record documents recorder, and 
job site superintendent. 

 
19.2.3 Subsequent Payment Requests 

 
The District will not process subsequent payment requests until and unless 
submittals and Shop Drawings necessary to maintain the Project schedule have 
been submitted to the Architect. 

 
19.2.4 No Waiver of Criteria 

 
Any payments made to Developer where criteria set forth herein have not been 
met shall not constitute a waiver of said criteria by District. Instead, such 
payment shall be construed as a good faith effort by District to resolve 
differences so Developer may pay its Subcontractors and suppliers. Developer 
agrees that failure to submit such items may constitute a breach of contract by 
Developer and may subject Developer to termination. 

 
19.3 District’s Approval of Application for Payment 

 
19.3.1 Upon receipt of an Application for Payment, The District shall act in 
accordance with both of the following: 

 
19.3.1.1 Each Application for Payment shall be reviewed by the District 
as soon as practicable after receipt for the purpose of determining that 
the Application for Payment is a proper Application for Payment. 

 
19.3.1.2 Any Application for Payment determined not to be a proper 
Application for Payment suitable for payment shall be returned to 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 60 OF 86  

Developer as soon as practicable, but not later than seven (7) days, 
after receipt. An Application for Payment returned pursuant to this 
paragraph shall be accompanied by a document setting forth in writing 
the reasons why the Application for Payment is not proper. The number 
of days available to the District to make a payment without incurring 
interest pursuant to this section shall be reduced by the number of days 
by which the District exceeds this seven-day return requirement. 

 
19.3.2 An Application for Payment shall be considered properly executed if 
funds are available for payment of the Application for Payment, and payment 
is not delayed due to an audit inquiry by the financial officer of the District. 

 
19.3.3 District’s review of the Developer’s Application for Payment will be 
based on the District’s and the Architect’s observations at the Site and the data 
comprising the Application for Payment that the Work has progressed to the 
point indicated and that, to the best of the District’s and the Architect’s 
knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to: 

 
19.3.3.1 Observation of the Work for general conformance with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
19.3.3.2 Results of subsequent tests and inspections. 

 
19.3.3.3 Minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable 
prior to completion; and 

 
19.3.3.4 Specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 

 
19.3.4 District’s approval of the certified Application for Payment shall be 
based on Developer complying with all requirements for a fully complete and 
valid certified Application for Payment. 

 
19.3.5 Payments to Developer 

 
19.3.5.1 Within thirty (30) days after approval of the Application for 
Payment, Developer shall be paid a sum equal to ninety-five percent 
(95%), of the value of the Tenant Improvement Payment (as verified 
by Architect and Inspector and certified by Developer) up to the last day 
of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments and 
amount to be withheld. The value of the Work completed shall be 
Developer’s best estimate. No inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall 
operate to release Developer, or any Surety upon any bond, from 
damages arising from such Work, or from the District's right to enforce 
each and every provision of the Contract Documents, and the District 
shall have the right subsequently to correct any error made in any 
estimate for payment. 

 
19.3.5.2 Developer may not be entitled to have payment requests 
processed, or may be entitled to have only partial payment made for 
Work performed, so long as any direction given by the District 
concerning the Work, or any portion thereof, remains incomplete. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 61 OF 86  

19.3.6 No Waiver 
 

No payment by District hereunder shall be interpreted so as to imply that 
District has inspected, approved, or accepted any part of the Work. 
Notwithstanding any payment, the District may enforce each and every 
provision of this Contract. The District may correct or require correction of any 
error subsequent to any payment 

 
19.3.7 Warranty of Title 

 
19.3.7.1 If a lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice of any 
nature should at any time be filed against the Work or any District 
property, by any entity that has supplied material or services at the 
request of Developer, Developer and Developer’s Surety shall promptly, 
on demand by District and at Developer’s and Surety’s own expense, 
take any and all action necessary to cause any such lien or a claim based 
on a stop payment notice to be released or discharged immediately 
therefrom. 

 
19.3.7.2 If Developer fails to furnish to the District within ten (10) 
calendar days after demand by the District satisfactory evidence that a 
lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice has been released, 
discharged, or secured, the District may discharge such indebtedness 
and deduct the amount required therefor, together with any and all 
losses, costs, damages, and attorney’s fees and expenses incurred or 
suffered by District from any sum payable to Developer under the 
Contract. 

 
19.4 Decisions to Withhold Payment 

 
19.4.1 Reasons to Withhold Payment 

 
The District shall withhold payment in whole, or in part, as required by statute. 
In addition, the District may withhold payment in whole, or in part, to the extent 
reasonably necessary to protect the District if, in the District's opinion, the 
representations to the District required herein cannot be made. Payment, in 
whole, or in part, will be withheld based on the need to protect the District from 
loss because of, but not limited to, any of the following: 

 
19.4.1.1 Defective Work not remedied within FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours 
of written notice to Developer. 

 
19.4.1.2 Stop Payment Notices or other liens served upon the District 
as a result of the Contract. 

 
19.4.1.3 Failure to comply with the requirements of Public Contract 
Code section 2600 et seq. (“Skilled and Trained Workforce 
Requirements”). 

 

19.4.1.4 Liquidated damages assessed against Developer. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 62 OF 86  

19.4.1.5 Reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the 
unpaid balance of the Guaranteed Maximum Price or by the Contract 
Time. 

 
19.4.1.6 Damage to the District or other contractor(s). 

 
19.4.1.7 Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by Developer. 

 
19.4.1.8 Failure to store and properly secure materials. 

 
19.4.1.9 Failure of Developer to submit, on a timely basis, proper, 
sufficient, and acceptable documentation required by the Contract 
Documents, including, without limitation, a Construction Schedule, 
Schedule of Submittals, Schedule of Values, Monthly Progress 
Schedules, Shop Drawings, Product Data and samples, Proposed 
product lists, executed Change Orders, and/or verified reports. 

 
19.4.1.10 Failure of Developer to maintain As-Built Drawings. 

 
19.4.1.11 Erroneous estimates by Developer of the value of the Work 
performed, or other false statements in an Application for Payment. 

 
19.4.1.12 Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents. 

 
19.4.1.13 Failure of Developer to prosecute the Work in a timely 
manner in compliance with the Construction Schedule, established 
progress schedules, and/or completion dates. 

 
19.4.1.14 Failure to provide acceptable electronic certified payroll 
records, as required by the Labor Code, by these Contract Documents 
or by written request for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other 
employee employed by Developer and/or by each Subcontractor in 
connection with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment 
or if payroll records are delinquent or inadequate. 

 
19.4.1.15 Failure to properly pay prevailing wages as required in Labor 
Code section 1720 et seq., failure to comply with any other Labor Code 
requirements, and/or failure to comply with labor compliance monitoring 
and enforcement by the DIR. 

 
19.4.1.16 Allowing an unregistered subcontractor, as described in 
Labor Code section 1725.5, to engage in the performance of any work 
under this Contract. 

 
19.4.1.17 Failure to comply with any, if applicable federal 
requirements regarding minimum wages, withholding, payrolls and 
basic records, apprentice and trainee employment requirements, equal 
employment opportunity requirements, Copeland Act requirements, 
Davis-Bacon Act and related requirements, Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act requirements. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 63 OF 86  

19.4.1.18 Failure to properly maintain or clean up the Site. 
 

19.4.1.19 Failure to timely indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the 
District. 

 
19.4.1.20 Failure to perform any implementation and/or monitoring 
required by the General Permit, including without limitation any SWPPP 
for the Project and/or the imposition of any penalties or fines therefore 
whether imposed on the District or Developer. 

 
19.4.1.21 Any payments due to the District, including but not limited 
to payments for failed tests, utilities changes, or permits. 

 
19.4.1.22 Failure to pay any royalty, license or similar fees. 

 
19.4.1.23 Failure to pay Subcontractor(s) or supplier(s) as required by 
law and Developer’s subcontract agreement and by the Contract 
Documents; and 

 
19.4.1.24 Developer is otherwise in breach, default, or in substantial 
violation of any provision of the Contract Documents. 

 
19.4.2 Reallocation of Withheld Amounts 

 
19.4.2.1 After prior written notice to Developer with details regarding 
the District’s proposed application of withheld amounts, District may, in 
its discretion, apply any withheld amount to pay outstanding claims or 
obligations as defined herein. In so doing, District shall make such 
payments on behalf of Developer. If any payment is so made by District, 
then that amount shall be considered a payment made under the 
Contract Documents by District to Developer and District shall not be 
liable to Developer for any payment made in good faith. These payments 
may be made without prior judicial determination of claim or obligation. 
District will render Developer an accounting of funds disbursed on behalf 
of Developer. 

 
19.4.2.2 If Developer defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents or fails to perform any 
provision thereof, District may, after FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written 
notice to Developer and opportunity to commence and pursue cure of 
default, and, without prejudice to any other remedy, make good such 
deficiencies. The District shall adjust the total Guaranteed Maximum 
Price by reducing the amount thereof by the cost of making good such 
deficiencies. If District deems it inexpedient to correct Work that is 
damaged, defective, or not done in accordance with the provisions of 
the Contract Documents, an equitable reduction in the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (up to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the 
estimated reasonable value of the nonconforming Work) shall be made 
therefor. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 64 OF 86  

19.4.3 Payment After Cure 
 

When Developer removes the grounds for declining approval, payment shall be 
made for amounts withheld because of them. No interest shall be paid on any 
retainage or amounts withheld due to the failure of Developer to perform in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 
19.5 Subcontractor Payments 

 
19.5.1 Payments to Subcontractors 

 
No later than seven (7) days after receipt of any Tenant Improvement Payment, 
or pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7108.5 and Public 
Contract Code section 7107, Developer shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of 
the amount paid to Developer on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of 
the Work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled. Developer shall, 
by appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor 
to make payments to its Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 

 
19.5.2 No Obligation of District for Subcontractor Payment 

 
The District shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of, money 
to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. 

 
19.5.3 Joint Checks 

 
District shall have the right in its sole discretion, if necessary for the protection 
of the District, to issue joint checks made payable to Developer and 
Subcontractors and/or material or equipment suppliers. The joint check payees 
shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of funds included as 
part of any such joint payment. In no event shall any joint check payment be 
construed to create any contract between the District and a Subcontractor of 
any tier, or a material or equipment supplier, or any obligation from the District 
to such Subcontractor or a material or equipment supplier or rights in such 
Subcontractor against the District. 

 
20. Completion of the Work 

 

20.1 Completion 
 

20.1.1 District will accept completion of Project and have the Notice of 
Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been completed to the 
satisfaction of District. 

 
20.1.2 The Work may only be accepted as complete by action of the governing 
board of the District. 

 
20.1.3 District, at its sole option, may accept completion of Project and have 
the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been 
completed to the satisfaction of District, except for minor corrective items, as 
distinguished from incomplete items. If Developer fails to complete all minor 
corrective items within fifteen (15) days after the date of the District’s 
acceptance of completion, District shall withhold from the final payment one 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 65 OF 86  

hundred fifty percent (150%) of an estimate of the amount sufficient to 
complete the corrective items, as reasonably determined by District, until the 
item(s) are completed. 

 
20.1.4 At the end of the fifteen (15) day period, if there are any items 
remaining to be corrected, District may elect to proceed as provided herein 
related to adjustments to Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or District’s right to 
perform the Work of Developer. 

 
20.2 Close-Out/Certification Procedures 

 
20.2.1 Punch List 

 
Developer shall notify the Architect via the Construction Manager when 
Developer considers the Work complete. Upon notification, Architect will 
prepare a list of minor items to be completed or corrected (“Punch List”). 
Developer and/or its Subcontractors shall proceed promptly to complete and 
correct items on the Punch List. Failure to include an item on Punch List does 
not alter the responsibility of Developer to complete all Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. 

 
20.2.2 Close-Out/Certification Requirements 

 
20.2.2.1 Utility Connections 

 
Buildings shall be connected to water, gas, sewer, electric, phone, and 
internet services, complete and ready for use. Service connections shall 
be made and existing services reconnected. 

 
20.2.2.2 As-Builts/Record Drawings and Record Specifications 

 
20.2.2.2.1 Developer shall provide exact “as-built” drawings of 
the Work upon completion of the Project as indicated in the 
Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 
Specifications (“As-Built Drawings”) as a condition precedent to 
approval of final payment. 

 
20.2.2.2.2 Developer is liable and responsible for any and all 
inaccuracies in the As-Built Drawings, even if inaccuracies 
become evident at a future date. 

 
20.2.2.2.3 Upon completion of the Work and as a condition 
precedent to approval of final payment, Developer shall obtain 
the Inspector’s approval of the corrected prints and deliver the 
same to Architect via the Construction Manager in a form 
acceptable to the Architect as part of closeout. 

 
20.2.2.3 Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable 

 
Developer shall submit to District all electric and hard copy records 
required by the Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable, within 
seven (7) days of Completion of the Project. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 66 OF 86  

20.2.3 Maintenance Manuals 
 

Developer shall prepare all operation and maintenance manuals and date as 
indicated in the Specifications. 

 
20.2.4 Source Programming 

 
Developer shall provide all source programming for all items in the Project. 

 
20.2.5 Verified Reports 

 
Developer shall completely and accurately fill out and file forms DSA 6-C or 
DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the time the Work is 
performed), as appropriate. Refer to section 4-336 and section 4-343 of Part 
1, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
20.3 Final Inspection 

 
20.3.1 Developer shall comply with Punch List procedures as provided herein, 
and maintain the presence of its District-approved project superintendent and 
project manager until the Punch List is complete to ensure proper and timely 
completion of the Punch List. Under no circumstances shall Developer 
demobilize its forces prior to completion of the Punch List without District’s prior 
written approval. Upon receipt of Developer’s written notice to the Construction 
Manager that all of the Punch List items have been fully completed and the 
Work is ready for final inspection and District acceptance, Architect and Project 
Inspector will inspect the Work and shall submit to Developer and District a 
final inspection report noting the Work, if any, required in order to complete in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. Absent unusual circumstances, this 
report shall consist of the Punch List items not yet satisfactorily completed. 

 
20.3.2 Upon Developer’s completion of all items on the Punch List and any 
other uncompleted portions of the Work, Developer shall notify the District and 
Architect, who shall again inspect such Work. If the Architect finds the Work 
complete and acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Architect will 
notify Developer, who shall then jointly submit to the Architect and the District 
its final Application for Payment. 

 
20.3.3 Final Inspection Requirements 

 
20.3.3.1 Before calling for final inspection, Developer shall determine 
that the following have been performed: 

 
20.3.3.1.1 The Work has been completed. 

 
20.3.3.1.2 All life safety items are completed and in working 
order. 

 
20.3.3.1.3 Mechanical and electrical Work, including, without 
limitation,, security system, data, fire alarm, are complete and 
tested, fixtures are in place, connected, and ready for tryout. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 67 OF 86  

20.3.3.1.4 Electrical circuits scheduled in panels and disconnect 
switches labeled. 

 
20.3.3.1.5 Painting and special finishes complete. 

 
20.3.3.1.6 Doors complete with hardware, cleaned of protective 
film, relieved of sticking or binding, and in working order. 

 
20.3.3.1.7 Tops and bottoms of doors sealed. 

 
20.3.3.1.8 Floors waxed and polished as specified. 

 
20.3.3.1.9 Broken glass replaced and glass cleaned. 

 
20.3.3.1.10 Grounds cleared of Developer’s equipment, raked 
clean of debris, and trash removed from Site. 

 
20.3.3.1.11 Work cleaned, free of stains, scratches, and other 
foreign matter, damaged and broken material replaced. 

 
20.3.3.1.12 Finished and decorative work shall have marks, 
dirt, and superfluous labels removed. 

 
20.3.3.1.13 Final cleanup, as provided herein. 

 
20.4 Costs of Multiple Inspections 

 
More than two (2) requests of the District to make a final inspection shall be considered 
an additional service of District, Architect, Construction Manager, and/or Project 
Inspector, and all subsequent costs will be invoiced to Developer and if funds are 
available, withheld from remaining payments. 

 
20.5 Partial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion 

 
20.5.1 District’s Rights to Occupancy 

 
The District may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of 
the Work at any stage, and such occupancy shall not constitute the District’s 
Final Acceptance of any part of the Work. Neither the District’s Final 
Acceptance, the making of Final Payment, any provision in Contract 
Documents, nor the use or occupancy of the Work, in whole or in part, by 
District shall constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents nor relieve Developer or Developer’s Performance Bond Surety from 
liability with respect to any warranties or responsibility for faulty or defective 
Work or materials, equipment and workmanship incorporated therein. The 
District and Developer shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned to 
each of them for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to 
the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the 
commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. Any dispute 
as to responsibilities shall be resolved pursuant to the Claims and Disputes 
provisions herein, with the added provision that during the dispute process, the 
District shall have the right to occupy or use any portion of the Work that it 
needs or desires to use. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 68 OF 86  

20.5.2 Inspection Prior to Occupancy or Use 
 

Immediately prior to partial occupancy or use, the District, Developer, and the 
Architect shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to 
be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 

 
20.5.3 No Waiver 

 
Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial or entire occupancy or use of a portion 
or portions of the Work shall not constitute beneficial occupancy or District’s 
acceptance of the Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents. 

 
21. Final Payment and Retention 

 

21.1 Final Payment 
 

Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment from Developer, the Architect will notify 
the District whether the Work is complete so that joint inspection of the Work can be 
scheduled. Thereafter, the District shall jointly inspect the Work and either accept the 
Work as complete or notify the Architect and Developer in writing of reasons why the 
Work is not complete. Upon District’s acceptance of the Work of Developer as fully 
complete (that, absent unusual circumstances, will occur when the Punch List items 
have been satisfactorily completed), the District shall record a Notice of Completion 
with the County Recorder, and Developer shall, upon receipt of final payment from the 
District, pay the amount due Subcontractors. 

 
21.2 Prerequisites for Final Payment 

 
The following conditions must be fulfilled prior to Final Payment: 

 
21.2.1 A full release of all Stop Payment Notices served in connection with the 
Work shall be submitted by Developer. 

 
21.2.2 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver and release upon 
final payment compliant with Civil Code section 8136 from each subcontractor 
of any tier and supplier to be paid from the final Tenant Improvement Payment. 

 
21.2.3 A duly completed and executed unconditional waiver and release upon 
Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from 
each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the previous 
Tenant Improvement Payment(s). 

 
21.2.4 A duly completed and executed “AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY 
AND ALL CLAIMS” from Developer. 

 
21.2.5 Developer shall have made all corrections to the Work that are required 
to remedy any defects therein, to obtain compliance with the Contract 
Documents or any requirements of applicable codes and ordinances, or to fulfill 
any of the orders or directions of District required under the Contract 
Documents. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 69 OF 86  

21.2.6 Each Subcontractor shall have delivered to Developer all written 
guarantees, warranties, applications, and bonds required by the Contract 
Documents for its portion of the Work. 

 
21.2.7 Developer must have completed all requirements set forth under 
“Close-Out/Certification Procedures,” including, without limitation, submission 
of an approved set of complete Record Drawings. 

 
21.2.8 Architect shall have issued its written approval that final payment can 
be made. 

 
21.2.9 Developer shall have delivered to the District all manuals and materials 
required by the Contract Documents, which must be approved by the District. 

 
21.2.10 Developer shall have completed final clean up as provided herein. 

 
21.3 Retention 

 
21.3.1 The retention, less any amounts disputed by the District or that the 
District has the right to withhold pursuant to provisions herein, shall be paid: 

 
21.3.1.1 After approval by the District of the Architect of the 
Application and Certificate of Payment. 

 
21.3.1.2 After the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein. 

 
21.3.1.3 No less than forty-five (45) days after the recording of the 
Notice of Completion by District; and 

 
21.3.1.4 After receipt of a duly completed and executed unconditional 
waiver and release upon Final Payment compliant with Civil Code section 
8138 from each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid 
from the Final Payment. 

 
21.3.2 No interest shall be paid on any retention, or on any amounts withheld 
due to a failure of Developer to perform, in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents, except as provided to the contrary in 
any Escrow Agreement between the District and Developer pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 22300. 

 
21.4 Substitution of Securities 

 
The District will permit the substitution of securities in accordance with the provisions 
of Public Contract Code section 22300. 

 
22. Uncovering of Work 

 
If a portion of the Work is covered without Inspector or Architect approval or not in compliance 
with the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the District, the Project 
Inspector, or the Architect, be uncovered for the Project Inspector’s or the Architect’s 
observation and be corrected, replaced and/or recovered at Developer’s expense without 
change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 70 OF 86  

23. Nonconforming Work and Correction of Work 
 

23.1 Nonconforming Work 
 

23.1.1 Developer shall promptly remove from Premises all Work identified by 
District as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether incorporated 
or not. Developer shall promptly replace and re-execute its own Work to comply 
with the Contract Documents without additional expense to the District and shall 
bear the expense of making good all work of other contractors destroyed or 
damaged by any removal or replacement pursuant hereto and/or any delays to 
the District or other contractors caused thereby. 

 
23.1.2 If Developer does not commence to remove Work that District has 
identified as failing to conform to the Contract Documents within a reasonable 
time, not to exceed FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours after written notice and complete 
removal of work within a reasonable time, District may remove it and may store 
any material at Developer’s expense. If Developer does not pay expense(s) of 
that removal within ten (10) days’ time thereafter, District may, upon ten (10) 
days’ written notice, sell any material at auction or at private sale and shall 
deduct all costs and expenses incurred by the District and/or District may 
withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 

 
23.2 Correction of Work 

 
23.2.1 Correction of Rejected Work 

 
Pursuant to the notice provisions herein, Developer shall promptly correct the 
Work rejected by the District, the Architect, or the Project Inspector as failing 
to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed 
before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or 
completed. Developer shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, including 
additional testing, inspections, and compensation for the Inspector’s or the 
Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby. 

 
23.2.2 One-Year Warranty Corrections 

 
If, within one (1) year after the date of Completion of the Work or a designated 
portion thereof, or after the date for commencement of warranties established 
hereunder, or by the terms of an applicable special warranty required by the 
Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents, Developer shall correct it promptly 
after receipt of written notice from the District to do so. This period of one (1) 
year shall be extended with respect to portions of the Work first performed 
after Completion by the period of time between Completion and the actual 
performance of the Work. This obligation hereunder shall survive District’s 
acceptance of the Work under the Contract Documents and termination of the 
Contract Documents. The District shall give such notice promptly after 
discovery of the condition. 

 
23.3 District's Right to Perform Work 

 
23.3.1 If Developer should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to 
perform any provisions of the Contract Documents, the District, after providing 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 71 OF 86  

FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written notice and an opportunity to cure the failure, 
to Developer, may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make 
good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then 
or thereafter due Developer. 

 
23.3.2 If it is found at any time, before or after completion of the Work, that 
Developer has varied from the Drawings and/or Specifications, including, but 
not limited to, variation in material, quality, form, or finish, or in the amount 
or value of the materials and labor used, District may require at its option: 

 
23.3.2.1 That all such improper Work be removed, remade or 
replaced, and all work disturbed by these changes be made good by 
Developer at no additional cost to the District. 

 
23.3.2.2 That the District deduct from any amount due Developer the 
sum of money equivalent to the difference in value between the work 
performed and that called for by the Drawings and Specifications; or 

 
23.3.2.3 That the District exercise any other remedy it may have at 
law or under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 
District hiring its own forces or another contractor to replace Developer’s 
nonconforming Work, in which case the District shall either issue a 
deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice 
Developer for the cost of that work. Developer shall pay any invoices 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of same or District may withhold those 
amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 

 
24. Termination And Suspension 

 
The Parties’ rights to terminate the Project are as indicated in the Facilities Lease. In the event 
of a termination of the Facilities Lease and notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract 
Documents, the Surety shall remain liable to all obligees under the Payment Bond and to the 
District under the Performance Bond for any claim related to the Project. 

 
25. Claims Process 

 

25.1 Obligation to File Claims for Disputed Work 
 

25.1.1 Should Developer otherwise seek extra time or compensation for any 
reason whatsoever (“Disputed Work”), then Developer shall first follow 
procedures set forth in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, 
Articles 15, 16 and 17, all of which are conditions precedent to submitting a 
Claim pursuant to Article 25. A Notice of Delay or Proposed Change Order 
are less formal procedures that proceed the formal claim and do not constitute 
a Claim. A Claim also does not include correspondence, RFIs, vouchers, 
invoices, progress payment applications, or other routine or authorized form 
of requests for progress payments in compliance with the Contract. If a 
dispute remains, then Developer shall give written notice to District that 
expressly invokes this Article 25 within the time limits set forth herein. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 72 OF 86  

25.1.2 Developer’s sole and exclusive remedy for Disputed Work is to file a 
written claim setting forth Developer’s position as required herein within the 
time limits set forth herein. 

 
25.2 Duty to Perform during Claim Process 

 
Developer and its subcontractors shall continue to perform its Work under the 
Contract, including the Disputed Work, and shall not cause a delay of the Work during 
any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or arbitration proceeding, except by written 
agreement by the District. 

 
25.3 Definition of Claim 

 
25.3.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the term “Claim” means 
a separate demand by Developer sent by registered mail or certified mail with 
return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 

 
25.3.1.1 A time extension, including without limitation, for relief of 
damages or penalties for delay assessed by the District under the 
Contract; 

 
25.3.1.2 Payment by the District of money or damages arising from 
work done by, or on behalf of, Developer pursuant to the Contract and 
payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which 
Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or 

 
25.3.1.3 An amount of payment disputed by the District. 

 
25.4 Claims Presentation 

 
25.4.1 Form and Contents of Claim 

 
25.4.1.1 If Developer intends to submit a Claim for an increase in the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time for any reason 
including, without limitation, the acts of District or its agents, Developer 
shall, within thirty (30) days after the event giving rise to the Claim, 
give notice of the Claim (“Notice of Potential Claim”) in writing, 
specifically identifying Developer is invoking this Article 25 Claims 
Presentation. The Notice of Potential Claim shall provide Developer’s 
preliminary request for an adjustment to the Contract Price and/or 
Contract Time, with a description of the grounds therefore. 

 
25.4.1.2 Within thirty (30) days after serving the written Notice of 
Potential Claim, Developer shall provide a Claim including an itemized 
statement of the details and amounts of its Claim for any increase in the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, as provided below, 
including a Time Impact Analysis and any and all other documentation 
substantiating Developer’s claimed damages: 

 
25.4.1.2.1 The issues, events, conditions, circumstances and/or 
causes giving rise to the dispute; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 73 OF 86  

25.4.1.2.2 Citation to provisions in the Contract Documents, 
statute sections, and/or case law entitling Developer to an 
increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time; 

 
25.4.1.2.3 The pertinent dates and/or durations and actual 
and/or anticipated effects on the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
Contract Schedule milestones and/or Contract Time 
adjustments; 

 
25.4.1.2.4 The Time Impact Analysis of all time delays that 
shows actual time impact on the critical path; and 

 
25.4.1.2.5 The line-item costs for labor, material, and/or 
equipment, if applicable, for all cost impacts priced like a change 
order according to Article 17 and must be updated monthly as to 
cost and entitlement if a continuing claim. 

 
25.4.1.3 The Claim shall include the following certification by 
Developer: 

 
25.4.1.3.1 The undersigned Developer certifies under penalty of 
perjury that the attached dispute is made in good faith; that the 
supporting data is accurate and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately 
reflects the adjustment for which Developer believes the District 
is liable; and that I am duly authorized to certify the claim on 
behalf of Developer. 

 
25.4.1.3.2 Furthermore, Developer understands that the value 
of the attached dispute expressly includes any and all of 
Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting 
from the Work performed on the Project, additional time required 
on the Project and/or resulting from delay to the Project 
including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Any costs, 
expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 
waived. 

 
25.4.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation and 
submission of a Claim. 

 
25.4.3 Failure to timely submit a Claim and the requisite supporting 
documentation shall constitute a waiver of Developer’s claim(s) against the 
District and Developer’s Claim(s) for compensation or an extension of time shall 
be deemed waived, released, and discharged as to any entitlement for 
adjustment to Contract Price and/or Contract Time. 

 
25.5 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204 

 
Developer may request to waive the claims procedure under Public Contract Code 
section 9204 and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding 
arbitration. If Developer chooses to proceed, Developer shall comply with the following 
steps: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 74 OF 86  

25.5.1 STEP 1: 
 

25.5.1.1 Upon receipt of a Claim by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, including the documents necessary to substantiate it, 
the District shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and, within a 
period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide Developer a written 
statement identifying what portion of the Claim is disputed and what 
portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a Claim, the District and 
Developer may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period to provide 
a written statement. If the District needs approval from its governing 
body to provide Developer a written statement identifying the disputed 
portion and the undisputed portion of the Claim, and the governing body 
does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to 
extension of time following receipt of Claim sent by registered mail or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, the District shall have up to 
three (3) days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the 
governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide 
Developer a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 
undisputed portion. 

 
25.5.1.1.1 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the 
Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the 
District issues its written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely 
manner as required by this section, section 25.4, shall bear 
interest at seven percent (7%) per annum. 

 
25.5.1.2 Upon receipt of a Claim, the parties may mutually agree to 
waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement 
of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable. In this instance, 
District and Developer must comply with the sections below regarding 
Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. and Government Code Claim 
Act Claims. 

 
25.5.1.3 If the District fails to issue a written statement, or to 
otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, this shall result in 
the Claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied 
by reason of the District’s failure to have responded to a claim, or its 
failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not 
constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the claim or 
the responsibility or qualifications of Developer. 

 
25.5.2 STEP 2: 

 
25.5.2.1 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or if the 
District fails to respond to a Claim within the time prescribed, Developer 
may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for 
settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing 
sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the 
District shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for 
settlement of the dispute. Within 10 business days following the 
conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion 
of the claim remains in dispute, the District shall provide Developer a 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 75 OF 86  

written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in 
dispute and the portion that is undisputed. 

 
25.5.2.2 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall 
be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues its 
written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by 
this section, section 25.4, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per 
annum. 

 
25.5.3 STEP 3: 

 
25.5.3.1 Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by Developer 
in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District 
and Developer sharing the associated costs equally. The District and 
Developer shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days 
after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If 
the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 
mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party 
to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party 
shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in 
connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is 
unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject 
to applicable procedures outside this section. 

 
25.5.3.1.1 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any 
nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral 
evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent 
third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution 
through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any 
mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section. 

 
25.5.3.2 Unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Developer in 
writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse 
any further obligation under Public Contract Code section 20104.4 to 
mediate after litigation has been commenced. 

 
25.5.4 STEP 4: 

 
25.5.4.1 If mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 
dispute, the District may, but does not require arbitration of disputes 
under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration 
Program. 

 
25.6 Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims 

 
25.6.1 If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 
assert a claim against a District because privity of contract does not exist, the 
contractor may present to the District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his 
or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that Developer 
present a Claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a 
lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 76 OF 86  

requesting that the Claim be presented to the District shall furnish reasonable 
documentation to support the Claim. 

 
25.6.2 Within 45 days of receipt of this written request from a subcontractor, 
Developer shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether Developer 
presented the Claim to the District and, if Developer did not present the Claim, 
provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done 
so. 

 
25.6.3 Developer shall bind all its Subcontractors to the provisions of this 
section and will hold the District harmless against Claims by Subcontractors. 

 
25.7 Government Code Claim Act Claim 

 
25.7.1 If a Claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction 
of all applicable Claim Resolution requirements, including those pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 9204, Developer shall comply with all claims 
presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 
900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of 
Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to Developer’s right to 
bring a civil action against the District. 

 
25.7.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation, submission 
and administration of a Claim. Any claims presented in accordance with the 
Government Code must affirmatively indicate Developer’s prior compliance with 
the claims procedure herein of the claims asserted. 

 
25.7.3 For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which 
a claim pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104.2 only must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Developer submits its 
written claim pursuant to subdivision (a) until the time that the claim is denied 
as a result of the meet and confer process, including any period of time utilized 
by the meet and confer process. 

 
25.8 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. 

 
25.8.1 In the event of a disagreement between the parties as to performance 
of the Work, the interpretation of this Contract, or payment or nonpayment for 
Work performed or not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve all claims 
of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) or less which arise 
between Developer and District by those procedures set forth in Public Contract 
Code section 20104 et seq., to the extent applicable. 

 
25.8.1.1 Developer shall file with the District any written Claim, 
including the documents necessary to substantiate it, upon the 
application for final payment. 

 
25.8.1.2 For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), the 
District shall respond in writing within forty-five (45) days of receipt of 
the Claim or may request in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
the Claim any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating 
to defenses or claims the District may have against Developer. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 77 OF 86  

25.8.1.2.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 
requested and provided by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
25.8.1.2.2 District's written response to the documented Claim 
shall be submitted to Developer within fifteen (15) days after 
receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time 
no greater than that taken by Developer to produce the 
additional information, whichever is greater. 

 
25.8.1.3 For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) and less 
than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars 
($375,000), the District shall respond in writing to all written Claims 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim any additional 
documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses or claims 
the District may have against Developer. 

 
25.8.1.3.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 
requested and provided upon mutual agreement of the District 
and Developer. 

 
25.8.1.3.2 The District's written response to the claim, as 
further documented, shall be submitted to Developer within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of the further documentation, or 
within a period of time no greater than that taken by Developer 
to produce the additional information or requested 
documentation, whichever is greater. 

 
25.8.1.4 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or the 
District fails to respond within the time prescribed, Developer may so 
notify the District, in writing, either within fifteen (15) days of receipt of 
the District's response or within fifteen (15) days of the District's failure 
to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an 
informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in 
dispute. Upon a demand, the District shall schedule a meet and confer 
conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute. 

 
25.8.1.5 Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 
portion of it remains in dispute, Developer shall file a claim as provided 
in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code. For purposes of those provisions the running of the 
time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time 
Developer submits its written Claim until the time the Claim is denied, 
including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 

 
25.8.1.6 For any civil action filed to resolve claims filed pursuant to 
this section, within sixty (60) days, but no earlier than thirty (30) days, 
following the filing of responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the 
matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of 
both parties. The mediation process shall provide for the selection within 
fifteen (15) days by both parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 78 OF 86  

submittal, and shall be concluded within fifteen (15) days from the 
commencement of the mediation unless a time requirement is extended 
upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both parties. 
If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any 
party may petition the court to appoint the mediator. 

 
25.8.1.7 If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted 
to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 
1141.10) of the Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 
notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code. The Civil Discovery Act, 
(commencing with Section 2016) of Chapter 1 of Title 4 of part 4 of the 
Code of Civil Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under 
this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to judicial 
arbitration. 

 
25.8.1.8 The District shall not fail to pay money as to any portion of a 
Claim which is undisputed except as otherwise provided in the Contract 
Documents. In any suit filed pursuant to this section, the District shall 
pay interest at the legal rate on any arbitration award or judgment. 
Interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of 
law. 

 
25.8.2 Developer shall bind its Subcontractors to the provisions of this Section 
and will hold the District harmless against disputes by Subcontractors. 

 
25.9 Claims Procedure Compliance 

 
25.9.1 Failure to submit and administer claims as required in Article 25 shall 
waive Developer’s right to claim on any specific issues not included in a timely 
submitted claim. Claim(s) not raised in a timely protest and timely claim 
submitted under this Article 25 may not be asserted in any subsequent 
litigation, Government Code Claim, or legal action. 

 
25.9.2 District shall not be deemed to waive any provision under this Article 
25, if at District’s sole discretion, a claim is administered in a manner not in 
accord with this Article 25. Waivers or modifications of this Article 25 may only 
be made by a signed change order approved as to form by legal counsel for 
both District and Developer; oral or implied modifications shall be ineffective. 

 
25.10 Claim Resolution Non-Applicability 

 
25.10.1 The procedures for dispute and claim resolution set forth in this Article 
shall not apply to the following: 

 
25.10.1.1 Personal injury, wrongful death or property damage claims. 

 
25.10.1.2 Latent defect or breach of warranty or guarantee to repair. 

 
25.10.1.3 Stop payment notices. 

 
25.10.1.4 District’s rights set forth in the Article on Suspension and 
Termination. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 79 OF 86  

25.10.1.5 Disputes arising out of labor compliance enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations; or 

 
25.10.1.6 District rights and obligations as a public entity set forth in 
applicable statutes; provided, however, that penalties imposed against 
a public entity by statutes, including, but not limited to, Public Contract 
Code sections 20104.50 and 7107, shall be subject to the Claim 
Resolution requirements provided in this Article. 

 
25.11 Attorney’s Fees 

 
25.11.1 Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of 
this Contract, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection 
expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney’s fees. 

 
26. State Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions 

 
26.1 Labor Compliance and Enforcement 

 
Since this Project is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the Department 
of Industrial Relations (“DIR”), Developer specifically acknowledges and understands 
that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable 
provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code and Title 8 of the 
California Code of Regulations, including, without limitation, the requirement that 
Developer and all Subcontractors shall timely furnish complete and accurate electronic 
certified payroll records directly to the DIR. The District may not issue payment if this 
requirement is not met. 

 
26.2 Wage Rates, Travel, and Subsistence 

 
26.2.1 Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at section 1770), 
Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code of California, the general 
prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday 
and overtime work in the locality in which this public work is to be performed 
for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract 
Documents are on file at the District’s principal office and copies will be made 
available to any interested party on request. Developer shall obtain and post a 
copy of these wage rates at the job site. 

 
26.2.2 Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for at 
a rate of at least one and one-half times the above specified rate of per diem 
wages, unless otherwise specified. The holidays upon which those rates shall 
be paid need not be specified by the District, but shall be all holidays recognized 
in the applicable collective bargaining agreement. If the prevailing rate is not 
based on a collectively bargained rate, the holidays upon which the prevailing 
rate shall be paid shall be as provided in Section 6700 of the Government Code. 

 
26.2.3 Developer shall pay and shall cause to be paid each worker engaged in 
Work on the Project not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 
determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) 
(“Director”), regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to 
exist between Developer or any Subcontractor and such workers. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 80 OF 86  

26.2.4 If, prior to execution of the Facilities Lease, the Director determines 
that there has been a change in any prevailing rate of per diem wages in the 
locality in which the Work under the Contract Documents is to be performed, 
such change shall not alter the wage rates in the Contract Documents 
subsequently awarded. 

 
26.2.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1775, Developer shall, as a penalty, 
forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently two 
hundred dollars ($200) to District for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each worker paid less than the prevailing rates, determined by the District 
and/or the Director, for the work or craft in which that worker is employed for 
any public work done under Contract by Developer or by any Subcontractor 
under it. The difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate, shall be paid to each worker 
by Developer. 

 
26.2.6 Any worker employed to perform Work on the Project, which Work is 
not covered by any classification listed in the general prevailing wage rate of 
per diem wages determined by the Director, shall be paid not less than the 
minimum rate of wages specified therein for the classification which most nearly 
corresponds to Work to be performed by him, and that minimum wage rate 
shall be retroactive to time of initial employment of the person in that 
classification. 

 
26.2.7 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1773.1, per diem wages are deemed to 
include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, travel 
time, subsistence pay, and apprenticeship or other training programs 
authorized by Labor Code section 3093, and similar purposes. 

 
26.2.8 Developer shall post at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project 
Site a schedule showing all determined minimum wage rates and all authorized 
deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned. In addition, Developer 
shall post a sign-in log for all workers and visitors to the Site, a list of all 
Subcontractors of any tier on the Site, and the required Equal Employment 
Opportunity poster(s). 

 
26.3 Hours of Work 

 
26.3.1 As provided in Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 
7, Division 2, of the Labor Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal 
day of work. The time of service of any worker employed at any time by 
Developer or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under the Contract 
Documents upon the Work or upon any part of the Work contemplated by the 
Contract Documents shall be limited and restricted by Developer to eight (8) 
hours per day, and forty (40) hours during any one week, except as hereinafter 
provided. Notwithstanding the provisions hereinabove set forth, Work 
performed by employees of Developer in excess of eight (8) hours per day and 
forty (40) hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon this public work 
upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at 
not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 81 OF 86  

26.3.2 Developer shall keep and shall cause each Subcontractor to keep an 
accurate record showing the name of and actual hours worked each calendar 
day and each calendar week by each worker employed by Developer in 
connection with the Work or any part of the Work contemplated by the Contract 
Documents. The record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the 
inspection of District and to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the 
DIR. 

 
26.3.3 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1813, Developer shall, as a penalty, 
forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently twenty- 
five dollars ($25)) to the District for each worker employed in the execution of 
the Contract Documents by Developer or by any Subcontractor for each 
calendar day during which a worker is required or permitted to work more than 
eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar 
week in violation of the provisions of Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), 
Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code. 

 
26.3.4 Any Work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or 
on Sundays or other holidays shall be performed without additional expense to 
the District. 

 
26.4 Payroll Records 

 
26.4.1 Developer shall upload, and shall cause each Subcontractor performing 
any portion of the Work under this Contract to upload, an accurate and 
complete certified payroll record (“CPR”) electronically using DIR’s eCPR 
System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record 
manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online on a weekly no less 
than every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 30 days after the 
final day of Work performed on the Project and within ten (10) days of any 
request by the District or Labor Commissioner at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public- 
Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html or current application and URL, showing 
the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and 
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid 
to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by 
Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

 

26.4.1.1 The CPRs enumerated hereunder shall be filed directly with 
the DIR on a weekly basis or to the requesting party, whether the 
District or DIR, within ten (10) days after receipt of each written request. 
The CPRs from Developer and each Subcontractor for each week shall 
be provided on or before ten (10) days after the end of the Sunday to 
Saturday conventional week covered by the CPRs. District may not make 
any payment to Developer until: 

 
26.4.1.1.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) provide CPRs 
acceptable to the District and DIR. 

 
26.4.1.1.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 
providing CPRs to the District or DIR in a timely manner may 
directly delay the District’s review and/or audit of the CPRs and 
Developer’s payment. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 82 OF 86  

26.4.2 All CPRs shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the 
principal office of Developer on the following basis: 

 
26.4.2.1 A certified copy of an employee’s CPR shall be made available 
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his/her authorized 
representative on request. 

 
26.4.2.2 CPRs shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon 
request or as required by regulation to a representative of the District, 
Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, Division of Apprenticeship 
Standards, and/or the DIR. 

 
26.4.2.3 CPRs shall be made available upon request by the public for 
inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that a request 
by the public shall be made through the District, Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards 
Enforcement. If the requested CPRs have not been provided pursuant 
to the provisions herein, the requesting party shall, prior to being 
provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by Developer, 
Subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. 
The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal office 
of Developer. 

 
26.4.3 Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and 
furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by District, Division 
of Apprenticeship Standards, Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, or DIR 
shall be mark ed or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an 
individual’s name, address, and social security number. The name and address 
of Developer awarded the Project under the Contract Documents or performing 
under the Contract Documents shall not be marked or obliterated. 

 
26.4.4 Developer shall inform District of the location of the records 
enumerated hereunder, including the street address, city, and county, and 
shall, within five (5) working days of a change in location of the records, provide 
a notice of change of location and address. 

 
26.4.5 In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, 
Developer shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of 
written notice specifying in what respects Developer must comply with this 
section. Should noncompliance still be evident after the ten (10) day period, 
Developer shall, as a penalty, forfeit up to one hundred dollars ($100) to District 
for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict 
compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Labor Commissioner, these 
penalties shall be withheld from Tenant Improvement Payments then due. 

 
26.4.6 As Developer and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the 
terms of the PLA entered into by the District dated November 16, 2017, 
Developer and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs 
electronically using DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic 
XML file or entering each record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current 
form) online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll- 
Reporting.html , or by using a more current application and URL. However, 
within ten (10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner, 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 83 OF 86  

Developer and its subcontractors shall provide CPRs showing the name, 
address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and 
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid 
to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the 
Developer and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

 
26.5 [Reserved] 

 
26.6 Apprentices 

 
26.6.1 Developer acknowledges and agrees that, if the Contract Documents 
involve a dollar amount greater than or a number of working days greater than 
that specified in Labor Code section 1777.5, then this Contract is governed by 
the provisions of Labor Code Section 1777.5 and 29 CFR part 5. It shall be the 
responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this Article and with Labor 
Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeship occupations. 

 
26.6.2 Apprentices of any crafts or trades may be employed and, when 
required by Labor Code section 1777.5, shall be employed provided they are 
properly registered in full compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code. 

 
26.6.3 Every apprentice shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices 
under the regulations of the craft or trade at which he/she is employed, and 
shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which she/he is 
registered. 

 
26.6.4 Only apprentices, as defined in section 3077 of the Labor Code, who 
are in training under apprenticeship standards and written apprentice 
agreements under Chapter 4 (commencing at section 3070), Division 3, of the 
Labor Code, are eligible to be employed. The employment and training of each 
apprentice shall be in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 
standards and apprentice agreements under which he/she is training. 

 
26.6.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 
Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractors employing 
workers in any apprenticeable craft or trade in performing any Work under this 
Contract shall apply to the applicable joint apprenticeship committee for a 
certificate approving Developer or Subcontractor under the applicable 
apprenticeship standards and fixing the ratio of apprentices to journeymen 
employed in performing the Work. 

 
26.6.6 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 
Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractor may be required 
to make contributions to the apprenticeship program. 

 
26.6.7 If Developer or Subcontractor willfully fails to comply with Labor Code 
section 1777.5, then, upon a determination of noncompliance by the 
Administrator of Apprenticeship, it shall: 

 
26.6.7.1 Be denied the right to bid on any subsequent project for one 
(1) year from the date of such determination. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 84 OF 86  

26.6.7.2 Forfeit, as a penalty, to District the full amount stated in 
Labor Code section 1777.7. Interpretation and enforcement of these 
provisions shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the 
California Apprenticeship Council and under the authority of the Chief of 
the Division of Apprenticeship Standards. 

 
26.6.7.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall comply with Labor 
Code section 1777.6, which section forbids certain discriminatory 
practices in the employment of apprentices. 

 
26.6.7.4 Developer shall become fully acquainted with the law 
regarding apprentices prior to commencement of the Work. Special 
attention is directed to sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor 
Code, and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 200 et seq. 
Questions may be directed to the State Division of Apprenticeship 
Standards, 455 Golden Gate Avenue, 9th Floor, San Francisco, California 
94102. 

 
26.7 Reserved 

 
 

26.8 [Reserved] 
 

26.9 Non-Discrimination 
 

26.9.1 Developer herein agrees to comply with the provisions of the California 
Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in Part 2.8 of Division 3 of Title 
2 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the 
Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all 
amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and 
regulations found to be applicable to Developer and Subcontractor. 

 
26.9.2 Special requirements for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts: 
During the performance of the requirement of the Contract Documents, 
Developer agrees to incorporate in all subcontracts the provisions set forth in 
Chapter 60-1.4(b) of Title 41 published in Volume 33 No. 104 of the Federal 
Register dated May 28, 1968. 

 
26.10 Labor First Aid 

 
Developer shall maintain emergency first aid treatment for Developer’s laborers and 
mechanics on the Project which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and 
Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.) and the California Occupational Safety 
and Health Act of 1973 (Lab. Code, § 6300 et seq.; 8 Cal. Code of Regs., § 330 et 
seq.). 

 
27. [Reserved] 

 
28. Miscellaneous 

 
28.1 Assignment of Antitrust Actions 

 
Although this project may not have been formally bid, the following provisions may 
apply: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 85 OF 86  

 

28.1.1 Section 7103.5(b) of the Public Contract Code states: 
 

In entering into a public works contract or subcontract to supply goods, 
services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the contractor or 
subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, 
and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 
Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 
Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 
pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final 
payment to the contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties. 

 
28.1.2 Section 4552 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

 
In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees 
that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, 
and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 
Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 
Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by 
the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. 

 
28.1.3 Section 4553 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

 
If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through 
judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned 
under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for 
actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 
body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to 
overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were not paid by the public 
body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 
portion of the recovery. 

 
28.1.4 Section 4554 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 

 
Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year 
from such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the 
assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which 
the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, 
or (b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. 

 
28.1.5 Under this Article, “public purchasing body” is District and “bidder” is 
Developer. 

 
28.2 Excise Taxes 

 
If, under Federal Excise Tax Law, any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on 
which a Federal Excise Tax is imposed and the sale is exempt from such Federal Excise 
Tax because it is a sale to a State or Local Government for its exclusive use, District, 
upon request, will execute documents necessary to show (1) that District is a political 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT PAGE 86 OF 86  

subdivision of the State for the purposes of such exemption, and (2) that the sale is 
for the exclusive use of District. No Federal Excise Tax for such materials shall be 
included in any Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

 
28.3 Taxes 
Guaranteed Maximum Price is to include any and all applicable sales taxes or other 
taxes that may be due in accordance with section 7051 et seq. of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code, Regulation 1521 of the State Board of Equalization or any other tax 
code that may be applicable. 

 
28.4 Shipments 

 
Developer is responsible for any or all damage or loss to shipments until delivered and 
accepted on Site, as indicated in the Contract Documents. There must be no charge 
for containers, packing, unpacking, drayage, or insurance. The total Guaranteed 
Maximum Price shall be all inclusive (including sales tax) and no additional costs of 
any type will be considered. 

 
28.5 Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements 

 
If this Contract is subject to federal or other governmental reporting requirements 
because of federal or other governmental financing in whole or in part for the Project 
of which it is part, or for any other reason, Developer shall comply with those reporting 
requirements at the request of the District at no additional cost. 

 
[END OF DOCUMENT] 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 1 of 13  

EXHIBIT D-1  

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing Requirements 
 

Developer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. 
On August 11, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued a new State 
Public Health Officer Order (“Order”) regarding COVID-19 vaccine verification for workers in 
school districts, affecting District operations. The Order took effect on August 12, 2021, and 
all affected worksites must be in full compliance with the Order by October 15, 2021. In 
addition, the District passed Resolution No. 3233 which requires all District contractors who 
work directly with students or District staff at District facilities after January 31, 2022 to be 
be fully vaccinated or have submitted a valid exemption to Developer. Accordingly, Developer 
is required to comply with the following before permitting Developer personnel to work at the 
Project site: 

 

Vaccination Requirements 

Developer shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 
Vaccination/Testing Certification Form. The completed COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing 
Certification Form must be received by the District prior to the Notice to Proceed. 

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) 
State Public Health Officer Order (“Order”), a person is “fully vaccinated” for COVID- 
19 if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 
2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health 
Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose 
vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen). 

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, Developer 
shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination: 

(a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health 
and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card) 
which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose 
administered); 

(b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document; 

(c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic 
device; 

(d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider; 

(e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART 
Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and 
vaccine type; or 

(f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who 
follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards. 

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Developer may accept the documentation 
presented in (a) through (f) above as valid. 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 2 of 13  

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking verified Developer personnel 
vaccination status. Records of vaccination verification must be made available, upon 
request, to the local health jurisdiction for purposes of case investigation. 

Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any 
other personnel entering the Project site, who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom 
vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, must be considered 
unvaccinated. 

Weekly Testing Requirements 

Developer shall ensure that Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of 
subcontractor, supplier, and any other worker entering the Project site, who have 
submitted a valid exemption to vaccination are required to undergo diagnostic 
screening testing, as specified below: 

(a) Developer personnel may be tested with either antigen or molecular 
tests to satisfy this requirement, but unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated workers 
must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing. Any 
PCR (molecular) or antigen test used must either have Emergency Use Authorization 
by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or be operating per the Laboratory 
Developed Test requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

(b) Unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated Developer personnel must also 
observe all other infection control requirements, and are not exempted from the 
testing requirement even if they have a medical contraindication to vaccination, since 
they are still potentially able to spread the illness. Previous history of COVID-19 from 
which the individual recovered more than 90 days earlier, or a previous positive 
antibody test for COVID-19, do not waive this requirement for testing. 

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking test results and conducting workplace 
contact tracing, and must report results to local public health departments, if 
applicable. 

2. COVID-19 Safety and Social Distancing Requirements 
 

Developer shall, at its cost, timely comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 
requirements relating to COVID-19 including, without limitation, preparing, posting, and 
implementing a Social Distancing Protocol, as required. In addition, Developer’s Safety Plan, 
required under the General Conditions, must include an Appendix labeled “COVID-19 SAFETY 
PLAN,” which must detail Developer’s safety and compliance plan for COVID-19, specifically 
adapted from the Project, including, without limitation, the following: signage, measures to 
protect employee health, measures to prevent crowds from gathering, measures to keep 
people at least six feet apart, measures to prevent unnecessary contact, and measures to 
increase sanitization. 

 
3. Modernization Projects 

 
3.1. Access. 

 
Access to the school buildings and entry to buildings, classrooms, restrooms, 
mechanical rooms, electrical rooms, or other rooms, for construction purposes, must 
be coordinated with District and onsite District personnel before Work is to start. Unless 
agreed to otherwise in writing, only a school custodian will be allowed to unlock 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 3 of 13  

and lock doors in existing building(s). The custodian will be available only while school 
is in session. If a custodian is required to arrive before 7:00 a.m. or leave after 3:30 
p.m. to accommodate Developer’s Work, the overtime wages for the custodian will be 
paid by Developer, unless at the discretion of the District, other arrangements are 
made in advance. 

 
3.2. Master Key. 

 
Upon request, the District may, at its own discretion, provide a master key to the 
school site for the convenience of Developer. Developer agrees to pay all expenses to 
re-key the entire school site and all other affected District buildings if the master key 
is lost or stolen, or if any unauthorized party obtains a copy of the key or access to 
the school. 

 
3.3. Maintaining Services. 

 
Developer is advised that Work is to be performed in spaces regularly scheduled for 
instruction. Interruption and/or periods of shutdown of public access, electrical service, 
water service, lighting, or other utilities shall be only as arranged in advance with the 
District. Developer shall provide temporary services to all facilities interrupted by 
Developer’s Work. 

 
3.4. Maintaining Utilities. 

 
Developer shall maintain in operation during duration of Contract, drainage lines, 
storm drains, sewers, water, gas, electrical, steam, and other utility service lines within 
working area. 

 
3.5. Confidentiality. 

 
Developer shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, documents, programs, 
procedures and all other items that Developer encounters while performing the Work. 
This requirement shall be ongoing and shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Contract and specifically includes, without limitation, all student, parent, and 
employee disciplinary information and health information. 

 
3.6. Work during Instructional Time. 

 
Developer affirms that Work may be performed during ongoing instruction in existing 
facilities. If so, Developer agrees to cooperate to the best of its ability to minimize any 
disruption to school operations and any use of school facilities by the public up to, and 
including, rescheduling specific work activities, at no additional cost to District. 

 
3.7. No Work during Student Testing. 

 
Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 
coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, not 
performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or Federally-required 
tests. 

 
4. Construction Manager 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 4 of 13  

Kitchell CEM is the Construction Manager described in Section 4 to Exhibit D to the Facilities 
Lease, the General Construction Provisions. 

 
5. Project Labor Agreement/Payroll Records 

 
The District has entered into a Project Labor Agreement (“PLA”), which covers this Project. 

 
Accordingly, the following provision is added as Section 26.4.6 to Exhibit D to the Facilities 
Lease: 

 

 

6. As-Builts and Record Drawings 
 

14.1 When called for by Division 1, Developer shall submit As-Built Drawings 
pursuant to the Contract Documents consisting of one set of computer-aided design 
and drafting (“CADD”) files in the following format Auto CAD and PDF, plus one set of 
As-Built Drawings as hard copy. 

 
14.2 Developer shall submit Record Drawings pursuant to the Contract Documents 
consisting of one set of computer-aided design and drafting (“CADD”) files in the 
following format Auto CADD and PDF, plus one set of Record Drawings as hard copy. 

 
7. Federal Funds – Wages 

 
As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, Developer and all Subcontractors 
are subject to civil or criminal prosecution for any violation of the federal False Claims Act set 
forth under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code. 

 
The following provisions are added as Section 27 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 

 
27. Federal Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions  

 

 

terms of the PLA entered into by the District dated November 16, 2017, Developer 
and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs electronically using 
DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each 
record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online at 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html , or by using a 
more current application and URL. However, within ten (10) days of any request by 
the District or Labor Commissioner, Developer and its subcontractors shall provide 
CPRs showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, 
straight time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per 
diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 
employed by the Developer and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

As Developer and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the 26.4.6 

27.1 Minimum Wages 
 
The Davis-Bacon Act and 29 CFR parts 1 through 7 shall apply if the Project is financed 
in whole or in part from Federal funds or in accordance with guarantees of a Federal 
agency or financed from funds obtained by pledge of any contract of a Federal agency 
to make a loan, grant or annual contribution. 

27.1.1 All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the Site of the 
Work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html


Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 5 of 13  

Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the Project), will be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent 
deduction or rebate on any account, except such payroll deductions as are 
permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland 
Act (29 CFR part 3) , the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits, or 
cash equivalents thereof, due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which 
is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual 
relationship which may be alleged to exist between Developer and such laborers 
and mechanics. 

 
Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 
under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics 
are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the 
provisions 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs 
incurred for more than a weekly period, but not less often than quarterly, under 
plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed 
to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers 
and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on 
the wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed, 
without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing Work in more than one classification may be 
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually 
worked therein: Provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set 
forth the time spent in each classification in which Work is performed. The wage 
determination including any additional classification and wage rates conformed 
under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be 
posted at all times by Developer and its Subcontractors at the Site of the Work 
in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers. 

 
27.1.2    Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, and which is to 
be employed under the Contract which is not listed in the wage determination 
shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. An additional 
classification and wage rate and fringe benefits will not be approved unless the 
following criteria have been met: 

 

 

27.1.2.1 The Work to be performed by the classification requested 
is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and 
 
27.1.2.2 The classification is utilized in the area by the construction 
industry; and 
 
27.1.2.3 The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe 
benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained 
in the wage determination. 

27.1.3 If Developer and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 
classification (if known), or their representatives, and the District agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe 
benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by 
Developer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 6 of 13  

 
 

27.2 Withholding  
 

 

27.3 Payrolls and basic records  
 

determination for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit 
which is not expressed as an hourly rate, Developer shall either pay the benefit 
as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit 
or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 
 
27.1.7 If Developer does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, 
Developer may consider, as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic, the 
amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe 
benefits under a plan or program, provided that the Secretary of Labor has 
found, upon the written request of Developer, that the applicable standards of 
the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. If the Secretary of Labor so requires, 
Developer to shall aside in a separate account sufficient assets to meet 
obligations under the plan or program. 

Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in any applicable wage 

determined pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)(B) or (C), shall be paid to all 
workers performing Work in the classification under this Contract from the first 
day on which Work is performed in the classification. 
 
27.1.6 

The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) 27.1.5 

27.1.4   In the event Developer, the laborers or mechanics to be employed  in 
the classification or their representatives, and the District do not agree on the 
proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits, where appropriate), Developer shall provide the questions, 
including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
District, to the District for the District’s review and referral to the Administrator 
for determination. 

District shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld 
from Developer under this Contract or any other Federal contract with the same 
Developer, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon 
prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same Developer, so much 
of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay 
laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed 
by Developer or any Subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the 
Contract. In the event of Developer’s or any Subcontractors’ failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or 
working on the Site of the Work (or under the United States Housing Act of 
1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of 
the project), all or part of the wages required by the Contract, the District may, 
after written notice to Developer, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action 
as it deems necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 
advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

27.3.1Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by 
Developer during the course of the Work and preserved for a period of three 
years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the Site of the Work 
(or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 7 of 13  

1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall 
contain the name, address, and social security number of each worker, his or 
her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of 
contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis- 
Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and 
actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program 
described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, Developer shall 
maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is 
enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics 
affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost 
incurred in providing such benefits. Developers or Subcontractors employing 
apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written 
evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the 
ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. 

 
27.3.2 Developer shall submit weekly for each week in which any Contract Work 
is performed a copy of all payrolls to the District. The payrolls submitted shall 
set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers 
and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the 
payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each 
employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). 
The required weekly payroll information shall be submitted on a form 
acceptable to the District. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose 
from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. 
Developer is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all 
Subcontractors. Developer and Subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide 
them upon request to the District, Developer, or the Wage and Hour Division 
of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of 
compliance with prevailing wage requirements. Developer may require a 
Subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to Developer 
for its own records, without weekly submission to the District or other 
government agency. 

 
27.3.3 Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of 
Compliance,” signed by Developer or Subcontractor or his or her agent who 
pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the Contract 
and shall certify the following: 

 
27.3.3.1 That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of 
Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. 
 
27.3.3.2 That the appropriate information is being maintained 
under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. 

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm


Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 8 of 13  

27.3.3.3 That such information is correct and complete. 
 

27.3.3.4 That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, 
apprentice, and trainee) employed on the Contract during the payroll 
period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, 
either directly or indirectly. 

 
27.3.3.5 That no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible 
deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3. 

 
27.3.3.6 That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than 
the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for 
the classification of Work performed, as specified in the applicable 
wage determination incorporated into or applicable to the Contract. 

 
27.3.3.7 The weekly submission of a properly executed 
certification in the form set forth on the reverse side of Optional 
Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
“Statement of Compliance” required by 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii)(B). 

 
27.3.3.8 The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject Developer or one or more Subcontractors to civil or criminal 
prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 
of the United States Code. 

 
27.3.3.9 Developer or Subcontractor shall make the records 
required under this section available for inspection, copying, or 
transcription by authorized representatives of the District or the 
federal Department of Labor, and shall permit representatives to 
interview employees during working hours on the job. If Developer 
or Subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make 
them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to 
Developer, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be 
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, 
or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may be 
grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

 
27.4 Apprentices and trainees  

 
27.4.1 Apprentices 
 
Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for 
the Work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually 
registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State 
Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in 
his or her first ninety (90) days of probationary employment as an apprentice 
in an eligible apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the 
program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, 
Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 9 of 13  

appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The 
allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job Site in any craft 
classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to Developer as to 
the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a 
payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed 
as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed. In 
addition, any apprentice performing Work on the job Site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the Work actually 
performed. Where a Developer is performing construction on a project in a 
locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in 
Developer's or Subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every 
apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered 
program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of 
the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of 
the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify 
fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed 
on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator 
determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the 
event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a 
State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of 
an apprenticeship program, Developer will no longer be permitted to utilize 
apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the Work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

 
27.4.2 Trainees 

 
Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to Work at 
less than the predetermined rate for the Work performed unless they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has 
received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of 
trainees to journeymen on the job Site shall not be greater than permitted 
under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every 
trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program 
for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman 
hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be 
paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. 
If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid 
the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an 
apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage 
rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not 
registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and 
Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on 
the wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed. In 
addition, any trainee performing Work on the job Site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 10 of 13  

 
 

27.5 Compliance with Copeland Act requirements 
 

Developer shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated 
by reference in this Contract. 

 
27.6 Subcontracts 

 
Developer or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 
29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal agency may by 
appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the Subcontractors to 
include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Developer shall be responsible for 
the compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with all the Contract 
clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

 
27.7 Contract termination: debarment 

 
A breach of the Contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the 
Contract, and for debarment as a Developer and a Subcontractor as provided in 29 
CFR 5.12. 

 
27.8 Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements 

 
All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 
CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this Contract. 

 
27.9 Disputes concerning labor standards 

 
Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this Contract shall not be 
subject to the general disputes clause of this Contract. Such disputes shall be resolved 
in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 
5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between 
Developer (or any of its Subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

 
27.10 Certification of eligibility 

 

applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the Work actually 
performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, Developer will no longer be 
permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for 
the Work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 
 
27.4.3 Equal employment opportunity 
 
The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of 
Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. 

(nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in Developer's firm 
is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of 
section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

By entering into this Contract, Developer certifies that neither it 27.10.1 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 11 of 13  

 
 

 

27.11.1 Overtime requirements 
 

No Developer or Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract Work 
which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he 
or she is employed on such Work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not 
less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in 
excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

 
27.11.2 Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages 

 
In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in the foregoing paragraph 
Developer and any Subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such Developer and Subcontractor shall be liable to 
the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be 
computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including 
watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the foregoing paragraph, in the 
sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to Work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without 
payment of the overtime wages required by the foregoing paragraph. 

 
27.11.3 Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages 

 
The District shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, 
from any moneys payable on account of Work performed by Developer or 
Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with the same 
Developer, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same Developer, 
such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of 
such Developer or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the forgoing paragraph. 

 
27.11.4 Subcontracts 

 
Developer or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 
in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (b)(4) and also a clause requiring each 
Subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 

making false statements as prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 
1001. 

Developer or Subcontractors shall be subject to penalty for 27.10.3 

firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

No part of this Contract shall be subcontracted to any person or 27.10.2 

27.11 Clauses Mandated by Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
 
As used in the following paragraphs, the terms laborers and mechanics include 
watchmen and guards. 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 12 of 13  

 
 
 

15. Federal Funds – Debarment 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 
as Section 6.1.5 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 

 
This Project uses or may plan to use federal funds. Consequently, Developer is required 
to provide a signed “Federal Debarment” certification with its bid. This certification is 
required by the regulation implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, 29 CFR Part 89, Section 98.510, Participants; responsibilities. The 
regulations were published as Part of VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 
19160-19211). 

 
16. Federal Funds – Byrd Anti-Lobbying 

 
As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 
as Section 6.1.7 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 

 

 

17. Federal Funds – Procurement of recovered materials 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 
as Section 6.13.5 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 

 

 

18. Federal Funds - Domestic preferences for procurements 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by a federal grant made after November 12, 2020, 
the following provision is added as Section 1.8.10 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 

 
1.8.10 As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, Developer should, to the 

greatest extent practicable for the Project, provide a preference for the purchase, 
acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States 
(including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured 
products). The requirements of this section must be included in all subcontracts and 
purchase orders for work or products for the Project.       

Developer shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower 
tier Subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (b)(4). 

If the contract exceeds $100,000, Developer is required to provide a signed “Byrd 
Anti-Lobbying” certification with its bid ((31 U.S.C. 1352) (Appendix II to 2 CFR, Part 
200)). 

Developer must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended 
by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 
include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered 
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, 
where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity 
acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste 
management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and 
establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered 
materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page 13 of 13  

1.8.10.1 “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that 
all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application 
of coatings, occurred in the United States. 

 
1.8.10.2  “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials 

composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics 
and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as 

concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber 



Exhibit E to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project Page E 1 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE 
 

This MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE  is dated  , 20 , and is 
made  by and between  (“Developer”), as Lessor, and the 
Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”), as Lessee. 

 
1. Developer and District have previously entered into a Facilities Lease dated as of 
  , 20 , (the “Lease”) for the leasing by Developer to District of the completed 
Project in [City], California, referenced in the Lease. 

 
2. District hereby confirms the following: 

 
A. That all construction of the Project required to be performed pursuant to the 

Facilities Lease has been completed by Developer in all respects; 
 

B. That District has accepted and entered into possession of the Project and now 
occupies same; and 

 
C. That the term for the Lease Payments under the Facilities Lease commenced on 

  , 20  and will expire at 11:59 P.M. on  _, 20 . 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE IS ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the 
date indicated below: 

 
 

Dated:   , 20   Dated:   , 20   
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 

By:  

Name:    

 
[Developer] 

 

By:  

Name:    

Title:  Title:    
 
 
 
(To Be Executed at Completion of Project) 
 
 
 



Exhibit F to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project Page F 1 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
 

Attached is a detailed Project Construction Schedule with a duration no longer than the 
Contract Time, and with specific milestones that Developer shall meet. 

 
(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 
 

 



Exhibit G to Facilities Lease 
John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 

Page G 1  

EXHIBIT G 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

Attached is a detailed Schedule of Values that complies with the requirements of the 
Construction Provisions (Exhibit “D”) and that has been approved by the District. 
 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 
 

 



 

Exhibit H to Facilities Lease 
PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

 
for the 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 

PREAMBLE 
 

This Project Labor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”), together with contractors and/or 
subcontractors, who shall become signatory to this Agreement by signing the “Agreement 
To Be Bound” (Attachment A), and the Sacramento-Sierra Building & Construction Trades 
Council (“Council”) and the local Unions that have executed this Agreement. 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to promote efficiency of construction 
operations during the construction of the District’s projects subject to this Agreement, and to 
provide for the peaceful settlement of labor disputes and grievances without work 
disruptions or delays, thereby promoting the District’s interest and the public’s interest in 
assuring the timely and cost-effective completion of the District’s construction projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the successful and efficient completion of the District’s construction projects 
is of the utmost importance to the District and its educational programs and mission; and 

 
WHEREAS, large numbers of workers of various skills will be required in the performance 
of the construction work, including those to be represented by the Unions affiliated with the 
Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is recognized that District construction projects require multiple contractors 
and bargaining units on the job site at the same time over an extended period of time, and 
that the potential for work disruption is substantial in the absence of a binding commitment 
to maintain continuity of work; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Employers and the Unions desire to mutually establish and stabilize 
wages, hours and working conditions for the workers employed on the construction projects 
subject to this Agreement in order to promote a satisfactory, continuous and harmonious 
relationship among the parties to this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to provide construction training and employment 
opportunities for students of and residents within the District through local hire, apprentice 
and pre-apprentice programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties signatory to this Agreement pledge their full good faith and trust to 
work towards mutually satisfactory and successful completion of all District construction 
projects subject to the Agreement; and 



 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District has previously adopted 
Resolution No. 2774 regarding the use of Project Labor Agreements on District projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

1.1 “Agreement” means this Project Labor Agreement. 
 

1.2 “Agreement to be Bound” means the agreement (attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Attachment A) required to be executed by any Employer(s) working on the 
Project as a precondition to performing Covered Work on the Project. 

 
1.3 “Council” means the Sacramento-Sierra Building and Construction Trades Council, 

which is the local jurisdictional division of the State Building and Construction 
Trades Council of California, with affiliated trades unions within its geographical 
jurisdiction of Sacramento, Yolo, Placer, El Dorado, Amador, Nevada and Sierra 
Counties. 

 
1.4 “Completion” means the point at which there is Final Acceptance by the District of a 

Construction Contract. For purposes of this definition of “Completion,” “Final 
Acceptance” shall mean that point in time at which the District has determined upon 
final inspection that the work on a Construction Contract has been completed in all 
respects and all required contract documents, contract drawings, warranties, 
certificates, manuals and data have been submitted and training completed in 
accordance with the contract documents and the District has executed a written 
acceptance of the work. 

 
1.5 "Construction Contract" means, except as to section 2.5 (exclusions from Covered 

Work) public works or improvement contracts approved by the District, including 
design-bid, design-build, lease-leaseback or other contracts under which construction 
work is performed, that are necessary to complete the Project. 

 
1.6 “District” means the Sacramento Unified School District and the administrative 

employees under its Superintendent, including any in house Project Manager 
designated by the District for the Project. 

 
1.7 “Contractor(s)” means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity, or any 

combination thereof, including joint ventures, and any of its contractors or 
subcontractors of any tier, or any successor or assigns of such persons or entities, that 
has entered into a contract with the District, or with any other person or entity 
contracting for work on the Project on behalf of the District (whether by design-bid, 
design-build, lease-leaseback or other means), with respect to the construction of any 
part of the Project under contract terms and conditions approved by the District. 



 

1.8 “Master Agreement” means the multi-employer collective bargaining agreement of 
each of the Unions that covers the geographic area of the Project, copies of which 
shall be provided to the District upon request. 

 
1.9 “Project” means any District construction project that has a total minimum value of 

five hundred thousand ($500,000) or more. The District may, at its discretion, 
designate other projects or contracts with a total value of less than five hundred 
thousand ($500,000) to be covered by this Agreement if the District believes it is in 
the best interest of the District to do so. Routine maintenance of District properties 
are not covered by the scope of this Agreement. 

 
1.10 “Project Manager” means a person, including a District employee, firm or other entity 

designated by the District to manage, coordinate or administer the construction work 
on a Project subject to this Agreement. 

 
1.11 “Union” or “Unions” means the Sacramento-Sierra Building and Construction 

Trades Council and the local Unions that are signatory to this Agreement, acting on 
their own behalf and on behalf of their respective affiliates and member organizations 
whose names are subscribed hereto and who have through their officers executed this 
Agreement. The Council and the local Unions are collectively referred to herein as 
the “Unions.” 

 
ARTICLE 2 

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 Parties. This Agreement shall apply and is limited to all Contractor(s), the District 
and the Unions that are signatory to this Agreement. 

 
2.2. Applicability. This Agreement shall govern all Construction Contracts awarded on 

the District Projects that are subject to this Agreement. Except for exclusions from 
the Covered Work described in section 2.5, for purposes of this Agreement, a 
Construction Contract shall be considered completed as described in Section 1.4, 
except when the District’s authorized representative directs a Contractor to engage in 
repairs, warranty work, or modifications as required under the original Construction 
Contract with the District. 

 
2.3 Covered Work. This Agreement covers all on-site construction, alteration, painting 

or repair of buildings, structures and other works and related activities for the Project 
that is within the craft jurisdiction of one of the Unions and which is directly or 
indirectly part of the Project, including, without limitation, start-up and 
commissioning, site preparation, survey work, soil and material inspection and 
testing, modular furniture installation covered by an applicable Master Agreement or 
a prevailing wage determination, all on-site fabrication work, provided such work is 
within the fabrication provision of the Master or national agreement of one of the 
Unions, demolition of existing structures, and all construction, demolition or 
improvements required to be performed as a condition of approval by any public 
agency. On-site fabrication work includes work done for the Project in temporary 



 

yards or areas near the Project. This Agreement also covers all off-site work, 
including fabrication, traditionally performed by any of the Unions that is directly or 
indirectly part of the Project, provided such work is covered by a provision of a local 
Master Agreement of the applicable Union(s). On-site construction shall also 
include the site of any batch plant constructed solely to supply materials to the 
Project. The furnishing of supplies, equipment or materials which are stockpiled for 
later use shall in no case be considered subcontracting, however, the delivery of 
ready-mix, asphalt, aggregate, sand or other fill material which are directly 
incorporated into the construction process, as well as the off-hauling of debris and 
excess fill and/or mud shall be covered by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. All of the work described in this Section is within the scope of this 
Agreement and is referred to hereafter as “Covered Work.” 

 
2.5 The following shall be excluded from Covered Work: 

 
2.5.1 Work of non-manual employees, including, but not limited to, 

superintendents, supervisors above the level of general foreman (except those 
covered by any applicable Master Agreement), staff engineers, building 
inspectors, timekeepers, clerks, office workers, including messengers, guards, 
safety personnel, emergency medical and first aid technicians, and other 
professional, engineering, administrative, executive and management 
employees; 

 
2.5.2 Equipment and machinery owned or controlled and operated by the District; 

 
2.5.3 Any work performed on or near or leading to or on to the site of work 

covered by this Agreement and undertaken by state, county, city or other 
governmental bodies, or their contractor, or by public utilities or their 
contractors; 

 
2.5.4 Off-site maintenance of leased equipment and on-site supervision of such 

work; 
 

2.5.5 Work performed by employees of a manufacturer or vendor on the 
manufacturer’s or vendor’s equipment if necessary to satisfy the guarantee or 
warranty on such equipment and where performance of the work is expressly 
stated in the manufacturer’s or vendor’s written warranty or guarantee to be a 
condition for the warranty or guarantee for such products. For any work 
performed pursuant to this provision, the Contractor shall provide copies of 
the written warranty requirement to the District, Project Manager, the 
Council and the affected local Union prior to the commencement of work by 
the manufacturer or vendor. This exclusion does not apply to any on site 
construction work subcontracted by such manufacturer or vendor. 

 
2.5.6 Off-site maintenance of leased equipment and on-site supervision of such 

work; 



 

2.5.7 Laboratory or specialty testing or inspection not covered by an applicable 
Master Agreement; 

 
2.5.8 Non-construction support services contracted by the District or any 

Contractor in connection with this Project; 
 

2.5.9 All work by employees of the District. 
 

ARTICLE 3 

SUBCONTRACTING 

3.1 Each Contractor agrees that it will contract for the assignment, awarding or 
subcontracting of Covered Work, or authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, only to a person, firm, corporation or other entity that, at 
the time the contract is executed, has become a party to this Agreement by executing 
Attachment A, the Agreement to be Bound. 

 
3.2 Each Contractor agrees that it will contract or subcontract the performance of Covered 

Work only to a person, firm, corporation or other entity that is or becomes a party to 
this Agreement. Any Contractor performing Covered Work on the Project shall, as a 
condition to working on the Project, perform all work under the terms of this 
Agreement and the applicable Master Agreement. Before being authorized to perform 
any Covered Work, Contractors shall become a party to this Agreement by signing 
Attachment A, the Agreement to be Bound.  Every Contractor shall notify the Council 
in writing within five (5) business days after it has contracted to assign, award, or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work in accordance with Section 3.1 or this Section 3.2, and 
shall at the same time provide to the Council a copy of the executed Agreement to be 
Bound. The District shall also provide copies to the Council of all executed 
Agreements to be Bound that it receives within fifteen (15) days of receipt. 

 
3.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall in any manner whatsoever limit the rights of the 

District or any Contractor to subcontract Covered Work or to select its contractors or 
subcontractors; provided, however, that all Contractors, at all tiers, assigning, 
awarding, contracting or performing Covered Work, or authorizing another to assign, 
award, contract or perform Covered Work, shall be required to comply with the 
provisions of this Agreement.  Each Contractor shall notify each of its contractors and 
subcontractors of the provisions of this Agreement and require as a condition 
precedent to the assigning, awarding or subcontracting of any Covered Work, or 
allowing any subcontracted Covered Work to be performed, that all such contractors 
and subcontractors at all tiers become signatory to this Agreement. Any Contractor 
that fails to provide the Council with the Agreement to be Bound executed by its 
contractor or subcontractor shall be liable for any failure of that contractor or 
subcontractor, or any contractor or subcontractor at a lower tier, to comply with the 
provisions of this Agreement, including any contributions to any trust funds that the 
contractor or subcontractor, or any subcontractor to that subcontractor, fails to make. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 



 

interfere with or supersede the usual and customary legal remedies available to the 
Unions and/or employee benefit Trust Funds to collect delinquent Trust Fund 
contributions from Contractors on the Project. 

 
3.4 Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the District’s right to combine, consolidate, or 

cancel contracts for Project construction, or to comply with public agency contracting 
laws. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

WAGES AND BENEFITS 

4.1 All employees covered by this Agreement (including foremen and general foremen 
if they are covered by the Master Agreement) shall be classified and paid wages and 
other compensation, including but not limited to travel, subsistence, and shift 
premium pay, and contributions made on their behalf to multi-employer trust funds, 
all in accordance with the then current multi-employer Master Agreement of the 
applicable Union and in compliance with the applicable prevailing wage rate 
determination established pursuant to the California Labor Code by the Department 
of Industrial Relations. 

 
4.2 During the period of construction on this Project, the Contractors agree to recognize 

and put into effect such increases in wages and recognized fringe benefits as shall be 
negotiated between the various Unions and the historically recognized local 
bargaining parties on the effective date as set forth in the applicable Master 
Agreement. The Unions shall notify the Contractors in writing of the specific 
increases in wages and recognized fringe benefits and the date on which they become 
effective. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
 

NO STRIKES - NO LOCKOUTS 
 

5.1 During the term of this Agreement, there shall be no strikes, sympathy strikes, 
picketing, work stoppages, picket-related hand billing, slow downs, interference with 
the work or other disruptive activity for any reason by the Union or by any employee, 
and there shall be no lockout by any Contractor. Failure of any Union or employee to 
cross any picket line established at the Contractor’s Project site is a violation of this 
Article. 

 
5.2 The Union shall not sanction, aid or abet, encourage or continue any work stoppage, 

strike, picketing or other disruptive activity at the Project site and shall undertake all 
reasonable means to prevent or to terminate any such activity. No employee shall 
engage in activities which violate this Article. Any employee who participates in or 
encourages any activities which interfere with the normal operation of the Project 
shall be subject to disciplinary action, including discharge, and, if justifiably 



 

discharged for the above reasons, shall not be eligible for rehire on the same project 
for a period of not less than ninety (90) days. 

 
5.3 The Union(s) agrees that if any union or any other persons, whether parties to this 

Agreement or otherwise, engage in any picketing or work stoppages, the signatory 
Unions shall consider such work stoppage or picketing to be illegal and refuse to 
honor such picket line or work stoppage. 

 
5.4 In the event of any work stoppage, strike, sympathy strike, picketing interference 

with the work or other disruptive activity in violation of this Article, the Contractor 
may suspend all or any portion of the Project work affected by such activity at the 
Contractor’s discretion and without penalty, and the District may replace any 
Contractor whose employees have not reported to work with any other contactor or 
subcontractor in accordance with Section 3.2. 

 
5.5 In addition to any other action at law or equity, any party may elect to have the matter 

decided by a neutral arbitrator in accordance with the following procedure when a 
breach of this Article is alleged, after the Union(s) or Contractor(s) has been notified 
of the fact. 

 
5.5.1 A party invoking this procedure shall notify Robert Hirsch, as the permanent 

arbitrator, or Barry Winograd, as the alternate arbitrator under this procedure. 
In the event that the permanent arbitrator is unavailable at any time, the 
alternate will be contacted. If neither is available, then the American 
Arbitration Association shall select an alternative arbitrator within 24 hours 
of notice. Notice to the Arbitrator shall be by the most expeditious means 
available, with notice by fax or electronic means or any other effective 
written means to the party alleged to be in violation and the involved 
International Union President and/or local Union. 

 
5.5.2 Upon receipt of said notice, the Project Manager shall contact the designated 

Arbitrator named above or his alternate who will attempt to convene a hearing 
within twenty-four (24) hours if it is contended that the violation still exists. 

 
5.5.3 The Arbitrator shall notify the parties by fax or electronic means or any other 

effective written means of the place and time he has chosen for this hearing. 
Said hearing shall be completed in one session. A failure of any party or 
parties to attend said hearing shall not delay the hearing of evidence or 
issuance of an Award by the Arbitrator. 

 
5.5.4 The sole issue at the hearing shall be whether or not a violation of this Article 

has in fact occurred. The Award which shall be final and binding shall be 
issued in writing within three (3) hours after the close of the hearing, and may 
be issued without an opinion. If any party desires an opinion, one shall be 
issued within fifteen (15) days, but its issuance shall not delay compliance 
with, or enforcement of, the Award. The Arbitrator may order cessation of the 
violation of this Article by the Union or Contractor, and such Award shall 



 

be served on all parties by hand or registered mail upon issuance. Should a 
party found in violation of this Article fail to comply with an Arbitrator’s 
award to cease the violation, the party in violation shall pay to the affected 
party as liquidated damages the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for the 
first shift for which it failed to comply, or portion thereof, and ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) for each subsequent shift for which it failed to comply, 
until such violation is ceased. The Arbitrator shall retain jurisdiction to 
resolve any disputes regarding the liquidated damages claimed under this 
Section. 

 
5.5.5 Such Award may be enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction upon 

the filing of this Agreement and all other relevant documents referred to 
hereinabove in the following manner. The fax or electronic notice of the filing 
of such enforcement proceedings shall be given to the other party. In the 
proceeding to obtain a temporary order enforcing the Arbitrator’s Award as 
issued under Section 5.5.4 of this Article, all parties waive the right to a 
hearing and agree that such proceedings may be ex parte. Such agreement 
does not waive any party’s right to participate in a hearing for a final order of 
enforcement. The Court’s order or orders enforcing the Arbitrator’s Award 
shall be served on all parties by hand or by delivery to their last known 
address or by certified mail. 

 
5.5.6 Any rights created by statute or law governing arbitration proceedings 

inconsistent with the above procedure or which interfere with compliance 
therewith are hereby waived by the parties to whom they accrue. 

 
5.5.7 The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the party or parties 

found in violation, or in the event no violation is found, such fees and 
expenses shall be borne by the moving party. 

 
5.6 The procedures contained in Section 5.5 shall be applicable to alleged violations of 

this Article. Disputes alleging violation of any other provision of this Agreement, 
including any underlying disputes alleged to be in justification, explanation or 
mitigation of any violation of this Article, shall be resolved under the grievance 
procedures of Article 9. 

 
5.7 In the case of nonpayment of wages or trust fund contributions on the Project, the Union 

shall give the District and the Contractor(s) three (3) business days' notice when 
nonpayment of trust fund contributions has occurred and one (1) business day’s notice 
when nonpayment of wages has occurred  or when paychecks being tendered to a 
financial institution normally recognized to honor such paychecks will not honor such 
paycheck as a result of insufficient funds, of the intent to withhold labor from  the 
Contractor(s)' or their subcontractor's workforce, during which time the Contractor 
shall have the opportunity to correct the default. In this instance, a Union's withholding 
of labor (but not picketing) from an Contractor who has failed to pay its fringe benefit 
contributions or failed to meet its weekly payroll shall not be considered a violation of 
this Article. In the event the Union or any of its members withhold their services from 
such contractor or subcontractor, District shall have the right to 



 

replace such contractor or subcontractor with any other contractor or subcontractor 
who executes the Agreement to be Bound. 

5.8 It will not be a violation of this Agreement when the Contractor considers it necessary 
to shut down to avoid the possible loss of human life because of an emergency 
situation that could endanger the life and safety of an employee. In such cases, 
employees will be compensated only for the actual time worked. In the case of a 
situation described above whereby the Contractor requests employees to wait in a 
designated area available for work, the employees will be compensated for the 
waiting time. 

 
5.9 If a Master Agreement expires before the Contractor completes the performance of 

work under the Construction Contract and the Union or Contractor gives notice of 
demands for a new or modified Master Agreement, the Union agrees that it will not 
strike on work covered under this Agreement and the Union and the Contractor agree 
that the expired Master Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for work 
covered under this Agreement until a new or modified Master Agreement is reached. 
If the new or modified Master Agreement provides that any terms of the Master 
Agreement shall be retroactive, the Contractor agrees to comply with any retroactive 
terms of the new or modified Master Agreement which are applicable to employees 
who were employed on the projects during the interim, with retroactive payment due 
within seven (7) days of the effective date of the modified Master Agreement subject 
to section 4.3. 

 
ARTICLE                               6 

WORK ASSIGNMENTS AND JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES 

6.1 The assignment of Covered Work will be solely the responsibility of the Contractor 
performing the work involved; and such work assignments will be in accordance 
with the Plan for the Settlement of the Jurisdictional Disputes in the Construction 
Industry (the "Plan") or any successor Plan. 

 
6.2 All jurisdictional disputes on this Project between or among the building and 

construction trades Unions and the Contractors parties to this Agreement, shall be 
settled and adjusted according to the present Plan established by the Building and 
Construction Trades Department or any other plan or method of procedure that may 
be adopted in the future by the Building and Construction Trades Department. 
Decisions rendered shall be final, binding and conclusive on the Contractors and 
Unions parties to this Agreement. 

 
6.3 If a dispute arising under this Article involves the Northern California Carpenters 

Regional Council or any of its subordinate bodies, an Arbitrator shall be chosen by 
the procedures specified in Article V, Section 5, of the Plan from a list composed of 
John Kagel, Thomas Angelo, Robert Hirsch, and Thomas Pagan, and the Arbitrator's 
hearing on the dispute shall be held at the offices of the California State Building and 
Construction Trades Council in Sacramento, California within fourteen (14) 



 

days of the selection of the Arbitrator. All other procedures shall be as specified in 
the Plan. 

 
6.4 All jurisdictional disputes shall be resolved without the occurrence of any strike, work 

stoppage, or slow-down of any nature and the Contractor's assignment shall be 
adhered to until the dispute is resolved. Individual employees violating this section 
shall be subject to immediate discharge. 

 
 

ARTICLE 7 
 

JOINT LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS 
 

7.1 Joint Labor/Management Meetings. During the period of any work performed under 
this Agreement, the Project Manager, or District designee, may schedule monthly 
Joint Labor/Management Meetings that include the Project Manager, or the District’s 
designee, the Contractors and the Unions. The purpose of these meetings is to 
promote harmonious labor/management relations, ensure adequate communications 
and advance the proficiency and efficiency of the employees and the Contractors on 
the Project. These meetings may include a discussion of safety, craft resource 
requirements, scheduling and productivity of work performed at the Project. The 
Union representative shall keep minutes of any such meetings and the minutes shall 
be subject to approval at any subsequent meeting. Any such meetings may be in 
person or by conference call. It shall be mandatory for a representative of the Unions 
to participate in such meetings. 

 
7.2 A Pre-Job Conference shall be scheduled by the District prior to the commencement 

of work to establish the scope of work in each Contractor’s contract. When a contract 
has been let to a Contractor covered by this Agreement, a job conference and/or mark 
up meeting shall be scheduled by the District upon request of any Union, Contractor 
or the District. 

 
 

ARTICLE 8 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

8.1 The Contractor(s) retains full and exclusive authority for the management of their 
work forces for all work performed under this Agreement. This authority includes, 
but is not limited to the right to: 

 
A. Plan, direct and control the operation of all the work. 

 
B. Decide the number and types of employees required to perform the work 

safely and efficiently. The lawful staffing provisions of the applicable 
Master Agreement shall be recognized. 



 

C. Hire, promote and layoff employees as deemed appropriate to meet work 
requirements and/or skills required. 

 
D. Require all employees to observe the District and Contractor Project Rules, 

Security and Safety Regulations, consistent with the provisions of this 
Agreement. These Project Rules and Regulations shall be reviewed and 
mutually agreed upon at the Pre-Job meeting and supplied to all employees 
and/or posted on the jobsite. 

 
E. Discharge, suspension or discipline will be handled under the applicable craft 

agreement. 
 

F. Assign and schedule work at its sole discretion and determine when overtime 
will be worked. There shall be no refusal by a craft to perform work assigned, 
including overtime work. However, individual craftspeople shall not be 
required to work overtime unless specifically dispatched for overtime work. 
Any cases of a craft's refusal to work overtime shall be subject to the grievance 
procedure. 

 
G. Utilize any work methods, procedures or techniques and select and use any 

type or kind of materials, apparatus or equipment regardless of source, 
manufacturer or designator (in accordance with Article 2). 

 
H. The foregoing listing of management rights shall not be deemed to exclude 

other functions not specifically set forth herein. The Contractors, therefore, 
retain all legal rights not specifically enumerated in this Agreement. 

 
8.2 All workers employed or otherwise used on a Project shall comply with the 

District’s Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy (BP 4020) and Employee Drug 
Testing Policy (BP 4112.41, 4212.41, 4312.41) and applicable regulations as 
amended from time to time. If not otherwise specified, the drug testing protocol 
shall be in compliance with 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 382.105 
(Testing procedures) which incorporates 49 CFR Part 40. 

 
ARTICLE 9 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

9.1 It is mutually agreed that any question arising out of and during the term of this 
Agreement involving its interpretation and application (other than matters subject to 
Section 5.5 and Union jurisdictional disputes subject to Article 6) shall be considered 
a grievance. Questions between or among parties signatory to a Master Agreement 
arising out of or involving the interpretation of a Master Agreement shall be resolved 
under the grievance procedure provided in that Master Agreement. 

 
9.2 The District and other Contractors, as well as the Unions, may bring forth grievances 

under this Article. 



 

9.3 A grievance shall be considered null and void if not brought to the attention of the 
Contractor(s) within five (5) working days after the incident that initiated the alleged 
grievance occurred or was discovered, whichever is later. The term “working days” 
as used in this Article shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays or holidays regardless of 
whether any work is actually performed on such days. 

 
9.4 Grievances shall be settled according to the following procedure, except that 

grievances that do not involve an individual grievant shall be discussed by the 
District, and the Council and then, if not resolved within five (5) working days of 
written notice unless extended by mutual consent, commence at Step 4: 

 

Step 1 
 
 

Step 2 
 
 
 
 
 

Step 3 
 
 
 
 
 

Step 4 

 
The Steward and the grievant shall attempt to resolve the grievance with the 
craft supervisor within five (5) working days after the Grievance has been 
brought to the attention of the Contractor. 

 
In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 1 above after five (5) 
working days, within five (5) working days thereafter, the alleged grievance 
may be referred in writing to the Business Manager(s) of the Union(s) 
affected and the site construction manager or Labor Relations representative 
of the Contractor(s) for discussion and resolution. A copy of the written 
grievance shall also be mailed, faxed or emailed to the District. 

 
In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 2 above within five (5) 
working days, within five (5) working days thereafter, the grievance may be 
referred in writing to the Business Manager(s) of the affected Union(s) 
involved and the Manager of Labor Relations of the Contractor(s) or the 
Manager’s designated representative and the District for discussion and 
resolution. 

 
If the grievance is not settled in Step 3 within five (5) working days, within 
five (5) days thereafter, either party may request the dispute be submitted to 
neutral arbitration or the time may be extended by mutual consent of both 
parties.  The request for arbitration and/or the request for an extension of 
time must be in writing with a copy to the District. Should the parties be 
unable to mutually agree on the selection of a neutral Arbitrator, selection for 
that given arbitration shall be made by seeking a list of seven (7) labor 
arbitrators with construction experience from the Federal Mediation and 
Conciliation Service and alternately striking names from the list of names on 
the list until the parties agree on an Arbitrator or until one name remains. 
The first party to strike a name from the list shall alternate between the party 
bringing forth the grievance and the party defending the grievance. District 
shall keep a record of the sequence and shall notify the parties to the 
grievance as to which party has the right to strike a name first. 

 

9.5 The Arbitrator shall conduct a hearing at which the parties to the grievance shall be 
entitled to present testimonial and documentary evidence. Hearings will be 



 

transcribed by a certified court reporter. The parties shall be entitled to file written 
briefs after the close of the hearing and receipt of the transcript. 

 
9.6 Upon expiration of the time for the parties to file briefs, the Arbitrator shall issue a 

written decision that will be served on all parties and on the District. The Arbitrator 
shall have the authority to utilize any equitable or legal remedy to prevent and/or cure 
any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement. The Arbitrator’s decision shall 
be final and binding as to all parties signatory to this Agreement. 

 
9.7 The cost of the Arbitrator and the court reporter, and any cost to pay for facilities for 

the hearing, shall be borne equally by the parties to the grievance. All other costs and 
expenses in connection with the grievance hearing shall be borne by the party who 
incurs them. 

 
9.8 The Arbitrator’s decision shall be confined to the issue(s) posed by the grievance, 

and the Arbitrator shall not have the authority to modify, amend, alter, add to or 
subtract from any provision of this Agreement. 

 
9.9 Any party to a grievance may invite the District to participate in resolution of a 

grievance. The District may, at its own initiative, participate in Steps 1 through 3 of 
the grievance procedure. 

 
9.10 In determining whether the time limits of Steps 2 through 4 of the grievance procedure 

have been met, a written referral or request shall be considered timely if it is personally 
delivered, sent by overnight mail or faxed within the five (5) working day period. Any 
of the time periods set forth in this Article may be extended in writing by mutual 
consent of the parties to the grievance, and any written referral or request shall be 
considered timely if it is personally delivered, sent by overnight mail or faxed during 
the extended time period. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

UNION SECURITY 

10.1 The Contractors recognize the Unions signatory to this Agreement as the sole 
bargaining representative of all craft employees performing Covered Work for the 
Project. 

 
10.2 All employees performing Covered Work shall, as a condition of employment on or 

before the eighth (8th) cumulative day of employment on the Project, be responsible 
for the payment of the applicable periodic working dues and any associated fees 
uniformly required for union membership in the local Union that is a signatory to this 
Agreement for the duration of his or her employment on the Project. Nothing in this 
Agreement is intended to prevent any non-union employees from joining the local 
Union. 

 
10.3 Authorized representatives of the Unions shall have access to the Project whenever 

Covered Work is or will be performed on the Project. All authorized representatives 



 

of the Union must comply with the required uniform check-in procedure prior to 
visiting the work area. 

 
10.4 Each Union shall have the right to designate a working journeyperson as a steward. 

The steward shall be a qualified employee performing the work of that craft and 
shall not exercise any supervisory functions. Each steward shall be concerned with 
the employees of the steward’s Contractor and not with the employees of any other 
Contractor. A steward shall be allowed sufficient time to perform his duties. 

 
ARTICLE 11 

REFERRAL-LOCAL HIRE 

11.1 Contractors performing Covered Work on the Project shall, in filling craft job 
vacancies, utilize and be bound by the registration facilities and referral systems 
established or authorized by the Unions signatory to this Agreement. Such Job 
Referral System shall be operated in a non-discriminatory manner and in full 
compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including those 
which require equal employment opportunities and non-discrimination. The 
Contractor(s) shall have the right to reject any applicant referred by the Union(s), in 
accordance with the applicable Master Agreement. The Unions shall be the primary 
source of all craft labor employed on the Project, however, an Contractor with a core 
workforce may request by name, and the local Union shall honor, referral of such 
Contractor’s regular and experienced personnel (“Core Employees”) who have 
applied to the applicable Union to perform Covered Work on the Project. For purposes 
of this Agreement, a Core Employee is a person who meets all of the following: 

(1) Possesses any license required by state or federal law for the Project 
work to be performed; 

 
(2) Worked a total of at least one thousand (1,000) hours in the construction 

craft during the prior two (2) years; 
 

(3) Has been on the Contractor’s active payroll for at least ninety (90) out of 
the one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days prior to the contract 
award; and 

 
(4) Has the ability to perform safely the basic functions of the applicable 
trade. 

 
11.2 The Union will refer to such Contractor one journeyman employee from the hiring 

hall out-of-work list for the affected trade or craft, and will then refer one of the 
Contractor’s Core Employees as a journeyman. The process will then be repeated, 
one for one, until such Contractor’s crew requirements are met, or until such 
Contractor has hired eight (8) Core Employees, whichever occurs first. Thereafter, 
all additional employees in the affected trade or craft shall be hired exclusively from 
the hiring hall out-of-work list(s). For the duration of the Contractor’s work on the 



 

Project, the ratio shall be maintained. When such Contractor’s workforce is reduced, 
employees shall be reduced in the same one for one ratio of Core Employees to 
hiring hall referrals as was applied in the initial hiring.  Contractors that are 
signatory to a Master Agreement with Union(s) signatory hereto must comply with 
the hiring hall provisions contained in the applicable Master Agreement, and nothing 
in the referral provisions of this Agreement shall be construed to supersede the local 
hiring hall provisions of the Master Agreement(s) as they apply to such Contractors. 

 
11.3 In the event the referral facilities maintained by the Unions do not refer the employees 

as requested by the Contractor within a forty-eight (48) hour period after such 
requisition is made by the Contractor (Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted), 
the Contractor may employ applicants from any source. Contractors shall 
immediately notify and provide the appropriate Union(s) with the name and address 
of such gate-hires, who shall be bound by the provisions of this Article. 

 
11.4 It is in the interest of the parties to this Agreement to facilitate employment of District 

and Local Area residents, including parents, guardians or other care givers of students 
attending the District’s schools, and to use resources in the Local Area in construction 
of a Project. The “Local Area” shall be defined as the area within the boundaries of 
the District, the City of Sacramento and Sacramento County. To the extent allowed by 
law, and consistent with the Union’s hiring hall provisions, and as long as they possess 
the requisite skills and qualifications, residents of the Local Area shall be first referred 
for Project work, including journeymen and apprentices covered by this Agreement. 
It is the goal of the parties that not less than fifty (50) percent of all hours worked on 
the Project, on a craft by craft basis, be worked by residents of the Local Area 
(including fifty (50) percent of the total hours worked by any Core Employees). 
Contractors will be required to submit certified weekly payroll records to the District 
along with monthly workforce utilization reports documenting the Contractor’s 
compliance with the requirements described in this Article. At a minimum, the 
monthly reports must include: 1) data on Local Area resident work hour utilization on 
the Project; and 2) documentation showing any requests made to the Union dispatchers 
for Local Area residents and the Union’s response to the request. An annual report 
shall be submitted to the Board on the number of workers employed, or contracted for, 
within the Local Area. 

 
ARTICLE 12 

APPRENTICES 

 

12.1  The parties recognize the need to maintain continuing support of programs designed to 
develop adequate numbers of competent workers in the construction industry, the 
Contractors will employ apprentices in the respective crafts to perform such work as 
is within their capabilities and which is customarily performed by the craft in which 
they are indentured. 



 

12.2. Apprentices may comprise up to thirty (30) percent of each craft’s work force at any 
time, unless the state approved apprenticeship standards or regulations or the 
applicable Master Agreement establish a lower maximum percentage. 

 
12.3  The parties agree to work with the Construction Technology Academy 

("Academy'') as set forth in Attachment B in order to carry out the training and 
employment objectives of this Agreement, including providing District 
students with the opportunities and skills necessary to enter post-secondary 
study and to pursue lifelong training within the broader context of the building 
trades industry, and to develop and reinforce academic course standards in 
order to maximize career opportunities and technical competency. 

 
ARTICLE 13 

 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
13.1 The Unions and Contractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, political 
affiliation, national origin, age, religion, Vietnam veteran or Vietnam Era status, 
disability as identified in the Americans with Disabilities Act, membership in a labor 
organization in hiring and dispatching workers for the Project, or any other basis 
recognized by law. The parties to this Agreement understand and agree that nothing 
in this Agreement shall supersede or take precedence over any District Board of 
Education policy or requirement including, but not limited to, the construction 
contract and general conditions for the Project. 

 
13.2 All qualified (as determined by the District and applicable law) contractors and 

subcontractors may bid and be awarded work on a Project without regard to whether 
they are otherwise parties to collective bargaining agreements provided they comply 
with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 14 

 
HOURS OF WORK, SHIFTS AND HOLIDAYS 

 

14.1 The standard work day shall be in accordance with the applicable Master 
Agreements. Common start times may be established by the Contractor during the 
standard work day established by the applicable Master Agreements. The standard 
work week shall be five (5) consecutive days of work commencing on Monday. 
Nothing herein shall be construed as guaranteeing any employee eight (8) hours of 
work per day or forty (40) hours of work per week. 

 
14.2 Common shifts may be established when considered necessary by the Contractor. 

The Contractor shall provide at least one week notice to the Council prior to any 
change in shift time. Any shifts established shall continue for the established work 
week. 



 

14.3 Recognized holidays shall be in accordance with the applicable Master Agreements. 
Under no circumstances shall any work be performed on Labor Day except in cases 
of emergency involving life or property. In the event a holiday falls on Saturday, the 
previous day, Friday, shall be observed as such holiday. In the event a holiday falls 
on Sunday, the following day, Monday, shall be observed as such holiday. There shall 
be no paid holidays. If employees are required to work on a holiday, they shall receive 
the appropriate rate, but in no case shall such overtime rate be more than double the 
straight time rate. 

 
ARTICLE 15 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1 If any article or provision of this Agreement shall become invalid, inoperative and/or 
unenforceable by operation of law or by declaration of any competent authority of the 
executive, legislative, judicial or administrative branches of the federal or state 
government, the District, the Contractors and the Council shall suspend the operation 
of such article or provision during the period of its invalidity, and the District and the 
Council shall negotiate in its place and stead an article or provision that will satisfy 
the objections to its validity and that, to the greatest extent possible, will be in accord 
with the intent and purpose of the article or provision in question. The new article or 
provision negotiated by the District and the Council shall be binding on all parties 
signatory to this Agreement. 

 
15.2 If any article or provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, inoperative or 

unenforceable by operation of law, or by any of the above mentioned tribunals of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement or application of such article 
or provision to persons or circumstances other than to which it has been held invalid, 
inoperative or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby. 

 
15.3 Except as enumerated in this Agreement, all other terms and conditions of 

employment described in the Master Agreement of the Union having traditional and 
customary jurisdiction over the Covered Work shall apply. 

 
15.4 The provisions of this Agreement shall take precedence over conflicting provisions of 

any Master Agreement or any other national, area or local collective bargaining 
agreement, except for all work performed under the NTL Articles of Agreement, the 
National Stack/Chimney Agreement and the National Cooling Tower Agreement. In 
addition, all instrument calibration work and loop checking Covered Work shall be 
performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW Joint National Agreement for Instrument 
and Control Systems Technicians, and work within the craft jurisdiction of the 
Elevator Constructors will be performed under the terms of the National Agreements 
of the International Union of Elevator Constructors. Notwithstanding the provisions 
of this section, Articles 5, 6 and 9 of this Agreement shall apply to all Covered Work. 

 
15.4 Each person executing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is 

authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party or parties indicated. 



 

15.5 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each 
counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document. All executed counterparts 
together shall constitute one and the same document, and any signature pages may 
be assembled to form a single original document. 

 
15.6 To the fullest extent consistent with the applicable Master Agreement and trust 

agreement, it is agreed that any liability under this Agreement by District, the Council, 
a Union, or any other Contractor shall be several and not joint. Any alleged breach of 
this Agreement by a party shall not affect the rights, liabilities, obligations, and duties 
among the other parties or between that party and any other party. 

 
ARTICLE 16 

HELMETS TO HARDHATS 

16.1 The Contractors and Unions recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the building 
and construction trades of veterans and members of the National Guard and Reserves 
who are interested in careers in the building and construction industry. The 
Contractors and Unions agree to utilize the services of the Center for Military 
Recruitment, Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter “Center”), a joint 
Labor-Management Cooperation Trust Fund, established under the authority of 
Section 6(b) of the Labor-Management Cooperation Act of 1978, 29 U.S.C. Section 
175(a), and Section 302(c)(9) of the Labor-Management Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. 
Section 186(c)(9), and a charitable tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code, and the Center’s “Helmets to Hardhats” program to 
serve as a resource for preliminary orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, 
referral to apprenticeship programs or hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, support 
network, employment opportunities and other needs as identified by the parties. 

 
16.2 The Unions and Contractors agree to coordinate with the Center to create and 

maintain an integrated database of veterans and members of the National Guard and 
Reserves interested in working on this Project and of apprenticeship and employment 
opportunities for this Project. To the extent permitted by law, the Contractors and 
Unions will give credit to such veterans and members of the National Guard and 
Reserves for bona fide, provable past experience. 

 
ARTICLE 17 

 

DURATION OF AGREEMENT; MID-TERM ASSESSMENT 
 
 

17.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of four (4) years 
from the date approved by the Board of Education on November 16, 2017. 
Notwithstanding the term of the Agreement as set forth above, the Agreement 
will continue to apply until the completion of all Covered Work pursuant to 
Section 2.1 where the initial bid for any Construction Contract for a Project is 



 

awarded or approved by the Board on or before the date the Agreement 
terminates. 

 
17.2 At the two year mark, a mid-term assessment, including mutually agreed upon 

metrics, shall be reported to the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

SIGNATURES 
 
 

Sacram to City Uni ed School District 
 

’ 
Nam  . (ay seu 
Ti  e: resi t 

 
 

Sacramento-Sierra Building and 
Construction Trades Council 

 

 
Title: President 

UNIONS 

Date: Decembei , 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:      / ' '  



 

UNIONS 
 

es o o ke o 6 
 
 

 
 
 

Boilermske 
 

 
 
 
 

JNorthem CaliFomia Carpenters Itegional Council UA of Joume$  n A Apprentíces o£the 
on behal£of itselr «nd its affili8ted Local Unions Flumbi›!B P+ ! 1+ irlg Ind, Local //3S5 

 

  
District Council #16 International 
Union of Painters A Allied Tmdes 

 
 
 

e tor C ucto o 8 
 
 
 
 

 

International Brotherhood of Electricians 
Local #340 

 
 
 
 

 

Sprinkler Fitters Local #669 
 
 
 

Asbestos, Lea and Mold Laborers 
Locat //67 

Plumbers & Pipefitters Local #447 
 

 

Sheet Metab9/orkers Local #104 
 
 

Bricklayers ocal #3 

 

Laborers L 

 
 

ons otal #400  eme t asons Local d300 

 
 

 

 
 

Teamst«rs Lg in #150 

  

 

oca 549 



 

 
 
 

Iron Workers Local # 118 
 

 
 
 

  

Boilermakers Local #549 
 
 
 

Cement Masons Local #400 

Operating Engineers Local #3 
 
 
 
 

Plasterers & Cement Masons Local #300 

 
 
 
 

  

Northern California Carpenters Regional Council UA of Journeymen & Apprentices of the 
on behalf of itself and its affiliated Local Unions Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind. Local #355 

 
 
 
 

District Council #16 International 
Union of Painters & Allied Trades 

 
 
 

Elevator Constructors Local #8 
 
 
 

International Brotherhood or Electricians 
Local #340 

 
 
 
 

Sprinkler Fieers Local #659 
 
 
 

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 
Local #67 

 
 

 

 
 
Laborers cal d 185 

 

 

  

Tea sters 

 
 

Asbestos Workers Local #l 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Asbeatoc Workers Locsl 4I6 
 
 
 

Brlcltlayee Local #3 
 
 

Tfofl WOrkWS Loc8l #) 18 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

0 •rati»g Engineers Local #3 
 
 
 
 

  

CemeRt IYlasohs local #400 Plastarars A Ccmcnt Masons Locat #300 
 
 
 
 

Northern Califbmie Carpenters RogioaaJ Council UA of'Joufnayman A Apprentices of the 
off bshalfo7lMlf ant its affiliated Lo«al Unions Plumbing A Plpo Fitting Ind. Local #355 

 
 
 
 

  

Dlstrict Council #16 IntomaHonal 
Unlox o£Paintoe & Allied Tzados 

 
 

Elevator Coestnistois Locat £8 
 
 
 

International Brotherhood of Electtlclaris 
Local f1340 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Lz›•él #67 

Plumbers A Pipofiaats Local #447 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Sheet Mea! Workers Local HI04 
 
 
 
 

Tcamstsrs Local 4I50 



 

 

 

 

 
   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asbcstos W“orkets Locвl #l6 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Boilemiakers Lncal 11549 
 
 

  'Ë*›È*flÈ  
Ccm‹ntM€ons1ocal#400 

 
 

 
Ï'tortlmeimi СаїїГогпів Carpenlers Ïtegiorial Council 
оп bchalf of itselfand its affillated Locвl Unioos 

 
 
 

District Councll #16 lntemationnl 
Union оГ Paintвrs & Alli«d Tradcs 

 
 
 

EbV9(0fC*+Ш(UCtO(SLOCШ#8 
 
 
 
 

LюraI k340 
 
 
 

 
 

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 
Local #67 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Asbestos Workers Local # 16 
 
 
 
 

Bricklnyers Local #3 
 
 
 

Doilermokeis Local iI549 
 
 
 

CcmentMwonsLocn!#400 
 
 

 
NOIt)tefz\ CaliÉofzll8 C0F]Jafttefs ÏtegÏOnBl C0\JhCIl 
on 8cl›xlF of ikelF and its affiliated Local Unlons 

 

Unlon of Polnters & Allled Trades 
 
 
 

Elevotor Constructora Local ï/8 
 
 
 

ïnternati0h8l Brotherhood of Electrlcians 
Local #340 

 
 
 

Spi»khrMuozLoNf669 
 
 
 

Asbestos, Lcad ond Mold Labofers 
Local à67 

lroo Work•rs Local #118  

Loborers Local #185  

 
 
 

Ope%ingEnginexsLoua1#3  
 
 

 
Plaslerers & Cemcnt Mtsons Local #30IJ 

 
 
 

UA  rz«umeylTlGR & Appentl•« r‹h+  
Plumbing & Pipc F'lttíng Ind. Lotol #355 

 
 
 

Plumbors & Plpefitters Local #447 
 
 

RoDÉOFS ÈOCB) Èg I  

 
 
 

Sheet Metal Workefs Local #104 
 
 
 
 

TeBmsters Local #ï 50 



 

 
 
 
 

Asbestos Workers Local #16  
 
 
 

Bd leyeisLocsl#3  
 
 
 

@D))GfTfI8f¢C‹s L»cal #549 
 
 
 

Plxstcrcrs A Cmc»t Masons L0cBI /f300 
 
 
 
 

Northern Califomla Carpenters Regional Council UA o(Jounieyinen & Apprentices of the 
on behalf of itself and Its affiliated Local Unlons Plumblng & Plpc Flttlng Ind. Local #3S5 

 
 
 
 

 

District Council #16 International 
Union of Painters & Allied Trades 

 

 
 
 
 

Intcmakonal Brotherhood oF Elcctrlctana 
kocal #340 

 
 
 

Spd rF1mmLooN*569 
 
 
 

Local #d7 

Flumbers & Pipefiticrs Lotal #447 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

S tMa*1Ww*mLxa1#1D4 
 
 
 
 
 



 

UNIONS 
 
 

  

Asbestos Workers Local #16 
 
 
 

Bricklayers Local #3 
 
 
 

Boilermakers Local #549 
 
 
 

Cement Masons Local #400 

Iron Workers Local #118 
 
 
 

Laborers Local #185 
 
 
 
 

Operating Engineers Local #3 
 
 
 
 

Plasterers & Cement Masons Local #300 

 
 
 
 

  

Northern California Carpenters Regional UA of Journeymen & Apprentices of the 
Council on behalf of itself and its affiliated Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind. Local #355 
Local Unions 

 
 
 
 

  

District Council #16 International 
Union of Painters & Allied Trades 

 
 

Elevator Constructors Local #8 

Plumbers & Pipefitters Local #447 
 
 
 
 

Roofers Local #81 

 
 
 
 

  

International Brotherhood of Electricians Sheet Metal Workers Local #104 
Local #340 

 
 
 
 

Teamsters Local #150 
 
 

22 

 
 

 



 

S:07# ,zțl LTE 
 

Done SMUD PCC with NABTU Letter... @ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Uclœ of Pskłxrs A Alłł‹d TæÆs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LocB) d67  

 
MüONS 

 
Ast›estos Workers Locol //16 

 
 
 

Bricklayers Local ÍI3 
 
 
 

Boilermakers Local #549 
 
 
 

Cemcnt Masons Local #400 

lron Wotkcrs Locol II118 
 
 
 
 

LBborers Locol k ï 85 
 

 
 
 
 

Plnsturcrs & Ciment Mnsons Locol #300 

 
 
 
 

  

N  «› cu‹r i• Carpenters Regional Council UA r« «ymen & Apprentices of the 
on behalf of itself and its affilieted Local Unions Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind, Local f/355 

 
 
 
 

  

Dhk1tCouooiAl6WMmoüon@ 
UWonof?Wnom&A0%dTmdw 

 

 
E)CVB(O COASWGtoMLocM#8 

 
 
 
 

lntemational Brotlierhood of Eleclricians 
Looal#340 

 
 
 

Sprinkler Fitters Local #669 
 

 
Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 

 
 
 

tÍhg flllgÍil8Crs Local 113 



LocB) d67 

 

Plumbers & Pipefitters Local Ií447 
 
 
 
 

Roofers Local #81 
 
 
 
 

Sltget Metal Workers Local k 104 
 
 
 
 
 

Teamsters Local #l50 



Local #67  

 
 
 

MПONS 
 
 

  

Asbestos Workers Locol #16 
 
 
 

Bdckloy«uLocx1#3 
 
 
 

Boilenmoйcn LosotQ549 
 
 
 

Ccment Masons Loral 3400 

Iron Workзrs Local #118 
 
 
 
 

Laborers Locкl k 185 
 
 
 
 

OpemhngEngincccL<юal#3 

 
 
 
 

  

Nortliem Colifomia Cnrpenleis Regional Council UA of Joumeymen & Apprcntices of lhc 
b hm г іь•іг• z i mii ‹ed Local Unions Plumbing А Fipe Fiitlny Ind. Local #355 

 
 
 
 

  

District Cou4cil #16 lntemationзl 
Union г rBlntcrs А Allicd Trcdcs 

 
 

Elзvator Constructors Locol #8 
 
 
 
 

Internatioaal Brotl erhood of Electricians 
Local #340 

 
 
 

Sprinklcr Fitters Local #669 
 
 
 

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 

 



Local #67 

 

Plumbots & Pipeйnets Loвnl #447 
 
 
 

Roofcrs Locвl g8I 
 
 
 

SI1eet Mela) Workers Local #104 
 
 
 
 

Teamsleri Locnl J 150 



Local #67  

 
 

UNIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Bricklaycrs Local #3 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Ccment Masons Letal #400 

 
Laborers Loc8I #l85 

 
 
 

Opcruting Engineers Local b3 "° “” 
 
 
 

Plasicme & Cemcnt Masons Local #300 

 
 
 

Northern California Carpenters Regional Council UA oume en pp ices of the 
on bahalf of itself and its offillated Local Unions Plumbing & Pipe FittinB Ind. Locol 1t355 

 
 
 
 

 
Union of P0ifltCrs A Alli4d Trades 

 
 
 

Elevotor Constructois Local #8 
 
 
 

International Brotherhood of Electricians 
Locet /t340 

 
 
 

8prinkler Fitters Locar 4669 
 
 

Asbestos, Lcad and Mld Laborers 



Local #67 

 

Plunibers & Pipofittets Locnl #447 
 
 
 
 
 
 

shect M•utl Work•rs L»cal #104
 
” 

 
 
 
 



 

UNIONS 
 
 

  

Asbestos Worlcei’s Local #16 
 
 
 

Bi'ic1‹1ayei’s Local #3 
 
 

Boilei’ma1cei’s Local #549 
 
 

Cement Masons Local #400 
 
 

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 
Local #67 

 
 

Disti’ict Council #16 International 
Uiuon of Paintei’s & Allied Ti’ades 

 
 

Elevator Consti’uctoi‘s Local #8 

Ii’on Worlcei’s local #118 
 
 
 

Laboi’ei’s Local #185 
 
 
 

Operating Engineer’s Local #3 
 
 
 

Plastei’ei’s & Cement Masons Local #300 
 
 
 

UA of Journeymen & App1’entices of the 
Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind, Local #355 

 
 
 

Plumbel’s & Pipefitters Local #447 

 
 
 

  

International Bi‘other1iood of Electricians Sheet Metal Wor1‹ei's Local #104 
Local#340 

 
 
 

  

Sprin1‹1er Fitters Local #669 
 
 
 

 

Northern California Carpenters Regional 
Council on behalf of itself and its affiliated 
Local Unions 

 
 

4518-0 13j 

Teainstei's Local #150 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 

 



 

 
UDüONS 

 
 

 

Asbestos Workers Locol #16 
 
 
 

Bnct)eyenLoca1#3 
 
 
 

Boilewakcrs Local 8549 
 
 
 

CementMssonsLocal#400 

lrou Worbets Local li118 
 
 
 
 

Laboters Lecai #183 
 
 
 

O¡mGngEngincersLoca1#3 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Norihern Califomia Carpenteis Regional Council UA of Journeymcn & Apprcntices of the 
on beholdof itself and its affilinted Local Unions Plumbing & Pipe Fitting led. Locol #355 

 
 
 
 

 

District Council #16 International 
Union of Painters & Allied Ttades 

 
 

Elevator Coastrtictors Local d8 
 
 
 

lntematiotifll Brotherhood of Electricians 
Local 11340 

 
 
 

Sprinkler Fitters Local f/669 
 
 

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laboters 
Local #67 

Plumbers & Pipefittors Locnl ïI447 
 
 
 
 

Roofcrs Local #81 
 
 
 

Sheet Metal Wotkers Local #104 
 
 
 
 

Teamslers Local #150 



 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 
 

Project:   
Bid Number  _ 

 
 

AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 
 

1.) It is a Contractor as that term is defined in Section 1.7 of the Sacramento City 
Unified School District Agreement (“Agreement”) because it has been, or will be, 
awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work (as 
defined in Section 2.3) on the Project (as defined in Section 1.9), or to authorize 
another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered 
Work. 

 
2.) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 

consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

 
3.) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust 

agreements designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby 
authorizes the parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor 
trustee to administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so 
appointed as if made by the undersigned. 

 
4.) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 

compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 

5.) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
document, from any Contractor(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to 
assign, award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, 
award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work, and it will 
provide a copy of such executed Agreement to be Bound to the Sacramento-Sierra 



 

Building & Construction Trades Council within fifteen (15) days of such contracting 
or subcontracting in accordance with Section 3.2 of the Agreement. 

 
 

DATED:    Name of Contractor    
 
 

(Authorized Officer & Title) 
 
 
 
 

(Address) 



 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 
 

Project:   
Bid Number  _ 

 
Construction Technology Academy. The parties have agreed to work with the 
Construction Technology Academy ("Academy'') operated at the Sacramento City Unified 
School District's comprehensive high schools to carry out the training a n d employment 
objectives of this Attachment B. The overall objectives are to: 

 
(a) offer opportunities and skills necessary to enter post-secondary study and to 

pursue lifelong learning within the broader context of the building trades 
industry and construction management industry; and 

 
(b) develop and reinforce academic course contents standards in order to 

maximize career opportunities and technical competency. 

Academy Steering Committee. In order to facilitate the goals of the Academy,  the District 
and Council agree to create a steering committee ( “ C om m i t t e e” ) which will conduct 
meetings as determined by the District during the school year to develop the goals of the 
Academy; plan for the presentation and content of training lectures to facilitate employable 
skills in the construction trades; develop a summer schedule for training; organize and develop 
summer internship positions; assist in planning curriculum scope and sequencing; design co- 
curricular activities; identify sources for educational and financial support; and otherwise 
initiate steps to carry out the goals of the Academy. 

 
The committee shall consist of eight (8) members, with three (3) of the members representing 
building trades JATCs, two (2) members representing the Sacramento-Sierra Building and 
Construction Trades Council (“Council”) and three (3) members representing the District. The 
Academy Steering Committee, in coordination with the District's Career Services 
representative, shall develop and implement a plan for annual assessment of the goals and 
objectives of Attachment B in order to maximize the employability of the summer interns 
described below. A quorum for the Committee meeting shall be at least one member 
representing the building trades JATCs; one member representing the Council; and  one 
member representing the District. 

 
(1) Annual Training Summer Sessions. Annual summer intern training 

sessions developed by the Academy Steering Committee shall be made 
available for qualified District students nominated by the District and 
accepted by the Academy Steering Committee. 

 
(a) Purpose of Summer Training Sessions. The purpose of the summer intern 

training sessions is to teach the interns employable skills in the construction 
trades and soft job skills applicable to any job setting. The skills sets to be 
taught will be determined by the Academy Steering 



 

Committee. Examples of such are work site safety, proper use of 
construction tools, general employability skills and drug and alcohol 
information. The sessions shall include classroom and job visit 
components. 

 
(b) Number of Interns. The goal for the summer programs for the term of 

the Agreement shall be a maximum of twenty (20) internships available 
for students nominated by the District and approved by the Academy 
Steering Committee. The actual number of interns shall be determined 
and selected by the District. 

 
(c) Number and Scope of Training Sessions. For the first year, the number 

of summer training sessions shall not be less than eight (8) with each 
session lasting a minimum of four (4) hours. The scope of the training 
sessions, and the presenters, shall be developed by the Academy Steering 
Committee. The location of the summer training centers will be at a JATC 
and the JATC’s will provide presenters. Attendances at the training 
sessions are mandatory in order to be eligible for a summer internship. 

(d) Cost. The District shall incur the costs of the interns. After the first year, a 
report shall be submitted to the Board of the costs incurred by the District 
and the costs incurred as provided by the Council, through the local 
Unions. 

 
(2) Employment of Interns. The interns shall be paid an hourly rate as required 

by law, but not for periods of time attending the classroom training sessions. 
The training sessions shall occur over a minimum of four (4) and maximum of 
five (5) weeks. The number of interns each year shall be determined by the 
District pursuant to (1)(b) above. Due to safety, prevailing wage and state law 
restrictions, the interns shall not be employed directly on the public works 
projects that are the subject of the Project Labor Agreement and this 
Attachment B. 

 
(3) Intern Program and Priority on California Apprenticeship Council 

Approved Program Apprenticeship Lists. 
 

(a) Post-graduate Training. The Academy Steering Committee will 
collaborate with post-graduate training programs, such as the Northern 
California Construction Training and American River College’s Stripe 
Program, in order to assist graduates in obtaining an internship into a 
JATC. 

 
(b) Priority on Apprenticeship List. The training and employment program of 

the interns shall be developed by the Academy Steering Committee such 
that graduating interns shall possess the skills, training, and educational 
background to help the graduate achieve priority on the lists of the building 
trades to the degree allowed under each JATC’s application process 



 

including those programs that allow direct entry. It is recognized that the 
Apprenticeship Programs operate according to existing Standards approved 
by the California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards, and the standards set forth in the collective 
bargaining agreements for each building trades union and that any such 
priority shall be in accordance with such Standards and agreements. 

 
(4) District Staff Training.  The parties have also agreed that the Academy Steering 

Committee will explore opportunities to utilize the Academy’s construction skills 
training program, including work site safety and proper use of construction tools, 
to enhance the skills of District maintenance and construction staff. 

 
(5) Binding Effect. This Attachment B shall be deemed incorporated into the 

Agreement as if set forth fully and at length in the Agreement and is binding in 
accordance with its terms. However, nothing in this Attachment B shall supersede 
the provisions of the Project Labor Agreement, a Master Agreement or the 
approved standards for any building trades' union apprenticeship program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J:\wdocs\00736\019\agt\00543182.DOCX 



 

Currently being routed for signatures - will replace 
with executed copy when available. 

Exhibit H to Facilities Lease (Continued) 
Amendment Extending Term of 

Project Labor Agreement 
for the 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
 

This Amendment ("Amendment") to the Project Labor Agreement for the Sacramento City 
Unified School District (“PLA”) is entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified 
School District (“District”), together with contractors and/or subcontractors who previously 
became signatory to the PLA and this Amendment by signing the “Agreement To Be Bound” 
(PLA Attachment A), and the Sacramento-Sierra Building & Construction Trades Council 
(“Council”) and the local Unions that have executed this Amendment (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the PLA on or about November 16, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 17.1 of the PLA provides the term of the PLA shall be for a period of four (4) 
years from the date approved by the District’s Board of Education on November 16, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend the term of the PLA for a period of six (6) months through 
and including May 16, 2022. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. The term of the PLA shall be extended to May 16, 2022. 

 
2. This Amendment shall not alter or affect in any way any other portion of the PLA. 

All other terms of the PLA remain in full force and effect. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Amendment on the dates set forth below. 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 

 
Name: Christina Pritchett 
Title: President 

 
 

Sacramento-Sierra Building and 
Construction Trades Council 

Date: November , 2021 

 

 
Name: Kevin Ferreira 
Title: President 

Date:     



 

UNIONS 
 
 
 

Asbestos Workers Local #16 Iron Workers Local #118 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers 
Local #67 

Laborers Local #185 

 
 
 
 

  

Boilermakers Local #549 Northern California Carpenters Regional 
Council on behalf of itself and its affiliated 
Local Unions 

 
 
 
 

  

Bricklayers Local #3 Operating Engineers Local # 3 
 
 
 
 

Cement Masons Local #400 Plasterers & Cement Masons Local #300 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

District Council #16 International Union of 
Painters & Allied Trades 

Plumbers & Pipefitters Local #447 

 
 

  

Elevator Constructors Local #8 Roofers Local #81 
 
 
 
 

  

International Brotherhood of Electricians 
Local #340 

Sheet Metal Workers Local #104 



 

 
 
 

 

Sprinkler Fitters Local #669 
 
 
 
 

Teamsters Local #150 
 
 
 
 

UA of Journeymen & Apprentices of the 
Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind. Local #355 



RECOMMENDED LEASE-LEASEBACK AWARDS – 
FACILITIES PROJECTS 

 
Project:  John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project   
   

Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with  Landmark Construction  

 

 For preconstruction services of $10, 636.00 for this project.   
       

Authorize staff to pursue a lease-leaseback contract with Landmark Construction     
         

for construction services for this project using a fee-based contract with a percentage fee of 5.50%.  

 

The cost of construction is estimated at $3,800,000.00.  Once the final construction cost   
      

has been determined the construction contract will be submitted to the Board for approval.   

Amount / Funding: ESSER and ?? (For the Roof Portion)  

 

State legislation (AB2316) made significant changes to K-12 lease-leaseback statutes, Education Code 

§17400 et seq.  AB2316 requires a competitive process in selecting the lease-leaseback contractor, 

and authorizes pre-construction services by the same lease-leaseback contractor. 

Per AB2316, staff solicited a “Request for Qualifications and Proposals” by publicly advertising to 

contractors. Three (3) proposals were received, evaluated, and ranked by a Selection Advisory 

Committee composed of District operational staff, the project Architect and Construction Manager, 

based on scoring criteria outlined in the RFQ/P.  The top (3) contractors were interviewed and evaluated 

by the Selection Advisory Committee to determine the “best value”.  

 

 

    



SITE LEASE 
 

For all or a portion of the following Site: 
 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
Recorded Address: 6749 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
Physical Address: 6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
APN: 030-0370-021 

 
By and between 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 
And 

 
Landmark Construction  
4312 Anthony Court, Ste. B 
Rocklin, CA  95677 

 
Dated as of May 19, 2022 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 1  

SITE LEASE 
 

This site lease (“Site Lease”) dated as of May 19, 2022(“Effective Date”), is made and 
entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly 
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California, as lessor (“District”), 
and Landmark Construction (“Developer”), a [California corporation] duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of [California], as lessee (together, the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the District currently owns a parcel of land located at 6715 Gloria Dr. 
Sacramento, CA 95831, known as John F. Kennedy High School, as more particularly 
described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference (“Site”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for the development and construction of 

certain work to be performed on portions of the Site, including construction of improvements 
to be known as the John F. Kennedy C-Wing Replacement Project (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, as more particularly described in the Facilities Lease between the Parties 

dated as of the Effective Date, the Developer agrees to perform the work of the Project and 
lease the completed Project and Site back to the District (“Facilities Lease”), which Facilities 
Lease is incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the District (“Board”) has determined that it is in 

the best interests of the District and for the common benefit of the citizens residing in the 
District to construct the Project by leasing the Site to Developer and by immediately entering 
into the Facilities Lease under which District will construct the Project and lease back the 
completed Project and Site from Developer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District further determines that it has entered into this Site Lease and 

the Facilities Lease pursuant to Education Code section 17406 as the best available and most 
expeditious means for the District to satisfy its substantial need for the facilities to be provided 
by the Project and to accommodate and educate District students; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Site Lease and Facilities Lease are awarded based on a competitive 

solicitation process pursuant to Education Code section 17406 and in compliance with the 
required procedures and guidelines for evaluating the qualifications of proposers adopted and 
published by the Board to the proposer providing the best value to the school district, taking 
into consideration the proposer’s demonstrated competence and professional qualifications 
necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required; and 

 
WHEREAS, the selection of the Developer was conducted in a fair and impartial 

manner; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings, the District is authorized under Education 
Code section 17406 to lease the Site to Developer and to have Developer develop and cause 
the construction of the Project thereon and lease the completed Project and Site back to the 
District by means of the Facilities Lease, and the Board has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Site Lease in order to effectuate the foregoing; and 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 2  

WHEREAS, the Parties have performed all acts, conditions and things required by law 
to exist, to have happened, and to have been performed prior to and in connection with the 
execution and entering into this Site Lease, and those conditions precedent do exist, have 
happened, and have been performed in regular and due time, form, and manner as required 
by law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute and enter into this Site 
Lease; and 

 
WHEREAS, Developer as lessee is authorized and competent to lease the Site from 

District and to develop and cause the construction of the Project on the Site, and has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of this Site Lease. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and of the mutual covenants 

contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Definitions 

 

Unless the context clearly otherwise requires, all words and phrases defined in the Facilities 
Lease shall have the same meaning in this Site Lease. 

 
2. Exhibits 

 

The following Exhibits are attached to and by reference incorporated and made a part of this 
Site Lease. 

 
2.1. Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Site: The legal description of the real 
property constituting the Site. 

 
2.2. Exhibit B - Description of the Project: The map or diagram depiction of the 
Project on the Site. 

 
3. Lease of the Site 

 

The District hereby leases to the Developer, and the Developer hereby leases from the District 
the Site, subject only to Permitted Encumbrances, in accordance with the provisions of this 
Site Lease, to have and to hold for the term of this Site Lease. This Site Lease shall only take 
effect if the Facilities Lease is executed by the District and Developer within three (3) days of 
execution of this Site Lease. 

 
4. Leaseback of the Project and Site 

 

The Parties agree that the completed Project and Site will be leased back to the District 
pursuant to the Facilities Lease for the term thereof. 

 
5. Term 

 

The term of this Site Lease shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall terminate on 
the last day of the Term of the Facilities Lease, provided the District has paid to the Developer, 
or its assignee, all payments which may be due under the Facilities Lease, and provided this 
Site Lease has not been terminated pursuant to the termination provisions of the Facilities 
Lease. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 3  

6. Payment 
 

In consideration for the lease of the Site by the District to the Developer and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District upon 
execution of this Site Lease. 

 
7. Termination 

 

7.1. Termination Upon Purchase of Project 
 

If the District exercises its option to purchase the Project pursuant to the Facilities 
Lease, then this Site Lease shall terminate concurrently with the District’s buy out and 
termination of the Facilities Lease. 

 
7.2. Termination Due to Default by Developer 

 
If Developer defaults pursuant to the provision(s) of the Facilities Lease and the District 
terminates the Facilities Lease pursuant to the Facilities Lease provision(s) allowing 
termination, then the Developer shall be deemed to be in default of this Site Lease and 
this Site Lease shall also terminate at the same time as the Facilities Lease. 

 
7.3. Termination Due to Default by District 

 
If District defaults pursuant to the provision(s) of the Facilities Lease, the Developer, 
or its assignee, will have the right, for the then remaining term of this Site Lease, to: 

 
7.3.1. Take possession of the Site. 

 
7.3.2. If it deems it appropriate, cause appraisal of the Site and a study of the 
then reasonable uses thereof. 

 
7.3.3. Re-let the Site; and 

 
7.3.4. Stop all Work associated with the Site Lease. 

 
8. Title to Site 

 

During the term of this Site Lease, the District shall hold fee title to the Site, including the 
Site, and nothing in this Site Lease or the Facilities Lease shall change, in any way, the 
District’s ownership interest in the Site. 

 
9. Improvements 

 

Title to all improvements made on the Site during the term hereof shall be held, vest and 
transfer pursuant to the terms of the Facilities Lease. 

 
10. No Merger 

 

The leaseback of the completed Project and Site by the Developer to the District pursuant to 
the Facilities Lease shall not effect or result in a merger of the estates of the District in the 
Site, and the Developer shall continue to have a leasehold estate in the Site pursuant to this 
Site Lease throughout the term hereof. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 4  

11. Right of Entry 
 

The District reserves the right for any of its duly authorized representatives to enter upon the 
Site at any reasonable time to inspect the same, provided the District follows all safety 
precautions required by the Developer. 

 
12. Quiet Enjoyment 

 

Subject to any rights the District may have under the Facilities Lease (in the absence of an 
Event of Default) to possession and enjoyment of the Site, the District hereby covenants and 
agrees that it will not take any action to prevent the Developer from having quiet and 
peaceable possession and enjoyment of the Site during the term hereof and will, at the 
request of the Developer, to the extent that it may lawfully do so, join in any legal action in 
which the Developer asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment. 

 
13. Waste 

 

The Developer agrees that at all times that it is in possession of the Site, it will not commit, 
suffer or permit any waste on the Site, and that it will not willfully or knowingly use or permit 
the use of the Site for any illegal purpose or act. 

 
14. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments 

 

The Parties shall, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further 
instruments as may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect 
description of the Site hereby leased or intended so to be or for carrying out the expressed 
intention of this Site Lease and the Facilities Lease. 

 
15. Representations of the District 

 

The District represents, covenants and warrants to the Developer as follows: 
 

15.1. Due Organization and Existence 
 

The District is a school district, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and 
laws of the State of California. 

 
15.2. Authorization 

 
The District has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver 
this Site Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has duly 
authorized the execution of this Site Lease. 

 
15.3. No Violations 

 
To the best of the District’s actual knowledge, neither the execution and delivery of 
this Site Lease nor the Facilities Lease, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the 
terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, 
conditions or provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which 
the District is now a party or by which the District is bound, or constitutes a default 
under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 5  

or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the District, or upon 
the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

 
15.4. CEQA Compliance 

 
The District has complied with all assessment requirements imposed upon it by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resource Code Section 21000 et seq. 
(“CEQA”) in connection with the Project, and no further environmental review of the 
Project is necessary pursuant to CEQA before the construction of the Project may 
commence. 

 
15.5. Condemnation Proceedings 

 
15.5.1. District covenants and agrees, but only to the extent that it may lawfully 
do so, that so long as this Site Lease remains in effect, the District will not seek to 
exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to the Project so as to cause a 
full or partial termination of this Site Lease and the Facilities Lease. 

 
15.5.2. If for any reason the foregoing covenant is determined to be 
unenforceable or in some way invalid, or if District should fail or refuse to abide by 
such covenant, then, to the extent they may lawfully do so, the Parties agree that 
the financial interest of Developer shall be as indicated in the Facilities Lease. 

 
15.6. Use and Zoning 

 
To the best of the District’s actual knowledge, the Site is properly zoned for its intended 
purpose and the use or activities contemplated by this Site Lease will not conflict with 
local, state or federal law. 

 
15.7. Taxes 

 
To the best of the District’s actual knowledge, all taxes and assessments are paid 
current and such taxes and assessments will continue to be paid to the extent that the 
District is not exempt. 

 
16. Representations of the Developer 

 

The Developer represents, covenants and warrants to the District as follows: 
 

16.1. Due Organization and Existence 
 

The Developer is a [California company] duly organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of [California], has power to enter into this Site Lease and the Facilities 
Lease; is possessed of full power to lease, leaseback, and hold real and personal 
property and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of all of the aforesaid 
agreements. 

 
16.2. Authorization 

 
The Developer has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver 
this Site Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has duly 
authorized the execution of this Site Lease. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 6  

16.3. No Violations 
 

Neither the execution and delivery of this Site Lease or the Facilities Lease, nor the 
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 
results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 
agreement or instrument to which the Developer is now a party or by which the 
Developer is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in 
the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of 
the property or assets of the Developer, or upon the Site, except for Permitted 
Encumbrances. 

 
16.4. No Bankruptcy 

 
Developer is not now nor has it ever been in bankruptcy or receivership. 

 
16.5. No Litigation 

 
There is no pending or, to the knowledge of Developer, threatened action or proceeding 
before any court or administrative agency which will materially adversely affect the 
ability of Developer to perform its obligations under this Site Lease or the Facilities 
Lease. 

 
17. Insurance and Indemnity 

 

The Developer and the District shall comply with the insurance requirements and the 
indemnity requirements as indicated in the Facilities Lease. 

 
18. Assignment and Subleasing 

 

This Site Lease may be assigned and/or the Site subleased, as a whole or in part, by the 
Developer only upon the prior written consent of the District to such assignment or sublease, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
19. Restrictions on District 

 

The District agrees that it will not mortgage, sell, encumber, assign, transfer or convey the 
Site or any portion thereof during the term of this Site Lease in any way that would interfere 
with or diminish Developer’s interests indicated in this Site Lease. 

 
20. Liens and Further Encumbrances 

 

Developer agrees to keep the Site and every part thereof free and clear of any and all 
encumbrances and/or liens, including without limitation, pledges, charges, encumbrances, 
claims, mechanic liens and/or other liens for or arising out of or in connection with work or 
labor done, services performed, or materials or appliances used or furnished for or in 
connection with the Site or the Project. Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer further 
agrees to pay promptly and fully and discharge any and all claims on which any encumbrance 
and/or lien may or could be based, and to save and hold District free and harmless from any 
and all such liens, mortgages, and claims of liens and suits or other proceedings pertaining 
thereto. This subsection does not apply to Permitted Encumbrances. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 7  

21. Notices 
 

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall 
be deemed to have been received five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail in 
registered or certified form with postage fully prepaid or one (1) business day after deposit 
with an overnight delivery service with proof of actual delivery: 

 
If to District: If to Developer: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
Attn: Contracts Department 

Landmark Construction  
Anthony Court Ste. B 
Rocklin, CA  95677 
Attn: Kevin Brennan, 
Principal-in/Charge 

With a copy to: With a copy to: 

Deidree Sakai, Esq. 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street, Suite 400 
San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

 
The Developer and the District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses 
to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 

 
22. Binding Effect 

 

This Site Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Developer and the 
District and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
23. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver 

 

In the event any agreement contained in this Site Lease should be breached by either party 
and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach 
so waived and shall not be deemed to waive future compliance with any term hereof or any 
other breach hereunder. 

 
24. Severability 

 

In the event any provision of this Site Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any 
other provision hereof, unless elimination of such invalid provision materially alters the rights 
and obligations embodied in this Site Lease or the Facilities Lease. 

 
25. Amendments, Changes and Modifications 

 

Except as to the termination rights of both Parties as indicated in the Facilities Lease, this Site 
Lease may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated without the written 
agreement of both Parties hereto. 

 
26. Obligations Absolute 

 

The Developer agrees that the obligations of the Developer are absolute and unconditional 
and not subject to any charges or setoffs against the District whatsoever. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 8  

27. Execution in Counterparts 
 

This Site Lease may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original 
and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
28. Developer and District Representatives 

 

Whenever under the provisions of this Site Lease approval by the Developer or the District is 
required, or the Developer or the District is required to take some action at the request of the 
other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Developer by the Developer 
Representative and for the District by the District Representative, and any party hereto shall 
be authorized to rely upon any such approval or request. 

 
29. Applicable Law 

 

This Site Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of California, and venued in the County within which the Site is located. 

 
30. Attorney's Fees 

 

If either party brings an action or proceeding involving the Site or to enforce the terms of this 
Site Lease or to declare rights hereunder, each party shall bear the cost of its own attorneys’ 
fees. 

 
31. Captions 

 

The captions or headings in this Site Lease are for convenience only and in no way define, 
limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Site Lease. 

 
32. Prior Agreements 

 

This Site Lease and the corresponding Facilities Lease collectively contain all of the 
agreements of the Parties hereto with respect to any matter covered or mentioned in this Site 
Lease and no prior agreements or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be 
effective for any purpose. 

 
33. Further Assurances 

 

Parties shall promptly execute and deliver all documents and instruments reasonably 
requested to give effect to the provisions of this Site Lease. 

 
34. Recitals Incorporated 

 

The Recitals set forth at the beginning of this Site Lease are hereby incorporated into its terms 
and provisions by this reference. 

 
35. Time of the Essence 

 

Time is of the essence with respect to each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Site Lease. 



Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 9  

36. Force Majeure 
 

A party shall be excused from the performance of any obligation imposed in this Site Lease 
and the exhibits hereto for any period and to the extent that a party is prevented from 
performing such obligation, in whole or in part, as a result of delays caused by the other party 
or third parties, a governmental agency or entity, an act of God, war, terrorism, civil 
disturbance, forces of nature, fire, flood, earthquake, or strikes or lockouts, and such non- 
performance will not be a default hereunder or a grounds for termination of this Site Lease. 

 
37. Interpretation 

 

None of the Parties hereto, nor their respective counsel, shall be deemed the drafters of this 
Site Lease or the Facilities Lease for purposes of construing the provisions of each. The 
language in all parts of this Site Lease shall in all cases be construed according to its fair 
meaning, not strictly for or against any of the Parties hereto. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Site Lease to be executed by their 
respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
Dated:  , 20   

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 

By:     

Name: Rose F. Ramos_________________ 

Title:   Chief Business Officer___________ 

Dated:  , 20   
 

Landmark Construction 
 

By:     

Name:  

Title:   
  



Exhibit A to Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 11  

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 

Attached is the Legal Description for: 
 

John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project 
Recorded Address: 6749 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
Physical Address: 6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA 95831 
APN: 030-0370-021 

 
 



Exhibit B to Site Lease 
JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
DWK DMS 3804502v1 

Page 12  

EXHIBIT B 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

Attached is a map or diagram showing the location of the Site that is subject to 
this Site Lease and upon which Developer will construct the Project. 

 
 
 
 



FACILITIES LEASE 

 
 

For all or a portion of the following Site: 

 

Project: Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 

Recorded Address: 3150 I Street Sacramento, CA 95816 

APN: 007-0054-001 

 

By and between 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95824 

 

And 

 

John F. Otto, Inc., dba Otto Construction  

1717 Second Street 

Sacramento, CA  95811 

 

Dated as of May 19, 2022 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 2 

2. Exhibits ............................................................................................................ 3 

3. Lease of Project and Site .................................................................................... 3 

4. Term ............................................................................................................... 4 

5. Payment .......................................................................................................... 5 

6. Title................................................................................................................. 5 

7. Quiet Enjoyment ............................................................................................... 5 

8. Representations of the District ............................................................................ 5 

9. Representations of the Developer ........................................................................ 6 

10. Pre-construction Services ................................................................................... 7 

11. Construction of Project ......................................................................................15 

12. Maintenance ....................................................................................................16 

13. Utilities ...........................................................................................................16 

14. Taxes and Other Impositions .............................................................................16 

15. Insurance ........................................................................................................17 

16. Indemnification and Defense .............................................................................23 

17. Eminent Domain ..............................................................................................25 

18. Damage and Destruction ...................................................................................26 

19. Abatement ......................................................................................................26 

20. Access ............................................................................................................26 

21. Assignment, Subleasing ....................................................................................27 

22. Termination, Default And Suspension ..................................................................27 

23. Notices ...........................................................................................................35 

24. Binding Effect ..................................................................................................36 

25. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver .......................................................36 

26. Severability .....................................................................................................36 

27. Amendments, Changes and Modifications ............................................................36 

28. Net-Net-Net Lease ............................................................................................36 

29. Execution in Counterparts .................................................................................37 

30. Developer and District Representatives ...............................................................37 

31. Applicable Law .................................................................................................37 

32. Attorney's Fees ................................................................................................37 

33. Captions .........................................................................................................37 



34. Prior Agreements .............................................................................................37 

35. Further Assurances ...........................................................................................37 

36. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated ......................................................................37 

37. Time of the Essence .........................................................................................37 

38. Force Majeure ..................................................................................................38 

39. Interpretation ..................................................................................................38 

Exhibits A - H 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 1  

FACILITIES LEASE 

This facilities  lease  (“Facilities  Lease”),  dated as of May 19, 2022 (“Effective Date”), 

is made and entered into by and between John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction 

(“Developer”), a [California corporation] duly organized and existing under the laws of the State 

of [California], as sublessor, and Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly 

organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California, as sublessee 

(“District”) (together, the “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized under Section 17406 of the Education Code of 

the State of California to lease a site to a developer and to have that developer develop and 

construct the project on the site and to lease back to the District the completed project and 

site; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the date hereof, the District has leased to Developer, a parcel of land 

located at 3150 I Street Sacramento, CA  95816, known as Sutter Middle School, particularly 

described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference (“Site”); and 
 

WHEREAS, District and Developer have executed a site lease at the same time as this 

Facilities Lease whereby the District is leasing the Site to Developer (“Site Lease”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for the development and construction of 

certain work to be performed on portions of the Site which will include construction of 

improvements to be known as the Sutter MS Gym HVAC Modernization Project (“Project”); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, District has retained Lionakis (“Architect”) to prepare plans and 

specifications for the Project (“Plans and Specifications”) and to act as the Design Professional 

in General Responsible Charge for the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the District (“Board”) has determined that it is in 

the best interests of the District and for the common benefit of the citizens residing in the 

District to construct the Project by leasing the Site to Developer and by simultaneously 

entering into this Facilities Lease under which the District will lease back the completed Project 

and site from Developer and if necessary, make Lease Payments; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District further acknowledges and agrees that it has entered into the 

Site Lease and the Facilities Lease pursuant to Education Code Section 17406 as the best 

available and most expeditious means for the District to satisfy its substantial need for the 

facilities to be provided by the Project and to accommodate and educate District students and 

to utilize its facilities proceeds expeditiously; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Site Lease and Facilities Lease are awarded based a competitive 

solicitation process pursuant to Education Code section 17406 and in compliance with the 

required procedures and guidelines for evaluating the qualifications of proposers adopted and 

published by the Board to the proposer providing the best value to the school district, taking 

into consideration the proposer’s demonstrated competence and professional qualifications 

necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required; and 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 2  

WHEREAS, the selection of Developer was conducted in a fair and impartial manner; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has reviewed the Lease Documents; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer represents that it has the expertise and experience to perform 

the services set forth in this Facilities Lease; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties have performed all acts, conditions and things required by law 

to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with 

the execution and entering into of this Facilities Lease and all those conditions precedent do 

exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as 

required by law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute and enter into this 

Facilities Lease; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer is authorized to lease the Site as lessee and to develop the 

Project by constructing the Project on the Site and to lease the completed Project and Site 

back to the District, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual 

covenants hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Definitions 
 

In addition to the terms and entities defined above or in subsequent provisions, and unless 

the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this section shall, for all purposes of this 

Facilities Lease, have the meanings herein specified. 

 

1.1 “Developer”    or   “Lessor”   means John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction, 

a [California corporation], organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

[California], Contractor's license number 178809 issued by the State of California, 

Contractors’ State License Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 9, of the 

Business and Professions Code, and its successors and assigns. 
 

1.2 “Developer’s Representative” means the Managing Member of Developer, 

or any person authorized to act on behalf of Developer under or with respect to this 

Facilities Lease. 
 

1.3 “Contract Documents” are defined in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 
 

1.4 “District” or “Lessee” means the Sacramento City Unified School District, a 

school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California. 

 

1.5 “District Representative” means the Superintendent of the District, or any 

other person authorized by the Governing Board of the District to act on behalf of the 

District under or with respect to this Facilities Lease. 
 

1.6 “Permitted Encumbrances” means, as of any particular time: 

 

1.6.1 Liens for general ad valorem taxes and assessments, if any, not then 

delinquent, or which the District may permit to remain unpaid; 
 

1.6.2 The Site Lease. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 3  

1.6.3 This Facilities Lease. 
 

1.6.4 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 

reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions which exist of record as of 

the date of this Facilities Lease. 
 

1.6.5 Easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, 

reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions established following the 

date of recordation of this Facilities Lease and to which Developer and the 

District consent in writing which will not impair or impede the operation of the 

Site. 
 

2. Exhibits 
 

The following Exhibits are attached to and by reference incorporated and made a part of this 

Facilities Lease: 
 

2.1 Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Site: The description of the real 

property constituting the Site. 
 

2.2 Exhibit B - Description of the Project: The map or diagram depiction of the 

Project. 
 

2.3 Exhibit C - Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, 

and Payment Provisions: A detailed description of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 

and the provisions related to the payment of that amount to Developer, including 

Attachment 3, the Schedule of Lease Payments and Payoff Dates and Amounts. 

 

2.4 Exhibit D - General Construction Provisions: The provisions generally 

describing the Project’s construction. 
 

2.5 Exhibit D-1 – Special Conditions Provisions: The provisions describing 

conditions specific to the Project’s construction. 

 

2.6 Exhibit E - Memorandum of Commencement Date: The Memorandum 

which will memorialize the commencement and expiration dates of the Lease Term. 
 

2.7 Exhibit F - Construction Schedule 
 

2.8 Exhibit G – Schedule of Values 
 

2.9 Exhibit H – Project Labor Agreement 
 

3. Lease of Project and Site 
 

3.1 Developer hereby leases the completed Project to the District, and the District 

hereby leases said completed Project and Site from Developer upon the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Facilities Lease. 
 

3.2 The leasing by Developer to the District of the completed Project and Site shall 

not affect or result in a merger of the District’s leasehold estate pursuant to this 

Facilities Lease and its fee estate as lessor under the Site Lease. Developer shall 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 4  

continue to have and hold a leasehold estate in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease 

throughout the Term thereof and the Term of this Facilities Lease. 
 

3.3 As to the Site, this Facilities Lease shall be deemed and constitute a sublease. 
 

4. Term 
 

4.1 Facilities Lease is Legally Binding 
 

This Facilities Lease is legally binding on the Parties upon execution by the Parties and 

the District Board’s approval of this Facilities Lease. The “Term” of this Facilities Lease 

for the purposes of District’s obligation to make Lease Payments shall commence on 

the date when Developer delivers possession of the Project to District and when all 

improvements to be provided by Developer are determined by the District to be 

completed as set forth in Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 
 

Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Documents, the 

Term of this Facilities Lease for the purposes of District’s obligations to make Lease 

Payments shall terminate one (1) year thereafter or upon payment of the final lease 

payment, whichever occurs later. 
 

4.2 After Developer has completed construction of the Project and the District has 

accepted the Project, the Parties shall execute the Memorandum of Commencement 

Date attached hereto as Exhibit E to memorialize the commencement date of the 

Lease Payments and expiration date of the Term. Notwithstanding this Term, the 

Parties hereby acknowledge that each has obligations, duties, and rights under this 

Facilities Lease that exist upon execution of this Facilities Lease and prior to the 

beginning of the Lease Payment obligations. 
 

4.3 The Term may be extended or shortened upon the occurrence of the earliest of 

any of the following events, which shall constitute the end of the Term: 
 

4.3.1 An Event of Default by District as defined herein and Developer’s 

election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 
 

4.3.2 An Event of Default by Developer as defined herein and District’s 

election to terminate this Facilities Lease as permitted herein; or 

 

4.3.3 Consummation of the District’s purchase option pursuant to the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, and Payment 

Provisions indicated in Exhibit C (“Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions”); or 
 

4.3.4 A third-party taking of the Project under Eminent Domain, only if the 

Term is ended as indicated more specifically herein; or 
 

4.3.5 Damage or destruction of the Project, only if the Term is ended as 

indicated more specifically herein. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 5  

5. Payment 
 

In consideration for the lease of the completed Project and Site by Developer back to the 

District and for other good and valuable consideration, the District shall make all necessary 

payments pursuant to the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 
 

6. Title 
 

6.1 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, the District shall hold fee title to the 

Site, including the Project, and nothing in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease shall 

change, in any way, the District’s ownership interest. 
 

6.2 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall have a leasehold 

interest in the Site pursuant to the Site Lease. 

 

6.3 During the Term of this Facilities Lease, Developer shall hold title to the Project 

improvements provided by Developer which comprise fixtures, repairs, replacements 

or modifications thereto. 
 

6.4 If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C or if District makes all necessary 

payments under the Guaranteed Maximum Price Provisions indicated in Exhibit C, all 

right, title and interest of Developer, its assigns and successors in interest in and to 

the Project and the Site shall be transferred to and vested in the District at the end of 

the Term. Title shall be transferred to and vested in the District hereunder without the 

necessity for any further instrument of transfer; provided, however, that Developer 

agrees to execute any instrument requested by District to memorialize the termination 

of this Facilities Lease and transfer of title to the Project. 
 

7. Quiet Enjoyment 
 

Upon District’s possession of the Project, Developer shall thereafter provide the District with 

quiet use and enjoyment of the Project, and the District shall during the Term peaceably and 

quietly have and hold and enjoy the Project, without suit, trouble or hindrance from 

Developer, except as otherwise may be set forth in this Facilities Lease. Developer will, at the 

request of the District and at Developer’s cost, join in any legal action in which the District 

asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment to the extent Developer may lawfully do 

so. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have the right to inspect the Project and 

the Site as provided herein. 

 

8. Representations of the District 
 

The District represents, covenants and warrants to Developer as follows: 
 

8.1 Due Organization and Existence 
 

The District is a school district, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and 

laws of the State of California. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 6  

8.2 Authorization 
 

The District has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver 

this Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 

duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease. 
 

8.3 No Violations 
 

Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease nor the Site Lease, nor the 

fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 

results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 

agreement or instrument to which the District is now a party or by which the District 

is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 

or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 

or assets of the District, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

 

8.4 Condemnation Proceedings 
 

8.4.1 District covenants and agrees, but only to the extent that it may lawfully 

do so, that so long as this Facilities Lease remains in effect, the District will not 

seek to exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to the Project so as 

to cause a full or partial termination of this Facilities Lease. 

 

8.4.2 If for any reason the foregoing covenant is determined to be 

unenforceable or in some way invalid, or if District should fail or refuse to abide 

by such covenant, then, to the extent it may lawfully do so, District agrees that 

the financial interest of Developer shall be as indicated in this Facilities Lease. 

 

9. Representations of Developer 
 

Developer represents, covenants and warrants to the District as follows: 

 

9.1 Due Organization and Existence 
 

Developer is a [California company] duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of [California], has the power to enter into this Facilities Lease and the Site 

Lease; is possessed of full power to lease, lease back, and hold real and personal 

property and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of all of the aforesaid 

agreements. 
 

9.2 Authorization 

 

Developer has the full power and authority to enter into, to execute and to deliver this 

Facilities Lease, and to perform all of its duties and obligations hereunder, and has 

duly authorized the execution of this Facilities Lease. 
 

9.3 No Violations 

 

Neither the execution and delivery of this Facilities Lease and the Site Lease, nor the 

fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, conflicts with or 

results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 7  

agreement or instrument to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer is 

bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or results in the creation 

or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property 

or assets of Developer, or upon the Site, except Permitted Encumbrances. 
 

9.4 No Bankruptcy 
 

Developer is not now nor has it ever been in bankruptcy or receivership. 

 

9.5 No Encumbrances 
 

Developer shall not pledge any District payments of any kind, related to the Site Lease, 

this Facilities Lease, or in any way derived from the Site, and shall not mortgage or 

encumber the Site, except as may be specifically permitted pursuant to the provisions 

of this Facilities Lease related to Developer’s financing the construction of the project. 
 

9.6 Continued Existence 
 

Developer shall not voluntarily commence any act intended to dissolve or terminate 

the legal existence of Developer, at or before the latest of the following: 
 

9.6.1 Eighteen (18) months following completion of the Project. 
 

9.6.2 One (1) year following expiration or earlier termination of the Term. 
 

9.6.3 After dismissal and final resolution of any and all disputes between the 

Parties and/or any third-party claims related, in any way, to the Project. 
 

While the lease documents are in effect, Developer shall give District one hundred 

twenty (120) days written notice prior to dissolving or terminating the legal existence 

of Developer. 
 

10. Preconstruction Services 
 

10.1 Scope of the Preconstruction Services 
 

Developer shall perform management and coordination services, plan and specification 

constructability reviews, provide value-engineering reviews and recommendations and 

other reviews as necessary to verify that the drawings and specifications are clear and 

reasonably accurate to minimize the need for changes during the construction phase 

of the project, including but not limited to the following: 
 

10.1.1 General Services 
 

10.1.1.1 Developer shall attend meetings between the Architect, the 

District, District site personnel, and any other applicable consultants of 

the District as required to discuss the Project, including budget, scope 

and schedule. 
 

10.1.1.2 Developer shall assist the Architect with making formal 

presentations to the governing board of District. Such assistance is 

anticipated to include floor plans and elevations necessary for any 

architectural presentation. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 8  

10.1.1.3 Developer shall prepare a rough schedule in a format 

acceptable to District, and update as necessary. 
 

10.1.1.4 Developer shall prepare and update the components of the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and shall be primarily responsible for 

ensuring that the Project can and is constructed for no more than that 

amount. 
 

10.1.1.5 While the Architect is anticipated to provide primary 

assistance, Developer shall assist District with City land use issues. 
 

10.1.1.6 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist District 

and Architect with DSA review, input, and timeframe for same. 

 

10.1.1.7 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 

review and comment upon geotechnical / soils investigation and report. 
 

10.1.1.8 Architect shall act as lead and Developer will assist with 

review and comment upon survey of the Site for the Project. 
 

10.1.1.9 When requested, Developer will prepare meeting minutes. 
 

10.1.1.10 Prepare schedule for preconstruction deliverables, subject to 

District’s approval, and provide preconstruction deliverables within time 

frames of approved preconstruction schedule. 
 

10.1.2 Review of Design Documents. 
 

10.1.2.1 Review Project design and budget with District and Architect 

based on the 100% Construction Documents submitted to DSA to: 
 

10.1.2.1.1 Provide recommendations on site use and 

improvements, selection of materials, building systems and 

equipment and methods of Project delivery; 
 

10.1.2.1.2 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 

construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 

requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 

the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 

to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 

alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 

economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 

substitutions; 
 

10.1.2.1.3 Provide recommendations on relative feasibility of 

construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time 

requirements for procurement, installation and construction of 

the Project and subparts thereof if requested, and factors relating 

to cost including, but not limited to, construction costs of 

alternate designs of materials, preliminary budgets and possible 

economics that could be achieved through alternate methods or 

substitutions; 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 9  

10.1.2.1.4 Provide plan review. 
 

10.1.2.1.5 Value-engineering. Prepare a value-engineering 

report for District review and approval that: 
 

10.1.2.1.5.1 Details areas of cost saving (e.g. 

construction processes/procedures, specified materials 

and equipment, and equipment or other aspects of the 

design documents that can be modified to reduce costs 

and/or the time for achieving final completion of the 

Project and/or to extend life-cycle and/or to reduce 

maintenance/operations costs, without diminution in the 

quality of materials/equipment/workmanship, scope or 

intended purposes of the Project); 
 

10.1.2.1.5.2 Provides detailed estimate for proposed 

value-engineering items; 
 

10.1.2.1.5.3 Defines methodology or approaches that 

maximize value; and 
 

10.1.2.1.5.4 Identifies design choices that can be more 

economically delivered. 
 

10.1.2.1.6 Constructability Review. Prepare detailed 

interdisciplinary constructability review within Fourteen (14) 

days of receipt of the plans from the District that: 
 

10.1.2.1.6.1 Ensures construction documents are well 

coordinated and reviewed for errors; 
 

10.1.2.1.6.2 Identifies to the extent known, 

construction deficiencies and areas of concern; 
 

10.1.2.1.6.3 Back-checks design drawings for inclusion 

of modifications; and 
 

10.1.2.1.6.4 Provides the District with written 

confirmation that: 
 

10.1.2.1.6.4.1 Requirements noted in the design 

documents prepared for the Project are consistent 

with and conform to the District's Project 

requirements and design standards. 

 

10.1.2.1.6.4.2 Various components have been 

coordinated and are consistent with each other so 

as to minimize conflicts within or between 

components of the design documents. 
 

10.1.2.2 Confirm Modifications to Design Drawings. If the District 

accepts Developer's comments, including the value-engineering and/or 

constructability review comments, review the design documents to 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 10  

confirm that those comments are properly incorporated into the final 

design documents. 
 

In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not acting in the capacity of a licensed design 

professional, and that Developer’s examination is made in good faith to facilitate 

construction and does not create an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to 

detect errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain 

compliance with applicable laws, building codes or regulations. However, nothing in this 

provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and reporting any error, 

inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within the Developer’s standard of care 

including, without limitation, any applicable laws, ordinance, rules, or regulations. 

 

10.1.3 Budget of Project Costs. 
 

10.1.3.1 At each stage of plan review indicated above, Developer will 

update and refine the budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price based 

on the most recent set of design documents. Developer shall also advise 

the District and the Architect if it appears that the total construction 

costs may exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price established by the 

District and shall make recommendations for corrective action. 

Developer will further provide input to the District and Architect relative 

to value of construction, means and methods for construction, duration 

of construction of various building methods and constructability. 

 

In each budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer shall include values of scopes 

of work subdivided into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for 

progress payments during construction. This budget of the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall 

include, at a minimum, the following information divided into at least the following 

categories for each site: 

10.1.3.1.1 Overhead and profit; 
 

10.1.3.1.2 Supervision; 

 

10.1.3.1.3 General conditions; 
 

10.1.3.1.4 Layout & Mobilization (not more than 1%); 
 

10.1.3.1.5 Submittals, samples, shop drawings (not more than 

3%); 
 

10.1.3.1.6 Bonds and insurance (not more than 2%); 
 

10.1.3.1.7 Close-out documentation (not less than 3%); 
 

10.1.3.1.8 Demolition; 

 

10.1.3.1.9 Installation; 

10.1.3.1.10 Rough-in; 

10.1.3.1.11 Finishes; 

10.1.3.1.12 Testing; 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 11  

10.1.3.1.13 Owner and Maintenance Manuals; and 
 

10.1.3.1.14 Punchlist and District acceptance. 

 

10.1.4 Construction Schedule and Phasing Plan 
 

Developer shall prepare a preconstruction schedule to guide the design team 

through to bid dates. That schedule shall show the multiple phases and 

interrelations of design, constructability review, and estimating. Developer shall 

also prepare a full construction schedule for the Project detailing the 

construction activities. Developer shall further investigate, recommend and 

prepare a schedule for the purchase of materials and equipment requiring long 

lead time procurement, and coordinate the schedule with the early preparation 

of portions of the Contract Documents by the Architect. 
 

10.1.5 Construction Planning and Bidding 

 

10.1.5.1 For all of Developer’s activities relating to construction 

planning and bidding, Developer shall comply with all applicable legal 

requirements, including but not limited to those set forth in 

Education Code section 17406. 
 

10.1.5.2 Consult with District staff in relation to the existing site. 

Selected developer should make site visits, as needed to review the 

current site conditions. During this evaluation, Respondent may 

make recommendations relating to soils investigations and utility 

locations and capacities, in order to minimize unforeseen conditions. 
 

10.1.5.3 Attend meetings at the Site with the Architect and the 

design team as needed. 
 

10.1.5.4 Provide plan review and constructability services with an 

emphasis on ensuring that the Project can be completed within the 

established schedule and within the available budget. 
 

10.1.5.5 Provide a detailed analysis of all major Project systems 

with an emphasis on possible value engineering possibilities. 
 

10.1.5.6 Prepare and distribute specifications and drawings 

provided by District to facilitate bidding to Developer's 

subcontractors. 
 

10.1.5.7 Review the drawings and specifications to eliminate areas 

of conflict and overlapping in the work to be performed by various 

subcontractors, and with a view to eliminating change order requests 

by the Architect or subcontractors. 
 

10.1.5.8 Conduct pre-bid conferences. Coordinate with District and 

the Architect in responding to subcontractor questions or providing 

clarification to all subcontractors. 
 

10.1.5.9 DSA approved plans shall be utilized to receive 

subcontractor bids and develop the GMP in accordance with the 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 12  

lease-leaseback agreement forms, including the requirement that 

Developer engage in competitive bidding for subcontractors for all 

scopes of work on the Project that constitute more than one half of 

one percent (0.5%) of the GMP. The District representative shall be 

present during the receipt of bids from subcontractors. 
 

10.1.5.10 Each phase GMP shall be presented to the District in the 

following manner within a three ring binder as well as electronically 

on an external memory device such as a CD, USB drive, or other 

comparable device: 
 

10.1.5.10.1 Cover sheet, signed by Developer indicating the 

GMP dollar amount with a certification, indicating that the GMP 

is all inclusive per the plans, specifications and addenda (contract 

documents). Also include certification stating, “Developer hereby 

certifies that they have reviewed all subcontractor proposals and 

whether the subcontractor excluded portions of their scope 

Developer has included all costs for a complete GMP in 

accordance with plans, specifications and addenda.” 

 

10.1.5.10.2 A bid tabulation sheet indicating the breakdown by 

subcontractor/trade along with the appropriate general condition 

amount, other fees (as submitted with the response to the 

RFQ/P). 

 

10.1.5.10.3 Behind the bid tabulation sheet mentioned in 

subdivision 10.1.5.5.2 above should be a sheet that indicates 

what is included in the general conditions, which should match 

what was submitted in the response to the RFQ/P. 

 

10.1.5.10.4 Copies of all subcontractor bids received divided 

by trade that corresponds to the final spread sheet with a cover 

sheet indicating the scope and subcontractors that provided bids 

as well as those that were asked to bid, but did not submit a 

proposal. This sheet should have the dollar amounts for each 

subcontractor that provided a bid with the first column being the 

proposed subcontractor for that trade. 
 

10.1.5.10.5 Behind subdivision 10.1.5.5.4 above should be the 

bids for that trade with the proposed subcontractor bid on top 

and the other subcontractor bids in descending order based on 

best value score. 

 

10.1.5.10.6 The minimum number of bona fide bids from 

contractors for a specific trade shall be as follows: 

 

10.1.5.10.6.1 Two (2) bids for subcontracts up to One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000); 
 

10.1.5.10.6.2 Three (3) bids for subcontracts over One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000). 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 13  

10.1.5.10.7 If Developer intends to propose to self-perform 

portion(s) of the construction of the Project, it must receive the 

District’s prior written approval. If approved, Developer must 

provide its pricing (its bid) to the District twenty-four (24) hours 

prior to Developer’s receipt of Subcontractor bids for those 

portion(s) of the Work. 
 

10.1.5.10.7.1 Regardless of the scope of work and not in 

any way reducing the number of Subcontractor bids 

based on the other requirements of the Contract 

Documents, the minimum number of bona fide bids from 

Subcontractors for scope(s) of Work that Developer is 

bidding to self-perform shall be Two (2) Bids, not 

including Developer’s pricing/bid. 
 

10.1.5.11 Produce detailed construction CPM schedules to be 

incorporated into the Project documents including identification of 

the Project critical path and agency approvals. 
 

10.1.5.12 Plan the phases and staging of construction, staging 

areas, temporary fencing, office trailer placement, access, etc. as 

required. 
 

10.1.5.13 Any other services that are reasonable and necessary to 

control the budget and schedule. List those areas where 

subconsultants will be required and where the Respondent has in- 

house expertise. Provide resumes of persons providing each of these 

services and for key personnel assigned to the Project. 

 

10.2 Schedule 
 

Preconstruction services outlined above will commence on the date the District issues 

a Notice to Proceed with Preconstruction Services for the Agreement, and conclude 

upon approval of the Amendment to the Lease Agreements by District’s Board, or 

termination of this Agreement by either party per the Agreement’s terms. Any 

extension shall be subject to reasonable approval in writing by the Parties. 
 

10.3 Ownership of Records 

 

It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by Developer under this Agreement 

shall become the property of the District and Developer shall have no property right 

therein whatsoever. Developer hereby assigns to District any copyrights associated 

with the materials prepared pursuant to the Agreement. 

 

10.4 Open Book Policy 
 

There will be an open book policy with Developer and its construction team. District 

shall have access to all subcontractor bids, value engineering back-up, contingency 

breakdown & tracking, and Developer fees. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 14  

10.5 Compensation to Developer for Preconstruction Services 
 

District agrees to reimburse Developer in the total amount not to exceed TWENTY-FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS and NO/100 ($25,000.00), for the performance of services 

contemplated by this Agreement. Developer shall be paid monthly for the actual fees 

and allowed costs and expenses for all time and materials required and expended for 

work requested and specified by the District as completed. Said amount shall be paid 

within thirty (30) days upon submittal to and verification by the District of a monthly 

billing statement showing completion of the tasks for that month on a line item basis. 

In the event Developer and District continue with the lease/leaseback agreements for 

the development of the Project, this compensation for services rendered will be 

included as part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price (“GMP”) to be paid to Developer by 

District. 
 

Developer shall be responsible for any and all costs and expenses incurred by 

Developer, including but not limited to the costs of hiring sub-consultants, contractors 

and other professionals, review of the Project’s Plans and Specifications, review and 

preparation of necessary documentation relating to the development of the Project, all 

travel-related expenses, as well as for meetings with District and its representatives, 

long distance telephone charges, copying expenses, salaries of Developer staff and 

employees working on the Project, overhead, and any other reasonable expenses 

incurred by Developer in performance of the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

10.6 Termination before Construction Phase 
 

10.6.1 Before the notice to proceed with the Construction Phase is issued 

by the District, this Agreement may be terminated at any time without cause 

by District upon fourteen (14) days written notice to Developer. In the event of 

such a termination by District, the District shall pay Developer for all undisputed 

services performed and expenses incurred per this Agreement, supported by 

documentary evidence, including, but not limited to, payroll records, invoices 

from third parties retained by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and 

expense reports up until the date of notice of termination plus any sums due 

Developer for Board-approved extra services. In ascertaining the services 

actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this Agreement, 

consideration shall be given to completed work and work in process that would 

best serve the District if a completed product was presented. 
 

10.6.2 In the event that the Parties do not reach an agreement on the GMP, 

this Agreement will be terminated at that time. In the event of such a 

termination, the District shall pay Developer no more than the not to exceed 

amount in Section 10.5 above. 
 

10.7 Construction Phase 

 

Developer shall not commence work for which a contractor is required to be licensed 

in accordance with Article 5 (commencing with Section 7065) of Chapter 9 of Division 

3 of the Business and Professions Code and for which Division of the State Architect 

approval is required can be performed before receipt of the required Division of the 

State Architect approval. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 15  

11. Construction of Project 
 

11.1 Construction of Project 

 

11.1.1 Developer agrees to cause the Project to be developed, constructed, 

and installed in accordance with the terms hereof and the Construction 

Provisions set forth in Exhibit D, including those things reasonably inferred 

from the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Project and 

necessary to produce the stated result even though no mention is made in the 

Contract Documents. 
 

11.1.2 Contract Time / Construction Schedule 
 

It is hereby understood and agreed that the Contract Time for this Project shall 

be [days in words] ([days in numbers]) calendar days, commencing with the 

date upon which the Facilities Lease and the Site Lease are fully executed and 

delivered to both Parties and ending with completion of the Work which will 

occur no later than [Date] (“Contract Time”). The Construction Schedule must 

be approved by the District. 
 

11.1.3 Schedule of Values 
 

Developer will provide a schedule of values, approved by the District, which will 

be attached hereto as Exhibit G (“Schedule of Values”). The Schedule of Values 

must be approved by the District. 
 

11.1.4 Liquidated Damages 

 

Time is of the essence for all work Developer must perform to complete the 

Project. It is hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or 

impossible to ascertain and determine the actual damage that the District will 

sustain in the event of and by reason of Developer's delay; therefore, Developer 

agrees that it shall pay to the District the sum of One Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($ 1,500.00) per day as liquidated damages for each and every day's 

delay beyond the Contract Time. 
 

11.1.4.1 It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is 

not a penalty. 
 

11.1.4.2 In the event any portion of the liquidated damages is not 

paid to the District, the District may deduct that amount from any 

money due or that may become due Developer under this Facilities 

Lease. The District's right to assess liquidated damages is as 

indicated herein and in Exhibit D. 
 

11.1.4.3 The time during which the construction of the Project is 

delayed for cause as hereinafter specified may extend the time of 

completion for a reasonable time as the District may grant. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 16  

11.1.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

Developer will cause the Project to be constructed within the GMP as set forth 

and defined in the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and Developer will not seek 

additional compensation from District in excess of that amount. 
 

11.1.6 Modifications 
 

If the DSA requires changes to the Contract Documents submitted by District 

to Developer, and those changes change the construction costs and/or 

construction time for the Project, then those changed costs or time will be 

handled as a modification pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit D. 
 

11.1.7 Labor Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement by 

Department of Industrial Relations 
 

This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 

Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and 

Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. Developer specifically 

acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Contract 

while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 

1, of the Labor Code. 
 

12. Maintenance 

 

Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the repair, 

improvement, replacement and maintenance of the Project and the Site shall be at the sole 

cost and expense and the sole responsibility of the District, subject only to all punch list items 

and warranties against defects in materials and workmanship of Developer as provided in 

Exhibit D. The District shall pay for or otherwise arrange for the payment of the cost of the 

repair and replacement of the Project resulting from ordinary wear and tear. The District 

waives the benefits of subsections 1 and 2 of Section 1932 of the California Civil Code, but 

such waiver shall not limit any of the rights of the District under the terms of this Facilities 

Lease. 
 

13. Utilities 
 

Following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, the cost and expenses 

for all utility services, including, but not limited to, electricity, natural gas, telephone, water, 

sewer, trash removal, cable television, janitorial service, security, heating, water, internet 

service, data transmission, and all other utilities of any type shall be paid by District. 

 

14. Taxes and Other Impositions 
 

All ad valorem real property taxes, special taxes, possessory interest taxes, bonds and special 

lien assessments or other impositions of any kind with respect to the Project, the Site and the 

improvements thereon, charged to or imposed upon either Developer or the District or their 

respective interests or estates in the Project, shall at all times be paid by District. In the event 

any possessory interest tax is levied on Developer, its successors and assigns, by virtue of this 

Facilities Lease or the Site Lease, District shall pay such possessory interest tax directly, if 

possible, or shall reimburse Developer, its successors and assigns for the full amount thereof 

within forty-five (45) days after presentation of proof of payment by Developer. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 17  

15. Insurance 
 

15.1 Developer’s Insurance 

 

Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated here and in 

Exhibit D. 

 

15.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability 

Insurance 
 

15.1.1.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 

the Project, Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile 

Liability Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, its Board 

Members, employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 

bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising 

injury, and medical payments arising from, or in connection with, 

operations under the Project. This coverage shall be provided in a 

form at least as broad as Insurance Services (ISO) Form CG 00 01 

11 88. Developer shall ensure that Products Liability and Completed 

Operations coverage, Fire Damage Liability coverage, and 

Automobile Liability coverage including owned, non-owned, and 

hired automobiles, are included within the above policies and at the 

required limits, or Developer shall procure and maintain these 

coverages separately. 
 

15.1.1.2 Developer’s deductible or self-insured retention for its 

Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall not exceed five 

thousand dollars ($5,000) for deductible or twenty-five thousand 

dollars ($25,000) for self-insured retention, respectively, unless 

approved in writing by District. 
 

15.1.1.3 All such policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 
 

15.1.2 Excess Liability Insurance 
 

15.1.2.1 If Developer’s underlying policy limits are less than 

required, subject to 15.1.2.3 below, Developer may procure and 

maintain, during the life of the Project, an Excess Liability Insurance 

Policy to meet the policy limit requirements of the required policies 

in order to satisfy, in aggregate with its underlying policy, the 

insurance requirements herein. 
 

15.1.2.2 There shall be no gap between the per occurrence amount 

of any underlying policy and the start of the coverage under the 

Excess Liability Insurance Policy. Any Excess Liability Insurance 

Policy shall protect Developer, District, its Board Members, 

employees, agents, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), 

Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) in amounts and including the 

provisions as set forth in Exhibit D and/or the Supplementary 

Conditions (if any), and that complies with all requirements for 

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability and 

Employers’ Liability Insurance. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 18  

15.1.2.3 The District, in its sole discretion, may accept the Excess 

Liability Insurance Policy that brings Developer’s primary limits to 

the minimum requirements herein. 
 

15.1.3 Subcontractor 
 

Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and maintain 

Commercial General Liability Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance, and 

Excess Liability Insurance (if Subcontractor elects to satisfy, in part, the 

insurance required herein by procuring and maintaining an Excess Liability 

Insurance Policy) with minimum limits at least equal to the amount required of 

Developer except where smaller minimum limits are permitted as set forth 

below. 
 

15.1.4 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

 

15.1.4.1 In accordance with provisions of section 3700 of the 

California Labor Code, Developer and every Subcontractor shall be 

required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees. 
 

15.1.4.2 Developer shall procure and maintain, during the life of 

the Project, Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance for all of its employees engaged in work under 

the Project, on/or at the Site of the Project. This coverage shall 

cover, at a minimum, medical and surgical treatment, disability 

benefits, rehabilitation therapy, and survivors' death benefits. 

Developer shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and 

maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability 

Insurance for all employees of Subcontractor(s). Any class of 

employee or employees not covered by a Subcontractor’s insurance 

shall be covered by Developer’s insurance. If any class of employee 

or employees engaged in Work on the Project, on or at the Site of 

the Project, is not protected under the Workers’ Compensation 

Insurance, Developer shall provide, or shall cause a Subcontractor 

to provide, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any 

employee(s) not otherwise protected before any of those 

employee(s) commence work. 
 

15.1.5 Builder's Risk Insurance: Builder's Risk “All Risk” Insurance 

 

15.1.5.1 Developer shall procure and maintain, until the District 

accepts the project as complete, Builder’s Risk (Course of 

Construction), or similar first party property coverage acceptable to 

the District, issued on a replacement cost value basis. The cost shall 

be consistent with the total replacement cost of all insurable Work 

of the Project included within the Contract Documents. Coverage is 

to insure against all risks of accidental physical loss and shall include 

without limitation the perils of vandalism and/or malicious mischief 

(both without any limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), 

sprinkler leakage, civil authority, theft, sonic disturbance, 

earthquake, flood, collapse, wind, rain, dust, fire, war, terrorism, 

lightning, smoke, and rioting. Coverage shall include debris removal, 

demolition, increased costs due to enforcement of all applicable 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 19  

ordinances and/or laws in the 

repair and replacement of damaged and undamaged portions of the 

property, and reasonable costs for the Architect’s and engineering 

services and expenses required as a result of any insured loss upon 

the Work and Project, including completed Work and Work in 

progress, to the full insurable value thereof. 
 

15.1.6 Pollution Liability Insurance 
 

15.1.6.1 Developer shall procure and maintain Pollution Liability 

Insurance that shall protect Developer, District, Construction 

Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for 

bodily injury, property damage, including natural resource damage, 

cleanup costs, removal, storage, disposal, and/or use of the 

pollutant arising from operations under this Facilities Lease, and 

defense, including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, 

defense, or settlement of claims. Coverage shall apply to sudden 

and/or gradual pollution conditions resulting from the escape or 

release of smoke, vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, 

liquids, or gases, natural gas, waste materials, or other irritants, 

contaminants, or pollutants, including asbestos. This coverage shall 

be provided in a form at least as broad as Insurance Services Offices, 

Inc. (ISO) Form CG 2415, or Developer shall procure and maintain 

these coverages separately. 
 

15.1.6.2 Developer warrants that any retroactive date applicable 

to coverage under the policy shall predate the Effective Date of this 

Facilities Lease and that continuous coverage will be maintained or 

an extended reporting or discovery period will be exercised for a 

period of three (3) years, beginning from the time that the Work 

under the Contract is completed. 
 

15.1.6.3 If Developer is responsible for removing any pollutants 

from a site, then Developer shall ensure that Any Auto, including 

owned, non-owned, and hired, are included within the above policies 

and at the required limits, to cover its automobile exposure for 

transporting the pollutants from the site to an approved disposal 

site. This coverage shall include the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement, 

MCS 90. 
 

15.1.7 Proof of Carriage of Insurance and Other Requirements 

Endorsements and Certificates 

 

15.1.7.1 Developer shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any 

Subcontractor to commence Work on the Project, until Developer 

and its Subcontractor(s) have procured all required insurance and 

Developer has delivered in duplicate to the District complete 

endorsements (or entire insurance policies) and certificates 

indicating the required coverages have been obtained, and the 

District has approved these documents. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 20  

15.1.7.2 Endorsements, certificates, and insurance policies shall 

include the following: 
 

15.1.7.2.1 A clause stating the following, or other 

language acceptable to the District: 
 

“This policy shall not be canceled and the coverage 

amounts shall not be reduced until notice has been mailed 

to District, Architect, and Construction Manager stating 

date of cancellation by the insurance carrier. Date of 

cancellation may not be less than thirty (30) days after 

date of mailing notice.” 
 

15.1.7.2.2 Language stating in particular those 

insured, extent of insurance, location and operation to 

which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom 

cancellation notice will be sent, and length of notice 

period. 
 

15.1.7.3 All endorsements, certificates and insurance policies shall 

state that District, its Board Members, employees and agents, 

Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Inspector(s) and 

Architect(s) are named additional insureds under all policies except 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability 

Insurance. 
 

15.1.7.4 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 

against any of the named additional insureds. 
 

15.1.7.5 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 

be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 

agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s). 

 

15.1.7.6 Developer’s insurance limit shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought. 

 

15.1.7.7 No policy shall be amended, canceled, or modified, and 

the coverage amounts shall not be reduced, until Developer or 

Developer’s broker has provided written notice to District, Architect, 

and Construction Manager stating date of the amendment, 

modification, cancellation or reduction, and a description of the 

change. Date of amendment, modification, cancellation or reduction 

may not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice. 

 

15.1.7.8 Insurance written on a “claims made” basis shall be 

retroactive to a date that coincides with or precedes Developer’s 

commencement of Work, including subsequent policies purchased as 

renewals or replacements. Said policy is to be renewed by Developer 

and all Subcontractors for a period of five (5) years following 

completion of the Work or termination of this Facilities Lease. Such 

insurance must have the same coverage and limits as the policy that 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 21  

was in effect during the term of this Facilities Lease, and will cover 

Developer and all Subcontractors for all claims made. 
 

15.1.7.9 Developer’s and Subcontractors’ insurance policy(s) shall 

be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by District, its Board Members, employees and/or 

agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project 

Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s). 
 

15.1.7.10 All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 

against any of the named additional insureds. 
 

15.1.7.11 All policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 
 

15.1.7.12 All of Developer’s insurance shall be with insurance 

companies with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: XI. 
 

15.1.7.13 The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no 

way limit Developer’s liability arising out of or relating to the 

performance of the Work or related activities. 
 

15.1.7.14 Failure of Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) to 

comply with the insurance requirements herein shall be deemed a 

material breach of the Facilities Lease and constitute a Default by 

Developer pursuant to this Facilities Lease. 

 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 22  

15.1.8 Insurance Policy Limits 
 

The limits of insurance shall not be less than the following amounts and for those 
subcontractors whose subcontract does not exceed $1,000,000 shall not be less than the following 
amounts: 

Commercial General 
Liability 

Product Liability and 
Completed Operations, Fire 
Damage Liability – Split Limit 

Developer: $2,000,000 per 
occurrence; $4,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Excess Liability  Developer: $10,000,000 per 
occurrence; $10,000,000 annual 
aggregate 

Subcontractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Automobile Liability – Any 
Auto 

Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 (limits may be met 
with Excess Liability Policy required 
herein) 

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Workers’ Compensation  Statutory limits pursuant to State 
law 

Employer’s Liability  $1,000,000 

Subcontractors: $1,000,000 

Builder’s Risk  Replacement Cost 

Pollution Liability  $2,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 

If Developer normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required 

by District, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for 

purposes of the Contract. Therefore, Developer hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance 

carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the 

Contract. 
 

Notwithstanding anything in this Facilities Lease to the contrary, the above insurance 

requirements may be modified as appropriate for subcontractors, with District's prior written 

approval. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 23  

15.2 District’s Insurance 
 

15.2.1 Rental Interruption Insurance 

 

District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, for 

the benefit of District and Developer, as their interests may appear, maintain 

rental interruption insurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of the 

Project due to damage or destruction, in an amount at least equal to the 

maximum estimated Lease Payments payable under this Facilities Lease during 

the current or any future twenty-four (24) month period. This insurance may 

be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other insurance coverage 

carried by the District, and such insurance may be maintained in whole or in 

part in the form of participation by the District in a joint powers agency or other 

program providing pooled insurance. This insurance may not be maintained in 

the form of self-insurance. 
 

15.2.2 Property Insurance 

 

District shall at all times from and after District’s acceptance of the Project, 

carry and maintain in force a policy of property insurance for 100% of the 

insurable replacement value with no coinsurance penalty, on the Site and the 

Project, together with all improvements thereon, under a standard “all risk” 

contract insuring against loss or damage. Developer shall be named as 

additional insureds or co-insureds thereon by way of endorsement. District shall 

have the right to procure the required insurance through a joint powers agency 

or to self-insure against such losses or portion thereof as is deemed prudent by 

District. 
 

16. Indemnification and Defense 
 

16.1 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall indemnify, 

keep and hold harmless the District, the Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s), 

their respective consultants, separate contractors, board members, officers, 

representatives, agents, and employees, in both individual and official capacities 

(“Indemnitees”), against all suits, claims, injury, damages, losses, and expenses 

(“Claims”), including but not limited to attorney’s fees and costs, caused by, arising 

out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole or in part, the performance of the Work 

under this Contract by Developer or its Subcontractors, vendors and/or suppliers. 

However, Developer’s indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be reduced 

by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or Architect’s liability to the extent the 

Claim(s) is/are caused wholly by the active negligence or willful misconduct of the 

Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court 

or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction. This indemnification and hold harmless 

obligation of Developer shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce 

any right or obligation of indemnity that would otherwise exist or arise as to any 

Indemnitee or other person described herein. This indemnification and hold harmless 

obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 

comply with any law and/or provision of the Contract Documents in strict accordance 

with their terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developers 

obligations regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage 

and Penalty Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 24  

16.2 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Developer shall also defend 

Indemnitees, at its own expense, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs, 

against all Claims caused by, arising out of, resulting from, or incidental to, in whole 

or in part, the performance of the Work under this Facilities Lease by Developer, its 

Subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers. However, without impacting Developer’s 

obligation to provide an immediate and ongoing defense of Indemnitees, Developer’s 

defense obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or 

Architect’s liability to the extent caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or 

willful misconduct of the Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the 

Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction. The District shall 

have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Developer proposes to 

defend the Indemnitees. If any Indemnitee provides its own defense due to failure to 

timely respond to tender of defense, rejection of tender of defense, or conflict of 

interest of proposed counsel, Developer shall reimburse such Indemnitee for any 

expenditures. Developer’s defense obligation shall not be construed to negate, 

abridge, or otherwise reduce any right or obligation of defense that would otherwise 

exist as to any Indemnitee or other person described herein. Developer’s defense 

obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Developer to 

comply with any provision of law, any failure or alleged failure to timely and properly 

fulfill all of its obligations under the Contract Documents in strict accordance with their 

terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Developer’s obligations 

regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage and Penalty 

Assessments and/or Orders by the DIR. Developer shall give prompt notice to the 

District in the event of any Claim(s). 
 

16.3 Without limitation of the provisions herein, if Developer’s obligation to 

indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees or its obligation to defend Indemnitees 

as provided herein shall be determined to be void or unenforceable, in whole or in part, 

it is the intention of the Parties that these circumstances shall not otherwise affect the 

validity or enforceability of Developer’s agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless the rest of the Indemnitees, as provided herein. Further, Developer shall be 

and remain fully liable on its agreements and obligations herein to the fullest extent 

permitted by law. 

 

16.4 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, the District shall provide timely 

notification to Developer of the receipt of any third-party Claim relating to this 

Contract. The District shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in 

providing said notification. 

 

16.5 In any and all Claims against any of the Indemnitees by any employee of 

Developer, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them 

or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, Developer’s indemnification 

obligation herein shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 

type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Developer or any 

Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts. 

 

16.6 The District may retain so much of the moneys due to Developer as shall be 

considered necessary, until disposition of any such Claims or until the District, 

Architect(s) and Construction Manager(s) have received written agreement from 

Developer that Developer will unconditionally defend the District, the Architect(s) and 

Construction Manager(s), their respective officers, agents and employees, and pay any 

damages due by reason of settlement or judgment. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 25  

16.7 Developer’s defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the 

completion of Work, including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination 

of the Contract. 
 

17. Eminent Domain 
 

17.1 Total Taking After Project Delivery 
 

If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, all of the 

Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent domain, the 

Term shall cease as of the day possession shall be so taken. 
 

17.1.1 The financial interest of Developer shall be limited to the amount of 

principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that 

are then due or past due together with all remaining and succeeding principal 

payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 

remainder of the original Term. For example, if all of the Project and the Site is 

taken at the end of the third year of the Term, Developer shall be entitled to 

receive from the eminent domain award the sum of all principal payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that would have been 

owing for the fourth year through the end of the Term had there been no taking. 

 

17.1.2 The balance of the award, if any, shall be paid to the District. 

 

17.2 Total Taking Prior to Project Delivery 
 

If all of the Project and the Site is taken permanently under the power of eminent 

domain and Developer is still performing the work of the Project and has not yet 

delivered possession of the Project to District, the Term shall cease as of the day 

possession shall be so taken. The financial interest of Developer shall be the amount 

Developer has expended to date for work performed on the Project, subject to 

documentation reasonably satisfactory to the District. 
 

17.3 Partial Taking 

 

If, following delivery of possession of the Project by Developer to District, less than all 

of the Project and the Site is taken permanently, or if all of the Project and the Site or 

any part thereof is taken temporarily, under the power of eminent domain. 

 

17.3.1 This Facilities Lease shall continue in full force and effect and shall 

not be terminated by virtue of that partial taking and the Parties waive the 

benefit of any law to the contrary, and 
 

17.3.2 There shall be a partial abatement of any principal payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C as a result of the 

application of the net proceeds of any eminent domain award to the 

prepayment of those payments hereunder. The Parties agree to negotiate, in 

good faith, for an equitable split of the net proceeds of any eminent domain 

award and a corresponding reduction in the payments required pursuant to the 

GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 26  

18. Damage and Destruction 
 

If, following delivery of possession of all or a portion of the Project by Developer to District, 

the Project is totally or partially destroyed due to fire, acts of vandalism, flood, storm, 

earthquake, Acts of God, or other casualty beyond the control of either party hereto, the Term 

shall end and District shall no longer be required to make any payments required pursuant to 

the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C that are then due or past due or any remaining and 

succeeding principal payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C for the 

remainder of the original Term. 
 

19. Abatement 
 

19.1 If, after the Parties have executed the Memorandum of Commencement Date 

attached hereto as Exhibit E, the Project becomes destroyed or damaged beyond 

repair, the District may determine its use of the Project abated. Thereafter, the District 

shall have no obligation to make, nor shall Developer have the right to demand, the 

Lease Payments as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 

Facilities Lease. The Term shall cease at that time. 
 

19.2 The Parties hereby agree that the net proceeds of the District’s rental 

interruption insurance that the District must maintain during the Term, as required 

herein, shall constitute a special fund for the payment of the Lease Payments indicated 

in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C. 

 

19.3 The District shall as soon as practicable after such event, apply the net proceeds 

of its insurance policy intended to cover that loss (“Net Proceeds”), either to: 
 

19.3.1 Repair the Project to full use. 

 

19.3.2 Replace the Project, at the District’s sole cost and expense, with 

property of equal or greater value to the Project immediately prior to the time 

of the destruction or damage, and that replacement, once completed, shall be 

substituted in this Facilities Lease by appropriate endorsement; or 
 

19.3.3 Exercise the District’s purchase optio to Exhibit D to the Facilities 

Lease n as indicated in the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C to this 

Facilities Lease. 

 

19.4 The District shall notify Developer of which course of action it desires to take 

within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the destruction or damage. The Net 

Proceeds of all insurance payable with respect to the Project shall be available to the 

District and shall be used to discharge the District's obligations under this Section. 

 

20. Access 
 

20.1 By Developer 

 

Developer shall have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the Site to 

construct the Project pursuant to this Facilities Lease. Following the acceptance of the 

Project by District, Developer may enter the Project at reasonable times with advance 

notice and arrangement with District for purposes of making any repairs required to 

be made by Developer. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 27  

20.2 By District 
 

The District shall have the right to enter upon the Site at all times. District shall comply 

with all safety precautions and procedures required by Developer. 
 

21. Assignment, Subleasing 
 

21.1 Assignment and Subleasing by the District 
 

Any assignment or sublease by District shall be subject to all of the following 

conditions: 
 

21.1.1 This Facilities Lease and the obligation of the District to make the 

payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall 

remain obligations of the District; and 
 

21.1.2 The District shall, within thirty (30) days after the delivery thereof, 

furnish or cause to be furnished to Developer a true and complete copy of any 

assignment or sublease. 
 

21.2 Assignment by Developer 
 

Developer may assign its right, title and interest in this Facilities Lease, in whole or in 

part to one or more assignees, only after the written consent of District, which District 

will not unreasonably withhold. No assignment shall be effective against the District 

unless and until the District has consented in writing. Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary contained in this Facilities Lease, no consent from the District shall be required 

in connection with any assignment by Developer to a lender for purposes of financing 

the Project as long as there are not additional costs to the District. 
 

22. Termination, Default And Suspension 
 

22.1 Termination; Lease Terminable Only As Set Forth Herein 
 

22.1.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, this 

Facilities Lease shall not terminate, nor shall District have any right to terminate 

this Facilities Lease or be entitled to the abatement of any necessary payments 

pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C or any reduction thereof. The 

obligations hereunder of District shall not be otherwise affected by reason of 

any damage to or destruction of all or any part of the Project; the taking of the 

Project or any portion thereof by condemnation or otherwise; the prohibition, 

limitation or restriction of District’s use of the Project; the interference with 

such use by any private person or contractor; the District’s acquisition of the 

ownership of the Project (other than pursuant to an express provision of this 

Facilities Lease); any present or future law to the contrary notwithstanding. It 

is the intention of the Parties hereto that all necessary payments pursuant to 

the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall continue to be payable in all 

events, and the obligations of the District hereunder shall continue unaffected 

unless the requirement to pay or perform the same shall be terminated or 

modified pursuant to an express provision of this Facilities Lease. 
 

22.1.2 Nothing contained herein shall be deemed a waiver by the District of 

any rights that it may have to bring a separate action with respect to any Event 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 28  

of Default by Developer hereunder or under any other agreement to recover 

the costs and expenses associated with that action. The District covenants and 

agrees that it will remain obligated under this Facilities Lease in accordance 

with its terms. 
 

22.1.3 Following completion of the Project, the District will not take any 

action to terminate, rescind or avoid this Facilities Lease, notwithstanding the 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation, 

dissolution, winding-up or other proceeding affecting Developer or any assignee 

of Developer in any such proceeding, and notwithstanding any action with 

respect to this Facilities Lease which may be taken by any trustee or receiver 

of Developer or of any assignee of Developer in any such proceeding or by any 

court in any such proceeding. Following completion of the Project, except as 

otherwise expressly provided in this Facilities Lease, District waives all rights 

now or hereafter conferred by law to quit, terminate or surrender this Facilities 

Lease or the Project or any part thereof. 
 

22.1.4 District acknowledges that Developer may assign an interest in some 

or all of the necessary payments pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in 

Exhibit C to a lender in order to obtain financing for the cost of constructing 

the Project and that the lender may rely on the foregoing covenants and 

provisions in connection with such financing. 
 

22.2 District’s Request for Assurances 
 

If District at any time reasonably believes Developer is or may be in default under this 

Contract, District may in its sole discretion notify Developer of this fact and request 

written assurances from Developer of performance of Work and a written plan from 

Developer to remedy any potential default under the terms of this Contract that the 

District may advise Developer of in writing. Developer shall, within ten (10) calendar 

days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the District’s 

requirements in its request for assurances. Developer’s failure to provide such written 

assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) calendar 

days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Contract sufficient to justify 

termination for cause. 
 

22.3 District's Right to Terminate Developer for Cause 
 

22.3.1 Grounds for Termination 

 

The District, in its sole discretion, without prejudice to any other right or 

remedy, may terminate the Site Lease and Facilities Lease and/or terminate 

Developer’s right to perform the work of the Facilities Lease based upon any of 

the following: 
 

22.3.1.1 Developer refuses or fails to execute the Work or any 

separable part thereof; or 
 

22.3.1.2 Developer fails to complete said Work within the time 

specified or any extension thereof; or 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 29  

22.3.1.3 Developer persistently fails or refuses to perform Work or 

provide material of sufficient quality as to be in compliance with the 

Facilities Lease; or 
 

22.3.1.4 Prior to completion of the Project, Developer is adjudged 

a bankrupt, files a petition for relief as a debtor, or a petition is filed 

against Developer without its consent, and the petition not dismissed 

within sixty (60) days; or 
 

22.3.1.5 Prior to the completion of the Project, Developer makes a 

general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or a receiver is 

appointed on account of its insolvency; or 
 

22.3.1.6 Developer persistently or repeatedly refuses and/or fails, 

except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply 

enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to complete the 

Work in the time specified; or 
 

22.3.1.7 Developer fails to make prompt payment to 

Subcontractors, or for material, or for labor; or 
 

22.3.1.8 Developer persistently disregards laws, or ordinances, or 

instructions of District as indicated in Exhibit D, or otherwise in 

violation of Exhibit D; or 
 

22.3.1.9 Developer fails to supply labor, including that of 

Subcontractors, that is sufficient to prosecute the Work or that can 

work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be 

employed on the Work; or 

 

22.3.1.10 Developer or its Subcontractor(s) is/are otherwise in 

breach, default, or in substantial violation of any provision of this 

Facilities Lease, including but not limited to a lapse in licensing or 

registration. 

 

22.3.2 Notification of Termination 

 

22.3.2.1 Upon the occurrence at District's sole determination of 

any of the above conditions, or upon Developer’s failure to perform 

any material covenant, condition or agreement in this Facilities 

Lease, District may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, 

serve written notice upon Developer and its Surety of District's 

termination of this Facilities Lease and/or Developer’s right to 

perform the Work of this Facilities Lease. This notice will contain the 

reasons for termination. 
 

22.3.2.2 Unless, within fifteen (15) days after the service of the 

notice, any and all condition(s) shall cease, and any and all 

violation(s) shall cease, or arrangement satisfactory to District for 

the correction of the condition(s) and/or violation(s) be made, this 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease shall cease and terminate; 

provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be 

corrected within fifteen (15) days after the service of notice, District 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 30  

may consent to an extension of time, provided Developer instituted 

and diligently pursued corrective action within the applicable fifteen 

(15)-day period and until the violation is corrected. Upon District 

determination, Developer shall not be entitled to receive any further 

payment until the entire Work is finished. 
 

22.3.2.3 Upon Termination, District may immediately serve written 

notice of tender upon Surety whereby Surety shall have the right to 

take over and perform this Facilities Lease only if Surety: 
 

22.3.2.3.1 Within three (3) days after service upon it 

of the notice of tender, gives District written notice of 

Surety’s intention to take over and perform this Facilities 

Lease; and 
 

22.3.2.3.2 Commences performance of this Facilities 

Lease within three (3) days from date of serving of its 

notice to District. 
 

22.3.2.4 Surety shall not utilize Developer in completing the 

Project if the District notifies Surety of the District’s objection to 

Developer’s further participation in the completion of the Project. 

Surety expressly agrees that any developer which Surety proposes 

to fulfill Surety’s obligations is subject to District’s approval. 

 

22.3.2.5 If Surety fails to notify District or begin performance as 

indicated herein, District may take over the Work and execute the 

Work to completion by any method it may deem advisable at the 

expense of Developer and/or its Surety. Developer and its Surety 

shall be liable to District for any excess cost or other damages the 

District incurs thereby. Time is of the essence in this Facilities Lease. 

If the District takes over the Work as herein provided, District may, 

without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in 

completing the Work all materials, appliances, plan, and other 

property belonging to Developer as may be on the Site of the Work, 

in bonded storage, or previously paid for. 

 

22.3.3 Effect of Termination 
 

22.3.3.1 If District terminates the Site Lease and the Facilities 

Lease pursuant to this section, the Site and any improvements built 

upon the Site shall vest in District upon termination of the Site Lease 

and Facilities Lease, and District shall thereafter be required to pay 

only the principal amounts then due and owing pursuant to the GMP 

provisions indicated in Exhibit C, less any damages incurred by 

District due to Developer’s default, acts, or omissions. 
 

22.3.3.2 The District shall retain all rights it possesses pursuant to 

this Facilities Lease including, without limitation. 
 

22.3.3.2.1 The right to assess liquidated damages due 

because of any project delay; and 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 31  

22.3.3.2.2 All rights the District holds to demand 

performance pursuant to Developer’s required 

performance bond. 
 

22.3.3.3 Developer shall, only if ordered to do so by the District, 

immediately remove from the Site all or any materials and personal 

property belonging to Developer that have not been incorporated in 

the construction of the Work, or which are not in place in the Work. 

The District retains the right, but not the obligation, to keep and use 

any materials and personal property belonging to Developer that 

have not been incorporated in the construction of the Work, or which 

are not in place in the Work. Developer and its Surety shall be liable 

upon the performance bond for all damages caused the District by 

reason of Developer’s failure to complete the Work under this 

Facilities Lease. 
 

22.3.3.4 In the event that the District shall perform any portion of, 

or the whole of the Work, pursuant to the provisions of the General 

Conditions, the District shall not be liable nor accountable to 

Developer in any way for the time within which, or the manner in 

which, the Work is performed by the District or for any changes the 

District may make in the Work or for the money expended by the 

District in satisfying claims and/or suits and/or other obligations in 

connection with the Work. 
 

22.3.3.5 In the event termination for cause is determined to have 

not been for cause, the termination shall be deemed to have been a 

termination for convenience effective as of the same date as the 

purported termination for cause. 
 

22.3.3.6 In the event that the Site Lease and Facilities Lease are 

terminated for any reason, no allowances or compensation will be 

granted for the loss of any anticipated profit by Developer or any 

impact or impairment of Developer’s bonding capacity. 

 

22.3.3.7 If the expense to the District to finish the Work exceeds 

the unpaid Guaranteed Maximum Price, Developer and Surety shall 

pay difference to District within twenty-one (21) days of District's 

request. District may apply any amounts otherwise due to Developer 

to this difference. 

 

22.3.3.8 The District shall have the right (but shall have no 

obligation) to assume and/or assign to a replacement contractor or 

construction manager, or other third party who is qualified and has 

sufficient resources to complete the Work, the rights of Developer 

under its subcontracts with any or all Subcontractors. In the event 

of an assumption or assignment by the District, no Subcontractor 

shall have any claim against the District or third party for Work 

performed by Subcontractor or other matters arising prior to 

termination of the Facilities Lease. The District or any third party, as 

the case may be, shall be liable only for obligations to the 

Subcontractor arising after assumption or assignment. Should the 

District so elect, Developer shall execute and deliver all documents 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 32  

and take all steps, including the legal assignment of its contractual 

rights, as the District may require, for the purpose of fully vesting in 

the District the rights and benefits of its Subcontractors under 

Subcontracts or other obligations or commitments. Developer must 

include this assignment provision in all of its Facilities Leases with 

its Subcontractors. 
 

22.3.3.9 All payments due Developer hereunder shall be subject to 

a right of offset by the District for expenses, damages, losses, costs, 

claims, or reimbursements suffered by, or due to, the District as a 

result of any default, acts, or omissions of Developer. 
 

22.3.3.10 The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not in 

limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District. 
 

22.4 Termination of Developer for Convenience 
 

22.4.1 District in its sole discretion may terminate the Facilities Lease in 

whole or in part upon three (3) days written notice to Developer. 
 

22.4.2 Upon notice, Developer shall: 
 

22.4.2.1 Cease operations as directed by the District in the notice; 
 

22.4.2.2 Take necessary actions for the protection and 

preservation of the Work as soon as possible; and 
 

22.4.2.3 Terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders 

and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

 

22.4.3 Within 30 days of the notice, Developer shall submit to the District 

a payment application for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services 

performed, including all Developer's and Subcontractor(s)’ mobilization and/or 

demobilization costs, that is unpaid. Developer shall have no claims against the 

District except for the actual cost for labor, materials, and services performed 

that adequately documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, or 

otherwise. District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed until 

the notice of termination. 
 

22.4.4 Under a termination for convenience, the District retains the right to 

all the options available to the District if there is a termination for cause. 
 

22.5 Developer Remedies Upon District Default 
 

22.5.1 Events of Default by District Defined 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” of the District under this Facilities 

Lease. The terms “Event of Default” and “Default,” whenever they are used as 

to the District in the Site Lease or this Facilities Lease, shall only mean one or 

more of the following events: 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 33  

22.5.1.1 Failure by the District to pay payments required pursuant 

to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C, and the continuation of this 

failure for a period of forty-five (45) days. 
 

22.5.1.2 Failure by the District to perform any material covenant, 

condition or agreement in this Facilities Lease and that failure 

continues for a period of forty-five (45) days after Developer 

provides District with written notice specifying that failure and 

requesting that the failure be remedied; provided, however, if the 

failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable 

period, Developer shall not withhold its consent to an extension of 

time if corrective action is instituted by the District within the 

applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected. 
 

22.5.2 Remedies on District’s Default 

 

If there has been an Event of Default on the District’s part, Developer may 

exercise any and all remedies granted pursuant to this Facilities Lease; 

provided, however, there shall be no right under any circumstances to 

accelerate any of the payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in 

Exhibit C or otherwise declare those payments not then past due to be 

immediately due and payable. 
 

22.5.2.1 Developer may rescind its leaseback of the Project to the 

District under this Facilities Lease and re-rent the Project and Site to 

another lessee for the remaining Term for no less than the fair 

market value for leasing the Project and Site, which shall be: 

 

22.5.2.1.1 An amount determined by a mutually- 

agreed upon appraiser; or 
 

22.5.2.1.2 If an appraiser cannot be agreed to, an 

amount equal to the mean between a District appraisal 

and a Developer appraisal for the Project and Site, both 

prepared by MAI-certified appraisers. 
 

22.5.2.2 District’s obligation to make the payments required 

pursuant to the GMP provisions indicated in Exhibit C shall be: 

 

22.5.2.2.1 Increased by the amount of costs, 

expenses, and damages incurred by Developer in re- 

renting the Project and Site; and 
 

22.5.2.2.2 Decreased by the amount of rent Developer 

receives in re-letting the Project and Site. 
 

22.5.2.3 District agrees that the terms of this Facilities Lease 

constitute full and sufficient notice of the right of Developer to re- 

rent the Project and Site in the Event of Default without effecting a 

surrender of this Facilities Lease, and further agrees that no acts of 

Developer in re-renting as permitted herein shall constitute a 

surrender or termination of this Facilities Lease, but that, on the 

contrary, in the event of an Event of Default by the District the right 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 34  

to re-rent the Project and Site shall vest in Developer as indicated 

herein. 
 

22.5.3 District’s Continuing Obligation 
 

Unless there has been damage, destruction, a Taking, or Developer has acted, 

failed to act, or is in default as indicated above providing District with the right 

to terminate for cause, the District shall continue to remain liable for the 

payments required pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C and those 

amounts shall be payable to Developer at the time and in the manner therein 

provided. 
 

22.5.4 No Remedy Exclusive 
 

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Developer is intended to be 

exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 

every other remedy given under this Facilities Lease or now or hereafter existing 

at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing 

upon any Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to 

be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time 

to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle Developer 

to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this article, it shall not be necessary to 

give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article or by 

law. 
 

22.6 Emergency Termination Pursuant to Public Contracts Act of 1949 
 

22.6.1 This Facilities Lease is subject to termination as provided by sections 

4410 and 4411 of the Government Code of the State of California, being a 

portion of the Emergency Termination of Public Contracts Act of 1949. 
 

22.6.1.1 Section 4410 of the Government Code states: 
 

In the event a national emergency occurs, and public work, being 

performed by contract, is stopped, directly or indirectly, because of 

the freezing or diversion of materials, equipment or labor, as the 

result of an order or a proclamation of the President of the United 

States, or of an order of any federal authority, and the circumstances 

or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a reasonable 

time to proceed with a substantial portion of the work, then the 

public agency and the contractor may, by written agreement, 

terminate said contract. 
 

22.6.1.2 Section 4411 of the Government Code states: 

 

Such an agreement shall include the terms and conditions of the 

termination of the contract and provision for the payment of 

compensation or money, if any, which either party shall pay to the 

other or any other person, under the facts and circumstances in the 

case. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 35  

22.6.2 Compensation to Developer shall be determined at the sole 

discretion of District on the basis of the reasonable value of the Work done, 

including preparatory work. As an exception to the foregoing and at the 

District's discretion, in the case of any fully completed separate item or portion 

of the Work for which there is a separate previously submitted unit price or 

item on the accepted schedule of values, that price may control. The District, 

at its sole discretion, may adopt the Schedule of Values Price as the value of 

the work done or any portion thereof. 
 

22.7 Suspension of Work 
 

22.7.1 District in its sole discretion may suspend, delay or interrupt the 

Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the District may determine 

upon three (3) days written notice to Developer. 
 

22.7.1.1 An adjustment may be made for changes in the cost of 

performance of the Work caused by any suspension, delay or 

interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent: 
 

22.7.1.1.1 That performance is, was or would have 

been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another 

cause for which Developer is responsible; or 
 

22.7.1.1.2 That an equitable adjustment is made or 

denied under another provision of the Site Lease or the 

Facilities Lease; or 
 

22.7.1.1.3 That the suspension of Work was the direct 

or indirect result of Developer’s failure to perform any of 

its obligations hereunder. 
 

22.7.1.1.4 The delay could not have been avoided or 

mitigated by Developer's reasonable diligence. 
 

22.7.1.2 Any adjustments in cost of performance may have a fixed 

or percentage fee as provided in the section on Format for Proposed 

Change Order in Exhibit D. This amount shall be full compensation 

for all Developer’s and its Subcontractor(s)’ changes in the cost of 

performance of the Facilities Lease caused by any such suspension, 

delay or interruption. 
 

23. Limitation of District Liability 
 

District’s financial obligations under this Contract shall be limited to the payment of the 

compensation provided in this Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, 

in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or 

tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited 

to, lost profits or revenue, lost bonding capacity, arising out of or in connection with this 

Contract for the services performed in connection with this Contract. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 36  

24. Notices 

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall 

be deemed to have been received five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail in 

registered or certified form with postage fully prepaid or one (1) business day after deposit 

with an overnight delivery service with proof of actual delivery: 
 

If to District: If to Developer: 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Attn: Contracts Department 

John F. Otto, Inc. dba Otto Construction 

1717 Second St.  
Sacramento, CA  95811 

Attn: John Hayward, Principal-in-Charge 

 

With a copy to: 
 

Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Dannis Woliver Kelley 

200 California Street, Suite 400 

San Francisco, CA 94111 
 

Developer and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 

subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 
 

25. Binding Effect 
 

This Facilities Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon Developer and 

District and their respective successors, transferees and assigns. 
 

26. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver 
 

In the event any agreement contained in this Facilities Lease should be breached by either 

party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular 

breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 
 

27. Severability 
 

In the event any provision of this Facilities Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any 

other provision hereof, unless elimination of the invalid provision materially alters the rights 

and obligations embodied in this Facilities Lease or the Site Lease. 
 

28. Amendments, Changes and Modifications 
 

This Facilities Lease may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated without 

the written agreement of both Parties hereto. 
 

29. Net-Net-Net Lease 
 

This Facilities Lease shall be deemed and construed to be a “net-net-net lease” and the District 

hereby agrees that all payments it makes pursuant to the GMP provisions in Exhibit C shall 

be an absolute net return to Developer, free and clear of any expenses, charges or set-offs. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 37  

30. Execution in Counterparts 
 

This Facilities Lease may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

31. Developer and District Representatives 
 

Whenever under the provisions of this Facilities Lease the approval of Developer or the District 

is required, or Developer or the District is required to take some action at the request of the 

other, the approval or request shall be given for Developer by Developer’s Representative and 

for the District by the District’s Representative, and any party hereto shall be authorized to 

rely upon any such approval or request. 
 

32. Applicable Law 
 

This Facilities Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California, and venued in the County within which the Site is located. 
 

33. Attorney's Fees 
 

If either party brings an action or proceeding involving the Property or to enforce the terms 

of this Facilities Lease or to declare rights hereunder, each party shall bear the cost of its own 

attorneys’ fees. 
 

34. Captions 
 

The captions or headings in this Facilities Lease are for convenience only and in no way define, 

limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Facilities Lease. 
 

35. Prior Agreements 
 

This Facilities Lease and the corresponding Site Lease collectively contain all of the 

agreements of the Parties hereto with respect to any matter covered or mentioned in this 

Facilities Lease and no prior agreements or understanding pertaining to any matter shall be 

effective for any purpose. 
 

36. Further Assurances 
 

Parties shall promptly execute and deliver all documents and instruments reasonably 

requested to give effect to the provisions of this Facilities Lease. 
 

37. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated 
 

The Recitals set forth at the beginning of this Facilities Lease and the attached Exhibits are 

hereby incorporated into its terms and provisions by this reference. 
 

38. Time of the Essence 
 

Time is of the essence with respect to each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 

Facilities Lease. 



Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 38  

39. Force Majeure 
 

A party shall be excused from the performance of any obligation imposed in this Facilities 

Lease and the exhibits hereto for any period and to the extent that a party is prevented from 

performing that obligation, in whole or in part, as a result of delays caused by the other party 

or third parties, a governmental agency or entity, an act of God, war, terrorism, civil 

disturbance, forces of nature, fire, flood, earthquake, strikes, or lockouts, and that non- 

performance will not be a default hereunder or a grounds for termination of this Facilities 

Lease. 
 

40. Interpretation 
 

None of the Parties hereto, nor their respective counsel, shall be deemed the drafters of this 

Facilities Lease for purposes of construing the provisions thereof. The language in all parts of 

this Facilities Lease shall in all cases be construed according to its fair meaning, not strictly for 

or against any of the Parties hereto. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Facilities Lease to be executed by their respective 

officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective Date. 
 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 
 

Dated:  , 20   Dated:  , 20   

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

By:    

 

[Developer] 

 

By:    

 

Name: Rose F. Ramos Name:    
 

Title: Chief Business Officer  Title:    



Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 

Attached is the Legal Description for: 
 

Project: Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 

Recorded Address: 3150 I Street Sacramento, CA 95816 

Physical Address: APN: 007-0054-001 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A to Facilities Lease Page A 1 



Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Attached is a map or diagram of the Site that is subject to this Facilities Lease and 

upon which Developer will construct the Project. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B to Facilities Lease Page B 1 



Page 1 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

GUARANTEED    MAXIMUM    PRICE     AND 

OTHER PROJECT COST, FUNDING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 

1. Site Lease Payments 
 

As indicated in the Site Lease, Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District as 

consideration for the Site Lease. 
 

2. Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer will cause the Project to be constructed for an 

amount to be determined after preconstruction services are completed (“Guaranteed 

Maximum Price”). The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include the preconstruction fees and 

costs. 
 

2.1 Cost of the Work 
 

The term Cost of the Work shall mean the costs necessarily incurred in the proper 

performance of the Work contemplated by the Contract Documents. Such costs shall 

be at rates no higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with 

the prior consent of the District. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set 

forth in this Section 2 and approved by the District. 

 

2.1.1 General Conditions 
 

The General Conditions as set forth in Attachment 1 hereto shall be included 

in a progress billing as incurred. Said rates shall include all costs for labor, 

equipment and materials for the items identified therein which are necessary 

for the proper management of the Project, and shall include all costs paid or 

incurred by Developer for insurance, permits, taxes, and all contributions, 

assessments and benefits, holidays, vacations, retirement benefits, incentives 

to the extent contemplated in Attachment 1, whether required by law or 

collective bargaining agreements or otherwise paid or provided by Developer 

to its employees. The District reserves the right to request changes to the 

personnel, equipment, or facilities provided as General Conditions as may be 

necessary or appropriate for the proper management of the Project, in which 

case, the District shall be entitled to a reduction in the cost of General 

Conditions based on the rates set forth in Attachment 1. 
 

2.1.2 Subcontract Costs 
 

Payments made by the Developer to Subcontractors (inclusive of the 

Subcontractor’s bonding, if required, and insurance costs, which shall be 

included in the subcontract amount), which payments shall be made in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 



Page 2 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work 
 

Costs incurred by Developer for self-performed work at the direction of District 

or with the District’s prior approval, as follows: 
 

2.1.3.1 Actual costs to Developer of wages of construction workers, 

excluding all salaried and/or administrative personnel, directly 

employed by Developer to perform the construction of the Work at the 

site. 
 

2.1.3.2 Wages or salaries and customary benefits, such as sick leave, 

medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive programs, 

and pension plans of Developer’s field supervisory, safety and 

administrative personnel when stationed at the site or stationed at 

Developer’s principal office, only for that portion of their time required 

for the Work. 
 

2.1.3.3 Wages and salaries and customary benefits, such as sick 

leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive 

programs and pension plans of Developer’s supervisory or 

administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the 

road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or 

equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time 

required for the Work. 

 

2.1.3.4 Costs paid or incurred by Developer for taxes, insurance, 

contributions, assessments required by law or collective bargaining 

agreements and for personnel not covered by such agreements, and for 

customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, 

holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on 

wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under 

Subparagraphs 2.1.3.1 through 2.1.3.3. 
 

2.1.3.5 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and 

equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including costs 

of materials in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable 

waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the 

District’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the District’s 

option, shall be sold by Developer. Any amounts realized from such sales 

shall be credited to the District as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 

 

2.1.3.6 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, 

maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 

machinery and equipment not customarily owned by construction 

workers, that are provided by Developer at the site and fully consumed 

in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 

items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by 

Developer. Cost for items previously used by Developer shall mean fair 

market value. 

 

2.1.3.7 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, 

equipment, vehicles and vehicle expenses, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by 



Page 3 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

Developer at the site, whether rented from Developer or others, and the 

costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs and replacements, 

dismantling and removal thereof and costs of Developer’s Project field 

office, overhead and general expenses including office supplies, parking, 

office equipment, and software. Rates and quantities of equipment 

rented shall be subject to the District’s prior approval. 
 

2.1.3.8 Costs of removal of debris from the site, daily clean-up costs 

and dumpster charges not otherwise included in the cost of the 

subcontracts which exceeds the clean-up provided under the General 

Conditions. 
 

2.1.3.9 Costs of that portion of the reasonable travel, parking and 

subsistence expenses of Developer’s personnel incurred while traveling 

and discharging duties connected with the Work. 
 

2.1.3.10 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site 

at a mutually acceptable location, if approved in advance by the District. 
 

2.1.4 Allowances 
 

Because it is impossible at the time of execution of the Facilities Lease to 

determine the exact cost of performing certain tasks, the Cost of the Work shall 

include the following Allowances for the Tasks/Work as noted here: 
 

Task/Work Allowance Amount 

TBD 
 

  

  

Total Allowance Amount 
 

 

The Allowance Value for an Allowance Item includes the direct cost of labor, 

materials, equipment, transportation, taxes and insurance associated with the 

applicable Allowance Item. All other costs, including design fees, Developer’s 

overall project management and general conditions costs, overhead and fee, 

are deemed to be included in the original Guaranteed Maximum Price, and are 

not subject to adjustment regardless of the actual amount of the Allowance 

Item. 
 

The District shall have sole discretion to authorize all expenditures from the 

Allowances. The District shall process expenditures from the Allowances in the 

form of an Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”). The Allowances are 

included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Any unused Allowance or unused 

portion thereof shall be deducted from the Cost of the Work pursuant to Exhibit 

D to this Facilities Lease to the benefit of the District. 
 

2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs 



Page 4 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

2.1.5.1 Where not included in the General Conditions, and with the 

prior approval of District, costs of document reproductions 

(photocopying and blueprinting expenses), long distance telephone call 

charges, postage, overnight and parcel delivery charges, telephone 

costs including cellular telephone charges, facsimile or other 

communication service at the Project site, job photos and progress 

schedules, and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 

Developer shall consult with District to determine whether District has 

any vendor relationships that could reduce the cost of these items and 

use such vendors whenever possible. 
 

2.1.5.2 Sales, use, gross receipts, local business and similar taxes 

imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 
 

2.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for permits, plan checks, licenses and 

inspections for which Developer is required by the Contract Documents 

to pay including, but not limited to, permanent utility connection 

charges, street use permit, street use rental, OSHA permit and sidewalk 

use permit and fees. 

 

2.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract 

Documents. 
 

2.1.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Developer’s or its 

subcontractors’ negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to 

the District as set forth in the Contract Documents. 
 

2.1.5.6 Expenses incurred in accordance with Developer’s standard 

personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of 

personnel required for the Work if approved in advance by District. 
 

2.1.5.7 Where requested by District, costs or expenses incurred by 

Developer in performing design services for the design-build systems. 
 

2.1.5.8 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 

to the extent, approved in advance by District. 
 

2.1.5.9 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent 

threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the 

safety of persons and/or property. 
 

2.1.5.10 Provided all other eligible costs have been deducted from the 

contingency and as part of the calculation of amounts due Developer for 

Final Payment, costs of repairing and correcting damaged or non- 

conforming Work executed by Developer, Subcontractors or suppliers, 

providing that such damage or non-conforming Work was not caused by 

negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Developer and 

only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered 

by Developer from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or suppliers. 



Page 5 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

2.1.6 Excluded Costs 
 

The following items are considered general overhead items and shall not be 

billed to the District: 
 

2.1.6.1 Salaries and other compensation of Developer’s personnel 

stationed at Developer’s principal office or offices other than the Project 

Field Office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 2.1.3.2. 

and 2.1.3.4. 
 

2.1.6.2 Expenses of Developer’s principal office and offices other than 

the Project Field Office. 

 

2.1.6.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly 

included in this Section 2. 

 

2.1.6.4 Developer’s capital expenses, including interest on 

Developer’s capital employed for the Work. 
 

2.1.6.5 Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price (as 

adjusted by Change Order) to be exceeded. 
 

2.1.7 Developer’s Fee 
 

4.0% of the Cost of the Work as described in Sections 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 

2.1.4 and 2.1.5. 
 

2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance 
 

For insurance and bonds required under this Facilities Lease (exclusive of those 

required by Subcontractors, which costs are included in the subcontract 

amounts), that portion of insurance and bond premiums which are directly 

attributable to this Contract, which shall be calculated at a rate of 1.47% 

of the Cost of the Work for insurance and 1.47% of the Cost of the Work for 

payment and performance bonds. 
 

2.1.9 Contingency 
 

2.1.9.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes a Contingency of 

  percent (_ %) of the Cost of the Work as described in 

Section 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.1.3 for potential additional construction costs 

for unforeseen conditions that occur over the course of construction 

and/or scope gaps between the subcontract categories of the Work. 

 

2.1.9.2 The Contingency is not intended for such things as scope 

changes. 
 

2.1.9.3 The Contingency shall not be used without the agreement of 

the District. 
 

2.1.9.4 The unused portion of the Contingency shall be considered as 

cost savings and retained by the District at the end of the Project. 



Page 6 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price will consist of the amounts to be identified in 

Attachment 2 to this Exhibit C. Except as indicated herein for modifications to the 

Project approved by the District, Developer will not seek additional compensation from 

District in excess of Guaranteed Maximum Price. District shall pay the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price to Developer in the form of Tenant Improvement Payments and Lease 

Payments as indicated herein. 
 

2.3 Total Payment 
 

In no event shall the cumulative total of the Tenant Improvement Payments and the 

Loan Amount for the Lease Payments ever exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price to 

be defined, as may be modified pursuant to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 
 

2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

2.4.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based 

on the Construction Documents, including the plans and specifications, as 

identified in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 
 

2.4.2 As indicated in the Facilities Lease, the Parties may add to or remove 

from the project specific scopes of work. Based on these change(s), the Parties 

may agree to a reduction or increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If a 

cost impact of a change is agreed to by the Parties, it shall be paid upon the 

payment request from Developer for the work that is the subject of the change 

in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit D. The amount of any change to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be calculated in accordance with the 

provisions of Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 
 

2.4.3 The Parties agree to reduce the Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 

unused portion of Allowances and/or Contingency, if any. 

 

2.4.4 Cost Savings 
 

Developer shall work cooperatively with Architect, Construction Manager, 

subcontractors and District, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities 

to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings. Any identified cost 

savings from the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be identified by Developer, 

and approved in writing by the District. In the event Developer realizes a 

savings on any aspect of the Project, such savings shall be added to the 

Contingency and expended consistent with the Contingency. In addition, any 

portion of Allowance remaining after completion of the Project shall be added 

to the Contingency. If any cost savings require revisions to the Construction 

Documents, Developer shall work with the District and Architect with respect 

to revising the Construction Documents and, if necessary, obtaining the 

approval of DSA with respect to those revisions. Developer shall be entitled to 

an adjustment of Contract Time for delay in completion caused by any cost 

savings adopted by District pursuant to Exhibit D, if requested in writing before 

the approval of the cost savings. 

 

2.4.5 If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to this Exhibit C, 

any reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price resulting from that exercise of 

the Purchase Option, if any, shall be retained in full by the District and shall not 

be shared with Developer. 



Page 7 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

3. Tenant Improvement Payments 
 

Prior to the District’s taking delivery or occupancy of the Project, the District shall pay to 

Developer an amount equal to the Guaranteed Maximum Price as modified pursuant to the 

terms of the Facilities Lease, including Exhibit C and Exhibit D, less the Loan Amount for 

the Lease Payments (“Tenant Improvement Payments”). The District shall withhold a amount 

equal to the Loan Amount as indicated in Attachment 3 to Exhibit C from the Developer for 

its Work on the Project. In other words, no further Tenant Improvement Payment will be made 

to Developer once the amount equal to Guaranteed Maximum Price minus the Loan Amount 

has been paid. Otherwise, the Tenant Improvement Payments will be processed based on the 

amount of Work performed according to Developer’s Schedule of Values (Exhibit G to the 

Facilities Lease) and pursuant to the provisions in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease, including 

withholding for or escrow of retention of five percent (5%) of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

The withholding for the Loan Amount shall be separate from and in addition to withholding 

for or escrow of retention. 
 

4. Lease Payments 
 

Upon execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date, the form of which is attached 

to the Facilities Lease as Exhibit E, the District shall commence making lease payments to 

Developer in accordance with the Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 3. 
 

4.1 The Lease Payments shall be consideration for the District’s rental, use, and 

occupancy of the Project and the Project Site and shall be made in monthly installments 

as indicated in the Schedule of Lease Payments attached hereto as Attachment 3 for 

the duration of the lease term of one (1) year, with the first Lease Payment due ninety 

(90) days after execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date. 
 

4.2 The District represents that the annual Lease Payment obligation does not 

surpass the District’s annual budget and will not require the District to increase or 

impose additional taxes or obligations on the public that did not exist prior to the 

execution of the Facilities Lease. 
 

4.3 Fair Rental Value 
 

District and Developer have agreed and determined that the total Lease 

Payments constitute adequate consideration for the Facilities Lease and are 

reasonably equivalent to the fair rental value of the Project. In making such 

determination, consideration has been given to the obligations of the Parties 

under the Facilities Lease and Site Lease, the uses and purposes which may be 

served by the Project and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District 

and the general public. 



Page 8 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District 
 

4.4.1 The District and Developer understand and intend that the obligation of 

the District to pay Lease Payments and other payments hereunder constitutes 

a current expense of the District and shall not in any way be construed to be a 

debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory 

limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the 

District, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general 

tax revenues, funds or moneys of the District. 
 

4.4.2 Lease Payments due hereunder shall be payable only from current funds 

which are budgeted and appropriated or otherwise made legally available for 

this purpose. This Facilities Lease shall not create an immediate indebtedness 

for any aggregate payments that may become due hereunder. 
 

4.4.3 The District covenants to take all necessary actions to include the Lease 

Payments in each of its final approved annual budgets. 
 

4.4.4 The District further covenants to make all necessary appropriations 

(including any supplemental appropriations) from any source of legally 

available funds of the District for the actual amount of Lease Payments that 

come due and payable during the period covered by each such budget. 

Developer acknowledges that the District has not pledged the full faith and 

credit of the District, State of California or any state agency or state department 

to the payment of Lease Payments or any other payments due hereunder. The 

covenants on the part of District contained in this Facilities Lease constitute 

duties imposed by law and it shall be the duty of each and every public official 

of the District to take such action and do such things as are required by law in 

the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to 

carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Facilities Lease 

agreed to be carried out and performed by the District. 
 

4.4.5 Developer cannot, under any circumstances, accelerate the District’s 

payments under the Facilities Lease. 
 

5.  District’s Purchase Option 
 

5.1 If the District is not then in uncured Default hereunder, the District shall have 

the option to purchase not less than all of the Project in its “as-is, where-is” condition 

and terminate this Facilities Lease and Site Lease by paying the balance of the “Loan 

Amount” identified in Attachment 3, which is exclusive of interest that would have 

otherwise been owed, as of the date the option is exercised (“Option Price”). Said 

payment shall be made on or before the date on which the District’s lease payment 

would otherwise be due for that month (“Option Date”). 
 

5.2 District shall provide to Developer a written notice no less than ten (10) days 

prior to the Option Date. The notice will include that District is exercising its option to 

purchase the Project as set forth above on the Option Date. If the District exercises 

this option, the District shall pay directly to Developer the Option Price on or prior to 

the Option Date and Developer shall at that time deliver to District an executed 

Termination Agreement and Quitclaim Deed in recordable form to terminate this 



Page 9 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease. District may record all such documents at District’s 

cost and expense. 

 

5.3 Under no circumstances can the first Option Date be on or before ninety (90) 

days after Developer completes the Project and the District accepts the Project. 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK; ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW] 



Page 10 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

)



Page 11 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 



Page 12 of 12 Exhibit C to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 

Amortization Schedule 

 

Loan Amount: $ TBD 

Interest: TBD % Annual 

Term in Months TBD 

Payment Frequency TBD 

 

 
Payment 

Monthly 

Payment 

Principal 

Payment 

Interest 

Payment Balance 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

 
Totals 



 

EXHIBIT D 

 
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PROVISIONS 

FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

 
SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC 

MODERNIZATION 

 

 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND 

JOHN F. OTTO, INC. dba OTTO CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

 

 
Dated as of May 19, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DWK DMS 3804496v1 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

1. CONTRACT TERMS AND DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................. 1 

2. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 11 

3. ARCHITECT ................................................................................................................................ 11 

4. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER .......................................................................................................... 12 

5. INSPECTOR, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS ........................................................................................ 12 

6. DEVELOPER ................................................................................................................................ 14 

7. SUBCONTRACTORS ..................................................................................................................... 27 

8. OTHER CONTRACTS/CONTRACTORS............................................................................................. 28 

9. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ................................................................................................ 28 

10. DEVELOPER’S SUBMITTALS AND SCHEDULES ................................................................................ 30 

11. SITE ACCESS, CONDITIONS, AND REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................... 35 

12. TRENCHES ................................................................................................................................. 38 

13. INSURANCE AND BONDS ............................................................................................................. 39 

14. WARRANTY/GUARANTEE/INDEMNITY ........................................................................................... 40 

15. TIME .......................................................................................................................................... 41 

16. EXTENSIONS OF TIME – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, EXCUSABLE DELAYS ........................................... 43 

17. CHANGES IN THE WORK .............................................................................................................. 46 

18. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION ..................................................................................................... 56 

19. PAYMENTS.................................................................................................................................. 56 

20. COMPLETION OF THE WORK ........................................................................................................ 64 

21. FINAL PAYMENT AND RETENTION ................................................................................................. 68 

22. UNCOVERING OF WORK .............................................................................................................. 69 

23. NONCONFORMING WORK AND CORRECTION OF WORK .................................................................. 70 

24. TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION ................................................................................................. 71 

25. CLAIMS PROCESS ....................................................................................................................... 71 

26. STATE LABOR, WAGE & HOUR, APPRENTICE, AND RELATED PROVISIONS ..................................... 79 

27. [RESERVED] ..................................................................................................... 86 

28. MISCELLANEOUS ........................................................................................................................ 86 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 1 OF 86  

1. Contract Terms and Definitions 
 

1.1 Definitions 

 

Wherever used in the Contract Documents, the following terms shall have the 

meanings indicated, which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural 

thereof: 
 

1.1.1 Adverse Weather. Shall be only weather that satisfies all of the 

following conditions: (1) unusually severe precipitation, sleet, snow, hail, or 

extreme temperature or air conditions in excess of the norm for the location 

and time of year it occurred based on the closest weather station data averaged 

over the past five years, (2) that is unanticipated and would cause unsafe work 

conditions and/or is unsuitable for scheduled work that should not be performed 

during inclement weather (i.e., exterior finishes), and (3) at the Project. 
 

1.1.2 Allowance Expenditure Directive. Written authorization for 

expenditure of allowance, if any. 
 

1.1.3 Approval, Approved, and/or Accepted. Written authorization, unless 

stated otherwise. 
 

1.1.4 Architect (or “Design Professional in General Responsible 

Charge”). The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any 

combination thereof, named as Architect, who will have the rights and authority 

assigned to the Architect in the Contract Documents. The term Architect means 

the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge as defined in DSA PR 

13-02 on this Project or the Architect’s authorized representative. 
 

1.1.5 As-Builts. Digitally prepared and reproducible drawings using the 

District’s Project Management System to be prepared on a monthly basis 

pursuant to the Contract Documents, that reflect changes made during the 

performance of the Work, recording differences between the original design of 

the Work and the Work as constructed since the preceding monthly submittal. 

See Record Drawings. 
 

1.1.6 Burdened. The labor rate for Contractor or any Subcontractor inclusive 

of any and all burden costs including, but not limited to, health and welfare 

pay, vacation and holiday pay, pension contributions, training rates, benefits of 

any kind, insurance of any kind, workers’ compensation, liability insurance, 

truck expenses, supply expenses of any kind, payroll taxes, and any other taxes 

of any kind. 
 

1.1.7 Change Order. A written order to Developer authorizing an addition to, 

deletion from, or revision in the Work, and/or authorizing an adjustment in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 
 

1.1.8 Claim. A Dispute that remains unresolved at the conclusion of all the 

applicable Dispute Resolution requirements provided herein. 
 

1.1.9 Completion. The earliest of the date of acceptance by the District or 

the cessation of labor thereon for a continuous period of sixty (60) days. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 2 OF 86  

1.1.10 Construction Change Directive. A written order prepared and issued 

by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and signed by 

the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. 
 

1.1.11 Construction Manager. The individual, partnership, corporation, joint 

venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named 

as such by the District. If no Construction Manager is used on the Project that 

is the subject of this Contract, then all references to Construction Manager 

herein shall be read to refer to District. 
 

1.1.12 Construction Schedule. The progress schedule of construction of the 

Project as provided by Developer and approved by District. 

 

1.1.13 Contingency. The GMP proposal will contain, as part of the estimated 

cost of the Work, Project’s Contingency, a sum mutually agreed upon, 

controlled by District, and monitored by District and Developer to cover costs 

that are properly reimbursable as a cost of the Work, but are not the basis for 

a Change Order. Project’s Contingency will not be used for changes in scope or 

for any item that would be the basis for an increase in the GMP. Developer will 

provide District with a monthly accounting of charges against Project’s 

Contingency, if applicable, with each application for payment. Any unused 

Project Contingency belongs to District. 

 

1.1.14 Contract. The agreement between the District and Developer 

contained in the Contract Documents. 
 

1.1.15 Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist exclusively of 

the documents evidencing the agreement of the District and Developer. The 

Contract Documents consist of the following documents: 
 

1.1.15.1 Non-Collusion Declaration 

1.1.15.2 Iran Contracting Act Certification 

1.1.15.3 Site Lease 

1.1.15.4 Facilities Lease, including Exhibits A-G 

1.1.15.4.1 Iran Contracting Act Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.2 Federal Debarment Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.3 Federal Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification (if 

applicable) 

1.1.15.4.4 Performance Bond 

1.1.15.4.5 Payment Bond (Developer’s Labor & Material Bond) 

1.1.15.4.6 Workers’ Compensation Certification 

1.1.15.4.7 Prevailing Wage Certification 

1.1.15.4.8 Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting 

Certification 

1.1.15.4.9 COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification 

1.1.15.4.10 Drug-Free Workplace Certification 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 3 OF 86  

1.1.15.4.11 Tobacco-Free Environment Certification 

1.1.15.4.12 Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise 

Participation Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.13 Roofing Project Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.14 Hazardous Materials Procedures and 

Requirements 

1.1.15.4.15 Hazardous Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.16 Lead-Based Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.17 Imported Materials Certification (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.18 Skilled and Trained Workforce Certification 

1.1.15.4.19 Project Labor Agreement (if applicable) 

1.1.15.4.20 Registered Subcontractors List 

1.1.15.4.21 Escrow Agreement for Security Deposits in Lieu of 

Retention (if used) 

1.1.15.4.22 Guarantee Form 

1.1.15.4.23 Agreement and Release of Any and All Claims 
 

1.1.15.5 All Plans, Technical Specifications, and Drawings, including 

the Division of the State Architect approved versions of the foregoing 

1.1.15.6 Any and all addenda to any of the above documents 

1.1.15.7 Any and all change orders or written modifications to the 

above documents if approved in writing by the District 

 

1.1.16 Contract Time. The time period stated in the Facilities Lease for the 

completion of the Work. 
 

1.1.17 Daily Job Report(s). Daily Project reports prepared by Developer's 

employee(s) who are present on Site, which shall include the information 

required herein. 
 

1.1.18 Day(s). Unless otherwise designated, day(s) means calendar day(s). 
 

1.1.19 Department of Industrial Relations (or “DIR”). DIR is responsible, 

among other things, for labor compliance monitoring and enforcement of 

California prevailing wage laws and regulations for public works contracts. 

 

1.1.20 Design Professional in General Responsible Charge. See 

definition of Architect above. 
 

1.1.21 Developer. The person or persons identified in the Facilities Lease as 

contracting to perform the Work to be done under this Contract, or the legal 

representative of such a person or persons. 
 

1.1.22 Dispute. A separate demand by Developer for a time extension, or 

payment of money or damages arising from Work done by or on behalf of 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 4 OF 86  

Developer pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not otherwise 

expressly provided for or Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or an amount 

of payment disputed by the District. 
 

1.1.23 District. The public agency or the school district for which the Work is 

performed. The governing board of the District or its designees will act for the 

District in all matters pertaining to the Contract. The District may, at any time: 
 

1.1.23.1 Direct Developer to communicate with or provide notice to 

the Construction Manager or the Architect on matters for which the 

Contract Documents indicate Developer will communicate with or 

provide notice to the District; and/or 
 

1.1.23.2 Direct the Construction Manager or the Architect to 

communicate with or direct Developer on matters for which the Contract 

Documents indicate the District will communicate with or direct 

Developer. 
 

1.1.24 Drawings (or “Plans”). The graphic and pictorial portions of the 

Contract Documents showing the design, location, scope and dimensions of the 

Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, 

sequence of operation, and diagrams. 
 

1.1.25 DSA. Division of the State Architect. 
 

1.1.26 Force Account Directive. A process that may be used when the 

District and Developer cannot agree on a price for a specific portion of work or 

before Developer prepares a price for a specific portion of work and whereby 

Developer performs the work as indicated herein on a time and materials basis. 

 

1.1.27 Guaranteed Maximum Price. The total monies payable to Developer 

under the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 

1.1.28 Job Cost Reports. Any and all reports or records detailing the costs 

associated with work performed on or related to the Project that Developer 

shall maintain for the Project. Specifically, Job Cost Reports shall contain, but 

are not limited by or to, the following information: a description of the work 

performed or to be performed on the Project; quantity, if applicable, of work 

performed (hours, square feet, cubic yards, pounds, etc.) for the Project; 

Project budget; costs for the Project to date; estimated costs to complete the 

Project; and expected costs at completion. The Job Cost Reports shall also 

reflect all Contract cost codes, change orders, elements of non-conforming 

work, back charges, and additional services. 
 

1.1.29 Labor Commissioner’s Office (or “Labor Commissioner”). Also 

known as the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”): Division of 

the DIR responsible for adjudicating wage claims, investigating discrimination 

and public works complaints, and enforcing Labor Code statutes and Industrial 

Welfare Commission orders. 
 

1.1.30 Material Safety Data Sheets (or “MSDS”). A form with data 

regarding the properties for potentially harmful substances handled in the 

workplace. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 5 OF 86  

1.1.31 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (or “MS4”). A system of 

conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without 

limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and 

storm drains. 
 

1.1.32 Plans. See “Drawings”. 
 

1.1.33 Premises. The real property on which the Site is located. 

 

1.1.34 Product(s). New material, machinery, components, equipment, 

fixtures and systems forming the Work, including existing materials or 

components required and approved by the District for reuse. 
 

1.1.35 Product Data. Illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, 

instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by 

Developer to illustrate a material, product, or system for some portion of the 

Work. 

 

1.1.36 Program Manager. The individual, partnership, corporation, joint 

venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named 

as such by the District. If no Program Manager is designated for the Project 

that is the subject of the Contract Documents, then all references to Program 

Manager herein shall be read to refer to District. 
 

1.1.37 Project. The planned undertaking as provided for in the Contract 

Documents. 
 

1.1.38 Project Inspector (or “Inspector”). The individual(s) retained by 

the District in accordance with title 24 of the California Code of Regulations to 

monitor and inspect the Project. 
 

1.1.39 Project Labor Agreement (or “PLA” or Project Stabilization 

Agreement or “PSA”). A prehire collective bargaining agreement in 

accordance with Public Contract Code section 2500 et seq. that establishes 

terms and conditions of employment for a specific construction project or 

projects and/or is an agreement described in Section 158(f) of Title 29 of the 

United States Code. 
 

1.1.40 Proposed Change Order (or “PCO”). A written request prepared by 

Developer requesting that the District, the Construction Manager and the 

Architect issue a Change Order based upon a proposed change to the Work, to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or to the Contract Time. 

 

1.1.41 Provide. Shall include “provide complete in place,” that is, “furnish and 

install,” and “provide complete and functioning as intended in place” unless 

specifically stated otherwise. 
 

1.1.42 Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (or “QSP”). Certified personnel that 

attended a State Water Resources Control Board sponsored or approved 

training class and passed the qualifying exam. 

 

1.1.43 Record Drawings. Unless otherwise defined in the Special Conditions, 

Reproducible drawings (or Plans) prepared pursuant to the requirements of the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 6 OF 86  

Contract Documents, that reflect all changes made during the performance of 

the Work, recording differences between the original design of the Work and 

the Work as constructed upon completion of the Project. See also “As-Builts.” 
 

1.1.44 Request for Information (or “RFI”). A written request prepared by 

Developer requesting that the Architect provide additional information 

necessary to clarify or amplify an item in the Contract Documents that 

Developer believes is not clearly shown or called for in the Drawings or 

Specifications or other portions of the Contract Documents, or to address 

problems that have arisen under field conditions. 
 

1.1.45 Request for Substitution for Specified Item. A request by 

Developer to substitute an equal or superior material, product, thing, or service 

for a specific material, product, thing, or service that has been designated in 

the Contract Documents by a specific brand or trade name. 

 

1.1.46 Safety Orders. Written and/or verbal orders for construction issued 

by the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) or by 

the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”). 
 

1.1.47 Safety Plan. Developer’s safety plan specifically adapted for the 

Project. Developer's Safety Plan shall comply with all provisions regarding 

Project safety, including all applicable provisions in these Construction 

Provisions. 

 

1.1.48 Samples. Physical examples that illustrate materials, products, 

equipment, finishes, colors, or workmanship and that, when approved in 

accordance with the Contract Documents, establish standards by which 

portions of the Work will be judged. 

 

1.1.49 Shop Drawings. All drawings, prints, diagrams, illustrations, 

brochures, schedules, and other data that are prepared by Developer, a 

subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, that illustrate how 

specific portions of the Work shall be fabricated or installed. 
 

1.1.50 Site. The Project site as shown on the Drawings. 
 

1.1.51 Specifications. That portion of the Contract Documents, Division 1 

through Division 49, and all technical sections, and addenda to all of these, if 

any, consisting of written descriptions and requirements of a technical nature 

of materials, equipment, construction methods and systems, standards, and 

workmanship. 
 

1.1.52 State. The State of California. 

 

1.1.53 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (or “SWPPP”). A 

document which identifies sources and activities at a particular facility that may 

contribute pollutants to storm water and contains specific control measures and 

time frames to prevent or treat such pollutants. 
 

1.1.54 Subcontractor. A contractor and/or supplier who is under contract 

with Developer or with any other subcontractor, regardless of tier, to perform 

a portion of the Work of the Project. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 7 OF 86  

1.1.55 Submittal Schedule. The schedule of submittals as provided by 

Developer and approved by District. 
 

1.1.56 Surety. The person, firm, or corporation that executes as surety 

Developer’s Performance Bond and Payment Bond, and must be a California 

admitted surety insurer as defined in the Code of Civil Procedure section 

995.120. 
 

1.1.57 Work. All labor, materials, equipment, components, appliances, 

supervision, coordination, and services required by, or reasonably inferred 

from, the Contract Documents, that are necessary for the construction and 

completion of the Project. 
 

1.2 Laws Concerning the Contract Documents 
 

The Contract is subject to all provisions of the Constitution and laws of California and 

the United States governing, controlling, or affecting District, or the property, funds, 

operations, or powers of District, and such provisions are by this reference made a 

part hereof. Any provision required by law to be included in this Contract shall be 

deemed to be inserted. 
 

1.3 No Oral Agreements 
 

No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of District, 

either before or after execution of Contract Documents, shall affect or modify any of 

the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract 

Documents. 
 

1.4 No Assignment 

 

Except as specifically permitted in the Facilities Lease, Developer shall not assign the 

Contract Documents or any part thereof including, without limitation, any services or 

money to become due hereunder without the prior written consent of the District. 

Assignment without District’s prior written consent shall be null and void. Any 

assignment of money due or to become due under the Contract Documents shall be 

subject to a prior lien for services rendered or material supplied for performance of 

Work called for under the Contract Documents in favor of all persons, firms, or 

corporations rendering services or supplying material to the extent that claims are 

filed pursuant to the Civil Code, Code of Civil Procedure, Government Code, Labor 

Code, and/or Public Contract Code, and shall also be subject to deductions for 

liquidated damages or withholding of payments as determined by District in 

accordance with the Contract Documents. Developer shall not assign or transfer in 

any manner to a Subcontractor or supplier the right to prosecute or maintain an action 

against the District. 

 

1.5 Notice and Service Thereof 
 

1.5.1 Any notice from one party to the other or otherwise under the Contract 

Documents shall be in writing and shall be dated and signed by the party giving 

notice or by a duly authorized representative of that party. Notice shall not be 

effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in one of the following 

manners: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 8 OF 86  

1.5.1.1 If notice is given by personal delivery thereof, it shall be 

considered delivered on the day of delivery. 
 

1.5.1.2 If notice is given by overnight delivery service, it shall be 

considered delivered one (1) day after date deposited, as indicated by 

the delivery service. 
 

1.5.1.3 If notice is given by depositing same in United States mail, 

enclosed in a sealed envelope, it shall be considered delivered five (5) 

days after date deposited, as indicated by the postmarked date. 
 

1.5.1.4 If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage 

prepaid, return receipt requested, it shall be considered delivered on the 

day the notice is signed for. 
 

1.6 No Waiver 

 

The failure of District in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance of 

any of the terms of the Contract Documents or to exercise any option herein conferred 

shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the right to assert 

or rely upon any such terms or option on any future occasion. No action or failure to 

act by the District, Architect, or Construction Manager shall constitute a waiver of any 

right or duty afforded the District under the Contract Documents, nor shall any action 

or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence on any breach thereunder, 

except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 

1.7 Substitutions For Specified Items 
 

Developer shall not substitute different items for any items identified in the Contract 

Documents without prior written approval of the District, unless otherwise provided in 

the Contract Documents. 
 

1.7.1 Whenever in the Specifications any materials, process, or article 

is indicated or specified by grade, patent, or proprietary name, or by 

name of manufacturer, that Specification shall be deemed to be followed 

by the words “or equal.” Developer may, unless otherwise stated, offer 

any material, process, or article that shall be substantially equal or 

better in every respect to that so indicated or specified. 

1.7.1.1 If the material, process, or article offered by 

Developer is not, in the opinion of the District, substantially equal or 

better in every respect to that specified, then Developer shall furnish 

the material, process, or article specified in the Specifications without 

any additional compensation or change order. 

1.7.1.2 This provision shall not be applicable with respect 

to any material, product, thing or service for which District made 

findings and gave notice in accordance with Public Contract Code section 

3400(c); therefore, Developer shall not be entitled to request a 

substitution with respect to those materials, products or services. 
1.7.2 A request for a substitution shall be submitted as follows: 

1.7.2.1 Developer shall notify the District in writing of any 

request for a substitution at least ten (10) days prior to proposal opening 

as indicated in the Request for Qualifications and Proposals. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 9 OF 86  

1.7.2.2 Requests for Substitutions after award of the 

Contract shall be submitted within thirty-five (25) days of the date of 

the Notice to Proceed with Construction. 

1.7.3 Within (25) days after the date of the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction, Developer shall provide data substantiating a request for 

substitution of “an equal” item, including but not limited to the following: 

1.7.3.1 All variations of the proposed substitute from the 

material specified including, but not limited to, principles of operation, 

materials, or construction finish, thickness or gauge of materials, 

dimensions, weight, and tolerances; 
1.7.3.2 Available maintenance, repair or replacement 

services; 

1.7.3.3 Increases or decreases in operating, maintenance, 

repair, replacement, and spare parts costs; 

1.7.3.4 Whether or not acceptance of the substitute will 

require other changes in the Work (or in work performed by the District 

or others under Contract with the District); and 

1.7.3.5 The time impact on any part of the Work resulting 

directly or indirectly from acceptance of the proposed substitute. 

1.7.4 No substitutions shall be made until approved, in writing, by the 

District. The burden of proof as to equality of any material, process, or 

article shall rest with Developer. Developer warrants that if substitutes 

are approved: 

1.7.4.1 The proposed substitute is equal or superior in all 

respects to that specified, and that such proposed substitute is suitable 

and fit for the intended purpose and will perform adequately the function 

and achieve the results called for by the general design and the Contract 

Documents; 

1.7.4.2 Developer provides the same warranties and 

guarantees for the substitute that would be provided for that specified; 

1.7.4.3 Developer shall be fully responsible for the 

installation of the substitute and any changes in the Work required, 

either directly or indirectly, because of the acceptance of such 

substitute,  with  no  increase  in  Contract   Price   or   Contract   Time. 

Incidental changes or extra component parts required to accommodate 

the substitute will be made by Developer without a change in the 

Contract Price or Contract Time; 

1.7.4.4 Developer shall be responsible for any re-design 

costs occasioned by District's acceptance and/or approval of any 

substitute; and 

1.7.4.5 Developer shall, in the event that a substitute is 

less costly than that specified, credit the District with one hundred 

percent (100%) of the net difference between the substitute and the 

originally specified material. In this event, Developer agrees to execute 

a deductive Change Order to reflect that credit. 

1.7.5 In the event Developer furnishes a material, process, or article 

more expensive than that specified, the difference in the cost of that 

material, process, or article so furnished shall be borne by Developer. 

1.7.6 In no event shall the District be liable for any increase in Contract 

Price or Contract Time due to any claimed delay in the evaluation of any 

proposed substitute or in the acceptance or rejection of any proposed 

substitute. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 10 OF 86  

1.7.7 Developer shall be responsible for any costs the District incurs 

for professional services, DSA fees, or delay to the Project Schedule, if 

applicable, while DSA reviews changes for the convenience of 

Developer and/or to accommodate Developer’s means and 

methods. District may deduct those costs from any amounts owing to 

Developer for the review of the request for substitution, even if the 

request for substitution is not approved. District, at its sole discretion, 

shall deduct from the payments due to and/or invoice Developer for all 

the professional services and/or DSA fees or delay to the Project 

Schedule, if applicable, while DSA reviews changes for the convenience 

of Developer and/or to accommodate Developer’s means and  

methods. 

 

1.8 Materials and Work 

 

1.8.1 Except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, 

Developer shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, 

transportation, supervision, temporary constructions of every nature, and all 

other services, management, and facilities of every nature whatsoever 

necessary to execute and complete the Work, in a good and workmanlike 

manner, within the Contract Time. 
 

1.8.2 Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and of the best 

quality of their respective kinds and grades as noted or specified, and 

workmanship shall be of high quality, and Developer shall use all diligence to 

inform itself fully as to the required manufacturer’s instructions and to comply 

therewith. 
 

1.8.3 Materials shall be furnished in ample quantities and at such times as to 

ensure uninterrupted progress of Work and shall be stored properly and 

protected from the elements, theft, vandalism, or other loss or damage as 

required. 

 

1.8.4 For all materials and equipment specified or indicated in the Drawings 

and Specifications, Developer shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and 

services necessary for complete assemblies and complete working systems, 

functioning as intended. Incidental items not indicated on Drawings, nor 

mentioned in the Specifications, that can legitimately and reasonably be 

inferred to belong to the Work described, or be necessary in good practice to 

provide a complete assembly or system, shall be furnished as though itemized 

here in every detail. In all instances, material and equipment shall be installed 

in strict accordance with each manufacturer’s most recent published 

recommendations and specifications. 
 

1.8.5 Developer shall, after award of the Project by District and after relevant 

submittals have been reviewed, place orders for materials and/or equipment 

as specified so that delivery of same may be made without delays to the Work. 

Developer shall, upon five (5) days’ demand from District, present documentary 

evidence showing that orders have been placed. 
 

1.8.6 In the event of Developer’s neglect in complying or failure to comply 

with the above instructions, District reserves the right, but has no obligation, 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 11 OF 86  

to place orders for such materials and/or equipment as the District may deem 

advisable so that the Work may be completed by the date specified in the 

Facilities Lease, and all expenses incidental to the procuring of said materials 

and/or equipment shall be paid for by Developer or deducted from payment(s) 

to Developer. 
 

1.8.7 Developer warrants good title to all material, supplies, and equipment 

installed or incorporated in Work and agrees upon completion of all Work to 

deliver the Site to District, together with all improvements and appurtenances 

constructed or placed thereon by it, and free from any claims, liens, or charges. 

Developer further agrees that neither it nor any person, firm, or corporation 

furnishing any materials or labor for any work covered by the Contract 

Documents shall have any right to lien any portion of the Premises or any 

improvement or appurtenance thereon, except that Developer may install 

metering devices or other equipment of utility companies or of political 

subdivision, title to which is commonly retained by utility company or political 

subdivision. In the event of installation of any such metering device or 

equipment, Developer shall advise District as to owner thereof. 

 

1.8.8 Nothing contained in this Article, however, shall defeat or impair the 

rights of persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by 

Developer for their protection or any rights under any law permitting such 

protection or any rights under any law permitting such persons to look to funds 

due Developer in hands of District (e.g., Stop Payment Notices), and this 

provision shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice 

of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing material for Work when 

no formal contract is entered into for such material. 
 

1.8.9 Title to new materials and/or equipment for the Work of the Contract 

Documents and attendant liability for its protection and safety shall remain with 

Developer until incorporated in the Work of the Contract Documents and 

accepted by District. No part of any materials and/or equipment shall be 

removed from its place of storage except for immediate installation in the Work 

of the Contract Documents. Should the District, in its discretion, allow 

Developer to store materials and/or equipment for the Work off-site, Developer 

will store said materials and/or equipment at a bonded warehouse and with 

appropriate insurance coverage at no cost to District. Developer shall keep an 

accurate inventory of all materials and/or equipment in a manner satisfactory 

to District or its authorized representative and shall, at the District’s request, 

forward it to the District. 
 

1.8.10 [Reserved] 

 

2. [Reserved] 
 

3. Architect 
 

3.1 The Architect shall represent the District during the Project and will observe the 

progress and quality of the Work on behalf of the District. Architect shall have the 

authority to act on behalf of District to the extent expressly provided in the Contract 

Documents and to the extent determined by District. Architect shall have authority to 

reject materials, workmanship, and/or the Work whenever rejection may be 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 12 OF 86  

necessary, in Architect’s reasonable opinion, to ensure the proper execution of the 

Contract Documents. 
 

3.2 Architect shall, with the District and on behalf of the District, determine the 

amount, quality, acceptability, and fitness of all parts of the Work, and interpret the 

Specifications, Drawings, and shall, with the District, interpret all other Contract 

Documents. 
 

3.3 Architect shall have all authority and responsibility established by law, including 

title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 
 

3.4 Developer shall provide District and the Construction Manager with a copy of 

all written communication between Developer and Architect at the same time as that 

communication is made to Architect, including, without limitation, all RFIs, 

correspondence, submittals, claims, change order requests and/or proposed change 

orders. 

 

4. Construction Manager 
 

4.1 If a Construction Manager is used on this Project (“Construction Manager” or 

“CM”), the Construction Manager will provide administration of the Contract 

Documents on the District's behalf. After execution of the Contract Documents, all 

correspondence and/or instructions from Developer and/or District shall be forwarded 

through the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager will not be responsible 

for and will not have control or charge of construction means, methods, techniques, 

sequences, or procedures or for safety precautions in connection with the Work, which 

shall all remain Developer’s responsibility. 
 

4.2 The Construction Manager, however, will have authority to reject materials 

and/or workmanship not conforming to the Contract Documents, as determined by the 

District, the Architect, and/or the Project Inspector. The Construction Manager shall 

also have the authority to require special inspection or testing of any portion of the 

Work, whether it has been fabricated, installed, or fully completed. Any decision made 

by the Construction Manager in good faith, shall not give rise to any duty or 

responsibility of the Construction Manager to: Developer, any Subcontractor, or their 

agents, employees, or other persons performing any of the Work. The Construction 

Manager shall have free access to any or all parts of Work at any time. 

 

4.3 If the District does not use a Construction Manager on this Project, all 

references within the Contract Documents to Construction Manager or CM shall be read 

as District. 
 

5. Inspector, Inspections, and Tests 
 

5.1 Project Inspector 
 

5.1.1 One or more Project Inspector(s), including special Project Inspector(s), 

as required, will be assigned to the Work by District, in accordance with 

requirements of title 24, part 1, of the California Code of Regulations, to enforce 

the building code and monitor compliance with Plans and Specifications for the 

Project previously approved by the DSA. Duties of Project Inspector(s) are 

specifically defined in section 4-342 of said part 1 of title 24. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 13 OF 86  

5.1.2 No Work shall be carried on except with the knowledge and under the 

inspection of the Project Inspector(s). The Project Inspector(s) shall have free 

access to any or all parts of Work at any time. Developer shall furnish Project 

Inspector(s) reasonable opportunities for obtaining such information as may be 

necessary to keep Project Inspector(s) fully informed respecting progress and 

manner of work and character of materials, including, but not limited to, 

submission of form DSA 156 (or the most current version applicable at the time 

the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector at least 48 hours in advance of 

the commencement and completion of construction of each and every aspect 

of the Work. Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx. Inspection of Work shall not relieve 

Developer from an obligation to fulfill the Contract Documents. Project 

Inspector(s) and the DSA are authorized to suspend work whenever Developer 

and/or its Subcontractor(s) are not complying with the Contract Documents. 

Any work stoppage by the Project Inspector(s) and/or DSA shall be without 

liability to the District. Developer shall instruct its Subcontractors and 

employees accordingly. 
 

5.1.3 If Developer and/or any Subcontractor requests that the Project 

Inspector(s) perform any inspection off-Site, this shall only be done if it is 

allowable pursuant to applicable regulations and DSA approval, if the Project 

Inspector(s) agree to do so, and at the expense of Developer. 

 

5.2 Tests and Inspections 
 

5.2.1 Tests and Inspections shall comply with title 24, part 1, California Code 

of Regulations, group 1, article 5, section 4-335, and with the provisions of the 

Specifications. 
 

5.2.2 The District will select an independent testing laboratory to conduct the 

tests. Selection of the materials required to be tested shall be by the laboratory 

or the District's representative and not by Developer. Developer shall notify the 

District's representative a sufficient time in advance of its readiness for required 

observation or inspection. This notice shall be provided, at a minimum, forty-

eight (48) hours prior to the inspection of the material that needs to be tested 

and, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to any special or off-site 

inspection. 
 

5.2.3 Developer shall notify the District's representative a sufficient time in 

advance of the manufacture of material to be supplied under the Contract 

Documents that must by terms of the Contract Documents be tested so that 

the District may arrange for the testing of same at the source of supply. This 

notice shall be provided, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 

manufacture of the material that needs to be tested. 
 

5.2.4 Any material shipped by Developer from the source of supply prior to 

having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection or prior to the receipt 

of notice from said representative that such testing and inspection will not be 

required, shall not be incorporated into and/or onto the Project. 
 

5.2.5 The District will select the testing laboratory and pay for the costs for all 

tests and inspections, except those inspections performed at Developer’s 

request and expense. Developer shall reimburse the District for any and all 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 14 OF 86  

laboratory costs or other testing costs for any materials found to be not in 

compliance with the Contract Documents. At the District’s discretion, District 

may elect to deduct laboratory or other testing costs for noncompliant materials 

from the Guaranteed Maximum Price, and such deduction shall not constitute 

a withholding. 
 

5.3 Costs for After Hours and/or Off Site Inspections 

 

If Developer performs Work outside the Inspector’s regular working hours, costs of 

any inspections required outside regular working hours shall be borne by Developer 

and may be invoiced to Developer by the District or the District may deduct those 

expenses from the next Tenant Improvement Payment. 
 

6. Developer 
 

Developer shall construct and complete, in a good and workmanlike manner, the Work for the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price including any adjustment(s) to the Guaranteed Maximum Price 

pursuant to provisions herein regarding changes to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Except 

as otherwise noted, Developer shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, 

permits (excluding DSA), fees, licenses, facilities, transportation, taxes, bonds and insurance, 

and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, except as 

indicated herein. 
 

6.1 Status of Developer 
 

6.1.1 Developer is and shall at all times be deemed to be an independent 

contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it and its 

Subcontractors perform the services required of it by the Contract Documents. 

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the relationship of 

employer and employee, or principal and agent, between the District, or any of 

the District's employees or agents, and Developer or any of Developer’s 

Subcontractors, agents or employees. Developer assumes exclusively the 

responsibility for the acts of its agents and employees as they relate to the 

services to be provided during the course and scope of their employment. 

Developer, its Subcontractors, and its agents and employees shall not be 

entitled to any rights or privileges of District employees. District shall be 

permitted to monitor Developer’s activities to determine compliance with the 

terms of the Contract Documents. 
 

6.1.2 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 

licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board, 9821 Business 

Park Drive, Sacramento, California 95827 (Post Office Box 26000, Sacramento, 

California 95826), http://www.cslb.ca.gov. 
 

6.1.3 As required by law, Developer and all Subcontractors shall be properly 

registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial Relations 

at https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm 

or current URL. 
 

6.1.4 Developer represents that Developer and all Subcontractors shall not 

be presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared 

ineligible or excluded pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor 

Code section 1777.7. 

http://www.cslb.ca.gov/
https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 15 OF 86  

6.1.5 [Reserved] 
 

6.1.6 Developer represents that it has no existing interest and will not acquire 

any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree 

with the performance of Work required under this Contract and that no person 

having any such interest shall be employed by Developer. 
 

6.1.7 [Reserved] 

 

6.1.8 If Developer intends to make any change in the name or legal nature of 

the Developer’s entity, Developer must first notify the District in writing prior 

to making any contemplated change. The District shall determine in writing if 

Developer’s intended change is permissible while performing this Contract. 
 

6.2 Project Inspection Card(s) 
 

Developer shall verify that forms DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the 

time the Work is performed) are issued for the Project prior to the commencement of 

construction. 

 

6.3 Developer’s Supervision 
 

6.3.1 During progress of the Work, Developer shall keep on the Premises, and 

at all other locations where any Work related to the Contract is being 

performed, an experienced and competent project manager and construction 

superintendent who are employees of Developer, to whom the District does not 

object and whom shall be fluent in English, written and verbal. 

 

6.3.2 The project manager and construction superintendent shall both speak 

fluent English and the predominant language of Developer’s employees. 
 

6.3.3 Developer acknowledges the quality and qualifications of the Key 

Personnel were important factors in District’s selection of Developer for the 

Project. Developer and District agree that the personal services of the Key 

Personnel are a material term of the Contract Documents. Developer and 

District agree further that the substitution or removal or change in role or level 

of effort of such Key Personnel would result in damages to the District, the 

measure of which would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix. In lieu such 

damages, District and Developer have agreed to liquidated damages as 

described below: 
 

6.3.3.1 Before commencing the Work herein, Developer shall give 

written notice to District of Developer’s Key Personnel. 

 

6.3.3.2 Key Personnel shall be the same as those individuals 

identified in Developer’s response to the District’s RFQ/P. 

 

6.3.3.3 For any substitution of any Key Personnel individual before 

the end of the individual’s Project commitment period provided in 

Developer’s Key Personnel staffing schedule, District may assess once, 

and Developer shall accept, liquidated damages in the amount of six (6) 

times the gross monthly salary for each substituted Key Personnel. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 16 OF 86  

6.3.4 Developer’s Key Personnel shall not be changed except with prior written 

notice to, and approval by, District. 
 

6.3.5 If any of Developer’s Key Personnel prove to be unsatisfactory to 

Developer, or to District, any of the District's employees, agents, the 

Construction Manager, or the Architect, the unsatisfactory Key Personnel shall 

be replaced. However, Developer shall immediately notify District in writing 

before any change occurs, but no less than two (2) business days prior. Any 

replacement of Key Personnel shall be made promptly and must be satisfactory 

to the District. Developer’s Key Personnel shall each represent Developer, and 

all directions given to Key Personnel shall be as binding as if given to Developer. 
 

6.3.6 Developer shall give efficient supervision to Work, using its best skill 

and attention. Developer shall carefully study and compare all Contract 

Documents, Drawings, Specifications, and other instructions and shall at once 

report to District, Construction Manager, and Architect any error, inconsistency, 

or omission that Developer or its employees and Subcontractors may discover, 

in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Developer shall have 

responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions. 
 

6.3.7 All contractors doing work on the Project will provide their workers with 

identification badges. These badges will be worn by all members of the 

contractor's staff who are working in a District facility. 
 

6.3.7.1 Badges must be filled out in full and contain the following 

information: 
 

6.3.7.1.1 Name of contractor 

 

6.3.7.1.2 Name of employee 

 

6.3.7.1.3 Contractor's address and phone number 
 

6.3.7.2 Badges are to be worn when Developer or his/her employees 

are on site and must be visible at all times. Contractors must inform 

their employees that they are required to allow District employees, the 

Architect, the Construction Manager, the Program Manager, or the 

Project Inspector to review the information on the badges upon request. 
 

6.3.7.3 Continued failure to display identification badges as required 

by this policy may result in the individual being removed from the 

Project or assessment of fines against the contractor. 

 

6.4 Duty to Provide Fit Workers 
 

6.4.1 Developer and Subcontractor(s) shall at all times enforce strict discipline 

and good order among their employees and shall not employ any unfit person 

or anyone not skilled in work assigned to that person. It shall be the 

responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this requirement. District 

may require Developer to permanently remove unfit persons from Project Site. 
 

6.4.2 Any person in the employ of Developer or Subcontractor(s) whom 

District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be excluded from working on the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 17 OF 86  

Project and shall not again be employed on the Project except with the prior 

written consent of District. 
 

6.4.3 Developer shall furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other 

elements of labor employed or to be employed in the Work. 
 

6.4.4 Fingerprinting. Developer shall comply with the provisions of 

Education Code section 45125.2 regarding the submission of employee 

fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the completion of 

criminal background investigations of its employees, Subcontractor(s), and 

Subcontractors’ employees. Developer shall not permit any employee to have 

any contact with District pupils until such time as Developer has verified in 

writing to the governing board of the District, (A) that such employee has not 

been convicted of a violent or serious felony, as defined in Education Code 

section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee 

as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). Developer shall 

fully complete and perform all tasks required pursuant to the Criminal 

Background Investigation/ Fingerprinting Certification. 
 

6.5 Field Office 

 

6.5.1 Developer shall provide on the Site a temporary office. 
 

6.6 Purchase of Materials and Equipment 
 

Developer is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently 

in advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from District to assure 

that there will be no delays. 
 

6.7 Documents on Work 
 

6.7.1 Developer shall at all times keep on the Site, or at another location as 

the District may authorize in writing, one legible copy of all Contract 

Documents, including Addenda and Change Orders, and Titles 19 and 24 of the 

California Code of Regulations, the specified edition(s) of the Uniform Building 

Code, all approved Drawings, Plans, Schedules, and Specifications, and all 

codes and documents referred to in the Specifications, and made part thereof. 

These documents shall be kept in good order and available to District, 

Construction Manager, Architect, Architect’s representatives, the Project 

Inspector(s), and all authorities having jurisdiction. Developer shall be 

acquainted with and comply with the provisions of these titles as they relate to 

this Project. (See particularly the duties of Contractor, Title 24, Part 1, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 4-343.) Developer shall also be 

acquainted with and comply with all California Code of Regulations provisions 

relating to conditions on this Project, particularly Titles 8 and 17. Developer 

shall coordinate with Architect and Construction Manager and shall submit its 

verified report(s) according to the requirements of Title 24. 

 

6.7.2 Daily Job Reports 
 

6.7.2.1 Developer shall maintain, at a minimum, at least one (1) set 

of  Daily  Job  Reports  on the Project. These must be prepared by 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 18 OF 86  

Developer's employee(s) who are present on Site, and must include, at 

a minimum, the following information: 
 

6.7.2.1.1 A brief description of all Work performed on that day. 
 

6.7.2.1.2 A summary of all other pertinent events and/or 

occurrences on that day. 
 

6.7.2.1.3 The weather conditions on that day. 

 

6.7.2.1.4 A list of all Subcontractor(s) working on that day, 

including DIR registration numbers, Subcontractor employees 

working, and hours of work. 
 

6.7.2.1.5 A list of each Developer employee working on that 

day and the total hours worked for each employee. 
 

6.7.2.1.6 A complete list of all equipment on Site that day, 

whether in use or not. 
 

6.7.2.1.7 A complete list of all materials, supplies, and 

equipment delivered on that day, and verification that all 

materials, supplies, and equipment comply with the Contract 

Documents and are properly stored. 
 

6.7.2.1.8 A complete list of all inspections and tests performed 

on that day. 
 

6.7.2.1.9 Daily verification the Project is properly secured from 

the public and unauthorized entry. 
 

6.7.2.2 Each day Developer shall provide a copy of the previous day’s 

Daily Job Report to the District or the District’s Construction Manager. 

 

6.8 Preservation of Records 
 

Developer shall maintain, and District shall have the right to inspect, Developer’s 

financial records for the Project, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports for the 

Project in compliance with the criteria set forth herein. The District shall have the right 

to examine and audit all Daily Job Reports or other Project records of Developer’s 

project manager(s), project superintendent(s), and/or project foreperson(s), all 

certified payroll records and/or related documents including, without limitation, Job 

Cost Reports, payroll, payment, timekeeping and tracking documents; and as it 

pertains to change orders, all books, estimates, records, contracts, documents, cost 

data, subcontract job cost reports, and other data of Developer, any Subcontractor, 

and/or supplier, including computations and projections related to estimating, 

negotiating, pricing, or performing the Work or modification, in order to evaluate the 

accuracy, completeness, and currency of the cost, manpower, coordination, 

supervision, or pricing data at no additional cost to the District. These documents may 

be duplicative and/or be in addition to any documents held in escrow by the District. 

Developer shall make available at its office at all reasonable times the materials 

described in this paragraph for the examination, audit, or reproduction until three (3) 

years after final payment under this Facilities Lease. Notwithstanding the provisions 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 19 OF 86  

above, Developer shall provide any records requested by any governmental agency, if 

available, after the time set forth above. 
 

6.9 Integration of Work 
 

6.9.1 Developer shall do all cutting, fitting, patching, and preparation of Work 

as required to make its several parts come together properly, to fit it to receive 

or be received by work of other contractors, and to coordinate tolerances to 

various pieces of work, showing upon, or reasonably implied by, the Drawings 

and Specifications for the completed structure, and shall conform them as 

District and/or Architect may direct. 
 

6.9.2 Developer shall make its own layout of lines and elevations and shall be 

responsible for the accuracy of both Developer’s and Subcontractors' work 

resulting therefrom. 
 

6.9.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall take all field dimensions required 

in performance of the Work, and shall verify all dimensions and conditions on 

the Site. All dimensions affecting proper fabrication and installation of all Work 

must be verified prior to fabrication by taking field measurements of the true 

conditions. If there are any discrepancies between dimensions in drawings and 

existing conditions which will affect the Work, Developer shall bring such 

discrepancies to the attention of the District and Architect for adjustment before 

proceeding with the Work. In doing so, it is recognized that Developer is not 

acting in the capacity of a licensed design professional, and that Developer’s 

examination is made in good faith to facilitate construction and does not create 

an affirmative responsibility of a design professional to detect errors, omissions 

or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain compliance with 

applicable laws, building codes or regulations. However, nothing in this 

provision shall abrogate Developer’s responsibilities for discovering and 

reporting any error, inconsistency, or omission pursuant to the Contract within 

Developer’s standard of care including, without limitation, any applicable laws, 

ordinance, rules, or regulations. Following receipt of written notice from 

Developer, the District and/or Architect shall inform Developer what action, if 

any, Developer shall take with regard to such discrepancies. 

 

6.9.4 All costs caused by noncompliant, defective, or delayed Work shall be 

borne by Developer, inclusive of repair work. Schedule delays resulting from 

unauthorized work shall be Contractor’s responsibility. 
 

6.9.5 Developer shall not endanger any work performed by it or anyone else 

by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering work and shall not cut or alter 

work of any other contractor except with consent of District. 
 

6.10 Notifications 

 

6.10.1 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 

the commencement of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at 

least 48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current 

version applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 20 OF 86  

Forms are available on the DSA’s website at: 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx. 

 

6.10.2 Developer shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of 

the completion of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at least 

48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current version 

applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. 
 

6.11 Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations 
 

6.11.1 Developer shall secure and pay for any permits (except DSA), licenses, 

registrations, approvals, and certificates necessary for prosecution of Work, 

including but not limited to those listed in the Special Conditions, Exhibit D-1, 

if any, before the date of the commencement of the Work or before the permits, 

licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates are legally required to 

continue the Work without interruption. Developer shall obtain and pay, only 

when legally required, for all licenses, approvals, registrations, permits, 

inspections, and inspection certificates required to be obtained from or issued 

by any authority having jurisdiction over any part of the Work included in the 

Contract Documents. All final permits, licenses, registrations, approvals and 

certificates shall be delivered to District before demand is made for final 

payment. The costs associated with said permits, licenses, registrations, 

approvals and certificates shall be direct reimbursement items and are not 

subject to any markup. 
 

6.11.2 General Permit For Storm Water Discharges Associated With Construction 

and Land Disturbance Activities. 
 

6.11.2.1 Contractor acknowledges that all California school districts 

are obligated to develop and implement the following requirements for 

the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and 

land disturbance activities pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter 

Cologne Water Quality Act. District has determined that the construction 

of this Project requires enrollment in the Construction Storm Water 

Permit. District has filed certain submittals referred to as Permit 

Registration Documents (“PRDS”) with the Regional Water Control 

Board (“Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan” or “SWPPP”). 

 

6.11.2.2 Contractor shall comply with any District SWPPP that is 

approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 

cost to the District. Contractor shall pay any fees and any penalties that 

may imposed by a regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the 

SWPPP during the course of Work. 
 

6.11.2.3 Contractor shall provide a Qualified Storm Water Practitioner 

(“QSP”) at no additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and 

implement and monitor any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to 

the Project, including but not limited to: 
 

6.11.2.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, 

reporting and record keeping, including any Numeric Action 

Levels (“NALs”), if applicable; 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 21 OF 86  

6.11.2.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (“REAP”) at least forty eight 

(48) hours prior to any forecasted rain event requiring 

implementation of the REAP, including any erosion and sediment 

control measures needed to protect all exposed portions of the 

site, if applicable; 
 

6.11.2.3.3 Active Treatment System (“ATS”), if applicable; and 

 

6.11.2.3.4 Best management practices (“BMPs”). 
 

6.12 Royalties and Patents 
 

6.12.1 Developer shall obtain and pay, when legally required, all royalties and 

license fees necessary for prosecution of Work before the earlier of the date of 

the commencement of the Work or the date the license is legally required to 

continue the Work without interruption. Developer shall defend suits or claims 

of infringement of patent, copyright, or other rights and shall hold the District, 

Construction Manager and the Architect harmless and indemnify them from loss 

on account thereof except when a particular design, process, or make or model 

of product is required by the Contract Documents. However, if Developer has 

reason to believe that the required design, process, or product is an 

infringement of a patent or copyright, Developer shall indemnify and defend 

the District, Construction Manager and Architect against any loss or damage. 
 

6.12.2 The review by the District, Construction Manager or Architect of any 

method of construction, invention, appliance, process, article, device, or 

material of any kind shall be only as to its adequacy for the Work and shall not 

constitute approve use by Developer in violation of any patent or other rights 

of any person or entity. 

 

6.13 Work to Comply With Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 

6.13.1 Developer shall give all notices and comply with the following specific 

laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations and all other applicable laws, 

ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on conduct of Work as indicated and 

specified, including but not limited to the appropriate statutes and 

administrative code sections. If Developer observes that Drawings and 

Specifications are at variance with any applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 

regulations, or should Developer become aware of the development of 

conditions not covered by Contract Documents that may result in finished Work 

being at variance therewith, Developer shall promptly notify District in writing 

and any changes deemed necessary by District shall be made as provided in 

this Exhibit D for changes in Work. 
 

6.13.1.1 National Electrical Safety Code, U. S. Department of Commerce 
 

6.13.1.2 National Board of Fire Underwriters’ Regulations 
 

6.13.1.3 International Building Code, latest addition, and the 

California Code of Regulations, title 24, and other amendments 
 

6.13.1.4 Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, latest edition, 

published by A.G.C. of America 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 22 OF 86  

6.13.1.5 Industrial Accident Commission’s Safety Orders, State of 

California 

 

6.13.1.6 Regulations of the State Fire Marshall (title 19, California 

Code of Regulations) and Pertinent Local Fire Safety Codes 
 

6.13.1.7 Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

6.13.1.8 Education Code of the State of California 
 

6.13.1.9 Government Code of the State of California 

 

6.13.1.10 Labor Code of the State of California, division 2, part 7, 

Public Works and Public Agencies 
 

6.13.1.11 Public Contract Code of the State of California 

 

6.13.1.12 California Art Preservation Act 
 

6.13.1.13 U. S. Copyright Act 
 

6.13.1.14 U. S. Visual Artists Rights Act 

 

6.13.2 Developer shall comply with all applicable mitigation measures, if any, 

adopted by any public agency or local utility with respect to this Project 

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 

section 21000 et seq.). 
 

6.13.3 If Developer performs any Work that it knew, or through exercise of 

reasonable care should have known, to be contrary to any applicable laws, 

ordinance, rules, or regulations, Developer shall bear all costs arising therefrom 

and arising from the correction of said Work. 
 

6.13.4 Where Specifications or Drawings state that materials, processes, or 

procedures must be approved by the DSA, State Fire Marshall, or other body 

or agency, Developer shall use its best efforts to satisfy the requirements of 

such bodies or agencies applicable at the time the Work is performed, and as 

determined by those bodies or agencies. 
 

6.13.5 [Reserved] 
 

6.14 Safety/Protection of Persons and Property 

 

6.14.1 Developer will be solely and completely responsible for conditions of 

the Site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the 

Work. This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal 

working hours. 
 

6.14.2 Developer to provide safe access for staff and students at any time, 

and to provide barricades, sound walls, signage, fencing, and other reasonably 

necessary protective measures, as necessary, to protect staff and students 

during construction. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 23 OF 86  

6.14.3 The wearing of hard hats will be mandatory at all times for all personnel 

on Site. Developer shall supply sufficient hard hats to properly equip all 

employees and visitors. 
 

6.14.4 Any construction review of Developer’s performance is not intended to 

include review of the adequacy of Developer’s safety measures in, on, or near 

the Site. 
 

6.14.5 Implementation and maintenance of safety programs shall be the sole 

responsibility of Developer. 
 

6.14.6 Developer shall furnish to the District a copy of Developer's safety plan 

within the time frame indicated in the Contract Documents and specifically 

adapted for the Project. 
 

6.14.7 Developer shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property 

that occur as a result of its fault or negligence in connection with the 

prosecution of the Contract Documents and shall take all necessary measures 

and be responsible for the proper care and completion and final acceptance by 

District. All Work shall be solely at Developer’s risk. 
 

6.14.8 Developer shall take, and require Subcontractors to take, all necessary 

precautions for safety of workers on the Project and shall comply with all 

applicable federal, state, local, and other safety laws, standards, orders, rules, 

regulations, and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, 

about, or adjacent to premises where Work is being performed and to provide 

a safe and healthful place of employment. Developer shall furnish, erect, and 

properly maintain at all times, all necessary safety devices, safeguards, 

construction canopies, signs, nets, barriers, lights, and watchmen for protection 

of workers and the public and shall post danger signs warning against hazards 

created by such features in the course of construction. 
 

6.14.9 Hazards Control –Developer shall store volatile wastes in approved 

covered metal containers and remove them from the Site daily. Developer shall 

prevent accumulation of wastes that create hazardous conditions. Developer 

shall provide adequate ventilation during use of volatile or noxious substances. 
 

6.14.10 Developer shall designate a responsible member of its organization 

on the Project, whose duty shall be to post information regarding protection 

and obligations of workers and other notices required under occupational safety 

and health laws, to comply with reporting and other occupational safety 

requirements, and to protect the life, safety, and health of workers. Name and 

position of person so designated shall be reported to District by Developer. 

 

6.14.11 Developer shall correct any violations of safety laws, rules, orders, 

standards, or regulations. Upon the issuance of a citation or notice of violation 

by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, Developer shall correct such 

violation promptly. 
 

6.14.12 Developer shall comply with any District storm water requirements 

that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional 

cost to the District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 24 OF 86  

6.14.13 In an emergency affecting safety of life or of work or of adjoining 

property, Developer, without special instruction or authorization, shall act, at 

its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury. Any compensation 

claimed by Developer on account of emergency work shall be determined by 

agreement. 
 

6.14.14 All salvage materials will become the property of Developer and shall 

be removed from the Site unless otherwise called for in the Contract 

Documents. However, the District reserves the right to designate certain items 

of value that shall be turned over to the District unless otherwise directed by 

District. 

 

6.14.15 All connections to public utilities and/or existing on-site services, 

including, without limitation, internet, phone, and data connections, shall be 

made and maintained in such a manner as to not interfere with the continuing 

use of same by the District during the entire progress of the Work. 
 

6.14.16 Developer shall provide such heat, covering, and enclosures as are 

necessary to protect all Work, materials, equipment, appliances, and tools 

against damage by weather conditions, such as extreme heat, cold, rain, snow, 

dry winds, flooding, or dampness. 
 

6.14.17 Developer shall protect and preserve the Work from all damage or 

accident, providing any temporary roofs, window and door coverings, boxings, 

or other construction as required by the Architect. Developer shall be 

responsible for existing structures, walks, roads, trees, landscaping, and/or 

improvements in working areas; and shall provide adequate protection 

therefor. If temporary removal is necessary of any of the above items, or 

damage occurs due to the Work, Developer shall replace same at his expense 

with same kind, quality, and size of Work or item damaged. This shall include 

any adjoining property of the District and others. 
 

6.14.18 Developer shall take adequate precautions to protect existing roads, 

sidewalks, curbs, pavements, utilities, adjoining property, and structures 

(including, without limitation, protection from settlement or loss of lateral 

support), and to avoid damage thereto, and repair any damage thereto caused 

by construction operations. 
 

6.14.19 Developer shall confine apparatus, the storage of materials, and the 

operations of workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or 

directions of Architect, and shall not interfere with the Work or unreasonably 

encumber Premises or overload any structure with materials. Developer shall 

enforce all instructions of District and Architect regarding signs, advertising, 

fires, and smoking, and require that all workers comply with all regulations 

while on Project Site. 
 

6.14.20 Developer, Developer’s employees, Subcontractors, Subcontractors’ 

employees, or any person associated with the Work shall conduct themselves 

in a manner appropriate for a school site. No verbal or physical contact with 

neighbors, students, and faculty, profanity, or inappropriate attire or behavior 

will be permitted. Developer is also responsible for ensuring workers refrain 

from wearing inappropriate clothing and/or logos on the Project. District may 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 25 OF 86  

require Developer to temporarily or permanently remove non-complying 

persons from Project Site. 
 

6.14.21 Developer shall take care to prevent disturbing or covering any 

survey markers, monuments, or other devices marking property boundaries or 

corners. If such markers are disturbed, Developer shall have a civil engineer, 

registered as a professional engineer in California, replace them at no cost to 

District. 
 

6.14.22 In the event that Developer enters into any agreement with owners 

of any adjacent property to enter upon the adjacent property for the purpose 

of performing the Work, Developer shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless each person, entity, firm, or agency that owns or has any interest in 

adjacent property. The form and content of the agreement of indemnification 

shall be approved by the District prior to the commencement of any Work on 

or about the adjacent property. Developer shall also indemnify the District as 

provided in the indemnification provision herein. These provisions shall be in 

addition to any other requirements of the owners of the adjacent property. 
 

6.15 General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 

Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (“Construction Storm Water 

Permit”) 
 

6.15.1 Developer acknowledges that all California school districts are obligated 

to develop and implement the following requirements for the discharge of storm 

water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities 

pursuant to the Clean Water Act and Porter Cologne Water Quality Act. District 

has determined that the construction of this Project requires enrollment in the 

Construction Storm Water Permit. District has filed certain submittals referred 

to as Permit Registration Documents (PRDS) with the Regional Water Control 

Board (Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan or “SWPPP”). 

 

6.15.2 Developer shall comply with any District SWPPP that are approved by 

the District and applicable to the Project at no additional cost to the District. 

Developer shall pay any fees and any penalties that may be imposed by a 

regulatory agency for its non-compliance with the SWPPP during the course of 

Work. 
 

6.15.3 Developer shall provide a Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP) at no 

additional cost to the District, who shall be onsite and implement and monitor 

any and all SWPPP requirements applicable to the Project, including but not 

limited to: 

 

6.15.3.1 All required visual observations, sampling, analysis, reporting 

and record keeping, including any Numeric Action Levels (NALs), if 

applicable; 
 

6.15.3.2 Rain Event Action Plan (REAP) at least forty eight (48) hours 

prior to any forecasted rain event requiring implementation of the REAP, 

including any erosion and sediment control measures needed to protect 

all exposed portions of the site, if applicable; 
 

6.15.3.3 Active Treatment System (ATS), if applicable; and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 26 OF 86  

6.15.3.4 Best management practices (BMPs). 
 

6.16 Working Evenings and Weekends 

 

Developer may be required to work increased hours, evenings, and/or weekends at no 

additional cost to the District. Developer shall give the District forty-eight (48) hours’ 

notice prior to performing any evening and/or weekend work. Developer shall perform 

all evening and/or weekend work in compliance with all applicable rules, regulations, 

laws, and local ordinances including, without limitation, all noise and light limitations. 

Developer shall reimburse the District for any increased or additional Inspector charges 

as a result of Developer’s increased hours, or evening and/or weekend work. 
 

6.17 Cleaning Up 
 

6.17.1 Developer shall provide all services, labor, materials, and equipment 

necessary for protecting and securing the Work, all school occupants, 

furnishings, equipment, and building structure from damage until its completion 

and final acceptance by District. Dust barriers shall be provided to isolate dust 

and dirt from construction operations. At completion of the Work and portions 

thereof, Developer shall clean to the original state any areas beyond the Work 

area that become dust laden as a result of the Work. Developer must erect the 

necessary warning signs and barricades to ensure the safety of all school 

occupants. Developer at all times must maintain good housekeeping practices 

to reduce the risk of fire damage and must make a fire extinguisher, fire blanket, 

and/or fire watch, as applicable, available at each location where cutting, 

braising, soldering, and/or welding is being performed or where there is an 

increased risk of fire. 
 

6.17.2 Developer at all times shall keep Premises, including property 

immediately adjacent thereto, free from debris such as waste, rubbish 

(including personal rubbish of workers, e.g., food wrappers, etc.), and excess 

materials and equipment caused by the Work. Developer shall not leave debris 

under, in, or about the Premises (or surrounding property or neighborhood), 

but shall promptly remove same from the Premises on a daily basis. If 

Developer fails to clean up, District may do so and the cost thereof shall be 

charged to Developer. If the Contract calls for Work on an existing facility, 

Developer shall also perform specific clean-up on or about the Premises upon 

request by the District as it deems necessary for continued operations. 

Developer shall comply with all related provisions of the Specifications. 

 

6.17.3 If the Construction Manager, Architect, or District observes the 

accumulation of trash and debris, the District will give Developer a 24-hour 

written notice to mitigate the condition. 
 

6.17.4 Should Developer fail to perform the required clean-up, or should the 

clean-up be deemed unsatisfactory by the District, the District may, at its sole 

discretion, then perform the clean-up. All cost associated with the clean-up 

work (including all travel, payroll burden, and costs for supervision) will be 

deducted from the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 27 OF 86  

6.18 No Relief from Obligations Based on Review by Other Persons 
 

6.18.1 Developer shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in 

accordance with the Contract Documents by act or omission of the District, 

Architect, Construction Manager, Project Inspector, or DSA or other entities 

having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, administration of the Contract, 

review of submittals, or by tests, observation, inspection, or permit 

/interconnection approvals. 
 

7. Subcontractors 
 

7.1 Developer shall provide the District with information for all of Developer’s 

Subcontracts and Subcontractors as indicated in Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 

Section herein. 
 

7.2 No contractual relationship exists between the District and any Subcontractor, 

supplier, or sub-subcontractor by reason of the Contract Documents. 
 

7.3 Developer agrees to bind every Subcontractor by terms of the Contract 

Documents as far as those terms that are applicable to Subcontractor’s work including, 

without limitation, all labor, wage & hour, apprentice and related provisions and 

requirements. If Developer subcontracts any part of the Work called for by the Contract 

Documents, Developer shall be as fully responsible to District for acts and omissions 

of any Subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any 

Subcontractor, including Subcontractor caused Project delays, as it is for acts and 

omissions of persons directly employed by Developer. The divisions or sections of the 

Specifications and/or the arrangements of the drawings are not intended to control 

Developer in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or limit the work performed by 

any trade. 

 

7.4 District's consent to, or approval of, or failure to object to, any Subcontractor 

under the Contract Documents shall not in any way relieve Developer of any 

obligations under the Contract Documents and no such consent shall be deemed to 

waive any provisions of the Contract Documents. 
 

7.5 Developer is directed to familiarize itself with sections 1720 through 1861 of 

the Labor Code of the State of California, as regards the payment of prevailing wages 

and related issues, and to comply with all applicable requirements therein including, 

without limitation, section 1775 and Developer’s and Subcontractors’ obligations and 

liability for violations of prevailing wage law and other applicable laws. 
 

7.6 Developer shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, 

Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers working on 

the Project. 

 

7.6.1 Developer is responsible for ensuring that first-tier Subcontractors 

holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C- 

46 licenses, are prequalified by the District to work on the Project pursuant to 

Public Contract Code section 20111.6. 
 

7.6.2 Developer is responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractors are 

properly registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial 

Relations. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 28 OF 86  

7.7 Developer is solely responsible for settling any differences between Developer 

and its Subcontractor(s) or between Subcontractors. 
 

7.8 Developer must include in all of its subcontracts the assignment provisions 

indicated in the Termination section of these Construction Provisions. 
 

8. Other Contracts/Contractors 
 

8.1 District reserves the right to let other contracts, and/or to perform work with 

its own forces, in connection with the Project. Developer shall afford other contractors 

reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage of their materials and execution 

of their work and shall properly coordinate and connect Developer’s Work with the 

work of other contractors. 

 

8.2 Developer shall protect the work of any other contractor that Developer 

encounters while working on the Project. 
 

8.3 If any part of Developer’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon 

work of District or any other contractor, Developer shall visually inspect, and with 

reasonable effort, physically inspect all accessible portions of District’s or any other 

contractor’s work and, before proceeding with its Work, promptly report to the District 

in writing any defects in District’s or any other contractor’s work that render 

Developer’s Work unsuitable for proper execution and results. Developer shall be held 

accountable for damages to District for District’s or any other contractor’s work that 

Developer failed to inspect or should have inspected. Developer’s failure to inspect and 

report shall constitute Developer’s acceptance of all District’s or any other contractor’s 

work as fit and proper for reception of Developer’s Work, except as to defects that may 

develop in District’s or any other contractor’s work after execution of Developer’s Work 

and not caused by execution of Developer’s Work. 

 

8.4 To ensure proper execution of its subsequent Work, Developer shall measure 

and inspect Work already in place and shall at once report to the District in writing any 

discrepancy between that executed Work and the Contract Documents. 
 

8.5 Developer shall ascertain to its own satisfaction the scope of the Project and 

nature of District’s or any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by District 

in prosecution of the Project to the end that Developer may perform under the Contract 

in light of the other contracts, if any. 

 

8.6 Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted as granting to Developer 

exclusive occupancy of the Site, the Premises, or of the Project. Developer shall not 

cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to the use and/or operation(s) of the 

Premises and/or to District or any other contractor working on the Project. If 

simultaneous execution of any contract or Premises operation is likely to cause 

interference with performance of Developer’s obligations under the Contract 

Documents, Developer shall coordinate with those contractor(s), person(s), and/or 

entity(s) and shall notify the District of the resolution. 
 

9. Drawings and Specifications 
 

9.1 A complete list of all Drawings that form a part of the Contract Documents are 

to be found as an index on the Drawings themselves, and/or may be provided to 

Developer and/or in the Table of Contents. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 29 OF 86  

9.2 Materials or Work described in words that so applied have a well-known 

technical or trade meaning shall be deemed to refer to recognized standards, unless 

noted otherwise. 
 

9.3 Trade Name or Trade Term 
 

It is not the intention of the Contract Documents to go into detailed descriptions of 

any materials and/or methods commonly known to the trade under “trade name” or 

“trade term.” The mere mention or notation of “trade name” or “trade term” shall be 

considered a sufficient notice to Developer that it will be required to complete the work 

so named, complete, finished, and operable, with all its appurtenances, according to 

the best practices of the trade. 
 

9.4 The naming of any material and/or equipment shall mean furnishing and 

installing of same, including all incidental and accessory items thereto and/or labor 

therefor, as per best practices of the trade(s) involved, unless specifically noted 

otherwise. 
 

9.5 Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be 

binding as if called for by all. As such, Drawings and Specifications are intended to be 

fully cooperative and to agree. However, if Developer observes that Drawings and 

Specifications are in conflict with the Contract Documents, Developer shall promptly 

notify District and Architect in writing, and any necessary changes shall be made as 

provided in the Contract Documents. 
 

9.6 Figured dimensions shall be followed in preference to scaled dimensions, and 

Developer shall make all additional measurements necessary for the work and shall be 

responsible for their accuracy. Before ordering any material or doing any work, each 

Developer shall verify all measurements at the building and shall be responsible for 

the correctness of same. 
 

9.7 Should any question arise concerning the intent or meaning of the Contract 

Documents, including the Plans and Specifications, the question shall be submitted to 

the District for interpretation. If a conflict exists in the Contract Documents, these 

Construction Provisions shall control over the Facilities Lease, which shall control over 

the Site Lease, which shall control over Division 1 Documents, which shall control over 

Division 2 through Division 49 documents, which shall control over figured dimensions, 

which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over small-scale 

drawings. In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or quantity of 

material or workmanship control. However, in the case of discrepancy or ambiguity 

solely between and among the Drawings and Specifications, the discrepancy or 

ambiguity shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation that will provide District with 

the functionally complete and operable Project described in the Drawings and 

Specifications. 

 

9.8 Drawings and Specifications are intended to comply with all laws, ordinances, 

rules, and regulations of constituted authorities having jurisdiction, and where referred 

to in the Contract Documents, the laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations shall be 

considered as a part of the Contract Documents within the limits specified. 
 

9.9 As required by Section 4-317(c), Part 1, Title 24, CCR: “Should any existing 

conditions such as deterioration or non-complying construction be discovered which is 

not covered by the DSA-approved documents wherein the finished work will not comply 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 30 OF 86  

with Title 24, California Code of Regulations, a construction change document, or a 

separate set of plans and specifications, detailing and specifying the required repair 

work shall be submitted to and approved by DSA before proceeding with the repair 

work.” 
 

9.10 Ownership of Drawings 
 

All copies of Plans, Drawings, Designs, Specifications, and copies of other incidental 

architectural and engineering work, or copies of other Contract Documents furnished 

by District, are the property of District. They are not to be used by Developer in other 

work and, with the exception of signed sets of Contract Documents, are to be returned 

to District on request at completion of Work, or may be used by District as it may 

require without any additional costs to District. Neither Developer nor any 

Subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the 

Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect. District 

hereby grants Developer, Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or 

equipment suppliers a limited license to use applicable portions of the Drawings 

prepared for the Project in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents. 
 

10.  Developer’s Submittals and Schedules 
 

Developer’s submittals shall comply with the provisions and requirements of the 

Specifications including, without limitation Submittals. 
 

10.1 Schedule of Work, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

 

10.1.1 Developer shall comply with the construction schedule attached to the 

Facilities Lease as Exhibit F (“Construction Schedule”). [To be attached when 

available.] 
 

10.1.2 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 

electronically, in a native format (e.g. Microsoft Project or Primavera) approved 

in advance by the District. 

 

10.1.3 The District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall 

make changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 

resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 
 

10.1.4 The District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 

revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District's sole opinion, the schedule 

of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 

 

10.1.5 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 

rely on them as a basis for payment. 
 

10.1.6 Within TEN (10) calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed 

with Construction (unless otherwise specified in the Specifications), Developer 

shall prepare and submit to the District for review, in a form supported by 

sufficient data to substantiate its accuracy as the District may require: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 31 OF 86  

10.1.6.1 Preliminary Schedule 
 

A preliminary schedule of construction indicating the starting and 

completion dates of the various stages of the Work, including any 

information and following any form as may be specified in the 

Specifications. Once approved by District, this shall become the 

Construction Schedule. This schedule shall include and identify all tasks 

that are on the Project’s critical path with a specific determination of the 

start and completion of each critical path task as well as all Contract 

milestones and each milestone’s completion date(s) as may be required 

by the District. 

 

10.1.6.1.1 The District is not required to approve  a preliminary 

schedule of construction with early completion, i.e., one that 

shows early completion dates for the Work and/or milestones. 

Developer shall not be entitled to extra compensation if the 

District approves a Construction Schedule with an early 

completion date and Developer completes the Project beyond the 

date shown in the schedule but within the Contract Time. A 

Construction Schedule showing the Work completed in less than 

the Contract Time, the time between the early completion date 

and the end of the Contract Time shall be Float. 
 

10.1.6.2 Preliminary Schedule of Values 
 

A preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work, which must include 

quantities and prices of items aggregating the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price and must subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient 

detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. 

Unless the Special Conditions contain different limits, this preliminary 

schedule of values shall include, at a minimum, the following information 

and the following structure: 
 

10.1.6.2.1 Divided into at least the following categories: 
 

10.1.6.2.1.1 Overhead and profit 

 

10.1.6.2.1.2 Supervision 
 

10.1.6.2.1.3 General conditions 
 

10.1.6.2.1.4 Layout 

 

10.1.6.2.1.5 Mobilization 

 

10.1.6.2.1.6 Submittals 
 

10.1.6.2.1.7 Bonds and insurance 
 

10.1.6.2.1.8 Close-out/Certification documentation 
 

10.1.6.2.1.9 Demolition 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 32 OF 86  

10.1.6.2.1.10 Installation 
 

10.1.6.2.1.11 Rough-in 

 

10.1.6.2.1.12 Finishes 
 

10.1.6.2.1.13 Testing 
 

10.1.6.2.1.14 Punch list and District acceptance 
 

10.1.6.2.2 And also divided by each of the following areas: 

 

10.1.6.2.2.1 Site work 
 

10.1.6.2.2.2 By each phase and/or building, as 

applicable 

 

10.1.6.2.2.3 By each floor 
 

10.1.6.2.3 The preliminary schedule of values shall not provide 

for values any greater than the following percentages of the 

Contract value: 
 

10.1.6.2.3.1 Mobilization and layout combined to equal 

not more than 1%. 
 

10.1.6.2.3.2 Submittals, samples and shop drawings 

combined to equal not more than 3%. 
 

10.1.6.2.3.3 Bonds and insurance combined to equal not 

more than 2%. 
 

10.1.6.2.3.4 Closeout documentation shall have a value 

in the preliminary schedule of not less than 3%. 
 

10.1.6.2.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Contract 

Documents to the contrary, payment of Developer's overhead, 

supervision, general conditions costs, and profit, as reflected in 

the Cost Breakdown, shall be paid based on percentage 

complete, with the disbursement of Progress Payments and the 

Final Payment. 
 

10.1.6.2.5 Developer shall certify that the preliminary schedule 

of values as submitted to the District is accurate and reflects the 

costs as developed in preparing Developer’s bid. For example, 

without limiting the foregoing, Developer shall not “front-load” 

the preliminary schedule of values with dollar amounts greater 

than the value of activities performed early in the Project. 
 

10.1.6.2.6 The preliminary schedule of values shall be subject 

to the District's review and approval of the form and content 

thereof. In the event that the District objects to any portion of 

the preliminary schedule of values, the District shall notify 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 33 OF 86  

Developer, in writing, of the District's objection(s) to the 

preliminary schedule of values. Within five (5) calendar days of 

the date of the District's written objection(s), Developer shall 

submit a revised preliminary schedule of values to the District for 

review and approval. The foregoing procedure for the 

preparation, review and approval of the preliminary schedule of 

values shall continue until the District has approved the entirety 

of the preliminary schedule of values. 
 

10.1.6.2.7 Once the preliminary schedule of values is approved 

by the District, this shall become the Schedule of Values. The 

Schedule of Values shall not be thereafter modified or amended 

by Developer without the prior consent and approval of the 

District, which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion 

of the District. 
 

10.1.6.3 Schedule of Values 
 

The Developer shall provide for District review and approval prior to 

commencement of the Work a schedule of values for all of the Work, 

which includes quantities and prices of items aggregating the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and subdivided into component parts as per 

specifications. The Schedule of Values shall not be modified or amended 

by the Developer without the prior consent and approval of the District, 

which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of the District. 

The District shall have the right at any time to revise the schedule of 

values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule of values does not 

accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 
 

10.1.6.4 Preliminary Schedule of Submittals 
 

A preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, Product 

Data, and Samples submittals. Once approved by District, this shall 

become the Submittal Schedule. All submittals may be reviewed by 

District in an agreed upon District Project Management System at no 

cost and shall be forwarded to the Architect by the date indicated on the 

approved Submittal Schedule, unless an earlier date is necessary to 

maintain the Construction Schedule, in which case those submittals shall 

be forwarded to the District so as not to delay the Construction 

Schedule. Upon request by the District, Developer shall provide an 

electronic copy of all submittals to the District. All submittals shall be 

submitted no later than ninety (90) days after the Notice to Proceed 

with Construction. 

 

10.1.6.5 Safety Plan 
 

Developer’s Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project shall comply 

with the following requirements: 

 

10.1.6.5.1 All applicable requirements of California Division of 

Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and/or of the 

United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

(“OSHA”). 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 34 OF 86  

10.1.6.5.2 All provisions regarding Project safety, including all 

applicable provisions in these Construction Provisions. 
 

10.1.6.5.3 Developer’s Safety Plan shall be in English and in the 

language(s) of Developer’s and its Subcontractors’ employees. 
 

10.1.6.6 Complete Registered Subcontractor List 
 

The name, address, telephone number, facsimile number, California 

State Contractors License number, classification, DIR registration 

number, and monetary value of all Subcontracts of any tier for parties 

furnishing labor, material, or equipment for completion of the Project. 
 

10.2 Monthly Progress Schedule(s) 

 

10.2.1 Developer shall provide Monthly Progress Schedule(s) to the District. A 

Monthly Progress Schedule shall update the approved Construction Schedule or 

the last Monthly Progress Schedule, showing all work completed and to be 

completed as well as updating the Registered Subcontractors List. The monthly 

Progress Schedule shall be sent as noted below and, if also requested by 

District, within the timeframe requested by the District and shall be in a format 

acceptable to the District and contain a written narrative of the progress of 

work that month and any changes, delays, or events that may affect the work. 

The process for District approval of the Monthly Progress Schedule shall be the 

same as the process for approval of the Construction Schedule. 
 

10.2.2 Developer shall submit Monthly Progress Schedule(s) with all payment 

applications. 
 

10.2.3 Developer must provide all schedules both in hard copy and 

electronically in a native format (e.g., Microsoft Project or Primavera), approved 

in advance by District. 
 

10.2.4 District will review the schedules submitted and Developer shall make 

changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and 

resubmit the schedules until approved by the District. 
 

10.2.5 District shall have the right at any time to discuss with Developer 

revisions to the schedule of values if, in the District’s sole opinion, the schedule 

of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed. 
 

10.2.6 All schedules must be approved by the District before Developer can 

rely on them as a basis for payment. District shall use best efforts to approve 

all submittals and schedules on or before fourteen (14) days after presentation 

of the same from Developer, providing there are no extenuating circumstances, 

and no such approval shall be unreasonably withheld by District. 
 

10.3 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 
 

Developer is required to ensure Material Safety Data Sheets are available in a readily 

accessible place at the Site for any material requiring a Material Safety Data Sheet per 

the federal “Hazard Communication” standard, or employees’ “right to know” law. 

Developer is also required to ensure proper labeling on substances brought onto the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 35 OF 86  

job site and that any person working with the material or within the general area of 

the material is informed of the hazards of the substance and follows proper handling 

and protection procedures. Two additional copies of the Material Safety Data Sheets 

shall also be submitted directly to the District. 
 

10.4 Submittals 
 

10.4.1 Architect’s favorable review shall neither be construed as a complete 

check nor relieve Developer, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, or 

supplier from responsibility for any deficiency that may exist or from any 

departures or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents 

unless Developer has, in writing, called Architect’s attention to the deviations 

at the time of submission and the Architect has given specific written response. 

“Favorable review” shall mean merely that Architect has no objection to 

Developer using, upon Developer’s own full responsibility, plan or method of 

Work proposed, or furnishing materials or equipment proposed. 

 

11. Site Access, Conditions, And Requirements 
 

11.1 Site Investigation 
 

Developer has made a careful investigation of the Site and is familiar with the 

requirements of the Contract Documents and has accepted the readily observable, 

existing conditions of the Site. 
 

11.2 Soils Investigation Report 

 

When a soils investigation report obtained from test holes at Site or for the Project is 

available, that report may be made available to Developer but shall not be a part of 

this Contract but shall not alleviate or excuse Developer’s obligation to perform its own 

investigation. Any information obtained from that report or any information given on 

Drawings as to subsurface soil condition or to elevations of existing grades or 

elevations of underlying rock is approximate only, is not guaranteed, does not form a 

part of this Contract, and Developer may not rely thereon. Developer acknowledges 

that it has made a visual examination of the Site and has made whatever tests 

Developer deems appropriate to determine underground condition of soil. Although 

any such report is not a part of this Contract, recommendations from the report may 

be included in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents. It is 

Developer’s sole responsibility to thoroughly review all Contract Documents, Drawings, 

and Specifications. 
 

11.3 Access to Work 
 

District and its representatives shall at all times have access to Work wherever it is 

in preparation or progress, including storage and fabrication. Developer shall provide 

safe and proper facilities for such access so that District's representatives may 

perform their functions. District shall provide Developer adequate advance notice for 

access to active construction zones such that Developer may provide for safety 

measures to District and representatives. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 36 OF 86  

11.4 Layout and Field Engineering 
 

11.4.1 All field engineering required for layout of this Work and establishing 

grades for earthwork operations shall be furnished by Developer at its expense. 

This Work shall be done by a qualified, California-registered civil engineer or 

licensed land surveyor approved in writing by District and Architect. Any 

required Record and/or As-Built Drawings of Site development shall be 

prepared by the approved civil engineer or licensed land surveyor. 
 

11.4.2 Developer shall be responsible for having ascertained pertinent local 

conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the Site and 

for having satisfied itself as to the conditions under which the Work is to be 

performed. District shall not be liable for any claim for allowances because of 

Developer’s error or negligence in acquainting itself with the conditions at the 

Site. 
 

11.4.3 Developer shall protect and preserve established benchmarks and 

monuments and shall make no changes in locations without the prior written 

approval of District. Developer shall replace any benchmarks or monuments 

that are lost or destroyed subsequent to proper notification of District and with 

District's approval. 
 

11.5 Utilities 
 

Utilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

 

11.6 Sanitary Facilities 
 

Sanitary facilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications. 

 

11.7 Surveys 
 

Developer shall provide surveys done by a California-licensed civil engineer or licensed 

land surveyor to determine locations of construction, grading, and site work as 

required to perform the Work. 
 

11.8 Regional Notification Center 
 

Developer, except in an emergency, shall contact the appropriate regional notification 

center at least two (2) days prior to commencing any excavation if the excavation will 

be conducted in an area or in a private easement that is known, or reasonably should 

be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the underground facilities 

owned or operated by the District, and obtain an inquiry identification number from 

that notification center. No excavation shall be commenced and/or carried out by 

Developer unless an inquiry identification number has been assigned to Developer or 

any Subcontractor and Developer has given the District the identification number. Any 

damages arising from Developer's failure to make appropriate notification shall be at 

the sole risk and expense of Developer. Any delays caused by failure to make 

appropriate notification shall be at the sole risk of Developer and shall not be 

considered for an extension of the Contract Time. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 37 OF 86  

11.9 Existing Utility Lines 
 

11.9.1 Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, District assumes the 

responsibility for removal, relocation, and protection of main or trunk utility 

lines and facilities located on the construction Site at the time of 

commencement of construction under the Contract Documents with respect to 

any such utility facilities that are not identified in the Plans and Specifications. 

Developer shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in completion 

of the Project caused by failure of District or the owner of a utility to provide 

for removal or relocation of such utility facilities. 
 

11.9.2 Locations of existing utilities provided by District shall not be 

considered exact, but approximate within a reasonable margin and shall not 

relieve Developer of its responsibilities to exercise reasonable care and to pay 

all costs of repair due to Developer’s failure to do so. District shall compensate 

Developer for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to the failure of 

Developer to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility 

facilities not indicated in the Plans and Specifications with reasonable accuracy, 

and for equipment necessarily idle during such work. 

 

11.9.3 No provision herein shall be construed to preclude assessment against 

Developer for any other delays in completion of the Work. Nothing in this Article 

shall be deemed to require District to indicate the presence of existing service 

laterals, appurtenances, or other utility lines, within the exception of main or 

trunk utility lines. Whenever the presence of these utilities on the Site of the 

construction Project can be inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, 

such as buildings, meter junction boxes, on or adjacent to the Site of the 

construction. 

 

11.9.4 If Developer, while performing Work under this Contract, discovers 

utility facilities not identified by District in Contract Plans and Specifications, 

Developer shall immediately notify the District and the utility in writing. In the 

event Developer fails to immediately provide notice and subsequently causes 

damage to the utility facilities, the cost of repair for damage to above- 

mentioned visible facilities shall be borne by Developer. 
 

11.10 Notification 
 

Developer understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the purpose for prompt 

notification to the District pursuant to these provisions is to allow the District to 

investigate the condition(s) so that the District shall have the opportunity to decide 

how the District desires to proceed as a result of the condition(s). Accordingly, failure 

of Developer to promptly notify the District in writing, pursuant to these provisions, 

shall constitute Developer's waiver of any claim for damages or delay incurred as a 

result of the condition(s). 
 

11.11 Hazardous Materials 
 

Developer shall comply with all provisions and requirements of the Contract 

Documents related to hazardous materials including, without limitation, Hazardous 

Materials Procedures and Requirements. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 38 OF 86  

11.12 No Signs 
 

Neither Developer nor any other person or entity shall display any signs not required 

by law or the Contract Documents at the Site, fences, trailers, offices, or elsewhere on 

the Site without specific prior written approval of the District. 
 

12. Trenches 
 

12.1 Trenches Greater Than Five Feet 

 

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Guaranteed Maximum Price exceeds 

$25,000 and involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in 

depth, Developer shall, in advance of excavation, promptly submit to the District 

and/or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the District or Architect, a 

detailed plan showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving 

ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. 
 

12.2 Excavation Safety 

 

If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Safety 

Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in 

no case shall such plan be less effective than that required by the Safety Orders. No 

excavation of such trench or trenches shall be commenced until said plan has been 

accepted by the District or by the person to whom authority to accept has been 

delegated by the District. 
 

12.3 No Tort Liability of District 
 

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability 

upon the District or any of its employees. 
 

12.4 No Excavation without Permits 
 

Developer shall not commence any excavation Work until it has secured all necessary 

permits including the required Cal/OSHA excavation/shoring permit. Any permits shall 

be prominently displayed on the Site prior to the commencement of any excavation. 

 

12.5 Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions 
 

12.5.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, if the Work involves 

digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below 

the Surface, Developer shall promptly, and before the following conditions are 

disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any: 

 

12.5.1.1 Material that Developer believes may be material that is 

hazardous waste, as defined in section 25117 of the Health and Safety 

Code, is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III 

disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law. 
 

12.5.1.2 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing 

from those indicated. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 39 OF 86  

12.5.1.3 Unknown physical conditions at the Project Site of any 

unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered 

and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided 

for in the Contract Documents. 
 

12.5.2 The District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that 

the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause 

a decrease or increase in Developer’s cost of, or the time required for, 

performance of any part of the Work, shall issue a Change Order under the 

procedures described herein. 
 

12.5.3 In the event that a dispute arises between District and Developer 

whether the conditions materially differ or cause a decrease or increase in 

Developer’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, 

Developer shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided 

for by the Contract Documents but shall proceed with all work to be performed 

under the Contract Documents. Developer shall retain any and all rights 

provided either by the Contract Documents or by law that pertain to the 

resolution of disputes and protests. 

 

13. Insurance and Bonds 
 

13.1 Developer’s Insurance 
 

Developer shall comply with the insurance requirements as indicated in the Facilities 

Lease. 
 

13.2 Contract Security – Bonds 

 

13.2.1 Developer shall furnish two surety bonds issued by a California 

admitted surety insurer as follows: 
 

13.2.1.1 Performance Bond 
 

A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 

Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for faithful performance of the 

Contract Documents. 

 

13.2.1.2 Payment Bond 
 

A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price as security for payment of persons 

performing labor and/or furnishing materials in connection with this 

Contract. 

 

13.2.2 Cost of bonds shall be included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
 

13.2.3 All bonds related to this Project shall be in the forms set forth in these 

Contract Documents and shall comply with all requirements of the Contract 

Documents, including, without limitation, the bond forms. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 40 OF 86  

14. Warranty/Guarantee/Indemnity 
 

14.1 Warranty/Guarantee 

 

14.1.1 Developer shall obtain and preserve for the benefit of the District, 

manufacturer’s warranties on materials, fixtures, and equipment incorporated 

into the Work. 
 

14.1.2 In addition to guarantees and warranties required elsewhere, 

Developer shall, and hereby does guarantee and warrant all Work furnished on 

the job against all defects for a period of TWO (2) years after the later of the 

following dates, unless a longer period is provided for in the Contract 

Documents: 

 

14.1.2.1 The acceptance by the District’s governing board of the Work, 

subject to these General Conditions, or 
 

14.1.2.2 The date that commissioning for the Project, if any, was 

completed. 
 

14.1.3 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications, 

Developer shall repair or replace any and all of that Work, together with any 

other Work that may be displaced in so doing, that may prove defective in 

workmanship and/or materials within a TWO (2) year period from date of 

completion as defined above, unless a longer period is provided for in the 

Contract Documents, without expense whatsoever to District. 
 

14.1.4 In the event of failure of Developer and/or Surety to commence and 

pursue with diligence said replacements or repairs within ten (10) days after 

being notified in writing, Developer and Surety hereby acknowledge and agree 

that District is authorized to proceed to have defects repaired and made good 

at expense of Developer and/or Surety who hereby agree to pay costs and 

charges therefore immediately on demand. 
 

14.1.5 If any work is not in compliance with the Drawings and Specifications 

and if in the opinion of District said defective work creates a dangerous 

condition or requires immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss 

to District or to prevent interruption of District operations, District will attempt 

to give the notice required above. If Developer or Surety cannot be contacted 

or neither complies with District's request for correction within a reasonable 

time as determined by District, District may, notwithstanding the above 

provision, proceed to make any and all corrections and/or provide attentions 

the District believes are necessary. The costs of correction or attention shall be 

charged against Developer and Surety of the guarantees or warranties provided 

in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract. 
 

14.1.6 The above provisions do not in any way limit the guarantees or 

warranties on any items for which a longer guarantee or warranty is specified 

or on any items for which a manufacturer gives a guarantee or warranty for a 

longer period. Developer shall furnish to District all appropriate guarantee or 

warranty certificates as indicated in the Specifications or upon request by 

District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 41 OF 86  

14.1.7 Nothing herein shall limit any other rights or remedies available to 

District. 
 

14.2 Indemnity 
 

Developer shall indemnify the District as indicated in the Facilities Lease. 
 

15. Time 
 

15.1 Notice to Proceed with Construction 

 

15.1.1 District may issue a Notice to Proceed with Construction (“NTP 2”) 

within ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award after Guaranteed 

Maximum Price. Once Developer has received the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction, Developer shall complete the Work within the period of time 

indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 

15.1.2 In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction beyond ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice 

of Award after Guaranteed Maximum Price, it is expressly understood that with 

reasonable notice to Developer, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction. It is further expressly understood by Developer that 

Developer shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as a 

result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction. 
 

15.1.3 If Developer believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to 

Proceed with Construction will cause a hardship to Developer, Developer may 

terminate the Contract. Developer’s termination due to a postponement shall 

be by written notice to District within ten (10) days after receipt by Developer 

of District's notice of postponement. It is further understood by Developer that 

in the event that Developer terminates the Contract as a result of 

postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay 

Developer for the Work that Developer had performed at the time of notification 

of postponement. 

 

15.2 Computation of Time / Adverse Weather 
 

15.2.1 Developer will only be allowed a time extension for Adverse Weather 

conditions if requested by Developer in compliance with the time extension 

request procedures herein and only if all of the following conditions are met: 
 

15.2.1.1 The weather conditions constitute Adverse Weather, as 

defined herein; 
 

15.2.1.2 Developer can verify that the Adverse Weather caused delays 

in excess of five (5) hours of the indicated labor required to complete 

the scheduled tasks of Work on the day affected by the Adverse 

Weather; 

 

15.2.1.3 Developer’s crew is dismissed as a result of the Adverse 

Weather; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 42 OF 86  

15.2.1.4 Said delay adversely affect the critical path in the 

Construction Schedule; and 
 

15.2.2 The number of days of Adverse Weather exceeds the following 

parameters: 
 

January 7 July 0 

February 7 August 0 

March 7 September 1 

April 3 October 2 

May 2 November 5 

June 0 December 7 

 

15.2.3 If the aforementioned conditions are met, a non-compensable day-for- 

day extension will only be allowed for those days in excess of those indicated 

herein. 

 

15.2.4 Developer shall work seven (7) days per week, if necessary, 

irrespective of inclement weather, to maintain access and the Construction 

Schedule, and to protect the Work under construction from the effects of 

Adverse Weather, all at no further cost to the District. 

 

15.2.5 The Contract Time has been determined with consideration given to the 

average climate weather conditions prevailing in the County in which the Project 

is located. 
 

15.3 Hours of Work 

 

15.3.1 Sufficient Forces 
 

Developer and Subcontractors shall continuously furnish sufficient and 

competent work forces with the required levels of familiarity with the Project 

and skill, training and experience to ensure the prosecution of the Work in 

accordance with the Construction Schedule. 
 

15.3.2 Performance During Working Hours 

 

Work shall be performed during regular working hours as permitted by the 

appropriate governmental agency except that in the event of an emergency, or 

when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, Work 

may be performed outside of regular working hours with the advance written 

consent of the District and approval of any required governmental agencies. 
 

15.3.3 No Work during State Testing 
 

Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 

coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, 

not performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or 

Federally-required tests. The District or District’s Representative will provide 

Developer with a schedule of test dates concurrent with the District’s issuance 

of the Notice to Proceed with Construction, or as soon as test dates are made 

available to the District. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 43 OF 86  

15.4 Progress and Completion 
 

15.4.1 Time of the Essence 

 

Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence to the Contract 

Documents. By executing the Facilities Lease, Developer confirms that the 

Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 
 

15.4.2 No Commencement Without Insurance or Bonds 

 

Developer shall not commence operations on the Project or elsewhere prior to 

the effective date of insurance and bonds. The date of commencement of the 

Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such insurance or bonds. If 

Developer commences Work without insurance and bonds, all Work is 

performed at Developer’s peril and shall not be compensable until and unless 

Developer secures bonds and insurance pursuant to the terms of the Contract 

Documents and subject to District claim for damages. 
 

15.5 Schedule 
 

Developer shall provide to District, Construction Manager, and Architect a schedule in 

conformance with the Contract Documents and as required in these Construction 

Provisions. 
 

15.6 Expeditious Completion 
 

Developer shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve 

Completion within the Contract Time. 
 

16. Extensions of Time – Liquidated Damages, Excusable Delays 

 

16.1 Liquidated Damages 
 

Developer and District hereby agree that the exact amount of damages for failure to 

complete the Work within the time specified is extremely difficult or impossible to 

determine. If the Work is not completed within the time specified in the Contract 

Documents, it is understood that the District will suffer damage. It being impractical 

and unfeasible to determine the amount of actual damage, it is agreed Developer shall 

pay to District as fixed and liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount set 

forth in the Facilities Lease for each calendar day of delay in Completion. Developer 

and its Surety shall be liable for the amount thereof pursuant to Government Code 

section 53069.85. 

 

16.2 Excusable Delay 
 

16.2.1 Developer shall not be charged for liquidated damages because of any 

delays in completion of the Work which are not the fault of Developer or its 

Subcontractors, including without limitation acts of God as defined in Public 

Contract Code section 7105, acts of enemy, epidemics, and quarantine 

restrictions. Developer shall, within five (5) calendar days of beginning of any 

delay, notify District in writing of causes of delay including documentation and 

facts explaining the delay and the direct correlation between the cause and 

effect (“Notice of Delay”). If Developer fails to provide its written Notice of 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 44 OF 86  

Delay within this timeframe, Developer waives, releases, and discharges any 

right to assert or claim any entitlement to an adjustment to the Contract Price 

and/or the Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the asserted 

delay. District shall review the facts and extent of any delay and shall grant 

extension(s) of time for completing Work when, in its judgment, the findings of 

fact justify an extension. Extension(s) of time shall apply only to that portion 

of Work affected by delay, and shall not apply to other portions of Work not so 

affected. An extension of time may only be granted if Developer has timely 

submitted the Construction Schedule as required herein. 
 

16.2.2 Developer’s Notice of Delay and request for a time extension pursuant 

to subparagraph 16.2 is a condition precedent to Developer’s submittal of 

and/or entitlement to a claim pursuant to Article 25 of these Construction 

Provisions. Developer shall notify the District pursuant to the claims provisions 

in these Construction Provisions of any anticipated delay and its cause. 

Following submission of a claim, the District may determine whether the delay 

is to be considered avoidable or unavoidable, how long it continues, and to 

what extent the prosecution and completion of the Work might be delayed 

thereby. 
 

16.2.3 In the event Developer requests an extension of Contract Time for 

unavoidable delay as set forth in subparagraph 16.2.1, such request shall be 

submitted in accordance with the provisions in the Contract Documents 

governing changes in Work, including without limitation, the time requirements 

set forth in subsection 17.5, below. When requesting time, requests must be 

submitted with full justification and documentation. If Developer fails to submit 

justification, it waives its right to a time extension at a later date. Such 

justification must be based on the official Construction Schedule as updated at 

the time of occurrence of the delay or execution of Work related to any changes 

to the Scope of Work. Any request for a time extension must include the 

following information as support, without limitation: 
 

16.2.3.1 The duration of the activity relating to the changes in the 

Work and the resources (manpower, equipment, material, etc.) required 

to perform the activities within the stated duration. 

 

16.2.3.2 Specific logical ties to the Contract Schedule for the proposed 

changes and/or delay showing the activity/activities in the Construction 

Schedule that are affected by the change and/or delay. In particular, 

Developer must show an actual impact to the schedule, after making a 

good faith effort to mitigate the delay by rescheduling the work, by 

providing an analysis of the schedule (“Time Impact Analysis”). Such 

Time Impact Analysis shall describe in detail the cause and effect of the 

delay and the impact on the critical dates in the Project schedule. (This 

information must be provided for any portion of any delay of seven (7) 

days or more.) 
 

16.2.3.3 A recovery schedule must be submitted within twenty (20) 

calendar days of written notification to the District of causes of delay. 
 

16.2.4 Developer must comply with requirements in subsection 16.2 for a 

Notice of Delay and supporting justification notwithstanding Developer 

contends the specific delay period is unknown and continuing. When submitting 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 45 OF 86  

a Notice of Delay and supporting justification, Developer must provide an 

estimated delay duration to critical path activities at the time the Notice of 

Delay and supporting justification is required to be submitted. If Developer 

contends the delaying event(s) are continuing, Developer must update monthly 

the estimated delay period with supporting justification. 
 

16.2.5 Developer’s failure to timely submit a written Notice of Delay and/or 

provide the justification required in subparagraph 16.2 shall constitute 

Developer’s waiver of any right to later submit a Proposed Change Order or 

pursue a Claim on the circumstances giving rise to the request, or to later 

pursue any additional money or time extensions in any manner related to that 

issue, regardless of the merits. Developer will not have satisfied a condition 

precedent or exhausted administrative remedies required to show entitlement 

to a Contract Time adjustment. Developer acknowledges that these written 

notices and justification requirements are critically important to District’s Work, 

Project management, and evaluating potential options and alternatives to 

implement mitigation efforts to reduce or eliminate additional Project costs and 

delays. 

 

16.3 No Additional Compensation for Delays within Developer’s Control 
 

16.3.1 Developer is aware that governmental agencies and utilities, including, 

without limitation, the Division of the State Architect, the Department of 

General Services, gas companies, electrical utility companies, water districts, 

and other agencies may have to approve Developer-prepared drawings or 

approve a proposed installation. Accordingly, Developer has included in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price, time for possible review of its drawings and for 

reasonable delays and damages that may be caused by such agencies, including 

without limitation delays due to California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 

compliance. Thus, Developer is not entitled to make a claim for damages for 

delays arising from the review of Developer’s drawings. 
 

16.3.2 Developer shall only be entitled to compensation for delay when all of 

the following conditions are met: 
 

16.3.2.1 The District is responsible for the delay; 

 

16.3.2.2 The delay is unreasonable under the circumstances involved; 
 

16.3.2.3 The delay was not within the contemplation of the District 

and Developer; 
 

16.3.2.4 The delay could not have been avoided or mitigated by 

reasonable diligence; and 
 

16.3.2.5 Developer timely complies with the claims procedure of the 

Contract Documents. 
 

16.3.3 Where a change in the Work extends the Contract Time, Developer may 

request and recover additional, actual direct costs, provided that Developer can 

demonstrate such additional costs are: 
 

16.3.3.1 Actually incurred performing the Work; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 46 OF 86  

16.3.3.2 Not compensated by the Markup allowed; and 
 

16.3.3.3 Directly result from the extended Contract Time. 

 

16.3.4 Contractor shall comply with all required procedures, documentation 

and time requirements in the Contract Documents. Contractor may not seek or 

recover such costs using formulas (e.g. Eichleay, labor factors). 
 

16.4 Float or Slack in the Schedule 

 

Float or slack is the amount of time between the early start date and the late start 

date, or the early finish date and the late finish date, of any of the activities in the 

schedule. Float or slack is not for the exclusive use of or benefit of either the District 

or Developer, but its use shall be determined solely by the District. 
 

17. Changes in the Work 
 

17.1 No Changes without Prior Authorization 
 

17.1.1 There shall be no change whatsoever in the Drawings, Specifications, 

or in the Work without an executed Change Order or a written Construction 

Change Directive authorized by the District as herein provided. District shall 

not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, 

additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless 

the District's governing board has authorized the same and the cost thereof 

has been approved in writing by Change Order or Construction Change Directive 

in advance of the changed Work being performed. No extension of time for 

performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder unless a request for such 

extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such time 

duly adjusted and approved in writing in the Change Order or Construction 

Change Directive. The provisions of the Contract Documents shall apply to all 

such changes, additions, and omissions with the same effect as if originally 

embodied in the Drawings and Specifications. 
 

17.1.2 Developer shall perform immediately all work that has been authorized 

by a fully executed Change Order or Construction Change Directive. Developer 

shall be fully responsible for any and all delays and/or expenses caused by 

Developer's failure to expeditiously perform this Work. 
 

17.1.3 Should any Change Order result in an increase in the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price or extend the Contract Time, the cost of or length of extension 

in that Change Order shall be agreed to, in writing, by the District in advance 

of the work by Developer. In the event that Developer proceeds with any 

change in Work without a Change Order executed by the District or 

Construction Change Directive, Developer waives any claim of additional 

compensation or time for that additional work. Under no circumstances shall 

Developer be entitled to any claim of additional compensation or time not 

expressly requested by Developer in a Proposed Change Order or approved by 

District in an executed Change Order. 

 

17.1.4 A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 

effective when approved by the Board, notwithstanding that Developer has 

not signed it. A Change Order or Construction Change Directive will become 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 47 OF 86  

effective without Developer’s signature provided District indicates it as a 

“Unilateral Change Order”. Any dispute as to the adjustment in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, if any, of the Unilateral Change 

Order shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 

provisions herein. 
 

17.1.5 Developer understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the reason for 

District authorization is so that District may have an opportunity to analyze the 

Work and decide whether the District shall proceed with the Change Order or 

alter the Project so that a change in Work becomes unnecessary. 
 

17.2 Architect Authority 
 

The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any 

adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, or an extension of the Contract Time, 

or a change that is inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. These 

changes shall be effected by written Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or 

by Architect’s response(s) to RFI(s), or by Architect’s Supplemental Instructions 

(“ASI”). 
 

17.3 Change Orders 
 

17.3.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared and issued by the 

District and/or the Architect and signed by the District (as authorized by the 

District’s Board of Education), Developer, the Architect, and approved by the 

Project Inspector (if necessary) and DSA (if necessary), stating their agreement 

regarding all of the following: 
 

17.3.1.1 A description of a change in the Work. 

 

17.3.1.2 The amount of the adjustment in the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price, if any; and 
 

17.3.1.3 The extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any. 

 

17.4 Proposed Change Order 
 

17.4.1 Definition of Proposed Change Order 

 

A Proposed Change Order (“PCO”) is a written request prepared by the 

Developer requesting that the District and the Architect issue a Change Order 

based upon a proposed change to the Work, to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

and/or to the Contract Time. 

 

17.4.2 Changes in Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

A PCO shall include breakdowns and backup documentation pursuant to the 

provisions herein and sufficient, in the District’s judgment, to validate any 

change in Guaranteed Maximum Price. In no case shall Developer or any of its 

Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional compensation for 

Change Order Work. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 48 OF 86  

17.4.3 Changes in Time 
 

A PCO shall also include any changes in time required to complete the Project. 

Any additional time requested shall not be the number of days to make the 

proposed change, but must be based upon the impact to the critical path in the 

Construction Schedule as defined in the Contract Documents. Developer shall 

justify the proposed change in time by submittal of a schedule analysis that 

accurately shows the actual impact, if known, or the estimated impact if 

unknown, of the change on the critical path of the Construction Schedule (“Time 

Impact Analysis”). If Developer fails to request a time extension in a PCO, 

including the Time Impact Analysis, and/or fails to comply with these 

Construction Provisions including, without limitation, Articles 15, 16, or 17, then 

Developer is thereafter precluded from requesting, and waives any right to 

request, an adjustment to the Contract Time or Contract Price relating to the 

subject matter of the PCO. In no case shall Developer or any of its 

Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional time for Change 

Order Work. A PCO that leaves the amount of time requested blank, or states 

that such time requested is “to be determined,” or otherwise not specifically 

identified, is not permitted and shall also constitute a waiver of any right to 

request additional time and/or claim a delay. 
 

17.4.4 Unknown and/or Unforeseen Conditions 
 

If there is an Allowance, then Developer must submit a Request for Allowance 

Expenditure Directive, including supporting documentation as described below, 

to receive authorization for the release of funds from the Allowance. Allowance 

Expenditure Directives shall be based on Developer’s costs, without overhead 

and profit, for products, delivery, installation, labor, insurance, payroll, taxes, 

bonding and equipment rental will be included in Allowance Expenditure 

Directive authorizing expenditure of funds from this Allowance. No overhead 

and profit shall be added to the Allowance Expenditure Directive. If cost of the 

unforeseen condition(s) exceed the Allowance, and Developer submits a PCO 

for amounts in excess of the Allowance requesting an increase in Guaranteed 

Maximum Price and/or Contract Time that is based at least partially on 

Developer’s assertion that Developer has encountered unknown and/or 

unforeseen condition(s) on the Project, then Developer shall base the PCO on 

provable information that, beyond a reasonable doubt and to the District’s 

satisfaction, demonstrates that the unknown and/or unforeseen condition(s) 

were actually unknown and/or unforeseen. If not, the District shall deny the 

PCO as unsubstantiated, and Developer shall complete the Project without any 

increase in Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time based on that 

PCO. 
 

17.4.5 Time to Submit Proposed Change Order 
 

Developer shall submit its PCO within five (5) working days of the date 

Developer discovers, or reasonably should have discovered, the circumstances 

giving rise to the PCO, unless additional time to submit a PCO is granted in 

writing by the District. Time is of the essence in Developer’s submission of PCOs 

so that the District can promptly investigate the basis for the PCO. Accordingly, 

if Developer fails to submit its PCO within this timeframe, Developer waives, 

releases, and discharges any right to assert or claim any 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 49 OF 86  

entitlement to an adjustment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or 

Contract Time based on circumstances giving rise to the PCO. 
 

17.4.6 Proposed Change Order Certification 
 

In submitting a PCO, Developer certifies and affirms that the cost and/or time 

request is submitted in good faith, that the cost and/or time request is accurate 

and in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, and 

Developer submits the cost and/or request for extension of time recognizing 

the significant civil penalties and treble damages which follow from making a 

false claim or presenting a false claim under Government Code section 12650 

et seq. 
 

It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 

includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, 

resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 

to the Project including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Developer is 

not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs. 

Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 
 

17.5 Format for Proposed Change Order 
 

17.5.1 The following format shall be used as applicable by the District and 

Developer (e.g. Change Orders, PCOs) to communicate proposed additions 

and/or deductions to the Contract, supported by attached documentation. Any 

spaces left blank will be deemed no change to cost or time. 
 

 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach suppliers’ invoice or itemized quantity 
and unit cost plus sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 

Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 

labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 

etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Subtotal   

(e) Add Overhead and Profit for any and all tiers of 

Subcontractors, the total not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of Item (d) 

  

(f) Subtotal   

(g) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 

(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(h) Subtotal   

(i) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 

exceed  percent (  %) of Item (h) 

  

(j) Subtotal   

(k) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    

percent (  %) of Item (j) 

  

(l) TOTAL   

    

(m) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted)    Calendar Days 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 50 OF 86  

 

 WORK PERFORMED BY DEVELOPER ADD DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus 

sales tax) 

  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully 

Burdened, and specify the hourly rate for each additional 
labor burden, for example, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, 

etc.) 

  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Add General Conditions Cost (if Time is Compensable) 

(attach supporting documentation) 

  

(e) Subtotal   

(f) Add Overhead and Profit for Developer, not to 

exceed  percent (  %) of Item (e) 

  

(g) Subtotal   

(h) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed    
percent (  %) of Item (g) 

  

(i) TOTAL   

   

(j) Time (zero unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted)    Calendar Days 
 

17.5.2 Labor 
 

Developer shall be compensated for the costs of labor actually and directly 

utilized in the performance of the Work. Such labor costs shall be the actual 

cost, use of any formulas (e.g. labor factors) is not allowed, not to exceed 

prevailing wage rates in the locality of the Site and shall be in the labor 

classification(s) necessary for the performance of the Work, fully Burdened. 

Labor costs shall exclude costs incurred by the Developer in preparing 

estimate(s) of the costs of the change in the Work, in the maintenance of 

records relating to the costs of the change in the Work, coordination and 

assembly of materials and information relating to the change in the Work or 

performance thereof, or the supervision and other overhead and general 

conditions costs associated with the change in the Work or performance 

thereof, including but not limited to the cost for the job superintendent. If 

applicable, District will pay Developer the reasonable costs for room and board, 

supported with appropriate backup documentation, without markup for profit 

or overhead as provided by U.S. General Services Administration per diem rates 

for California lodging, meals and incidentals, https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan- 

book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup. 
 

17.5.3 Materials 
 

Developer shall be compensated for the costs of materials necessarily and 

actually used or consumed in connection with the performance of the change 

in the Work. Costs of materials may include reasonable costs of transportation 

from a source closest to the Site of the Work and delivery to the Site. If 

discounts by material suppliers are available for materials necessarily used in 

the performance of the change in the Work, they shall be credited to the 

District. If materials necessarily used in the performance of the change in the 

Work are obtained from a supplier or source owned in whole or in part by 

Developer, compensation therefor shall not exceed the current wholesale price 

https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-lookup


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 51 OF 86  

for such materials. If, in the reasonable opinion of the District, the costs 

asserted by Developer for materials in connection with any change in the Work 

are excessive, or if Developer fails to provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 

costs of such materials from its supplier or vendor of the same, the costs of 

such materials and the District’s obligation to pay for the same shall be limited 

to the then lowest wholesale price at which similar materials are available in 

the quantities required to perform the change in the Work. The District may 

elect to furnish materials for the change in the Work, in which event Developer 

shall not be compensated for the costs of furnishing such materials or any 

mark-up thereon. 
 

17.5.4 Equipment 
 

As a precondition to the District’s duty to pay for Equipment rental or loading 

and transportation, Developer shall provide satisfactory evidence of the actual 

costs of Equipment from the supplier, vendor or rental agency of same. 

Developer shall be compensated for the actual cost of the necessary and direct 

use of Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work. Use of 

Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work shall be compensated 

in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. Rental time for Equipment moved by its 

own power shall include time required to move the Equipment to the site of the 

Work from the nearest available rental source of the same. If Equipment is not 

moved to the Site by its own power, Developer will be compensated for the 

loading and transportation costs in lieu of rental time. The foregoing 

notwithstanding, neither moving time or loading and transportation time shall 

be allowed if the Equipment is used for performance of any portion of the Work 

other than the change in the Work. Unless prior approval in writing is obtained 

by Developer from the Architect, the Project Inspector, the Construction 

Manager and the District, no costs or compensation shall be allowed for time 

while Construction Equipment is inoperative, idle or on standby, for any reason. 

Developer shall not be entitled to an allowance or any other compensation for 

Equipment or tools used in the performance of a change in the Work where the 

Equipment or tools have a replacement value of $500.00 or less. Equipment 

costs claimed by Developer in connection with the performance of any Work 

shall not exceed rental rates established by distributors or construction 

equipment rental agencies in the locality of the Site; any costs asserted which 

exceed such rental rates shall not be allowed or paid. Unless otherwise 

specifically approved in writing by the Architect, the Project Inspector, 

Construction Manager and the District, the allowable rate for the use of 

Equipment in connection with the Work shall constitute full compensation to 

Developer for the cost of rental, fuel, power, oil, lubrication, supplies, necessary 

attachments, repairs or maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, 

insurance, labor (exclusive of labor costs of the Equipment operator), and any 

and all other costs incurred by Developer incidental to the use of the Equipment. 
 

17.5.5 General Conditions Cost. 
 

The phrase “General Conditions Cost” shall mean, other than expressly limited 

or excluded herein, the costs of Developer during the construction phase, 

including but not limited to: payroll costs for project manager for Work 

conducted at the Site, payroll costs for the superintendent and full-time general 

foremen, workers not included as direct labor costs engaged in support 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 52 OF 86  

functions (e.g., loading/unloading, clean-up), costs of offices and temporary 

facilities including office materials, office supplies, office equipment, minor 

expenses, utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the Site, 

costs of consultants not in the direct employ of Developer or Subcontractors, 

and fees for permits and licenses. 
 

17.5.6 Overhead and Profit. 

 

The phrase “Overhead and Profit” shall include field and office supervisors and 

assistants, watchperson, use of small tools, consumable, insurance other than 

construction bonds and insurance required herein, and general conditions, field 

and home office expenses. 
 

17.6 Change Order Certification 
 

17.6.1 All Change Orders and PCOs must include the following certification by 

Developer, either in the form specifically or incorporated by this reference: 
 

The undersigned Developer approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, 

and to the Guaranteed Maximum Price specified for each item and as to the 

extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire Work as stated 

herein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, and service, and perform all 

work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration 

stated herein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 

Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and may be a 

violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 

12650 et seq. and U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. § 1001. It is understood that 

the changes herein to the Contract Documents shall only be effective when 

approved by the governing board of the District. 

 

It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly 

includes any and all of Developer’s costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, 

resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay 

to the Project, including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Developer is 

not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs. 

Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 

 

17.6.2 Accord and Satisfaction: Developer’s execution of any Change Order 

shall constitute a full accord and satisfaction, and release, of all Developer (and 

if applicable, Subcontractor) claims for additional time, money or other relief 

arising from or relating to the subject matter of the change including, without 

limitation, impacts of all types, cumulative impacts, inefficiency, overtime, 

delay and any other type of claim. 
 

17.7 Determination of Change Order Cost 

 

17.7.1 The amount of the increase or decrease in the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price from a Change Order, if any, shall be determined in one or more of the 

following ways as applicable to a specific situation and at the District’s 

discretion: 
 

17.7.1.1 District acceptance of a COR or PCO. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 53 OF 86  

17.7.1.2 By amounts contained in Developer’s schedule of values, if 

applicable. 

 

17.7.1.3 By agreement between District and Developer. 

 

17.8 Deductive Change Orders 
 

All deductive Change Order(s) must be prepared pursuant to the provisions herein. 

Where a portion of the Work is deleted from the Contract, the reasonable value of the 

deleted work less the value of any new work performed shall be considered the 

appropriate deduction. The value submitted on the Schedule of Values shall be used 

to calculate the credit amount unless the bid documentation is being held in escrow as 

part of the Contract Documents. Unit Prices, if any, may be used in District’s discretion 

in calculating reasonable value. If Developer offers a proposed amount for a deductive 

Change Order(s) for work performed, Developer shall include a credit for total profit 

and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work with the Change 

Order(s). If Subcontractor work is involved, Subcontractors shall also include a credit 

for total profit and overhead less proof of expended costs related to the deleted work 

with the Change Order(s). Any deviation from this provision shall not be allowed. 

 

17.9 Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s) 

 

If Developer’s Proposal includes proposal(s) for Alternate Bid Item(s), during 

Developer’s performance of the Work, the District may elect to add or delete any such 

Alternate Bid Item(s) if not included in the Contract at the time the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price is agreed upon. If the District elects to add or delete Alternate Bid 

Item(s) after Contract award, the cost or credit for such Alternate Bid Item(s) shall be 

as set forth in the Proposal unless the parties agree to a different price and the Contract 

Time shall be adjusted by the number of days allocated in the Contract Documents. If 

days are not allocated in the Contract Documents, the Contract Time shall be equitably 

adjusted. 
 

17.10 Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds 
 

For purposes of determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to 

the Work hereunder, all trade discounts, rebates, refunds, and all returns from the 

sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue and be credited to Developer, 

Developer shall make provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns 

may be secured, and the amount thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of Developer’s 

cost in determining the actual cost of construction for purposes of any change, 

addition, or omission in the Work as provided herein. 
 

17.11 Construction Change Directives 

 

17.11.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared and 

issued by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and 

signed by the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. The 

District may, as provided by law, by Construction Change Directive and without 

invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work consisting of additions, 

deletions, or other revisions. The adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price 

or Contract Time, if any, is subject to the provision of this section regarding 

Changes in the Work. If all or a portion of the Project is being funded by funds 

requiring approval by the State Allocation Board (“SAB”), these 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 54 OF 86  

revisions may be subject to compensation once approval of same is received 

and funded by the SAB, and funds are released by the Office of Public School 

Construction (“OPSC”). Any dispute as to the adjustment of the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price, if any, of the Construction Change Directive or timing of 

payment shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes 

provisions herein. 
 

17.11.2 The District may issue a Construction Change Directive in the absence 

of agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 
 

17.12 Force Account Directives 
 

17.12.1 When work, for which a definite price has not been agreed upon in 

advance, is to be paid for on a force account basis, all direct costs necessarily 

incurred and paid by Developer for labor, material, and equipment used in the 

performance of that Work, shall be subject to the approval of the District and 

compensation will be determined as set forth herein. 

 

17.12.2 District will issue a Force Account Directive to proceed with the Work 

on a force account basis, and a not-to-exceed budget will be established by the 

District. 
 

17.12.3 All requirements regarding direct cost for labor, labor burden, 

material, equipment, and markups on direct costs for overhead and profit 

described in this section shall apply to Force Account Directives. However, the 

District will only pay for actual costs verified in the field by the District or its 

authorized representative(s) on a daily basis. 
 

17.12.4 Developer shall be responsible for all costs related to the 

administration of Force Account Directives. The markup for overheard and profit 

for Developer modifications shall be full compensation to Developer to 

administer Force Account Directives, and Developer shall not be entitled to 

separately recover additional amounts for overhead and/or profit. 

 

17.12.5 Developer shall notify the District or its authorized representative(s) 

at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to proceeding with any of the force account 

work. Furthermore, Developer shall notify the District when it has consumed 

eighty percent (80%) of the budget, and shall not exceed the budget unless 

specifically authorized in writing by the District. Developer will not be 

compensated for force account work in the event that Developer fails to timely 

notify the District regarding the commencement of force account work, or 

exceeding the force account budget. 

 

17.12.6 Developer shall diligently proceed with the work, and on a daily basis, 

submit a daily force account report using the Daily Force Account Report form 

no later than 5:00 p.m. each day. The report shall contain a detailed itemization 

of the daily labor, material, and equipment used on the force account work 

only. The names of the individuals performing the force account work shall be 

included on the daily force account reports. The type and model of equipment 

shall be identified and listed. The IOR or District representative will review the 

information contained in the reports, and sign the reports no later than the next 

work day, and return a copy of the report to Developer for its records. The 

District will not sign, nor will Developer receive compensation 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 55 OF 86  

for, work the District cannot verify. Developer will provide a weekly force 

account summary indicating the status of each Force Account Directive in terms 

of percent complete of the not-to-exceed budget and the estimated percent 

complete of the work 
 

17.12.7 In the event Developer and the District reach a written agreement on 

a set cost for the work while the work is proceeding based on a Force Account 

Directive, Developer’s signed daily force account reports shall be discontinued 

and all previously signed reports shall be invalid. 
 

17.13 Price Request 
 

17.13.1 Definition of Price Request 
 

A Price Request is a written request prepared by the Architect or Construction 

Manager requesting Developer submit to the District, the Construction Manager 

and the Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change in the Work 

on the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Contract Time. 

 

17.13.2 Scope of Price Request 
 

A Price Request shall contain adequate information, including any necessary 

Drawings and Specifications, to enable Developer to provide the cost 

breakdowns required. Developer shall not be entitled to any additional 

compensation for preparing a response to a Price Request, whether ultimately 

accepted or not. 

 

17.14 Accounting Records 
 

With respect to portions of the Work performed by Change Orders and Construction 

Change Directives, Developer shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records 

satisfactory to the District, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports as provided 

in these General Conditions, which shall be available to the District on the same terms 

as any other books and records Developer is required to maintain under the Contract 

Documents. Such records shall include without limitation hourly records for Labor and 

Equipment and itemized records of materials and Equipment used that day in 

connection with the performance of any Work. All records maintained hereunder shall 

be subject to inspection, review and/or reproduction by the District, the Construction 

Manager and the Architect or the Project Inspector upon request. In the event that 

Developer fails or refuses, for any reason, to maintain or make available for inspection, 

review and/or reproduction such records, the District’s determination of the extent of 

adjustment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be final, conclusive, dispositive 

and binding upon Developer. 

 

17.15 Notice Required 
 

If Developer desires to make a claim for an increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

or any extension in the Contract Time for completion, it shall notify the District 

pursuant to the provisions herein, including the Article on Claims and Disputes. No 

claim shall be considered unless made in accordance with this subparagraph. 

Developer shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment may not 

have been agreed upon. Any change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or extension 

of the Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by a Change Order. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 56 OF 86  

17.16 Applicability to Subcontractors 
 

Any requirements under this Article shall be equally applicable to Change Orders or 

Construction Change Directives issued to Subcontractors by Developer to the extent 

required by the Contract Documents. 
 

17.17 Alteration to Change Order Language 
 

Developer shall not alter Change Orders or reserve time in Change Orders. Change 

Orders altered in violation of this provision, if in conflict with the terms set forth herein, 

shall be construed in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Developer shall 

execute finalized Change Orders and proceed under the provisions herein with proper 

notice. 

 

17.18 Failure of Developer to Execute Change Order 
 

Developer shall be in default of the Contract Documents if Developer fails to execute 

a Change Order when Developer agrees with the addition and/or deletion of the Work 

in that Change Order. 

 

18. Requests For Information 
 

18.1 Any Request for Information shall reference all applicable Contract 

Document(s), including Specification section(s), detail(s), page number(s), drawing 

number(s), and sheet number(s), etc. Developer shall make suggestions and 

interpretations of the issue raised by each Request for Information. A Request for 

Information cannot modify the Guaranteed Maximum Price, Contract Time, or the 

Contract Documents. 

 

18.2 Developer may be responsible for any costs incurred for professional services 

that District may deduct from any amounts owing to Developer, if a Request for 

Information requests an interpretation or decision of a matter where the information 

sought is equally available to the party making the request. District may deduct from 

and/or invoice Developer for professional services arising therefrom. 
 

19. Payments 
 

19.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 

 

As compensation for Developer’s construction of the Project, the District shall pay 

Developer pursuant to the terms of Exhibit C to the Facilities Lease. This is the total 

amount payable by the District to Developer for performance of the Work under the 

Contract. 

 

19.2 Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 
 

19.2.1 Procedure for Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments 
 

19.2.1.1 Not before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during 

the progress of the Work, Developer shall submit to the District and the 

Architect an itemized Application for Payment for operations completed 

in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be on 

a form approved by the District and shall be notarized, if required, and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 57 OF 86  

supported by the following or each portion thereof unless waived by the 

District in writing: 
 

19.2.1.1.1 The amount paid to the date of the Application for 

Payment to Developer, to all its Subcontractors, and all others 

furnishing labor, material, or equipment under the Contract 

Documents. 
 

19.2.1.1.2 The amount being requested under the Application 

for Payment by Developer on its own behalf and separately 

stating the amount requested on behalf of each of the 

Subcontractors and all others furnishing labor, material, and 

equipment under the Contract Documents. 
 

19.2.1.1.3 The balance that will be due to each of such entities 

after said payment is made. 
 

19.2.1.1.4 A certification that the As-Built Drawings and 

annotated Specifications are current. 
 

19.2.1.1.5 Itemized breakdown of work done for the purpose of 

requesting partial payment. 
 

19.2.1.1.6 An updated and acceptable construction schedule in 

conformance with the provisions herein. 
 

19.2.1.1.7 The additions to and subtractions from the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time. 

 

19.2.1.1.8 A total of the retentions held. 
 

19.2.1.1.9 Material invoices, evidence of equipment purchases, 

rentals, and other support and details of cost as the District may 

require from time to time. 
 

19.2.1.1.10 The percentage of completion of Developer’s Work 

by line item. 

 

19.2.1.1.11 Schedule of Values updated from the preceding 

Application for Payment. 
 

19.2.1.1.12 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver 

and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with 

Civil Code section 8132 from Developer and each subcontractor 

of any tier and supplier to be paid from the current Tenant 

Improvement Payment. 
 

19.2.1.1.13 A duly completed and executed unconditional 

waiver and release upon Tenant Improvement Payment 

compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from Developer and each 

subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the 

previous Tenant Improvement Payment submitted 60 days prior; 

and 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 58 OF 86  

19.2.1.1.14 A certification by Developer of the following: 
 

Developer warrants title to all Work performed as of the date of 

this payment application and that all such Work has been 

completed in accordance with the Contract Documents for the 

Project. Developer further warrants that all Work performed as 

of the date of this payment application is free and clear of liens, 

claims, security interests, or encumbrances in favor of 

Developer, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, 

workers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason 

of having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to 

the Work, except those of which the District has been informed. 

Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 

Developer knows are false are at the sole risk of Developer and 

may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under 

Government Code section 12650 et seq. 
 

19.2.1.1.15 Developer shall be subject to the False Claims Act 

set forth in Government Code section 12650 et seq. for 

information provided with any Application for Tenant 

Improvement Payments. 

 

19.2.1.1.16 All remaining certified payroll records (“CPR(s)”) 

for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 

employed by Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection 

with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment. As 

indicated herein, the District shall not make any payment to 

Developer until: 
 

19.2.1.1.16.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 

provide electronic CPRs directly to the DIR on no less than 

every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 

30 days after the final day of Work performed on the 

Project for any journeyman, apprentice, worker or other 

employee was employed in connection with the Work, or 

within ten (10) days of any request by the District or the 

DIR to the requesting entity; and 
 

19.2.1.1.16.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its 

Subcontractor(s) providing CPRs in a timely manner may 

directly delay Developer’s payment. 

 

19.2.1.1.17 Applications received after June 20th will not be 

paid until the second week of July and applications received after 

December 12th will not be paid until the first week of January. 
 

19.2.2 Prerequisites for Tenant Improvement Payments 
 

19.2.2.1 First Payment Request 
 

The following items, if applicable, must be completed before the District 

will accept and/or process Developer's first payment request: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 59 OF 86  

19.2.2.1.1 Installation of the Project sign. 
 

19.2.2.1.2 Installation of field office. 

 

19.2.2.1.3 Installation of temporary facilities and fencing. 
 

19.2.2.1.4 Schedule of Values. 
 

19.2.2.1.5 Developer’s Preliminary Construction Schedule for 

the first ninety (90) days. 
 

19.2.2.1.6 Schedule of unit prices, if applicable. 
 

19.2.2.1.7 Submittal Schedule. 
 

19.2.2.1.8 Receipt by Architect of all submittals due as of the 

date of the payment application. 
 

19.2.2.1.9 List of Subcontractors, with names, license numbers, 

telephone numbers, and Scope of Work. 
 

19.2.2.1.10 All bonds and insurance endorsements; and 

 

19.2.2.1.11 Resumes of Developer’s project manager, and if 

applicable, job site secretary, record documents recorder, and 

job site superintendent. 
 

19.2.3 Subsequent Payment Requests 

 

The District will not process subsequent payment requests until and unless 

submittals and Shop Drawings necessary to maintain the Project schedule have 

been submitted to the Architect. 
 

19.2.4 No Waiver of Criteria 
 

Any payments made to Developer where criteria set forth herein have not been 

met shall not constitute a waiver of said criteria by District. Instead, such 

payment shall be construed as a good faith effort by District to resolve 

differences so Developer may pay its Subcontractors and suppliers. Developer 

agrees that failure to submit such items may constitute a breach of contract by 

Developer and may subject Developer to termination. 
 

19.3 District’s Approval of Application for Payment 

 

19.3.1 Upon receipt of an Application for Payment, The District shall act in 

accordance with both of the following: 
 

19.3.1.1 Each Application for Payment shall be reviewed by the District 

as soon as practicable after receipt for the purpose of determining that 

the Application for Payment is a proper Application for Payment. 
 

19.3.1.2 Any Application for Payment determined not to be a proper 

Application for Payment suitable for payment shall be returned to 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 60 OF 86  

Developer as soon as practicable, but not later than seven (7) days, 

after receipt. An Application for Payment returned pursuant to this 

paragraph shall be accompanied by a document setting forth in writing 

the reasons why the Application for Payment is not proper. The number 

of days available to the District to make a payment without incurring 

interest pursuant to this section shall be reduced by the number of days 

by which the District exceeds this seven-day return requirement. 
 

19.3.2 An Application for Payment shall be considered properly executed if 

funds are available for payment of the Application for Payment, and payment 

is not delayed due to an audit inquiry by the financial officer of the District. 
 

19.3.3 District’s review of the Developer’s Application for Payment will be 

based on the District’s and the Architect’s observations at the Site and the data 

comprising the Application for Payment that the Work has progressed to the 

point indicated and that, to the best of the District’s and the Architect’s 

knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance 

with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to: 
 

19.3.3.1 Observation of the Work for general conformance with the 

Contract Documents. 
 

19.3.3.2 Results of subsequent tests and inspections. 
 

19.3.3.3 Minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable 

prior to completion; and 
 

19.3.3.4 Specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 

 

19.3.4 District’s approval of the certified Application for Payment shall be 

based on Developer complying with all requirements for a fully complete and 

valid certified Application for Payment. 
 

19.3.5 Payments to Developer 

 

19.3.5.1 Within thirty (30) days after approval of the Application for 

Payment, Developer shall be paid a sum equal to ninety-five percent 

(95%), of the value of the Tenant Improvement Payment (as verified by 

Architect and Inspector and certified by Developer) up to the last day of 

the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments and 

amount to be withheld. The value of the Work completed shall be 

Developer’s best estimate. No inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall 

operate to release Developer, or any Surety upon any bond, from 

damages arising from such Work, or from the District's right to enforce 

each and every provision of the Contract Documents, and the District 

shall have the right subsequently to correct any error made in any 

estimate for payment. 

 

19.3.5.2 Developer may not be entitled to have payment requests 

processed, or may be entitled to have only partial payment made for 

Work performed, so long as any direction given by the District 

concerning the Work, or any portion thereof, remains incomplete. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 61 OF 86  

19.3.6 No Waiver 
 

No payment by District hereunder shall be interpreted so as to imply that 

District has inspected, approved, or accepted any part of the Work. 

Notwithstanding any payment, the District may enforce each and every 

provision of this Contract. The District may correct or require correction of any 

error subsequent to any payment 

 

19.3.7 Warranty of Title 
 

19.3.7.1 If a lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice of any 

nature should at any time be filed against the Work or any District 

property, by any entity that has supplied material or services at the 

request of Developer, Developer and Developer’s Surety shall promptly, 

on demand by District and at Developer’s and Surety’s own expense, 

take any and all action necessary to cause any such lien or a claim based 

on a stop payment notice to be released or discharged immediately 

therefrom. 
 

19.3.7.2 If Developer fails to furnish to the District within ten (10) 

calendar days after demand by the District satisfactory evidence that a 

lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice has been released, 

discharged, or secured, the District may discharge such indebtedness 

and deduct the amount required therefor, together with any and all 

losses, costs, damages, and attorney’s fees and expenses incurred or 

suffered by District from any sum payable to Developer under the 

Contract. 

 

19.4 Decisions to Withhold Payment 

 

19.4.1 Reasons to Withhold Payment 
 

The District shall withhold payment in whole, or in part, as required by statute. 

In addition, the District may withhold payment in whole, or in part, to the extent 

reasonably necessary to protect the District if, in the District's opinion, the 

representations to the District required herein cannot be made. Payment, in 

whole, or in part, will be withheld based on the need to protect the District from 

loss because of, but not limited to, any of the following: 
 

19.4.1.1 Defective Work not remedied within FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours 

of written notice to Developer. 
 

19.4.1.2 Stop Payment Notices or other liens served upon the District 

as a result of the Contract. 

 

19.4.1.3 Failure to comply with the requirements of Public Contract 

Code section 2600 et seq. (“Skilled and Trained Workforce 

Requirements”). 
 

19.4.1.4 Liquidated damages assessed against Developer. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 62 OF 86  

19.4.1.5 Reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the 

unpaid balance of the Guaranteed Maximum Price or by the Contract 

Time. 
 

19.4.1.6 Damage to the District or other contractor(s). 
 

19.4.1.7 Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by Developer. 
 

19.4.1.8 Failure to store and properly secure materials. 

 

19.4.1.9 Failure of Developer to submit, on a timely basis, proper, 

sufficient, and acceptable documentation required by the Contract 

Documents, including, without limitation, a Construction Schedule, 

Schedule of Submittals, Schedule of Values, Monthly Progress 

Schedules, Shop Drawings, Product Data and samples, Proposed 

product lists, executed Change Orders, and/or verified reports. 
 

19.4.1.10 Failure of Developer to maintain As-Built Drawings. 
 

19.4.1.11 Erroneous estimates by Developer of the value of the Work 

performed, or other false statements in an Application for Payment. 
 

19.4.1.12 Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents. 

 

19.4.1.13 Failure of Developer to prosecute the Work in a timely 

manner in compliance with the Construction Schedule, established 

progress schedules, and/or completion dates. 
 

19.4.1.14 Failure to provide acceptable electronic certified payroll 

records, as required by the Labor Code, by these Contract Documents 

or by written request for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other 

employee employed by Developer and/or by each Subcontractor in 

connection with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment 

or if payroll records are delinquent or inadequate. 
 

19.4.1.15 Failure to properly pay prevailing wages as required in Labor 

Code section 1720 et seq., failure to comply with any other Labor Code 

requirements, and/or failure to comply with labor compliance monitoring 

and enforcement by the DIR. 
 

19.4.1.16 Allowing an unregistered subcontractor, as described in 

Labor Code section 1725.5, to engage in the performance of any work 

under this Contract. 
 

19.4.1.17 Failure to comply with any, if applicable federal 

requirements regarding minimum wages, withholding, payrolls and 

basic records, apprentice and trainee employment requirements, equal 

employment opportunity requirements, Copeland Act requirements, 

Davis-Bacon Act and related requirements, Contract Work Hours and 

Safety Standards Act requirements. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 63 OF 86  

19.4.1.18 Failure to properly maintain or clean up the Site. 
 

19.4.1.19 Failure to timely indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the 

District. 
 

19.4.1.20 Failure to perform any implementation and/or monitoring 

required by the General Permit, including without limitation any SWPPP 

for the Project and/or the imposition of any penalties or fines therefore 

whether imposed on the District or Developer. 
 

19.4.1.21 Any payments due to the District, including but not limited 

to payments for failed tests, utilities changes, or permits. 
 

19.4.1.22 Failure to pay any royalty, license or similar fees. 

 

19.4.1.23 Failure to pay Subcontractor(s) or supplier(s) as required by 

law and Developer’s subcontract agreement and by the Contract 

Documents; and 
 

19.4.1.24 Developer is otherwise in breach, default, or in substantial 

violation of any provision of the Contract Documents. 
 

19.4.2 Reallocation of Withheld Amounts 

 

19.4.2.1 After prior written notice to Developer with details regarding 

the District’s proposed application of withheld amounts, District may, in 

its discretion, apply any withheld amount to pay outstanding claims or 

obligations as defined herein. In so doing, District shall make such 

payments on behalf of Developer. If any payment is so made by District, 

then that amount shall be considered a payment made under the 

Contract Documents by District to Developer and District shall not be 

liable to Developer for any payment made in good faith. These payments 

may be made without prior judicial determination of claim or obligation. 

District will render Developer an accounting of funds disbursed on behalf 

of Developer. 

 

19.4.2.2 If Developer defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in 

accordance with the Contract Documents or fails to perform any 

provision thereof, District may, after FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written 

notice to Developer and opportunity to commence and pursue cure of 

default, and, without prejudice to any other remedy, make good such 

deficiencies. The District shall adjust the total Guaranteed Maximum 

Price by reducing the amount thereof by the cost of making good such 

deficiencies. If District deems it inexpedient to correct Work that is 

damaged, defective, or not done in accordance with the provisions of 

the Contract Documents, an equitable reduction in the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price (up to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the 

estimated reasonable value of the nonconforming Work) shall be made 

therefor. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 64 OF 86  

19.4.3 Payment After Cure 
 

When Developer removes the grounds for declining approval, payment shall be 

made for amounts withheld because of them. No interest shall be paid on any 

retainage or amounts withheld due to the failure of Developer to perform in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 

19.5 Subcontractor Payments 

 

19.5.1 Payments to Subcontractors 
 

No later than seven (7) days after receipt of any Tenant Improvement Payment, 

or pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7108.5 and Public 

Contract Code section 7107, Developer shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of 

the amount paid to Developer on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of the 

Work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled. Developer shall, by 

appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to 

make payments to its Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 
 

19.5.2 No Obligation of District for Subcontractor Payment 
 

The District shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of, money 

to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. 
 

19.5.3 Joint Checks 
 

District shall have the right in its sole discretion, if necessary for the protection 

of the District, to issue joint checks made payable to Developer and 

Subcontractors and/or material or equipment suppliers. The joint check payees 

shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of funds included as 

part of any such joint payment. In no event shall any joint check payment be 

construed to create any contract between the District and a Subcontractor of 

any tier, or a material or equipment supplier, or any obligation from the District 

to such Subcontractor or a material or equipment supplier or rights in such 

Subcontractor against the District. 
 

20. Completion of the Work 
 

20.1 Completion 
 

20.1.1 District will accept completion of Project and have the Notice of 

Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been completed to the 

satisfaction of District. 

 

20.1.2 The Work may only be accepted as complete by action of the governing 

board of the District. 
 

20.1.3 District, at its sole option, may accept completion of Project and have 

the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been 

completed to the satisfaction of District, except for minor corrective items, as 

distinguished from incomplete items. If Developer fails to complete all minor 

corrective items within fifteen (15) days after the date of the District’s 

acceptance of completion, District shall withhold from the final payment one 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 65 OF 86  

hundred fifty percent (150%) of an estimate of the amount sufficient to 

complete the corrective items, as reasonably determined by District, until the 

item(s) are completed. 
 

20.1.4 At the end of the fifteen (15) day period, if there are any items 

remaining to be corrected, District may elect to proceed as provided herein 

related to adjustments to Guaranteed Maximum Price, and/or District’s right to 

perform the Work of Developer. 
 

20.2 Close-Out/Certification Procedures 
 

20.2.1 Punch List 
 

Developer shall notify the Architect via the Construction Manager when 

Developer considers the Work complete. Upon notification, Architect will 

prepare a list of minor items to be completed or corrected (“Punch List”). 

Developer and/or its Subcontractors shall proceed promptly to complete and 

correct items on the Punch List. Failure to include an item on Punch List does 

not alter the responsibility of Developer to complete all Work in accordance with 

the Contract Documents. 
 

20.2.2 Close-Out/Certification Requirements 
 

20.2.2.1 Utility Connections 

 

Buildings shall be connected to water, gas, sewer, electric, phone, and 

internet services, complete and ready for use. Service connections shall 

be made and existing services reconnected. 
 

20.2.2.2 As-Builts/Record Drawings and Record Specifications 
 

20.2.2.2.1 Developer shall provide exact “as-built” drawings of 

the Work upon completion of the Project as indicated in the 

Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 

Specifications (“As-Built Drawings”) as a condition precedent to 

approval of final payment. 
 

20.2.2.2.2 Developer is liable and responsible for any and all 

inaccuracies in the As-Built Drawings, even if inaccuracies 

become evident at a future date. 
 

20.2.2.2.3 Upon completion of the Work and as a condition 

precedent to approval of final payment, Developer shall obtain 

the Inspector’s approval of the corrected prints and deliver the 

same to Architect via the Construction Manager in a form 

acceptable to the Architect as part of closeout. 

 

20.2.2.3 Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable 
 

Developer shall submit to District all electric and hard copy records 

required by the Construction Storm Water Permit, if applicable, within 

seven (7) days of Completion of the Project. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 66 OF 86  

20.2.3 Maintenance Manuals 
 

Developer shall prepare all operation and maintenance manuals and date as 

indicated in the Specifications. 
 

20.2.4 Source Programming 
 

Developer shall provide all source programming for all items in the Project. 
 

20.2.5 Verified Reports 

 

Developer shall completely and accurately fill out and file forms DSA 6-C or 

DSA 152 (or most current version applicable at the time the Work is 

performed), as appropriate. Refer to section 4-336 and section 4-343 of Part 

1, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 
 

20.3 Final Inspection 

 

20.3.1 Developer shall comply with Punch List procedures as provided herein, 

and maintain the presence of its District-approved project superintendent and 

project manager until the Punch List is complete to ensure proper and timely 

completion of the Punch List. Under no circumstances shall Developer 

demobilize its forces prior to completion of the Punch List without District’s prior 

written approval. Upon receipt of Developer’s written notice to the Construction 

Manager that all of the Punch List items have been fully completed and the 

Work is ready for final inspection and District acceptance, Architect and Project 

Inspector will inspect the Work and shall submit to Developer and District a 

final inspection report noting the Work, if any, required in order to complete in 

accordance with the Contract Documents. Absent unusual circumstances, this 

report shall consist of the Punch List items not yet satisfactorily completed. 
 

20.3.2 Upon Developer’s completion of all items on the Punch List and any 

other uncompleted portions of the Work, Developer shall notify the District and 

Architect, who shall again inspect such Work. If the Architect finds the Work 

complete and acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Architect will 

notify Developer, who shall then jointly submit to the Architect and the District 

its final Application for Payment. 
 

20.3.3 Final Inspection Requirements 
 

20.3.3.1 Before calling for final inspection, Developer shall determine 

that the following have been performed: 
 

20.3.3.1.1 The Work has been completed. 
 

20.3.3.1.2 All life safety items are completed and in working 

order. 

 

20.3.3.1.3 Mechanical and electrical Work, including, without 

limitation,, security system, data, fire alarm, are complete and 

tested, fixtures are in place, connected, and ready for tryout. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 67 OF 86  

20.3.3.1.4 Electrical circuits scheduled in panels and disconnect 

switches labeled. 
 

20.3.3.1.5 Painting and special finishes complete. 
 

20.3.3.1.6 Doors complete with hardware, cleaned of protective 

film, relieved of sticking or binding, and in working order. 
 

20.3.3.1.7 Tops and bottoms of doors sealed. 

 

20.3.3.1.8 Floors waxed and polished as specified. 
 

20.3.3.1.9 Broken glass replaced and glass cleaned. 
 

20.3.3.1.10 Grounds cleared of Developer’s equipment, raked 

clean of debris, and trash removed from Site. 
 

20.3.3.1.11 Work cleaned, free of stains, scratches, and other 

foreign matter, damaged and broken material replaced. 
 

20.3.3.1.12 Finished and decorative work shall have marks, 

dirt, and superfluous labels removed. 
 

20.3.3.1.13 Final cleanup, as provided herein. 

 

20.4 Costs of Multiple Inspections 
 

More than two (2) requests of the District to make a final inspection shall be considered 

an additional service of District, Architect, Construction Manager, and/or Project 

Inspector, and all subsequent costs will be invoiced to Developer and if funds are 

available, withheld from remaining payments. 

 

20.5 Partial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion 
 

20.5.1 District’s Rights to Occupancy 
 

The District may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of 

the Work at any stage, and such occupancy shall not constitute the District’s 

Final Acceptance of any part of the Work. Neither the District’s Final 

Acceptance, the making of Final Payment, any provision in Contract 

Documents, nor the use or occupancy of the Work, in whole or in part, by 

District shall constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract 

Documents nor relieve Developer or Developer’s Performance Bond Surety from 

liability with respect to any warranties or responsibility for faulty or defective 

Work or materials, equipment and workmanship incorporated therein. The 

District and Developer shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned to 

each of them for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to 

the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the 

commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. Any dispute 

as to responsibilities shall be resolved pursuant to the Claims and Disputes 

provisions herein, with the added provision that during the dispute process, the 

District shall have the right to occupy or use any portion of the Work that it 

needs or desires to use. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 68 OF 86  

20.5.2 Inspection Prior to Occupancy or Use 
 

Immediately prior to partial occupancy or use, the District, Developer, and the 

Architect shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to 

be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 
 

20.5.3 No Waiver 
 

Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial or entire occupancy or use of a portion 

or portions of the Work shall not constitute beneficial occupancy or District’s 

acceptance of the Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract 

Documents. 
 

21. Final Payment and Retention 
 

21.1 Final Payment 
 

Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment from Developer, the Architect will notify 

the District whether the Work is complete so that joint inspection of the Work can be 

scheduled. Thereafter, the District shall jointly inspect the Work and either accept the 

Work as complete or notify the Architect and Developer in writing of reasons why the 

Work is not complete. Upon District’s acceptance of the Work of Developer as fully 

complete (that, absent unusual circumstances, will occur when the Punch List items 

have been satisfactorily completed), the District shall record a Notice of Completion 

with the County Recorder, and Developer shall, upon receipt of final payment from the 

District, pay the amount due Subcontractors. 
 

21.2 Prerequisites for Final Payment 

 

The following conditions must be fulfilled prior to Final Payment: 
 

21.2.1 A full release of all Stop Payment Notices served in connection with the 

Work shall be submitted by Developer. 
 

21.2.2 A duly completed and executed conditional waiver and release upon 

final payment compliant with Civil Code section 8136 from each subcontractor 

of any tier and supplier to be paid from the final Tenant Improvement Payment. 
 

21.2.3 A duly completed and executed unconditional waiver and release upon 

Tenant Improvement Payment compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from 

each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the previous 

Tenant Improvement Payment(s). 

 

21.2.4 A duly completed and executed “AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY 

AND ALL CLAIMS” from Developer. 
 

21.2.5 Developer shall have made all corrections to the Work that are required 

to remedy any defects therein, to obtain compliance with the Contract 

Documents or any requirements of applicable codes and ordinances, or to fulfill 

any of the orders or directions of District required under the Contract 

Documents. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 69 OF 86  

21.2.6 Each Subcontractor shall have delivered to Developer all written 

guarantees, warranties, applications, and bonds required by the Contract 

Documents for its portion of the Work. 
 

21.2.7 Developer must have completed all requirements set forth under 

“Close-Out/Certification Procedures,” including, without limitation, submission 

of an approved set of complete Record Drawings. 
 

21.2.8 Architect shall have issued its written approval that final payment can 

be made. 
 

21.2.9 Developer shall have delivered to the District all manuals and materials 

required by the Contract Documents, which must be approved by the District. 

 

21.2.10 Developer shall have completed final clean up as provided herein. 
 

21.3 Retention 
 

21.3.1 The retention, less any amounts disputed by the District or that the 

District has the right to withhold pursuant to provisions herein, shall be paid: 
 

21.3.1.1 After approval by the District of the Architect of the 

Application and Certificate of Payment. 
 

21.3.1.2 After the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein. 
 

21.3.1.3 No less than forty-five (45) days after the recording of the 

Notice of Completion by District; and 
 

21.3.1.4 After receipt of a duly completed and executed unconditional 

waiver and release upon Final Payment compliant with Civil Code section 

8138 from each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid 

from the Final Payment. 
 

21.3.2 No interest shall be paid on any retention, or on any amounts withheld 

due to a failure of Developer to perform, in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of the Contract Documents, except as provided to the contrary in 

any Escrow Agreement between the District and Developer pursuant to Public 

Contract Code section 22300. 
 

21.4 Substitution of Securities 
 

The District will permit the substitution of securities in accordance with the provisions 

of Public Contract Code section 22300. 
 

22. Uncovering of Work 
 

If a portion of the Work is covered without Inspector or Architect approval or not in compliance 

with the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the District, the Project 

Inspector, or the Architect, be uncovered for the Project Inspector’s or the Architect’s 

observation and be corrected, replaced and/or recovered at Developer’s expense without 

change in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 70 OF 86  

23. Nonconforming Work and Correction of Work 
 

23.1 Nonconforming Work 

 

23.1.1 Developer shall promptly remove from Premises all Work identified by 

District as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether incorporated 

or not. Developer shall promptly replace and re-execute its own Work to comply 

with the Contract Documents without additional expense to the District and shall 

bear the expense of making good all work of other contractors destroyed or 

damaged by any removal or replacement pursuant hereto and/or any delays to 

the District or other contractors caused thereby. 
 

23.1.2 If Developer does not commence to remove Work that District has 

identified as failing to conform to the Contract Documents within a reasonable 

time, not to exceed FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours after written notice and complete 

removal of work within a reasonable time, District may remove it and may store 

any material at Developer’s expense. If Developer does not pay expense(s) of 

that removal within ten (10) days’ time thereafter, District may, upon ten (10) 

days’ written notice, sell any material at auction or at private sale and shall 

deduct all costs and expenses incurred by the District and/or District may 

withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 
 

23.2 Correction of Work 
 

23.2.1 Correction of Rejected Work 

 

Pursuant to the notice provisions herein, Developer shall promptly correct the 

Work rejected by the District, the Architect, or the Project Inspector as failing 

to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed 

before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or 

completed. Developer shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, including 

additional testing, inspections, and compensation for the Inspector’s or the 

Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby. 
 

23.2.2 One-Year Warranty Corrections 

 

If, within one (1) year after the date of Completion of the Work or a designated 

portion thereof, or after the date for commencement of warranties established 

hereunder, or by the terms of an applicable special warranty required by the 

Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the 

requirements of the Contract Documents, Developer shall correct it promptly 

after receipt of written notice from the District to do so. This period of one (1) 

year shall be extended with respect to portions of the Work first performed 

after Completion by the period of time between Completion and the actual 

performance of the Work. This obligation hereunder shall survive District’s 

acceptance of the Work under the Contract Documents and termination of the 

Contract Documents. The District shall give such notice promptly after 

discovery of the condition. 
 

23.3 District's Right to Perform Work 
 

23.3.1 If Developer should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to 

perform any provisions of the Contract Documents, the District, after providing 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 71 OF 86  

FORTY-EIGHT (48) hours’ written notice and an opportunity to cure the failure, 

to Developer, may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make 

good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then 

or thereafter due Developer. 
 

23.3.2 If it is found at any time, before or after completion of the Work, that 

Developer has varied from the Drawings and/or Specifications, including, but 

not limited to, variation in material, quality, form, or finish, or in the amount 

or value of the materials and labor used, District may require at its option: 
 

23.3.2.1 That all such improper Work be removed, remade or 

replaced, and all work disturbed by these changes be made good by 

Developer at no additional cost to the District. 
 

23.3.2.2 That the District deduct from any amount due Developer the 

sum of money equivalent to the difference in value between the work 

performed and that called for by the Drawings and Specifications; or 
 

23.3.2.3 That the District exercise any other remedy it may have at 

law or under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the 

District hiring its own forces or another contractor to replace Developer’s 

nonconforming Work, in which case the District shall either issue a 

deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice 

Developer for the cost of that work. Developer shall pay any invoices 

within thirty (30) days of receipt of same or District may withhold those 

amounts from payment(s) to Developer. 
 

24. Termination And Suspension 

 

The Parties’ rights to terminate the Project are as indicated in the Facilities Lease. In the event 

of a termination of the Facilities Lease and notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract 

Documents, the Surety shall remain liable to all obligees under the Payment Bond and to the 

District under the Performance Bond for any claim related to the Project. 

 

25. Claims Process 
 

25.1 Obligation to File Claims for Disputed Work 
 

25.1.1 Should Developer otherwise seek extra time or compensation for any 

reason whatsoever (“Disputed Work”), then Developer shall first follow 

procedures set forth in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, 

Articles 15, 16 and 17, all of which are conditions precedent to submitting a 

Claim pursuant to Article 25. A Notice of Delay or Proposed Change Order 

are less formal procedures that proceed the formal claim and do not 

constitute a Claim. A Claim also does not include correspondence, RFIs, 

vouchers, invoices, progress payment applications, or other routine or 

authorized form of requests for progress payments in compliance with the 

Contract. If a dispute remains, then Developer shall give written notice to 

District that expressly invokes this Article 25 within the time limits set forth 

herein. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 72 OF 86  

25.1.2 Developer’s sole and exclusive remedy for Disputed Work is to file a 

written claim setting forth Developer’s position as required herein within the 

time limits set forth herein. 
 

25.2 Duty to Perform during Claim Process 
 

Developer and its subcontractors shall continue to perform its Work under the 

Contract, including the Disputed Work, and shall not cause a delay of the Work during 

any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or arbitration proceeding, except by written 

agreement by the District. 
 

25.3 Definition of Claim 
 

25.3.1 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the term “Claim” means 

a separate demand by Developer sent by registered mail or certified mail with 

return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 
 

25.3.1.1 A time extension, including without limitation, for relief of 

damages or penalties for delay assessed by the District under the 

Contract; 
 

25.3.1.2 Payment by the District of money or damages arising from 

work done by, or on behalf of, Developer pursuant to the Contract and 

payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which 

Developer is not otherwise entitled to; or 
 

25.3.1.3 An amount of payment disputed by the District. 

 

25.4 Claims Presentation 
 

25.4.1 Form and Contents of Claim 
 

25.4.1.1 If Developer intends to submit a Claim for an increase in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price and/or Contract Time for any reason 

including, without limitation, the acts of District or its agents, Developer 

shall, within thirty (30) days after the event giving rise to the Claim, 

give notice of the Claim (“Notice of Potential Claim”) in writing, 

specifically identifying Developer is invoking this Article 25 Claims 

Presentation. The Notice of Potential Claim shall provide Developer’s 

preliminary request for an adjustment to the Contract Price and/or 

Contract Time, with a description of the grounds therefore. 
 

25.4.1.2 Within thirty (30) days after serving the written Notice of 

Potential Claim, Developer shall provide a Claim including an itemized 

statement of the details and amounts of its Claim for any increase in the 

Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time, as provided below, 

including a Time Impact Analysis and any and all other documentation 

substantiating Developer’s claimed damages: 
 

25.4.1.2.1 The issues, events, conditions, circumstances and/or 

causes giving rise to the dispute; 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 73 OF 86  

25.4.1.2.2 Citation to provisions in the Contract Documents, 

statute sections, and/or case law entitling Developer to an 

increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time; 
 

25.4.1.2.3 The pertinent dates and/or durations and actual 

and/or anticipated effects on the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 

Contract Schedule milestones and/or Contract Time 

adjustments; 
 

25.4.1.2.4 The Time Impact Analysis of all time delays that 

shows actual time impact on the critical path; and 
 

25.4.1.2.5 The line-item costs for labor, material, and/or 

equipment, if applicable, for all cost impacts priced like a change 

order according to Article 17 and must be updated monthly as to 

cost and entitlement if a continuing claim. 

 

25.4.1.3 The Claim shall include the following certification by 

Developer: 
 

25.4.1.3.1 The undersigned Developer certifies under penalty of 

perjury that the attached dispute is made in good faith; that the 

supporting data is accurate and complete to the best of my 

knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately 

reflects the adjustment for which Developer believes the District 

is liable; and that I am duly authorized to certify the claim on 

behalf of Developer. 
 

25.4.1.3.2 Furthermore, Developer understands that the value 

of the attached dispute expressly includes any and all of 

Developer’s costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting 

from the Work performed on the Project, additional time required 

on the Project and/or resulting from delay to the Project 

including, without limitation, cumulative impacts. Any costs, 

expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed 

waived. 
 

25.4.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation and 

submission of a Claim. 
 

25.4.3 Failure to timely submit a Claim and the requisite supporting 

documentation shall constitute a waiver of Developer’s claim(s) against the 

District and Developer’s Claim(s) for compensation or an extension of time shall 

be deemed waived, released, and discharged as to any entitlement for 

adjustment to Contract Price and/or Contract Time. 
 

25.5 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204 

 

Developer may request to waive the claims procedure under Public Contract Code 

section 9204 and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding 

arbitration. If Developer chooses to proceed, Developer shall comply with the following 

steps: 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 74 OF 86  

25.5.1 STEP 1: 
 

25.5.1.1 Upon receipt of a Claim by registered or certified mail, return 

receipt requested, including the documents necessary to substantiate it, 

the District shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and, within a 

period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide Developer a written 

statement identifying what portion of the Claim is disputed and what 

portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a Claim, the District and 

Developer may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period to provide 

a written statement. If the District needs approval from its governing 

body to provide Developer a written statement identifying the disputed 

portion and the undisputed portion of the Claim, and the governing body 

does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to 

extension of time following receipt of Claim sent by registered mail or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, the District shall have up to 

three (3) days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the 

governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide 

Developer a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 

undisputed portion. 
 

25.5.1.1.1 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the 

Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the 

District issues its written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely 

manner as required by this section, section 25.4, shall bear 

interest at seven percent (7%) per annum. 
 

25.5.1.2 Upon receipt of a Claim, the parties may mutually agree to 

waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement 

of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable. In this instance, 

District and Developer must comply with the sections below regarding 

Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. and Government Code Claim 

Act Claims. 
 

25.5.1.3 If the District fails to issue a written statement, or to 

otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, this shall result in 

the Claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied 

by reason of the District’s failure to have responded to a claim, or its 

failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not 

constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the claim or 

the responsibility or qualifications of Developer. 

 

25.5.2 STEP 2: 
 

25.5.2.1 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or if the 

District fails to respond to a Claim within the time prescribed, Developer 

may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for 

settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing 

sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the 

District shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for 

settlement of the dispute. Within 10 business days following the 

conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion 

of the claim remains in dispute, the District shall provide Developer a 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 75 OF 86  

written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in 

dispute and the portion that is undisputed. 
 

25.5.2.2 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall 

be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues its 

written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by 

this section, section 25.4, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per 

annum. 
 

25.5.3 STEP 3: 
 

25.5.3.1 Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by Developer 

in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District 

and Developer sharing the associated costs equally. The District and 

Developer shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days 

after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If 

the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 

mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party 

to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party 

shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in 

connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is 

unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject 

to applicable procedures outside this section. 

 

25.5.3.1.1 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any 

nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral 

evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent 

third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution 

through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any 

mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section. 
 

25.5.3.2 Unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Developer in 

writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse 

any further obligation under Public Contract Code section 20104.4 to 

mediate after litigation has been commenced. 
 

25.5.4 STEP 4: 

 

25.5.4.1 If mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 

dispute, the District may, but does not require arbitration of disputes 

under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration 

Program. 

 

25.6 Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims 
 

25.6.1 If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 

assert a claim against a District because privity of contract does not exist, the 

contractor may present to the District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or 

lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his 

or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that Developer 

present a Claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a 

lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 76 OF 86  

requesting that the Claim be presented to the District shall furnish reasonable 

documentation to support the Claim. 
 

25.6.2 Within 45 days of receipt of this written request from a subcontractor, 

Developer shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether Developer 

presented the Claim to the District and, if Developer did not present the Claim, 

provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done 

so. 
 

25.6.3 Developer shall bind all its Subcontractors to the provisions of this 

section and will hold the District harmless against Claims by Subcontractors. 
 

25.7 Government Code Claim Act Claim 
 

25.7.1 If a Claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction 

of all applicable Claim Resolution requirements, including those pursuant to 

Public Contract Code section 9204, Developer shall comply with all claims 

presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 

900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of 

Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to Developer’s right to 

bring a civil action against the District. 
 

25.7.2 Developer shall bear all costs incurred in the preparation, submission 

and administration of a Claim. Any claims presented in accordance with the 

Government Code must affirmatively indicate Developer’s prior compliance with 

the claims procedure herein of the claims asserted. 
 

25.7.3 For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which 

a claim pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104.2 only must be 

presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Developer submits its 

written claim pursuant to subdivision (a) until the time that the claim is denied 

as a result of the meet and confer process, including any period of time utilized 

by the meet and confer process. 
 

25.8 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. 

 

25.8.1 In the event of a disagreement between the parties as to performance 

of the Work, the interpretation of this Contract, or payment or nonpayment for 

Work performed or not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve all claims 

of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) or less which arise 

between Developer and District by those procedures set forth in Public Contract 

Code section 20104 et seq., to the extent applicable. 
 

25.8.1.1 Developer shall file with the District any written Claim, 

including the documents necessary to substantiate it, upon the 

application for final payment. 
 

25.8.1.2 For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), the 

District shall respond in writing within forty-five (45) days of receipt of 

the Claim or may request in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of 

the Claim any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating 

to defenses or claims the District may have against Developer. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 77 OF 86  

25.8.1.2.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 

requested and provided by mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

25.8.1.2.2 District's written response to the documented Claim 

shall be submitted to Developer within fifteen (15) days after 

receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time 

no greater than that taken by Developer to produce the 

additional information, whichever is greater. 
 

25.8.1.3 For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) and less 

than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars 

($375,000), the District shall respond in writing to all written Claims 

within sixty (60) days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, 

within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim any additional 

documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses or claims 

the District may have against Developer. 
 

25.8.1.3.1 If additional information is required, it shall be 

requested and provided upon mutual agreement of the District 

and Developer. 
 

25.8.1.3.2 The District's written response to the claim, as 

further documented, shall be submitted to Developer within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of the further documentation, or 

within a period of time no greater than that taken by Developer 

to produce the additional information or requested 

documentation, whichever is greater. 
 

25.8.1.4 If Developer disputes the District’s written response, or the 

District fails to respond within the time prescribed, Developer may so 

notify the District, in writing, either within fifteen (15) days of receipt of 

the District's response or within fifteen (15) days of the District's failure 

to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an 

informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in 

dispute. Upon a demand, the District shall schedule a meet and confer 

conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute. 

 

25.8.1.5 Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 

portion of it remains in dispute, Developer shall file a claim as provided 

in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the 

Government Code. For purposes of those provisions the running of the 

time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time 

Developer submits its written Claim until the time the Claim is denied, 

including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 
 

25.8.1.6 For any civil action filed to resolve claims filed pursuant to 

this section, within sixty (60) days, but no earlier than thirty (30) days, 

following the filing of responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the 

matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of 

both parties. The mediation process shall provide for the selection within 

fifteen (15) days by both parties of a disinterested third person as 

mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 78 OF 86  

submittal, and shall be concluded within fifteen (15) days from the 

commencement of the mediation unless a time requirement is extended 

upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both parties. 

If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any 

party may petition the court to appoint the mediator. 
 

25.8.1.7 If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted 

to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 

1141.10) of the Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 

notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code. The Civil Discovery Act, 

(commencing with Section 2016) of Chapter 1 of Title 4 of part 4 of the 

Code of Civil Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under 

this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to judicial 

arbitration. 

 

25.8.1.8 The District shall not fail to pay money as to any portion of a 

Claim which is undisputed except as otherwise provided in the Contract 

Documents. In any suit filed pursuant to this section, the District shall 

pay interest at the legal rate on any arbitration award or judgment. 

Interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of 

law. 
 

25.8.2 Developer shall bind its Subcontractors to the provisions of this Section 

and will hold the District harmless against disputes by Subcontractors. 
 

25.9 Claims Procedure Compliance 
 

25.9.1 Failure to submit and administer claims as required in Article 25 shall 

waive Developer’s right to claim on any specific issues not included in a timely 

submitted claim. Claim(s) not raised in a timely protest and timely claim 

submitted under this Article 25 may not be asserted in any subsequent 

litigation, Government Code Claim, or legal action. 

 

25.9.2 District shall not be deemed to waive any provision under this Article 

25, if at District’s sole discretion, a claim is administered in a manner not in 

accord with this Article 25. Waivers or modifications of this Article 25 may only 

be made by a signed change order approved as to form by legal counsel for 

both District and Developer; oral or implied modifications shall be ineffective. 
 

25.10 Claim Resolution Non-Applicability 
 

25.10.1 The procedures for dispute and claim resolution set forth in this Article 

shall not apply to the following: 
 

25.10.1.1 Personal injury, wrongful death or property damage claims. 
 

25.10.1.2 Latent defect or breach of warranty or guarantee to repair. 
 

25.10.1.3 Stop payment notices. 
 

25.10.1.4 District’s rights set forth in the Article on Suspension and 

Termination. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 79 OF 86  

25.10.1.5 Disputes arising out of labor compliance enforcement by the 

Department of Industrial Relations; or 
 

25.10.1.6 District rights and obligations as a public entity set forth in 

applicable statutes; provided, however, that penalties imposed against 

a public entity by statutes, including, but not limited to, Public Contract 

Code sections 20104.50 and 7107, shall be subject to the Claim 

Resolution requirements provided in this Article. 
 

25.11 Attorney’s Fees 
 

25.11.1 Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of 

this Contract, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection 

expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney’s fees. 
 

26. State Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions 

 

26.1 Labor Compliance and Enforcement 
 

Since this Project is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the Department 

of Industrial Relations (“DIR”), Developer specifically acknowledges and understands 

that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable 

provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code and Title 8 of the 

California Code of Regulations, including, without limitation, the requirement that 

Developer and all Subcontractors shall timely furnish complete and accurate electronic 

certified payroll records directly to the DIR. The District may not issue payment if this 

requirement is not met. 
 

26.2 Wage Rates, Travel, and Subsistence 

 

26.2.1 Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at section 1770), 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code of California, the general 

prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday 

and overtime work in the locality in which this public work is to be performed 

for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract 

Documents are on file at the District’s principal office and copies will be made 

available to any interested party on request. Developer shall obtain and post a 

copy of these wage rates at the job site. 
 

26.2.2 Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for at 

a rate of at least one and one-half times the above specified rate of per diem 

wages, unless otherwise specified. The holidays upon which those rates shall 

be paid need not be specified by the District, but shall be all holidays recognized 

in the applicable collective bargaining agreement. If the prevailing rate is not 

based on a collectively bargained rate, the holidays upon which the prevailing 

rate shall be paid shall be as provided in Section 6700 of the Government Code. 
 

26.2.3 Developer shall pay and shall cause to be paid each worker engaged in 

Work on the Project not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 

determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) 

(“Director”), regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to 

exist between Developer or any Subcontractor and such workers. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 80 OF 86  

26.2.4 If, prior to execution of the Facilities Lease, the Director determines 

that there has been a change in any prevailing rate of per diem wages in the 

locality in which the Work under the Contract Documents is to be performed, 

such change shall not alter the wage rates in the Contract Documents 

subsequently awarded. 
 

26.2.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1775, Developer shall, as a penalty, 

forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently two 

hundred dollars ($200) to District for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 

each worker paid less than the prevailing rates, determined by the District 

and/or the Director, for the work or craft in which that worker is employed for 

any public work done under Contract by Developer or by any Subcontractor 

under it. The difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 

paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 

worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate, shall be paid to each worker 

by Developer. 
 

26.2.6 Any worker employed to perform Work on the Project, which Work is 

not covered by any classification listed in the general prevailing wage rate of 

per diem wages determined by the Director, shall be paid not less than the 

minimum rate of wages specified therein for the classification which most nearly 

corresponds to Work to be performed by him, and that minimum wage rate 

shall be retroactive to time of initial employment of the person in that 

classification. 
 

26.2.7 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1773.1, per diem wages are deemed to 

include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, travel 

time, subsistence pay, and apprenticeship or other training programs 

authorized by Labor Code section 3093, and similar purposes. 
 

26.2.8 Developer shall post at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project 

Site a schedule showing all determined minimum wage rates and all authorized 

deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned. In addition, Developer 

shall post a sign-in log for all workers and visitors to the Site, a list of all 

Subcontractors of any tier on the Site, and the required Equal Employment 

Opportunity poster(s). 
 

26.3 Hours of Work 
 

26.3.1 As provided in Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 

7, Division 2, of the Labor Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal 

day of work. The time of service of any worker employed at any time by 

Developer or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under the Contract 

Documents upon the Work or upon any part of the Work contemplated by the 

Contract Documents shall be limited and restricted by Developer to eight (8) 

hours per day, and forty (40) hours during any one week, except as hereinafter 

provided. Notwithstanding the provisions hereinabove set forth, Work 

performed by employees of Developer in excess of eight (8) hours per day and 

forty (40) hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon this public work 

upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at 

not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 81 OF 86  

26.3.2 Developer shall keep and shall cause each Subcontractor to keep an 

accurate record showing the name of and actual hours worked each calendar 

day and each calendar week by each worker employed by Developer in 

connection with the Work or any part of the Work contemplated by the Contract 

Documents. The record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the 

inspection of District and to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the 

DIR. 
 

26.3.3 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1813, Developer shall, as a penalty, 

forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently twenty- 

five dollars ($25)) to the District for each worker employed in the execution of 

the Contract Documents by Developer or by any Subcontractor for each 

calendar day during which a worker is required or permitted to work more than 

eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar 

week in violation of the provisions of Article 3 (commencing at section 1810), 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code. 

 

26.3.4 Any Work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or 

on Sundays or other holidays shall be performed without additional expense to 

the District. 
 

26.4 Payroll Records 

 

26.4.1 Developer shall upload, and shall cause each Subcontractor performing 

any portion of the Work under this Contract to upload, an accurate and 

complete certified payroll record (“CPR”) electronically using DIR’s eCPR 

System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record 

manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online on a weekly no less 

than every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 30 days after the 

final day of Work performed on the Project and within ten (10) days of any 

request by the District or Labor Commissioner at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public- 

Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html or current application and URL, showing 

the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time, 

and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages 

paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by 

Developer and/or each Subcontractor in connection with the Work. 
 

26.4.1.1 The CPRs enumerated hereunder shall be filed directly with 

the DIR on a weekly basis or to the requesting party, whether the 

District or DIR, within ten (10) days after receipt of each written request. 

The CPRs from Developer and each Subcontractor for each week shall 

be provided on or before ten (10) days after the end of the Sunday to 

Saturday conventional week covered by the CPRs. District may not make 

any payment to Developer until: 
 

26.4.1.1.1 Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) provide CPRs 

acceptable to the District and DIR. 
 

26.4.1.1.2 Any delay in Developer and/or its Subcontractor(s) 

providing CPRs to the District or DIR in a timely manner may 

directly delay the District’s review and/or audit of the CPRs and 

Developer’s payment. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified/Payroll-Reporting.html


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 82 OF 86  

26.4.2 All CPRs shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the 

principal office of Developer on the following basis: 
 

26.4.2.1 A certified copy of an employee’s CPR shall be made available 

for inspection or furnished to the employee or his/her authorized 

representative on request. 
 

26.4.2.2 CPRs shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon 

request or as required by regulation to a representative of the District, 

Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, Division of Apprenticeship 

Standards, and/or the DIR. 
 

26.4.2.3 CPRs shall be made available upon request by the public for 

inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that a request 

by the public shall be made through the District, Division of 

Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards 

Enforcement. If the requested CPRs have not been provided pursuant to 

the provisions herein, the requesting party shall, prior to being provided 

the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by Developer, 

Subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. 

The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal office 

of Developer. 
 

26.4.3 Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and 

furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by District, Division 

of Apprenticeship Standards, Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, or DIR 

shall be mark ed or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an 

individual’s name, address, and social security number. The name and address 

of Developer awarded the Project under the Contract Documents or performing 

under the Contract Documents shall not be marked or obliterated. 
 

26.4.4 Developer shall inform District of the location of the records 

enumerated hereunder, including the street address, city, and county, and 

shall, within five (5) working days of a change in location of the records, provide 

a notice of change of location and address. 
 

26.4.5 In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, 

Developer shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of 

written notice specifying in what respects Developer must comply with this 

section. Should noncompliance still be evident after the ten (10) day period, 

Developer shall, as a penalty, forfeit up to one hundred dollars ($100) to District 

for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict 

compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Labor Commissioner, these 

penalties shall be withheld from Tenant Improvement Payments then due. 

 

26.4.6 As Developer and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the 

terms of the PLA entered into by the District dated November 16, 2017, 

Developer and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs 

electronically using DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic 

XML file or entering each record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current 

form) online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll- 

Reporting.html , or by using a more current application and URL. However, 

within ten (10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner, 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-


EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 83 OF 86  

Developer and its subcontractors shall provide CPRs showing the name, 

address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and 

overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid 

to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the 

Developer and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 
 

26.5 [Reserved] 

 

26.6 Apprentices 
 

26.6.1 Developer acknowledges and agrees that, if the Contract Documents 

involve a dollar amount greater than or a number of working days greater than 

that specified in Labor Code section 1777.5, then this Contract is governed by 

the provisions of Labor Code Section 1777.5 and 29 CFR part 5. It shall be the 

responsibility of Developer to ensure compliance with this Article and with Labor 

Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeship occupations. 
 

26.6.2 Apprentices of any crafts or trades may be employed and, when 

required by Labor Code section 1777.5, shall be employed provided they are 

properly registered in full compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code. 
 

26.6.3 Every apprentice shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices 

under the regulations of the craft or trade at which he/she is employed, and 

shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which she/he is 

registered. 

 

26.6.4 Only apprentices, as defined in section 3077 of the Labor Code, who 

are in training under apprenticeship standards and written apprentice 

agreements under Chapter 4 (commencing at section 3070), Division 3, of the 

Labor Code, are eligible to be employed. The employment and training of each 

apprentice shall be in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 

standards and apprentice agreements under which he/she is training. 
 

26.6.5 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 

Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractors employing 

workers in any apprenticeable craft or trade in performing any Work under this 

Contract shall apply to the applicable joint apprenticeship committee for a 

certificate approving Developer or Subcontractor under the applicable 

apprenticeship standards and fixing the ratio of apprentices to journeymen 

employed in performing the Work. 

 

26.6.6 Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this 

Contract as indicated above, Developer and any Subcontractor may be required 

to make contributions to the apprenticeship program. 

 

26.6.7 If Developer or Subcontractor willfully fails to comply with Labor Code 

section 1777.5, then, upon a determination of noncompliance by the 

Administrator of Apprenticeship, it shall: 

 

26.6.7.1 Be denied the right to bid on any subsequent project for one 

(1) year from the date of such determination. 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 84 OF 86  

26.6.7.2 Forfeit, as a penalty, to District the full amount stated in 

Labor Code section 1777.7. Interpretation and enforcement of these 

provisions shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the 

California Apprenticeship Council and under the authority of the Chief of 

the Division of Apprenticeship Standards. 
 

26.6.7.3 Developer and all Subcontractors shall comply with Labor 

Code section 1777.6, which section forbids certain discriminatory 

practices in the employment of apprentices. 
 

26.6.7.4 Developer shall become fully acquainted with the law 

regarding apprentices prior to commencement of the Work. Special 

attention is directed to sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor 

Code, and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 200 et seq. 

Questions may be directed to the State Division of Apprenticeship 

Standards, 455 Golden Gate Avenue, 9th Floor, San Francisco, California 

94102. 
 

26.7 Reserved 
 

26.8 [Reserved] 

 

26.9 Non-Discrimination 

 

26.9.1 Developer herein agrees to comply with the provisions of the California 

Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in Part 2.8 of Division 3 of Title 

2 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the 

Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all 

amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and 

regulations found to be applicable to Developer and Subcontractor. 
 

26.9.2 Special requirements for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts: 

During the performance of the requirement of the Contract Documents, 

Developer agrees to incorporate in all subcontracts the provisions set forth in 

Chapter 60-1.4(b) of Title 41 published in Volume 33 No. 104 of the Federal 

Register dated May 28, 1968. 
 

26.10 Labor First Aid 
 

Developer shall maintain emergency first aid treatment for Developer’s laborers and 

mechanics on the Project which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and 

Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.) and the California Occupational Safety 

and Health Act of 1973 (Lab. Code, § 6300 et seq.; 8 Cal. Code of Regs., § 330 et 

seq.). 
 

27. [Reserved] 
 

28. Miscellaneous 
 

28.1 Assignment of Antitrust Actions 
 

Although this project may not have been formally bid, the following provisions may 

apply: 
 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 85 OF 86  

28.1.1 Section 7103.5(b) of the Public Contract Code states: 
 

In entering into a public works contract or subcontract to supply goods, 

services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the contractor or 

subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title,  

and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 

Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 

Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 

pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall 

be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final 

payment to the contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties. 
 

28.1.2 Section 4552 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 
 

In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees 

that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, 

and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 

Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 

(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and 

Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by 

the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment 

shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 

final payment to the bidder. 

 

28.1.3 Section 4553 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 
 

If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through 

judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned 

under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for 

actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 

body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to 

overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were not paid by the public 

body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 

portion of the recovery. 
 

28.1.4 Section 4554 of the Government Code states in pertinent part: 
 

Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year 

from such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the 

assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which 

the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, 

or (b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. 
 

28.1.5 Under this Article, “public purchasing body” is District and “bidder” is 

Developer. 

 

28.2 Excise Taxes 

 

If, under Federal Excise Tax Law, any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on 

which a Federal Excise Tax is imposed and the sale is exempt from such Federal Excise 

Tax because it is a sale to a State or Local Government for its exclusive use, District, 

upon request, will execute documents necessary to show (1) that District is a political 

subdivision of the State for the purposes of such exemption, and (2) that the sale is 



EXHIBIT D TO FACILITIES LEASE 

SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION 

PAGE 86 OF 86  

for the exclusive use of District. No Federal Excise Tax for such materials shall be 

included in any Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
 

28.3 Taxes 

Guaranteed Maximum Price is to include any and all applicable sales taxes or other 

taxes that may be due in accordance with section 7051 et seq. of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code, Regulation 1521 of the State Board of Equalization or any other tax 

code that may be applicable. 
 

28.4 Shipments 
 

Developer is responsible for any or all damage or loss to shipments until delivered and 

accepted on Site, as indicated in the Contract Documents. There must be no charge 

for containers, packing, unpacking, drayage, or insurance. The total Guaranteed 

Maximum Price shall be all inclusive (including sales tax) and no additional costs of 

any type will be considered. 
 

28.5 Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements 
 

If this Contract is subject to federal or other governmental reporting requirements 

because of federal or other governmental financing in whole or in part for the Project 

of which it is part, or for any other reason, Developer shall comply with those reporting 

requirements at the request of the District at no additional cost. 
 

[END OF DOCUMENT] 

 



Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page 1 of 5  

EXHIBIT D-1 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing Requirements 
 

Developer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. 

On August 11, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued a new State 

Public Health Officer Order (“Order”) regarding COVID-19 vaccine verification for workers in 

school districts, affecting District operations. The Order took effect on August 12, 2021, and 

all affected worksites must be in full compliance with the Order by October 15, 2021. In 

addition, the District passed Resolution No. 3233 which requires all District contractors who 

work directly with students or District staff at District facilities after January 31, 2022 to be 

be fully vaccinated or have submitted a valid exemption to Developer. Accordingly, Developer 

is required to comply with the following before permitting Developer personnel to work at the 

Project site: 

 

Vaccination Requirements 

Developer shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 

Vaccination/Testing Certification Form. The completed COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing 

Certification Form must be received by the District prior to the Notice to Proceed. 

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) 

State Public Health Officer Order (“Order”), a person is “fully vaccinated” for COVID- 

19 if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 

2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health 

Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose 

vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen). 

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, Developer 

shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination: 

(a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health 

and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card) 

which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose 

administered); 

(b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document; 

(c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic 

device; 

(d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider; 

(e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART 

Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and 

vaccine type; or 

(f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who 

follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards. 

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Developer may accept the documentation 

presented in (a) through (f) above as valid. 



Page 1 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

EXHIBIT D-1  

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. COVID-19 Vaccination and Testing Requirements 

 

Developer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. 

On August 11, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued a new State 

Public Health Officer Order (“Order”) regarding COVID-19 vaccine verification for workers in 

school districts, affecting District operations. The Order took effect on August 12, 2021, and 

all affected worksites must be in full compliance with the Order by October 15, 2021. In 

addition, the District passed Resolution No. 3233 which requires all District contractors who 

work directly with students or District staff at District facilities after January 31, 2022 to be 

be fully vaccinated or have submitted a valid exemption to Developer. Accordingly, Developer 

is required to comply with the following before permitting Developer personnel to work at the 

Project site: 
 

Vaccination Requirements 

Developer shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 

Vaccination/Testing Certification Form. The completed COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing 

Certification Form must be received by the District prior to the Notice to Proceed. 

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) 

State Public Health Officer Order (“Order”), a person is “fully vaccinated” for COVID- 

19 if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 

2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health 

Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose 

vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen). 

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, Developer 

shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination: 

(a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health 

and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card) 

which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose 

administered); 

(b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document; 

(c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic 

device; 

(d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider; 

(e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART 

Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and 

vaccine type; or 

(f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who 

follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards. 

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Developer may accept the documentation 

presented in (a) through (f) above as valid. 



Page 2 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking verified Developer personnel 

vaccination status. Records of vaccination verification must be made available, upon 

request, to the local health jurisdiction for purposes of case investigation. 

Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any 

other personnel entering the Project site, who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom 

vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, must be considered 

unvaccinated. 

Weekly Testing Requirements 

Developer shall ensure that Developer personnel, including any and all tiers of 

subcontractor, supplier, and any other worker entering the Project site, who have 

submitted a valid exemption to vaccination are required to undergo diagnostic 

screening testing, as specified below: 

(a) Developer personnel may be tested with either antigen or molecular 

tests to satisfy this requirement, but unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated workers 

must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing. Any 

PCR (molecular) or antigen test used must either have Emergency Use Authorization 

by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or be operating per the Laboratory 

Developed Test requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

(b) Unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated Developer personnel must also 

observe all other infection control requirements, and are not exempted from the 

testing requirement even if they have a medical contraindication to vaccination, since 

they are still potentially able to spread the illness. Previous history of COVID-19 from 

which the individual recovered more than 90 days earlier, or a previous positive 

antibody test for COVID-19, do not waive this requirement for testing. 

Developer shall have a plan in place for tracking test results and conducting workplace 

contact tracing, and must report results to local public health departments, if 

applicable. 

2. COVID-19 Safety and Social Distancing Requirements 
 

Developer shall, at its cost, timely comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 

requirements relating to COVID-19 including, without limitation, preparing, posting, and 

implementing a Social Distancing Protocol, as required. In addition, Developer’s Safety Plan, 

required under the General Conditions, must include an Appendix labeled “COVID-19 SAFETY 

PLAN,” which must detail Developer’s safety and compliance plan for COVID-19, specifically 

adapted from the Project, including, without limitation, the following: signage, measures to 

protect employee health, measures to prevent crowds from gathering, measures to keep 

people at least six feet apart, measures to prevent unnecessary contact, and measures to 

increase sanitization. 

 

3. Modernization Projects 
 

3.1. Access. 
 

Access to the school buildings and entry to buildings, classrooms, restrooms, 

mechanical rooms, electrical rooms, or other rooms, for construction purposes, must 

be coordinated with District and onsite District personnel before Work is to start. Unless 

agreed to otherwise in writing, only a school custodian will be allowed to unlock 



Page 3 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

and lock doors in existing building(s). The custodian will be available only while school 

is in session. If a custodian is required to arrive before 7:00 a.m. or leave after 3:30 

p.m. to accommodate Developer’s Work, the overtime wages for the custodian will be 

paid by Developer, unless at the discretion of the District, other arrangements are 

made in advance. 

 

3.2. Master Key. 
 

Upon request, the District may, at its own discretion, provide a master key to the 

school site for the convenience of Developer. Developer agrees to pay all expenses to 

re-key the entire school site and all other affected District buildings if the master key 

is lost or stolen, or if any unauthorized party obtains a copy of the key or access to 

the school. 
 

3.3. Maintaining Services. 
 

Developer is advised that Work is to be performed in spaces regularly scheduled for 

instruction. Interruption and/or periods of shutdown of public access, electrical service, 

water service, lighting, or other utilities shall be only as arranged in advance with the 

District. Developer shall provide temporary services to all facilities interrupted by 

Developer’s Work. 
 

3.4. Maintaining Utilities. 
 

Developer shall maintain in operation during duration of Contract, drainage lines, 

storm drains, sewers, water, gas, electrical, steam, and other utility service lines within 

working area. 
 

3.5. Confidentiality. 
 

Developer shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, documents, programs, 

procedures and all other items that Developer encounters while performing the Work. 

This requirement shall be ongoing and shall survive the expiration or termination of 

this Contract and specifically includes, without limitation, all student, parent, and 

employee disciplinary information and health information. 
 

3.6. Work during Instructional Time. 
 

Developer affirms that Work may be performed during ongoing instruction in existing 

facilities. If so, Developer agrees to cooperate to the best of its ability to minimize any 

disruption to school operations and any use of school facilities by the public up to, and 

including, rescheduling specific work activities, at no additional cost to District. 
 

3.7. No Work during Student Testing. 
 

Developer shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District’s request, 

coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, not 

performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or Federally-required 

tests. 

 

4. Construction Manager 



Page 4 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

Kitchell CEM is the Construction Manager described in Section 4 to Exhibit D to the Facilities 

Lease, the General Construction Provisions. 

 

5. Project Labor Agreement/Payroll Records 
 

The District has entered into a Project Labor Agreement (“PLA”), which covers this Project. 

 

Accordingly, the following provision is added as Section 26.4.6 to Exhibit D to the Facilities 

Lease: 
 

 

6. As-Builts and Record Drawings 
 

14.1 When called for by Division 1, Developer shall submit As-Built Drawings 

pursuant to the Contract Documents consisting of one set of computer-aided design 

and drafting (“CADD”) files in the following format Auto CAD and PDF, plus one set of 

As-Built Drawings as hard copy. 

 

14.2 Developer shall submit Record Drawings pursuant to the Contract Documents 

consisting of one set of computer-aided design and drafting (“CADD”) files in the 

following format Auto CADD and PDF, plus one set of Record Drawings as hard copy. 
 

7. Federal Funds – Wages 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, Developer and all Subcontractors 

are subject to civil or criminal prosecution for any violation of the federal False Claims Act set 

forth under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code. 

 

The following provisions are added as Section 27 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 
 

27. Federal Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions  
 

 

terms of the PLA entered into by the District dated November 16, 2017, Developer 

and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs electronically using 

DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each 

record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online at 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html , or by using a 

more current application and URL. However, within ten (10) days of any request by 

the District or Labor Commissioner, Developer and its subcontractors shall provide 

CPRs showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, 

straight time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per 

diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee 

employed by the Developer and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

As Developer and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the 26.4.6 

27.1 Minimum Wages 

 

The Davis-Bacon Act and 29 CFR parts 1 through 7 shall apply if the Project is financed 

in whole or in part from Federal funds or in accordance with guarantees of a Federal 

agency or financed from funds obtained by pledge of any contract of a Federal agency 

to make a loan, grant or annual contribution. 

27.1.1 All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the Site of the 

Work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html


Page 5 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the Project), will be paid 

unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent 

deduction or rebate on any account, except such payroll deductions as are 

permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland 

Act (29 CFR part 3) , the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits, or 

cash equivalents thereof, due at time of payment computed at rates not less 

than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which 

is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual 

relationship which may be alleged to exist between Developer and such laborers 

and mechanics. 
 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 

under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics 

are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the 

provisions 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs 

incurred for more than a weekly period, but not less often than quarterly, under 

plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed 

to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers 

and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on 

the wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed, 

without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 

mechanics performing Work in more than one classification may be 

compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually 

worked therein: Provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set 

forth the time spent in each classification in which Work is performed. The wage 

determination including any additional classification and wage rates conformed 

under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be 

posted at all times by Developer and its Subcontractors at the Site of the Work 

in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers. 
 

27.1.2    Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, and which is to 

be employed under the Contract which is not listed in the wage determination 

shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. An additional 

classification and wage rate and fringe benefits will not be approved unless the 

following criteria have been met: 
 

 

27.1.2.1 The Work to be performed by the classification requested 

is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and 
 

27.1.2.2 The classification is utilized in the area by the construction 

industry; and 

 

27.1.2.3 The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe 

benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained 

in the wage determination. 

27.1.3 If Developer and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 

classification (if known), or their representatives, and the District agree on the 

classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe 

benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by 

Developer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 

Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. 



Page 6 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

 
 

27.2 Withholding  
 

 

27.3 Payrolls and basic records  
 

determination for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit 

which is not expressed as an hourly rate, Developer shall either pay the benefit 

as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit 

or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 
 

27.1.7 If Developer does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, 

Developer may consider, as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic, the 

amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe 

benefits under a plan or program, provided that the Secretary of Labor has 

found, upon the written request of Developer, that the applicable standards of 

the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. If the Secretary of Labor so requires, 

Developer to shall aside in a separate account sufficient assets to meet 

obligations under the plan or program. 

Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in any applicable wage 

determined pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)(B) or (C), shall be paid to all 

workers performing Work in the classification under this Contract from the first 

day on which Work is performed in the classification. 
 

27.1.6 

The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) 27.1.5 

27.1.4   In the event Developer, the laborers or mechanics to be employed  in 

the classification or their representatives, and the District do not agree on the 

proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 

fringe benefits, where appropriate), Developer shall provide the questions, 

including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 

District, to the District for the District’s review and referral to the Administrator 

for determination. 

District shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 

representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld 

from Developer under this Contract or any other Federal contract with the same 

Developer, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon 

prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same Developer, so much 

of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay 

laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed 

by Developer or any Subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the 

Contract. In the event of Developer’s or any Subcontractors’ failure to pay any 

laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or 

working on the Site of the Work (or under the United States Housing Act of 

1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of 

the project), all or part of the wages required by the Contract, the District may, 

after written notice to Developer, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action 

as it deems necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 

advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

27.3.1Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by 

Developer during the course of the Work and preserved for a period of three 

years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the Site of the Work 

(or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 



Page 7 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall 

contain the name, address, and social security number of each worker, his or 

her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of 

contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash 

equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis- 

Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and 

actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 

5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 

any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program 

described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, Developer shall 

maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is 

enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 

plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics 

affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost 

incurred in providing such benefits. Developers or Subcontractors employing 

apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written 

evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 

trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the 

ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. 
 

27.3.2 Developer shall submit weekly for each week in which any Contract Work 

is performed a copy of all payrolls to the District. The payrolls submitted shall 

set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be 

maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers 

and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the 

payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each 

employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). 

The required weekly payroll information shall be submitted on a form 

acceptable to the District. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose 

from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. 

Developer is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all 

Subcontractors. Developer and Subcontractors shall maintain the full social 

security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide 

them upon request to the District, Developer, or the Wage and Hour Division 

of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of 

compliance with prevailing wage requirements. Developer may require a 

Subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to Developer 

for its own records, without weekly submission to the District or other 

government agency. 
 

27.3.3 Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of 

Compliance,” signed by Developer or Subcontractor or his or her agent who 

pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the Contract 

and shall certify the following: 
 

27.3.3.1 That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 

information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of 

Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. 
 

27.3.3.2 That the appropriate information is being maintained 

under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. 

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm


Page 8 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

27.3.3.3 That such information is correct and complete. 
 

27.3.3.4 That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, 

apprentice, and trainee) employed on the Contract during the payroll 

period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, 

either directly or indirectly. 
 

27.3.3.5 That no deductions have been made either directly or 

indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible 

deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3. 
 

27.3.3.6 That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than 

the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for 

the classification of Work performed, as specified in the applicable 

wage determination incorporated into or applicable to the Contract. 
 

27.3.3.7 The weekly submission of a properly executed 

certification in the form set forth on the reverse side of Optional 

Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 

“Statement of Compliance” required by 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii)(B). 
 

27.3.3.8 The falsification of any of the above certifications may 

subject Developer or one or more Subcontractors to civil or criminal 

prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 

of the United States Code. 
 

27.3.3.9 Developer or Subcontractor shall make the records 

required under this section available for inspection, copying, or 

transcription by authorized representatives of the District or the 

federal Department of Labor, and shall permit representatives to 

interview employees during working hours on the job. If Developer 

or Subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make 

them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to 

Developer, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be 

necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, 

or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 

records upon request or to make such records available may be 

grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

 

27.4 Apprentices and trainees  
 

27.4.1 Apprentices 

 

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for 

the Work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually 

registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. 

Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 

Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State 

Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in 

his or her first ninety (90) days of probationary employment as an apprentice 

in an eligible apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the 

program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, 

Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where 



Page 9 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The 

allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job Site in any craft 

classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to Developer as to 

the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a 

payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed 

as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 

wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed. In 

addition, any apprentice performing Work on the job Site in excess of the ratio 

permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the 

applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the Work actually 

performed. Where a Developer is performing construction on a project in a 

locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 

rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in 

Developer's or Subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every 

apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered 

program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of 

the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 

Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of 

the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify 

fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed 

on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator 

determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 

classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the 

event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a 

State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of 

an apprenticeship program, Developer will no longer be permitted to utilize 

apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the Work 

performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

 

27.4.2 Trainees 
 

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to Work at 

less than the predetermined rate for the Work performed unless they are 

employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has 

received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 

Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of 

trainees to journeymen on the job Site shall not be greater than permitted 

under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every 

trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program 

for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman 

hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be 

paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. 

If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid 

the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 

Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an 

apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage 

rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 

for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not 

registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and 

Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on 

the wage determination for the classification of Work actually performed. In 

addition, any trainee performing Work on the job Site in excess of the ratio 

permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the 



Page 10 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

 
 

27.5 Compliance with Copeland Act requirements 
 

Developer shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated 

by reference in this Contract. 

 

27.6 Subcontracts 
 

Developer or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 

29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal agency may by 

appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the Subcontractors to 

include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Developer shall be responsible for 

the compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with all the Contract 

clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

 

27.7 Contract termination: debarment 
 

A breach of the Contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the 

Contract, and for debarment as a Developer and a Subcontractor as provided in 29 

CFR 5.12. 

 

27.8 Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements 
 

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 

CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this Contract. 
 

27.9 Disputes concerning labor standards 
 

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this Contract shall not be 

subject to the general disputes clause of this Contract. Such disputes shall be resolved 

in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 

5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between 

Developer (or any of its Subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. 

Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 
 

27.10 Certification of eligibility 
 

applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the Work actually 

performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration 

withdraws approval of a training program, Developer will no longer be 

permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for 

the Work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 
 

27.4.3 Equal employment opportunity 
 

The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 

in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. 

(nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in Developer's firm 

is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of 

section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

By entering into this Contract, Developer certifies that neither it 27.10.1 



Page 11 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

 
 

 

27.11.1 Overtime requirements 
 

No Developer or Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract Work 

which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 

require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he 

or she is employed on such Work to work in excess of forty hours in such 

workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not 

less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in 

excess of forty hours in such workweek. 
 

27.11.2 Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages 
 

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in the foregoing paragraph 

Developer and any Subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 

unpaid wages. In addition, such Developer and Subcontractor shall be liable to 

the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be 

computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including 

watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the foregoing paragraph, in the 

sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or 

permitted to Work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without 

payment of the overtime wages required by the foregoing paragraph. 
 

27.11.3 Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages 
 

The District shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 

representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, 

from any moneys payable on account of Work performed by Developer or 

Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with the same 

Developer, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract 

Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same Developer, 

such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of 

such Developer or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 

provided in the forgoing paragraph. 
 

27.11.4 Subcontracts 
 

Developer or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 

in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (b)(4) and also a clause requiring each 

Subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 

making false statements as prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 

1001. 

Developer or Subcontractors shall be subject to penalty for 27.10.3 

firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of 

the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

No part of this Contract shall be subcontracted to any person or 27.10.2 

27.11 Clauses Mandated by Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

 

As used in the following paragraphs, the terms laborers and mechanics include 

watchmen and guards. 



Page 12 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

 
 

 

15. Federal Funds – Debarment 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 

as Section 6.1.5 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 
 

This Project uses or may plan to use federal funds. Consequently, Developer is required 

to provide a signed “Federal Debarment” certification with its bid. This certification is 

required by the regulation implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 

Suspension, 29 CFR Part 89, Section 98.510, Participants; responsibilities. The 

regulations were published as Part of VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 

19160-19211). 

 

16. Federal Funds – Byrd Anti-Lobbying 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 

as Section 6.1.7 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 
 

 

17. Federal Funds – Procurement of recovered materials 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by federal funds, the following provision is added 

as Section 6.13.5 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 
 

 

18. Federal Funds - Domestic preferences for procurements 
 

As this Project is funded in whole or in part by a federal grant made after November 12, 2020, 

the following provision is added as Section 1.8.10 to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease: 
 

1.8.10 As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, Developer should, to the 

greatest extent practicable for the Project, provide a preference for the purchase, 

acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States 

(including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured 

products). The requirements of this section must be included in all subcontracts and 

purchase orders for work or products for the Project.       

Developer shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower 

tier Subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(1) through (b)(4). 

If the contract exceeds $100,000, Developer is required to provide a signed “Byrd 

Anti-Lobbying” certification with its bid ((31 U.S.C. 1352) (Appendix II to 2 CFR, Part 

200)). 

Developer must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended 

by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 

include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered 

materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, 

where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity 

acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste 

management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and 

establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered 

materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 



Page 13 of 13 Exhibit D-1 to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 
 

1.8.10.1 “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that 

all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application 

of coatings, occurred in the United States. 
 

1.8.10.2  “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials 

composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics 

and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as 
concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber 



Exhibit E to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page E 1  

EXHIBIT E 
 

MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE 
 

This MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE  is dated  , 20 , and is 

made  by and between  (“Developer”), as Lessor, and the 

Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”), as Lessee. 

 
1. Developer and District have previously entered into a Facilities Lease dated as of 

  , 20 , (the “Lease”) for the leasing by Developer to District of the completed 

Project in [City], California, referenced in the Lease. 

 

2. District hereby confirms the following: 

 

A. That all construction of the Project required to be performed pursuant to the 

Facilities Lease has been completed by Developer in all respects; 

 

B. That District has accepted and entered into possession of the Project and now 

occupies same; and 

 
C. That the term for the Lease Payments under the Facilities Lease commenced on 

  , 20  and will expire at 11:59 P.M. on  _, 20 . 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE IS ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the 

date indicated below: 

 
 

Dated:   , 20   Dated:   , 20   

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

 

By:  

Name:    

 

[Developer] 

 

By:  

Name:    

Title:  Title:    

 

 
 

(To Be Executed at Completion of Project)



Exhibit F to Facilities Lease 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization 

Page F 1  

EXHIBIT F 
 

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
 

Attached is a detailed Project Construction Schedule with a duration no longer than the 

Contract Time, and with specific milestones that Developer shall meet. 

 

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT G 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

Attached is a detailed Schedule of Values that complies with the requirements of the 

Construction Provisions (Exhibit “D”) and that has been approved by the District.  

(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment) 

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1b 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions. 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated May 19, 2022 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated May 19, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 5/19/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
LEAVES
VO CINDY A Teacher, Elementary ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/28/2022 6/16/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/28-6/16/22                                                                                      
HEALEY JENNIFER B Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2/7/2022 5/8/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/7-5/8/22                                                                                        
HEALEY JENNIFER B Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 5/9/2022 6/24/2022 LOA (PD) 5/9-6/24/22                                                                                                 
ROY DIANA C Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 2/22/2022 5/3/2022 LOA (PD) 2/22-5/3/22                                                                                             
VO CINDY A Teacher, Elementary ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/22/2022 4/27/2022 AMENDED LOA (PD) 4/22-4/27/22                                                                             
ISRAEL SHANIYAH B Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 5/2/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 5/2-6/17/22                                                                                             
BAHRAMZI GHAZALA A Teacher, Spec Ed FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 5/9/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 5/9-6/17/22                                                                                             
TORRES ELIZABETH A School Social Worker STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 5/26/2022 6/23/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/26-6/23/22                                                                                          
TORRES ELIZABETH A School Social Worker STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 3/29/2022 5/25/2022 LOA (PD) 3/29/22 - 5/25/22                                                                                             
BURTON MARINDA A Teacher, Elementary JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 5/12/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 5/12/22                                                                                                    
WRIGHT CORBIN A Teacher, Spec Ed MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/28/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/28/22                                                                                       
AGUILERA FRANCISCO C Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/2/2022                                                                                      
HERNANDEZ JOSE A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 3/24/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 3/24/22                                                                                                
FITZGERALD TIMOTHY B Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/2/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (UNPD) 4/2/22                                                                                          
STARK SARAH A School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/2/22                                                                                             
HACK BRANDY A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 6/1/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 6/1/22                                                                                                      
MAZE ROCHELLE A Teacher, Elementary WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/19/2022 3/27/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 3/19/22                                                                                                      
MAZE ROCHELLE A Teacher, Elementary WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/16/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 4/16/22                                                                                                      
FADUM JON A Teacher, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 5/9/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 5/9/22                                                                                                       
MAZE ROCHELLE A Teacher, Elementary WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/28/2022 4/15/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/28-4/15/22                                                                                        
DYER MONICA A Teacher, Elementary CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 1/1/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (UNPD) 1/1-6/30/22                                                                                                 

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
AGUIRRE ELIZABETH B Principal, Elementary School PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 3/4/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 3/4/22                                                                                                        
BENNETT HEATHER Q Principal,Supt Priority (Elem) FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 3/28/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 3/28/22                                                                                                
INIGUEZ AZAREL B Principal, Elementary School GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 3/23/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 3/23/22                                                                                                
PELLA SHANNON B Coord III Curr, Hist-Soc Sci CURRICULUM & PROF DEVELOP 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 4/18/22                                                                        

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BEAL MARTIN A Teacher, Traveling Music MUSIC SECTION 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                     
GREEN CAROLANI B Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                      
MYERS GINA C Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/18/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
May 19, 2022



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------

 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 5/19/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
ALEXANDER WILLIAM B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 1/18/22                                                                                                    
FAVELA ROSITA A Library Media Tech Asst JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 4/20/2022 6/30/2022 REEMPLOY 39MO 4/20/22                                                                                             
GUDIMENKO LILIYA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/25/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/25/22                                                                                                    
HARP AMY B Health Aide HEALTH SERVICES 4/27/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/27/22                                                                                                    
HERNANDEZ GABRIEL B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5/17/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 5/17/22                                                                                                    
HOWARD BREANNA B Health Services Clerk HEALTH SERVICES 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 5/2/22                                                                                                     
HUNLEY VIRGINIA B Clerk I HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 4/5/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/5/22                                                                                                      
HUNTER KATHY B Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/26/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/26/22                                                                                                    
LOPEZ MARIA B Adm Asst to Chief Bus Officer BUSINESS SERVICES 4/4/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/4/22                                                                                                    
MANOUKIAN ANNA B Inst Aide Child Dev EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 4/4/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/4/22                                                                                                    
MORENO GRANADOS ERIKA B Noon Duty PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/7/2022 6/30/2022 AMEND EMPLOY PROB 4/7/22                                                                                     
NGUYEN MINH TRUNG B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/18/22                                                                                                   
PHAM LOAN B Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/22/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/22/22                                                                                                    
RIOS SONJA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/25/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/25/22                                                                                                    
RODRIGUEZ PATRICIA B Office Tchncn III MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION DEPT. 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 5/2/22                                                                                                    
RODRIGUEZ SONIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/19/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/19/22                                                                                                     
RODRIGUEZ LORENA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/21/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/21/22                                                                                                     
SMITH JR JOSEPH B Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/26/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/26/22                                                                                                   
SOTO DARREN B Applications Spec II TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 5/9/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 5/9/22                                                                                                    

LEAVES
ALONSO RUSELLY A Custodian JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 2/26/2022 3/14/2022 LOA (PD) 2/26/22-3/14/22                                                                                               
ALONSO RUSELLY A Custodian JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 3/15/2022 4/26/2022 LOA (PD) 3/15-4/26/22                                                                                              
ALONSO RUSELLY A Custodian JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 4/27/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/27-6/30/22                                                                                        
CHEVIS-WILLIAMS YVONNE A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/27/2022 6/16/2022 LOA PD HE 5/27/22-6/16/22                                                                                               
CHEVIS-WILLIAMS YVONNE A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 6/17/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 6/17/22                                                                                                         
DEARY NANCY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/6/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) 4/6/22-7/6/22                                                                                                 
FLORES TERESA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/8/2022 5/15/2022 LOA EXT (PD) 4/8/22-5/15/22                                                                                            
FLORES TERESA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/16/2022 6/30/2022 LOA EXT (PD) 5/16/22                                                                                              
FLORES MARIA A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/17/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (UNPD) 4/17/22-6/17/22                                                                                             
FLORES MARIA A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 6/18/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 6/18/22                                                                                                         
GARCIA ARLEEN A Clerk II CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 1/20/2022 5/31/2022 LOA (UNPD) 1/20-6/24/22                                                                                          
KUE OMIE A Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 5/31/2022 6/28/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/31/22-6/28/22                                                                                        
KUE OMIE A Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 6/29/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 6/29/22                                                                                                         
LEWIS DIANNE A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/14/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 1/14/22-6/17/22                                                                                               
LEWIS DIANNE A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 6/18/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 6/18/22                                                                                                         
MADRIGAL REA MIRNA A Custodian EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 3/9/2022 5/18/2022 LOA 3/9-5/18/22                                                                                                   
MADRIGAL REA MIRNA A Custodian EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 5/19/2022 6/30/2022 LOA FMLA/CFRA 5/19-6/30/22                                                                                           
PAMUJAC VALENTINA B School Plant Ops Mngr I SUSAN B. ANTHONY ELEMENTARY 3/8/2022 5/1/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/8-5/1/22                                                                                          
PAMUJAC VALENTINA B School Plant Ops Mngr I SUSAN B. ANTHONY ELEMENTARY 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (PD) 5/2/22                                                                                                       
PENA YOLANDA A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/8/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 4/8/22                                                                                                          
WATSON TABATHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 3/1/2022 6/16/2022 LOA (UNPD) 3/1/22 - 6/16/22                                                                                            
YNIGUEZ MELISSA B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 5/2/22                                                                                                  

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
DURR RAPHAEL B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/29/2021 6/30/2022 STCHG 11/29/21                                                                                                  
HENDRIX KRISTY B Instructional Aide HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 9/20/2021 6/30/2022 STCHG 9/20/21                                                                                                   
KEATING AMY B Inst Aid, Spec Ed WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 5/2/22                                                                                                   
MARSHALL ANGELA B Applications Spec I TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 5/16/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 5/16/22                                                                                     
MOLINA ESPINOZA CLAUDIA B Noon Duty SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/2/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 3/2/22                                                                                                   
MURPHY JACKIE A Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG  5/2/22                                                                
RHYM JAMILAH B Prsnl Elctrncs Records Tech HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 3/1/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG  3/1/22                                                                                           
VILLALOBOS VERONICA B Noon Duty PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/3/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 1/3/22                                                                                   

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
May 19, 2022



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
DURR RAPHAEL B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/29/2021 6/30/2022 STCHG 11/29/21                                                                                                  
HENDRIX KRISTY B Instructional Aide HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 9/20/2021 6/30/2022 STCHG 9/20/21                                                                                                   
KEATING AMY B Inst Aid, Spec Ed WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 5/2/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 5/2/22                                                                                                   
MOLINA ESPINOZA CLAUDIA B Noon Duty SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/2/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 3/2/22                                                                                                   
VILLALOBOS VERONICA B Noon Duty PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/3/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 1/3/22                                                                                   

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1c 

 
 
Meeting Date:   May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:   Approve Donations to the District for the Period of April 1-30, 2022 
                  

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of April 1-30, 2022 
  
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Donations Report for the period of April 1-30, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

04/12/22 Donation, T Por, Ck132BA22-0001899 Tawny T Por Check 1327129Posted 250.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0146- 250.00 

04/11/22 Teacher Allotment, Sutter Middle PTSO, Ck1318BA22-0001964 Sutter Middle School PTSO Check 13187085Posted 4,800.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0490- 4,800.00 

04/26/22 Donation, J Ellermeyer, Ck1159BA22-0001992 BA220000274Justin Ellermeyer Check 11597142Posted 500.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0139- 500.00 

04/22/22 Donation, M Lee, Ck930BA22-0002065 Man Ching Daisy Lee Check 9307106Posted 1,000.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0104- 1,000.00 

6,550.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 6,550.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

6,550.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2022      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  6,550.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 11 2022 

12:11PM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

04/13/22 Donation, United Way, Ck80413BW22-0000931 BOTW041322(3425) UNITED WAY CALIFORNIA         CAPITAL REGIONCheck 804137087Posted 104.00 

09- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0505- 104.00 

04/13/22 Donation, Minted LLC, Ck0060891101BW22-0000932 BOTW041322Minted LLC Check 00608911017087Posted 342.36 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0032- 342.36 

04/13/22 Dine Out Proceeds Mar22, Chipotle, Ck1805940BW22-0000938 BOTW041322(000074) CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL Check 18059407087Posted 321.67 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0379- 321.67 

04/25/22 OFFICE DEPOT ACCT OVRG, LDV PTC, CK18044BW22-0000970 BOTW042722(0151-2) LEONARDO DA VINCI K-8 SCHOOL  PARENT TEACHER COUNCILCheck 180447149Posted 225.75 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0151- 225.75 

04/25/22 A.LINCOLN DONATIONS, WESTAT, CK3830182BW22-0000971 BOTW042722WESTAT Check 38301827149Posted 200.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0097- 200.00 

7,743.78 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 1,089.78 Donation Board Acknowledgement

1,089.78 Fund 01 - General Fund   

09-8690 104.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

104.00 Fund 09 - Charter School   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  7,743.78 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

6,550.00 C - Check

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 11 2022 

12:11PM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

1,193.78 C - Check

Report Total 7,743.78 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 11 2022 

12:11PM

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1d 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report:  Warrants, Checks and 

Electronic Transfers Issued for the Period of April 1-30, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of April 1-30, 2022 are available for the Board members upon request. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – April 1-30, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



ksl

Page 1 : 1 Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers April 2022

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97404130 - 97404766 637 items 12,723,826.90$         

General (01) 10,620,626.01$         

Charter (09) 65,659.39$                

Adult Education (11) 203,221.24$              

Child Development (12) 298,302.51$              

Cafeteria (13) 588,702.35$              

Building (21) 452,785.10$              

Self Insurance (67) 12,010.95$                

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 15,191.09$                

Payroll Revolving (76) 467,328.26$              

00002112 - 00002115 4 items 3,323.75$                  

General (01)

Adult Education (11) 546.04$                     

Payroll Revolving (76) 2,777.71$                  

97875922 - 97876874 953 items 4,649,911.19$           

General (01) 1,299,050.66$           

Charter (09) 42,155.05$                

Adult Education (11) 11,083.51$                

Child Development (12) 28,597.05$                

Cafeteria (13) 114,606.45$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 3,154,418.47$           

ACH 01430615 - 01436294 5682 items 17,327,032.68$         

EFT 00000092 - 00000093 General (01) 15,603,956.55$         

Charter (09) 501,748.08$              

Adult Education (11) 164,077.80$              

Child Development (12) 405,345.72$              

Cafeteria (13) 528,939.47$              

Building (21) 41,607.22$                

Self Insurance (67) 13,676.61$                

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 5,631.71$                  

Payroll Revolving (76) 62,049.52$                

9700349687 - 9700349687 1 items 1,256,494.96$           

General (01)

Payroll Revolving (76) 1,256,494.96$           

Total 7277 items 35,960,589.48$         

County Accounts 

Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 

Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 

Vendor Warrants

Payroll ACHs and  

Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 

for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1e 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3269:  Delegating Duty to Accept Bids and 

Award Construction Contracts 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Department:  Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation:   Approve and adopt Resolution No. 3269:  Delegating Duty to 
Accept Bids and Award Construction Contracts. 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Governing Board’s meeting schedule may not be 
complementary with the bid opening dates and delaying the award until the next 
available meeting date would cause unnecessary project delay.  Staff recommends that 
the Governing Board delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to accept 
bids meeting Public Contract and Education Code requirements, execute the contracts, 
and commence work without the Governing Board taking formal action on any such 
contracts. This practice has become a normal business process and has been 
approved by the Board in prior years. The effective dates of this Resolution are May 20 
through August 31, 2022.  This Resolution will only be used if approval by the Board at a 
Board meeting will delay the start of a project. 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal (s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3269 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
                          Chris Ralston, Director III 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 3269 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

RESOLUTION DELEGATING DUTY TO ACCEPT BIDS 
AND AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District has been and is in the process of accepting bids and 
awarding prime contracts for various maintenance and construction work; and 
 
 WHEREAS, time is of the essence in accepting the lowest responsible and/or best value bid, awarding the 
contract and completing work, or rejecting bids as appropriate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, regular meetings of the Board of Education will not be held on a schedule consistent with the bid 
opening dates for these deferred maintenance projects; 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent or his designee is delegated the authority to act on behalf of the 
Board of Education from May 20, 2022 through August 31, 2022 to award and execute prime contracts to the lowest 
responsible and/or best value bidder, or reject bids as appropriate; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT should any lowest responsible and/or best value bidder exceed the estimated 
cost for that prime contract, the Superintendent or designee may award and execute the contract for that work if the 
Superintendent or designee consults with the Chief Business Officer and determines that the bid should be accepted 
rather than rebidding the contract; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any and all contracts entered into on behalf of the District pursuant to this 
resolution shall be reported to the board at the next regularly scheduled meeting following execution. 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Sacramento  ) 
 
 PASSED and ADOPTED this 19th day of May, 2022, by the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified 
School District, State of California, by the following vote; 
 
Ayes:   
Noes:   
Absent:   
ATTESTED TO:   
  Christina Pritchett, Board President 
   
Date:   
  Jorge Aguilar, Clerk of the Board 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1f 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3274:  Naming District Representatives for 

School Facilities Program and Division of State Architect 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Department:  Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation:   Approve and adopt Resolution No. 3274 Naming District 
Representatives for School Facilities Program and Division of State Architect. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District participates in various 
School Facility Programs offered through the Office of Public School Construction 
(OPSC), the State Allocation Board (SAB) and submits construction plans to the 
Division of the State Architect for approval and certification. These programs require the 
submission of various data, certifications, forms and applications which require the 
signature of an authorized “District Representative”. Many of the OPSC / SAB programs 
are funded on a first come / first funded basis; therefore time is of the essence. Facilities 
Support Services is seeking the approval of five “District Representatives” to ensure the 
timely filing of funding applications. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Potential State School Facility Program funding 
 
LCAP Goal (s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3274 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3274 
 

District Representatives for Office of Public School Construction 
and Division of the State Architect 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Education (“Board”) of the Sacramento City 
Unified School District (“District”) and hereby ordered that: 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of the District, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, California, County 
of Sacramento, desires to authorize individuals to act as “District Representatives” as that term is 
defined in section 1859.2 of title 2 of the California Code of Regulations. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, until further action of the Board, or their 
cessation of employment with the District, the following individuals are authorized to act 
individually as a District Representative or District Representatives as that term is defined in 
section 1859.2 of title 2 of the California Code of Regulations on behalf of the District, except as 
to those matters requiring action by the Board: 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES: 
 
   

Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
   

Nathaniel Browning, Director I 
Capital Projects, Facilities,  
and Resource Management 

  

   
 
 This RESOLUTION is effective on date of adoption until revoked or superseded. 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of May, 2022 by the Board of Education of the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  __________ 
 
NOES:  __________ 
 
ABSENT: __________ 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
 
 
   
Christina Pritchett, Board President  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1g 
 

Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C. and New 

York, New York from June 17 to June 22, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C. and 
New York, NY from June 17-22, 2022. 
 
Background/Rationale:  From June 17-22, 2022, 75 students from Sutter Middle 
School will be accompanied by 14 chaperones to Washington, D.C. and New York, NY 
to visit historic sites, monuments, and museums as a culmination of 8th grade studies.  
 
Financial Considerations:  No cost to the district.  Expenses paid by parents/students. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students  
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Out of State Field Trip Documents 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer     
  Chad Sweitzer, Instructional Assistant 

Superintendent 
Approved by:   Jose A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 











 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1h 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C., 

Gettysburg, Pennsylvania, and Williamsburg, Virginia from June 18 to 
June 23, 2022 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Washington, D.C., 
Gettysburg, PA, Williamsburg, VA  June 18-23, 2022 
 
Background/Rationale:  From June 18-23, 2022, 19 students from Sutter Middle 
School will be accompanied by 4 chaperones to Washington, D.C., Gettysburg, PA, and  
Williamsburg, VA to study the historical beginnings and development of our country, and 
its people, through museums, historical sites and memorials.  
 
Financial Considerations:  No cost to the district.  Expenses paid by parents/students. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students  
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Out of State Field Trip Documents 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer     
  Chad Sweitzer, Instructional Assistant 

Superintendent 
Approved by:   Jose A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 









 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1i 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Field Trip to Washington, D.C. 

from May 27 to May 30, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent 
 
Recommendation:  Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Field Trip to Washington, 
D.C. May 27-30, 2022 
 
Background/Rationale:  From May 27-30, 2022, four students from C.K. McClatchy 
High School will be accompanied by two chaperones to Washington, D.C.  to participate 
in the National Catholic Forensics League Debate Tournament.    
 
Financial Considerations:  No cost to the district.  Expenses paid through the 
Sacramento Urban Debate League and the CKM Debate Boosters. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students  
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Out of State Field Trip Documents 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer     
  Chad Sweitzer, Instructional Assistant 

Superintendent 
Approved by:   Jose A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 











Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1j 

 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes of the April 21, 2022, Board of Education Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes of the April 21, 2022, Board of Education 
Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the April 21, 2022, Board of Education Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  N/A 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Jacqueline Zhang, Student Member 
 

Thursday, April 21, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2021/22-30 
 

        
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:37 p.m. by President Pritchett, and roll was taken. 
 
Members Present: 
President Christina Pritchett 
Vice President Leticia Garcia 
Lisa Murawski 
Darrel Woo 
 
Members Absent: 
Second Vice President Chinua Rhodes (arrived at during Closed Session) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (arrived at during Closed Session) 
Jamee Villa (arrived at during Closed Session) 
Student Member Jacqueline Zhang arrived at 6:00 p.m. for Open Session. 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

2 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b)  Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case 2022010135) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 
 
3.4 Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 

Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 
 

3.5 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 
a) Father Keith B. Kenny Elementary School, Principal  
 

3.6 Education Code 35146 – The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 
following student expulsion: 
a) Expulsion #5, 2021-22 
 

 
 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement  
 
4.3 Stellar Student – Dana Castro Martinez, a 6th Grade student from Mark Twain 

Elementary School, to be introduced by Member Villa 
 
 

 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Counsel Anne Collins announced that OAH Case 2022010135 was approved 
unanimously. 
 
Superintendent Aguilar announced that Ashley Alexander was unanimously approved to 
the appointment of Principal at Father Keith B. Kenny Elementary School. 

 
 

 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

President Pritchett asked for a motion to adopt the agenda.  A motion was made to 
approve by Member Woo and seconded by Member Murawski.  The Board voted 
unanimously to adopt the agenda. 

 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                             
 

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  
 
Public Comment: 
David Aleman 
Rosalie Nugent 
Richard Vasquez 
Maria Rodriguez 
Mo Kashmiri 
Teresa Hanneman 
Melissa Reynoso 
Timothy Hebert 
Katherine Santora 
Terrence Gladney 
Jana Lee 
Arlene Krause 
Caryl Rose 
Rae Connolly 
Nicole House 
Andrea 
Liliana Hernandez 
Shandra Muthe 
Holly Longacre 
Diana Otterson 
Victoria Kinego 
Jessica Lincoln 
Libby Chase 
Adam Kessler 
Shenny Cruces 
Michelle Tarter 
Rosita L. 
Ana Jenkins 
Brittney Bejarano 
Katrina Trute 
Kayla Saavedra 

 
 

 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 

 8.1 Resolution No. 3268:  Recognition of Earth Day (Christina 
Pritchett) 

 
Student Member Zhang read the resolution. 
 

Action 
 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

4 

Public Comment: 
Mo Kashmiri 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Woo motioned to approve, and Member Murawski 
seconded.  The resolution was unanimously passed. 

 
 

 9.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

 9.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA – David Fisher reported on behalf of SCTA 
 President Pritchett read a letter from UPE President Judy 

Farina 
 

Information 
 

 
 10.0 PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

 

10.1  Public Hearing:  AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of the 
MOU Between SCUSD and the Service Employees 
International Union (Rose Ramos) 

 
Assistant In-House Legal Counsel Alexa Rincon began the 
presentation by going over key provisions for the MOU with 
SEIU.  Chief Business Officer Rose Ramos then went over AB 
1200 fiscal impact, multi-year projection (total general fund) with 
SCTA and SEIU MOUs, ESSER II funding sources, and the 
second interim negative certification from the Sacramento County 
Office of Education.  
 
Public Comment: 
Debra Durazo 
 
Board Comments: 
 
President Pritchett thanked the presenters.  She spoke about the 
negative certification as discussed in a letter from the 
Sacramento County Office of Education Superintendent David 
Gordon.  She said that information from the letter needs to 
inform future budget decisions, including potential future 
budget cuts and future agreements that are hoped to be reached 
with labor partners.  She said it is critical that the Board, 
community, and labor partners understand the implications of 
the negative certification issued and the limited options faced to 
improve the District’s fiscal outlook.  Superintendent Gordon 
was present, and President Pritchett asked him to come to the 
podium, which he did along with Chief Business Office Nick 

Action 
 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

5 

Schweizer from the County.  President Pritchett asked them to 
share an overview of why the County is responsible for 
reviewing and reporting on the soundness of the District’s 
budget.  Mr. Gordon explained that the county superintendents 
in the state are responsible for the fiscal solvency of all school 
districts within their county.  This includes reviewing and 
approving budget and interim financial reports.  They are also 
tasked with reviewing and commenting on district labor 
agreements.  He emphasized that they have reviewed the 
proposed agreements and stated that, although it is positive that 
the District has reached an agreement, they are concerned and 
pointing out as part of their comments that, as the District was 
already in a risky position with the budget going into this set of 
negotiations, the agreements could increase the District’s risk 
of future financial insolvency.  The reasons for this concern are 
in the letter.  President Pritchett asked for a definition of 
negative certification.  Mr. Schweizer explained that negative 
certification means they feel there is a strong potential that the 
District will not be able to meet its on-going fiscal obligations.  
In other words, revenues are less than expenditures and the 
District will reach a point where the District is insolvent.  When 
that happens the District gives up authority as a governing 
board, a trustee is appointed, the District has to take a loan, 
and things get much worse from there.  The negative 
certification means that the District is at strong risk of that 
happening in the future.  It also means that the county 
superintendent has some increased oversight responsibilities 
which include increased support, as they have done with the 
District over the last several years now in creating the budget 
and fiscal recovery plans, and trying to increase capacity 
fiscally.  It also includes, however, the ability of the county 
superintendent to stay and rescind any action of the District 
that is inconsistent with fiscal recovery.  President Pritchett 
asked why the prior certification was not negative.  
Superintendent Gordon reported that the finding was different 
because circumstances change from interim report to interim 
report, but the overall issue is there has been a high level of 
risk, which has been acknowledged by the District when the 
structural deficit was discussed over the past six months.  If the 
budget is going up and down, coming to the brink of insolvency 
and going back when one-time money shows up, this is not a 
way to have a stable management system or way of sorting out 
priorities and deciding what is to be done for students and 
setting aside the money to be able to do it long-term.  President 
Pritchett noted that when the District received negative 
certification from the County in the past, deep budget cuts had 
to be made which were more that $50 million in cuts to address 
concerns raised.  She asked what choices are left to the District 
to address the County’s concerns.  Superintendent Gordon said 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

6 

that, firstly, trying to recover as much money as possible from 
the penalties that would be imposed for the lost school days and 
instructional minutes is crucial, and he is happy to hear that the 
District is working toward that.  Secondly, he said it is 
important to continue to work, as has been talked about in the 
past, toward cutting expenditures in areas where it is known 
that the District is overspending or could do things more 
efficiently, such as the area of health benefits, which the District 
has been working on for a number of years.  Thirdly, he said a 
long-term plan is needed and adhered to that does not depend 
on coming to a brink, exhausting all resources, and then trying 
to figure out how to add something more without having to 
make cuts.   
 
Member Villa said it appears the District is paying debts with 
fingers crossed, and she is not comfortable with that.  She asked 
about cuts that were covered in the presentation.  
Superintendent Aguilar said that the goal is to get to a place 
during budget adoption discussion in May and June where the 
Board holds him accountable to come to the Board during the 
May and June Board meetings with proposals on how to 
potentially invest new resources that are expected to be 
received from the state.  He said the only time he has been able 
to do that was last year, with the infusion of one-time funds.  
Otherwise, in the five years he has been with the District, it has 
not been possible to bring that kind of plan or recommendation 
and then have the Board engage in debates about which aspects 
of those recommendations are to be adopted or not adopted.  
He also said that another goal would be to reach a place where, 
if the District receives more on-going revenues from the state, 
these revenues are not obligated already, based on agreements 
that may have expired already.  He said the District has the 
opportunity to restart and figure out a way in which to 
understand that there may be more investments or revenues 
coming in to the District, the Board holds the Superintendent 
accountable for coming to the Board with recommendations for 
choices, and the Board then has discussion during budget 
adoption so that they respond to their constituents and 
communities.  Superintendent Aguilar said this is something 
that must be strived for, as the District has not been able to do 
this.  He said that his hope, given the current circumstances, is 
that during budget adoption, a way is found to extend the use of 
one-time funds until they expire in order to keep the programs 
thus funded as long as possible.  His concern, regarding grants, 
is that there be on-going revenue to sustain them.  During 
budget adoption therefore, these cuts will be brought back 
during budget adoption to see how many programs can be 
retained for as long as possible.  Most will be dependent, 
however, upon one-time funds that are set to expire. 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

7 

Member Phillips asked that, unless there is an explanation, 
there be no more acronyms.  She asked Ms. Ramos to clarify an 
amount, which she did.  Member Phillips noted that the District 
is as poor as 70 percent of its residents, and it is hard for a 
poor district to balance a budget.  She said she is confused as to 
why Mr. Gordon is present answering very specific questions 
and why those questions were not given to the Board members 
so they could see them.  President Pritchett said they were her 
questions as a Board member. 
 
Member Murawski thanked Mr. Gordon and Mr. Schweizer for 
being in attendance and said she appreciates the discussion.  She 
said she supports the agreement, and she thanked the classified 
workers for their dedication to the District.  She noted that the 
District has not, since she has been a Board member, been able to 
make reasoned, long-term investments in students.  She noted that 
now there is a huge additional cost to the budget and that the 
Board cannot make the long term planning required, as they do 
not have the authority under the current structure, which is 
subject to negotiations. 
 
Vice President Garcia said she wanted to celebrate the actions 
that are here before the Board, and she asked for clarification on 
the penalties for lost instructional days due to the strike, seeing 
that these are one-time penalties.  Superintendent Gordon 
answered that it affects the District’s bottom line within the multi-
year projections, even though it is a one-time penalty, and the 
County is responsible for oversight of the next three years.  Vice 
President Garcia then brought up the tentative agreement with 
SCTA and SEIU.  She asked why it is tentative.  Superintendent 
Gordon answered that it is because the District spent one-time 
money for 2019-20, and for 2021-22 the District gave four 
percent on-going.  This four percent rolls into the next budget and 
for all subsequent years.  This is scored as future obligation, but 
in the agreement there are re-openers, so there will potentially be 
future negotiations where it is unknown what the cost coming out 
of those future negotiations could be.  This presents a risk factor 
of the budget getting beyond the point where it is affordable in the 
future for the basic school program.  This is what the on-going 
structural deficit is, projecting into the future the fact that the 
District may run out of cash and become insolvent.  Vice 
President Garcia then brought up the projected impact to the 
unrestricted general fund and the ending fund balance at $27.8 
million and reflecting the decrease of $100 million dollars.  She 
asked if the $27.8 million still allows the District to meet the 
minimum reserve of two percent.  Mr. Schweizer explained that 
the minimum reserve requirement is one of the criteria for 
determining fiscal solvency and determining if a district is 
positive or negative qualified.  There is other criteria also, such 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

8 

as deficit spending and cost growth, for example.  He explained 
that the District’s fund balance is lower, and the structural deficit 
is much higher, which contributed to the negative finding and the 
higher level of concern of the County.  Vice President Garcia 
then asked if this means that FCMAT will come back to do 
another fiscal health analysis as they did in 2018.  Mr. Schweizer 
answered that would be FCMAT’s determination, and he has not 
heard from them so far.  He reports to them at every interim, and 
a negative certification is a trigger.  He said the District can 
request them at any time to come and do a study and/or multi-
year projection.  Superintendent Gordon added that the numbers 
are not fixed; they will change with the May revision and the 
eventual governor’s budget.  He went over some ways in which it 
may change, but said the most important thing that will change it 
is collaboration with labor partners leading to a longer term 
contract in which expenses can be projected ahead and plans can 
be made to do more for students.  Vice President Garcia spoke 
about opportunities from the state, some of which the District has 
applied.  She would like to hear how the District will identify 
other funding sources, and she motioned to approve. 
 
Second Vice President Rhodes said he feels where the District is 
now is a step in time and that in time there will be a different 
conversation.  He looks forward to the County coming back at 
that time and telling the District that the certification is qualified.  
He said the only way the positive or qualified finding comes is 
with the idea of collaborating with labor partners.  He said that 
people see change done to them as violence and change done with 
them is seen as liberation.  Collaboration does come with a 
relinquishing of governing authorities; it is a reimagining of how 
to govern and impact communities.  Therefore, he is happy to 
second the contract. 
 
The motion to approve, made by Vice President Garcia and 
seconded by Second Vice President Rhodes, was approved 
unanimously. 
 
 

 

 

10.2  Public Hearing:  AB 1200 Public Disclosure and Approval 
of the Following Agreements Between SCUSD and the 
Sacramento City Teachers Association (Rose Ramos): 
• 2019-22 Successor Contract and COVID Reopening 

Schools 
• Substitute Pay and Extra Work 2021-22 School Year 
• Safely Reopening Schools to In-Person Instruction 

Services and Independent Study 
• Nurse Extra Hours 2021-22 School Year 
• Temporarily Assigning Training Specialists to Fill Vacant 

Teaching Positions in the District 

Action 
 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

9 

 
Assistant In-House Legal Counsel Alexa Rincon presented on 
agreements between the District and SCTA, key provisions of the 
COVID-19/Reopening MOU, and key provisions for successor 
contract agreement for 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22.  Chief 
Business Officer Rose Ramos then went over AB 1200 fiscal 
impact, multi-year projection (total general fund) with SCTA and 
SEIU MOUs, ESSER II funding sources, and the second interim 
negative certification from the Sacramento County Office of 
Education. 

 
Public Comment: 
David Fisher 
Taylor Kayatta 
Maria Rodriguez 
Mo Kashmiri 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Vice President Garcia motioned to approve, and Second Vice 
President Rhodes seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 

 

10.3  Hearing to Receive Public Comment and Approval of the 
District’s Initial Proposals Regarding Certificated Unit 
United Professional Educators (UPE) Collective Bargaining 
Agreement Negotiations for 2022-2025 (Cancy McArn) 

 
Assistant In-House Legal Counsel Alexa Rincon presented.  She 
gave an overview of the sunshine process and the current 
collective bargaining agreement and initial proposal. 
 
Public Comment: 
Mo Kashmiri 
Nikki Milevsky 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Vice President Garcia asked if the proposal is for the next three 
years.  Ms. Rincon responded yes it is for the next three school 
years.  Second Vice President Rhodes motioned to approve, and 
Vice President Garcia seconded.  The motion was unanimously 
approved. 
 

Action 
 

 
 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 

 
 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

10 

 

11.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
  

11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
11.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
 

11.1c Approve Donations to the District for the Period of March 1 - 31, 2022 (Rose 
Ramos) 
 

11.1d Approve Business and Financial Report:  Warrants, Checks and Electronic 
Transfers Issued for the Period of March 1 – 31, 2022 (Rose Ramos) 

 
11.1e Approve Mandatory Reporting to the Sacramento County Office of Education – 

Uniform Complaints Regarding the Williams Settlement Processed for the Period 
of January 2022 through March 2022 (Cancy McArn) 
 

11.1f Approve Minutes of the March 17, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

11.1g Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #5, 2021-22 (Lisa Allen and 
Stephan Brown) 

 
11.1h Approve Five-Year Facility Use Agreement with Capitol Collegiate Academy 

(Jesse Ramos) 
 
11.1i Approve Second Amendment Extending Term of Project Labor Agreement (Rose 

Ramos) 
 
11.1j Approve Perkins V – Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment Members 

(Christina Espinosa) 
 

President Pritchett asked for a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  A motion was made to 
approve by Member Woo and seconded by Member Villa.  The Board voted unanimously to 
adopt the Consent Agenda. 

 
 

 
 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

 12.1 Business and Financial Information: 
• Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of February 15, 2022, through  

March 14, 2022 (Rose Ramos) 



Board Minutes, April 21, 2022 
 

11 

• Enrollment and Attendance Report, Month 6 Ending Friday, February 25, 2022 
(Rose Ramos) 
 

President Pritchett received the Business and Financial Information/Reports. 
 
Public Comment:  Nikki Milevsky; Mo Kashmiri 

 
 

 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 May 5, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 May 19, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 

President Pritchett asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting; a motion was made by Member 
Villa and seconded by Member Murawski.  The motion was passed unanimously, and the 
meeting adjourned at 8:53 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 ____________________________________________ 

Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 11.1k 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May19, 2022   
 
Subject:  Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Youth Development Support Services Department 
 
Recommendation:  Requesting consent on Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 
(ELO_P) plan 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program provides 
funding for before school, after school and summer school enrichment programs for 
transitional kinder (TK) through sixth grade students. This funding was initiated in fiscal 
year 2021-22 by Assembly Bill (AB) and then amended by AB 167.  
 
Financial Considerations:  School Districts with 80% or more unduplicated students 
(English Learner, Foster Youth and students on Free and Reduced Lunch) in TK-6 are 
prioritized and receive funding at a higher rate ($1,170 per students). SCUSD’s 
percentage for unduplicated students is 72.5% and we have 15,232 unduplicated 
students in TK-6 grades. Our total funding allocation for school year 2021-22 is 
$10,238,922.00 at the rate of $672.00 per student.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  LCAP Goal 2: Provide every SCUSD student an educational program 
with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity to district programs and practices, and robust, 
rigorous learning experiences inside and outside the classroom so that all students can 
meet or exceed state standards. 
 
LCAP Goal 3: Provide every student the specific academic, behavioral, social-
emotional, and mental and physical health supports to meet their individual needs 
especially English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, 
African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino 
students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, and other student groups whose 



Page 2 of 2 
 

outcomes indicate the greatest need – so that all students can remain fully engaged in 
school and access core instruction.  
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan – will be provided prior to the Board meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Manpreet Kaur, Director III, Youth Development 

Support Services 
Approved by:   Doug Huscher, Assistant Superintendent of Student 

Support Services 
 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of March 15, 2022 
through April 14, 2022.  
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of March 15, 2022 through April 14, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B22-00795 OFFICE RELIEF INC Risk Management Funded - 

Serna Staff Chairs.

01RISK MANAGEMENT 300,000.00 

B22-00796 SIGNATURE GRAPHICS 0420-453 RPARKS HVAC 

REPLACE-BLUEPRINTING 

SERV

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

200.00 

B22-00797 ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES 

INC

ALTA Wrld Lang 01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

3,960.00 

B22-00798 GALLS INC CRIMINAL JUSTICE UNIFORM 

ITEMS (CHRIS HERNER)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,100.00 

B22-00799 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC ATHLATIC TRANSPORTATION 

- AMADOR STAGE LINES

01WEST CAMPUS 5,000.00 

B22-00800 SIGNATURE GRAPHICS 0525-442 JFK ROOF & 

PAINT-BLUEPRINTING SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

200.00 

B22-00801 GARRATT-CALLAHAN 

COMPANY

CENTRAL KITCHEN BOILER 

WATER TREATMENT SY21-22

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

4,000.00 

B22-00802 NATIONAL FOOD GROUP 

INC

DRIED/CUPPED FRUIT SY 

21-22

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

48,000.00 

B22-00803 CDW GOVERNMENT FIREWALL AD-HOC 

SUPPORT

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 2,500.00 

B22-00804 April Cole PARENT MILEAGE 

REIMBURSEMENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.00 

B22-00805 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC TRANSPORTATION FOR LSJ 

FIELD TRIPS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,700.00 

B22-00806 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC JCBA FT TRANSPORTATION 

BLANKET ORDER

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,600.00 

B22-00807 EAN SERVICES LLC ENTERPRISE CAR RENTAL- 

BLANKET ORDER JCBA

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

B22-00808 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO JCBA FT TRANSPORTATION 

BLANKET ORDER

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,600.00 

B22-00809 ATTN CREDIT 

ADMINISTRATION C/O  U 

HAUL INTERNATIONAL

PROPANE FUEL FOR 

SWEEPER

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

200.00 

B22-00810 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC HJHS ATHLETIC 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

B22-00811 HASTIES CAPITOL SAND & 

GRAVEL

GARDEN MATERIALS FOR 

GARDEN WALK, GARDEN 

BEDS

01THEODORE JUDAH 

ELEMENTARY

300.00 

B22-00812 CP PRINTING FOOD PACK LABELS FOR CK 

SY21-22

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

3,500.00 

B22-00813 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

PARENT PARTICIPATION 

PRESCHOOL

11A.WARREN McCLASKEY 

ADULT

330.00 

B22-00814 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC ATHLETIC TRANSPORTATION 

FY22

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,500.00 

B22-00815 LA FOODS CANNED FRUIT SY21-22 13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

45,000.00 

B22-00816 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

SUPP'L LIB SUPPLIES TO 

SUPPORT/ENHANCE 

CURRICULUM

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,500.00 

B22-00817 Gine & Elpidio Garay FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,498.36 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 1 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B22-00818 Tiffany / Ramon Ruiz FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,498.36 

B22-00819 DEL REAL LLC TO PURCHASE  PUPUSA FOR 

2021-22 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

37,325.05 

CHB22-00376 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT 01LEATAATA FLOYD 

ELEMENTARY

2,000.00 

CHB22-00377 OFFICE DEPOT SPECIAL EDUCATION  

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,500.00 

CHB22-00378 OFFICE DEPOT Office Depot Supplies Title 1 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,500.00 

CHB22-00379 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT BLANKET 01A. M. WINN - K-8 4,350.00 

CHB22-00380 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES - TTL 

I

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB22-00381 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES - EL

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB22-00382 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES - 

LCFF LI

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB22-00383 RAY MORGAN/SCUSD CANON COPIER AGREEMENT 

FY22

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,700.00 

CHB22-00384 OFFICE DEPOT ESY Materials and Supplies for 

21-22 School Year

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

35,000.00 

CHB22-00385 THE HOME DEPOT PRO ESY SEVERE CLASS 

SUPPLIES FOR SCHOOL 

YEAR 21-22

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,000.00 

CHB22-00386 OFFICE DEPOT WIOA-I_DISLOCATED 

WORKER OFFICE SUPPLIES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,100.00 

CHB22-00387 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT 

SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPLIES 

FY 21/22

01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

4,217.07 

CS22-00345 DWIGHT TAYLOR SR STUDENT SEL SESSIONS 

MARCH - MAY 2022

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

8,500.00 

CS22-00346 PLANNING DYNAMICS 

GROUP

0520-433 HJHS 

STADIUM-CEQA REVIEW

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

33,489.00 

CS22-00347 HEYTUTOR INC HEY TUTOR CONTRACT 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 10,000.00 

CS22-00349 PLACER COUNTY OFFICE 

OF ED

PBIS Placer County of Ed. FY 

21-22 Tier II

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

35,500.00 

CS22-00350 ROBERTS FAMILY 

DEVELOPMENT CTR

SUMMER SCHOOL 2022 - 

ROBERTS FAMILY

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 212,900.00 

CS22-00351 SCHOOLMINT INC SCHOOL MINT CONTRACT 01ENROLLMENT CENTER 71,759.40 

CS22-00352 IGNITE COLLECTIVE INC INDEPENDENT 

EDUCATIONAL EVALUATION

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,000.00 

CS22-00353 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC

454 SHADE STRUCTURES @ 

7 SITES GROUP 1

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

66,250.00 

CS22-00354 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC

0520-422 HJHS BASEBALL 

FIELD

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

56,515.00 

CS22-00355 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC

0032-416 CGREENWOOD 

PLYGRND-CM SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

30,400.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 2 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS22-00356 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC

0104-416 ELDER CREEK 

IRRIGATION

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

65,825.00 

CS22-00357 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC

0272-409 PARKWAY 

PLYGRND-CONST MGMT 

SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

30,400.00 

CS22-00358 UNITED AND GUIDED CONFLICT MEDIATION 01SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 33,000.00 

CS22-00359 SACRAMENTO URBAN 

DEBATE LEAGUE

SACRAMENTO URBAN 

DEBATE LEAGUE CONTRACT

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 2,500.00 

CS22-00360 NORCAL SCHOOL OF THE 

ARTS

MUSIC INTEGRATION 

CLASSES  - NORCAL SOTA

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 1,560.00 

CS22-00361 ROYALE MANAGEMENT 

GROUP LLC

BIG AIR BMX SHOW 

ASSEMBLY

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,597.00 

CS22-00362 TRANSCRIBING MARINERS BRAILLE TRANSCRIBING 

SERVICES

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

8,276.47 

CS22-00363 KADER CAMP INC SAMI'S CIRCUIT ON DEMAND 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 2,500.00 

CS22-00364 WALLACE-KUHL & 

ASSOCIATES

0148-416 LFLOYD FLOYD 

FARMS-T&I SERV

25FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

19,610.00 

CS22-00365 CARE EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES

IEE/PSYCHOEDUCATIONAL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,000.00 

CS22-00366 RACHEL SMITH INDEPENDENT 

EDUCATIONAL EVALUATION

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,000.00 

CS22-00367 KANTER & ROMO 

IMMIGRATION LAW

LEGAL FEES 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 5,000.00 

CS22-00368 FLORENCE AMIN CONFIRMING DARI 

TRANSLATION

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

50.00 

CS22-00369 ASTRID OIRKO KINN ASTRID KINN - CONSULTANT 

SERVICES (COVID)

09GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 10,000.00 

CS22-00370 WARMLINE FAMILY 

RESOURCE CENTE R

PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN 

SCUSD & WARMLINE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

96,880.00 

CS22-00371 KELVIN EDUCATION INC. KELVIN PULSE 

SUBSCRIPTION YEAR 2

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 129,900.00 

CS22-00372 VANIR CONSTRUCTION 

MGMT INC

ESSER II HVAC PROJECTS 

CONSTRUCTION MGMT

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,103,952.00 

CS22-00373 KIMBERLEY CARR SCIENCE SUPPORT 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 527.00 

CS22-00374 NORCAL SCHOOL OF THE 

ARTS

MUSIC INTEGRATION 

CLASSES UNIT 3 - NORCAL 

SOTA

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 3,600.00 

P22-01396 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

ATHLETIC TRANSPORTATION 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,155.00 

P22-02414 Central Valley Electric Supply TREAT AS CONFIRMING - 

EMERGENCY BREAKERS - 

SAC HI

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,045.00 

P22-02415 BRIAN FOSTER REFEREE 

ASSOCIATI ON

REFEREE SVCS - SMALL HS 

SPORTS PROGRAM

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 3,600.00 

P22-02416 JOSTENS INC DIPLOMA COVERS 01WEST CAMPUS 1,730.43 

P22-02417 DIABLO BOILER & STEAM 

INC

ROSEMONT POOL 

CONTROLLER INSTALLATION

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,504.79 

P22-02418 DIABLO BOILER & STEAM 

INC

HIRAM JOHNSON POOL 

CONTROLLER INSTALLATION

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,504.79 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 3 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02419 CAMCO WINDING & SALES 

INC dba CULVER 

ARMATURE & MOTOR

POOL BOILER PUMP 

REPLACEMENT - SAC HIGH

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,858.97 

P22-02420 PLAYPOWER LT 

FARMINGTON INC

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT - 

LEONARDO DA VINCI

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,531.20 

P22-02421 ROSS RECREATION 

EQUIPMENT INC

CROCKER SLIDE 

REPLACEMENT

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,716.13 

P22-02422 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

0530-442 LBURBANK POOL 

REPLACE-DSA STARTUP 

FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

32,700.00 

P22-02423 GRAINGER INC CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 897.16 

P22-02424 S&S WORLDWIDE INC MATERIALS FOR STUDENT 

USE FOR PE INSTRUCTION

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

899.95 

P22-02425 GOPHER SPORT ELEMENTARY PE SUPPLIES 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,468.74 

P22-02426 LITERACY RESOURCES INC KINDER ORDER - HEGGERTY 

CURRICULUM

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

462.95 

P22-02427 BIODOT INTERNATIONAL 

INC

Supplies for Social Worker 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

776.25 

P22-02428 MICHAEL ORVEDAHL CONFIRMING MIKE 

ORVEDAHL'S 

REIMBURSEMENT

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

858.03 

P22-02429 DIANA CAMPBELL REIMB 2111 FOR BOOKS 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

528.88 

P22-02430 DIANA CAMPBELL REIMB 2111A FOR BOOKS #2 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

741.77 

P22-02431 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Laptop Protector 01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 24.99 

P22-02432 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Rollling Bookshelf for 

Communications Dept. Events

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 160.92 

P22-02433 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AMAZON MATERIAL FOR 

STUDENT

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

197.40 

P22-02434 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES & 

MATERIALS #3

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

1,454.49 

P22-02435 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTER SCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

1,051.48 

P22-02436 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

SPECIALIZED MEDIUM 

PACER

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,962.57 

P22-02437 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

SPECIALIZED LARGE PACER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,143.24 

P22-02438 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

SPECIALIZED LARGE PACER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,199.25 

P22-02439 OFFICE DEPOT ENGLISH OD ORDER 

2021-22

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,654.56 

P22-02440 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

i-Ready Subscription 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

13,050.00 

P22-02441 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

i-Ready Subscription (pd) 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,750.00 

P22-02442 EXPLORELEARNING LLC SOFTWARE LICENSE 01LEONARDO da VINCI 

ELEMENTARY

3,295.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 4 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02443 WILLIAM H SADLIER INC SP. ED - CLASSROOM 

LIBRARY - VIVES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

233.34 

P22-02444 BLACK STUDENTS OF CA 

UNITED

SITE BSU MEMBERSHIP-MC 

CLATCHY

01COUNSELING SERVICES 75.00 

P22-02445 CENTER FOR THE 

COLLABORATIVE C 

LASSROOM

CONFIRMING - CURRICULUM 

K-6

01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

400.00 

P22-02446 HOME CAMPUS ***TREAT AS 

CONFIRMING***PURCHASE 

HOME CAMPUS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

595.00 

P22-02447 SOFTWARE 4 SCHOOLS CONFIRMING**PROGRAM 

SIGN INS AND STU STORE

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

847.00 

P22-02448 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM BOOK SETS 

4TH GRADE

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

212.56 

P22-02449 BOOKS EN MORE LSJ - CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

CHIO SAHPHANH

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

447.34 

P22-02450 KEVIN IRWIN-DILORETO PE INST. SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 515.40 

P22-02451 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CONFIRMING 01PURCHASING SERVICES 3,740.00 

P22-02452 MSI MECHANICAL SYS CONFIRMING: GENESIS 

HVAC PIPE REPAIR

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,870.94 

P22-02453 GRAINGER INC CULINARY CLASSROOM - 

AMERICAN LEGION

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,950.01 

P22-02454 REFRIGERATION SUPPLIES 

DIST

LABORER SHOP- HVAC UNIT 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,022.78 

P22-02455 APPLE INC LAPTOP FOR AFRICA 

WILLIAMS

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 1,598.29 

P22-02456 APPLE INC 1st GEN. PENCIL- C. 

SAEPHANH-SOC. JUSTICE 

PGM

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

2,903.63 

P22-02457 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

CLASSROOM 

PROJECTORS-ROOMS 3, 4, 7, 

10, 11, 20

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

2,897.10 

P22-02458 THE HOME DEPOT PRO VI MATERIALS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

73.51 

P22-02459 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

OT STUDENT SUPPLIES 

(MENA)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

19.89 

P22-02460 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ICE MAKER 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 97.85 

P22-02461 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES NEW BATTERY 

REPLACEMENT FOR 

STUDENT LAPTOP

01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

31.41 

P22-02462 COALITION FOR ADEQUATE 

FUNDING  FOR SPECIAL 

EDUCATION

SELPA DUES (2021-2022) - 

CAFSE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,800.00 

P22-02463 UC SCOUT ONLINE ON DEMAND 

SEMESTER COURSE

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 25,137.00 

P22-02464 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRANSITION MATERIALS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

32.61 

P22-02465 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Amazon-EL Compliance 01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

629.54 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 5 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02466 ALIANA AGUILAR PARENT MILEAGE 

REIMBURSEMENT SPRING 

2021

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,053.70 

P22-02467 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASS SET ORDER - 3RD 

GRADE

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

22.00 

P22-02468 POWERHOUSE SCIENCE 

CENTER

6TH GR FT MOSAC 01NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 500.00 

P22-02469 DELTA WIRELESS INC RADIOS 2022 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

2,318.00 

P22-02470 BOUND TO STAY BOUND 

BOOKS INC

BTSB 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 14.59 

P22-02471 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC NATUREBRIDGE FIELD TRIP 01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

4,998.89 

P22-02472 GOPHER SPORT Basketballs&Baskets 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 675.75 

P22-02473 THE HOME DEPOT PRO ICE MAKER FOR FIRST AID/ 

ICE PACKS

01H.W. HARKNESS 

ELEMENTARY

129.41 

P22-02474 WILLIAM MACGILL & CO FIRST AID SUPPLIES 01H.W. HARKNESS 

ELEMENTARY

242.31 

P22-02475 SAXON UNIFORM NETWORK BUTTONS FOR UNIFORMS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

119.63 

P22-02476 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

TEACHING SUPPLIES: COX 

SDC

01A. M. WINN - K-8 512.19 

P22-02477 TAYLOR RECORD K5 LEARNING ORDER FOR 

TAYLOR RECORD

01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

17.94 

P22-02478 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC AMADOR STATE LINES - 6TH 

GRADE MOSAC

01NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 834.45 

P22-02479 CITY OF SACRAMENTO 

COMMUNITY D 

EVELOPMENT DEPT

0520-433 HJHS STADIUM - 

FIRE HYDRANT FLOW

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,226.00 

P22-02480 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO RENEWAL 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

01H.W. HARKNESS 

ELEMENTARY

425.00 

P22-02482 FUN AND FUNCTION OT ORDER - WEIGHTED 

VEST - CAROLINE WENZEL, 

G.M.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

97.07 

P22-02483 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PSYCH TEST KIT AND 

PROTOCOLS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

594.00 

P22-02484 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

NEW CLASS MATERIALS @ 

PETER BURNETT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,445.30 

P22-02485 TOBII DYNAVOX LLC AT MATERIALS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

74.25 

P22-02486 ENABLING DEVICES AAC MATERIALS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

57.82 

P22-02487 ENABLING DEVICES AAC MATERIALS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

407.02 

P22-02488 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM LEARNING 

MATERIALS (SPED TEAM)

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,481.02 

P22-02489 THE HOME DEPOT PRO INSTRMNT STORAGE FOR 

MUSIC PRGM

01A. M. WINN - K-8 838.08 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 6 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02490 APPLE INC AT MATERIALS FOR O. A. A. @ 

THEODORE JUDAH

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

935.68 

P22-02491 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

DrAd@Sequoia

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02492 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

GiMa@Rosa Parks

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

870.48 

P22-02493 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

CiAr@Sutter

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02494 TAYLOR RECORD TEACHERS PAY TEACHERS 

FOR RSP TEACHER

01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

30.00 

P22-02495 EASTBAY INC TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-PE 

SOFTBALL EQUIPMENT

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

306.23 

P22-02496 EASTBAY INC TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-PE 

EQUIPMENT

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

811.25 

P22-02497 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PACIFIC PRE-SCHOOL 

CUSTODIAL ORDER

12PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

141.96 

P22-02498 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Lockdown Magnetic Strips 01PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC 

ELEM.

244.00 

P22-02499 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Headset for Dr. Gelle, Sherrell, 

Denise

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

673.98 

P22-02500 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES USBC HUB FOR 

MACKBOOK-P. GARIBAY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

64.15 

P22-02501 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTER FOR MR. CHOCK 01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

326.25 

P22-02502 CDW GOVERNMENT STAFF TECHNOLOGY 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,462.00 

P22-02503 LUX BUS AMERICA CO Athletic Tranasportation 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2,626.21 

P22-02504 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

0104-416 ELDER CREEK 

IRRIGATION

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,000.00 

P22-02505 ALLIANCE REDWOODS 

CONF GROUNDS

ALLIANCE REDWOODS 6TH 

GRADE CAMP DEPOSIT

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

2,722.50 

P22-02506 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

POA 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 150.00 

P22-02507 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

BAD GUYS CORALINE 

RAPUNZEL

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 143.09 

P22-02508 KLINE MUSIC INC KLINE BOOKS 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 689.78 

P22-02509 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES - 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT

12JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

139.29 

P22-02510 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 

/CHILD DEVELOPMENT

12JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

158.95 

P22-02511 ZAJIC APPLIANCE SERVICE 

INC

ELECTRIC RANGE W/ EXTRA 

LARGE OVEN

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 3,323.40 

P22-02512 SOUTHWEST STRINGS INSTRUMENTS FOR MUSIC 

PRGM

01A. M. WINN - K-8 10,074.96 

P22-02513 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

LAMINATOR 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

2,498.70 

P22-02514 BOOKS EN MORE BOOKS FOR GRADE 06 

(SUPRA)

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

310.67 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 7 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02515 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC PAY 6TH GRADE BUS TRIP 

ALLIANCE REDWOODS ONE 

WAY

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

1,672.10 

P22-02516 AMBUTECH LOW INCIDENCE AT (O&M) 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

99.89 

P22-02517 GRAINGER INC PORTABLE ROOM DIVIDER 

STUDENT SUPPORT 

CENTER

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

959.26 

P22-02518 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO PAY 6TH GRADE BUS TRIP 

ALLIANCE REDWOODS ONE 

WAY

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

1,365.00 

P22-02519 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SP ED - CLASSROOM 

LIBRARY - MESTIDIO

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

210.51 

P22-02520 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES REWARDS FOR 

ATTENDANCE

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 379.34 

P22-02521 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Soar Store 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

332.16 

P22-02522 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Playground Physical Education 

Equipement

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

467.19 

P22-02523 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM SUPPLY FOR 

RSP & SDC

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

54.96 

P22-02524 BOOKS EN MORE 6TH GRADE CLASSBOOK 

SET

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

471.64 

P22-02525 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STAR REWARDS 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

214.57 

P22-02526 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM SUPPLY ROOM 

A-2

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

356.95 

P22-02527 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Radios 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

337.11 

P22-02528 MANAGEBAC INC ONLINE IB DIPLOMA 

PROGRAMME COURSES

01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 93,460.00 

P22-02529 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  

AdDr@SEQUOIA

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02530 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  GiMa@Rosa 

Parks

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02531 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS KaTr@Sutter 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02532 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MS 

SYNHORST

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

325.90 

P22-02533 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

JOHN SESSA

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

299.41 

P22-02534 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

HOAKSTRA

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

316.26 

P22-02535 OFFICE DEPOT POSTAGE STAMP FOR 

NJROTC

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

63.00 

P22-02536 PEARSON EDUCATION INC RESOURCE BOOK FOR EL 

STUDENTS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,002.85 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 8 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02537 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

RESOURCE BOOKS FOR EL 

STUDENTS - FERLAZZO

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,359.88 

P22-02538 BAROBO INC ROBOTIC STARTER KIT 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

917.96 

P22-02539 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

SAELEE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,023.56 

P22-02540 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - JEFF 

JOHNSON

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

338.83 

P22-02541 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

SCRIVNER

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

326.17 

P22-02542 SUPER DUPER INC LEARNING AIDES FOR 

SPEECH

01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,275.47 

P22-02543 FUN AND FUNCTION WEIGHTED VEST FOR 

STUDENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

97.07 

P22-02544 UNITED CANVAS & SLING 

INC.

REPLACEMENT NET FOR 

UCS DISCUSS CAGE

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,956.25 

P22-02545 EASTBAY INC BALLS, CHAIR CART, CROSS 

COUNTRY FLAG & HELMET 

BAG

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,799.50 

P22-02546 ARROW FENCE CO INC ARROW FENCE 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 33,540.00 

P22-02547 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EL SUPPLEMENTARY 

RESOURCE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

288.75 

P22-02548 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

REWARDS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

295.66 

P22-02549 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Adapters & Lightning Cables 

for iPhones

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

60.08 

P22-02550 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

JeMoGa@PeterBurnett

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02551 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS KeSa@LAND 

PARK CAMPUS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02552 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

ThEd@Caroline Wenzel

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02553 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS RoNy@Sutter 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02554 DELTA WIRELESS INC RADIOS FOR STAFF 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 4,694.19 

P22-02555 DELTA WIRELESS INC BATTERY FOR WALKIE 

TALKIE

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

155.72 

P22-02556 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS ElKw@JFK 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02557 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

MoKh@Odyssey

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02558 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS ZaEs@David 

Lubin

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 9 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02559 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS ElOr@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02560 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS JeZe@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02561 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS KeSa@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02562 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS IvRa@CKM 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02563 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  JeRy@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02564 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS AnDu@CKM 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02565 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS KaBa@Land 

Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02566 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  

JuIbCa@Tahoe

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02567 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  

JaGaRo@Land Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02568 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  

VaVa@JohnBidwell

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02569 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  AdRo@Point 

Quest EDH

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02570 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  BoSa@Land 

Park

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02571 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  KaiNa@No 

School Ages 3-5 Only

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02572 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  DoMa@Land 

Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02573 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

HeLuRo@JFK

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02574 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

EtJoRo@Land Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02575 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS 

ZaSi@California

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 10 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02576 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS LeHo@Point 

Quest

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.29 

P22-02577 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

KaTr@Sutter

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02578 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

JeMoGa@Peter Burnett

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02579 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-KeSa@LAND 

PARK CAMPUS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02580 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS- 

ThEd@Caroline Wenzel

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02581 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-RoNy@Sutter 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02582 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

ElKw@JFK

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02583 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-JoPa@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02584 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

ZaEs@David Lubin

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02585 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

MoKh@Odyssey

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02586 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

ElOr@Bret Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02587 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

JeZe@Bret Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02588 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-NiBl@Point 

Quest

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02589 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

KeSa@Bret Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02590 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-JeRy@Bret 

Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.96 

P22-02591 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

IvRa@CKM

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02592 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

AnDu@CKM

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02593 APPLE INC AAC 

MATERIALS-JuIbCa@Tahoe

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02594 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS FOR 

KaBa@Land Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02595 APPLE INC AAC 

MATERIALS-JaGaRo@Land 

Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02596 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-VaVa@John 

Bidwell

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02597 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-AdRo@Point 

Quest EDH

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02598 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-BoSa@Land 

Park

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.96 

P22-02599 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-KaiNa@No 

School Ages 3-5 Only

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 11 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02600 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-DoMa@Land 

Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02601 APPLE INC AAC 

MATERIALS-HeLuRo@JFK

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02602 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-EtJo@Land 

Park Campus

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02603 APPLE INC AAC MATERIALS-ZaSi@Cal 

Middle

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02604 APPLE INC AAC 

MATERIALS-LeHo@POINT 

QUEST EDH

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

876.95 

P22-02605 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LAPTOP 01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

24,128.00 

P22-02606 CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTER LAB AND 

LEARNING CENTER 

UPGRADE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

20,897.98 

P22-02607 CDW GOVERNMENT INSTRUCTIONAL 

TECHNOLOGY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

5,932.14 

P22-02608 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PRE-SCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

281.31 

P22-02609 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 

/CHILD DEVELOPMENT

12JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

144.01 

P22-02610 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEVELOPMENT – 

PRESCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

292.62 

P22-02611 ADOBE INC CREATIVE CLOUD LICENSE 

FOR STUDENT USE

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,460.00 

P22-02612 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CHAIRS FOR FAMILY 

EVENTS-RESTORATIVE 

RESTART FUNDS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

17,815.82 

P22-02613 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

WARD LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

156.01 

P22-02614 EDCLUB INC ASST TECH ORDER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,639.65 

P22-02615 SCOE SLY PARK SLY PARK 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

22,462.31 

P22-02616 AEMS ATHLETICS LEAGUE 2022 SOCCER LEAGUE FEES 01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,540.00 

P22-02617 CITY OF SACRAMENTO 

DEPT OF PUB LIC WORKS

SIDWALK REPAIR GLORIA 

DRIVE - JFK

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 30,466.53 

P22-02618 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BOOK FAIR EVENT 01SUSAN B. ANTHONY 

ELEMENTARY

95.64 

P22-02619 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Purchasing PE Equipment For 

Students

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

88.82 

P22-02620 ELESCO CORPORATE REPLACEMENT 

BATTERIES/LIGHTING 

SYSTEMS - JFK HIGH

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 6,143.64 

P22-02621 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASS SET NOVELS-ELA 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,653.87 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 12 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02622 BOOKS EN MORE CLASS SET 

NOVELS-MONSTER & THE 

NAMESAKE

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,846.86 

P22-02623 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Amazon Order for staff at 

SERNA

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

184.80 

P22-02624 OFFICE DEPOT FURNITURE FOR NEW 

LABOR SHOP

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,282.40 

P22-02625 BOBERG HARDWOOD 

FLOORS CORP.

GYM FLOOR AT WEST 

CAMPUS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 27,187.50 

P22-02626 KYA SERVICES LLC 452-2 COVID DF UPGRADES 

PH 2 BID PK 2-CONST SERV

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

444,400.00 

P22-02628 JM ENVIRONMENTAL INC MAINTENANCE 

WAREHOUSE- REMOVAL OF 

ASBESTOS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 47,379.00 

P22-02629 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MEMORIAL BENCH FOR 

FORMER STUDENT

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

262.09 

P22-02630 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC CHARTER BUS FOR SLY 

PARK SCIENCE CAMP TRIP

01DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

2,608.62 

P22-02631 SCOE SLY PARK FOR SLY PARK SCIENCE 

CAMP DEPOSIT

01DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,320.00 

P22-02632 SCOE SLY PARK Sly Park Reservation 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

9,570.00 

P22-02633 SCOE SLY PARK DEPOSIT INVOICE 2022-2023 

- SLY PARK

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,400.00 

P22-02634 APPLE INC AAC/AT MATERIALS 

AiMc@Bret Harte

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,040.08 

P22-02635 CDW GOVERNMENT PROJECTORS FOR 

INTERVENTION 

CLASSROOMS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

1,497.49 

P22-02636 APPLE INC Macbook Charger fot Erin 

Hanson

01ACADEMIC OFFICE 73.95 

P22-02637 GRACE TRUJILLO SETTLEMENT PAYMENT OAH 

2020040252

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,780.00 

P22-02638 LUX BUS AMERICA CO DRUMLINE & GUARD 

COMPETITION

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,823.20 

P22-02639 LUX BUS AMERICA CO Athletic Tranasportation 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2,648.94 

P22-02640 CDW GOVERNMENT DHH PRINTER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,019.64 

P22-02641 BOOKS EN MORE HISTORY SUPPLEMENTAL 

MATERIALS-BOOKS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,420.05 

P22-02642 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

James Marshall Library Order 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

1,991.40 

P22-02643 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

MLK Library Order per quote 

ID# 10884837

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

5,122.35 

P22-02644 POSMICRO.COM Barcode Scanners 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

783.75 

P22-02645 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

PURCHASING TABLES AND 

CARPETS FOR 

CLASSROOMS

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

4,406.98 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 13 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02646 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

VANG LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

288.23 

P22-02647 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK AND MASTERS 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

478.50 

P22-02648 ZAJIC APPLIANCE SERVICE 

INC

REFRIGERATOR FOR 

NURSES OFFICE

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

963.91 

P22-02649 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW-G 01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 2,768.97 

P22-02650 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTER FOR NS EXEC 

DIRECTOR

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

380.63 

P22-02651 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

G. Didion SEL Library Book 

order # 10889588

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

1,250.37 

P22-02652 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

ENVIRONME NTAL 

MANAGEMENT DEPT

0530-442 LBURBANK POOL 

REPLACE-EMD POOL FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,267.00 

P22-02653 LUX BUS AMERICA CO CHARTER BUSES FOR 

CAAASA CONFERENCE

01COUNSELING SERVICES 5,760.04 

P22-02655 OFFICE DEPOT WHITEBOARD 09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

86.19 

P22-02656 OFFICE DEPOT RSS 5885: COVID 19 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

3,914.95 

P22-02657 OFFICE DEPOT DRY ERASE EASEL 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

837.63 

P22-02658 AMERICAN EAGLE CO INC 

dba TEAC HER'S 

DISCOVERY

STARTER LIBRARY FRENCH 

AND SPANISH BOOKS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

465.24 

P22-02659 AMERICAN PRINTING 

HOUSE FOR BL IND INC

LOW INCIDENCE ASSIST 

TECH (O&M PROGRAM)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

659.82 

P22-02660 OFFICE DEPOT RSS 5885: SUPPLEMENTAL 

SERVICE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

21,336.42 

P22-02661 AUGMENTATIVE 

COMMUNICATION CON 

SULTANTS INC

AAC MATERIALS  CiAr@Sutter 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

60.64 

P22-02662 BLAINE RAY WORKSHOPS 

INC TPRS BOOKS

SPANISH NOVELS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

707.50 

P22-02663 BETTER CHINESE LLC 2022-2023 Better Chinese 

Online Licenses

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

9,568.00 

P22-02664 WAYSIDE PUBLISHING 3-YR DIGITAL 

ENTRECULTURES AND 

APPRENONS FRENCH

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

432.57 

P22-02665 WAYSIDE PUBLISHING 3 YR DIGITAL SPANISH 

MATERIAL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,425.70 

P22-02666 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

SUPPLEMENTARY BOOKS 

FOR ENLISH LEARNERS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

720.27 

P22-02667 WOLF PRODUCTS INC ASSIST TECH - LDV & 

ITINERANT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

661.45 

P22-02668 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MS 

VILLANUEVA

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

225.23 

P22-02669 BROWN UNIVERSITY DIGITIAL EDITIONS OF 

SOCIAL SCIENCE MATERIALS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,492.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 14 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02670 AMERICAN RIVER NATURAL 

HISTORY  dba EFFIE YEAW 

NATURE CENTER

SCALES & TAILS 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 405.40 

P22-02671 JAYPRO SPORTS INC REPLACEMENT VOLLEYBALL 

NET (PARSH)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

564.19 

P22-02672 DOWNTOWN FORD VEHICLES FOR FACILITIES 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 377,789.06 

P22-02673 TOBII DYNAVOX LLC DYNAVOX COMMUNICATOR 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

18,933.08 

P22-02674 LITERACY RESOURCES INC EARLY KINDER ORDER - 

HEGGERTY CURRICULUM

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

100.08 

P22-02675 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

CRISTO REY SCHOOL 

ACCESS LICENSES

01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 2,800.00 

P22-02676 STERLING ADAPTIVES LLC ASSIST TECH - LDV 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

12,712.88 

P22-02677 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASS FURNITURE @ 

LEONARDO DA VINCI

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

4,453.86 

P22-02678 XANDEX INC ASSIST TECHNOLOGY - KUBI 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

4,975.63 

P22-02679 FIRST CLASS BOOKS NURSING ASST PROGRAM 

BOOK

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

626.25 

P22-02680 HERTZBERG-NEW METHOD 

INC PERMA -BOUND BOOKS

SPECIAL ED - SUPPL. BOOKS 

- MR GODNICK

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

273.84 

P22-02681 DUXBURY SYS INC ASSIST TECH - ITINERANT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,780.00 

P22-02682 GRADECAM LLC CRISTO REY GRADECAM 01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 1,895.00 

P22-02683 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CALCARD 09.06.2021 

D.FLORES

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,175.00 

P22-02684 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RSS 5885: COVID 19 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

839.40 

P22-02685 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

INST MTRLS - WILL 

ANDERSON

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

546.19 

P22-02686 BOOKS EN MORE TEACHER SUPPORT 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

332.23 

P22-02687 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

SCHOLASTIC PRINT AND 

DIGITAL BOOKS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

587.81 

P22-02688 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

1,450.70 

P22-02689 PATON GROUP JCBA- VINYL 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,493.37 

P22-02690 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

FIGUEROA LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

470.45 

P22-02691 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC PAY INVOICE 16782 & 16763 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 3,666.91 

P22-02692 Joseph G Lindsay FACTFINDING 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 6,650.00 

P22-02693 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RSS 5885: SUPPLEMENTAL 

SERVICE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

499.70 

P22-02694 4 IMPRINT INC ITEMS FOR HEALTH & 

HEALING WORKSHOPS

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 1,050.81 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 15 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02695 SPHERA SOLUTIONS INC RM COMMUNICATION 

SUBSCRIPTION-CONFIRMIN

G REQ

01RISK MANAGEMENT 1,396.00 

P22-02696 EAN SERVICES LLC ECD VAN RENTALS 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 246.58 

P22-02697 MIND RESEARCH INSTITUTE ASST TECH ORDER-ST MATH 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,000.00 

P22-02698 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK AND MASTER ROLL 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

382.80 

P22-02699 BATTERIES PLUS PURCHASING WALKIE 

TALKIE BATTERIES 

REPLACEMENT

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

567.10 

P22-02700 JUDY YIMITING WONG dba 

TOPS PE N CO

PBIS INCENTIVES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

506.78 

P22-02701 QUIZIZZ INC STUDENT LICENSES FOR 

QUIZIZZ

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

9,315.00 

P22-02702 SCHOOL SPECIALTY PE PLAYGROUND SUPPLIES 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

436.13 

P22-02703 SAN JUAN UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DIST A CCOUNTS 

RECEIVABLE

Title I Services from SJUSD to 

SCUSD students

01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 20,010.38 

P22-02704 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

SCHOLASTIC CLASSROOM 

MAGAZINES 2022/2023

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

2,478.91 

P22-02705 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Amazon Order- MAY SONG 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

184.80 

P22-02706 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC FT TRANSPORTATION 5/17/22 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,940.00 

P22-02707 SCOE K12 CURRICULUM & 

INSTRUCT ION

RSP COSTS 19-20 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

35,371.20 

P22-02708 TEACHING STRATEGIES INC teaching strategies creative 

curriculum cloud

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

115,458.50 

P22-02709 CONTROLTEC INC CONTROLTEC 

CENTERTRACK PROPOSAL 

FOR ELC #1948

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

60,941.25 

P22-02710 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LASERJET PRINTERS 01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

978.75 

P22-02711 APPLE INC ASSIST TECH CARES/ESSER 

I

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

12,039.77 

P22-02712 CDW GOVERNMENT ASSIST TECH - LDV & 

ITINERANT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

12,363.44 

P22-02713 NORTHSTATE ASSISTIVE 

TECH

ASSIST TECH - ITINERANT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

23,580.38 

P22-02714 APPLE INC VANLANINGHAM MACBK 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

1,585.23 

P22-02715 JAMF HOLDINGS INC JAMF 

SOFTWAR E LLC

JamF school lifetime license 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

875.00 

P22-02716 PREP AND SAVE LLC CLASSROOM TEACHER KITS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,853.53 

P22-02717 THERAPY SHOPPE MING THERAPY SHOPPE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

677.25 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 16 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02718 EXPLORELEARNING LLC REFLEX MATH SIT LICENSE 

22-23

01ETHEL PHILLIPS 

ELEMENTARY

3,295.00 

P22-02719 HAPPY NUMBERS INC HAPPY NUMBERS SITE 

LICENSE 22-23 SCHOOL 

YEAR

01ETHEL PHILLIPS 

ELEMENTARY

2,900.00 

P22-02720 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SEL Team Globe Stress Balls 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 65.20 

P22-02721 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Equip and OIffice 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

508.74 

P22-02722 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CRISTO REY BOOK ORDER 01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 1,886.40 

P22-02723 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

REWARDS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

520.82 

P22-02724 SCOE SLY PARK SLY PARK PARTICIAPTION 

VIRTUAL SCIENCE CAMP

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

3,200.00 

P22-02725 SACRAMENTO RIVER CATS 

BASEBALL

JCBA- RIVERCATS 

ADMISSION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,972.50 

P22-02726 PITNEY BOWES RESERVE 

ACCOUNT

POSTAGE METER REFILL 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,500.00 

P22-02727 CHARTER SCHOOLS 

DEVELOPMENT CE NTER

CSDC MEMBERSHIP 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 1,038.00 

P22-02728 PROCESS THEATRE INC HIP HOP LESSONS FOR 

STUDENTS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

1,500.00 

P22-02729 PEAK ADVENTURES JCBA CHALLENGE CENTER 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,200.00 

P22-02730 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES JCBA PHYSICS SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

620.40 

P22-02731 ANN EUNHYANG KIM dba 

ARDEN FAI R CLEANERS

ROTC DRY CLEANING 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,487.55 

P22-02732 NORTHSTAR AV MING 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

62.44 

P22-02733 CITY OF SACRAMENTO 

REVENUE DIV ISION

SOCCER FIELD DUES 

-MAR/APR/MAY

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

63.00 

P22-02734 CALIFORNIA SURVEYING & 

DRAFTIN G SUPPLY INC

INK TONERS FOR HP 

DESIGNJET PLOTTER

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

875.18 

P22-02735 LINCOLN AQUATICS PORTABLE POOL PUMP 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,645.63 

P22-02736 CALIFORNIA SPORT DESIGN PE CLOTHES 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

10,383.72 

P22-02737 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

JCBA-Uniforms 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,465.94 

P22-02738 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM PRINTERS 01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

629.18 

P22-02739 CDW GOVERNMENT LAPTOPS FOR 

CONSTITUENT SERVICES

01CONSTITUENT SERVICES 8,556.01 

P22-02740 APPLE INC COMPUTER FOR KP 01CONSTITUENT SERVICES 1,598.65 

P22-02741 CDW GOVERNMENT FAX MACHINE FOR OFFICE 01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

353.69 

P22-02742 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTER FOR STUDENT 

SUPPORT CENTER

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,116.93 

P22-02743 APPLE INC JCBA INSTRUCTIONAL 

TECHNOLOGY

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

648.15 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 17 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02744 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LAPTOP CHARGERS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

478.50 

P22-02745 CDW GOVERNMENT WARD PRINTER 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

793.87 

P22-02746 APPLE INC MACBOOK  CHARGERS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

641.63 

P22-02747 CURTIS S KINDSCHUH TEACHING MATL ABOUT 

DRIVING IMPAIRED-CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

626.89 

P22-02748 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC HMS- MICROSCOPE CART 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,327.82 

P22-02749 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

Laminate Film 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

175.72 

P22-02750 GOPHER SPORT EQUIPMENT FOR PE 

CLASSES

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,298.90 

P22-02751 KAPLAN EARLY LEARNING 

CO

BOUNCY BANDS FOR 

SCHOOL DESKS-SUPP. 

MATERIALS

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,128.30 

P22-02752 LANTANA INC dba 

FASTSIGNS OF S 

ACRAMENTO

FERN BACON VINYL 

BANNERS FOR GATES

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

287.69 

P22-02753 CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL 

SUPPLY CO ACCT #121087

HMS- INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,628.67 

P22-02754 OFFICE DEPOT CHAIR FOR STAFF MEMBER 01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

244.68 

P22-02755 OFFICE DEPOT HMS- INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,693.94 

P22-02756 MT LIBRARY SERVICES 

JUNIOR LIB RARY GUILD

JLG - Library Renewal 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,366.69 

P22-02757 AEMS ATHLETICS LEAGUE SOCCER LEAGUE FEE 01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,100.00 

P22-02758 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

SCHOLASTIC NEWS 

2020-2021 - TREAT AS 

CONFIRMING

01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

593.11 

P22-02759 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SUPPLIES 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

6,498.89 

P22-02760 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

ELC Assessments 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

401.52 

P22-02761 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO SUPPLIES FOR STAFF 

INSTRUCTIONAL USE

01PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

505.69 

P22-02762 PASCO SCIENTIFIC INC SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

800.00 

P22-02763 SCHOOL OUTFITTERS DBA 

FAT CATA LOG

LECTERN FOR STUDENT 

PRESENTATIONS

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

406.61 

P22-02764 WORTHINGTON DIRECT INC STUDENT TABLES FOR 

LIBRARY

01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

1,611.36 

P22-02765 SCHOOL SPECIALTY ART MATERIALS 01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

868.95 

P22-02766 THE HOME DEPOT PRO INDUSTRIAL FANS FOR GYM 01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

604.26 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 18 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02767 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

HEALTH METER 

PROFESSIONAL SCALE FOR 

NURSE OFFICE

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

439.08 

P22-02768 THE HOME DEPOT PRO WAX SUPPLIES FOR GYM 

FLOOR

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

3,433.40 

P22-02769 SWEETWATER MUSIC 

INSTRUMENTS &  PRO 

AUDIO

MUSIC INSTRUMENTS AND 

ACESSORIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,311.17 

P22-02770 OFFICE DEPOT POSTAGE STAMPS 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

999.92 

P22-02771 HEADSETPLUS.COM WIRELESS HEADSET FOR 

FRONT OFFICE STAFF

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,136.88 

P22-02772 WRIGHT CELEBRATIONS! 

INC

STAGE/CHAIR RENTAL FOR 

2022 PROMOTION

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,393.36 

P22-02773 REGENTS OF UC UC DAVIS MESA PARTICIPATION - 

TREAT AS CONFIRMING

01WEST CAMPUS 2,250.00 

P22-02774 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TFD SUPPLIES/AMAZON 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

239.14 

P22-02775 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Culturally Responsive 

Teaching and The Brain Book

01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,004.50 

P22-02776 ALLIED 100 AED Lifepak (Allied 100) 11A.WARREN McCLASKEY 

ADULT

123.48 

P22-02777 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Amazon 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

304.73 

P22-02778 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

SCHOLASTIC NEWS 01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

2,022.08 

P22-02779 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,727.89 

P22-02780 GLOWFORGE JCBA- 3-D PRINTER 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

9,461.28 

P22-02781 SUPER DUPER INC Super Duper Digital Library 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 13,595.75 

P22-02782 CREATIVE LANGUAGE 

CLASS LLC

ONLINE GERMAN/SPANISH 

LANGUAGE RESOURCE

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

400.00 

P22-02783 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

SCHOLASTIC NEWS 

2021-2022

01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

2,897.76 

P22-02784 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

EPSON REPLACEMENT 

LAMPS-CLASS PROJECTORS 

2021-22

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

2,897.10 

P22-02785 Quizizz Inc QUIZIZZ UPGRADED 

ACCOUNTS 

EXTENSION-SUPP. TECH

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

250.00 

P22-02786 TEACHSTONE TRAINING 

LLC

TEACHSTONE 

RECERTIFICATION

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

125.00 

P22-02787 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

TEACHING SUPPLIES FOR 

SDC - COX

01A. M. WINN - K-8 337.05 

P22-02788 SOUTHWEST STRINGS MUSIC SUPPLIES- MALME 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

937.57 

P22-02789 KLINE MUSIC INC MUSIC BOOKS AND 

ACCESSORIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,966.72 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 19 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02790 GOPHER SPORT MOVEMENT EQUIPMENT - 

ALLESSANDRI

01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,268.76 

P22-02791 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC VAPA INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,485.87 

P22-02792 COULTER VENTURES LLC 

dba ROGUE  FITNESS

WEIGHT ROOM EQUIPMENT 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,601.64 

P22-02793 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-CAN

CELED BUS 3/23 BASEBALL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

500.00 

P22-02796 MICHAEL'S 

TRANSPORTATION

TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-PEN

ALTY FOR CANCELATION OF 

BUS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

798.75 

P22-02797 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

ENVIRONME NTAL 

MANAGEMENT DEPT

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

FEES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,020.00 

P22-02798 CDW GOVERNMENT EPSON PROJECTORS FOR 

CLASSROOMS-SUPLMTL 

TECH

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

5,644.13 

P22-02799 CDW GOVERNMENT HP PRODESKS FOR 

STUDENT SUPPORT 

CENTER

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

6,637.66 

P22-02800 APPLE INC PROVIDE TEACHER WITH 

UPDATED CLASSROOM 

TECHNOLOGY

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

20,394.53 

P22-02801 CDW GOVERNMENT PURCHASE OF UPDATED 

CLASSROOM TECHNOLOGY

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

17,653.20 

P22-02802 CDW GOVERNMENT HMS- CHROMEBOOKS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

12,479.18 

P22-02803 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 312.96 

P22-02804 ACADEMIC AFFAIRS YOUR 

GRADUATI ON SUPPLY

CONFIRMING-CAP, GOWN & 

TASSLES FOR 12TH 

GRADERS

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

2,198.11 

P22-02805 ACADEMIC AFFAIRS YOUR 

GRADUATI ON SUPPLY

CONFIRMING-STOLES AND 

CORDS

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,897.80 

P22-02806 EAST BAY RESTAURANT 

SUPPLY INC

APPLIANCES/SMALLWARES 

FOR CK

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

4,037.25 

P22-02807 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

SOKOLIS LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

290.89 

P22-02808 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

INK AND MASTER FOR RISO 01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

3,598.54 

P22-02809 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM LIBRARY RUG 01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

597.04 

P22-02810 EASTBAY INC SHORT/KNEE PADS FOR 

FOOTBALL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,444.95 

P22-02811 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM SET OF BOOKS 

- HOPPER

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 614.66 

P22-02812 OFFICE DEPOT MATH DEPT. INST. SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 25,328.04 

P22-02813 OFFICE DEPOT WHITEBOARDS FOR  MATH 

CLASSROOM PARTICIPATION

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,367.60 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 20 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02814 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

PURCHASE OF 

INSTRUCTIONAL 

CURRICULUM

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

16,550.00 

P22-02815 Xenith, LLC FOOTBALL HELMET 

RECONDITIONING - YEAR 4

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 5,656.88 

P22-02816 SCHOOL OUTFITTERS DBA 

FAT CATA LOG

HEADPHONES FOR 

STUDENTS-2ND ORDER

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

4,790.39 

P22-02817 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

359.11 

P22-02819 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO - SF CONTRACT 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

462.19 

P22-02820 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

LAMINATOR MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT

01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

520.82 

P22-02821 DWIGHT TAYLOR SR CONFIRMING****BOOK 

PURCHASE

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

P22-02822 WINSOR LEARNING INC Sonday Let's Play Learn 

Classroom Set

01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 1,429.52 

P22-02823 PRINTWORKS INC TRACK UNIFORMS FOR 

TRACK TEAM

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

753.71 

P22-02824 OFFICE RELIEF INC OFFICE CHAIR FOR THE 

OFFICE CLERK

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

500.48 

P22-02825 ILLUMINATE EDUCATION 

INC

FASTBRIDGE ADAPTIVE 

TESTING CURR 

MEASUREMENT

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

19,476.00 

P22-02826 LEARNING GENIE INC LEARNING GENIE 

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION 

for DRDP

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

105,875.00 

P22-02827 OFFICE DEPOT VAPA- OPTICAL MOUSE 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

276.94 

P22-02828 GARBANZO LEARNING SPANISH 

SOFTWARE - RENEW 

(P21-00425)

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

596.00 

P22-02829 ROBOTLAB INC. SOCIAL SCIENCE VR 

LICENSE

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,588.50 

P22-02830 TEACHING STRATEGIES INC teaching strategies 

ReadyRosie Classroom 

Resources

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

61,835.00 

P22-02831 TEACHING STRATEGIES INC ATTN:SIERRA CAMPBELL. 

Deliver to Textbook Services

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

16,719.63 

P22-02832 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

GENERAL MEDICAL 

SUPPLIES FOR FRONT 

OFFICE

01A. M. WINN - K-8 163.56 

P22-02833 STEWART SIGNS REPLACEMENT MARQUEE 01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

25,815.00 

P22-02834 BAR HEIN CO custodial- blower 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

462.14 

P22-02835 NORTHSTAR AV NORTHSTAR AV ELPLP42 

BULB

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

261.00 

P22-02836 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

0490-453 SUTTER HVAC-DSA 

STARTUP FEES

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

22,320.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 21 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02837 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTERS FOR ART 01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,006.39 

P22-02838 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM & EL LEARNER 

SUPPLIES

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

16,819.06 

P22-02839 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM PRINTERS 

2021-2022-ROOMS 

2,3,7,10,11,27

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

2,751.75 

P22-02840 CDW GOVERNMENT ATTN: JENNIFER PARK 

CDW-G Docking, keyboard

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

246.81 

P22-02841 GRIZZLY INDUSTRIAL INC ECD PATHWAY- 

DESIGN-BENCHTOP ENG. 

WHEEL

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

216.77 

P22-02842 HEGGERTY PHONEMIC 

AWARENESS

PHONEMIC AWARNESS 

CURRICULUM BOOKS FOR 

STUDENTS

01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

172.78 

P22-02843 FUN AND FUNCTION WEIGHTED VEST FOR 

STUDENT M.K.@ODYSSEY

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

148.73 

P22-02844 OFFICE DEPOT AAC LDV & ITINERANT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,078.78 

P22-02845 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

MING SDC 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

226.90 

P22-02846 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

LIBRARY BOOKS - EL 

CORNER

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,240.68 

P22-02847 MYBINDING LLC BINDING SUPPLIES FOR 

WALDORF MAIN LESSON BKS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 99.80 

P22-02848 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC HARRIS BLICK 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

288.76 

P22-02849 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

MING LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

236.54 

P22-02850 BOOKS EN MORE TEACHER DVLPMNT 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

1,064.11 

P22-02851 GOPHER SPORT RESTRORATIVE FUNDING - 

SPORT PLAY/SPORTS 

EQUIPMENT

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,795.90 

P22-02852 OFFICE DEPOT LAW/CJA INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,161.52 

P22-02853 SCHOOL SPECIALTY SUPPLEMENTAL INST. 

MATERIALS - SCIENCE

01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

91.17 

P22-02854 GRAINGER INC ECD PATHWAY- DRUM 

DOLLY SUPPORT RING 

@RHS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,077.42 

P22-02855 BARNES WELDING SUPPLY BENCH GRINDER, 

WELDMARK/ ROD- ECD 

PATHWAY@RHS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,715.48 

P22-02856 CENTER FOR THE 

COLLABORATIVE C 

LASSROOM

PURCHASING SIPPS 

PROGRAM

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2,720.13 

P22-02857 IXL LEARNING INC IXL SITE LICENSE 01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

23,687.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 22 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02858 3P LEARNING INC MATHSEEDS 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATH 

PROGRAM

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

930.00 

P22-02859 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

PURCHASE INTERACTIVE 

BOARDS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

109,324.05 

P22-02860 BULK BOOKSTORE BOOKS FOR STUDENTS 01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

288.93 

P22-02861 SCHOOL SPECIALTY PURCHASING BOOKCASES 

FOR CLASSROOMS

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

7,583.68 

P22-02862 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

BUTLER DS 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

937.69 

P22-02863 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

MING DS 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

74.97 

P22-02864 THERAPY SHOPPE SDC THERAPY 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

624.06 

P22-02865 XENITH LLC FOOTBALL HELMETS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

13,210.00 

P22-02866 XENITH LLC SHOULDER PADS FOR 

FOOTBALL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

13,639.94 

P22-02867 TIMS MUSIC MUSIC - RECORDERS FOR 

RYAN/6TH

01A. M. WINN - K-8 425.52 

P22-02868 WHISPERROOM INC. SLG WALL 

ISOLATION/CASTER - MULTI 

MEDIA ART PGM

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

12,933.50 

P22-02869 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES - 

AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

974.14 

P22-02870 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEV CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

148.95 

P22-02871 THE HOME DEPOT PRO YOUTH DEVELOPMENT – 

Afterschool Custodial Supplies

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

990.23 

P22-02872 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEVELOPMENT 

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

12OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

297.54 

P22-02873 DIANA FLORES NS STRIKE RESPONSE TEAM 

MEAL REIMBURSEMENT

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

520.64 

P22-02874 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

***CONFIRMING***SUPPLIES 

FOR HOMELESS STUDENTS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

403.26 

P22-02875 EAN SERVICES LLC TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-REN

TAL CARS FOR BBALL 3/1

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

217.61 

P22-02876 PARKWAY SWIMMING CLUB, 

INC

MILLION WORD READER 

FIELD TRIP - FACILITY USE 

FEE

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

350.00 

P22-02877 PEAK ADVENTURES HMS CHALLENGE CENTER 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,650.00 

P22-02878 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

6,460.00 

P22-02879 TEAMCAST LLC ATHLETICS- VOLLEYBALL 

UNIFORMS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,669.91 

P22-02880 916 INK 916Ink 01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

5,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 23 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02881 TEKK INTERNATIONAL INC SAFETY WALKIE TALKIES 01ETHEL PHILLIPS 

ELEMENTARY

773.00 

P22-02882 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES FOR 6TH GRD 01A. M. WINN - K-8 526.81 

P22-02883 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEV CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

300.67 

P22-02884 GOPHER SPORT EQUIPMENT FOR SDC MOVT 

CLASS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,273.88 

P22-02885 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

DIONISIO LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

87.86 

P22-02886 DEMCO INC ART PROJECT FOR 

RENAISSANCE BLOCK - 

RYAN

01A. M. WINN - K-8 47.31 

P22-02887 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

TPT  TEACHERS 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

155.07 

P22-02888 MERCURIUS WALDORF TEACHING 

SUPPLIES

01A. M. WINN - K-8 29,724.43 

P22-02889 E-BUILDER INC ANNUAL e-BUILDER 

LICENSING FEE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

83,573.70 

P22-02890 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HEADSETS FOR TESTING 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 2,174.90 

P22-02891 OFFICE DEPOT INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 

FOR ELA 

TEACHER-REYNAGA

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

212.36 

P22-02892 BARNES & NOBLE 

BOOKSTORES INC ACCT 

5858824

BOOKS FOR INSTRUCTION - 

ELS  (PELLA)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

386.67 

P22-02893 ACCUCUT LLC INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

63.00 

P22-02894 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK/MASTERS 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

506.78 

P22-02895 CDW GOVERNMENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

1,128.83 

P22-02896 CDW GOVERNMENT HP DESKTOPS/LAPTOPS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

23,292.46 

P22-02897 APPLE INC MAC BOOK PRO ORDER 01SUCCESS ACADEMY 1,944.16 

P22-02898 CDW GOVERNMENT ATTN: MAY SONG 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

30.17 

P22-02899 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

CAASP - LIGHTWEIGHT 

SINGLE USE EARBUDS

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 21,532.50 

P22-02900 CDW GOVERNMENT COVID - Remote Working 01RISK MANAGEMENT 1,268.58 

P22-02901 AUDIO VISUAL INNOVATIONS 

INC

SMART LEARNING 

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

376.65 

P22-02902 APPLE INC COMPUTER PERIPHERALS 

FOR DIRECTOR

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

201.08 

P22-02903 APPLE INC INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

4,257.25 

P22-02904 CDW GOVERNMENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIAL 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

452.42 

P22-02905 CDW GOVERNMENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIAL 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

115.73 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 24 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02906 CDW GOVERNMENT DOCUMENT CAMERAS AND 

PROJECTORS FOR 

TEACHERS

01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

6,603.30 

P22-02907 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTERS FOR 

CLASSROOMS

01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,198.63 

P22-02908 CDW GOVERNMENT FAX MACHINE FOR OFFICE 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

705.44 

P22-02909 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY 

OFFICE OF E DUCATION

ED-JOIN, 2021-2022 

EMPLOYEE APPLICANT 

SYSTEM

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

9,553.50 

P22-02911 BOOKS EN MORE BOOKS FOR JFK EL 

TEACHERS

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

12,330.13 

P22-02912 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

SARA TORRES 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 657.91 

P22-02913 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

DAYTON'S ORDER 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 537.81 

P22-02914 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

VAZQUEZ 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 360.23 

P22-02915 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

LOPEZ 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 437.45 

P22-02916 MHS PSYCH PROTOCOLS - NNAT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,425.50 

P22-02917 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

PEREZ 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 192.36 

P22-02918 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CISNEROS 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 214.97 

P22-02919 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

AHMADZAI 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 113.08 

P22-02920 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CHAVEZ 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 172.10 

P22-02921 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

RSP LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

179.08 

P22-02922 JAMES STANFIELD CO. VIP 

#X803

WORKABILITY RESOURCE 

CURRICULUM

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,269.32 

P22-02923 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC, acct 

334  11

SCIENCE PURCHASE 

SPRING 2021-22

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,136.91 

P22-02924 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN 

HARCOURT

Reading counts 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

4,110.75 

P22-02925 EXPLORELEARNING RAZ KIDS SUBSCRIPTION 

FOR THE 22-23 SCHOOL 

YEAR

01ETHEL PHILLIPS 

ELEMENTARY

2,160.00 

P22-02926 IXL LEARNING INC IXL MATH INTERVENTION 

PROGRAM

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

10,250.00 

P22-02927 CLASSCRAFT STUDIOS INC CLASSCRAFT SCHOOLWIDE 

LICENSE FOR STUDENTS

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

11,125.00 

P22-02928 OFFICE DEPOT CORD FOR CLASSROOM 

DOC CAM - NOGUCHI

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 52.21 

P22-02929 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

PROFESSIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

8,600.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 25 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02930 CDW GOVERNMENT PROJECTORS FOR 

CLASSROOMS

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 1,693.24 

P22-02931 CDW GOVERNMENT JCBA CHROMEBOOKS, 

CARTS, PRINTER, INK

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

34,715.86 

P22-02932 ALL WEST COACHLINES ATHLETIC TRANSPORTATION 

- B. BASKETBALL

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

983.01 

P22-02933 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW-G PROJECTOR BULBS 

FOR CLASSROOMS

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

569.73 

P22-02934 CDW GOVERNMENT HP COMPUTERS, PRINTER ( 

Monica M. Homeless Svs.)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

5,294.03 

P22-02935 CDW GOVERNMENT SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGIST 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

46,312.43 

P22-02936 APPLE INC SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGIST 

IPAD

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

20,849.81 

P22-02937 CDW GOVERNMENT STAFF TECHNOLOGY 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

48,611.25 

P22-02938 APPLE INC SPEECH MATERIAL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

131,319.94 

P22-02939 CDW GOVERNMENT DOCUMENT CAMERAS 01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

770.75 

P22-02940 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LASERJET PRINTER 01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

1,116.93 

P22-02941 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTERS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,045.00 

P22-02942 SCOE SLY PARK SLY PARK 2022-2023 

DEPOSIT-SEQUOIA

01SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,100.00 

P22-02943 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC CHARTER BUS FOR FT TO 

SAN FRANCISCO-LPPA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,577.08 

P22-02944 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC CHARTER BUS FOR FT TO 

PEAK ADVENTURES-LPPA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,387.31 

P22-02945 DELTA WIRELESS INC ADMINISTRATION_WALKIES 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,482.48 

P22-02946 ACADEMIC THERAPY 

PUBLICATIONS

PSYCHOLOGY PROTOCOLS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

770.39 

P22-02947 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CLEANING SUPPLIES FOR 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT

12WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

303.21 

P22-02948 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SAFETY EMERGENCY 

STUDENT PORTA POTTY

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,143.25 

P22-02949 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTERSCHOOL PROG 

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

01PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

1,002.24 

P22-02950 SCHOOL SPECIALTY KINDER-SCHOOL SPECIALTY 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 684.82 

P22-02951 SCHOOL SPECIALTY OBRIEN- SCHOOL 

SPECIALTY

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 75.30 

P22-02952 SCHOOL SPECIALTY DENISON-SCHOOL 

SPECIALTY

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 437.15 

P22-02953 THE HOME DEPOT PRO Youth Dev After School 

Custodial supplies

01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

1,004.19 

P22-02954 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PRESCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

299.89 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 26 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02955 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PRESCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

12H.W. HARKNESS 

ELEMENTARY

144.01 

P22-02956 OFFICE DEPOT COMB MACHINE FOR 

STUDENTS BOOKS AND 

MATERIALS

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

554.61 

P22-02957 BILL SMITH PHOTOGRAPHY GRADUATION PROGRAM 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,474.06 

P22-02959 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

SPECIALIZED LARGE PACER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,644.26 

P22-02960 CURTIS S KINDSCHUH TEACHING MATL ABOUT 

DRIVING IMPAIRED-CJA

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

626.89 

P22-02961 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART BLICK PURCHASE 

SPRING 2021-22

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

635.41 

P22-02962 BH DISTRIBUTING DBA 

EVERESTBAG S.COM

WH DISTRIBUTING LLC 

(Monica McRho Homeless)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

14,058.66 

P22-02963 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

AHMADZAI-DISCOUNT 

SCHOOL SUPPLY

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 159.01 

P22-02964 DEMCO INC LIBRARY SUPPLIES 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

122.45 

P22-02965 DEMCO INC LIBRARY BOOK SUPPLIES 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

81.09 

P22-02966 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

FIGUEROA DSS 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

131.62 

P22-02967 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

PURCHASING BOOKS FOR 

LIBRARY

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,846.85 

P22-02968 FLAGHOUSE INC RESTORATIVE FUND - 

SPORT EQUIPMENT

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,593.46 

P22-02969 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

EL READING RESOURCE - 

VILLANUEVA

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

225.23 

P22-02970 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

EL RESOUCE BOOKS - MR 

FERLAZZO

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

303.67 

P22-02971 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MS 

OGAWA

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

312.81 

P22-02972 FUN AND FUNCTION OT ORDER 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,494.29 

P22-02973 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

BOOKS FOR SCHOOL 

LIBRARY

01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

859.30 

P22-02974 CINTAS CORP STAFF_MERCH. UNIFORM 

JACKETS

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

595.63 

P22-02975 OFFICE DEPOT REPLACMNT SUPPLS FOR 

EMERGENCY CLASSROOM 

BACKPACK

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

331.73 

P22-02977 INDUSTRIAL MINERALS CO DRYING SHELF FOR 

CERAMIC

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

608.83 

P22-02978 INDUSTRIAL MINERALS CO CERAMIC SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,171.35 

P22-02979 OFFICE DEPOT ATHLETIC TABLES 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

573.54 

P22-02980 OFFICE DEPOT SHREDDER FOR OFFICE 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

591.59 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 27 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-02981 INTUIT INC QUICKBOOK ONLINE/ POS & 

ENTERPRISE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,100.00 

P22-02982 JAMY HABEGER REIMB 2104 FOR JAN-APR21 

ATHLETIC SUPPLIES

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 836.82 

P22-02983 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

OT PROTOCOLS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,372.00 

P22-02984 SCHOOL HEALTH CORP SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLIES 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

520.00 

P22-02985 RIVERSIDE ASSESSMENTS 

LLC RIVE RSIDE INSIGHTS

WOODCOCK JOHNSON IV 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,622.38 

P22-02986 SCHOOL SPECIALTY SOCIAL SCIENCE 

PURCHASE SPRING 2021-22

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,174.46 

P22-02987 REALLY GOOD STUFF SEL MATERIALS FOR USE BY 

SSW

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

856.60 

P22-02988 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PSYCHOLOGIST 

PROTOCOLS-PEARSONS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

13,125.37 

P22-02989 PAR INC PROTOCOL AND TEST KITS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

8,620.61 

P22-02990 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

CLASSROOM NOVEL SETS 

FOR 4TH GRADE

01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

736.88 

P22-02991 PHARMACY SYSTEMS INC PHARM INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,500.00 

P22-02993 SMART & FINAL Smart & Final over due 

statement

01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

491.98 

P22-02994 SCHOOL INFO APP LLC SCHOOL APP SCHOOL YEAR 

2022-2023

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,000.00 

P22-02995 SCHOOL INFO APP LLC SCHOOL INFO APP 

2022-2023 YEAR

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

3,000.00 

P22-02996 SUCCESS BY DESIGN INC STUDENT PLANNERS AND 

FOLDERS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

1,130.76 

P22-02997 TAYMARK Fence tiles for school 

appearance/spirit

01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

722.08 

P22-02998 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

PSYCHOLOGIST 

PROTOCOLS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

29,594.81 

P22-02999 THINK SOCIAL PUBLISHING 

dba SO CIAL THINKING

PSYCHOLOGIST PROTOCOL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,267.91 

P22-03000 TOVA CO PSYCHOLOGIST PROTOCOL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,280.75 

P22-03001 SOCIAL STUDIES SCHOOL 

SERVICE

MAPS FOR MS CLASSROOMS 01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,427.08 

P22-03002 BATTERY SYSTEMS replacement battery for 

janitorial auto scrubber

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

398.82 

P22-03003 SCOE SLY PARK SLY PARK 01LEONARDO da VINCI 

ELEMENTARY

1,800.00 

P22-03004 CDW GOVERNMENT CHROMEBOOK CARTS & 

CLASSROOM PRINTER

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

4,643.63 

P22-03005 CDW GOVERNMENT ADMIN -DESKTOP 

MINI_ELIZABETH

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,026.34 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 28 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-03006 ACP DIRECT STUDENT HEADPHONES TO 

USE WITH CHROMEBOOKS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

410.82 

P22-03007 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MS 

SIMONSEN

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

283.21 

P22-03008 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MR 

GREEN

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

301.11 

P22-03009 AEMS ATHLETICS LEAGUE Middle School Soccer League 

fees

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

1,100.00 

P22-03010 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

PSYCHOLOGIST 

PROTOCOLS-DIGITAL

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

13,314.60 

P22-03011 AVANT ASSESSMENT LLC AVANT Ref#18239 01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

1,005.00 

P22-03012 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MATERIALS FOR GARDEN 01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

106.50 

P22-03013 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPORT CENTER 

SUPPLIES CON'T 3

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

133.16 

P22-03014 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPORT CENTER 

SUPPLIES CON'T 4

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

67.33 

P22-03015 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIRE PROTECTANT SPRAY 01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

90.30 

P22-03016 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES NUMBERED SCRIMMAGE 

TEAM

01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

98.85 

P22-03017 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FILTERS FOR THE WATER 

STATION IN CAFETERIA

01ETHEL PHILLIPS 

ELEMENTARY

290.61 

P22-03018 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES JBL Bluetooth Speakers 01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

2,000.16 

P22-03019 SCHOOL SERVICES OF 

CALIFORNIA

SSC Enrollmnent SEATS 01BUDGET SERVICES 350.00 

P22-03020 CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTER FOR SAFE 

SCHOOLS DIRECTOR

01SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 1,393.95 

P22-03021 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

0032-416 CGREENWOOD 

PLYGRND-DSA FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

16,380.00 

P22-03022 TSE CONSTRUCTION ADA CONCRETE RAMP, ETC. 

- 1ST AVENUE

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 57,731.88 

P22-03023 SACRAMENTO RUNNING 

ASSOCIATION

Middle School Running & 

Track Championship

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

6,500.00 

P22-03024 INTERNATIONAL 

BACCALAUREATE

IB EXAM FEES 01GIFTED AND TALENTED 

EDUCATION

73,385.00 

P22-03025 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SOCIAL SCIENCE 2 

PURCHASE SPRING 2021-22

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

101.54 

P22-03026 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPP. MATERIALS FOR SPED 

LEARNING

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

127.68 

P22-03027 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

116.46 

P22-03028 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BOARD GAMES IN 

CLASSROOM - MR COEY

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

144.51 

P22-03029 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DRY ERASE LAPBOARDS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

147.72 

P22-03030 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ROOM 9 LEVEL SYSTEM 01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 153.78 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 29 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P22-03031 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ROAR CART 3 01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

176.31 

P22-03032 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RM 20/INCENTIVES 01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

176.79 

P22-03033 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPORT CENTER 

SUPPLIES CON'T 2

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

207.67 

P22-03034 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ROAR CART 2 01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

229.23 

P22-03035 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT 

REWARDS/INCENTIVES

01THEODORE JUDAH 

ELEMENTARY

231.60 

P22-03036 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ROOM 7 LEVEL SYSTEM 01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 215.14 

P22-03037 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EL AMAZON ORDER 2021-22 01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,565.40 

P22-03038 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SCIENCE INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

686.56 

P22-03039 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PAPER FOR WALDORF MAIN 

LESSON BKS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 424.09 

P22-03040 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SPED. SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM MATERIALS - 

MS MUNN

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

304.75 

P22-03041 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTERS FOR SCHOOL 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 441.87 

P22-03042 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPORT CENTER 

SUPPLIES

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

561.22 

P22-03043 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ADMINSTRATION_OFFICE 

SHREDDER

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,152.16 

P22-03044 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ROAR CART 1 01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

226.43 

P22-03045 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Student council amazon order 

for fundraiser

01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

504.17 

P22-03046 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES QUADRANT DRY ERASE 

SHEETS - MS DAVIS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

342.98 

P22-03047 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES REPLACMNT SUPPLS FOR 

EMERGENCY CLASSROOM 

BACKPACK

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

729.37 

P22-03048 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Restorative Restart Funding 

(Partial) Room 6

01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 283.24 

P22-03049 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES LAW- STANDING DESK 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

391.48 

P22-03050 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES REG RSS 5885: 

TRAIN/MATERIALS FOR 

PARTICIPANTS

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,937.98 

P22-03051 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SCHOOL SUPPLIES & 

MINDFULNESS ACTVITIES 

BOOKS

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,127.36 

P22-03052 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

290.70 

TB22-00026 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 

LLC

K-6 History Consumables 

2022-2023

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

20,613.45 

TB22-00027 CENGAGE LEARNING 2022-2023 HS ELD 

workbooks

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

3,044.46 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 30 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

TB22-00028 CENGAGE LEARNING 2022-2023 MS ELD materials 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

11,500.94 

TB22-00029 JAMIE YORK PRESS INC 2022-2023 Jamie York Waldorf 

Math 6-8th grade

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

4,034.52 

TB22-00030 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 

LLC

2022-2023 HS Textbooks 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

12,809.93 

TB22-00031 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 

LLC

HS Consumables 2022-2023 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

8,613.00 

TB22-00032 J&C BOOKS 2022-2023 Spanish Level 2 

WkBks

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

418.69 

TB22-00033 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

HS Spanish & French WkBk 

2022-2023

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

2,204.65 

TB22-00034 BENCHMARK EDUCATION 

CO LLC

2022-2023 BMA Steps to 

Advance per quote #31244

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

399.00 

TB22-00035 J&C BOOKS 2022-2023 Elementary History 

Workbooks

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

8,365.59 

TB22-00036 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS LLC

2022-2023 Elementary History 

Workbooks

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

3,636.69 

TB22-00037 J WESTON WALCH 

PUBLISHER

2022-2023 Walch Math 

Workbooks

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

33,711.30 

TB22-00038 MZHY EDITORS GROUP 2022-2023 Chinese materials 

(EC & WL)

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

1,317.85 

TB22-00039 BETTER CHINESE LLC 2022-2023 Better Chinese Bks 

for Elder Creek

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

9,336.57 

Total 6,328,736.35 Total Number of  POs 710 

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

01 General Fund 626 5,375,467.04 

09 Charter School 16 15,571.78 

11 Adult Education 15 40,564.79 

12 Child Development 28 367,586.39 

13 Cafeteria 9 143,938.57 

21 Building Fund 12 359,975.70 

25 Developer Fees 1 19,610.00 

6,322,714.27 Total Fiscal Year 2022 

01 General Fund 3 6,022.08 

6,022.08 Total Fiscal Year 2023 

Total 6,328,736.35 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 31 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B22-00098 25,000.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 15,000.00 

B22-00101 11,261.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 1,261.00 

B22-00146 30,000.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 15,000.00 

B22-00180 6,498.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00 

B22-00188 3,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 898.60 

B22-00216 900,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 400,000.00 

B22-00230 16,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 500.00 

B22-00238 6,000.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 1,500.00 

B22-00239 300.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 200.00-

B22-00243 3,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 873.61 

B22-00251 4,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,000.00-

B22-00252 2,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00-

B22-00256 5,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,000.00 

B22-00259 28,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00 

B22-00263 49,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 7,000.00 

B22-00265 179.68 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,820.32-

B22-00273 44,851.98 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 19,851.98 

B22-00276 55,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 20,000.00 

B22-00289 32,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 12,000.00 

B22-00290 1,879.03 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,379.03 

B22-00291 2,632.11 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,867.89-

B22-00292 3,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00 

B22-00293 4,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00 

B22-00314 199.06 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 800.94-

B22-00315 148.20 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,851.80-

B22-00327 700.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 4,300.00-

B22-00351 138,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 418.24 

01-5930 General Fund/Telephones/Cell Phones 25,536.66 

25,954.90 Total PO B22-00351 

B22-00355 31,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 11,000.00 

B22-00356 7,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00 

B22-00357 60,000.00 01-5810 General Fund/Tickets/Fees/Regis.for Parents 5,000.00 

B22-00359 18,937.75 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 937.75 

B22-00375 2,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 10,000.00-

B22-00389 5,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 950.13 

B22-00391 2,750.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 750.00-

B22-00392 15,000.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 1,500.00 

B22-00405 4,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00-

B22-00406 130,000.00 01-4334 General Fund/Gasoline 40,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 32 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B22-00407 5,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 3,000.00-

B22-00408 32,500.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 5,461.47 

01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 514.33 

5,975.80 Total PO B22-00408 

B22-00413 5,300.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,200.00-

B22-00415 19,000.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 11,000.00-

B22-00418 7,000.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 1,394.98 

B22-00419 7,000.00 01-5610 General Fund/Equipment Rental 3,000.00-

B22-00420 10,700.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 5,300.00-

B22-00421 40,000.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 40,000.00-

B22-00427 366,600.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 250,000.00-

B22-00428 30,320.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 10,320.00 

B22-00431 374,400.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 326,400.00 

B22-00455 30,161.00 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 20,000.00 

B22-00458 785,668.80 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 229,000.00 

B22-00478 154,611.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 34,000.00 

B22-00483 31,294.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 10,000.00 

B22-00485 230,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 80,000.00 

B22-00518 104,118.40 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 30,000.00-

B22-00522 50,000.00 01-5540 General Fund/Waste Removal 10,000.00-

B22-00535 195,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 45,000.00 

B22-00547 116,362.50 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 56,550.00 

B22-00550 2,700.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

B22-00579 30,329.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 329.00 

B22-00581 5,515.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 600.00 

B22-00585 15,000.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 5,000.00 

B22-00601 450,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 54,070.46 

B22-00604 350.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 50.00 

B22-00624 65,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 30,000.00 

B22-00655 104,924.80 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 61,200.00 

B22-00679 4,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 741.59 

B22-00732 4,600.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,300.00 

B22-00747 12,500.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 2,500.00 

B22-00758 17,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00 

B22-00768 6,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 1,000.00 

CHB22-00062 37,360.00 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 25,000.00 

CHB22-00076 31,000.00 13-4320 Cafeteria/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,000.00 

CHB22-00085 30,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 10,000.00 

CHB22-00086 5,376.29 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 376.29 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 33 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

CHB22-00145 17,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB22-00181 2,315.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli .00 

01-5610 General Fund/Equipment Rental .00 

.00 Total PO CHB22-00181 

CHB22-00191 13,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB22-00255 4,500.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 731.87 

CHB22-00261 11,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 4,000.00 

CHB22-00267 20,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,372.52 

CHB22-00278 3,200.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,300.00 

CHB22-00281 20,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 9,000.00 

CHB22-00306 14,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 4,000.00 

CHB22-00321 11,381.37 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,110.00 

01-4317 General Fund/Instructional Matl Lab Costs 229.92 

5,339.92 Total PO CHB22-00321 

CHB22-00326 10,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 4,000.00 

CHB22-00358 3,600.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,800.00 

CHB22-00365 5,500.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,000.00 

CHB22-00372 1,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 500.00 

CS21-00306 36,968.24 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 2,500.00 

21-5800 Building Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 4,468.24 

6,968.24 Total PO CS21-00306 

CS22-00115 164,475.00 21-5800 Building Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 6,000.00 

CS22-00143 96,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 86,000.00 

CS22-00210 39,000.00 21-5800 Building Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 19,000.00 

CS22-00215 251,943.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses .00 

CS22-00237 26,550.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 4,950.00 

N22-00014 140,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 60,000.00 

N22-00028 65,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 25,000.00 

N22-00034 260,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 160,000.00 

N22-00043 190,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 74,859.05 

N22-00048 220,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 75,000.00 

N22-00051 3,900,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 1,500,000.00 

P21-00490 13,276.49 01-6170 General Fund/Land Improvement 857.71 

P22-00358 4,811.15 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 106.96-

01-4410 General Fund/Equipment $500 - $4,999 129.54-

236.50-Total PO P22-00358 

P22-00543 21,815.67 13-6490 Cafeteria/Equipment over $5,000 1,414.23 

P22-00619 998.62 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 48.89-

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 34 of 35



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2022 - 04/14/2022 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

P22-00841 762.37 01-4210 General Fund/Other Books-General 265.55-

P22-01168 458.77 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 17.43-

P22-01208 25,865.97 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 49.90-

01-4410 General Fund/Equipment $500 - $4,999 52.05-

101.95-Total PO P22-01208 

P22-01502 157.79 01-4210 General Fund/Other Books-General 111.66-

P22-01712 989,556.76 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 852,980.63-

P22-01749 1,080.59 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 78.26-

P22-02008 2,961.78 12-4410 Child Development/Equipment $500 - $4,999 357.05-

P22-02289 123.00 01-4210 General Fund/Other Books-General 8.64-

P22-02303 7,844.62 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 141.98-

P22-02317 52,401.54 12-4410 Child Development/Equipment $500 - $4,999 4,760.64-

P22-02318 10,510.48 12-4410 Child Development/Equipment $500 - $4,999 1,193.55-

P22-02335 18,302.03 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 144.83-

P22-02337 979.94 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 30.34-

P22-02371 288.77 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 21.55-

P22-02391 33,467.35 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 715.35-

Total PO Changes 2,441,702.91 

Information is further limited to: (Minimum Amount = (999,999.99))

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May 10 2022  

1:28PM

Page 35 of 35


	5-19-22 Draft Agenda, Final Updated 5-16-22-R2
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	8.1 Item
	8.1 CS Asian Amer - Pacific Islander Heritage Month
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	8.1-1 Res No 3273 AAPI BOARD RESOLUTION SCUSD

	8.2 Item
	8.2 CS Sex Ed for All Month
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	8.2-1 Res No 3275 SCUSD Sex-ed for all month Resolution

	8.3 CS Safety Update_Agenda Cover Sheet v2
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	10.1 Item
	10.1 CS Third Interim_cover_
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	10.1-1 2021-22 3rd Interim Budget_exec summ_ V5
	General Fund Revenue Components
	Education Protection Account
	General Fund Operating Expenditure Components
	Cash Flow
	Conclusion

	10.1-2 2021-22 Third Interim Financial Report
	Cover page and Masterhead
	Table of Contents updated 3.18.21
	2021-22 SCUSD 3RD INTERIM BUDGET MYP WITH 4th YEAR 6.56 COLA_FINAL
	Title Definitions General Fund
	2021-22 SCUSD 3RD INTERIM BUDGET General Fund
	2021-22 Cash Flow Third Interim Report_Final


	10.2 Iterm
	10.2 CS UPK Agenda Cover Sheet Template, 5.13.22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	10.2-1 UPK Executive Summary Template-5-19-2022

	10.3 Item
	10.3 CS Res No 3272 Teach TK - Cover (SC363722xAAE13)
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	10.3-1 Res No 3272 Regarding Qualification to Serve as TK Teacher (00964322xAAE13)
	10.3-2 ES - TK Resolution (SC363737xAAE13)

	10.4 Item
	10.4 CS LCAP Summary of Partner input_5.19.22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	10.4-1 ES LCAP Summary of Partner Input_5.19.22
	I. Overview/History of Department or Program
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget:
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	1. A summary of the engagement process
	2. A summary of the input provided by specific educational partner groups
	3. A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific educational partner input.
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:


	11.1a Item2
	11.1a CS Grants 5-19-22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1a-1 A22-00081 CDE
	11.1a-2 R22-04800 Miracle Play
	11.1a-3 R22-04792 Park Assoc
	11.1a-4 R22-04002 Park Assoc
	Qt 22-1676 - Caroline Wenzel - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1677 - Earl Warren - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1678 - Elder Creek - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1679 - Hollywood Park - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - NPP - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1680 - John Still (K-5) - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - NPP - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1681 - Mark Twain - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - NPP - 3.4.22
	Qt 22-1682 - Rosa Parks - Sacramento City Schools - 30'x64' ICON DSA Hip - NPP - 3.4.22
	REVISED Qt 22-2066 - Leonardo Da Vinci - Sacramento City Schools - 30X64' ICON DSA Hip - NPP - 4.5.22

	11.1a-5 SA22-00221 Tutor Me
	11.1a-6 S22-00072 Mountain Valley
	11.1a-7 SA22-00209 Vision 2000
	11.1a-8 LLB Otto Burbank Pool
	11.1a-9 LLB Landmark JFK C-Wing
	0525-442-2 JFK HVAC Contract Docs Landmark_FINAL
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	By and between
	And
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project
	Developer must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.
	PAYMENT BOND
	John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project
	Developer must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.
	WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION
	PREVAILING WAGE AND
	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION
	A complete and accurate list of Developer's employees and of all of its subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto as ATTACHMENT “A;” and/or
	ATTACHMENT “A”
	COVID-19 VACCINATION/TESTING CERTIFICATION
	CERTIFICATION
	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION
	TOBACCO-FREE ENVIRONMENT CERTIFICATION
	DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATION
	You must complete the following table to show the dollar amount of DVBE participation:
	CERTIFICATION
	HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROCEDURES & REQUIREMENTS
	3. Notice of Hazardous Waste or Materials
	4. Additional Warranties and Representations
	5. Monitoring and Testing
	6. Compliance with Laws
	7. Disposal
	8. Permits
	9. Indemnification
	10. Termination
	IMPORTED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION
	REGISTERED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST
	PROJECT:  John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project
	NOTICE OF AWARD
	NOTICE TO PROCEED WITH PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES
	NOTICE OF AWARD AFTER GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE
	NOTICE TO PROCEED WITH CONSTRUCTION
	California All-Purpose Certificate of Acknowledgment
	CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE FORM
	ALLOWANCE EXPENDITURE DIRECTIVE FORM
	Signatures:
	DAILY FORCE ACCOUNT REPORT
	PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER FORM
	CHANGE ORDER FORM
	Signatures:
	[Contractor’s Name] hereby unconditionally guarantees that the Work performed at JOHN F. KENNEDY C-WING HVAC REPLACEMENT PROJECT RFP#0525-442-2/6715 Gloria Dr. Sacramento, CA  95831 has been done in accordance with the requirements of the Contract t...
	AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS


	0525-442-2 JFK HVAC FL w all Exhibits Landmark FINAL
	FACILITIES LEASE
	By and between
	And
	Exhibits A - H
	RECITALS
	1. Definitions
	2. Exhibits
	2.7 Exhibit F - Construction Schedule
	4. Term
	5. Payment
	6. Title
	7. Quiet Enjoyment
	8. Representations of the District
	8.1 Due Organization and Existence
	8.2 Authorization
	8.3 No Violations
	8.4 Condemnation Proceedings
	9. Representations of Developer
	9.1 Due Organization and Existence
	9.2 Authorization
	9.3 No Violations
	9.4 No Bankruptcy
	9.5 No Encumbrances
	9.6 Continued Existence
	10. Preconstruction Services
	10.1.1 General Services
	10.1.2 Review of Design Documents.
	10.1.3 Budget of Project Costs.
	10.1.4 Construction Schedule and Phasing Plan
	10.1.5 Construction Planning and Bidding
	10.2 Schedule
	10.3 Ownership of Records
	10.4 Open Book Policy
	10.5 Compensation to Developer for Preconstruction Services
	10.6 Termination before Construction Phase
	10.7 Construction Phase
	11. Construction of Project
	11.1.2 Contract Time / Construction Schedule
	11.1.3 Schedule of Values
	11.1.4 Liquidated Damages
	11.1.5 Guaranteed Maximum Price
	11.1.6 Modifications
	11.1.7 Labor Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement by Department of Industrial Relations
	12. Maintenance
	13. Utilities
	14. Taxes and Other Impositions
	15. Insurance
	Exhibit D.
	15.1.2 Excess Liability Insurance
	15.1.3 Subcontractor
	15.1.4 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance
	15.1.5 Builder's Risk Insurance: Builder's Risk “All Risk” Insurance
	15.1.6 Pollution Liability Insurance
	15.1.7 Proof of Carriage of Insurance and Other Requirements Endorsements and Certificates
	15.1.8 Insurance Policy Limits
	15.2 District’s Insurance
	15.2.2 Property Insurance
	16. Indemnification and Defense
	17. Eminent Domain
	17.2 Total Taking Prior to Project Delivery
	17.3 Partial Taking
	18. Damage and Destruction
	19. Abatement
	20. Access
	20.2 By District
	21. Assignment, Subleasing
	21.2 Assignment by Developer
	22. Termination, Default And Suspension
	22.2 District’s Request for Assurances
	22.3 District's Right to Terminate Developer for Cause
	22.3.2 Notification of Termination
	22.3.3 Effect of Termination
	22.4 Termination of Developer for Convenience
	22.5 Developer Remedies Upon District Default
	22.5.2 Remedies on District’s Default
	22.5.3 District’s Continuing Obligation
	22.5.4 No Remedy Exclusive
	22.6 Emergency Termination Pursuant to Public Contracts Act of 1949
	22.7 Suspension of Work
	23. Limitation of District Liability
	24. Notices
	If to District: If to Developer:
	With a copy to:
	25. Binding Effect
	26. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver
	27. Severability
	28. Amendments, Changes and Modifications
	29. Net-Net-Net Lease
	30. Execution in Counterparts
	31. Developer and District Representatives
	32. Applicable Law
	33. Attorney's Fees
	34. Captions
	35. Prior Agreements
	36. Further Assurances
	37. Recitals and Exhibits Incorporated
	38. Time of the Essence
	39. Force Majeure
	40. Interpretation
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT B DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT
	EXHIBIT C
	2. Guaranteed Maximum Price
	2.1 Cost of the Work
	2.1.1 General Conditions
	2.1.2 Subcontract Costs
	2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work
	2.1.4 Allowances
	2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs
	2.1.6 Excluded Costs
	2.1.7 Developer’s Fee
	2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance
	2.1.9 Contingency
	2.3 Total Payment
	2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price
	2.4.4 Cost Savings
	3. Tenant Improvement Payments
	4. Lease Payments
	4.3 Fair Rental Value
	4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District
	5.  District’s Purchase Option
	ATTACHMENT 1 GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS
	(To Be Inserted Via GMP Construction Amendment)
	ATTACHMENT 3 SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS
	Payment
	Totals
	1. Contract Terms and Definitions
	1.2 Laws Concerning the Contract Documents
	1.3 No Oral Agreements
	1.4 No Assignment
	1.5 Notice and Service Thereof
	1.6 No Waiver
	1.7 Substitutions For Specified Items
	1.8 Materials and Work
	1.8.10 [Reserved]
	2. [Reserved]
	3. Architect
	4. Construction Manager
	5. Inspector, Inspections, and Tests
	5.2 Tests and Inspections
	5.3 Costs for After Hours and/or Off Site Inspections
	6. Developer
	6.1 Status of Developer
	6.1.5 [Reserved]
	6.1.7 [Reserved]
	6.2 Project Inspection Card(s)
	6.3 Developer’s Supervision
	6.4 Duty to Provide Fit Workers
	6.5 Field Office
	6.6 Purchase of Materials and Equipment
	6.7 Documents on Work
	6.8 Preservation of Records
	6.9 Integration of Work
	6.10 Notifications
	6.11 Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations
	6.12 Royalties and Patents
	6.13 Work to Comply With Applicable Laws and Regulations
	6.13.5 [Reserved]
	6.15 General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (“Construction Storm Water Permit”)
	6.16 Working Evenings and Weekends
	6.17 Cleaning Up
	6.18 No Relief from Obligations Based on Review by Other Persons
	7. Subcontractors
	8. Other Contracts/Contractors
	9. Drawings and Specifications
	9.10 Ownership of Drawings
	10.  Developer’s Submittals and Schedules
	10.1 Schedule of Work, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values.
	10.2 Monthly Progress Schedule(s)
	10.3 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)
	10.4 Submittals
	11. Site Access, Conditions, And Requirements
	11.2 Soils Investigation Report
	11.3 Access to Work
	11.4 Layout and Field Engineering
	11.5 Utilities
	11.6 Sanitary Facilities
	11.7 Surveys
	11.8 Regional Notification Center
	11.9 Existing Utility Lines
	11.10 Notification
	11.11 Hazardous Materials
	11.12 No Signs
	12. Trenches
	12.2 Excavation Safety
	12.3 No Tort Liability of District
	12.4 No Excavation without Permits
	12.5 Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions
	13. Insurance and Bonds
	13.2 Contract Security – Bonds
	14. Warranty/Guarantee/Indemnity
	14.2 Indemnity
	15. Time
	15.2 Computation of Time / Adverse Weather
	15.3 Hours of Work
	15.4 Progress and Completion
	15.5 Schedule
	15.6 Expeditious Completion
	16. Extensions of Time – Liquidated Damages, Excusable Delays
	16.2 Excusable Delay
	16.3 No Additional Compensation for Delays within Developer’s Control
	16.4 Float or Slack in the Schedule
	17. Changes in the Work
	17.2 Architect Authority
	17.3 Change Orders
	17.4 Proposed Change Order
	17.5 Format for Proposed Change Order
	17.6 Change Order Certification
	17.7 Determination of Change Order Cost
	17.8 Deductive Change Orders
	17.9 Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s)
	17.10 Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds
	17.11 Construction Change Directives
	17.12 Force Account Directives
	17.13 Price Request
	17.14 Accounting Records
	17.15 Notice Required
	17.16 Applicability to Subcontractors
	17.17 Alteration to Change Order Language
	17.18 Failure of Developer to Execute Change Order
	18. Requests For Information
	19. Payments
	19.2 Applications for Tenant Improvement Payments
	19.3 District’s Approval of Application for Payment
	19.4 Decisions to Withhold Payment
	19.5 Subcontractor Payments
	20. Completion of the Work
	20.2 Close-Out/Certification Procedures
	20.3 Final Inspection
	20.4 Costs of Multiple Inspections
	20.5 Partial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion
	21. Final Payment and Retention
	21.2 Prerequisites for Final Payment
	21.3 Retention
	21.4 Substitution of Securities
	22. Uncovering of Work
	23. Nonconforming Work and Correction of Work
	23.2 Correction of Work
	23.3 District's Right to Perform Work
	24. Termination And Suspension
	25. Claims Process
	25.2 Duty to Perform during Claim Process
	25.3 Definition of Claim
	25.4 Claims Presentation
	25.5 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204
	25.5.1 STEP 1:
	25.5.2 STEP 2:
	25.5.3 STEP 3:
	25.5.4 STEP 4:
	25.6 Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims
	25.7 Government Code Claim Act Claim
	25.8 Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq.
	25.9 Claims Procedure Compliance
	25.10 Claim Resolution Non-Applicability
	25.11 Attorney’s Fees
	26. State Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions
	26.2 Wage Rates, Travel, and Subsistence
	26.3 Hours of Work
	26.4 Payroll Records
	26.5 [Reserved]
	26.7 Reserved
	26.8 [Reserved]
	26.10 Labor First Aid
	27. [Reserved]
	28. Miscellaneous
	28.2 Excise Taxes
	28.3 Taxes
	28.4 Shipments
	28.5 Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements
	EXHIBIT D-1  SPECIAL CONDITIONS
	2. COVID-19 Safety and Social Distancing Requirements
	3. Modernization Projects
	3.2. Master Key.
	3.3. Maintaining Services.
	3.4. Maintaining Utilities.
	3.5. Confidentiality.
	3.6. Work during Instructional Time.
	3.7. No Work during Student Testing.
	4. Construction Manager
	5. Project Labor Agreement/Payroll Records
	6. As-Builts and Record Drawings
	7. Federal Funds – Wages
	27. Federal Labor, Wage & Hour, Apprentice, And Related Provisions
	27.2 Withholding
	27.4 Apprentices and trainees
	27.4.2 Trainees
	27.5 Compliance with Copeland Act requirements
	27.6 Subcontracts
	27.7 Contract termination: debarment
	27.8 Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements
	27.9 Disputes concerning labor standards
	27.10 Certification of eligibility
	27.11.2 Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages
	27.11.3 Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages
	27.11.4 Subcontracts
	15. Federal Funds – Debarment
	16. Federal Funds – Byrd Anti-Lobbying
	17. Federal Funds – Procurement of recovered materials
	18. Federal Funds - Domestic preferences for procurements
	EXHIBIT E
	THIS MEMORANDUM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE IS ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the
	EXHIBIT F
	EXHIBIT G
	Exhibit H to Facilities Lease
	SIGNATURES
	JNorthem CaliFomia Carpenters Itegional Council UA of Joume$  n A Apprentíces o£the on behal£of itselr «nd its affili8ted Local Unions Flumbi›!B P+ ! 1+ irlg Ind, Local //3S5
	e tor C ucto o 8
	Asbestos, Lea and Mold Laborers Locat //67
	Iron Workers Local # 118
	Operating Engineers Local #3
	District Council #16 International

	0 •rati»g Engineers Local #3
	off bshalfo7lMlf ant its affiliated Lo«al Unions Plumbing A Plpo Fitting Ind. Local #355

	Dlstrict Council #16 IntomaHonal Unlox o£Paintoe & Allied Tzados
	Boilemiakers Lncal 11549
	Ccm‹ntM€ons1ocal#400
	District Councll #16 lntemationnl
	CcmentMwonsLocn!#400
	on 8cl›xlF of ikelF and its affiliated Local Unlons
	Plumbors & Plpefitters Local #447
	TeBmsters Local #ï 50
	Plxstcrcrs A Cmc»t Masons L0cBI /f300


	Asbestos Workers Local #16
	Cement Masons Local #400

	Northern California Carpenters Regional UA of Journeymen & Apprentices of the Council on behalf of itself and its affiliated Plumbing & Pipe Fitting Ind. Local #355 Local Unions
	District Council #16 International Union of Painters & Allied Trades
	International Brotherhood of Electricians Sheet Metal Workers Local #104 Local #340
	22

	MüONS
	Ast›estos Workers Locol //16
	Plumbers & Pipefitters Local Ií447
	Teamsters Local #l50
	Bdckloy«uLocx1#3
	Nortliem Colifomia Cnrpenleis Regional Council UA of Joumeymen & Apprcntices of lhc
	District Cou4cil #16 lntemationзl Union г rBlntcrs А Allicd Trcdcs
	Plumbots & Pipeйnets Loвnl #447
	Teamsleri Locnl J 150
	Plasicme & Cemcnt Masons Local #300
	Plunibers & Pipofittets Locnl #447
	International Bi‘other1iood of Electricians Sheet Metal Wor1‹ei's Local #104
	Teainstei's Local #150
	20

	lrou Worbets Local li118
	Laboters Lecai #183
	O¡mGngEngincersLoca1#3

	Norihern Califomia Carpenteis Regional Council UA of Journeymcn & Apprcntices of the

	Currently being routed for signatures - will replace with executed copy when available.
	Asbestos, Lead and Mold Laborers Local #67
	Boilermakers Local #549
	Bricklayers Local #3 Operating Engineers Local # 3
	District Council #16 International Union of Painters & Allied Trades
	Elevator Constructors Local #8 Roofers Local #81
	International Brotherhood of Electricians Local #340


	0525-442-2 JFK HVAC Pre-Con Srvs BA Language_Landmark_FINAL
	0525-442-2 JFK HVAC SL Landmark FINAL
	SITE LEASE
	By and between
	SITE LEASE
	RECITALS
	1. Definitions
	2. Exhibits
	3. Lease of the Site
	4. Leaseback of the Project and Site
	5. Term
	6. Payment
	7. Termination
	7.2. Termination Due to Default by Developer
	7.3. Termination Due to Default by District
	8. Title to Site
	9. Improvements
	10. No Merger
	11. Right of Entry
	12. Quiet Enjoyment
	13. Waste
	14. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments
	15. Representations of the District
	15.1. Due Organization and Existence
	15.2. Authorization
	15.3. No Violations
	15.4. CEQA Compliance
	15.5. Condemnation Proceedings
	15.6. Use and Zoning
	15.7. Taxes
	16. Representations of the Developer
	16.1. Due Organization and Existence
	16.2. Authorization
	16.3. No Violations
	16.4. No Bankruptcy
	16.5. No Litigation
	17. Insurance and Indemnity
	18. Assignment and Subleasing
	19. Restrictions on District
	20. Liens and Further Encumbrances
	21. Notices
	22. Binding Effect
	23. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver
	24. Severability
	25. Amendments, Changes and Modifications
	26. Obligations Absolute
	27. Execution in Counterparts
	28. Developer and District Representatives
	29. Applicable Law
	30. Attorney's Fees
	31. Captions
	32. Prior Agreements
	33. Further Assurances
	34. Recitals Incorporated
	35. Time of the Essence
	36. Force Majeure
	37. Interpretation
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT B


	11.1a-10 LLB Otto Sutter HVAC

	11.1b Item
	11.1b CS 5-19-2022 Cover page Personnel Transactions
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1b-1 5-19-2022 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	11.1b-2 5-19-2022 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	11.1c Item
	11.1c CS Donations Cover April 2022 05.19.22
	Meeting Date:   May 19, 2022

	11.1c-1 Donations Receipt Detail April 2022
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA22-0001899
	BA22-0001964
	BA22-0001992
	BA22-0002065



	2
	2022
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW22-0000931
	BW22-0000932
	BW22-0000938
	BW22-0000970
	BW22-0000971



	2
	2022
	01
	

	09
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	C




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C









	11.1d Item
	11.1d CS Warrants & Checks Cover April 2022 5.19.22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1d-1 2022.04 APR2022 All Payments

	11.1e Item
	11.1e CS Res No 3269 Delegating Duty
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1e-1 Res No 3269 Delegating Duty to Accept Bids - May 19, 2022 Board Meeting

	11.1f Item
	11.1f CS Res No 3274 Office of Public School Construction
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1f-1 Resolution 3274 District Representative Resolution OPSC

	11.1g Item
	11.1g CS Sutter Fld Trip 6.17.22 Wash DC & NY - 75 students
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1g-1 Sutter to WashingtonDC and NY Board Docs for Review

	11.1h Item
	11.1h CS Sutter Fld Trip 6.18.22 Wash DC, Gettysburg & Virginia 19 students
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1h-1 Sutter Fld Trip Board Docs. for Review

	11.1i Item
	11.1i CS CKM Fld Trip 5.27.22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1i-1 CKM FTrip 5.27.22 Board Docs for Review

	11.1j Item
	11.1j CS Minutes April 21, 2022
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	11.1j-1 4-21-22 Final Draft Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	11.1k CS Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Grant
	Meeting Date:  May19, 2022

	12.1 Item
	12.1 CS Business and Financial Cover_05.19.22
	Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022

	12.1-1 PO Report 3.15.22-4.14.22
	Board Report with Fund
	97
	1
	B22-00795
	B22-00796
	B22-00797
	B22-00798
	B22-00799
	B22-00800
	B22-00801
	B22-00802
	B22-00803
	B22-00804
	B22-00805
	B22-00806
	B22-00807
	B22-00808
	B22-00809
	B22-00810
	B22-00811
	B22-00812
	B22-00813
	B22-00814
	B22-00815
	B22-00816
	B22-00817
	B22-00818
	B22-00819
	CHB22-00376
	CHB22-00377
	CHB22-00378
	CHB22-00379
	CHB22-00380
	CHB22-00381
	CHB22-00382
	CHB22-00383
	CHB22-00384
	CHB22-00385
	CHB22-00386
	CHB22-00387
	CS22-00345
	CS22-00346
	CS22-00347
	CS22-00349
	CS22-00350
	CS22-00351
	CS22-00352
	CS22-00353
	CS22-00354
	CS22-00355
	CS22-00356
	CS22-00357
	CS22-00358
	CS22-00359
	CS22-00360
	CS22-00361
	CS22-00362
	CS22-00363
	CS22-00364
	CS22-00365
	CS22-00366
	CS22-00367
	CS22-00368
	CS22-00369
	CS22-00370
	CS22-00371
	CS22-00372
	CS22-00373
	CS22-00374
	P22-01396
	P22-02414
	P22-02415
	P22-02416
	P22-02417
	P22-02418
	P22-02419
	P22-02420
	P22-02421
	P22-02422
	P22-02423
	P22-02424
	P22-02425
	P22-02426
	P22-02427
	P22-02428
	P22-02429
	P22-02430
	P22-02431
	P22-02432
	P22-02433
	P22-02434
	P22-02435
	P22-02436
	P22-02437
	P22-02438
	P22-02439
	P22-02440
	P22-02441
	P22-02442
	P22-02443
	P22-02444
	P22-02445
	P22-02446
	P22-02447
	P22-02448
	P22-02449
	P22-02450
	P22-02451
	P22-02452
	P22-02453
	P22-02454
	P22-02455
	P22-02456
	P22-02457
	P22-02458
	P22-02459
	P22-02460
	P22-02461
	P22-02462
	P22-02463
	P22-02464
	P22-02465
	P22-02466
	P22-02467
	P22-02468
	P22-02469
	P22-02470
	P22-02471
	P22-02472
	P22-02473
	P22-02474
	P22-02475
	P22-02476
	P22-02477
	P22-02478
	P22-02479
	P22-02480
	P22-02482
	P22-02483
	P22-02484
	P22-02485
	P22-02486
	P22-02487
	P22-02488
	P22-02489
	P22-02490
	P22-02491
	P22-02492
	P22-02493
	P22-02494
	P22-02495
	P22-02496
	P22-02497
	P22-02498
	P22-02499
	P22-02500
	P22-02501
	P22-02502
	P22-02503
	P22-02504
	P22-02505
	P22-02506
	P22-02507
	P22-02508
	P22-02509
	P22-02510
	P22-02511
	P22-02512
	P22-02513
	P22-02514
	P22-02515
	P22-02516
	P22-02517
	P22-02518
	P22-02519
	P22-02520
	P22-02521
	P22-02522
	P22-02523
	P22-02524
	P22-02525
	P22-02526
	P22-02527
	P22-02528
	P22-02529
	P22-02530
	P22-02531
	P22-02532
	P22-02533
	P22-02534
	P22-02535
	P22-02536
	P22-02537
	P22-02538
	P22-02539
	P22-02540
	P22-02541
	P22-02542
	P22-02543
	P22-02544
	P22-02545
	P22-02546
	P22-02547
	P22-02548
	P22-02549
	P22-02550
	P22-02551
	P22-02552
	P22-02553
	P22-02554
	P22-02555
	P22-02556
	P22-02557
	P22-02558
	P22-02559
	P22-02560
	P22-02561
	P22-02562
	P22-02563
	P22-02564
	P22-02565
	P22-02566
	P22-02567
	P22-02568
	P22-02569
	P22-02570
	P22-02571
	P22-02572
	P22-02573
	P22-02574
	P22-02575
	P22-02576
	P22-02577
	P22-02578
	P22-02579
	P22-02580
	P22-02581
	P22-02582
	P22-02583
	P22-02584
	P22-02585
	P22-02586
	P22-02587
	P22-02588
	P22-02589
	P22-02590
	P22-02591
	P22-02592
	P22-02593
	P22-02594
	P22-02595
	P22-02596
	P22-02597
	P22-02598
	P22-02599
	P22-02600
	P22-02601
	P22-02602
	P22-02603
	P22-02604
	P22-02605
	P22-02606
	P22-02607
	P22-02608
	P22-02609
	P22-02610
	P22-02611
	P22-02612
	P22-02613
	P22-02614
	P22-02615
	P22-02616
	P22-02617
	P22-02618
	P22-02619
	P22-02620
	P22-02621
	P22-02622
	P22-02623
	P22-02624
	P22-02625
	P22-02626
	P22-02628
	P22-02629
	P22-02630
	P22-02631
	P22-02632
	P22-02633
	P22-02634
	P22-02635
	P22-02636
	P22-02637
	P22-02638
	P22-02639
	P22-02640
	P22-02641
	P22-02642
	P22-02643
	P22-02644
	P22-02645
	P22-02646
	P22-02647
	P22-02648
	P22-02649
	P22-02650
	P22-02651
	P22-02652
	P22-02653
	P22-02655
	P22-02656
	P22-02657
	P22-02658
	P22-02659
	P22-02660
	P22-02661
	P22-02662
	P22-02663
	P22-02664
	P22-02665
	P22-02666
	P22-02667
	P22-02668
	P22-02669
	P22-02670
	P22-02671
	P22-02672
	P22-02673
	P22-02674
	P22-02675
	P22-02676
	P22-02677
	P22-02678
	P22-02679
	P22-02680
	P22-02681
	P22-02682
	P22-02683
	P22-02684
	P22-02685
	P22-02686
	P22-02687
	P22-02688
	P22-02689
	P22-02690
	P22-02691
	P22-02692
	P22-02693
	P22-02694
	P22-02695
	P22-02696
	P22-02697
	P22-02698
	P22-02699
	P22-02700
	P22-02701
	P22-02702
	P22-02703
	P22-02704
	P22-02705
	P22-02706
	P22-02707
	P22-02708
	P22-02709
	P22-02710
	P22-02711
	P22-02712
	P22-02713
	P22-02714
	P22-02715
	P22-02716
	P22-02717
	P22-02718
	P22-02719
	P22-02720
	P22-02721
	P22-02722
	P22-02723
	P22-02724
	P22-02725
	P22-02726
	P22-02727
	P22-02728
	P22-02729
	P22-02730
	P22-02731
	P22-02732
	P22-02733
	P22-02734
	P22-02735
	P22-02736
	P22-02737
	P22-02738
	P22-02739
	P22-02740
	P22-02741
	P22-02742
	P22-02743
	P22-02744
	P22-02745
	P22-02746
	P22-02747
	P22-02748
	P22-02749
	P22-02750
	P22-02751
	P22-02752
	P22-02753
	P22-02754
	P22-02755
	P22-02756
	P22-02757
	P22-02758
	P22-02759
	P22-02760
	P22-02761
	P22-02762
	P22-02763
	P22-02764
	P22-02765
	P22-02766
	P22-02767
	P22-02768
	P22-02769
	P22-02770
	P22-02771
	P22-02772
	P22-02773
	P22-02774
	P22-02775
	P22-02776
	P22-02777
	P22-02778
	P22-02779
	P22-02780
	P22-02781
	P22-02782
	P22-02783
	P22-02784
	P22-02785
	P22-02786
	P22-02787
	P22-02788
	P22-02789
	P22-02790
	P22-02791
	P22-02792
	P22-02793
	P22-02796
	P22-02797
	P22-02798
	P22-02799
	P22-02800
	P22-02801
	P22-02802
	P22-02803
	P22-02804
	P22-02805
	P22-02806
	P22-02807
	P22-02808
	P22-02809
	P22-02810
	P22-02811
	P22-02812
	P22-02813
	P22-02814
	P22-02815
	P22-02816
	P22-02817
	P22-02819
	P22-02820
	P22-02821
	P22-02822
	P22-02823
	P22-02824
	P22-02825
	P22-02826
	P22-02827
	P22-02828
	P22-02829
	P22-02830
	P22-02831
	P22-02832
	P22-02833
	P22-02834
	P22-02835
	P22-02836
	P22-02837
	P22-02838
	P22-02839
	P22-02840
	P22-02841
	P22-02842
	P22-02843
	P22-02844
	P22-02845
	P22-02846
	P22-02847
	P22-02848
	P22-02849
	P22-02850
	P22-02851
	P22-02852
	P22-02853
	P22-02854
	P22-02855
	P22-02856
	P22-02857
	P22-02858
	P22-02859
	P22-02860
	P22-02861
	P22-02862
	P22-02863
	P22-02864
	P22-02865
	P22-02866
	P22-02867
	P22-02868
	P22-02869
	P22-02870
	P22-02871
	P22-02872
	P22-02873
	P22-02874
	P22-02875
	P22-02876
	P22-02877
	P22-02878
	P22-02879
	P22-02880
	P22-02881
	P22-02882
	P22-02883
	P22-02884
	P22-02885
	P22-02886
	P22-02887
	P22-02888
	P22-02889
	P22-02890
	P22-02891
	P22-02892
	P22-02893
	P22-02894
	P22-02895
	P22-02896
	P22-02897
	P22-02898
	P22-02899
	P22-02900
	P22-02901
	P22-02902
	P22-02903
	P22-02904
	P22-02905
	P22-02906
	P22-02907
	P22-02908
	P22-02909
	P22-02911
	P22-02912
	P22-02913
	P22-02914
	P22-02915
	P22-02916
	P22-02917
	P22-02918
	P22-02919
	P22-02920
	P22-02921
	P22-02922
	P22-02923
	P22-02924
	P22-02925
	P22-02926
	P22-02927
	P22-02928
	P22-02929
	P22-02930
	P22-02931
	P22-02932
	P22-02933
	P22-02934
	P22-02935
	P22-02936
	P22-02937
	P22-02938
	P22-02939
	P22-02940
	P22-02941
	P22-02942
	P22-02943
	P22-02944
	P22-02945
	P22-02946
	P22-02947
	P22-02948
	P22-02949
	P22-02950
	P22-02951
	P22-02952
	P22-02953
	P22-02954
	P22-02955
	P22-02956
	P22-02957
	P22-02959
	P22-02960
	P22-02961
	P22-02962
	P22-02963
	P22-02964
	P22-02965
	P22-02966
	P22-02967
	P22-02968
	P22-02969
	P22-02970
	P22-02971
	P22-02972
	P22-02973
	P22-02974
	P22-02975
	P22-02977
	P22-02978
	P22-02979
	P22-02980
	P22-02981
	P22-02982
	P22-02983
	P22-02984
	P22-02985
	P22-02986
	P22-02987
	P22-02988
	P22-02989
	P22-02990
	P22-02991
	P22-02993
	P22-02994
	P22-02995
	P22-02996
	P22-02997
	P22-02998
	P22-02999
	P22-03000
	P22-03001
	P22-03002
	P22-03003
	P22-03004
	P22-03005
	P22-03006
	P22-03007
	P22-03008
	P22-03009
	P22-03010
	P22-03011
	P22-03012
	P22-03013
	P22-03014
	P22-03015
	P22-03016
	P22-03017
	P22-03018
	P22-03019
	P22-03020
	P22-03021
	P22-03022
	P22-03023
	P22-03024
	P22-03025
	P22-03026
	P22-03027
	P22-03028
	P22-03029
	P22-03030
	P22-03031
	P22-03032
	P22-03033
	P22-03034
	P22-03035
	P22-03036
	P22-03037
	P22-03038
	P22-03039
	P22-03040
	P22-03041
	P22-03042
	P22-03043
	P22-03044
	P22-03045
	P22-03046
	P22-03047
	P22-03048
	P22-03049
	P22-03050
	P22-03051
	P22-03052
	TB22-00026
	TB22-00027
	TB22-00028
	TB22-00029
	TB22-00030
	TB22-00031
	TB22-00032
	TB22-00033
	TB22-00034
	TB22-00035
	TB22-00036
	TB22-00037
	TB22-00038
	TB22-00039

	2
	2022
	2023

	3
	B22-00098
	B22-00101
	B22-00146
	B22-00180
	B22-00188
	B22-00216
	B22-00230
	B22-00238
	B22-00239
	B22-00243
	B22-00251
	B22-00252
	B22-00256
	B22-00259
	B22-00263
	B22-00265
	B22-00273
	B22-00276
	B22-00289
	B22-00290
	B22-00291
	B22-00292
	B22-00293
	B22-00314
	B22-00315
	B22-00327
	B22-00351
	B22-00355
	B22-00356
	B22-00357
	B22-00359
	B22-00375
	B22-00389
	B22-00391
	B22-00392
	B22-00405
	B22-00406
	B22-00407
	B22-00408
	B22-00413
	B22-00415
	B22-00418
	B22-00419
	B22-00420
	B22-00421
	B22-00427
	B22-00428
	B22-00431
	B22-00455
	B22-00458
	B22-00478
	B22-00483
	B22-00485
	B22-00518
	B22-00522
	B22-00535
	B22-00547
	B22-00550
	B22-00579
	B22-00581
	B22-00585
	B22-00601
	B22-00604
	B22-00624
	B22-00655
	B22-00679
	B22-00732
	B22-00747
	B22-00758
	B22-00768
	CHB22-00062
	CHB22-00076
	CHB22-00085
	CHB22-00086
	CHB22-00145
	CHB22-00181
	CHB22-00191
	CHB22-00255
	CHB22-00261
	CHB22-00267
	CHB22-00278
	CHB22-00281
	CHB22-00306
	CHB22-00321
	CHB22-00326
	CHB22-00358
	CHB22-00365
	CHB22-00372
	CS21-00306
	CS22-00115
	CS22-00143
	CS22-00210
	CS22-00215
	CS22-00237
	N22-00014
	N22-00028
	N22-00034
	N22-00043
	N22-00048
	N22-00051
	P21-00490
	P22-00358
	P22-00543
	P22-00619
	P22-00841
	P22-01168
	P22-01208
	P22-01502
	P22-01712
	P22-01749
	P22-02008
	P22-02289
	P22-02303
	P22-02317
	P22-02318
	P22-02335
	P22-02337
	P22-02371
	P22-02391








